

SC21-7718-7 File No. S38-24

IBM System/38

IBM System/38 COBOL Reference Manual and Programmer's Guide

Program Number 5714-CB1



(

(

SC21-7718-7 File No. S38-24

IBM System/38

IBM System/38 COBOL Reference Manual and Programmer's Guide

Program Number 5714-CB1

Eighth Edition (November 1986)

This major revision obsoletes SC21-7718-6.

Changes are periodically made to the information herein; any such changes will be reported in subsequent revisions. Changes or additions to the text and illustrations are indicated by a vertical line to the left of the change or addition.

This edition applies to Release 8, Modification Level 0, of IBM System/38 COBOL Program Product (Program 5714-CB1) and to all subsequent releases and modifications until otherwise indicated in new editions.

References in this publication to IBM products, programs, or services do not imply that IBM intends to make these available in all countries in which IBM operates. Any reference to an IBM program product in this publication is not intended to state or imply that only IBM's program product may be used. Any functionally equivalent program may be used instead.

This publication contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

Publications are not stocked at the address given below. Requests for IBM publications should be made to your IBM representative or to the IBM branch office serving your locality.

A form for reader's comments is provided at the back of this publication. If the form has been removed, comments may be addressed to

IBM Canada Ltd. Information Development, Department 849, 895 Don Mills Road, North York, Ontario, Canada. M3C 1W3

IBM may use or distribute whatever information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

© Copyright International Business Machines Corporation 1980, 1981, 1982, 1983, 1984, 1985, 1986

Contents

(

(

| About This Manual | . xi |
|---|--------|
| Purpose of This Manual | . xi |
| Organization of This Manual | . xi |
| Summary of Changes | xii |
| What You Should Know | xiii |
| If You Need More Information | xiii |
| Industry Standards | xiv |
| Acknowledgment | . xv |
| Chapter 1. Introduction | 1-1 |
| General Description | 1-1 |
| Language Level | 1-1 |
| Compiler Features | 1-3 |
| Format Notation | 1-4 |
| Chapter 2. Language Considerations . | 2-1 |
| COBOL Program Structure | 2-1 |
| The COBOL Divisions | 2-1 |
| Clauses and Statements | 2-2 |
| Clause and Statement Specification | |
| Order | 2-2 |
| Structure of the Language | 2-3 |
| Character-Strings | 2-4 |
| COBOL Words | 2-4 |
| Literals | 2-8 |
| PICTURE Character-Strings | 2-10 |
| Comments | 2-10 |
| Separators | 2 - 10 |
| Standard COBOL Format | 2-11 |
| Sequence Numbers (Columns 1-6) | 2-11 |
| Continuation Area (Column 7) | 2 - 12 |
| Area A (Columns 8-11) and Area B | |
| (Columns 12-72) | 2 - 12 |
| Special Considerations | 2-14 |
| Division Header | 2-14 |
| Section Header | 2-14 |
| Paragraph Header, Paragraph-Name | 2-14 |
| Data Division Entries | 2-14 |
| DECLARATIVES and END | |
| DECLARATIVES | 2-15 |
| Program Spacing | 2-15 |
| Indentation | 2-15 |
| Continuation of Lines | 2-15 |
| Comment Lines | 2-16 |

| Debugging Lines | 2-16 |
|---|--------|
| Blank Lines | 2 - 16 |
| Overall Punctuation Rules | 2 - 16 |
| Identification Division | 2-16 |
| Environment Division | 2-17 |
| Data Division | 2-17 |
| Procedure Division | 2-17 |
| Methods of Data Reference | 2-17 |
| Qualification | 2-17 |
| Qualification Rules | 2-19 |
| Subscripting and Indexing | 2-20 |
| Identifier | 2-20 |
| Condition-Name | 2-21 |
| Explicit and Implicit References | 2-21 |
| Data Attribute Specification | 2-21 |
| Procedure Division Data References | 2-22 |
| Transfers of Control | 2-22 |

Chapter 3. Identification and

| Environment Divisions | 3-1 |
|----------------------------|------|
| IDENTIFICATION DIVISION | 3-1 |
| Coding Example | 3-2 |
| PROGRAM-ID Paragraph | 3-2 |
| Other Optional Paragraphs | 3-3 |
| ENVIRONMENT DIVISION | 3-3 |
| Coding Example | 3-4 |
| Configuration Section | 3-4 |
| SOURCE-COMPUTER Paragraph | 3-6 |
| OBJECT-COMPUTER Paragraph | 3-6 |
| MEMORY SIZE Clause | 3-6 |
| PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE | |
| Clause | 3-6 |
| SEGMENT-LIMIT Clause | 3-6 |
| SPECIAL-NAMES Paragraph | 3-7 |
| Function-Name-1 Clause | 3-7 |
| Function-Name-2 Clause | 3-8 |
| Coding Example | 3-9 |
| Alphabet-Name Clause | 3-9 |
| CURRENCY SIGN Clause | 3-12 |
| DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA | |
| Clause | 3-12 |
| Input-Output Section | 3-12 |
| Files | 3-12 |
| Data Base Files | 3-12 |

| Device Files | 3-13 |
|---|---|
| DDM Files | 3-13 |
| Paragraphs | 3-13 |
| File Processing Summary | 3-14 |
| Data Organization | 3-14 |
| Access Modes | 3-15 |
| Access Mode Allowed for Each File | |
| Туре | 3-16 |
| FILE-CONTROL Paragraph | 3-16 |
| FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – General | |
| Considerations | 3-18 |
| SELECT Clause | 3-19 |
| ASSIGN Clause | 3-19 |
| RESERVE Clause | 3-21 |
| ORGANIZATION Clause | 3-22 |
| ACCESS MODE Clause | 3-23 |
| RECORD KEY Clause (Indexed File) | 3-24 |
| FILE STATUS Clause | 3-26 |
| I-O-CONTROL Paragraph | 3-27 |
| RERIIN Clause | 3-28 |
| SAME Clause | 3-28 |
| MULTIPLE FILE TAPE Clause | 3-29 |
| COMMITMENT CONTROL Clause | 3-29 |
| | 0 20 |
| Chapter 4. Data Division | 4-1 |
| Data Division Concepts | 4-1 |
| External Data | 4-1 |
| | |
| Internal Data | 4-2 |
| Internal Data | $4-2 \\ 4-2$ |
| Internal Data Data Relationships Data Division Organization | 4-2 4-2 4-2 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding Example | 4-2 4-2 4-2 4-3 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division Entries | 4-2 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile Section | 4-2 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage Section | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage Section | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-5 4-6 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description Entry | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-6 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-Name | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-10 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS Clause | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-10 4-10 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS Clause | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-10 4-10 4-11 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS Clause | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-10 4-10 4-11 4-12 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF Clause | 4-2 4-2 4-3 4-4 4-5 4-5 4-6 4-10 4-10 4-11 4-12 4-12 |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS Clause | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2 \\ 4-2 \\ 4-3 \\ 4-4 \\ 4-5 \\ 4-5 \\ 4-5 \\ 4-6 \\ 4-6 \\ 4-10 \\ 4-10 \\ 4-11 \\ 4-12 \\ 4-12 \\ 4-13 \end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE Clause | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-4\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET Clause | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-4\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData Description | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-4\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData Description Concepts | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData Description ConceptsLevel Concepts | $\begin{array}{c} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData DescriptionLevel ConceptsLevel-Numbers | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-18\end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData DescriptionLevel ConceptsLevel-NumbersSpecial Level-Numbers | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-4\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-18\\ 4-20\\ \end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData DescriptionLevel ConceptsLevel-NumbersSpecial Level-NumbersIndentation | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-18\\ 4-20\\ 4-20\\ \end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData DescriptionLevel ConceptsLevel-NumbersSpecial Level-NumbersIndentationClasses of Data | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-18\\ 4-20\\ 4$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData DescriptionLevel ConceptsLevel-NumbersSpecial Level-NumbersIndentationClasses of DataStandard Alignment Rules | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-10\\ 4-11\\ 4-12\\ 4-12\\ 4-13\\ 4-13\\ 4-16\\ 4-17\\ 4-17\\ 4-18\\ 4-20\\ 4-20\\ 4-20\\ 4-21\\ \end{array}$ |
| Internal DataData RelationshipsData Division OrganizationCoding ExampleSample Data Division EntriesSample Data Division EntriesFile SectionWorking-Storage SectionLinkage SectionLinkage SectionFile Description EntryFile-NameBLOCK CONTAINS ClauseRECORD CONTAINS ClauseLABEL RECORDS ClauseVALUE OF ClauseDATA RECORDS ClauseLINAGE ClauseCODE-SET ClauseData DescriptionData Description ConceptsLevel ConceptsLevel-NumbersSpecial Level-NumbersIndentationClasses of DataStandard Alignment RulesStandard Data Format | $\begin{array}{r} 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-2\\ 4-3\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-5\\ 4-6\\ 4-10\\ 4-20\\ 4-20\\ 4-20\\ 4-21\\ 4-22\end{array}$ |

| Signed Data | 4-22 |
|--|---|
| Operational Signs | 4-22 |
| Editing Signs | 4-22 |
| Record Description Entry | 4-23 |
| Data Description Entry | 4-23 |
| Format 1 | 4-25 |
| Format 2 | 4-26 |
| Format 3 | 4-26 |
| Format 4–Boolean Data | 4-27 |
| Level-Numbers | 4-27 |
| Data-Name or FILLER Clause | 4-27 |
| REDEFINES Clause | 4-28 |
| USAGE Clause | 4-31 |
| DISPLAY Phrase | 4-31 |
| Computational Phrases | 4-32 |
| INDEX Phrase | 4-33 |
| SIGN Clause | 4-35 |
| OCCURS Clause | 4-36 |
| INDICATOR Clause | 4-36 |
| SYNCHRONIZED Clause | 4-36 |
| JUSTIFIED Clause | 4-36 |
| BLANK WHEN ZERO Clause | 4-37 |
| VALUE Clause | 4-38 |
| General Considerations | 4-38 |
| Format 1 Considerations | 4-40 |
| Format 2 Considerations | 4-40 |
| | |
| PICTURE Clause | 4-41 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE | 4-41 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause | 4-41 4-42 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing | 4-41 4-42 4-49 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 |
| PICTURE ClauseSymbols Used in the PICTUREClausePICTURE Clause EditingRENAMES Clause | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause PICTURE Division Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing PICTURE Clause Editing PICTURE Clause RENAMES Clause PICTURE Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division PICTURE Division Procedure Division PICTURE Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division PICTURE Division Procedure Division PICTURE Clause Declaratives PICTURE Clause | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Declaratives Procedures | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-1 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedure Division Organization | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-2 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-2 5-3 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-2 5-3 5-4 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions | 4-41 4-42 4-49 4-54 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-2 5-3 5-4 5-5 |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-2} \\ \textbf{5-3} \\ \textbf{5-4} \\ \textbf{5-5} \\ \textbf{5-6} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-2} \\ \textbf{5-3} \\ \textbf{5-4} \\ \textbf{5-5} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-2} \\ \textbf{5-3} \\ \textbf{5-4} \\ \textbf{5-5} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-7} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Conditional Expressions | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-2} \\ \textbf{5-3} \\ \textbf{5-4} \\ \textbf{5-5} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-7} \\ \textbf{5-8} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Simple Conditions | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-1} \\ \textbf{5-2} \\ \textbf{5-3} \\ \textbf{5-4} \\ \textbf{5-5} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-6} \\ \textbf{5-7} \\ \textbf{5-8} \\ \textbf{5-9} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Conditional Expressions Class Condition | $\begin{array}{c} 4-41\\ 4-42\\ 4-49\\ 4-54\\ \hline \\ 5-1\\ 5-1\\ 5-1\\ 5-2\\ 5-3\\ 5-4\\ 5-5\\ 5-6\\ 5-6\\ 5-6\\ 5-6\\ 5-6\\ 5-7\\ 5-8\\ 5-9\\ 5-9\\ 5-9\\ 5-9\\ 5-9\end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Simple Conditions Class Condition | $\begin{array}{c} 4\text{-}41\\ 4\text{-}42\\ 4\text{-}49\\ 4\text{-}54\\ \\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}2\\ 5\text{-}3\\ 5\text{-}4\\ 5\text{-}5\\ 5\text{-}6\\ 5\text{-}6\\ 5\text{-}6\\ 5\text{-}7\\ 5\text{-}8\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}10\\ \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Conditional Expressions Simple Condition Class Condition Relation Condition | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ 5-1 \\ 5-1 \\ 5-2 \\ 5-3 \\ 5-4 \\ 5-5 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-7 \\ 5-8 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-10 \\ 5-11 \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedures Procedures Categories of Sentences Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Arithmetic Operators Conditional Expressions Simple Condition Class Condition Relation Condition | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ 5-1 \\ 5-1 \\ 5-2 \\ 5-3 \\ 5-4 \\ 5-5 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-7 \\ 5-8 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-10 \\ 5-11 \\ 5-14 \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Operators Conditional Expressions Simple Conditions Class Condition Relation Condition Sign Condition | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ \hline \textbf{5-2} \\ \hline \textbf{5-3} \\ \hline \textbf{5-4} \\ \hline \textbf{5-5} \\ \hline \textbf{5-6} \\ \hline \textbf{5-6} \\ \hline \textbf{5-6} \\ \hline \textbf{5-6} \\ \hline \textbf{5-7} \\ \hline \textbf{5-8} \\ \hline \textbf{5-9} \\ \hline \textbf{5-9} \\ \hline \textbf{5-10} \\ \hline \textbf{5-11} \\ \hline \textbf{5-14} \\ \hline \textbf{5-14} \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Simple Conditions Class Condition Categories of Condition Sign Condition Sign Condition Sign Condition Switch-Status Condition | $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{4-41} \\ \textbf{4-42} \\ \textbf{4-49} \\ \textbf{4-54} \\ \hline \textbf{5-1} \\ 5-1 \\ 5-1 \\ 5-2 \\ 5-3 \\ 5-4 \\ 5-5 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-6 \\ 5-7 \\ 5-8 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-9 \\ 5-10 \\ 5-11 \\ 5-14 \\ 5-14 \\ 5-15 \end{array}$ |
| PICTURE Clause Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause PICTURE Clause Editing RENAMES Clause Chapter 5. Procedure Division Procedure Division Concepts Declaratives Procedures Procedure Division Organization Categories of Sentences Categories of Statements Categories of Expressions Sample Procedure Division Statements Arithmetic Expressions Simple Conditions Class Condition Condition-Name Condition Relation Condition Sign Conditions Negated Simple Conditions | $\begin{array}{c} 4\text{-}41\\ 4\text{-}42\\ 4\text{-}49\\ 4\text{-}54\\ \\ \text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}1\\ 5\text{-}2\\ 5\text{-}3\\ 5\text{-}4\\ 5\text{-}5\\ 5\text{-}6\\ 5\text{-}6\\ 5\text{-}7\\ 5\text{-}8\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}9\\ 5\text{-}10\\ 5\text{-}11\\ 5\text{-}14\\ 5\text{-}14\\ 5\text{-}15\\ 5\text{-}15\\ 5\text{-}15\end{array}$ |

| Abbreviated Combined Relation | |
|---|--|
| Conditions | 5-19 |
| Declaratives | 5-20 |
| EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative | 5-21 |
| File-Name Phrase | 5-21 |
| INPUT Phrase | 5-22 |
| OUTPUT Phrase | 5 - 22 |
| I-O Phrase | 5 - 22 |
| EXTEND Phrase | 5-22 |
| General Considerations | 5-22 |
| Programming Notes | 5-23 |
| Conditional Statements | 5-23 |
| IF Statement | 5-24 |
| Nested IF Statements | 5-25 |
| Input/Output Statements | 5-27 |
| Common Input/Output Phrases | 5.97 |
| Status Koy | 5-28 |
| INVALID KEY Condition | U-20 |
| INVALID KET COndition | 0-40 E 90 |
| INTO/FROM Identifier Phrase | 5-28 |
| | 5-29 |
| DB-FORMAT-NAME Special Register | 5-30 |
| ACCEPT Statement | 5-30 |
| Format 1 Considerations | 5-31 |
| Format 2 Considerations | 5-33 |
| Format 3 Considerations | 5-33 |
| Format 4 Considerations | 5-34 |
| Programming Notes | 5-34 |
| ACQUIRE Statement | 5-34 |
| CLOSE Statement | 5 - 35 |
| COMMIT Statement | 5 - 39 |
| DELETE Statement | 5-40 |
| DISPLAY Statement | 5-43 |
| Format 1 Considerations | 5-44 |
| Format 2 Considerations | 5-47 |
| DROP Statement | 5-47 |
| OPEN Statement | 5-47 |
| READ Statement | 5-52 |
| REWRITE Statement | 5-61 |
| ROLLBACK Statement | 5-65 |
| START Statement | 5-66 |
| WRITE Statement | 0-00 |
| | 5-72 |
| Arithmetic Statements | 5-00 5-72 5-80 |
| Arithmetic Statement Operands | 5-00 5-72 5-80 5-80 |
| Arithmetic Statements Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands | 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 |
| Arithmetic Statements Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands | 5-00 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 |
| Arithmetic Statements Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results | 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases | 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-81 5-82 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase | 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase GIVING Phrase | 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-82 5-83 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases GIVING Phrase ROUNDED Phrase | 5-60 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-82 5-83 5-83 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase GIVING Phrase ROUNDED Phrase SIZE ERROR Phrase | 5-60 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-82 5-83 5-83 5-83 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase GIVING Phrase ROUNDED Phrase SIZE ERROR Phrase ADD Statement | 5-80 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-83 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase GIVING Phrase ROUNDED Phrase SIZE ERROR Phrase ADD Statement COMPUTE Statement | 5-80 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-84 5-84 5-84 5-84 |
| Arithmetic Statement Arithmetic Statement Operands Size of Operands Overlapping Operands Multiple Results Common Phrases CORRESPONDING Phrase GIVING Phrase ROUNDED Phrase SIZE ERROR Phrase ADD Statement COMPUTE Statement | 5-80 5-72 5-80 5-80 5-80 5-81 5-81 5-82 5-82 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-83 5-84 5-84 5-84 5-85 5-86 |

(

(

(

| MULTIPLY Statement | 5-88 |
|----------------------------------|---------|
| SUBTRACT Statement | 5-89 |
| Data Manipulation Statements | 5-90 |
| INSPECT Statement | 5-90 |
| INSPECT | 5-93 |
| TALLYING Phrase | 5-94 |
| REPLACING Phrase | 5-94 |
| BEFORE/AFTER Phrases | 5-95 |
| INSPECT Statement Examples | 5-96 |
| MOVE Statement | 5-97 |
| General Considerations | 5-98 |
| Elementary Moves | 5-98 |
| Group Moves | 5-101 |
| Format 1 Considerations | 5-102 |
| Format 2 Considerations | 5-103 |
| SET Statement | 5-103 |
| STRING Statement | 5-104 |
| STRING Statement Execution | 5-105 |
| STRING Statement Example | 5-106 |
| UNSTRING Statement | 5-109 |
| Sending Field | 5-109 |
| Data Receiving Fields | 5.110 |
| UNSTRING Statement Execution | 5 111 |
| UNSTRING Statement Execution | 5 114 |
| Procedure Branching Statements | 5.116 |
| AI TER Statement | 5 116 |
| Sogmentation Information | 5 117 |
| EVIT Statement | 5 117 |
| CO TO Statement | 5 1 1 9 |
| Format 1 – Unconditional CO TO | 5 110 |
| Format 1 Conditional GO TO | 5 110 |
| DEDEADM Statement | 5 110 |
| Format 1 | 5 199 |
| Format 1 | 5 1 9 9 |
| Format 2 | 5 1 9 9 |
| Format <i>A</i> | 5 1 2 2 |
| Verying One Identifier | 5 194 |
| Varying Two Idontifions | 5 196 |
| Varying Three Identifiers | 5 120 |
| Sogmentation Information | 5 1 2 9 |
| Statement | 5 1 3 3 |
| Compiler Directing Statements | 5 194 |
| ENTER Statement | 5 1 24 |
| | 0-104 |
| Chapter 6. Additional Functions | . 6-1 |
| TABLE HANDLING | . 6-1 |
| Table Handling Concepts | . 6-1 |
| Table Definition | . 6-2 |
| Table References | . 6-4 |
| Subscripting | . 6-4 |
| Indexing | . 6-6 |
| Restrictions on Subscripting and | - |
| Indexing | . 6-7 |
| Table Initialization | . 6-7 |
| | |

| Data Division – Table Handling | 6-9 |
|-------------------------------------|------|
| OCCURS Clause | 6-9 |
| Fixed Length Tables | 6-11 |
| Variable Length Tables | 6-11 |
| ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY | |
| Phrase | 6-12 |
| INDEXED BY Phrase | 6-13 |
| USAGE IS INDEX Clause | 6-13 |
| Procedure Division – Table Handling | 6-14 |
| Relation Conditions | 6-14 |
| SEARCH Statement | 6-15 |
| Format 1 | 6-17 |
| Format 2 | 6-18 |
| Programming Notes | 6-20 |
| SEARCH Example | 6-20 |
| SET Statement | 6-22 |
| Format 3 | 6-23 |
| Format 4 | 6-24 |
| SORT/MERGE | 6-25 |
| Sort/Merge Concepts | 6-25 |
| Sort Concepts | 6-26 |
| Merge Concepts | 6-27 |
| Environment Division - SORT/MERGE. | 6-27 |
| File-Control Paragraph | 6-27 |
| I-O-Control Paragraph | 6-27 |
| Data Division – SORT/MERGE | 6-28 |
| Procedure Division – SORT/MERGE | 6-28 |
| MERGE Statement | 6-29 |
| SORT Statement | 6-29 |
| MERGE Statement and SORT | |
| Statement Phrases | 6-30 |
| ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY | |
| Phrase | 6-30 |
| COLLATING SEQUENCE Phrase . | 6-31 |
| USING Phrase | 6-32 |
| GIVING Phrase | 6-32 |
| SORT INPUT PROCEDURE Phrase | 6-33 |
| SORT/MERGE OUTPUT | |
| PROCEDURE Phrase | 6-34 |
| SORT or MERGE INPUT/OUTPUT | 0.05 |
| PROCEDURE Control | 6-35 |
| RELEASE Statement (Sort Function | 0.00 |
| | 6-36 |
| RETURN Statement | 6-36 |
| SORT/MERGE Programming Notes | 6-37 |
| CODY Statement | 0-39 |
| Dete Field Structures | 6 49 |
| Floating Point Fields | 6 12 |
| Indicator Structures | 6-40 |
| Externally Described COPV | 0-44 |
| Statement DDS Format and DD | |
| Format Considerations | 6-45 |
| REPLACING Phrase | 6-47 |
| | |

| COPY Statement Example | 6-49 |
|---|---|
| SEGMENTATION FEATURE | 6-50 |
| Segmentation Concepts | 6-50 |
| Program Segments | 6-50 |
| Fixed Segments | 6-50 |
| Independent Segments | 6-51 |
| Segmentation Logic | 6-51 |
| Segmentation Control | 6-52 |
| COBOL Source Program Considerations | 6-52 |
| Segmentation – Environment Division | 6.52 |
| Segmentation – Procedure Division | 6-53 |
| Segmentation - Special Considerations | 6 53 |
| ALTER Statement | 6 5 2 |
| DEDEODM Statement | 6 54 |
| SOPT and MEDGE Statements | 0-04 |
| Colling and Colled Decements | 0-04 |
| Ualling and Ualled Programs | 6-94 |
| INTER-PROGRAM COMMUNICATION | <u> </u> |
| FEATURE | 6-54 |
| Inter-Program Communication Concepts | 6-55 |
| Transfers of Control | 6-55 |
| Common Data | 6-55 |
| COBOL Language Considerations . | 6-56 |
| Data Division—Inter-Program | |
| Communication | 6-56 |
| Record Description Entries | 6-58 |
| Data Item Description Entries | 6-58 |
| Procedure Division – Inter-Program | |
| Communication | 6-58 |
| CALL Statement | 6-59 |
| USING Phrase | 6-60 |
| CPF Graphics Support | 6-61 |
| CANCEL Statement | 6-62 |
| EXIT PROGRAM Statement | 6-63 |
| STOP RUN Statement | 6-64 |
| Inter-Program Communication Feature | |
| inter i logiani o onini antoation i oataro | |
| Examples | 6-64 |
| Examples | 6-64 6-66 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging | 6-64 6-66 6-66 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile Time Switch | 6-64 6-66 6-66 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-66 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-67 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative . DEBUG ITEM Special Register | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6 70 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative . DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-70 |
| Examples | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-72 |
| ExamplesDEBUGGING FEATURESCOBOL Source Language DebuggingCompile-Time SwitchExecution-Time SwitchUSE FOR DEBUGGING DeclarativeDEBUG-ITEM Special RegisterDebugging LinesFIPS FLAGGER | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension) | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension) Externally Described Transaction File | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 7-1 |
| Examples | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 7-1 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension) Externally Described Transaction File Processing an Externally Described TRANSACTION File | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 7-1 7-1 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension) Externally Described Transaction File Processing an Externally Described TRANSACTION File | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 7-1 7-4 7-4 |
| Examples DEBUGGING FEATURES COBOL Source Language Debugging Compile-Time Switch Execution-Time Switch USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative DEBUG-ITEM Special Register Debugging Lines FIPS FLAGGER Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension) Externally Described Transaction File Processing an Externally Described TRANSACTION File Indicators Indicators in the Record Area | 6-64 6-66 6-66 6-67 6-68 6-70 6-72 6-73 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-4 7-4 7-5 |

| Chapter 8. Creating and Executing Programs Entering the Source Program into the | 8-1 |
|---|--------------|
| Chapter 8. Creating and Executing Programs | 7-00 8-1 |
| Chapter 8. Creating and Executing | 7-00 |
| | 1-00 |
| Work Station Sample Flograms | 1-00 |
| Work Station Sample Programs | 7 00 |
| USE Statement | 7-66 |
| Format 2 | 7-63 |
| Format 1 | 7-60 |
| WRITE Statement | 7-60 |
| REWRITE Statement | 7-58 |
| Format 2 | 7-55 |
| Format 1 | 7-50 |
| READ Statement | 7-50 |
| TERMINAL Phrase | 7-49 |
| SUBFILE Phrase | 7-49 |
| INDICATORS Phrase | 7-49 |
| DB-FORMAT-NAME Special Register | 7-48 |
| FORMAT Phrase | 7-48 |
| Common Processing Facilities | 7-48 |
| OPEN Statement | 7-47 |
| DROP Statement | 7-47 |
| CLOSE Statement | 7-46 |
| ACQUIRE Statement | 7-45 |
| Attribute Data Formats | 7-45 |
| ACCEPT Statement | 7-44 |
| Procedure Division | 7-44 |
| Boolean Data Facilities | 7-44 |
| File Description Entry | 7-43 |
| Data Division | 7-43 |
| CONTROL AREA Clause | 7-49 |
| FILE STATUS Clause | 7-41 |
| RELATIVE KEY Clause | 7-41 |
| ACCESS MODE Clause | 7-41 |
| ORGANIZATION Clause | 7-40 |
| ASSIGN Clause | 7-39 |
| File-Control Entry | 7-39 |
| Environment Division | 7-39 |
| Program Described Transaction Files | 7.39 |
| Files | 7-28 |
| Multiple Device Files and Single Device | 1-24 |
| Use of Subfiles | 1-44 7-91 |
| Indicators Sample Frograms | 7 99 |
| Indicators III a Separate Indicator Area | 7 10 |
| Indicators in the Record Area | 7 10 |
| INDICATORS Phrase | 1-9 70 |
| | 7-7 |
| Statement, DDS Format or DD | |
| INDICATOR Attribute of the COPY | |
| Special Considerations | 7-7 |
| Data Description Entry–Boolean Data | 7-6 |
| Area Attribute | 7-6 |
| ASSIGN Clause with Separate Indicator | |

(

| Using SEU to Enter Source | 8-2 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Using SEU to Browse through a | |
| Compiler Listing | 8-4 |
| Compiling the Source Program | 8-5 |
| Compiler Options | 8-6 |
| Create COBOL Program Command | 8-6 |
| PROCESS Statement | 8-13 |
| Batch Compiles | 8-15 |
| Using COPY within the PROCESS | |
| Statement | 8-15 |
| Compiler Output | 8-16 |
| Command Summary | 8-16 |
| Compiler Options | 8-17 |
| Source Listing | 8-17 |
| Verb Usage by Count Listing | 8-20 |
| Data Division Map | 8-20 |
| FIPS Messages | 8-22 |
| Cross-Reference List | 8-23 |
| Messages | 8-24 |
| How to Execute a COBOL Program | 8-25 |
| | |

Chapter 9. Programmer's Guide

| Information | 9-1 |
|---|------|
| Device Independence/Device Dependence . | 9-2 |
| Spooling | 9-4 |
| Output Spool | 9-4 |
| Input Spool | 9-4 |
| Level Checking | 9-5 |
| File and Record Locking by COBOL | 9-5 |
| Releasing a Record Read for Update | 9-6 |
| Unblocking Input Records and Blocking | |
| Output Records | 9-6 |
| Multiple Member Processing | 9-7 |
| System Override Considerations | 9-7 |
| Externally Described/Program Described | |
| Files | 9-8 |
| Externally Described Files | 9-10 |
| Record Format Specifications | 9-11 |
| Access Path | 9-15 |
| Record Keys and Common Keys | 9-15 |
| COBOL Specifications for Externally | |
| Described Files | 9-16 |
| Overriding or Adding COBOL | |
| Functions to the External | |
| Description | 9-18 |
| Program Described Files | 9-20 |
| Specific COBOL File Processing | 9-21 |
| Printer File Considerations | 9-21 |
| SPECIAL-NAMES Paragraph and the | |
| ADVANCING Phrase | 9-21 |
| LINAGE Clause | 9-21 |
| FORMATFILE Files | 9-22 |
| Card File Considerations | 9-29 |
| Specifying the Function | 9-29 |

| Nonagaagiated Card Files | 0.90 |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Accepted Card File | 9-29 |
| Associated Card File | 9-30 |
| | 9-30 |
| DISK and DATABASE File | 9-30 |
| Considerations | 9-31 |
| DATABASE versus DISK Files | 9-31 |
| Processing Methods for DISK and | |
| DATABASE Files | 9-31 |
| Referring to a Partial Key | 9-33 |
| Logical File Considerations | 9-36 |
| File Processing Methods | 9-40 |
| Descending File Considerations | 9-41 |
| Commitment Control Considerations | 9-44 |
| Exceptions and Some of Their Causes | 9-52 |
| System/38 COBOL Programming | |
| Considerations | 9-53 |
| Performance Considerations | 9.53 |
| Segmentation | 9-53 |
| Debugging | 0.53 |
| Debugging | 9-00 0 5 2 |
| *NODANCE Option | 9-00 |
| | 9-00 |
| | 9-03 |
| Commitment Control | 9-54 |
| Program Loops | 9-54 |
| Tracing a Loop in a Program | 9-54 |
| Errors That Can Cause a Loop | 9-54 |
| Recovery after a Failure | 9-55 |
| Recovery with Commitment Control | 9-55 |
| Communications Recovery | 9-55 |
| System/38 Inter-Program Communication | |
| Considerations | 9-60 |
| Return of Control From a Called | |
| Program | 9-61 |
| Initialization of Storage | 9-61 |
| Local Data Area | 9-65 |
| File Considerations | 9-65 |
| | |
| Chapter 10. Testing and Debugging | |
| COBOL Programs | 10-1 |
| Using a Test Library | 10-1 |
| Testing | 10-2 |
| Normal | 10-3 |
| Job | 10-3 |
| Using Breakpoints | 10-4 |
| Example of Using Breakpoints | 10-4 |
| Considerations for Using Breakpoints | 10-8 |
| Using a Trace | 10-8 |
| Example of Using a Trace | 10-9 |
| Considerations for Using a Trace | 10-11 |
| Using a Debug Execution-Time Switch | 10-12 |
| File Status | 10-12 |
| Using a COBOL Formatted Dump | 10-12 |
| | |

Example of Using a Dump 10-13

Chapter 11. COBOL Problem

| Chapter II. COBOL Fromem | |
|---------------------------------------|-------------------|
| Determination | 11-1 |
| How to Use This Procedure | 11-1 |
| Identifying COBOL Problems | 11-1 |
| Calling for Help | 11-5 |
| | |
| Appendix A. COBOL Compiler Service | |
| Information | A-1 |
| Compiler Overview | A-1 |
| Compiler Phases | A-3 |
| Execution-Time Subroutines | Δ.3 |
| Major Compiler Data Areas | A 2 |
| Compiler Error Message Organization | A-0 |
| Compiler Error Message Organization . | A-3 |
| Compiler Debugging Options | A-5 |
| DUMP Parameter | A-6 |
| ITDUMP Parameter | A-6 |
| Examples of Using Compiler Debugging | |
| Options | A-6 |
| IRP Layout | A-9 |
| · | |
| Appendix B. Summary of IBM | |
| Extensions | B-1 |
| Character-String Considerations | B-1 |
| Identification Division | B.1 |
| Environment Division | \mathbf{D}^{-1} |
| Data Division | D-1 D-1 |
| | D-2 |
| | B-2 |
| COPY Statement – All Divisions | B-4 |
| TRANSACTION Files | B-4 |
| Compiler Options | B-5 |
| | |
| Appendix C. Compile-Time Message | |
| Description | C-1 |
| CAUTION | C-2 |
| | |
| Appendix D. Associated Card File | |
| Processing | D-1 |
| Environment Division | D-1 |
| SELECT Clause | D-1 |
| ASSIGN Clause | D-1 |
| Data Division | D-2 |
| Procedure Division | D-2 |
| | D 2 |
| Appendix E. Intermediate Result | |
| Fields | E-1 |
| Compiler Calculation of Intermediate | |
| Results | E-2 |
| | |
| Appendix F. Sample File-Processing | |
| Programs | F-1 |
| Sequential File Creation | F-2 |
| Sequential interclation | ± -4 |

Sequential File Updating and Extension F-4

| Indexed File Creation | F-6 |
|---------------------------------------|--------------|
| Indexed File Updating | F-8 |
| Relative File Creation | F-11 |
| Relative File Updating | F-13 |
| Relative File Retrieval | F-15 |
| Appendix G. COBOL Reserved Words | G-1 |
| Appendix H. EBCDIC and ASCII | |
| Collating Sequences | H-1 |
| EBCDIC Collating Sequence | H-2 |
| ASCII Collating Sequence | H-5 |
| Appendix I. File Structure Support | |
| Summary and Status Key Values | I-1 |
| Attribute Data Formats | I-10 |
| Display Device Attribute Data | I-10 |
| Communications Device Attribute | |
| Data | I-10 |
| OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK | |
| Data Areas | I-11 |
| OPEN-FEEDBACK | I-11 |
| I-O-FEEDBACK | I-11 |
| Annondiv I. Summary of Clauses and | |
| Statements | . I_1 |
| Conventions Used for Describing | 0-1 |
| Statement Formats | J.1 |
| COBOL Program Structure | J-2 |
| | 0 4 |

(

| Process Statement | J-2 |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|
| Identification Division | J-2 |
| Environment Division | J-2 |
| Data Division | J-3 |
| Procedure Division – Format | |
| 1 – Declaratives Section | J -3 |
| Procedure Division – Format 2 | J-3 |
| DETAILED FORMATS | J-4 |
| Identification Division Format | J-4 |
| Environment Division Formats | J-5 |
| Configuration Section | J-5 |
| Input-Output Section | J-6 |
| Data Division Formats | J-9 |
| File Section Formats | J-9 |
| Working-Storage Section | J-14 |
| Linkage Section | J-16 |
| Procedure Division Formats | J-16 |
| Procedure Division Header | J-16 |
| Procedure Division Statements | J-16 |
| Conditional Expressions | J-37 |
| Qualification of Data Reference | |
| Formats | J-39 |
| All Divisions | J-41 |
| Symbols Allowed in the PICTURE Clause | J-43 |
| Assignment-Names in the ASSIGN Clause | J-43 |
| | |
| Glossary GLO | SS-1 |
| Index | X-1 |

x

About This Manual

Purpose of This Manual

This reference manual describes the System/38 COBOL (Common Business Oriented Language) compiler and language. This manual provides reference material and programmer guide information for persons who have some knowledge of the COBOL language and some experience in writing COBOL programs.

Organization of This Manual

This manual is organized as follows:

- Chapters 1 through 5 describe the COBOL language and each of the four program divisions: Identification, Environment, Data, and Procedure. The COBOL clauses and statements available to the user are explained.
- Chapter 6 describes the additional functions of the language that are provided through the various processing modules.
- Chapter 7 describes the support of work stations and interactive communications as a function of the COBOL compiler.
- Chapter 8 describes how to create and execute programs.
- Chapter 9 contains programmer's guide information.
- Chapter 10 describes how to test and debug COBOL programs.
- Chapter 11 contains COBOL problem determination information.
- Appendix A contains compiler service information.
- Appendix B summarizes IBM extensions.
- Appendix C contains diagnostic level information for compiler messages.
- Appendix D describes associated card file processing.

- Appendix E describes intermediate result fields.
- Appendix F contains sample file-processing programs.
- Appendix G contains COBOL reserved words.
- Appendix H contains the EBCDIC and ASCII collating sequences.
- Appendix I contains a file structure support summary and the status key values.
- Appendix J contains a summary of the System/38 COBOL clauses and statements for each division.
- A glossary of terms and their definitions.

To aid the user, IBM provides several extensions to American National Standard (ANS) COBOL, X3.23-1974. The more significant extensions include:

- TRANSACTION I-0: Used to send or receive records from a work station.
- Data Base I-O: The System/38 COBOL programmer can define data as he does presently. Thus, the COBOL programmer can use standard COBOL Environment and Data Division entries to specify file identification, field definitions, and data structures. Clauses have been added to the READ, WRITE, REWRITE, DELETE, and START verbs to support the System/38 data base.
- COPY: Support for externally described files.
- Extended data types: Computational-3 (packed decimal), and computational-4 (binary).
- Use of apostrophe instead of quotes.

Summary of Changes

The following changes have been made to this manual for COBOL release 8:

- Three references have been added to the list in this prolog: one for Distributed Data Management (DDM), one for the 3180 keyboard template, and one for the office keyboard template.
- A new section on DDM files has been added to Chapter 3.
- A note on when the System/38 compiler does not generate a temporary result field has been added to the "Arithmetic Statements" section of Chapter 5.

I

- A paragraph on unexpected results during a MOVE operation has been added to Chapter 5.
- A paragraph on replacement has been added to the "COPY Statement" in Chapter 6.
- A description of DDM has been entered into the Glossary.
- The local data area is now defined outside the COBOL program as 1024 bytes of character data.
- Various technical and editorial changes have been made to improve the quality and usability of this manual.

The other updates indicated in this version of the user manual identify corrections to the previous version, or editorial changes made to the text. Note that the way of identifying IBM extensions has changed as described in Chapter 1.

Note: This publication follows the convention that he means he or she.

What You Should Know

Before reading this manual, you should be familiar with the *IBM System/38* Control Program Facility Concepts Manual, GC21-7729, which contains the basic concepts of the control program facility.

If You Need More Information

You may need some or all of the following information while using this manual:

- IBM System/38 Guide to Publications, GC21-7726, which contains information about related publications, defines terms and lists index entries of frequently used System/38 publications.
- IBM System/38 Guide to Program Product Installation and Device Configuration, GC21-7775, which describes how to install COBOL on your system.
- *IBM System/38 COBOL Reference Summary*, SC21-7781, which outlines clauses and statements used in System/38 COBOL.
- IBM COBOL Coding Form, GX28-1464, which is used for coding.
- IBM System/38 Source Entry Utility Reference Manual and User's Guide, SC21-7722, which describes how to create and update source records using SEU.

- IBM System/38 Control Program Facility Programmer's Guide, SC21-7730, which explains how to use CPF commands and data description specifications.
- IBM System/38 Control Language Reference Manual, SC21-7731, which describes commands and parameters that are used for various CPF functions.
- IBM System/38 Control Program Facility Reference Manual Data Description Specifications, SC21-7806, which describes the data description specifications that are used for describing files.
- IBM System/38 Messages Guide: COBOL, SC21-7823, which contains additional information about COBOL messages.
- IBM System/38 Concepts for the COBOL User, GC21-7855, which introduces new extensions to COBOL for System/38.
- IBM System/38 Problem Determination Guide, SC21-7876, which contains procedures for resolving system problems that are indicated by error messages, operator/service panel lights, interactive/batch jobs or spooling functions that do not work as expected, or devices that do not work as expected.
- IBM System/38 Data Communications Programmer's Guide, SC21-7825, which describes commands, parameters, and data description specification keywords that are used for program-to-program and system-to-device communication functions.
- *IBM System/38 Operator's Guide*, SC21-7735, which explains the operation of individual devices, system operation, and how to analyze system problems.
- IBM System/38 CPF Graphics Reference Manual, SC21-8007 and IBM System/38 CPF Graphics Programmer's Guide, SC21-8006, which describe how to use the Graphical Data Display Manager (GDDM), and Presentation Graphics Routines (PGR).
- IBM System/38 Distributed Data Management User's Guide, SC21-8036.
- IBM System/38 3180 Keyboard Template, GX09-1036.
- IBM System/38 Office Keyboard Template, GX09-1038.

Industry Standards

The System/38 COBOL compiler is designed according to the following industry standards as understood and interpreted by IBM, as of June 1980:

- The ANS COBOL, X3.23-1974 standard. ANS COBOL is identical to ISO 1989-COBOL, as approved in February 1978 by the International Organization for Standardization. The ANS COBOL processing modules are described in the table under "Language Level" in Chapter 1.
- The December 1975 Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS PUB 21-1) low-intermediate level. Additional support is provided for many features at higher FIPS levels.

Portions of this manual are copied from American National Standard (ANS) COBOL, X3.23-1974. This material is reproduced with permission from *American National Standard Programming Language COBOL, X3.23-1974*, copyright 1974 by the American National Standards Institute, copies of which can be purchased from the American National Standards Institute at 1430 Broadway, New York, New York, 10018.

Procedures have been established for the maintenance of COBOL. Inquiries concerning the procedures for proposing changes should be directed to the Executive Committee of the Conference on Data Systems Languages.

Acknowledgment

The following extract from Government Printing Office Form Number 1965-0795689 is presented for the information and guidance of the user:

Any organization interested in reproducing the COBOL report and specifications in whole or in part, using ideas taken from this report as the basis for an instruction manual or for any other purpose, is free to do so. However, all such organizations are requested to reproduce this section as part of the introduction to the document. Those using a short passage, as in a book review, are requested to mention COBOL in acknowledgment of the source, but need not quote this entire section.

COBOL is an industry language and is not the property of any company or group of companies, or of any organization or group of organizations.

No warranty, expressed or implied, is made by any contributor or by the COBOL Committee as to the accuracy and functioning of the programming system and language. Moreover, no responsibility is assumed by any contributor, or by the committee, in connection therewith.

Procedures have been established for the maintenance of COBOL. Inquiries concerning the procedures for proposing changes should be directed to the Executive Committee of the Conference of Data Systems Languages.

The authors and copyright holders of the copyrighted material used herein

FLOW-MATIC (Trademark of Sperry Rand Corporation), Programming for the UNIVAC (R) I and II, Data Automation Systems copyrighted 1958, 1959, by Sperry Rand Corporation; IBM Commercial Translator, Form No. F28-8013, copyrighted 1959 by IBM; FACT, DSI 27A5260-2760, copyrighted 1960 by Minneapolis-Honeywell

have specifically authorized the use of this material in whole or in part, in the COBOL specifications. Such authorization extends to the reproduction and use of COBOL specifications in programming manuals or similar publications.

Chapter 1. Introduction

General Description

COBOL (Common Business Oriented Language) is a programming language that resembles English. As its name implies, COBOL is especially efficient in the processing of business problems. COBOL can be used to manipulate large files of data in a relatively simple way. That is, COBOL emphasizes the description and handling of data items and of input/output records.

The System/38 COBOL Compiler and Library is an IBM program product that accepts and compiles COBOL programs written in accordance with the ANS COBOL X3.23-1974 standard. This program product also includes a number of IBM extensions. The following sections describe the language level implemented and the language-independent compiler features.

Language Level

The table that follows shows the support of each module provided by System/38 COBOL. The table also describes each module.

The following example explains the notation used to identify levels of implementation:

2 SEG 0, 2 L---Highest level available L----Minimum level required L-----Module identifier L-----Level supported by System/38 COBOL

| System/38 COBOL Processing Modules | Module Description |
|--|---|
| Nucleus 2 NUC 1, 2 | Contains the language elements necessary for internal processing. |
| Table Handling 2 TBL 1, 2 | Contains the language elements necessary for: (1) definition of tables; (2) identification, manipulation, and use of indexes; (3) reference to the items within tables. Provides the ability to define fixed-length or variable-length tables of up to three dimensions. Items in the tables can be referred to by using a subscript or an index. |
| Sequential I-O 2 SEQ 1, 2 | Allows definition and access of sequentially organized external files. IBM System/38 COBOL Sequential I-O provides all level 2 functions except for support of the RERUN clause. |
| Relative I-O 2 REL 0, 2 | Provides the capability of defining and accessing disk files in which records are identified by relative record numbers. A file can be accessed randomly and sequentially in the same COBOL program. IBM System/38 COBOL Relative I-O provides all level 2 functions except for support of the RERUN clause. |
| Indexed I-O 2 INX 0, 2 <i>Note:</i> Alternate key omitted. | Provides the capability of defining disk files in which records are identified by the value of a key and accessed through an access path. IBM System/38 COBOL Indexed I-O provides all level 2 functions except for support of the ALTERNATE RECORD KEY clause, the RERUN clause, and the KEY IS phrase of the READ statement. |
| Sort-Merge 2 SRT 0, 2 | Allows the inclusion of one or more sorts in a COBOL program and use of the merge facility. |
| Report Writer 0 RPW 0, 1 | Provides semiautomatic production of printed reports. |
| Segmentation 2 SEG 0, 2 | Provides overlaying at object time of Procedure Division sections. |
| Library 2 LIB 0, 2 | Allows inclusion of predefined COBOL text in a program. |
| Debug 2 DEB 0, 2 | Provides for user-specification of statements and procedures for debugging. |
| Inter-Program Communication 2 IPC 0, 2 | Provides facilities for a program to communicate with one or more other programs. Also provides capability to transfer control to another program known at compile time, and the ability for both programs to have access to certain data items. |
| Communication 0 COM 0, 2 | Provides the ability to access, process, and create messages or portions of messages; also provides the ability to communicate through a Message Control System with local and remote communication devices. |

Compiler Features

The following language-independent features are made available with System/38 COBOL:

- Syntax-checking compilation saves machine time while debugging source syntax errors. The source program is scanned for syntax errors and associated error messages are generated, but no executable or nonexecutable program is produced.
- The sorted cross-reference option provides a listing of each Data Division name and Procedure Division procedure-name, and indicates the statement numbers of each reference or change to the item.
- Inter-program calls allow programs written in System/38 COBOL to call or be called by other programs written in System/38 COBOL, System/38 RPG III, or System/38 control language.
- Multiple printer files allow the user to define and use multiple printer files in the same program.
- Diagnostic messages below a user-specified level can be suppressed.
- The FIPS flagger, depending on the compiler option chosen, identifies source statements and clauses that do not conform to 1975 FIPS COBOL. 1975 FIPS (Federal Information Processing Standard) COBOL is a compatible subset of 1974 Standard COBOL. A program must conform to one of the four levels of 1975 FIPS COBOL processing: full, high-intermediate, low-intermediate, or low. Refer to the *Messages Guide: COBOL* for information on the messages flagged by FIPS. Figure 1-1 shows the 1974 Standard COBOL processing modules included in each of the levels of 1975 FIPS COBOL.

| 1974 ANS Module Name | Full FIPS | High- Intermediate FIPS | Low- Intermediate FIPS | Low FIPS |
|-------------------------|-----------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------|
| Nucleus | 2 NUC 1,2 | 2 NUC 1,2 | 1 NUC 1,2 | 1 NUC 1,2 |
| Table Handling | 2 TBL 1,2 | 2 TBL 1,2 | 1 TBL 1,2 | 1 TBL 1,2 |
| Sequential I-O | 2 SEQ 1,2 | 2 SEQ 1,2 | 1 SEQ 1,2 | 1 SEQ 1,2 |
| Relative I-O | 2 REL 0,2 | 2 REL 0,2 | 1 REL 0,2 | 0 REL 0,2 |
| Indexed I-O | 2 INX 0,2 | 0 INX 0,2 | 0 INX 0,2 | 0 INX 0,2 |
| Sort-Merge | 2 SRT 0,2 | 1 SRT 0,2 | O SRT 0,2 | 0 SRT 0,2 |
| Report Writer | 0 RPW 0,1 | 0 RPW 0,1 | O RPW 0,1 | O RPW 0,1 |
| Segmentation | 2 SEG 0,2 | 1 SEG 0,2 | 1 SEG 0,2 | 0 SEG 0,2 |
| Library | 2 LIB 0,2 | 1 LIB 0,2 | 1 LIB 0,2 | 0 LIB 0,2 |
| Debug | 2 DEB 0,2 | 2 DEB 0,2 | 1 DEB 0,2 | 0 DEB 0,2 |

Figure 1-1 (Part 1 of 2). 1974 American National Standard and FIPS Levels

| 1974 ANS Module Name | Full FIPS | High- Intermediate FIPS | Low- Intermediate FIPS | Low FIPS |
|---|-----------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------|
| Inter-Program Communication | 2 IPC 0,2 | 2 IPC 0,2 | 1 IPC 0,2 | 0 IPC 0,2 |
| Communications | 2 COM 0,2 | 2 COM 0,2 | 0 COM 0,2 | 0 COM 0,2 |
| Key: 2 SEG 0, 2 LHighest level available in 1974 ANS COBOL LMinimum level required by 1974 ANS COBOL LModule identifier LLevel supported | | | | |

Figure 1-1 (Part 2 of 2). 1974 American National Standard and FIPS Levels

Format Notation

In COBOL, basic formats are prescribed for the various elements of the language. In this manual, these formats are presented in a uniform system of notation that is explained in the following paragraphs. This notation is designed to assist the programmer in writing COBOL source statements.

- Reserved words are printed entirely in CAPITAL LETTERS. These words have preassigned meanings in COBOL. If any reserved word is misspelled, it is not recognized as a reserved word and can cause an error in the program. The two types of reserved words are keywords and optional words.
 - Keywords are required by the syntax of the format unless the portion of the format containing them is optional. In formats, keywords are shown in <u>UNDERLINED CAPITAL LETTERS</u>. A missing keyword is considered an error in the program.
 - Optional words are included only for readability. They can be included or omitted without changing the syntax of the program. Optional words are CAPITALIZED but not underlined.
- Words printed in lowercase letters represent information to be supplied by the user. All such words are defined in the text of this manual.
- For easier text reference, some user-defined words are followed by a hyphen and a digit or letter. This suffix does not change the syntactical definition of the word.
- Braces ({}) enclosing listed items indicate (1) that exactly one of the enclosed stacked items must be specified, and/or (2) when followed by an ellipsis, that the enclosed unit or item must be specified at least once.

- Square brackets ([]) indicate that the enclosed item or unit can be used or omitted, as required for the program. When two or more items are stacked within brackets, one or none of them can be specified. When followed by an ellipsis, the item or unit can be repeated.
- The ellipsis (...) indicates that the immediately preceding unit can occur once or any number of times in succession. A unit can be a single lowercase word or a group of lowercase words and one or more reserved words enclosed in brackets and/or braces. When repetition is used, everything enclosed within the immediately preceding brackets or braces must be repeated.
- The arithmetic and logical operators (+, -, <, >, =) that appear in formats are required although they are not underlined.
- All punctuation and other special characters appearing in formats (except braces, brackets, ellipsis, commas, and semicolons) are required by the syntax of the format when they are shown; if they are omitted, an error occurs in the program. Additional punctuation can be specified, according to the punctuation rules given later in this manual.
- The required clauses and (when written) optional clauses must be written in the sequence shown in the format except where the accompanying text states otherwise.
- Comments, restrictions, and clarifications on the use and meaning of every format are contained in the description following the format.
- IBM extensions to American National Standard COBOL, X3.23-1974, that are part of a command syntax are boxed like this sentence.
- COBOL clauses and statements that are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation by the System/38 COBOL compiler, are boxed like this sentence.
- IBM extensions

IBM Extension

IBM extensions to American National Standard (ANS) COBOL, X3.23-1974, that are part of the text description begin with the paragraph heading, **IBM Extension** and are separated from the regular text as is this paragraph. Note that Chapter 7 consists only of IBM extensions; the entire chapter is boxed like this paragraph.

_ End of IBM Extension __

1-6

,

Chapter 2. Language Considerations

COBOL Program Structure

Every COBOL source program is divided into four divisions. Each division must begin with a division header and each must be placed in proper sequence. (Appendix J shows the general structure of every COBOL source program.)

The following chapters contain the rules for writing COBOL source programs and the methods of data reference.

The COBOL Divisions

The following paragraphs describe the four divisions of a COBOL source program and their functions in solving a data processing problem.

Identification Division: The Identification Division names the program and, optionally, documents the date the program was written, the compilation date, and other pertinent information.

Environment Division: The Environment Division describes the computer(s) to be used and specifies the machine(s) and equipment features used by the program. This description defines the relationship of data files and input/output devices.

Data Division: The Data Division defines the nature and characteristics of all data the program processes: data used in input/output operations and data developed for internal processing.

Procedure Division: The Procedure Division consists of executable statements that process the user-defined data. Statements are executed in the order they are written unless another order is defined by the user.

Clauses and Statements

Every COBOL source program is written in clauses and statements, each describing a solution to some specific aspect of the data processing problem.

- Clauses, written in the Environment and Data Divisions, specify an attribute of an entry. A series of clauses ending with a period is defined as an entry.
- Statements, written in the Procedure Division, specify an action to be taken by the object program. A series of statements ending with a period is defined as a sentence.

Each clause or statement in the program can be subdivided into smaller syntactical units called phrases. A phrase is an ordered set of one or more consecutive COBOL character-strings that form a portion of a COBOL clause or statement. A phrase provides the programmer with required or optional wording, depending on the desired meaning.

Clauses, entries, statements, and sentences can be combined into paragraphs or sections. Each paragraph and section defines some larger part of the data processing problem solution. Specific rules for the formation of each element are given in the documentation for each division of the COBOL program.

Clause and Statement Specification Order

When specified, each required or optional clause and statement (including those treated as documentation) must be written in the sequence shown in the format unless the associated rules explicitly state otherwise. The COBOL program hierarchy for each division is:

- In the Identification, Environment, and Data Divisions:
 - Division Section(s) Entry(s) Clause(s) Phrase(s).
- In the Procedure Division:
 - Division Section(s) Sentence(s) Statement(s) Phrase(s).

Structure of the Language

In COBOL, the indivisible unit of data is the character. In System/38 COBOL, 51 EBCDIC (extended binary-coded decimal interchange) characters form the COBOL character set: the 26 letters of the alphabet, the 10 Arabic numerals, and 15 special characters.

Individual COBOL characters are put together to form character-strings and separators.

A character-string is a character or sequence of contiguous characters that form a word, a literal, a PICTURE character-string, or a comment. A character-string can be delimited only by a separator.

A separator is a contiguous string of one or more punctuation characters. A separator can be placed next to another separator, or next to a character-string.

Except for comments and nonnumeric literals (which can use any character in the EBCDIC set), the 51 characters are the only characters valid in a COBOL program. Figure 2-1 shows the valid COBOL characters in ascending EBCDIC sequence and their usage in a COBOL program.

IBM Extension

The apostrophe can be used in place of the quotation mark. See "Compiler Options" in Chapter 8.

_____ End of IBM Extension __

| COBOL Character | Meaning | Use |
|--------------------|--------------------------|---|
| | Space | Punctuation character |
| · | Decimal point; period | Editing character; punctuation character |
| < | Less than | Relation character |
| (| Left parenthesis | Punctuation character |
| + | Plus symbol | Arithmetic operator; sign; editing character |
| \$ | Dollar sign | Editing character |
| * | Asterisk | Arithmetic operator; editing character |
|) | Right parenthesis | Punctuation character |
| ; | Semicolon | Punctuation character |

Figure 2-1 (Part 1 of 2). COBOL Characters and Their Meanings

| COBOL Character | Meaning | Use |
|--------------------|------------------------------|---|
| - | Minus symbol; hyphen | Arithmetic operator; sign; editing character |
| / | Stroke or slash | Arithmetic operator; editing character |
| , | Comma | Punctuation character; editing character |
| > | Greater than | Relation character |
| = | Equal sign | Relation character; punctuation character |
| " or ' | Quotation mark or apostrophe | Punctuation character |
| A-Z | Alphabet | Alphabetic character |
| 0-9 | Arabic numerals | Numeric character |

Figure 2-1 (Part 2 of 2). COBOL Characters and Their Meanings

Notes:

- 1. Throughout this manual, the quotation mark is used because it is the default option. In all cases, the apostrophe can be used only if the default option is overriden.
- 2. All COBOL characters are considered to be alphanumeric.

Character-Strings

COBOL character-strings form words, literals, PICTURE character-strings, and comments. Each is described in the following paragraphs.

COBOL Words

A COBOL word can be a user-defined word, a system-name, or a reserved word. A COBOL word can belong to only one of these classes.

The maximum length of a COBOL word is 30 characters.

User-Defined Words: A user-defined word is a COBOL word supplied by the programmer. Valid characters in a user-defined word are:

- A through Z
- 0 through 9
- - (hyphen).

The hyphen cannot appear as the first or last character in a user-defined word.

A list of user-defined word sets, together with rules for their formation, is given in Figure 2-2. The function of each user-defined word in a particular clause or statement is included in the text describing each clause or statement.

| User-Defined Word Sets | Rules for Formation |
|--|--|
| Alphabet-Name Condition-Name Data-Name Record-Name File-Name Index-Name Mnemonic-Name Routine-Name Library-Name Text-Name Program-Name | Must contain at least one alphabetic character. Within each set, the name must be unique either because no other word is made up of an identical character-string, or because it can be made unique through qualification. (See "Methods of Data Reference" later in this chapter.) |
| Paragraph-Name Section-Name | Need not contain an alphabetic character. Other rules as in first paragraph. |
| Level-Numbers: 01-49, 66, 77, 88 | Must be a 1- or 2-digit integer. Need not be unique. |
| Segment-Numbers: 00-99 | Must be a 1- or 2-digit integer. Need not be unique. |

Figure 2-2. User-Defined Word Sets and Rules for Formation

System-Names: A system-name is an IBM-defined name that is used to communicate with the system. A system-name can be:

- A computer-name
- A language-name
- An implementor-name
 - A function-name
 - An assignment-name
 - A user-name.

The function of each system-name is described with the format in which it appears; each system-name is defined in the Glossary.

Reserved Words: A reserved word is a COBOL word with fixed meaning(s) in a COBOL source program. A reserved word must not be specified as a user-defined word or as a system-name. Reserved words can be used only as specified in the formats for a COBOL source program.

Appendix G gives a complete list of COBOL reserved words. "Format Notation" in Chapter 1 gives the conventions used to represent reserved words in this manual.

There are six types of reserved words:

• Keywords

ł

- Optional words
- Connectives
- Special registers
- Special-character words
- Figurative constants.

Each type is described in the following paragraphs.

Keywords are words that are required within a given clause, entry, or statement. There are three types of keywords:

- Verbs, such as ADD, READ, WRITE
- Required words, which appear in clause, entry, or statement formats, such as the word USING in the MERGE statement
- Words with a specific functional meaning, such as NEGATIVE or SECTION.

Optional Words are words that can be included in a clause, entry, or statement. When an optional word is omitted, the meaning of the COBOL program is unchanged.

There are three types of *connectives*: qualifier, series, and logical.

- Qualifier connectives (OF, IN) associate a data-name, condition-name, text-name, or paragraph-name with its qualifier.
- Series connectives (the comma and semicolon) optionally link two or more consecutive operands. (An operand is a data item or literal that is acted upon by the COBOL program.)
- Logical connectives (AND, OR, AND NOT, OR NOT) are used to specify conditions.

Special registers are compiler-generated storage areas used primarily to store information produced through one of the specific COBOL features. Each such storage area has a fixed name and need not be further defined within the program. These special registers include the following:

IBM Extension

(See "Common Input/Output Phrases" under "Input/Output Statements" in Chapter 5.)

_____ End of IBM Extension __

• DEBUG-ITEM (see "DEBUGGING FEATURES" in Chapter 6).

[•] DB-FORMAT-NAME

- LINAGE-COUNTER (see "LINAGE Clause" in Chapter 4).
- DATE, DAY, TIME (see "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5).

Special-character words are arithmetic operators $(+ \cdot * / **)$ or relation characters (< > =). Arithmetic operators are described under "Arithmetic Expressions" in Chapter 5. Relation characters are described in the relation condition description under "Conditional Expressions" in Chapter 5.

Figurative constants name and refer to specific constant values.

The reserved words and meanings for figurative constants are:

- ZERO, ZEROS, ZEROES: Represents the value 0 or one or more occurrences of the character 0, and is numeric or nonnumeric, depending on context. For example, ZERO is considered to be nonnumeric when it is compared to an alphanumeric data item in a relational expression.
- SPACE, SPACES: Represents one or more blanks or spaces, and is always considered to be a nonnumeric literal.
- HIGH-VALUE, HIGH-VALUES: Represents one or more occurrences of the character with the highest value in the collating sequence used. For the EBCDIC (NATIVE) collating sequence, the character is hex FF; for other collating sequences, the character used depends on the collating sequence. When used in a COBOL program, HIGH-VALUE is treated as a nonnumeric literal.
- LOW-VALUE, LOW-VALUES: Represents one or more occurrences of the character with the lowest value in the collating sequence used. For the EBCDIC (NATIVE) collating sequence, the character is hex 00; for other collating sequences, the character used depends on the collating sequence. When used in a COBOL program, LOW-VALUE is treated as a nonnúmeric literal.
- QUOTE, QUOTES: Represents one or more occurrences of the quotation mark character and is nonnumeric. The word QUOTE (QUOTES) cannot be used in place of a quotation mark or an apostrophe to enclose a nonnumeric literal.

IBM Extension

When APOST is specified as a compiler option, the figurative constant QUOTE has the EBCDIC value of an apostrophe.

_ End of IBM Extension .

• ALL literal: Represents one or more occurrences of the string of characters composing the literal and is nonnumeric. The literal must be either a nonnumeric literal, Boolean literal, or a figurative constant other than the ALL literal. When a figurative constant is used, the word ALL is redundant and is used for readability only. The figurative

constant, ALL literal, cannot be used with the DISPLAY, INSPECT, STRING, STOP, or UNSTRING statements.

The singular and plural forms of a figurative constant are equivalent and can be used interchangeably. For example, if DATA-NAME-1 is a five-character data item, either of the following statements will fill DATA-NAME-1 with five spaces:

MOVE SPACE TO DATA-NAME-1. MOVE SPACES TO DATA-NAME-1.

In any format, a figurative constant can be substituted for a nonnumeric literal; only the figurative constant ZERO (ZEROS, ZEROES) can be substituted for a numeric literal.

| IBM Extension |
|---------------|
|---------------|

The figurative constant ZERO can be used as a Boolean literal.

_____ Er

____ End of IBM Extension _

The length of a figurative constant depends on the context of the program. The following rules apply:

- When a figurative constant is associated with a data item, the length of the figurative constant character-string is equal to the length of the associated data item. This rule applies, for example, when a figurative constant is moved to, or compared with, another item.
- When a figurative constant is not associated with another data item, the length of the character-string is one character. This rule applies, for example, in the DISPLAY, INSPECT, STRING, STOP, and UNSTRING statements.

Literals

A literal is a character-string whose value is specified either by the ordered set of characters of which it is composed, or by specification of a figurative constant. The three types of literals are Boolean, nonnumeric, and numeric.

IBM Extension

Boolean Literals: A Boolean literal is a character-string delimited on the left by the separator B" and on the right by the quotation mark separator. The character-string consists only of the character 0 or 1. The value of a Boolean literal is the character itself, excluding the delimiting separators. All Boolean literals are of the category Boolean.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

Nonnumeric Literals: A nonnumeric literal is a character-string that can contain any allowable character from the EBCDIC set.

— IBM Extension ^{*}

A nonnumeric literal can contain a maximum of 160 characters.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

A nonnumeric literal must be enclosed by quotation marks (or apostrophes, if the APOST option is in effect). The enclosing quotation marks are not part of the literal.

Any punctuation characters included within a nonnumeric literal are part of the value of the literal. An embedded quotation mark must be represented by two adjacent quotation marks (" "); one quotation mark (") is then part of the value of the literal.

Every nonnumeric literal is in the alphanumeric data category. Data categories are defined under "PICTURE Clause" in Chapter 4.

Numeric Literals: A numeric literal is a character-string whose characters are selected from the digits 0 through 9, the sign characters (+ or -), and the decimal point. The following rules apply:

- 1 to 18 digits are allowed.
- Only one sign character is allowed. If a sign character is included, it must be the leftmost character of the literal. If the literal is unsigned, it is considered to have a positive value.
- Only one decimal point is allowed. If a decimal point is included, it is treated as an assumed decimal point (not considered a character position in the literal). The decimal point can appear anywhere within the literal except as the rightmost character. If the literal contains no decimal point, it is considered to be an integer. The word *integer* appearing in a format represents a numeric literal of nonzero value that contains no sign and no decimal point; any other restrictions are included with the description of the format.

The value of a numeric literal is the algebraic quantity expressed by the characters in the literal. The size of a numeric literal in standard data format characters is equal to the number of digits specified by the user.

If a literal conforms to the rules for the formation of numeric literals, but is enclosed in quotation marks, it is a nonnumeric literal.

PICTURE Character-Strings

A PICTURE character-string consists of COBOL characters used as symbols in the PICTURE clause.

The choice of symbols determines whether the user-supplied name is numeric, alphabetic, or alphanumeric. The character-string can also be used to define edited output fields.

Comments

A comment is a character-string containing any combination of characters from the EBCDIC set. A comment serves only as documentation. Comments take two forms:

- A comment entry in the Identification Division: For a further description of a comment entry, see "IDENTIFICATION DIVISION" in Chapter 3.
- A comment line (preceded by an asterisk or a slash in Column 7) in any division of the program: For a further description of a comment line, see "Standard COBOL Format" later in this chapter.

Separators

A separator is a string of one or more punctuation characters or B" when used to delimit a Boolean literal. The characters are shown in Figure 2-3.

| Punctuation Character | Meaning |
|--------------------------|-------------------------------|
| | Space |
| | Period |
| (| Left parenthesis |
|) | Right parenthesis |
| ; | Semicolon |
| 3 | Comma |
| = | Equal sign |
| U | Quotation mark |
| 1 | Apostrophe |
| B'' | Delimiter for Boolean literal |

Figure 2-3. Punctuation Characters

The following rules apply to the formation of separators:

• A space is always a separator except when the space appears within a nonnumeric literal. When contained between the opening and closing quotation marks of a nonnumeric literal, the space is considered part of the literal. Wherever a space is used as a separator, more than one space can be used.

- A comma, semicolon, or period immediately followed by a space is a separator. These separators can appear only where explicitly allowed by COBOL rules.
- The left and right parentheses are separators. Parentheses must appear as balanced pairs of left and right parentheses to delimit subscripts, indexes, arithmetic expressions, or conditions.
- The quotation mark is a separator. An opening quotation mark must be immediately preceded by a space or a left parenthesis. A closing quotation mark must be immediately followed by one of the following separators: space, comma, semicolon, period, or right parenthesis. Quotation marks must appear as balanced pairs delimiting nonnumeric literals except when the literal is continued.
- The pseudo-text delimiter (= =) is a separator. An opening pseudo-text delimiter must be immediately preceded by a space. A closing pseudo-text delimiter must be immediately followed by one of the following separators: space, comma, semicolon, or period. Pseudo-text delimiters must appear as balanced pairs delimiting pseudo-text.

IBM Extension

• B" is a separator when it is used to describe a Boolean literal. The B must immediately precede the quotation mark.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

Standard COBOL Format

COBOL programs must be written in the standard COBOL format, described in the following discussion. The format is described in terms of an 80-character line. The output listing of the source program is printed in this same format. The COBOL coding form is shown in Figure 2-4.

Sequence Numbers (Columns 1-6)

Sequence numbers are written in columns 1 through 6. A sequence number numerically identifies each line to be compiled by the COBOL compiler. Sequence numbers are optional. A sequence number, if used, must consist of six digits in the sequence number area, (including the preprinted digits in columns 4 and 5).

If sequence numbers are used in the source program, they must be in ascending order. If sequence numbers are out of sequence, the compiler accepts them in the order read and generates a warning message.

IBM Extension

The user can suppress sequence checking at compile time by specifying NOSEQUENCE.

If the NUMBER option is specified, the sequence numbers from columns 1 through 6 are used; otherwise the source sequence numbers provided in the source file are used.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

| COBOL Coding Form | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------|---|--------------|-------------|---|----------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| SYSTEM | | | PAGE OF | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PROGRAM | GRAPHIC | | CARD FORM # | | • | | | | | | | | | |
| PROGRAMMER | DATE PUNCH | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | COB | OL STATEMENT | | | IDENTIFICATION | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 3 4 6 7 8 12 16 20 24 | 28 32 36 40 | 44 48 52 56 | 60 64 | 68 72 | 76 80 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 03 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ╊ ╍╿╸╿╺┥╺╋╺╿╺┝╺╋╺╋╺┥╺╎╺┢╍╋ ╶┼╌┤╌ | | | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | | | | | | | | | | |

Columns 1-6 represent the sequence number area. Column 7 is the continuation area. Columns 8-11 represent Area A Columns 12-72 represent Area E Columns 73-80 are used to identify the program.

Figure 2-4. IBM COBOL Coding Form and Standard COBOL Format

Continuation Area (Column 7)

The continuation area is used to indicate the continuation of words and nonnumeric literals from the previous line onto the current line, to specify debugging lines, or to indicate that the text on this line is to be treated as a comment.

Area A (Columns 8-11) and Area B (Columns 12-72)

COBOL elements that can begin in Area A and specific COBOL elements that can follow them are shown in Figure 2-5.

The basic skeleton of a COBOL program is shown in Figure 2-6.

| Elements That Must Begin in Area A | Must Be Followed Immediately By | Placement of Following Elements | | | | | |
|---|---|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Division header | (In Procedure Division) USING phrase | Same or next line (Area B) | | | | | |
| | Section header, paragraph header, paragraph-name, or (in Procedure Division) keyword DECLARATIVES | Next line (Area A) | | | | | |
| Section header | (In Declaratives section) USE statement | Same or next line (Area B) | | | | | |
| | Paragraph header, paragraph-name, (after USE, if specified), level indicator, or level-number | Next line (Area A) | | | | | |
| Paragraph header or paragraph-name | Identification Division entry, Environment Division entry, or Procedure Division sentence | Same or next line (Area B) | | | | | |
| Level indicator, level-numbers 01 and 77 | Data-name | Same or next line (Area B) | | | | | |
| Keyword DECLARATIVES | Declaratives section-name | Next line (Area A) | | | | | |
| Keywords END DECLARATIVES | Section header | Next line (Area A) | | | | | |

Figure 2-5. Sequence of Elements in Area A and Area B

| 10 | SE | | JEN | NC | E | ONT. | A | | - | | в | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
|-----------|----------|----------|-----|---------|--------|----------|---------|----|---|---|----------|----|----------|---|----|---|----|---|----|---|---|----|----------|----|----|----|----|---|----|---|
| 1 | | 3 | 4 | RI A | 6 6 | 7 | 8 | L. | _ | | 12 | Γ. | | | 16 | | | | 20 | | | Γ_ | 24 | Γ. | Γ. | τ. | 28 | | | _ |
| P | <u>0</u> | 4 | 0 | 1 | 0 | - | μ | ₽ | E | N | μ | ļ | F | L | C | A | T | 1 | р | Ņ | | D | μ | ¥ | μ | S | μ | ρ | N | • |
| \vdash | + | \vdash | 0 | 2 | 0 | - | L | | - | - | ┡ | ¥. | | - | | - | - | _ | _ | 7 | - | - | ļ | | | | | | | |
| | ļ | | 0 | 3 | Q | | E | Ŋ | Y | μ | R | Ø | N | M | E | N | T | L | D | 1 | Y | 1 | 5 | 1 | 0 | N | • | | | |
| | t | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | C | 0 | N | F | jL. | Ģ | U | R | A | T | L | ٥ | N | L | 2 | E | <u>C</u> | T | 1 | 0 | N | | | |
| | 1 | L | 0 | 5 | 0 | | Ĺ | | | | Ĺ | 4 | | | | L | | | | £ | | | | | L_ | | | | | |
| | l | | 0 | 6 | ٥ | L | 1 | N | P | U | T | • | 0 | U | T | P | IJ | T | | S | Ε | C | T | 1 | 0 | N | | | | _ |
| | L | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | F | 1 | L | Ę | - | ٢ | 0 | N | T | R | 0 | L | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | L | | 0 | 8 | 0 | | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | | | Ļ | | | | | | | | | | |
| | I | | 0 | 9 | 0 | | D | A | T | A | | D | 1 | V | 1 | S | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | | | | | Τ | |
| | T | | 1 | 0 | 0 | T | F | 1 | L | E | | 5 | E | c | T | t | 0 | N | | | Γ | | | - | | | | | | |
| Π | t | | 1 | 1 | 0 | Γ | F | D | | | | | | Ľ | | Ľ | | | Č | _ | - | | | T | | | | | | |
| | t | | 1 | 2 | 0 | r | | 0 | P | ¥ | 1 | v | ~ | - | < | Ŧ | n | D | | ~ | s | | c | r | r | - | 1 | | | |
| H | t | | 1 | 3 | 0 | | | , | | 2 | 'n | C | 5 | | 0 | | D | - | n | h | | - | Ľ | | | L | 1 | | | - |
| H | t | | 1 | 4 | 5 | \vdash | n n | 1 | - | | | 6 | - | | Ľ | • | | - | Ľ | E | | | F | | F | F | | | + | - |
| H | ł | | 1 | 5 | ň | \vdash | 2 | - | h | | - | 1 | | - | - | - | | | - | 5 | | - | ┝ | | - | | | | + | - |
| \vdash | t | - | • | - | 5 | \vdash | - | | | - | - | 1 | | | | - | | | | | | | - | | - | - | | - | + | - |
| H | ┦ | - | • | - | | - | r | K | 2 | Ľ | 2 | 2 | <u>U</u> | K | Ľ | | D | 1 | ¥ | μ | د | 1 | D | N | • | | | | -+ | _ |
| Н | ł | - | 1 | / | V | - | D | E | C | L | A | Ŗ | A | Ι | Ц | Y | E | د | • | 1 | - | - | _ | | - | - | | | - | _ |
| Н | ╀ | - | 1 | 8 | V | - | - | | - | | | • | - | - | - | - | | | | • | | - | - | _ | | - | | | | |
| \vdash | ł | - | 1 | 9 | 2 | \vdash | E | N | D | | D | E | C | L | A | K | A | T | 1 | Y | E | د | • | - | | _ | | | _ | |
| Н | 1 | | 2 | 0 | V | Ļ., | کم | E | ٤ | T | L | 0 | N | • | N | A | M | E | | 5 | E | C | 3 | 1 | 0 | N | • | | | |
| \vdash | ŀ | | | | Q | | P | A | R | A | 6 | R | A | P | H | - | N | Ą | Μ | 8 | | - | L | | | | | | | |
| \square | | | | | 0 | | 1 | | | | <u>c</u> | 0 | M | M | E | N | T | 5 | • | | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| | ł | | | | 0 | D | | L | | | D | E | B | υ | 6 | - | S | Т | A | T | E | M | E | N | T | 5 | | | _ | |
| | ł | | | | 0 | | İ | | | | Μ | 0 | ۷ | E | | u | T | E | S | Т | 1 | | T | 0 | | Ą | | | | |

(

ſ

(

Figure 2-6. Basic Skeleton of a COBOL Program
Special Considerations

Some lines in a COBOL program require additional rules. A discussion of each follows.

Division Header

A division header must be immediately followed by a period except when a USING phrase is specified with a Procedure Division header. Except for the USING phrase, no text can appear on the same line.

Section Header

A section header must be immediately followed by a period except when Procedure Division segment numbers are specified. In the Environment and Procedure Divisions, a section consists of paragraphs. In the Data Division, a section consists of Data Division entries.

Paragraph Header, Paragraph-Name

In both the Identification Division and the Environment Division, a paragraph consists of a paragraph header followed by one or more entries in Area B. An entry consists of one or more clauses. In the Procedure Division, a paragraph consists of a paragraph-name followed by one or more sentences in Area B. A sentence consists of one or more statements; a statement is a syntactically valid combination of a COBOL verb and its operands. Entries and sentences must be ended with a period followed by a space.

Successive entries or sentences begin in Area B. The entries are either on the same line as the last entry or sentence, or they are on the next succeeding nonblank noncomment line.

Data Division Entries

Each Data Division entry begins with a level indicator or level-number followed by a space. On the same line is a data-name in Area B, followed by a sequence of independent clauses describing the item. Each clause, except the last, is followed by a space (or optionally by a comma or semicolon and a space). The last clause in the entry must be ended with a period followed by a space.

Successive clauses begin in Area B. The clauses are either on the same line as the preceding clause, or on the next succeeding nonblank noncomment line.

A level indicator (FD, SD) must begin in Area A and be followed by a space. For a further description of level indicators, see "Data Division Organization" in Chapter 4.

A level-number is a 1- or 2-digit integer with one of the following values: 1 through 49, 66, 77, or 88. At least one space must follow the level-number.

Level-numbers 01 and 77 must begin in Area A. The associated record-name or item-name must appear in Area B. Level-numbers 02 through 49, 66, and 88 can begin in either Area A or Area B.

DECLARATIVES and END DECLARATIVES

In the Procedure Division, the keywords DECLARATIVES and END DECLARATIVES begin and end the Declaratives portion of the source program. Both of these keywords must begin in Area A and be followed immediately by a period. No other text can appear on the same line. After the keyword END DECLARATIVES, no text can appear before the following section header.

Program Spacing

In writing a COBOL program, rules for indentation, continued lines, comment lines, debugging lines, and blank lines must be observed.

Indentation

Within an entry or sentence, successive lines in Area B can have the same format or can be indented to clarify program logic. The output listing is indented only if the input statements are indented. Indentation does not affect the syntax of the program. The amount of indentation can be chosen by the user, subject only to the restrictions on the width of Area B.

Continuation of Lines

Any sentence, entry, clause, or phrase that requires more than one line can be continued in Area B of the next succeeding noncomment line. The line being continued is called the continued line; the succeeding lines are continuation lines. Area A of a continuation line must contain only spaces.

If there is no hyphen in the continuation area (Column 7) of a line, the last character of the preceding line is assumed to be followed by a space.

If there is a hyphen in the continuation area of a line, the first nonblank character of this continuation line immediately follows the last nonblank character of the continued line without any intervening space. However, this restriction does not apply to nonnumeric literals.

If the continued line contains a nonnumeric literal without a closing quotation mark, all spaces at the end of the continued line (through Column 72) are considered to be part of the literal. The continuation line must contain a hyphen in the continuation area, and the first nonblank character in Area B must be a quotation mark. The continuation of the literal begins with the character immediately following the quotation mark.

A pair of quotation marks indicating a single quotation mark in the value of the literal must occur on the same line. Likewise, both characters composing the separator = or B" must be on the same line.

Comment Lines

A comment line is any line with an asterisk or slash in the continuation area of the line. The comment may be written anywhere in Area A and Area B of that line. The comment may consist of any combination of characters from the EBCDIC set.

If an asterisk is placed in the continuation area, this comment line is printed in the output listing immediately following the last preceding line.

If the slash is placed in the continuation area, the current page of the output listing is ejected, and the comment line is printed on the first line of the next page.

The asterisk or slash and the comment are produced only on the output listing. They are treated as documentation by the compiler.

Successive comment lines are allowed. Each must begin with an asterisk or slash in the continuation area.

Comment lines are not allowed before the Identification Division header.

Debugging Lines

A debugging line is any line with a D coded in the continuation area. Rules for the formation of debugging lines are given under "DEBUGGING FEATURES" in Chapter 6.

Blank Lines

Blank lines contain nothing but spaces from Column 7 through Column 72. A blank line may appear anywhere in a program except immediately preceding a continuation line.

Overall Punctuation Rules

Any punctuation character included in a PICTURE character-string, a comment character-string, or a nonnumeric literal is not considered to be a punctuation character but rather is considered to be part of the character-string or literal.

A comma, period, or semicolon followed by a space in or at the end of a PICTURE character-string is a separator and terminates the PICTURE character-string. The comma and semicolon are used only for readability.

Punctuation rules for each division of the COBOL source program follow.

÷

Identification Division

Commas and semicolons can be used in the comment-entries. The PROGRAM-ID paragraph must end with a period followed by a space.

Environment Division

Commas or semicolons can separate successive clauses and successive operands within clauses. The SOURCE-COMPUTER, OBJECT-COMPUTER, SPECIAL-NAMES, and I-O-CONTROL paragraphs must each end with a period followed by a space. In the FILE-CONTROL paragraph, each file-control entry must end with a period followed by a space.

Data Division

Commas or semicolons may separate successive clauses and operands within clauses. File (FD), Sort/Merge file (SD), and data description entries must each end with a period followed by a space.

Procedure Division

Commas or semicolons may separate successive statements within a sentence and successive operands within a statement. Each sentence and each procedure must end with a period followed by a space.

Methods of Data Reference

Every user-specified name defining an element in a COBOL program must be unique, either because no other name has a character-string of the same value or because it can be made unique through qualification, subscripting, or indexing. In addition, references to data and procedures can be either explicit or implicit. The rules for qualification and for explicit and implicit references follow.

Qualification

A name can be made unique if it exists within a hierarchy of names, and the name can be identified by specifying one or more higher-level names in the hierarchy. The higher-level names are called qualifiers, and the process by which such names are made unique is called qualification.

Qualification is specified by placing one or more phrases after a user-specified name. Each phrase consists of the word OF or IN followed by a qualifier. (OF and IN are logically equivalent.) The three formats for references are references to Data Division names, references to Procedure Division names, and references to COPY libraries.

Format 1

 $\begin{cases} data-name-1 \\ condition-name \end{cases} \left[\left\{ \frac{OF}{\underline{IN}} \right\} data-name-2 \right] \dots \end{cases}$

Format 2

paragraph-name
$$\left[\left\{\frac{OF}{IN}\right\}$$
 section-name $\right]$

Format 3

text-name $\left[\left\{\frac{OF}{IN}\right\}$ library-name $\right]$

In Data Division references, all qualifying data-names must be associated with a level indicator or level-number. Therefore, two identical data-names must not appear as subordinate entries in a group item unless they can be made unique through qualification. Names associated with a level indicator (FD and SD) are the highest level in the hierarchy. Next highest are those associated with level-number 01. Names associated with level-numbers 02 through 49 are at successively lower levels in the hierarchy.

In the Procedure Division, two identical paragraph-names must not appear in the same section. A section-name is the highest and only qualifier available for a paragraph-name.

The following example illustrates the use of identical names in a section hierarchy:

01 FIELD-A 02 FIELD-B 05 SUB1 07 SUB2 02 FIELD-C 07 SUB1

A hierarchy includes all subordinate entries to the next equal or higher level-number. Therefore, in the above example all entries are in the hierarchy of FIELD-A. All entries from FIELD-B to, but not including, FIELD-C are in the hierarchy of FIELD-B.

In the hierarchy of FIELD-A, SUB1 can be used twice; once as subordinate to FIELD-B and once as subordinate to FIELD-C. In references to SUB-1, it must be qualified as SUB-1 OF FIELD-B or SUB-1 OF FIELD-C. Within FIELD-B or FIELD-C, SUB1 cannot be subordinate to itself.

In any hierarchy, the name associated with the highest level must be unique and cannot be qualified.

No matter what qualification is available, no name can be both a data-name and a procedure-name.

Enough qualification must be specified to make the name unique; however, it may not be necessary to specify all the levels of the hierarchy. For

example, if more than one file has records that contain the field EMPLOYEE-NO but only one of the files has a record named MASTER-RECORD, then specifying EMPLOYEE-NO OF MASTER-RECORD sufficiently qualifies EMPLOYEE-NO. EMPLOYEE-NO OF MASTER-RECORD OF MASTER-FILE is valid but unnecessary.

Qualification Rules

The following rules for qualification apply:

- Each qualifier must be of a successively higher level and must be within the same hierarchy as the name it qualifies.
- The same name must not appear at two levels in a hierarchy unless it can be qualified.
- If a data-name or condition-name is assigned to more than one data item, the data item must be qualified each time it is referenced, with this exception: in the REDEFINES clause, qualification is unnecessary and must not be used.
- A paragraph-name must not be duplicated within a section. When a paragraph-name is qualified by a section-name, the word SECTION must not appear. A paragraph-name need not be qualified when referred to within the section in which it appears.
- Library-name must be unique in the system. Therefore, the first 10 characters of library-name must be unique.
- Text-name (member-name) must be qualified by the file-name-library-name in which it resides. If no library is specified, the *LIBL list is searched.

IBM Extension

File-name is optional for the COPY statement, format 1. If file-name is not specified, the default is QCBLSRC.

 $_$ End of IBM Extension $_$

- When a data-name is being used as a qualifier, it cannot be subscripted.
- A name can be qualified even when it does not need qualification.
- If more than one combination of qualifiers ensures uniqueness, then any of these combinations can be used.
- Duplicate section-names are not allowed.
- A data-name cannot be the same as a section-name or a paragraph-name.
- A section-name cannot be the same as a paragraph-name.

- If a data-name cannot be made unique by qualification, duplication of this data-name is not allowed.
- The complete list of qualifiers for one data-name must not be the same as a partial list of qualifiers for another data-name.
- A maximum of 48 qualifiers (49 qualifiers for file data) can be specified.
- LINAGE-COUNTER must be qualified each time it is referenced if more than one file description entry containing a LINAGE clause has been specified in the source program.

Subscripting and Indexing

Subscripts and indexes can be used only when reference is made to an individual element within a table of elements that have not been assigned individual data-names. Subscripting and indexing are explained under "TABLE HANDLING" in Chapter 6.

Identifier

An identifier is a term used to reflect that a data-name, if not unique in a program, must be followed by some syntactically correct combination of qualifiers, subscripts, or indexes sufficient to ensure uniqueness. The general formats for identifiers are as follows:

Format 1

data-name-1 $\left[\left\{\frac{OF}{IN}\right\}$ data-name-2 \ldots $\left[\left(subscript-1 \ f, subscript-2 \ f, subscript-3 \ f\right)\right]$

Format 2

data-name-1
$$\left[\left\{\begin{array}{c} OF\\ IN\end{array}\right\}$$
 data-name-2 $\left[\left\{\begin{array}{c} \left\{\begin{array}{c} index-name-1 & \left[\left\{\pm\right\} & literal-2\right]\\ literal-1 & \end{array}\right\}\right\}$
 $\left[,\left\{\begin{array}{c} index-name-2 & \left[\left\{\pm\right\} & literal-4\right]\\ literal-3 & \end{array}\right\}\right]\left[,\left\{\begin{array}{c} index-name-3 & \left[\left\{\pm\right\} & literal-6\\ literal-5 & \end{array}\right\}\right]\right]\right)\right]$

Restrictions on qualification, subscripting, and indexing follow:

• A data-name must not be subscripted or indexed when that data-name is being used as an index, subscript or qualifier.

- Indexing is not permitted when subscripting is not permitted.
- An index can be modified only by the SET, SEARCH, and PERFORM statements. Data items described by the USAGE IS INDEX clause permit the values associated with index-names to be stored as a binary occurrence number. Such data items are called index data items.
- Literal-1, literal-3, literal-5 in the above format must be positive numeric integers. Literal-2, literal-4, literal-6 must be unsigned numeric integers.

Condition-Name

A condition-name is a user-defined word that is assigned a specific value or range of values. The value assigned is contained in the set of values that a conditional variable may possess. A condition-name can alternatively be a user-defined word that is assigned the status of an IBM-defined switch or device.

Each condition-name must be unique, or it must be made unique through qualification, and/or indexing, or subscripting.

If qualification is used to make a condition-name unique, the associated conditional variable may be used as the first qualifier. If qualification is used, the hierarchy of names associated with the conditional variable or the conditional variable itself must be used to make the condition-name unique.

If references to a conditional variable require indexing or subscripting, then references to any of its condition-names also require the same combination of indexing or subscripting.

The format and restrictions on the combined use of qualification, subscripting, and indexing of condition-names are the same as that for identifiers except that data-name-1 is replaced by condition-name-1.

In the general formats, condition-name refers to a condition-name that is qualified, indexed, or subscripted as necessary.

Explicit and Implicit References

COBOL source program references can be either explicit or implicit in three instances: data attribute specification, Procedure Division data references, and transfers of control.

Data Attribute Specification

Explicit attributes are specified in COBOL coding. If a data attribute is not specified in COBOL coding, it takes on a default value. These default values are implicit attributes.

For example, the ACCESS MODE clause in the file-control entry need not be specified. If the clause is omitted, the compiler provides the default value, ACCESS MODE IS SEQUENTIAL. This clause is then an implicit attribute. If this same attribute, ACCESS MODE IS SEQUENTIAL, is specified in the COBOL coding, it is an explicit attribute.

Procedure Division Data References

Procedure Division statements can refer to data items either explicitly or implicitly.

An explicit reference occurs when the data-name of the item is written in a COBOL statement or when the data-name is copied into the program through a COPY statement. An implicit reference occurs when the data-name is referred to by a COBOL statement without the name being written in that statement.

For example, when USE AFTER STANDARD EXCEPTION/ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT is specified, an implicit reference is made to each file-name that identifies an input file. See "EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative" in Chapter 5 for a further description.

Transfers of Control

In the Procedure Division, program flow transfers control from statement to statement in the order they are written unless an explicit control transfer is specified or no next executable statement exists. (See the note below.) This normal program flow is an implicit transfer of control.

In addition to the implicit transfers of control between consecutive statements, implicit transfer of control also occurs when the normal flow is altered without the execution of a procedure branching statement. COBOL provides implicit transfers of control that override the statement-to-statement transfers of control under the following conditions:

- After execution of the last statement of a procedure being executed under control of another COBOL statement. COBOL statements that control procedure execution are MERGE, PERFORM, SORT, and USE.
- During SORT or MERGE statement execution when control is transferred to any input or output procedure.
- During execution of any COBOL statement that causes execution of a Declarative procedure.
- At the end of execution of any Declarative procedure.

COBOL also provides explicit transfers of control through the execution of a procedure branching or conditional statement. Lists of procedure branching and conditional statements are given under "Procedure Division Organization" in Chapter 5.

Note: The term *next executable statement* refers to the next COBOL statement to which control is transferred according to the rules given above. No next executable statement can follow:

- The last statement in a Declarative procedure that is not being executed under control of another COBOL statement.
- The last statement in a COBOL program when the paragraph in which it appears is not being executed under control of another COBOL statement.

(

(

2-24

Chapter 3. Identification and Environment Divisions

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION

The Identification Division must be the first division in every COBOL source program. This division names the source program and the object program. (A source program is the user-written COBOL program. An object program is the output from a compilation.)

The user may also include the date the program was written, the date of compilation, and other such documentary information about the program in the Identification Division.

Format



The Identification Division must begin with the words IDENTIFICATION DIVISION followed by a period and a space.

Coding Example

| | SE | αι | JEP | IC | E | NT. | A | | | | B | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | _ | | |
|----|----|----|-----|----|----|-----|---------|---|---|---|--------|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|----|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|------|
| (P | AG | E) | ISE | RI | AL | ŭ | | | | | - | | | | | | | | _ | _ | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | 3 | 4 | _ | 6 | 7 | 8 | _ | - | _ | 12 | _ | | _ | 16 | | - | - | 20 | | _ | | 24 | _ | _ | _ | 28 | _ | | | 32 | _ | _ | _ | 36 | _ | |
| 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | C | | i I | C | E | N | İΤ | 1 | F | 1 | C | A | 1 | 1 | a | IN | | D | ۱ | V | 1 | S | | 0 | N | | | | | | | | |
| | (| | 0 | 2 | C | | P | 2 | 0 | G | R | | M | - | 1 | D | | | S | A | м | þ | L | E | | | | | | | | | Γ | Γ | | Π | Τ |
| |) | | 0 | 3 | C | | A | u | T | M | 0 | 2 | | | A | | P | 2 | 0 | G | R | A | М | M | E | 2 | | | | | | | | | Γ | | ٦ |
| | (| | 0 | 4 | C | | 1 | N | S | T | A | L | h | A | T | 1 | 0 | | I. | | R | 0 | c | H | E | 5 | Т | E | R | | ٤ | | B | | | | ٦ |
| | 1 | | 0 | 5 | C | | D | | h | E | _ | W | R | 5 | r | T | E | N | | | 0 | 4 | 1 | L | 1 | 1 | Ż | 9 | | | Γ | | | | | | |
| | I | | 0 | 6 | 0 | | D | 4 | 1 | E | - | C | 0 | M | P | ì | L | E | D | | | 0 | 8 | 1 | L | 6 | 1 | 7 | 9 | | | | | | | | |
| | + | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | S | E | C | Ľ | 8 | ۱ | Т | Y | | | N | 0 | N | - | C | 0 | Ņ | F | I | D | E | N | T | ۱ | A | 1 | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 8 | | | 1 | | | | T I | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Τ |

PROGRAM-ID Paragraph

The first paragraph of the Identification Division must be the PROGRAM-ID paragraph. The PROGRAM-ID paragraph specifies the name by which the program is known to the system.

The name by which the program is known to the system can be overridden by the PGM parameter of the CRTCBLPGM command. See Chapter 8 for more information on the PGM parameter.

Program-name is a user-defined word that identifies the object program to the system. A program-name must include at least one alphabetic character. The system uses the first 10 characters of program-name as the identifying name of the program; these first 10 characters, therefore, should be a unique program-name.

The system expects the first character of program-name to be alphabetic; if it is numeric, it is converted as follows:

- 0 is converted to J
- 1 through 9 is converted to A through I.

The system does not include the hyphen as an allowable character; therefore, if any of the second through tenth characters are hyphens, they are converted to zeros.

To avoid such conversions, the user should not specify program-names with leading numerics or embedded hyphens.

Other Optional Paragraphs

The other paragraphs are optional; however, if they are written, they must appear in the order shown in the format.

The comment-entries serve only as documentation and do not affect the syntax of the program. The comment-entries in the optional paragraphs may be any combination of characters from the EBCDIC set and may be written in Area B on one or more lines. A hyphen is not permitted in the continuation area of Identification Division statements.

The DATE-COMPILED paragraph provides the compilation date of the source listing. When the comment-entry is specified, the entire entry is replaced with the current date. When the comment-entry is omitted, the compiler adds the current date to the DATE-COMPILED paragraph.

ENVIRONMENT DIVISION

The Environment Division, the second division of all COBOL source programs, identifies the following:

- The computer on which the source program is to be compiled
- The computer on which the object program is to be executed
- The specific main storage size required to execute the object program
- The linkage between the logical concept of the files and their records, and the physical aspects of the devices on which data is stored.

The Environment Division has two sections: the Configuration Section and the Input-Output Section.

The following shows the general format of the sections and paragraphs in the Environment Division, and defines the order of presentation in the source program.

Format

ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.

CONFIGURATION SECTION.

SOURCE-COMPUTER. source-computer-entry OBJECT-COMPUTER. object-computer-entry SPECIAL-NAMES. special-names-entry [INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. FILE-CONTROL. {file-control-entry}...

The Environment Division must begin with the words ENVIRONMENT DIVISION followed by a period and a space.

Coding Example

| | SE | QL (E) | JEI | R | E | CONT | | | | | в | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | - | | - |
|---|----|-----------|-----|---|---|------|---|---|----|---|-----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|
| L | 1 | 3 | 4 | | 6 | 7 | 8 | | | | 12 | | | | 16 | | | | 20 | | | | 24 | | | | 28 | | | | 32 | | | | 36 | | _ | |
| (| 00 | S | 0 | 1 | 0 | | E | N | v | 1 | 18 | 0 | N | M | 6 | N | T | | D | 1 | v | 1 | s | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| l | 1 | | 0 | 2 | 0 | | κ | 0 | IN | E | i | G | U | R | A | T | ۱ | 0 | N | | S | E | C | r | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 3 | 0 | | Ś | 0 | L | 1 | àc | E | - | C | 0 | M | P | U | Т | E | R | | | ۱ | B | M | - | S | 3 | B | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | Ø | 6 | J | E | | T | - | C | 0 | M | P | U | T | E | 8 | | | 1 | B | H | - | 5 | 3 | 8 | | | | | | | | |
| Ĺ | 1 | | 0 | 5 | 0 | 1 | S | P | E | C | i I | A | L | | N | A | M | E | 5 | | | C | ø | 1 | | 1 | S | | P | A | 6 | Ē | - | T | b | P | | |
| | | | 0 | 6 | Ø | | ļ | N | P | Ľ | T | - | ٥ | U | T | P | U | T | | S | E | C | Т | 1 | Ô | M | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | F | 1 | L | E | | ٢ | ٥ | N | Π | R | 0 | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | 0 | 8 | 0 | | 1 | | | | S | E | L | E | c | T | - | - | - | - | | | _ | - | - | - | - | | - | | | | | | | | | |
| [| | | 0 | 9 | 0 | | 1 | | | | 0 | R | G | | N | 1 | Z | A | T | t | 0 | N | - | - | - | - | | | _ | - | - | | | | | | | |
| [| | | 1 | 0 | | | | | T | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Configuration Section

The Configuration Section describes the computer that compiles the source program and the computer that executes the object program. This section optionally relates IBM-defined function names to user-defined mnemonic-names, specifies the collating sequence to be used, specifies a substitution for the currency sign, and/or interchanges the functions of the comma and the period. In the Configuration Section, the comma or semicolon can optionally separate successive clauses within a paragraph. In each paragraph, there must be one period; the period must be placed immediately after the last entry in the paragraph.

Format

CONFIGURATION SECTION.

SOURCE-COMPUTER. computer-name [WITH DEBUGGING MODE].



SOURCE-COMPUTER Paragraph

The SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph describes the computer that compiles the source program. The computer name should be coded as: IBM-S38.

With the exception of the WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause, the SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation. The WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause is described under "DEBUGGING FEATURES" in Chapter 6.

OBJECT-COMPUTER Paragraph

The OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph identifies the computer that executes the object program. Computer-name must be the first entry in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph. The other clauses can be specified in any order. The computer-name should be coded as: IBM-S38.

MEMORY SIZE Clause

The MEMORY SIZE clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE Clause

The PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause specifies the collating sequence used in a program. The collating sequence associated with the specified alphabet-name must be defined in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. The program collating sequence applies to the following nonnumeric comparisons:

- Those comparisons explicitly specified in IF, PERFORM, and SEARCH statements
- Those comparisons implicitly specified in STRING, INSPECT, and UNSTRING statements
- Those comparisons implicitly specified in MERGE or SORT statements that do not specify a COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase.

When the PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause is omitted, the EBCDIC collating sequence is used. See Appendix H for the complete EBCDIC collating sequence.

SEGMENT-LIMIT Clause

The SEGMENT-LIMIT clause is described under "SEGMENTATION FEATURE" in Chapter 6.

SPECIAL-NAMES Paragraph

The SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph relates IBM-specified function-names to user-specified mnemonic-names. This paragraph specifies a collating sequence that is associated with an alphabet-name, a substitute character for the currency sign, and the interchange of the comma and decimal point in PICTURE clauses and numeric literals. The clauses can be specified in any order.

Function-Name-1 Clause

Function-name-1 specifies system devices or standard system actions taken by the compiler.

The associated mnemonic-name is required. The mnemonic-name is formed according to the rules for a user-defined word and must contain at least one alphabetic character.

Programming Note: The SEU Syntax Checker requires that the first clause be entered on the same line as the SPECIAL-NAMES entry.

Figure 3-1 shows the actions that are associated with mnemonic-names for function-name-1. Each of these functions can appear only once in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph.

| Function-name-1 | Statement where mnemonic-name associated with function-name is used | Usage |
|----------------------------|---|---|
| CSP | WRITE | Suppress spacing when printing a line. Use only when PRINTER is the device. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" later in this chapter. |
| C01 | WRITE | Skip to the next page. Use only when PRINTER is the device. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" later in this chapter. |
| S01, S02, S03, S04, S05 | WRITE | Select stackers on a card punch file. S01 through S04 select stackers 1 through 4, and S05 selects stacker 1 on the IBM 5424. Use only when PUNCH, PUNCHPRINT, or PRINT is the device. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" later in this chapter. |
| ATTRIBUTE-DATA | ACCEPT | Retrieve attribute data about a program device acquired by a TRANSACTION file, but only when the file is open. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 7. |

Figure 3-1 (Part 1 of 2). Choices of Function-Name-1 and Action Taken

| Function-name-1 | Statement where mnemonic-name associated with function-name is used | Usage |
|----------------------------|---|---|
| I-O-FEEDBACK | ACCEPT | Give information about the last I-O operation on a file, but only when the file is open. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5. |
| OPEN-FEEDBACK | ACCEPT | Give information about a file, but only when the file is open. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5. |
| CONSOLE, SYSTEM-CONSOLE | ACCEPT, DISPLAY | Communicate with the system operator's message queue (QSYSOPR). |
| LOCAL-DATA | ACCEPT, DISPLAY | Retrieve data from, or moves data to the local data area created by the system for every job. See "ACCEPT Statement" and "DISPLAY Statement" in Chapter 5. |
| REQUESTOR | ACCEPT, DISPLAY | Communicate with the user work station (interactive jobs) or the batch input stream or job log (batch jobs). |

Figure 3-1 (Part 2 of 2). Choices of Function-Name-1 and Action Taken

Function-Name-2 Clause

Function-name-2 can be defined as UPSI-0 through UPSI-7 or as SYSTEM-SHUTDOWN.

User Program Status Indicator (UPSI): Function-name-2 can define eight 1-byte program switches, UPSI-0 through UPSI-7.

Each UPSI is a User Program Status Indicator switch. At least one condition-name must be associated with each UPSI switch specified. UPSI-0 through UPSI-7 are COBOL names that identify program switches defined outside the COBOL program at object time. Their contents are considered to be alphanumeric. A value of zero is off; a value of one is on.

Each switch represents one byte from the 8-character SWS parameter of the control language CHGJOB, SBMJOB, JOB, and JOBD commands as follows:

One condition-name must be associated with each function-name-2; a second condition-name is optional. One condition-name can be associated with the ON status; another can be associated with the OFF status. Establishing condition-names for the ON or OFF status of a switch permits testing the setting of that switch.

Each condition-name is formed according to the rules for a user-defined word, and the condition-name must contain at least one alphabetic character.

In the Procedure Division, the UPSI switch status is tested through the associated condition-name(s). Each condition-name is the equivalent of a level-88 item. The associated mnemonic-name, if specified, is considered the conditional variable and can be used for qualification.

Programming Notes: UPSI switches are useful for processing special conditions within a program, such as year-beginning or year-ending processing. At the beginning of the Procedure Division, an UPSI switch can be tested; if it is 0N, the special branch is taken.

SYSTEM-SHUTDOWN: SYSTEM-SHUTDOWN is an internal switch that is set to ON status when the system operator causes the system to be in a shutdown-pending state or when the job is being canceled in a controlled manner. The associated ON or OFF condition-names can be referenced anywhere a condition-name is valid. Their status cannot be altered by the program.

Coding Example

This coding example assigns mnemonic-names to some commonly used function-names in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph.

```
SPECIAL-NAMES. SYSTEM-CONSOLE IS SYSTM,
REQUESTOR IS WORK-STATION,
COI IS NEXT-PAGE,
LOCAL-DATA IS LOCAL-DATA-AREA,
ATTRIBUTE-DATA IS ATTRB-DATA,
SYSTEM-SHUTDOWN IS SHUTDOWN-SWITCH,
ON STATUS IS SHUTDOWN-PENDING,
UPSI-O IS UPSI-SWITCH-O,
ON STATUS IS UO-ON,
OFF STATUS IS UO-OFF,
UPSI-I IS UPSI-SWITCH-1,
ON STATUS IS U1-ON,
OFF STATUS IS U1-OFF,
IBM-ASCII IS STANDARD-1,
CURRENCY-SIGN IS "Y"
```

Alphabet-Name Clause

The alphabet-name clause provides a means of relating an alphabet-name to a specified character code set or collating sequence.

The alphabet-name specifies a collating sequence in one of the following:

- The PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph
- The COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase of the SORT or MERGE statement.

The EBCDIC collating sequence is used when NATIVE is specified or when the alphabet-name clause is omitted.

The ASCII (American National Standard Code for Information Interchange) collating sequence is used when STANDARD-1 is specified.

Literal Phrase: The literal phrase of the alphabet-name clause processes internal data in collating sequences other than NATIVE or STANDARD-1.

When the literal phrase is specified, the collating sequence to be used is specified by the user according to the following rules:

- The order in which literals appear specifies the ordinal number, in ascending sequence, of the character(s) in this collating sequence.
- Each numeric literal specified must be an unsigned integer and must have a value from 1 through 256 (the maximum number of characters in the EBCDIC character set). The value of each literal specifies the relative position of a character within the EBCDIC character set. For example, the literal 112 represents the EBCDIC character ?, the literal 234 represents the EBCDIC character Z, the literal 241 represents the EBCDIC numeric character 0.
- Each character in a nonnumeric literal represents that character in the EBCDIC set. If the nonnumeric literal contains more than one character, each character, starting with the leftmost, is assigned a successively ascending position within this collating sequence.
- Any EBCDIC characters not explicitly specified assume positions in this collating sequence higher than any of the explicitly specified characters. The relative order of the unspecified characters within the EBCDIC set remains unchanged.
- Within one alphabet-name clause, a given character must not be specified more than once.
- Each nonnumeric literal associated with a THROUGH or ALSO phrase must be one character in length.
- When the THROUGH phrase is specified, the contiguous EBCDIC characters beginning with the character specified by literal-1 and ending with the character specified by literal-2 are assigned successively ascending positions in this collating sequence. This sequence may be either ascending or descending within the original EBCDIC sequence. For example, if the characters Z through S are specified, then for this collating sequence the ascending values are: ZYXWVUTS
- When the ALSO phrase is specified, the EBCDIC characters specified as literal-1, literal-3, literal-4, and so on are assigned to the same position in this collating sequence. For example, if "D" ALSO "N" ALSO 112 ALSO "%" is specified, then for this collating sequence the characters D, N, ?, and % are all considered to be in the same position in the collating sequence.

If specified as literals in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph, the figurative constants HIGH-VALUE and LOW-VALUE are associated with hex 00 and hex FF respectively.

After all clauses in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph are processed, the character having the highest ordinal position in this collating sequence is associated with the figurative constant HIGH-VALUE. If more than one character has the highest position because the ALSO phrase is specified, the last character specified is considered to be the HIGH-VALUE character for procedural statements such as DISPLAY, or as the sending field in a MOVE statement. If the ALSO phrase example given above were specified as the high-order characters of the collating sequence, then the HIGH-VALUE character would be %.

After all clauses in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph are processed, the character having the lowest ordinal position in this collating sequence is associated with the figurative constant LOW-VALUE. If more than one character has the lowest position because the ALSO phrase is specified, the first character specified is the LOW-VALUE character. If the ALSO phrase example given above were specified as the low-order characters of the collating sequence, then the LOW-VALUE character would be D.

Alphabet-Name Clause Examples: The following examples illustrate some uses for the alphabet-name clause.

If PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE IS USER-SEQUENCE; if the alphabet-name clause is specified as USER-SEQUENCE IS "D", "E", "F"; and if two Data Division items are defined as follows:

01 ITEM-1 PIC X(3) VALUE "ABC". 01 ITEM-2 PIC X(3) VALUE "DEF".

then the comparison IF ITEM-1 > ITEM-2 is true.

Characters D, E, and F are in ordinal positions 1, 2, and 3 of this collating sequence. Characters A, B, and C are in ordinal positions 197, 198, and 199 of this collating sequence.

If the alphabet-name clause is USER-SEQUENCE IS 1 THRU 247, 251 THRU 256, "7", ALSO "8", ALSO "9"; if all 256 EBCDIC characters have been specified; and if the two Data Division items are specified as follows:

01 ITEM-1 PIC X(3) VALUE HIGH-VALUE. 01 ITEM-2 PIC X(3) VALUE "787".

then both of the following comparisons are true:

IF ITEM-1 = ITEM-2 . IF ITEM-2 = HIGH-VALUE .

They compare as true because the values "7", "8", and "9" all occupy the same position (HIGH-VALUE) in this USER-SEQUENCE collating sequence.

If the alphabet-name clause is specified as USER-SEQUENCE IS "E", "D", "F" and a table in the Data Division is defined as follows:

05 TABLE A OCCURS 6 ASCENDING KEY IS KEY-A INDEXED BY INX-A 10 FIELD-A 10 KEY-A

and if the contents in ascending sequence of each occurrence of KEY-A are A, B, C, D, E, G, then the results of the execution of a SEARCH ALL statement for this table will be invalid because the contents of KEY-A are not in ascending order. The proper ascending order would be E, D, A, B, C, G.

CURRENCY SIGN Clause

The literal that appears in the CURRENCY SIGN clause defines the currency symbol to be used in the PICTURE clause. The literal must be a one-character nonnumeric literal and must not be any of the following characters:

- Digits 0 through 9
- Alphabetic characters A B C D L P R S V X Z or the space
- Special characters (+ *); /, = "

When the CURRENCY SIGN clause is omitted, only the dollar sign (\$) may be used as the PICTURE symbol for the currency sign.

DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA Clause

When the DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA clause is specified, the functions of the period and the comma are exchanged in PICTURE character-strings and in numeric literals.

Input-Output Section

The Input-Output Section defines each file, identifies its external storage medium, assigns the file to one or more input/output devices, and also specifies information needed for efficient transmission of data between the external medium and the COBOL program.

Files

System/38 has two categories of files: data base files and device files.

Data Base Files

Data base files allow information to be permanently stored on the system. Multiple programs can access this information in different ways.

A data base file is subdivided into groups of records called members. Every file has at least one member.

There are two types of data base files: physical files and logical files.

Physical Files: A physical file is a file that actually contains data records. This makes physical files similar to disk files on other systems. A physical file can contain only fixed-length records, all of which have the same format.

Logical Files: A logical file is a data base file through which data from one or more physical files can be accessed. The format and organization of this data is different from that of the data in the physical file(s). Each logical file can define a different access path (index) for the data in the physical file(s). Each logical file can exclude and reorder the fields defined in the physical file(s).

Device Files

A device file reads from or writes to a device attached to the system. A device file controls the transfer of data between the physical device and the program.

This manual uses the term *file* as a device file or a member in a data base file.

DDM Files

Distributed Data Management (DDM) allows you to access data files that reside on remote IBM System/36 and System/38 systems. DDM files are supported by the COBOL compiler. You can retrieve, add, update or delete data records in a file that resides on another system. In addition, a remote system can access your System/38 data base for record retrieval.

For more information about accessing remote files, refer to the IBM System/38 Distributed Data Management User's Guide.

Paragraphs

The Input-Output Section is divided into two paragraphs: the FILE-CONTROL paragraph, which names and associates the files with the external media, and the I-O-CONTROL paragraph, which defines special input/output techniques to be used.

Format



The exact contents of the Input-Output Section depend on the file organization and access methods used to process the file. The following summary gives some background for the file processing techniques available in System/38 COBOL.

File Processing Summary

The method used to process a file in a COBOL program depends on the data organization of the file and on the access mode used.

Appendix J summarizes which clauses and statements are required and which clauses and statements are optional for each access mode and device.

The following paragraphs describe both the types of data organization, and the access modes available in COBOL. See Chapter 9 for information about COBOL file processing in relation to System/38 file processing.

Data Organization

In a COBOL program, data organization can be sequential, indexed, relative, or TRANSACTION.

Records can be fixed or variable in length. For all files other than tape, variable length records are stored as fixed length records of the maximum size specified for the file.

Sequential Organization: With this organization, records are placed in the file consecutively, without keys, in the order they are written (arrival sequence). Once established, this relationship does not change, with the exception that a file can be extended. Both data base files and device files can have sequential organization.

Indexed Organization: With this organization, each record in the file has one embedded key that is associated with an index. The index provides a logical path to the data records according to the contents of the associated embedded record key data item (key sequence).

When records are inserted, updated, or deleted, they are identified solely by the value of their record key. Thus, the value in each record key data item must be unique and must not be changed when the record is updated. The key used for any specific input/output request is known as the *key of reference*.

Only data base files can have indexed organization.

IBM Extension

A logical file that is opened for OUTPUT does not remove all records in the physical file on which it is based. Instead, the file is opened to allow only write operations, and the records are added to the file.

____ End of IBM Extension .

Relative Organization: With this organization, each record in the file is identified by its relative record number. The file can be thought of as a serial string of areas, each of which can contain one record. Each of these areas is identified by a relative record number; record storage and retrieval are based on this number. For example, the first record area is addressed by relative record number 1, and the tenth is addressed by relative record number 10, whether or not records have been written in the second through ninth record areas. Relative files must be assigned to DISK or DATABASE.

New relative files opened for OUTPUT are initialized with all records deleted. In the absence of command language override, the number of records in a newly created file is the number of records specified at file creation time including all increments. Any attempt to extend a relative file beyond its current size results in a boundary violation.

Relative record number processing can be used for a physical file or for a logical file that is based on only one physical file.

----- IBM Extension

TRANSACTION Organization: Work station and data communication files can have TRANSACTION organization. See Chapter 7 for a discussion of this organization.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

Access Modes

Access mode is a COBOL term that defines the manner in which data in a logical or physical file is to be processed. The three access modes are sequential, random, and dynamic.

Sequential Access Mode: This access method allows records of a file to be read and written in a serial manner. The order of reference is implicitly determined by the position of a record in the file.

Random Access Mode: This access method allows records to be read and written in a user-specified manner. The control of successive references to the file is expressed by specifically defined keys supplied by the user.

Dynamic Access Mode: This access method allows a specific input/output request to determine the access mode. Thus records can be processed sequentially and/or randomly.

Access Mode Allowed for Each File Type

Sequential Files: Files with sequential organization can be accessed only sequentially. The sequence in which records are accessed is the order in which the records were originally written (arrival sequence).

Indexed Files: All three access modes are allowed.

In the sequential access mode, the sequence in which records are accessed is determined by the RECORD KEY value.

In the random access mode, the sequence in which records are accessed is controlled by the user. The desired record is accessed by placing the value of its record key in the RECORD KEY data item defined for that file.

In the dynamic access mode, the user can change from sequential access to random access by using appropriate input/output statements.

Relative Files: All three access modes are allowed.

In the sequential access mode, the sequence in which records are accessed is the ascending order of the relative record numbers of all records that currently exist within the file.

In the random access mode, the sequence in which records are accessed is controlled by the user. The desired record is accessed by placing its relative record number in a RELATIVE KEY data item.

In the dynamic access mode, the user can change from sequential access to random access by using appropriate input/output statements.

TRANSACTION Files: See Chapter 7 for a discussion of access mode considerations for TRANSACTION files.

FILE-CONTROL Paragraph

The FILE-CONTROL paragraph contains one or more file-control entries. A file-control entry associates a file in the COBOL program with an external medium, and this entry allows specification of file organization, access mode, and other information. The format of a file-control entry varies with the type of file described. The formats for the FILE-CONTROL paragraph are as follows:

Format 1-Sequential File Entries (READER, PUNCH, PUNCHPRINT, PRINT, PRINTER, TAPEFILE, DISKETTE, FORMATFILE, DISK, DATABASE)



Format 2-Indexed File Entries (DISK, DATABASE)



Format 3-Relative File Entries (DISK, DATABASE)



Format 4-Sort or Merge File Entries



IBM Extension

Format 5 - TRANSACTION File Entries (WORKSTATION)

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of this format.

End of IBM Extension _____

FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – General Considerations

Each file described in an FD or SD entry in the Data Division must be described in only one entry in the FILE-CONTROL paragraph. Each file specified in a file-control entry must have a file description in the Data Division.

The keyword FILE-CONTROL can appear only once, at the beginning of the FILE-CONTROL paragraph. The word FILE-CONTROL must begin in Area A, and it must be followed by a period and a space.

Each file-control entry must begin in Area B with a SELECT clause. The order in which other clauses appear is not significant.

Each clause within a file-control entry can optionally be separated from the next by a comma or semicolon followed by a space. Each file-control entry ends with a period and a space.

Each data-name must appear in a Data Division data description entry. Each data-name can be qualified but cannot be subscripted or indexed.

SELECT Clause

Each file-name specified in a SELECT clause must have an FD or SD entry in the Data Division. A file-name must conform to the rules for a COBOL user-defined name, must contain at least one alphabetic character, and must be unique within this program.

Sequential File Considerations: The OPTIONAL phrase can be specified only for input files with sequential organization. It must be specified for input files that are not necessarily present each time the program is executed.

ASSIGN Clause

The ASSIGN clause associates a file with an external medium. The assignment-name makes the association between the file and the external medium. For sort or merge files (associated with an SD entry), no external medium is used. The related ASSIGN clause is only validity checked. It is not actually used for I-O.

Assignment-name consists of 3 parts:

- Device
- System/38 file name
- Attribute.

It has the following general structure:



Device: This part of assignment-name specifies the type of device that the file will use. The compiler can then check whether the file is described and used in a consistent manner. See "Device Independence/Device Dependence" in Chapter 9 for further information.

The compiler does not check whether the device associated with the external file is of the type specified in the device portion of assignment-name. For example, assignment-name could be TAPEFILE-ABCD and ABCD could be created with a Create Card File (CRTCRDF) CL command. The compiler would provide no diagnostics unless the I-O verbs were used in an inconsistent manner for TAPEFILE. At execution time, CPF (control program facility) could either issue an escape message or ignore the function if it was not applicable to the device. See the CPF Programmer's Guide for further information on overriding files.

IBM Extension

The device type can be changed at execution time with the DEV parameter of the OVRxxxF CL command. To ensure consistent results, the device type associated with the DEV parameter should be the same as that specified for assignment-name.

_ End of IBM Extension _

Device can be any of the following:

| Device | Associated File |
|-------------------------|---|
| READER | Card file |
| PUNCH | Card file |
| PUNCHPRINT | Card file |
| PRINT | Card file |
| PRINTER ¹ | Printer file |
| FORMATFILE ² | Printer file |
| TAPEFILE | Tape file |
| DISKETTE | Diskette file |
| DISK ³ | Any physical data base file or single format logical data base file |
| DATABASE ⁴ | Any data base file |
| WORKSTATION | Display file, communications file, binary synchronous communications file, or mixed file. |

For more information on how to use externally described printer files see "FORMATFILE Files" in Chapter 9.

Note: See "DISK and DATABASE File Considerations" in Chapter 9 for further information.

System/38 File Name: This part of assignment-name must be an unhyphenated, 1- through 10-character system name of the actual external file (physical or logical data base, or device). This external file has to be created before compiling the program only when it is used by a COPY statement, DDS (data description specifications) or DD format, within this program.

For data base files, the member name cannot be specified in the program. If a member other than the first member is to be specified, the Override with

¹ PRINTER should be specified for program described printer files only.

² FORMATFILE should be specified for externally described printer files only.

³ When DISK is the device, data base extensions cannot be used.

⁴ When DATABASE is the device, externally described data and data base extensions can be used.

Data Base File (OVRDBF) CL command must be used at execution time to specify the member name.

This System/38 file name is the name of the CPF object that is displayed by the Display Program References (DSPPGMREF) command. Since no external medium is used for an SD file, the DSPPGMREF command does not list any files defined for an SD file.

The System/38 file name can be changed at execution time with the TOFILE parameter of the OVRXXXF CL command. To ensure consistent results, the device type associated with the TOFILE parameter should be the same as that specified for assignment-name.

Attribute: This part of assignment-name can be one of the following:

-SI.

Hopper must be either P or S to specify the primary or secondary hopper for card device files. If neither P nor S is specified for a card device file, the HOPPER parameter on the Create Card File (CRTCRDF) or Change Card File (CHGCRDF) CL commands is used.

Association must be any single-digit number from 0 through 9. It can be used only if the primary (P) hopper is specified for the file. All unit record card files that have the same association number are assigned to the same unit record card device, and must use the same external file name (see Appendix D).

SI indicates that a separate indicator area has been specified in the DDS for a FORMATFILE or WORKSTATION file. See "Indicators" in Chapter 7 for more information on the use of the SI attribute.

See "Device Independence/Device Dependence" in Chapter 9 for further information on the ASSIGN clause.

The valid entries for each field of the assignment-name vary with the device. The valid combinations of fields are shown in Figure 3-2.

In formats 1, 2, and 3, the second and subsequent assignment-names are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation. In format 4, the entire ASSIGN clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

RESERVE Clause

The RESERVE clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

ORGANIZATION Clause

The ORGANIZATION clause specifies the logical structure of the file. The file organization is established at the time the file is created and cannot subsequently be changed. When the ORGANIZATION clause is omitted, ORGANIZATION IS SEQUENTIAL is assumed.

- IBM Extension

For data base files, the ORGANIZATION clause indicates the current program usage of the file in the program. Therefore, the same data base file can use SEQUENTIAL, INDEXED (assuming a keyed sequence access path exists), or RELATIVE in the ORGANIZATION clause. This is true regardless of what is specified in other programs that use this file.

____ End of IBM Extension _____

Note: A keyed sequence access path is always created when a key is specified in the DDS that was used as input to the Create Physical File (CRTPF) or the Create Logical File (CRTLF) CL command.

| | System/38 File | Default System/38 | | | |
|---|-------------------|----------------------|--------|-------------|----|
| Device | Name | File Name | Hopper | Association | SI |
| READER | 0 | QCARD96 | 0 | 0 | N |
| PUNCH | 0 | QCARD96 | 0 | 0 | N |
| PUNCHPRINT | 0 | QCARD96 | 0 | 0 | N |
| PRINT | 0 | QCARD96 | 0 | 0 | N |
| PRINTER | 0 | QPRINT | N | N | N |
| FORMATFILE | R | | N | N | 0 |
| TAPEFILE | 0 | QTAPE | N | N | N |
| DISKETTE | 0 | QDKT | N | N | N |
| DISK | R | | N | N | N |
| DATABASE | R | | N | N | N |
| WORKSTATION | R | | N | N | 0 |
| R = Required 0 = Optional N = Not Allow | ed | | | | |

Figure 3-2. Valid Entries for the Assignment-Name

Sequential File Considerations: When ORGANIZATION IS SEQUENTIAL is specified or implied, a predecessor-successor relationship of the records in the files is established by the order in which records are placed in the file when it is created or extended (arrival sequence access path).

Indexed File Considerations: When ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED is specified, the position of each logical record in the file is determined by the key sequence access path created with the file and maintained by the system. The access path is based on an embedded key within the file's records.

Relative File Considerations: When ORGANIZATION IS RELATIVE is specified, the position of each record in the file is determined by its relative record number within the arrival sequence access path.

ACCESS MODE Clause

The ACCESS MODE clause defines the manner in which the records of the file are made available for processing. When this clause is omitted, ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is assumed.

Sequential File Considerations: For files with sequential organization, records in the file are accessed in the order they are written when the file is created or extended (arrival sequence). Whether ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified or omitted, sequential access is always assumed.

Indexed File Considerations: For files with indexed organization, the access mode can be SEQUENTIAL, RANDOM, or DYNAMIC.

When ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified or implied, records in the file are accessed in the sequence of ascending record key values within the index.

IBM Extension

When using an externally described file, if the DDS keyword DESCEND is used when the field is specified as a key field, the records in the file are accessed in the sequence of descending record key values within the index. Either the DESCEND keyword, or the ASCEND keyword (if DESCEND is not specified) appears under the heading RETRIEVAL in a comment table in the COBOL source program listing.

____ End of IBM Extension __

When ACCESS IS RANDOM is specified, the value placed in the RECORD KEY data item specifies the record to be accessed.

When ACCESS IS DYNAMIC is specified, records in the file can be accessed sequentially or randomly, depending on the form of the specific input/output request.

Relative File Considerations: For files with relative organization, the access mode can be SEQUENTIAL, RANDOM, or DYNAMIC.

When ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified or implied, records in the file are accessed in the ascending sequence of relative record numbers in the arrival sequence access path.

When ACCESS IS RANDOM is specified, the value placed in the RELATIVE KEY data item specifies the record to be accessed.

When ACCESS IS DYNAMIC is specified, records in the file can be accessed sequentially or randomly, depending on the form of the specific input/output request.

RELATIVE KEY Phrase: The RELATIVE KEY phrase specifies the relative record number for a specific record in a relative file.

Data-name-3 is the RELATIVE KEY data item. It must be defined as an unsigned integer data item and must not be defined in a record description entry associated with this relative file. That is, the RELATIVE KEY is not part of the record.

When ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified, the RELATIVE KEY phrase need not be specified unless the START statement is used. When the START statement is used, the system uses the contents of the RELATIVE KEY data item to determine the record at which sequential processing is to begin.

If a value is placed in the RELATIVE KEY data item and a START statement is not used, the value is ignored and processing begins with the first record in the file.

IBM Extension

When the file is opened, the POSITION parameter on the OVRDBF CL command can be used to set the current record pointer. This causes processing to begin with a record other than the first record. See the CL Reference Manual for further information.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

When ACCESS IS RANDOM or ACCESS IS DYNAMIC is specified, the RELATIVE KEY phrase must be specified. For each random processing request, the contents of the RELATIVE KEY data item are used to communicate a relative record number to the system.

TRANSACTION File Considerations: See Chapter 7.

RECORD KEY Clause (Indexed File)

The RECORD KEY clause must be specified for an indexed file. The RECORD KEY clause specifies the data item within the record that is the record key for an indexed file. The values contained in the record key data item must be unique among records in the file.

IBM Extension

The DUPLICATES phrase can only be specified for files assigned to DATABASE. This allows the file to have keys with the same values. If the file has multiple formats, two keys in different formats have the same values only when the key lengths and the contents of the keys are the same.

For example, given a file with the following two formats:

Format F1 with keys A, B, C Format F2 with keys A, B, D.

If fields C and D are the same length, have the same data type, and have the same values, the file would contain two records with a duplicate key. The term *duplicate key* applies only to a complete record key for the format. A record key for the format consists of the key field(s) defined for a DDS format for records residing on the data base. The term does not apply to the common key for the file (only fields A and B in the above example).

Users can indicate DUPLICATES on the RECORD KEY clause. A file status of 95 is returned after a successful open when:

- The DUPLICATES phrase is specified in the COBOL program and the file was created with UNIQUE specified in DDS.
- The DUPLICATES phrase is not specified in the COBOL program and the file was created allowing nonunique keys.

Processing files when either of these conditions exist can cause unpredictable results.

To ensure that the proper duplicate record is updated or deleted in a file that allows duplicates and is processed randomly, the last input/output statement executed prior to the execution of the REWRITE or DELETE statement must be a successfully executed READ statement for the record to be deleted or rewritten.

If the DDS file level keyword LIFO (last-in-first-out) is specified, the duplicate records within a physical file are retrieved in a last-in-first-out order.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

Data-name-2 is the RECORD KEY data item. It must be described as a fixed-length alphanumeric item within a record description entry associated with the file. The length of the record key is restricted; the key length, in characters, plus the number of fields cannot exceed 120. See the *CPF* Reference Manual – DDS for more information.

IBM Extension

The RECORD KEY data item, data-name-2, can be a numeric item when the file is assigned to a DATABASE device type. The numeric item can have a usage of DISPLAY, COMP (COMP-3), or COMP-4.

Depending on the keywords specified for the data item in DDS, the keyed sequence access path can be by algebraic value. See the ABSVAL, DIGIT, SIGNED, and ZONE keywords in the *CPF Reference Manual-DDS*. If one of these keywords is specified, its name appears in a comment table in the COBOL source listing under the heading TYPE. If no keyword is specified, the table entry is the data type specified in DDS. The table entry AN indicates that the data type is alphanumeric (specified in DDS as A). The
table entry N indicates that the data type is numeric (specified in DDS as P, S, or B).

The keywords specified for the data item in DDS can modify record sequence. See the ALTSEQ, DIGIT, and ZONE keywords in the CPF Reference Manual-DDS. If none of these keywords are specified, the records are ordered according to the EBCDIC collating sequence.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

The data description of data-name-2 and its relative location within the record must be the same as the ones used when the file was defined in DDS.

The record description that defines data-name-2 will always be used to access the record key field for the I-O operation.

IBM Extension

The reserved word EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY can specify that the key(s) for this file are those that are externally described in DDS. The keys are determined by the record formats that are copied by the COPY statement, DDS or DD format, under the FD for this file.

The key can start at different offsets within the buffer for each format. In this situation, care must be used when changing from one record format to another, using a random READ or START statement. The key must be placed in the record format at the correct offset in the format that will be used in the random access of the file. Unpredictable results can occur if the key for the desired record is based on data that was part of the last record read. This is because the movement of the data to the key field can involve overlapping fields.

The key within a format can be made up of multiple, noncontiguous (not adjacent) fields. When using EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY for a logical file, the key fields defined for a record format in DDS must also be fields defined in that format. Therefore, fields renamed in DDS, or fields that are part of concatenated fields in DDS cannot be used as keys. Only those record formats copied in within the FD for the file should be referenced by the FORMAT phrase. If a format is referenced that is defined within the file, but that format has not been copied into the program, the key is built using the key field(s) defined for the first record format that was copied. This can cause unpredictable results.

_ End of IBM Extension _

FILE STATUS Clause

The FILE STATUS clause allows the user to monitor the execution of each input/output request for the file.

Data-name-1 is the status key data item. Data-name-1 must be defined in the Data Division as a two-character alphanumeric item and must not be defined in the File Section.

When the FILE STATUS clause is specified, the system moves a value into the status key data item after each input/output request that explicitly or implicitly refers to this file. The value indicates the execution status of the statement. When the compiler generates code to block output records or unblock input records, file status values that are caused by CPF exceptions are set only when a block is processed. See Appendix I for a description of the possible values. See Chapter 9 for more information on blocking output records and unblocking input records.

IBM Extension

An extended file status data item may be specified for TRANSACTION file processing. See Chapter 7 for more information.

_____ End of IBM Extension .

I-O-CONTROL Paragraph

The I-O-CONTROL paragraph specifies when checkpoints are to be taken and what storage areas are to be shared by different files and optimization techniques. The I-O-CONTROL paragraph is optional in a COBOL program.

Format



The keyword I-O-CONTROL can appear only once, at the beginning of the I-O-CONTROL paragraph. The word I-O-CONTROL must begin in Area A, and it must be followed by a period followed by a space.

Each clause within the I-O-CONTROL entry can optionally be separated from the next by a comma or semicolon followed by a space. The clauses, when present, must be specified in the order shown. Clauses can be specified on the same line as the I-O-CONTROL paragraph header, or on separate lines. The I-O-CONTROL entry ends with a period followed by a space.

RERUN Clause

The RERUN clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

Assignment-Name: This name can be any user-defined word.

SAME Clause

The SAME clause specifies that two or more files are to use the same main storage area during processing. The files named in a SAME clause need not have the same organization or access.

The following discussion describes only the SAME RECORD AREA and SAME AREA clauses. The SAME SORT AREA and SAME SORT-MERGE AREA clauses are discussed under "SORT/MERGE" in Chapter 6.

The SAME RECORD AREA clause and SAME AREA clause are intended to make efficient use of main storage. However, the virtual storage architecture of System/38 eliminates the need for these clauses, and the clauses are supported for compatibility rather than for performance. Use of the SAME RECORD AREA actually degrades performance.

The SAME RECORD AREA clause specifies that two or more files are to use the same main storage area for processing the current record. All the files can be open at the same time. A record in the shared storage area is considered to be both a record of each opened output file in this SAME RECORD AREA clause, and a logical record of the most recently read input file in this SAME RECORD AREA clause.

More than one SAME RECORD AREA clause can be included in a program; however, the following restriction applies:

• A specific file-name must not appear in more than one SAME RECORD AREA clause.

The SAME AREA clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation. However, the following restrictions apply:

- A specific file-name must not appear in more than one SAME AREA clause.
- If one or more file-names of a SAME AREA clause appear in a SAME RECORD AREA clause, all of the file-names in that SAME AREA clause must appear in that SAME RECORD AREA clause. However, that SAME RECORD AREA clause can contain additional file-names that do not appear in that SAME AREA clause.
- Only one of the files for which the SAME AREA clause is specified can be open at one time. This rule takes precedence over the SAME RECORD AREA rule that all the files can be open at the same time.

Programming Notes: The SAME RECORD AREA clause allows transfer of data from one file to another with no explicit data manipulation because the input/output record areas of named files are identical, and all are available to the user.

MULTIPLE FILE TAPE Clause

The MULTIPLE FILE TAPE clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation. This clause specifies that two or more files share the same reel of tape. The function is provided by the system through the use of command language. See CRTTAPF, CHGTAPF, and OVRTAPF commands in the *CL Reference Manual*.

COMMITMENT CONTROL Clause

The COMMITMENT CONTROL clause specifies the files that will be placed under commitment control when they are opened. These files will then be affected by the COMMIT and ROLLBACK statements. The COMMIT statement allows the synchronization of changes to data base records while preventing other jobs from modifying those records until the COMMIT is complete. The ROLLBACK statement provides a method of cancelling changes made to data base files when those changes should not be made permanent.

The COMMITMENT CONTROL clause can specify only files assigned to a device type of DATABASE. Files under commitment control may have an organization of sequential, relative or indexed, and may have any access mode valid for a particular organization.

The system locks records contained in files under commitment control when these records are accessed. Records remain locked until released by a COMMIT or ROLLBACK statement. For more information about record locking for files under commitment control, see "Commitment Control Considerations" in Chapter 9.

Programming Note: Always try to use files in a consistent manner to avoid record locking problems, and to avoid reading records that have not yet been permanently committed to the data base. Typically, a file should either always be accessed under commitment control or never be accessed under commitment control.

Chapter 4. Data Division

Data Division Concepts

The Data Division of a COBOL source program describes all the data to be processed by the object program. Two types of data can be processed: external data and internal data.

External Data

External data is contained in files. A file is a collection of data records existing on some input/output device. A file can be thought of as a group of physical records; it can also be thought of as a group of logical records. The Data Division source statements describe the relationship between physical and logical records. (See the Glossary for definitions of these items.)

A physical record is a unit of data that is treated as an entity when it is moved into or out of auxiliary storage. The size of a physical record is determined by the particular input/output device on which it is stored. The size does not necessarily have a direct relationship to the size or content of the logical information contained in the file.

A logical record is a unit of data whose subdivisions have a logical relationship. A logical record can itself be a physical record (that is, be contained completely in one physical unit of data), or several logical records can be contained within one physical record.

Record description entries, which follow the FD (file description) entry for a specific file, describe the logical records in the file. These entries also describe the category and format of data within each field of the logical record and different values the data might be assigned.

The FD entry specifies the physical aspects of the data such as the size relationship between physical and logical records, the size and name(s) of the logical record(s), and labeling information.

Once the relationship between physical and logical records has been established, only logical records are made available to the COBOL program. Thus, in this manual, a reference to records means logical records unless the term physical records is used.

Internal Data

Program logic can develop additional data within storage. Such data is called internal data.

The concept of logical records applies to internal data as well as to external data. Internal data can thus be grouped into logical records and be defined by a series of record description entries. Items that need not be so grouped can be defined in independent data entries.

Data Relationships

The relationships of all data to be used in a program are defined in the Data Division through a system of level indicators and level-numbers.

A level indicator, together with its descriptive entry, identifies each file description in a program. Level indicators are the highest level of any data hierarchy with which they are associated.

A level-number, together with its descriptive entry, indicates the properties of specific data. Level-numbers can be used to describe a data hierarchy. They can indicate that this data has a special purpose, and while they can be associated with and be subordinate to level indicators, they can also be used independently to describe internal data or data common to two or more programs.

Data Division Organization

The Data Division is divided into three sections: the File Section, the Working-Storage Section, and the Linkage Section. Each section has a specific logical function within a COBOL source program, and each can be omitted from the source program when that logical function is not needed.

Format



The Data Division must begin with the words DATA DIVISION followed by a period and a space.

In the source program, the Data Division sections must appear in the order shown.

Coding Example

| L. | S | E | | JE | NC | E | | CONT. | A | | | | в | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----|---|---|---|----|----|---|---|-------|---|---|---|----|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|--|
| ï | | | 3 | 4 | | | 6 | 7 | 8 | - | _ | - | 12 | - | | _ | 16 | | - | - | 20 | - | | | 24 | - | - | | 28 | _ | | - | 77 | _ | _ | |
| ٥ | | 0 | 3 | 0 | 1 | K |) | | D | A | T | A | l | D | 1 | V | 1 | S | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 0 | 2 | | 2 | | F | 1 | h | E | Ľ | S | E | Ł | T | 1 | C | N | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | ۱ | | 0 | 3 | (| | 1 | F | D | Ĺ | Ĺ_ | F | 1 | L | E | - | N | A | M | E | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | 0 | 4 | C | | i | | | | | B | L | 0 | C | K | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Į | | 0 | 5 | 4 | 2 | 1 | | | | Ţ | R | ε | k | 0 | R | D | | _ | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| L | 1 | Ľ | | 0 | 6 | (| 2 | | Ĺ | | L | | L | A | B | E | L | [| R | E | ٤ | Q | R | D | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| L | N | t | | 0 | 7 | (| 2 | | Ĺ | L | | L | L | L | N | | 6 | E | L | - | | | _ | | | | | | L | | | | | | | |
| L | 1 | L | | 0 | 8 | (|) | | Ĺ | L | L | | D | A | I | A | L | R | E | ٢ | ٥ | R | D | | L | S | | - | | ► | | | | | | |
| | | | | 0 | 9 | (|) | | Ø | 1 | | | D | E | 5 | C | R | h | 2 | T | I | 0 | N | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | J | | 1 | 0 | (| 2 | | W | 0 | C | K | 1 | N | 6 | - | S | T | 0 | R | A | 6 | G | | S | E | C | Г | 1 | ٥ | N | | | | | |
| L | 4 | l | | 1 | 1 | (| 0 | | Ø | L | | | N | A | M | E | - | D | E | 5 | C | R | I | P | T | L | 0 | N | | | | | | | | |
| L | k | t | | 1 | 2 | (| 2 | | Ø | 1 | | | R | ε | C | D | R | D | - | D | E | 5 | ٢ | R | 1 | P | T | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | |
| | I | | | 1 | 3 | | | | Ĺ | | | | ! | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Sample Data Division Entries

| 1 | | 4 | 5 6 7 | |
|------------------------------------|---|--|---|--|
| DAT/ FILI FD | A DIVISION. E SECTION. INPUT-DATA BLOCK CONTAINS 1 RECORDS RECORD CONTAINS 80 CHAR/ | S ACTERS | | |
| 01 | LABEL RECORDS ARE STAND/ DATA RECORDS ARE GEN-INI GEN-INFO. 03 EMPLOYEE-NAME. 05 FIRST-NAME | ARD FO SALES-DA | TA. <u>PIC X(12)</u> . | |
| | 05 LAST-NAME 03 SOC-SEC-NUMBER 03 CHECK-SSN REDEFINES SOC-SEC-NU 03 AGE | JMBER | PIC X(12). PIC 9(9) PIC X(9). PIC X(9). | |
| | 03 BIRTH-DATE. 05 B-MONTH 05 B-DAY 05 B-YEAR | | PIC 99. PIC 99. PIC 99. | |
| ±. | 03 ANNUAL-SALARY 03 CHECK-SALARY REDEFINES ANNUAL-SAL | | PIC $9(5)$ V99. PIC $X(7)$ | |
| * 01 | 03 RECORD-ID 03 FILLER SALES-DATA. 03 SALES-SSN 03 SALES-LOCATION | JSED TO SEE | PIC X(31). PIC 9(9). PIC XX. | |
| FD | 88 MICHIGAN 88 EASTERN-REGION 88 HEADQUARTERS 03 TOTAL-COMMISSION 03 RECORD-CODE 03 FILLER REPORT-OUT | ALUE IS M ALUES ARE ALUES ARE | "PA" "NY" "BA" THRU "BZ". PIC 9(5)V99 PIC X. PIC X(61). | |
| | LABEL RECORDS ARE OMITTI RECORD CONTAINS 132 CHAI LINAGE IS 66 LINES FOOTING 6 LINES AT | ED RACTERS TOP 4 LINE: | S AT BOTTOM 4 | |
| 01 WORH 01 01 01 01 | DATA RECORD IS PRINT-OU PRINT-OUT (ING-STORAGE SECTION. RECORDS-IN DECLARATIVE-ERRORS EOF-SW BAD-DATA-COUNTER CHECK-IT | PIC X(132 PIC 9(6) PIC 9(4) PIC X PIC 9(3) PIC Y |). VALUE ZEROS VALUE ZEROS VALUE ZERO VALUE ZEROS. | |
| ŏi | PRINT-FIELDS-EDITED 03 FILLER 03 TOTAL-SALARY 03 COMMISSION-COSTS 03 FILLER 03 FILLER | PIC X(14) PIC \$\$\$,\$ PIC \$**,* PIC X(65) PIC X(12) | VALUE SPACES. \$\$.99BB. **,***.99B. VALUE ALL "-" | |
| 01 01 | SALARY-COUNTER COMMISSION-COUNTER | PIC 9(6)V | 99 VALUE ZEROS 99 VALUE ZEROS | |

File Section

The File Section contains a description of all externally stored data (FD) and a description of each sort-merge file (SD) used in the program.

The File Section must begin with the header FILE SECTION followed by a period. The File Section contains file description entries and sort-merge file description entries. Each entry is followed by its associated record description entry (or entries).

In a COBOL program, the file description entries (beginning with the level indicators FD and SD) represent the highest level of organization in the File Section. The file description entry provides information about the physical structure and identification of a file, and gives the record-name(s) associated with that file. For further description of the format and the clauses required in a file description entry, see "File Description Entry" in this chapter. See "Data Division-SORT/MERGE" in Chapter 6 for a complete discussion of the sort-merge file description entry.

The record description entry consists of a set of data description entries that describe the records contained within a particular file. More than one record description entry can be specified; each is an alternative description of the same storage area. For the format and the clauses required within the record description entry, see "Data Description" in this chapter.

IBM Extension

The record description entry for a file can be specified using the COPY statement, DDS or DD format. This allows the field descriptions for a record format to be exactly as defined in DDS. Also, programs are easier to write because the record format description is maintained in only one place. See "SOURCE PROGRAM LIBRARY" in Chapter 6 for further information on the COPY statement, DDS or DD format.

_____ End of IBM Extension ___

Data areas described in the File Section should not be considered available for processing unless the file containing the data area is open.

Working-Storage Section

The Working-Storage Section can contain description records that are not part of data files but are developed and processed internally. These records are used for report description, counters, and other functions necessary in processing data.

The Working-Storage Section must begin with the section header WORKING-STORAGE SECTION followed by a period. The Working-Storage Section contains record description entries and data description entries for noncontiguous data items. Data elements in the Working-Storage Section that bear a definite
hierarchical relationship to one another must be grouped into records
structured by level-number.Noncontiguous items in this section that bear no hierarchical relationship
to one another need not be grouped into records provided they do not need
to be further subdivided. Instead, they are classified and defined as
noncontiguous elementary items. Each is defined in a separate data
description entry that begins with the special level-number 77 or
level-number 01. The format of the data description entry is the same as
the format for the record description entry.Linkage SectionThe Linkage Section describes data made available from another program.Record description entries and data description entries in the Linkage
Section provide names and descriptions, but storage within the program is
not reserved because the data area exists elsewhere. Any data description

clause can be used to describe items in the Linkage Section with one exception: the VALUE clause cannot be specified for any items other than level-88 items. See "INTER-PROGRAM COMMUNICATION FEATURE" in Chapter 6 for additional information.

File Description Entry

In a COBOL program, the file description entry (FD entry) or the sort-merge file description entry (SD entry) is the highest level of organization in the File Section. Up to 99 FD and SD entries can be defined in a COBOL program.

Format 1-Files (FORMATFILE, DATABASE, DISK, READER, PUNCH, PUNCHPRINT, PRINT)



Format 2-Files (DISKETTE)







Format 5-Sort or Merge File Description

See "Data Division-SORT/MERGE" in Chapter 6 for the format of the sort-merge file description (SD entry).

⁻ IBM Extension

Format 6-TRANSACTION File

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of this format.

___ End of IBM Extension ____

The file description entry must begin with the level indicator FD followed by a space.

The clauses that follow file-name are optional in many cases; the order of their appearance is not significant.

However, at least one record description entry must follow the FD entry. When more than one record description entry is specified, each entry implies a redefinition of the same storage area. The last clause in the FD entry must be immediately followed by a period and a space.

File-Name

The file-name must follow the level indicator, and must be the same as that specified in the associated file control entry.

The file-name must follow the rules of formation for a user-defined word; at least one character must be alphabetic. The file-name must be unique within this program.

BLOCK CONTAINS Clause

This clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation except for tape files.

The BLOCK CONTAINS clause specifies the size of a physical record. When the BLOCK CONTAINS clause is omitted, the compiler assumes that records are not blocked. Thus, this clause can be omitted when each physical record contains only one complete logical record.

Format

Integer-1 and integer-2 must be nonzero unsigned integers.

When neither the CHARACTERS nor RECORDS phrase is specified, the CHARACTERS phrase is assumed.

RECORDS Phrase: When the RECORDS phrase is specified, the physical record size is the number of logical records contained in each physical record.

Note: Maximum record size is 32 767; maximum block size is 32 767. These maximums include any control bytes required for variable blocked records; thus, the maximum size data record for a variable-blocked record is 32 759.

CHARACTERS Phrase: When the CHARACTERS phrase is specified or implied, the physical record size is specified as the number of character positions required to store the physical record no matter what USAGE clause the characters within the data record have.

If only integer-2 is specified, it specifies the exact character size of the physical record. When integer-1 and integer-2 are both specified, they represent, respectively, the minimum and maximum character size of the physical record.

Note: Each variable record contains a 4-byte header and each block contains a 4-byte header when the data is transferred to tape. However, these 4-byte headers are provided by the system and are of no concern to

the COBOL user except that the maximum size of a variable record is restricted to 32 759.

When variable records are used, the BLOCK CONTAINS clause specifies the maximum physical record length, while the logical record length for each record is inferred by the compiler from the record name used in a WRITE statement. If an explicit length is required after a READ statement, the user can obtain it through the I-O-FEEDBACK mnemonic-name.

RECORD CONTAINS Clause

The RECORD CONTAINS clause specifies the size of a file's data records.

Format

[RECORD CONTAINS [integer-3 TO] integer-4 CHARACTERS]

The RECORD CONTAINS clause is never required because the size of each record is completely defined in the record description entries. When this clause is specified, the following rules apply:

- Integer-3 and integer-4 must be unsigned, nonzero integers.
- When both integer-3 and integer-4 are specified, integer-3 specifies the size of the smallest data record, and integer-4 specifies the size of the largest data record.
- Integer-4 must not be specified alone unless all the records are the same size. If all records are the same size, integer-4 specifies the exact number of characters in the record.
- The record size must be specified as the number of character positions needed to store the record internally; that is, size is specified in terms of the number of bytes occupied internally by the record's characters, regardless of the number of characters used to represent the item within the record. The size of a record is determined according to the rules for obtaining the size of a group item. For a further description of record size, see "USAGE Clause" in this chapter.

Note: When the RECORD CONTAINS clause is omitted, the record lengths are determined by the compiler from the record descriptions. When one of the entries within a record description contains an OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause, the compiler uses the maximum value of the variable length item to calculate the record length.

Programming Note: The system supports variable length physical records only for files on tape. For all other files, the logical records are truncated or padded to the length of the record as defined in the CRTXXXF CL command. User length in the following table is defined as the largest record associated with the given file, as specified by its record description.

| Input/Output Type | User Length Less Than File Record Length | User Length Greater Than File Record Length |
|----------------------|--|--|
| Input | Truncation | Pad with blanks. |
| Output | Pad with blanks | Truncation if old file (non-empty); for new (empty files) the larger record length is used. |

LABEL RECORDS Clause

The LABEL RECORDS clause specifies whether labels are present or omitted. The LABEL RECORDS clause is required in every FD entry. Format 3 (TAPEFILE) is the only format in which this clause is not treated as documentation.

Format

$$\underline{\mathsf{LABEL}} \left\{ \frac{\mathsf{RECORD}}{\mathsf{RECORDS}} \mathsf{IS} \mathsf{ARE} \right\} \left\{ \frac{\mathsf{STANDARD}}{\mathsf{OMITTED}} \right\}$$

IBM Extension

The LABEL RECORDS clause can be changed at execution time by specifying the REELS parameter of the Override with Tape File (OVRTAPF) CL command. See the *CL Reference Manual* for more information on this command.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

STANDARD Phrase: The STANDARD phrase specifies that labels conforming to system specifications exist for this file. This phrase must be specified for files assigned to DISKETTE, DISK, and DATABASE. (See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3.)

OMITTED Phrase: The OMITTED phrase specifies that no labels exist for this file. This phrase must be specified for files assigned to READER, PUNCHPRINT, PRINT, and PRINTER. (See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3.)

VALUE OF Clause

The VALUE OF clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation. It specifies the description of an item in the label records associated with this file.

Format



User-name: This name follows the rules for the formation of a user-defined word.

DATA RECORDS Clause

The DATA RECORDS clause specifies the names of data records associated with this file. The DATA RECORDS clause is never required.

Format

$$\left[\frac{\text{DATA}}{\text{RECORD}} \left\{ \frac{\text{RECORD}}{\text{RECORDS}} \text{ARE} \right\} \text{data-name-3} \left[, \text{data-name-4} \right] \dots \right]$$

Data-name-3 and data-name-4 are the names of data records and must have 01 level-number record descriptions that have the same name associated with them.

The specification of more than one data-name indicates that this file contains more than one type of data record. Two or more record descriptions for this file occupy the same storage area. These records need not have the same description or length. The order in which the data-names are listed is not significant.

LINAGE Clause

The LINAGE clause specifies the depth of a logical page in terms of the number of lines. This clause also optionally specifies the line number at which the footing area begins, as well as the top and bottom margins of the logical page.

At execution time, the printer file being used determines the physical page size. This information is used to issue appropriate space and eject commands to produce the logical page as defined in the LINAGE clause. Thus, the logical page can contain multiple physical pages, or one physical page can contain multiple logical pages.

Format

$$\left[\underbrace{\text{LINAGE}}_{\text{integer-5}} \text{IS} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{data-name-6} \\ \text{integer-6} \end{array} \right\} \right] \left[\text{, WITH} \underbrace{\text{FOOTING}}_{\text{integer-6}} \text{AT} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{data-name-6} \\ \text{integer-6} \end{array} \right\} \right] \left[\text{, LINES AT} \underbrace{\text{TOP}}_{\text{integer-7}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{data-name-7} \\ \text{integer-7} \end{array} \right\} \right] \left[\text{, LINES AT} \underbrace{\text{BOTTOM}}_{\text{integer-8}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{data-name-8} \\ \text{integer-8} \end{array} \right\} \right] \right]$$

The LINAGE clause can be specified only for files assigned to the device PRINTER. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3.

All integers must be unsigned. All data-names must be described as unsigned integer data items.

LINAGE Integer-5/Data-Name-5: Integer-5 or the value in data-name-5 specifies the number of lines that can be written and/or spaced on this logical page. The area of the page that these lines represent is called the page body. The value must be greater than zero.

WITH FOOTING Phrase: Integer-6 or the value in data-name-6 specifies the first line number of the footing area within the page body. The footing line number must be greater than zero, but it must not be greater than the number for the last line of the page body. The footing area extends between those two lines. If this phrase is not specified, the assumed value is equal to that of the page body (integer-5 or data-name-5).

LINES AT TOP Phrase: Integer-7 or the value in data-name-7 specifies the number of lines in the top margin of the logical page. The value of integer-7 or data-name-7 can be zero. If this phrase is not specified, zero is assumed.

LINES AT BOTTOM Phrase: Integer-8 or the value in data-name-8 specifies the number of lines in the bottom margin of the logical page. The value of integer-8 or data-name-8 can be zero. If this phrase is not specified, zero is assumed.

Figure 4-1 illustrates the use of each phrase of the LINAGE clause.

LINAGE Clause Considerations: The logical page size specified in the LINAGE clause is the sum of all values specified in each phrase except the FOOTING phrase. If the LINES AT TOP and/or the LINES AT BOTTOM phrases are zero, each logical page immediately follows the preceding logical page with no additional spacing provided.

At the time an OPEN OUTPUT statement is executed, the values of integer-5, integer-6, integer-7, and integer-8 are used to determine the page body, first footing line, top margin, and bottom margin of the logical page for this file. These values are then used for all logical pages printed for this file during a given execution of the program.



Figure 4-1. LINAGE Clause and Logical Page Depth

If the FOOTING phrase is specified and the value of data-name-6 or integer-6 is equal to the LINAGE value of data-name-5 or integer-5, one line (the last line of the logical page) is available for footing information. If the FOOTING phrase is not specified, no footing area is provided at the end of the logical page, even though the default FOOTING value is data-name-5 or integer-5.

Data-name-5, data-name-6, data-name-7, and data-name-8 cause the following actions to take place:

- Their values at the time an OPEN OUTPUT is executed are used to determine the page body, the first footing line, the top margin, and the bottom margin for the first logical page only.
- Their values at the time a WRITE ADVANCING statement causes page ejection are used to determine the page body, first footing line, top margin, and bottom margin for the next succeeding logical page only.

LINAGE-COUNTER Special Register: For each FD entry containing a LINAGE clause, a separate LINAGE-COUNTER special register is generated. LINAGE-COUNTER is initialized to one when an OPEN statement for this file is executed. LINAGE-COUNTER is automatically modified by any WRITE statement for this file.

If more than one FD has a LINAGE clause, then when LINAGE-COUNTER special register is referred to in the PROCEDURE DIVISION, the user must qualify each LINAGE-COUNTER with its related file-name. For example, LINAGE-COUNTER OF FILE-A.

The value in LINAGE-COUNTER at any given time is the line number at which the device is positioned within the current page. LINAGE-COUNTER can be referred to in Procedure Division statements; LINAGE-COUNTER must not be modified by these statements.

CODE-SET Clause

The CODE-SET clause is valid only for files assigned to TAPEFILE or DISKETTE. This clause specifies the character code that is used to represent data on a magnetic tape file or diskette file.

Format



When the CODE-SET clause is specified, the following rules apply:

- Alphabet-name identifies the character code convention that is used to represent data on the input/output device.
- All data in this file must have USAGE DISPLAY.
- If signed numeric data is present, it must be described by the SIGN IS SEPARATE clause.
- Alphabet-name must be defined in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph as STANDARD-1 for ASCII encoded files or as NATIVE for EBCDIC encoded files.

The CODE-SET clause specifies the algorithm for converting the character codes on the input/output medium from or to the internal EBCDIC character set.

IBM Extension

If the CODE-SET clause is omitted, the CODE parameter of the Create Diskette File (CRTDKTF) or the Create Tape File (CRTTAPF) CL command is used.

The CODE-SET clause can be changed at execution time by specifying the CODE parameter on the Override with Diskette File (OVRDKTF) or the Override with Tape File (OVRTAPF) CL command. See the *CL Reference Manual* for more information on these commands.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

All the data used in a COBOL program is described using a uniform system of representation. The basic concepts of data description are discussed in this chapter, as well as the actual COBOL clauses used to describe data.

Data Description Concepts

Most of the data processed by a COBOL program is presented in hierarchically arranged records. This is necessary because most data must be divided into subdivisions for processing. To subdivide such records, COBOL uses a hierarchical concept of levels.

For example, in a department store's customer file, one complete record could contain all data pertaining to one customer. Subdivisions within that record could be: customer name, customer address, account number, department number of sale, unit amount of sale, dollar amount of sale, previous balance, and other pertinent information.

Level Concepts

Because records must be divided into logical subdivisions, the concept of levels is inherent in the structure of a record. Once a record has been subdivided, it can be further subdivided to provide more detailed data references.

The basic subdivisions of a record (that is, those fields that are not further subdivided) are called elementary items. Thus, a record can be made up of a series of elementary items, or it can itself be an elementary item.

It might be necessary to refer to a set of elementary items. Thus, elementary items can be combined into group items. Groups can be combined into a more inclusive group that contains two or more subgroups. Thus, within one hierarchy of data items, an elementary item can belong to more than one group item.

Level-Numbers

A system of level-numbers specifies the organization of elementary and group items into records. Special level-numbers are also used to identify data items used for special purposes.

Each group and elementary item in a record requires a separate entry, and each must be assigned a level-number. The following level-numbers are used to structure records:

- 01 This level-number specifies the record itself and is the most inclusive level-number possible. A level-01 entry can be either a group item or an elementary item.
- 02-49 These level-numbers specify group and elementary items within a record. Less inclusive data items are assigned higher (not necessarily consecutive) level-numbers.

A group item includes all group and elementary items following it until a level-number less than or equal to the level-number of this group is encountered.

All elementary or group items immediately subordinate to one group item must be assigned identical level-numbers that are higher than the level-number of this group item.

IBM Extension

Elementary items or group items that are immediately subordinate to one group item can have unequal level-numbers. For example, group item A consists of items B, C, and D:

A. 05 B PIC X(4). 04 C PIC X(20). 02 D PIC 99.

01

IBM does not recommend such coding practices, and this extension is provided only for compatibility.

____ End of IBM Extension _

Figure 4-2 illustrates the level-number concept. Notice that all groups immediately subordinate to the level-01 entry have the same level-number. Notice also that elementary items from different subgroups do not necessarily have the same level-number, and that elementary items can be specified at any level within the hierarchy. Figure 4-2 shows the COBOL record-description entry in the left portion of the figure; it shows the subdivision of the entry in the right portion of the figure.

Note: Level-numbers 01 through 09 can also be written as 1 through 9.

The items included in the nierarchy of each level are indicated below:

The COBOL record description entry is written as follows:



The storage arrangement is illustrated below:

| ┝━━━━━ | RECORD-ENTRY | | | | | | | |
|--------|--------------|--------|--------|---------|--------|------------|---------|--|
| • | GRC | UP-1 | | | | | | |
| SUBGF | ROUP-1► | SUBGF | {OUP-2 | SUBGF | OUP-3 | | | |
| ELEM-1 | ELEM-2 | ELEM-3 | ELEM-4 | ELEM-5 | ELEM-6 | SUBGROUP-4 | GROUP-3 | |

Figure 4-2. Level-Number Concepts

Special Level-Numbers

Special level-numbers identify items that do not structure a record. The following are special level-numbers:

| 66 | This level-number identifies elementary or group items described by a RENAMES clause. Such items regroup previously defined data items. |
|----|---|
| 77 | This level-number identifies independent data description entries in the Working-Storage or Linkage Section. These items are not subdivisions of other items, and are not themselves subdivided. |

88 This level-number identifies any condition-name entry that is associated with a particular value or values of a conditional variable. An example is given under "VALUE Clause" in this chapter.

Note: Level-77 and level-01 entries in the Working-Storage Section and Linkage Section must be given unique data-names because neither can be qualified. If subordinate data-names can be qualified, they need not be unique.

Indentation

Successive data description entries can begin in the same column as preceding entries, or they can be indented according to level-number. Indentation is useful for documentation, but it does not affect the action of the compiler.

Classes of Data

All data used in a COBOL program can be divided into four classes and six categories. Every elementary item in a program belongs to one of the classes as well as one of the categories. Every group item belongs to the alphanumeric class even if the subordinate elementary items belong to another class and category. Figure 4-3 shows the relationship of data classes and categories.

IBM Extension

Boolean data is an IBM extension that provides a means of modifying and passing the values of the indicators associated with the display screen formats. A Boolean value of 0 is the off status of the indicator, and a Boolean value of 1 is the on status of the indicator.

A Boolean literal contains a single 0 or 1 and is enclosed in quotes and immediately preceded by an identifying B. The Boolean literal is defined as either B"0" or B"1". A Boolean character occupies 1 byte. The figurative constant ZER0 can be used as a Boolean literal, and the reserved word ALL is valid with a Boolean literal.

. End of IBM Extension .

| Level of Item | Class | Category |
|---------------|--|---|
| Elementary | Alphabetic Boolean Numeric Alphanumeric | Alphabetic Boolean Numeric Numeric edited Alphanumeric edited Alphanumeric |
| Group | Alphanumeric | Alphabetic Boolean Numeric Numeric edited Alphanumeric edited Alphanumeric |

Figure 4-3. Classes and Categories of Data

Standard Alignment Rules

The standard alignment rules for positioning data in an elementary item depend on the data category of the receiving item (that is, the item into which the data is placed).

Numeric Items: When a numeric item is the receiving item, the following rules apply:

- The data is aligned on the assumed decimal point (PICTURE character V) and, if necessary, truncated or padded with zeros. (An assumed decimal point is one that has logical meaning but does not exist as a character in the data.)
- If an assumed decimal point is not explicitly specified, the receiving item is treated as though an assumed decimal point is specified immediately to the right of the field. The data is then treated as in the preceding rule.

Numeric Edited Items: The data is aligned on the decimal point and, if necessary, truncated or padded with zeros at either end, except when editing causes replacement of leading zeros.

Alphanumeric, Alphanumeric Edited, Alphabetic: For these data categories, the following rules apply:

- The data is aligned at the leftmost character position and, if necessary, truncated or padded with spaces at the right.
- If the JUSTIFIED clause is specified for this receiving item, the above rule is modified as described in the JUSTIFIED clause.

Standard Data Format

COBOL makes data description as machine independent as possible. For this reason, the properties of the data are described in a standard data format rather than a machine-oriented format.

The standard data format uses the decimal system to represent numbers no matter what base is used by the system. The nonnumeric data can contain any characters that are in the native character set, that is, nonnumeric data is not limited to just the COBOL character set or the nonnumeric COBOL characters.

Character-String and Item Size

In COBOL, the size of an elementary item is determined through the number of character positions specified in its PICTURE character-string. In storage, however, the size is determined by the actual number of bytes the item occupies as determined by the combination of its PICTURE character-string and its USAGE clause.

When an arithmetic item is moved from a longer field to a shorter one, the compiler truncates the data to the number of characters represented in the shorter item's PICTURE character-string.

For example, if a sending field with PICTURE S99999 and containing the value +12345 is moved to a COMPUTATIONAL receiving field with PICTURE S99, the data is truncated to +45.

Signed Data

There are two categories of algebraic signs used in COBOL: operational and editing.

Operational Signs

Operational signs (+, -) are associated with signed numeric items and indicate their algebraic properties. The internal representation of an algebraic sign depends on the item's USAGE clause and optionally upon its SIGN clause. Zero is considered a unique value regardless of the operational sign. An unsigned field is always assumed to be positive or zero.

Editing Signs

Editing signs are associated with numeric edited items. Editing signs are PICTURE symbols (+, -, CR, DB) that identify the sign of the item in edited output.

A record description entry consists of one or more data description entries. The maximum length of a record description entry is restricted to 32 767 bytes.

Data Description Entry

A data description entry specifies the characteristics of a particular data item. The maximum length for any item that is not otherwise restricted is 32 767 bytes. The general formats are:



Format 2

66 data-name-1 RENAMES data-name-2
$$\left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{data-name-3} \right]$$
.

Format 3

88 condition-name
$$\left\{ \frac{VALUE}{VALUES} \text{ ARE} \right\}$$
 literal-1 $\left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\}$ literal-2
 $\left[\text{literal-3} \left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\} \text{literal-4} \right] \right] \dots \right]$

IBM Extension





_ End of IBM Extension

Format 1

This format is used for record description entries in all sections and for level-77 entries in the Working-Storage and Linkage Sections. The following rules apply:

- Level-number can be any number from 01 through 49 or 77. Level-numbers from 01 through 09 can be coded as 1 through 9.
- The clauses can be written in any order, with two exceptions:
 - The data-name/FILLER clause must immediately follow the level-number.
 - When specified, the REDEFINES clause must immediately follow the data-name clause.
- The PICTURE clause must be specified for every elementary item except index data items.
- The BLANK WHEN ZERO, JUSTIFIED, PICTURE, and SYNCHRONIZED clauses are valid only for elementary items.
- Either a space, or a comma or a semicolon followed by a space, must separate clauses.
- Each entry must end with a period followed by a space.

Format 2

This format regroups previously defined items. The following rules apply:

- A level-66 entry cannot rename another level-66 entry, nor can it rename a level-01, level-77, or level-88 entry.
- All level-66 entries associated with one record must immediately follow the last data description entry in that record.
- The entry must end with a period followed by a space.

See "RENAMES Clause" later in this chapter for a further description.

Format 3

This format describes condition-names. A condition-name is a user-specified name that associates value(s) and/or a range(s) of values with a conditional variable.

A conditional variable is a data item that can assume one or more values that can, in turn, be associated with a condition-name. The following rules for condition-name entries apply:

• Any entry beginning with level-number 88 is a condition-name entry.

- The condition-name entries associated with a particular conditional-variable must immediately follow the conditional variable entry. The conditional variable can be any elementary data description entry except another condition-name, index data item, or level-66 entry.
- A condition-name can be associated with a group item data description entry. The following rules apply:
 - The condition-name value must be specified as a nonnumeric literal or figurative constant.
 - The size of the condition-name value must not exceed the sum of the sizes of all the elementary items within the group.
 - No element within the group may contain a JUSTIFIED or SYNCHRONIZED clause.
 - No USAGE other than USAGE IS DISPLAY may be specified within the group.
- Condition-names can be specified both at the group level and at subordinate levels within the group.
- The relation test implied by the definition of a condition-name at the group level is performed in accordance with the rules for comparison of nonnumeric operands regardless of the nature of elementary items within the group.
- Either a space or a comma or a semicolon followed by a space, must separate successive operands.
- Each entry must end with a period followed by a space.

Examples of both elementary and group condition-name entries are given under "VALUE Clause" in this chapter.

Format 4-Boolean Data

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of this format.

Level-Numbers

The level-number specifies the hierarchy of data within a record and also identifies special-purpose data entries.

Format

level-number

The following rules for level-numbers apply:

- A level-number begins a data description entry, a regrouped item, or a condition-name entry.
- Level-numbers 01 and 77 must begin in Area A.

- Level-numbers 02-49, 66, and 88 can begin in either Area A or Area B and must be followed by a space.
- Single-digit level-numbers 1 through 9 can be substituted for level-numbers 01 through 09.

Data-Name or FILLER Clause

A data-name explicitly identifies the data being described; the keyword FILLER specifies an item that is never explicitly referenced in the program.

Format

data-name FILLER

In a data description entry, either the data-name or the keyword FILLER must be the first word following the level-number. The data-name identifies a data item by referring to the field, not to a particular value. This data item can assume a number of different values during the course of a program.

A data-name can begin anywhere in Area B. A data-name must contain at least one alphabetic character.

Entries at level-numbers 01 and 77 in the Working-Storage and Linkage Sections cannot be qualified, and therefore require unique data-names. Subordinate data-names that can be qualified do not require unique data-names.

The keyword FILLER specifies an elementary item in a record that is never explicitly referred to. The word FILLER can be written anywhere in Area B.

In a MOVE CORRESPONDING statement, an ADD CORRESPONDING statement, or a SUBTRACT CORRESPONDING statement, FILLER items are ignored.

— IBM Extension

A FILLER item can be used as a group item definition. Subordinate data items can then be referenced by the appropriate data-name.

____ End of IBM Extension _

REDEFINES Clause

The REDEFINES clause allows the same storage area to be described by different data description entries.

Format

level-number data-name-1 <u>REDEFINES</u> data-name-2

Level-number and data-name-1 are not part of the REDEFINES clause itself, and are included in the format only for clarity.

If specified, the REDEFINES clause must be the first entry following data-name-1.

The level-number of data-name-1 and data-name-2 must be identical and must not be level-66 or level-88.

Data-name-1 is the redefining item and is an alternative description for the data-name-2 area.

Data-name-2 is the redefined item.

Implicit redefinition is assumed when more than one level-01 entry subordinate to an FD entry is written. In such level-01 entries, the REDEFINES clause must not be specified.

Redefinition begins at data-name-2 and ends when a level-number less than or equal to that of data-name-2 is encountered. No entry having a level-number numerically lower than those of data-name-1 and data-name-2 can occur between these entries.

In the following example, A is data-name-2, and B is data-name-1. Redefinition begins with B and includes the two subordinate items B-1 and B-2. Redefinition ends when the level-05 item C is encountered.

| 05 05 | A B | PICTURE REDEFINE | X(6). ES A. | |
|----------|--------|---------------------|----------------|-------|
| | | 10 B-1 | PICTURE | X(2). |
| | | 10 B-2 | PICTURE | 9(4). |
| 05 | С | PICTURE | 99V99. | |

The data description entry for data-name-2 cannot contain a REDEFINES clause or an OCCURS clause. However, data-name-2 can itself be subordinate to an item that contains either clause. If data-name-2 is subordinate to an OCCURS clause, it must not be subscripted or indexed in the REDEFINES clause.

The redefined item, the redefining item, and any items subordinate to them cannot contain an OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause.

When data-name-1 is specified with a level-number other than 01, it must specify a storage area of the same size as data-name-2.

Multiple redefinitions of the same storage area are permitted. The entries giving the new descriptions of the storage area must immediately follow the description of the redefined area without intervening entries that define new character positions. Multiple redefinitions must all use the data-name of the original entry that defined this storage area. For example:

| 05 | А | PICTURE 9999 | |
|----|---|---------------------|--------|
| 05 | В | REDEFINES A PICTURE | 9V999 |
| 05 | С | REDEFINES A PICTURE | 99799. |

Data-name-1 and any subordinate entries must not contain any VALUE clauses. This rule does not apply to condition-name entries.

Data items within an area can be redefined without their lengths being changed. For example:

| 05 | NAME-2. 10 SALARY PICTURE XXX. 10 SO-SEC-NO PICTURE X(9) |
|----|--|
| 05 | 10 MONTH PICTURE XX NAME-1 REDEFINES NAME-2 |
| | 10 WAGE PICTURE XXX. 10 EMP-NO PICTURE X(9). 10 YEAR PICTURE XX. |

Data items can also be rearranged within an area. For example:

05 NAME-2 **10 SALARY PICTURE XXX** 10 SO-SEC-NO PICTURE X(9). 10 MONTH PICTURE XX. 05 NAME-1 REDEFINES NAME-2. 10 EMP-NO PICTURE X(6) 10 WAGE PICTURE 9997999 YEAR PICTURE XX. 10

When an area is redefined, all descriptions of the area are always in effect; that is, redefinition does not cause any data to be erased and does not supersede the previous description. Thus, if B REDEFINES A has been specified, either of the two procedural statements MOVE X TO B and MOVE Y TO A could be executed at any point in the program.

In the first case, the area described as B would assume the value of X. In the second case, the same physical area (described now as A) would assume the value of Y. If the second statement is executed immediately after the first, the value of Y replaces the value of X in the one storage area.

The USAGE clause of a redefining data item need not be the same as that of a redefined item. This does not, however, cause any change in existing data. For example:

- B PICTURE 99 USAGE DISPLAY VALUE 8. REDEFINES B PICTURE S99 USAGE COMPUTATIONAL-4 05 C
- 05 A PICTURE S99 USAGE COMPUTATIONAL-4.

The bit configuration of the DISPLAY value 8 is 1111 0000 1111 1000. Redefining B does not change the bit configuration of the data in the storage area. Therefore, the two statements, ADD B TO A and ADD C TO A give different results. In the first case, the value 8 is added to A (because B has USAGE DISPLAY). In the second statement, the value -48 is added to A (because C has USAGE COMPUTATIONAL-4), and the bit configuration (truncated to 2 decimal digits) in the storage area has the binary value -48.

Unexpected results can occur when a redefining item is moved to a redefined item (that is, if B REDEFINES C and the statement MOVE B TO C is executed). Unexpected results can also occur when a redefined item is moved to a redefining item (from the previous example, unexpected results occur if the statement MOVE C TO B is executed).

The REDEFINES clause can be specified for an item within the scope of any area being redefined (that is, an item subordinate to a redefined item). For example:

- 05 REGULAR-EMPLOYEE. 10 LOCATION PICTURE A(8). 10 GRADE PICTURE X(4).
 - 10 SEMI-MONTHLY-PAY PICTURE
 - 9999V99 **10 WEEKLY-PAY REDEFINES** SEMI-MONTHLY-PAY PICTURE 999V999
- 05 TEMPORARY-EMPLOYEE REDEFINES
 - REGULAR-EMPLOYEE

 - 10 LOCATION PICTURE A(8) 10 FILLER PICTURE X(6) 10 HOURLY-PAY PICTURE 99V99.

The REDEFINES clause can also be specified for an item subordinate to a redefining item. For example:

- 05 REGULAR-EMPLOYEE. 10 LOCATION PICTURE A(8). 10 GRADE PICTURE X(4)

 - 10 SEMI-MONTHLY-PAY PICTURE 999V999
- **05 TEMPORARY-EMPLOYEE REDEFINES**

 - REGULAR-EMPLOYEE 10 LOCATION PICTURE A(8) 10 FILLER PICTURE X(6) 10 HOURLY-PAY PICTURE 99V99 10 CODE-H REDEFINES HOURLY-PAY PICTURE 9999

USAGE Clause

The USAGE clause specifies the format of a data item in storage. The USAGE clause can be specified for an entry at any level. However, if it is specified at the group level, it applies to each elementary item in the group. The usage of an elementary item cannot contradict the explicit usage of a group to which the elementary item belongs.

The USAGE clause specifies the format in which data is represented in storage. Consideration must be given to how the data is used in the Procedure Division.

Format



When the USAGE clause is not specified at either the group or elementary level, USAGE IS DISPLAY is assumed.
DISPLAY Phrase

The DISPLAY phrase can be explicit or implicit. It specifies that the data item is stored in character form, one character per 8-bit byte. This corresponds to the form in which information is represented for keyboard input or for printed output. USAGE IS DISPLAY is valid for the following types of items:

- Alphabetic
- Alphanumeric
- Alphanumeric edited
- Numeric edited
- Boolean
- Zoned decimal (numeric).

Alphabetic, alphanumeric, alphanumeric edited, numeric edited, and Boolean items are discussed under "PICTURE Clause" later in this chapter.

Zoned Decimal Items: These items are sometimes referred to as external decimal items. Each digit of a number is presented by a single byte. The four high-order bits of each byte are zone bits; the four high-order bits of the low-order byte represent the sign of the item. If the number is positive, these four bits contain a hexadecimal F. If the number is negative, these four bits contain a hexadecimal D. The four low-order bits of each byte contain the value of the digit. When zoned decimal items are used for computations, the compiler performs the necessary conversions. The maximum length of a zoned decimal item is 18 digits.

The PICTURE character-string of a zoned item can contain only 9s, the operational sign symbol S, the assumed decimal point V, and one or more Ps.

Examples of zoned decimal items are shown in Figure 4-4.

Computational Phrases

The term computational refers to the following phrases of the USAGE clause:

• COMPUTATIONAL or COMP (packed decimal)

IBM Extension

- COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMP-3 (packed decimal).
- COMPUTATIONAL-4 or COMP-4 (binary).

End of IBM Extension .

A computational item represents a value to be used in arithmetic operations and must be numeric. If the USAGE of a group item is described with any of these options, it is the elementary items within the group that have this usage. The group itself is considered nonnumeric and cannot be used in numeric operations. The maximum length of a computational item is 18 decimal digits.

The PICTURE of a computational item can contain only:

- 9 (one or more numeric character positions)
- S (one operational sign)
- V (one implied decimal point)
- P (one or more decimal scaling positions).

The COMPUTATIONAL phrase is specified for packed decimal items. Such an item appears in storage as 2 digits per byte, with the sign contained in the 4 rightmost bits of the rightmost byte. A packed decimal item can contain any of the digits 0 through 9 plus a sign. If the PICTURE of a packed decimal item does not contain an S, the sign position is occupied by a bit configuration that is interpreted as positive.

IBM Extension

The COMPUTATIONAL-3 phrase is specified for packed decimal items and is considered by the compiler to be equivalent to the COMPUTATIONAL phrase.

The COMPUTATIONAL-4 phrase is specified for binary data items. Such items have decimal equivalents consisting of the decimal digits 0 through 9, plus a sign.

The amount of storage occupied by a binary data item depends on the number of decimal digits defined in its PICTURE clause:

| Digits in PICTURE Clause | Storage Occupied |
|-----------------------------|---------------------|
| 1 through 4 | 2 bytes |
| 5 through 9 | 4 bytes |
| 10 through 18 | 8 bytes |

The leftmost bit of the storage area is the operational sign.

End of IBM Extension _____

Examples of packed decimal and binary items are shown in Figure 4-5.

INDEX Phrase

The USAGE IS INDEX clause specifies that the data item named has an indexed format and, therefore, is an index data item. The index data item is an elementary item that can be used to save index-name values for future reference.

The USAGE IS INDEX clause is described in detail under "TABLE HANDLING" in Chapter 6.

| ltem | Description | Value | Internal Representation* |
|---------|--|--------|--------------------------|
| Zoned | PIC S9999 DISPLAY | +1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| Decimal | | -1234 | F1 F2 F3 D4 |
| | | 1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | PIC 9999 DISPLAY | +1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | -1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | 1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | PIC S9999 DISPLAY SIGN LEADING | +1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | -1234 | D1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | 1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | PIC S9999 DISPLAY SIGN TRAILING SEPARATE | +1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 4E |
| | | -1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 60 |
| | | 1234 | F1 F2 F3 F4 4E |
| | PIC S9999 DISPLAY SIGN LEADING SEPARATE | +1234 | 4E F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | -1234 | 60 F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| | | 1234 | 4E F1 F2 F3 F4 |
| Packed | PIC S9999 (COMP) | +1234 | 01 23 4F |
| Decimal | (COMP-3) | - 1234 | 01 23 4D |
| | РІС 9999 (СОМР) | +1234 | 01 23 4F |
| | (COMP-3) | -1234 | 01 23 4F |
| Binary | PIC S9999 COMP-4 | +1234 | 04 D2 |
| | - | -1234 | FB 2E |
| | PIC 9999 COMP-4 | +1234 | 04 D2 |
| | | -1234 | 04 D2 |

*The internal representation of each byte is shown as two hex digits. The bit configuration for each digit is as follows:

| Hex Digit | Bit Configuration | Hex Digit | Bit Configuration |
|-----------|-------------------|-----------|-------------------|
| 0 | 0000 | 8 | 1000 |
| 1 | 0001 | 9 | 1001 |
| 2 | 0010 | Α | 1010 |
| 3 | 0011 | В | 1011 |
| 4 | 0100 | С | 1100 |
| 5 | 0101 | D | 1101 |
| 6 | 0110 | E | 1110 |
| 7 | 0111 | F | 1111 |

Notes:

1. The leftmost bit of a binary number represents the sign: 0 is positive, 1 is negative.

2. Negative binary numbers are represented in twos complement form.

3. Hex 4E represents the EBCDIC character +. Hex 60 represents the EBCDIC character -.

4. Specification of SIGN TRAILING (without the SEPARATE CHARACTER option) is the equivalent of the standard action of the compiler.

Figure 4-4. Internal Representation of Numeric Items

SIGN Clause

The SIGN clause specifies the position and mode of representation of the operational sign for a numeric entry.

Format

 $\left[\left[\underline{\text{SIGN}} \text{ IS} \right] \left\{ \underline{\text{LEADING}} \right\} \left[\underline{\text{SEPARATE}} \text{ CHARACTER} \right] \right]$

The SIGN clause can be specified only for a signed numeric data description entry (that is, one whose PICTURE character-string contains an S), or for a group item that contains at least one such elementary entry. USAGE IS DISPLAY must be specified either explicitly or implicitly.

Only one SIGN clause can apply to any one data description entry. The SIGN clause is required only when an explicit description of the properties and/or position of the operational sign is necessary.

The SIGN clause defines the position and mode of representation of the operational sign for the numeric data description entry to which it applies, or for each signed numeric data description entry subordinate to the group to which it applies.

If the SEPARATE CHARACTER phrase is not specified, then:

- The operational sign is presumed to be associated with the leading or trailing digit position (whichever is specified) of the elementary numeric data item.
- The character S in the PICTURE character-string is not counted in determining the size of the item (in terms of standard data format characters).

If the SEPARATE CHARACTER phrase is specified, then:

- The operational sign is presumed to be the leading or trailing character position (whichever is specified) of the elementary numeric data item. This character position is not a digit position.
- The character S in the PICTURE character string is counted in determining the size of the data item (in terms of standard data format characters).
- + is the character used for the positive operational sign.
- - is the character used for the negative operational sign.

Every numeric data description entry whose PICTURE contains the symbol S is a signed numeric data description entry. If the SIGN clause is also

specified for such an entry and conversion is necessary for computations or comparisons, the conversion takes place automatically.

If no SIGN clause is specified for a signed numeric data description entry, the position and mode of representation for the operational sign is determined as explained in the USAGE clause description.

OCCURS Clause

The OCCURS clause specifies tables whose elements can be referred to by indexing or subscripting. This clause is described under "Data Division – Table Handling" in Chapter 6.

INDICATOR Clause

The INDICATOR clause is discussed under "Data Description Entry-Boolean Data" in Chapter 7.

SYNCHRONIZED Clause

The SYNCHRONIZED clause specifies the alignment of an elementary item on a proper boundary in storage.

The SYNCHRONIZED clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation for all items.

Format



JUSTIFIED Clause

The JUSTIFIED clause overrides standard positioning rules for a receiving item of the alphabetic or alphanumeric categories.

Format

$$\left\{\frac{JUSTIFIED}{JUST}\right\}RIGHT$$

The JUSTIFIED clause can be specified only at the elementary level. JUST is an abbreviation for JUSTIFIED and has the same meaning.

The JUSTIFIED clause must not be specified for a numeric item or for any item for which editing is specified. The JUSTIFIED clause must not be specified with level-66 (RENAMES) or level-88 (condition-name) entries.

| IBM Extension |
|---------------|
|---------------|

The JUSTIFIED clause can be specified for an alphanumeric edited item.

_____ End of IBM Extension .

When the JUSTIFIED clause is specified for a receiving item, the data is aligned at the rightmost character position in the receiving item, and:

- If the sending item is larger than the receiving item, the leftmost characters are truncated.
- If the sending item is smaller than the receiving item, the unused character positions at the left are filled with spaces.

When the JUSTIFIED clause is omitted, the rules for standard alignment are followed.

The following shows the difference between standard and justified alignment when the receiving field has a length of 5 character positions:

| Alignment | Sending Field Value | Receiving Field Value | | | | | |
|-----------------|------------------------|--------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Standard | THE | ТНЕ Ѣ Ѣ | | | | | |
| Justified right | THE | ЪЪTHE | | | | | |
| Standard | ТОО Ѣ BIG | ТОО Ѣ В | | | | | |
| Justified right | ТОО Ѣ BIG | ОѢBIG | | | | | |

BLANK WHEN ZERO Clause

The BLANK WHEN ZERO clause specifies that an item is to be filled entirely with spaces when its value is zero. When the data item receives a value of zero through an explicit reference at execution time, it is set to blanks.

Format

BLANK WHEN ZERO

The BLANK WHEN ZERO clause can be specified only for elementary numeric or numeric edited items. When it is specified for a numeric item, the item is considered to be a numeric edited item. If the BLANK WHEN ZERO clause is specified, the item contains nothing but spaces when its value is zero.

The BLANK WHEN ZERO clause must not be specified for level-66 or level-88 items.

The BLANK WHEN ZERO clause and the asterisk (*) suppression symbol must not be specified for the same entry.

VALUE Clause

The VALUE clause specifies the initial contents of a data item, or the value(s) associated with a condition-name. The two formats for the VALUE clause are as follows:

Format 1

VALUE IS literal

Format 2

88 condition-name
$$\left\{ \frac{VALUE}{VALUES} \text{ ARE} \right\}$$
 literal-1 $\left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\}$ literal-2
 $\left[\text{literal-3} \left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\} \text{literal-4} \right] \right] \dots \right]$

Level-number 88 and condition-name are not part of the Format 2 VALUE clause itself, and are included in the format only for clarity. The use of the VALUE clause differs with the Data Division section in which it is specified.

File and Linkage Sections: The VALUE clause can only be used in condition-name entries.

Working-Storage Section: The VALUE clause is used in condition-name entries. It is also used to specify the initial value of any data item; the item assumes the specified value at the beginning of program execution. If the initial value is not explicitly specified, it is unpredictable.

General Considerations

The keywords THRU and THROUGH are equivalent.

The VALUE clause must not be specified for any item whose length is variable; that is, it is a group item that has an OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause subordinate to it.

For group entries, the VALUE clause must not be specified if the entry or an entry subordinate to it contains any of the following clauses: JUSTIFIED, SYNCHRONIZED, or USAGE (other than USAGE DISPLAY).

The VALUE clause must not conflict with other clauses in the data description entry or in the data description of this entry's hierarchy. The following rules apply:

- Wherever a literal is specified, a figurative constant can be substituted.
- If the item is numeric, all VALUE clause literals must be numeric literals. If the literal defines the value of a Working-Storage item, the literal is aligned according to the rules for numeric moves with one additional restriction: the literal must not have a value that requires truncation of nonzero digits. If the literal is signed, the associated PICTURE character-string must contain a sign symbol (S).
- All numeric literals in a VALUE clause of an item must have a value that is within the range of values indicated by the PICTURE clause for that item. For example, for PICTURE 99PPP, the literal must be zero or within the range 1000 through 99000. For PICTURE PPP99, the literal must be within the range .00000 through .00099.
- If the item is an alphabetic, alphanumeric, alphanumeric edited, or numeric edited item, all VALUE clause literals must be nonnumeric literals. The number of characters in the literal must not exceed the size of the item.

IBM Extension

• If the item is Boolean, the VALUE clause literal must be a Boolean literal.

_____ End of IBM Extension ____

- The functions of the editing characters in a PICTURE clause are ignored in determining the initial appearance of the item described. However, editing characters are included in determining the size of the item. Therefore, any editing character must be included in the literal. For example, if the item is defined as PICTURE +999.99 and the value is to be +12.34, then the VALUE clause should be specified as VALUE "+012.34".
- A maximum of 32 767 bytes can be initialized by means of a single VALUE clause.

Format 1 Considerations

This format specifies the initial value of a data item in storage. Initialization is independent of any BLANK WHEN ZERO or JUSTIFIED clause specified.

A Format 1 VALUE clause must not be specified for an entry that contains or is subordinate to an entry that contains a REDEFINES or OCCURS clause.

If the VALUE clause is specified at the group level, the literal must be a nonnumeric literal or a figurative constant. The group area is initialized without consideration for the subordinate entries within this group. In addition, the VALUE clause must not be specified for subordinate entries within this group.

Format 2 Considerations

This format associates a value, values, and/or range(s) of values with a condition-name. Each such condition-name requires a separate level-88 entry.

The VALUE clause is required in a condition-name entry and must be the only clause in the entry. Each condition-name entry is associated with a preceding conditional variable. Thus, every level-88 entry must always be preceded either by the entry for the conditional variable or by another level-88 entry when several condition-names apply to one conditional variable. Such level-88 entries implicitly have the PICTURE characteristics of the conditional variable.

Every condition-name can be qualified by the name of its associated conditional variable and by the qualifier(s) of the conditional variable. If the associated conditional variable requires subscripts or indexes, each procedural reference to the condition-name must be subscripted or indexed as required for the conditional variable.

When only literal-1 is specified, the condition-name is associated with a single value.

When literal-1, literal-3 and so on are specified, the condition-name is associated with several single values.

When literal-1 THRU literal-2 is specified, the condition-name is associated with one range of values.

- If the literals are numeric, literal-1 must be less than literal-2.
- If the literals are nonnumeric, literal-1 must appear before literal-2 in the program collating sequence.

When literal-1 THRU literal-2, literal-3 THRU literal-4, and so on are specified, the condition-name is associated with more than one range of values.

• If the literals are numeric, literal-1 must be less than literal-2, literal-3 must be less than literal-4, and so on.

• If the literals are nonnumeric, literal-1 must appear before literal-2 in the program collating sequence, literal-3 must appear before literal-4 in the program collating sequence, and so on.

One or more single values and one or more ranges of values can be specified in a single Format 2 VALUE clause.

The type of literal in a condition-name entry must be consistent with the data type of the conditional variable. In the following example, CITY-COUNTY-INFO, COUNTY-NO, and CITY are conditional variables; the associated condition-names immediately follow the level-number 88. The PICTURE associated with COUNTY-NO limits the condition-name value to a 2-digit numeric literal. The PICTURE associated with CITY limits the condition-name value to a 3-character nonnumeric literal. Any values for the condition-names associated with CITY-COUNTY-INFO cannot exceed 5 characters, and the literal (because this is a group item) must be nonnumeric:



The following example shows the use of the THRU phrase. In this example, the number of miles a person drives to work each day is categorized.

05 MILEAGE PIC 9(2)V9. 88 LOW VALUE 0 THRU 09.9. 88 MED VALUE 10.0 THRU 19.9. 88 HIGH VALUE 20.0 THRU 99.9.

Condition-names are used procedurally in condition-name conditions, and are described under "Conditional Expressions" in Chapter 5.

PICTURE Clause

The PICTURE clause specifies the general characteristics and editing requirements of an elementary item.

Format

 $\left[\left\{\frac{\text{PICTURE}}{\text{PIC}}\right\} \text{IS character-string}\right]$

The PICTURE clause must be specified for every elementary item except an indexed data item. The PICTURE clause can be specified only at the elementary level. PIC is an abbreviation for PICTURE and has the same meaning.

The character-string is made up of certain COBOL characters used as symbols. The allowable combinations determine the category of the data item. The character-string can contain a maximum of 30 characters.

Symbols Used in the PICTURE Clause

The functions of each PICTURE clause symbol are defined in the following list. Any punctuation character appearing within the PICTURE character-string is not considered a punctuation character, but rather as a PICTURE character-string symbol.

- A Each A in the character-string represents a character position that can contain only a letter of the alphabet or a space.
- B Each B in the character-string represents a character position into which the space character will be inserted.
- P The P indicates an assumed decimal scaling position, and is used to specify the location of an assumed decimal point when the point is not within the number that appears in the data item. The scaling position character P is not counted in the size of the data item. Scaling position characters are counted in determining the maximum number of digit positions (18) in numeric edited items or in items that appear as arithmetic operands. In any operation converting data from one form of internal representation to another, if the item being converted is described with the PICTURE symbol P, each digit position described by a P is considered to contain the value zero, and the size of the item is considered to include these zero digit positions.

For example, PICTURE PPP99 DISPLAY defines a 2-character item whose value is zero or ranges from .00001 through .00099. PICTURE 99PPP DISPLAY defines a 2-character item whose value is zero or ranges from 1000 through 99000.

The scaling position character P can appear only to the left or right of the other characters in the string as a continuous string of Ps within a PICTURE description. The sign character S and the assumed decimal point V are the only characters which can appear to the left of a leftmost string of Ps. Because the scaling position character P implies an assumed decimal point (to the left of the Ps if the Ps are leftmost PICTURE characters; to the right of the Ps if the Ps are rightmost PICTURE characters), the assumed decimal point symbol V is redundant as either the leftmost or rightmost character within such a PICTURE description.

S The symbol S is used in a PICTURE character-string to indicate the presence (but not the representation or, necessarily, the position) of an operational sign. The sign must be written as the leftmost character in the PICTURE string. An operational sign indicates

whether the value of an item involved in an operation is positive or negative. The symbol S is not counted in determining the size of the elementary item, unless an associated SIGN clause specifies the SEPARATE CHARACTER option.

- V The V is used in a character-string to indicate the location of the assumed decimal point and can appear only once in a character-string. The V does not represent a character position and, therefore, is not counted in the size of the elementary item. When the assumed decimal point is to the right of the rightmost symbol in the string, the V should not be included in this PICTURE string.
- X Each X in the character-string represents a character position that can contain any allowable character from the EBCDIC set.
- Z Each Z in the character-string represents a leading numeric character position. When that position contains a zero, the zero is replaced by a space character. Each Z is counted in the size of the item.
- 9 Each 9 in the character-string represents a character position that contains a numeral and is counted in the size of the item.

IBM Extension

1 The character 1 represents a character position that contains a Boolean value of B"1" or B"0". Usage must be explicitly or implicitly defined as DISPLAY.

_____ End of IBM Extension _

- 0 Each zero in the character-string represents a character position into which the numeral zero will be inserted. Each zero is counted in the size of the item.
- / Each slash in the character-string represents a character position into which the slash character will be inserted. Each slash is counted in the size of the item.
 - Each comma in the character-string represents a character position into which a comma will be inserted. This character is counted in the size of the item. The comma insertion character cannot be the last character in the PICTURE character-string.
 - When a period appears in the character-string, it is an editing symbol that represents the decimal point for alignment purposes. In addition, it represents a character position into which a period will be inserted. This character is counted in the size of the item. The period insertion character cannot be the last character in the PICTURE character-string.

Note: For a given program, the functions of the period and comma are exchanged if the clause DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA is stated in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. In this exchange, the rules for the period

apply to the comma, and the rules for the comma apply to the period wherever they appear in a PICTURE clause.

+, -, CR, DB

These symbols are used as editing sign control symbols. Each symbol represents the character position into which the editing sign control symbol will be placed. The symbols are mutually exclusive in one character-string. Each character used in the symbol is counted in determining the size of the data item.

* Each asterisk (check protect symbol) in the character-string represents a leading numeric character position into which an asterisk will be placed when that position contains a zero. Each asterisk is counted in the size of the item.

The asterisk used as the zero suppression symbol and the BLANK WHEN ZERO clause must not appear in the same entry.

'cs' The currency symbol in the character-string represents a character position into which a currency symbol is to be placed. The currency symbol in a character-string is represented either by the symbol \$ or by the single character specified in the CURRENCY SIGN clause in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph of the Environment Division. The currency symbol is counted in the size of the item.

Note: Because the currency symbol can be replaced in the CURRENCY SIGN clause, the term 'cs' is used throughout this book rather than the actual currency symbol (\$).

Figure 4-5 gives the order in which PICTURE clause symbols must be specified.

Character-String Representation: The following symbols can appear more than once in one PICTURE character-string:

A B P X Z 9 0 / , + - * 'cs'

Each time one of these symbols appears in the character-string, it represents an occurrence of that character or set of allowable characters in the data item.

| FS | irst Symbo |) | | Non-Floating Insertion Symbols | | | Floating Insertion Symbols | | | | Other Symbols | | | | | | | 5 | | | | | | | |
|---|---------------|------------------|---|-----------------------------------|---|---|-------------------------------|----------------|-----------|-------------|---------------|--|----------------------------------|--------------------|------------|------|------|---|--------|---|---|----------------|----------------|---|--|
| Second Symbol | | | в | 0 | / | , | | $\{^+_{-}\}^1$ | {+ {+} | {CR (DB} | 'cs' | $\left\{ \substack{Z\\ * \end{array}^{1} \right\}$ | $\left\{ {Z \atop *} \right\}^1$ | ${+ \\ -}^{1}$ | $\{^+\}^1$ | 'cs' | 'cs' | 9 | A X | s | v | P ¹ | P ¹ | 1 | |
| | ĺ | В | x | x | × | x | x | x | | | x | × | x | × | x | × | × | x | x | | x | | × | | |
| | | 0 | x | x | x | x | x | x | | | x | x | x | x | × | x | x | x | x | | x | | × | | |
| | | / | x | × | x | x | x | x | | | x | x | x | x | x | x | x | x | x | | x | | × | | |
| Non-Floatir | | , | x | × | × | x | x | x | | | x | x | x | x | x | x | x | x | | | x | | × | | |
| Insertion | | | x | × | x | x | | x | | | x | x | | x | | x | | x | | | | | | | |
| Symbols | Γ | { + } | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Ī | { + } | x | × | x | × | × | | | | × | x | x | | | × | x | x | | | x | × | x | | |
| | (| CR) DB | x | x | × | × | × | | | | x | * | x | | | × | x | x | | | × | x | x | | |
| | | 'cs' | | | | | | x | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | { Z } | x | x | x | x | | x | | | x | x | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Flooting | - | { Z } | x | x | x | x | x | x | | | x | x | x | | | | | | | | x | | x | | |
| Insertion | ľ | { + } | × | × | × | × | | | | | x | | | x | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Symbols | F | { + } | × | × | x | × | × | | | | × | | | × | × | | | | | | x | | x | | |
| | Ī | 'cs' | x | x | × | x | | × | | | | | | | | x | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Р | x | x | x | x | x | x | | | | | | | | x | x | | | | x | | x | | |
| | | 9 | x | x | x | x | x | x | | | x | x | | x | | x | | x | x | x | x | | x | | |
| Other | | A X | × | × | × | | | | | | | | | | | | | × | × | | | | | | |
| Symbols | ſ | S | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Γ | v | x | x | x | x | | x | | | x | x | | x | | x | | x | | x | | x | | | |
| | ſ | Р | x | x | x | x | | x | | | x | x | | x | | x | | x | | x | | x | | | |
| | ſ | Р | | | | | | x | | | x | | | | | | | | | x | x | | x | | |
| | | 1 | | | | | | | n on | | | | i Done | ctions Indefini | N. K. S. | | | | | | | | | | |
| ¹Non-floating insertion symbols + and -, floating insertion symbols Z, *, +, -, and 'cs', and other symbol P appear twice in the above table. The leftmost column and uppermost row for each symbol represents its use to the left of the decimal point position. The second appearance of the symbol in the table represents its use to the right of the decimal point position. ²\$ is the default value for the currency symbol. This value can be replaced by a character specified in the currency SIGN clause. An X at an intersection indicates that the symbol(s) at the top of the column can, in a given character-string, appear anywhere to the left of the symbol(s) at the left of the row. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Braces ({ }) indicate items that are mutually exclusive. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

At least one of the symbols A, X, Z, 9, or *, or at least two of the symbols +, -, or 'cs' must be present in a PICTURE string.

Figure 4-5. PICTURE Clause Symbol Order

An integer enclosed in parentheses immediately following any of these symbols specifies the number of consecutive occurrences of that symbol. The number of consecutive occurrences cannot exceed 32 767.

For example, the following two PICTURE clause specifications are equivalent:

PICTURE IS \$99999.99CR PICTURE IS \$9(5).99CR

The following five symbols can each appear only once in one PICTURE character-string:

SV. CR DB 1

Data Categories and PICTURE Considerations: The allowable combinations of PICTURE symbols determine the data category of the item. Rules for each category follow.

The following rules apply for alphabetic items:

- The PICTURE character-string can contain only the symbols A and B.
- The contents of the item in standard data format must consist of any of the 26 letters of the alphabet and the space character.
- USAGE DISPLAY must be either specified or implied.
- Any associated VALUE clause must specify a nonnumeric literal.

IBM Extension

Boolean items – the following rules apply:

- The PICTURE character-string can contain only the symbol 1.
- Only one character 1 can be specified.
- The USAGE of an item can only be DISPLAY.
- An associated VALUE clause must specify a Boolean literal (B"1" or B"0") or zero.
- The following clauses cannot be specified for a Boolean item:
 - SIGN clause
 - BLANK WHEN ZERO clause
 - ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY clause.
- The INDICATOR clause can be specified (see "Indicators" in Chapter 7).

_____ End of IBM Extension _

The following rules apply for numeric items:

- The PICTURE character-string can contain only the symbols 9, P, S, and V.
- The number of digit positions must range from 1 through 18.
- The contents of a numeric item must be a combination of the digits 0 through 9. The numeric item can contain an operational sign. If the PICTURE contains an S, the contents of the item are treated as a positive or negative value, depending on the operational sign present in the data. If the PICTURE does not contain an S, the contents of the item are treated as an absolute value.
- If a VALUE clause is specified for an elementary numeric item, the literal must be numeric. If a VALUE clause is specified for a group item consisting of elementary numeric items, the group is considered alphanumeric, and the literal must therefore be nonnumeric.
- The USAGE clause of the item can be DISPLAY or COMPUTATIONAL.

- IBM Extension -

The USAGE can be COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMPUTATIONAL-4.

_____ End of IBM Extension ___

Examples of numeric items are shown in Figure 4-6.

| PICTURE | Valid Range of Values |
|---------|--|
| 9999 | 0 through 9999 |
| S99 | -99 through +99 |
| S999V9 | -999.9 through +999.9 |
| PPP999 | 0 through .000999 |
| S999PPP | -1000 through -999000 and +1000 through +999000 or zero |

Figure 4-6. Examples of Numeric Items

The following rules apply to alphanumeric items:

- The PICTURE character-string must consist of either:
 - The symbol X entirely.
 - Combinations of the symbols A, X, and 9. The item is treated as if the character-string contained only the symbol X. A PICTURE character-string containing all A's or all 9's does not define an alphanumeric item.
- The contents of the item in standard data format may be any allowable characters from the EBCDIC character set.
- USAGE DISPLAY must be either specified or implied.

• Any associated VALUE clause must specify a nonnumeric literal.

The following rules apply to alphanumeric edited items:

• The PICTURE character-string can contain the symbols:

A X 9 B 0 /

- The string must contain at least one of the following combinations:
 - At least one B and at least one X
 - At least one 0 and at least one X
 - At least one X and at least one /
 - At least one A and at least one 0
 - At least one A and at least one /.
- The contents of the item in standard data format can be any allowable character from the EBCDIC character set.
- USAGE DISPLAY must be either specified or implied.
- Any associated VALUE clause must specify a nonnumeric literal. The literal is treated exactly as specified; no editing is performed.
- Alphanumeric edited items are subject to only one type of editing simple insertion using the symbols 0, B, and /.

The following rules apply to numeric edited items:

• The PICTURE character-string can contain the following symbols:

B P V Z 9 0 / , . + - CR DB * 'cs'

The combinations of symbols allowed are determined from the PICTURE clause symbol order allowed (see Figure 4-4), and the editing rules (see the following section). The following additional rules also apply:

- The string must contain at least one of the following symbols:

B / Z O, * + - CR DB 'cs'

- The number of digit positions represented in the character-string must be in the range of 1 through 18 inclusive.
- The total number of character positions in the string (including editing characters) must not exceed 30.
- The contents of those character positions representing digits in standard data format must be one of the digits 0 through 9.
- USAGE DISPLAY must be either specified or implied.
- Any associated VALUE clause must specify a nonnumeric literal. The literal is treated exactly as specified; no editing is performed.

PICTURE Clause Editing

There are two general methods of performing editing in a PICTURE clause: by insertion, or by suppression and replacement.

There are four types of insertion editing: simple insertion, special insertion, fixed insertion, and floating insertion. There are two types of suppression and replacement editing: zero suppression and replacement with asterisks, and zero suppression and replacement with spaces.

The type of editing allowed for an item depends on its data category. The type of editing that is valid for each category is shown in Figure 4-7.

Each type of editing is discussed in detail in the following paragraphs.

Simple Insertion Editing: This type of editing is valid for alphabetic, alphanumeric edited, and numeric edited items. The valid insertion symbols for each category are shown in Figure 4-8.

Each insertion symbol is counted in the size of the item, and represents the position within the item where the equivalent characters will be inserted. Examples of simple insertion editing are shown in Figure 4-9.

| Category | Type of Editing |
|---------------------|------------------|
| Alphabetic | Simple insertion |
| Boolean | None |
| Numeric | None |
| Alphanumeric | None |
| Alphanumeric edited | Simple insertion |
| Numeric edited | All |

Figure 4-7. Valid Editing for Each Data Category

| Category | Valid Insertion Symbols |
|---------------------|-------------------------|
| Alphabetic | В |
| Boolean | None |
| Numeric | None |
| Alphanumeric | None |
| Alphanumeric edited | B 0 / |
| Numeric edited | B0/, |

Figure 4-8. Valid Insertion Symbols for Simple Insertion Editing for Each Data Category

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Result |
|--------------|---------------|---------------|
| X(10)/XX | ALPHANUMER01 | ALPHANUMER/01 |
| X(5)BX(7) | ALPHANUMERIC | ALPHA NUMERIC |
| A(5)BA(5) | ALPHABETIC | ALPHA BETIC |
| 99,B999,B000 | 1234 | 01, 234, 000 |
| 99,999 | 12345 | 12,345 |

Figure 4-9. Examples of Simple Insertion Editing

Special Insertion Editing: This type of editing is valid only for numeric edited items.

The period is the special insertion symbol; it also represents the actual decimal point for alignment purposes.

The period insertion symbol is counted in the size of the item, and represents the position within the item where the actual decimal point will be inserted.

The actual decimal point and the assumed decimal point (the symbol V) must not both be specified in one PICTURE character-string.

Examples of special insertion editing are shown in Figure 4-10.

Fixed Insertion Editing: This type of editing is valid only for numeric edited items. The following insertion symbols are used:

'cs' (currency symbol)

+ - CR DB (editing sign control symbols).

- In fixed insertion editing, only one currency symbol and one editing sign control symbol can be specified in one PICTURE character-string.
- Unless it is preceded by a + or symbol, the currency symbol must be the leftmost character position in the character-string.
- When either + or is used as a symbol, it must represent either the leftmost or rightmost character position in the character-string.

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Results |
|---------|---------------|-----------------------|
| 999.99 | 1.234 | 001.23 |
| 999.99 | 12 34 | 012.34 |
| 999.99 | 123.45 | 123.45 |
| 999.99 | 1234.5 | 234.50 |

Figure 4-10. Examples of Special Insertion Editing

• When CR or DB is used as a symbol, it must represent the rightmost two character positions in the character-string.

• Editing sign control symbols produce results depending on the value of the data item as shown in Figure 4-11.

| Editing Symbol in PICTURE Character String | Resulting Data Item Positive or Zero | Resulting Data Item Negative | | | | |
|--|--|------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| + | + | - | | | | |
| - | space | - | | | | |
| CR | 2 spaces | CR | | | | |
| DB | 2 spaces | DB | | | | |

Examples of fixed insertion editing are shown in Figure 4-12.

| Figure 4-11 | . Editing | Sign | Control | Results |
|-------------|-----------|------|---------|---------|
|-------------|-----------|------|---------|---------|

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Result |
|-------------|---------------|---------------|
| 999.99+ | +6555.556 | 555.55+ |
| +9999.99 | -6555.555 | -6555.55 |
| 9999.99 | +1234.56 | 1234.56 |
| \$999.99 | -123.45 | \$123.45 |
| -\$999.99 | -123.456 | -\$123.45 |
| \$9999.99CR | +123.45 | \$0123.45 |
| \$9999,99DB | -123.45 | \$0123.45DB |

Figure 4-12. Examples of Fixed Insertion Editing

Floating Insertion Editing: This type of editing is valid only for numeric edited items. The following symbols are used:

'cs' + -

Within one PICTURE character-string, these symbols are mutually exclusive as floating insertion characters.

Floating insertion editing is specified by using a string of at least two of the allowable floating insertion symbols to represent leftmost character positions in which these characters can be inserted.

The leftmost floating insertion symbol in the character-string represents the leftmost limit at which this character can appear in the data item. The rightmost floating insertion symbol represents the rightmost limit at which this character can appear.

The second leftmost floating insertion symbol in the character-string represents the leftmost limit at which numeric data can appear within the data item. Nonzero numeric data can replace all characters at or to the right of this limit.

Any simple insertion symbols (B 0 / .) within or to the immediate right of the string of floating insertion symbols are considered part of the floating character-string.

In a PICTURE character-string there are two methods to represent floating insertion editing and to perform editing:

- Any or all leading numeric character positions to the left of the decimal point are represented by the floating insertion symbol. When editing is performed, a single floating insertion character is placed to the immediate left of the first nonzero digit in the data or of the decimal point, whichever is farther left. The character positions to the left of the inserted character are filled with spaces.
- All the numeric character positions are represented by the floating insertion symbol. When editing is performed, then:
 - If the value of the data is zero, the entire data item will contain spaces.
 - If the value of the data is nonzero, the result is the same as in method 1.

To avoid truncation, the minimum size of the PICTURE character-string must be the sum of:

- The number of character positions in the sending item
- The number of nonfloating insertion symbols in the receiving item
- One character for the floating insertion symbol.

Examples of floating insertion editing are shown in Figure 4-13.

Zero Suppression and Replacement Editing: This type of editing is valid only for numeric edited items.

The symbols Z and * are used for zero suppression. These symbols are mutually exclusive in the PICTURE clause.

The following symbols are mutually exclusive as floating replacement symbols in one PICTURE character-string:

Z * + - 'cs'

Zero suppression editing is specified by using a string of one or more of the allowable symbols to represent leftmost character positions in which zero suppression and replacement editing can be performed.

Any simple insertion symbols $(B\ 0\ /\)$, within or to the immediate right of the string of floating editing symbols are considered part of the string.

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Result |
|-------------------------|---------------|------------------|
| \$\$\$\$.99 | . 123 | \$.12 |
| \$\$\$9.99 | . 12 | \$0.12 |
| \$\$,\$\$\$,999.99 | -1234.56 | \$1,234.56 |
| ++,+++,999.99 | -123456.789 | -123,456.78 |
| \$\$,\$\$\$,\$\$\$.99CR | -1234567 | \$1,234,567.00CR |
| ++,+++,+++,+++ | 0000.00 | |

Figure 4-13. Examples of Floating Insertion Editing

In a PICTURE character-string, there are two ways to represent zero suppression and perform editing:

- Any or all of the leading numeric character positions to the left of the decimal point are represented by suppression symbols. When editing is performed, any leading zero in the data that appears in the same character position as a suppression symbol is replaced by the replacement character. Suppression stops at the character farthest left that:
 - Does not correspond to a suppression symbol.
 - Contains nonzero data.
 - Is the decimal point.
- All the numeric character positions in the PICTURE character-string are represented by the suppression symbols. When editing is performed and the value of the data is nonzero, the result is the same as in the preceding rule. The following rules apply if the value of the data is zero:
 - If Z has been specified, the entire data item contains spaces.
 - If * has been specified, the entire data item, except the actual decimal point, contains asterisks.

The asterisk as a suppression symbol and the BLANK WHEN ZERO clause must not be specified for the same entry.

Examples of zero suppression and replacement editing are shown in Figure 4-14.

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Result |
|---------|---------------|---------------|
| **** ** | 0000.00 | **** ** |
| ZZZZ.ZZ | 0000.00 | |
| ZZZZ.99 | 0000.00 | . 00 |
| ****.99 | 0000.00 | ****.00 |

Figure 4-14 (Part 1 of 2). Examples of Zero Suppression and Replacement Editing

| PICTURE | Value of Data | Edited Result |
|--------------------|---------------|--------------------|
| ZZ99.99 | 0000.00 | 00 00 |
| Z,ZZZ.ZZ+ | +123.456 | 123.45+ |
| *,***.**+ | -123.45 | **123.45 |
| **,***,*** | +12345678.9 | 12,345,678.90+ |
| \$Z,ZZZ,ZZZ.ZZCR | +12345.67 | \$ 12,345.67 |
| \$B*,***,*** **BDB | -12345.67 | \$ ***12,345.67 DB |

Figure 4-14 (Part 2 of 2). Examples of Zero Suppression and Replacement Editing

RENAMES Clause

The RENAMES clause specifies alternative, possibly overlapping, groupings of elementary data items. This clause allows a single data-item to rename a group of data items within a record.

Format

66 data-name-1 RENAMES data-name-2
$$\left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\}$$
 data-name-3

Note: Level-number 66 and data-name-1 are not part of the RENAMES clause itself, and are included in the format only for clarity.

One or more RENAMES entries can be written for a logical record. All RENAMES entries associated with one logical record must immediately follow that record's last data description entry.

Data-name-1 identifies an alternative grouping of data items. It cannot be used as a qualifier; it can be qualified only by the names of FD or SD entries or level-01 entries.

A level-66 entry cannot rename a level-01, level-77, level-88, or another level-66 entry.

Data-name-2 or data-name-3 identifies the original grouping of elementary data items; that is, they must name elementary or group items within the associated level-01 entry and must not be the same data-name. Both data-names may be qualified.

The OCCURS clause must not be specified in the data entries for data-name-2 and data-name-3, or for any group entry to which they are subordinate. In addition, the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause must not be specified for any item occupying storage between data-name-2 and data-name-3.

When data-name-2 is specified, and data-name-3 is not specified, data-name-1 is defined with the same attributes as data-name-2.

When both aata-name-2 and data-name-3 are specified, the following occurs:

- If data-name-2 is an elementary item, data-name-1 is defined as a group item starting with data-name-2 and ending with data-name-3, or the last elementary item in data-name-3, if it is a group item.
- If data-name-2 is a group item, data-name-1 is defined as a group item starting with the first elementary item in data-name-2, and ending with data-name-3, or the last elementary item in data-name-3, if it is a group item.

The keywords THRU and THROUGH are equivalent.

The leftmost character in data-name-3 must not precede that in data-name-2; the rightmost character in data-name-3 must follow that in data-name-2. This means that data-name-3 cannot be subordinate to data-name-2.

Valid and invalid specifications of the RENAMES clause are given in Figure 4-15.

Example 1 (Valid)

- 01 RECORD-I.
 - 05 DN-1....
 - 05 DN-2....
 - 05 DN-3....
 - 05 DN-4....
- 66 DN-6 RENAMES DN-1 THROUGH DN-3.

Example 2 (Valid)

- 01 RECORD-II.
 - 05 DN-1.
 - 10 DN-2....
 - 10 DN-2A....
 - 05 DN-1A REDEFINES DN-1.
 - 10 DN-3A....
 - 10 DN-3....
 - 10 DN-3B . . .
 - 05 DN-5...
- 66 DN-6 RENAMES DN-2 THROUGH DN-3.

Example 3 (Invalid)

- 01 RECORD-III.
 - 05 DN-2.
 - 10 DN-3....
 - 10 DN-4...
 - 05 DN-5...
- DN-6 RENAMES DN-2 THROUGH DN-3. DN-6 is indeterminate 66

Example 4 (Invalid)

- 01 RECORD-IV.
 - 05 DN-1.
 - 10 DN-2A....
 - 10 DN-2B....
 - 10 DN-2C REDEFINES DN-2B. 15 DN-2... .
 - 15 DN-2D....
 - 05 DN-3...
- DN-4 RENAMES DN-1 THROUGH DN-2. 66



| RECORD-I | | | | | | | | |
|----------|------|------|------|--|--|--|--|--|
| DN-1 | DN-2 | DN-3 | DN-4 | | | | | |
| ← DN-6 | | | | | | | | |

| ←─────RECORD-II───── ←────DN-1──── | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|------------|-------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| DN-2 | DN-2 DN-2A | | | | | | | |
| | —DN-1A— | | | | | | | |
| DN-3A | DN-3 | DN-3B | | | | | | |
| | 1-6 | | | | | | | |

| ←────RECORD-III | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------|------|------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| ← DN-2 ─ → | | | | | | | | |
| DN-3 | DN-4 | DN-5 | | | | | | |

| ←────RECORD-IV─── | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|------------|----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| DN-1► | | | | | | | | | | |
| DN-2A | DN | DN-2B DI | | | | | | | | |
| | DN-2C | | | | | | | | | |
| | DN-2 DN-2D | | | | | | | | | |

DN-4 is indeterminate

4-58

Chapter 5. Procedure Division

Procedure Division Concepts

The Procedure Division is required in every COBOL source program. The Procedure Division consists of optional Declaratives and procedures that contain the sections and/or paragraphs, sentences, and statements that solve a data processing problem.

Declaratives

The Declarative section provides a method of invoking procedures that are executed when an exceptional condition occurs that is to be tested by the COBOL programmer.

When Declarative sections are specified, they must be grouped at the beginning of the Procedure Division. Declarative sections are preceded by the keyword DECLARATIVES and followed by the keywords END DECLARATIVES.

If Declarative sections are specified, the entire Procedure Division must be divided into sections.

Procedures

A procedure is a paragraph, group of paragraphs, a section, or a group of sections within the Procedure Division. A procedure-name is a user-defined name that identifies a section or a paragraph.

A section consists of a section header followed by zero, one, or more than one successive paragraphs. A section-header is a section-name followed by the keyword SECTION, an optional segment-number, followed by a period and a space. Segment-numbers are explained under "Segmentation Feature" in Chapter 6. A section-name is a user-defined word that identifies a section. A section-name, because it cannot be qualified, must be unique. A section ends immediately before the next section header, at the end of the Procedure Division, or, in the Declaratives portion, at the keywords END DECLARATIVES. A paragraph consists of a paragraph-name followed by a period and a space. Zero, one, or more than one successive sentences are allowed. A *paragraph-name* is a user-defined word that identifies a paragraph. A paragraph-name, because it can be qualified, need not be unique. A paragraph ends immediately before the next paragraph-name or section header, at the end of the Procedure Division, or, in the Declaratives portion, at the keywords END DECLARATIVES. If one paragraph in a program is contained within a section, then all paragraphs must be contained in sections.

A *sentence* consists of one or more statements terminated by a period and a space.

A *statement* is a syntactically valid combination of words (identifiers, data-names, figurative constants, and so on) and symbols (literals, relational-operators, and so on) beginning with a COBOL verb.

A *data-name* is a user-defined word naming a data item described in a data description entry in the Data Division. When *data-name* is used in a general format, it represents a word that cannot be subscripted, indexed, or qualified unless this is specifically permitted by the rules for that format.

An *identifier* consists of the word or words necessary to make unique reference to a data item through qualification, subscripting, or indexing. In any Procedure Division reference except the class test, if the contents of an identifier are not compatible with the class specified through its PICTURE clause, results are unpredictable.

Note: A level-88 (condition-name) entry, because it is not a data item, cannot be an identifier. The associated conditional variable, however, can be an identifier.

Procedure Division Organization

The structure of the Procedure Division is shown in the following formats. Figure 5-1 gives an example.

Format 1



Format 2



Coding Example

| | SE | αι | JE | ٩C | E | UNT. | A | | | | В | | | - | | | | | | | - | | | - | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------|-----|----------|----------|----|---------|------|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|
| (P 1 | 'A(| 3E) 3 | ASE 4 | RI | AL 6 | Ŗ | 1 | | | | 12 | | | | 16 | _ | | | 20 | | | | 24 | - | | _ | 28 | _ | | _ | 32 | _ | | _ |
| 6 | 0 | H | 0 | 1 | O | ľ | P | R | b | c | E | D | U | R | E | | D | 1 | ٧ | 1 | S | 1 | 0 | N | | Γ | Γ | | Γ | | | | | |
| | (| | 0 | 2 | 0 | | D | E | c | ٤ | A | R | A | Т | 1 | ٧ | E | S | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 3 | 0 | | S | E | C | T | i | 0 | N | - | N | | M | E | | S | E | c | T | 1 | 0 | N | , | | | | | | | |
| | (| | 0 | 4 | 0 | | P | | R | | 6 | R | A | 2 | Н | - | N | A | M | E | S | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0 | 5 | C | | | | | | P | R | 0 | 6 | R | A | M | M | 1 | N | 6 | | S | 5 | A | T | E | ۲ | E | N | T | S | | |
| _ | 1 | | 0 | 6 | C | × | Ĺ | | | | Ċ | 0 | M | M | E | N | T | S | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Δ | | 0 | 7 | ٥ | | E | N | D | | D | E | ٢ | L | A | R | A | T | 1 | Y | E | S | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| L | | | 0 | 8 | 0 | | Ś | E | C | Т | 1 | 0 | N | - | N | A | M | E | | Ś | E | c | T | 1 | 0 | N | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | 0 | 9 | 0 | | P | A | R | A | G | R | A | P | H | - | N | A | M | E | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ł | | 1 | 0 | 0 | | Ĺ | | | | P | R | 0 | 6 | R | A | M | M | 1 | N | 6 | | S | T | A | + | E | M | E | N | T | S | , | |
| | | | 1 | 1 | | | i | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | |

Figure 5-1. Coding Example to Show Procedure Division Organization

Categories of Sentences

There are three categories of sentences: conditional sentences, imperative sentences, and compiler-directing sentences.

A conditional sentence is a conditional statement, optionally preceded by an imperative statement, terminated by a period and a space.

An *imperative sentence* is an imperative statement, which can consist of a series of imperative statements, followed by a period and a space.

A compiler-directing sentence is a single compiler-directing statement, followed by a period and a space.

Categories of Statements

Three categories of statements are used in COBOL: conditional statements, imperative statements, and compiler-directing statements.

A conditional statement specifies that the truth value of a condition is to be determined, and that the subsequent action of the object program is dependent on this truth value. Figure 5-2 lists types of COBOL conditional statements.

An *imperative statement* specifies that an unconditional action is to be taken by the object program. An imperative statement can also consist of a series of imperative statements. Figure 5-3 lists types of COBOL imperative statements.

A compiler-directing statement causes the compiler to take a specific action during compilation. Figure 5-4 lists types of COBOL compiler-directing statements.

| Туре | Conditional Statement |
|--------------------------------|---|
| Decision | IF |
| Input/Output | DELETEINVALID KEY READAT END READINVALID KEY REWRITEINVALID KEY STARTINVALID KEY WRITEAT END-OF-PAGE WRITEINVALID KEY |
| Arithmetic | ADD. ON SIZE ERROR COMPUTE. ON SIZE ERROR DIVIDE. ON SIZE ERROR MULTIPLY. ON SIZE ERROR SUBTRACT. ON SIZE ERROR |
| Data Movement | STRINGON OVERFLOW UNSTRINGON OVERFLOW |
| Table Handling | SEARCH |
| Ordering | RETURNAT END |
| Inter-program Communication | CALLON OVERFLOW |
| Procedure Branching | PERFORM. UNTIL |

Figure 5-2. Types of Conditional Statements

- ³ Without the ON OVERFLOW phrase.
- 4 Without the AT END, INVALID KEY, or NO DATA phrase.

¹ Without the SIZE ERROR phrase.

² Without the INVALID KEY phrase.

| Туре | Imperative Statement | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Arithmetic | ADD ¹ COMPUTE ¹ DIVIDE ¹ INSPECT (TALLYING) MULTIPLY ¹ SUBTRACT ¹ | | | | | | | |
| Data Movement | ACCEPT (DATE, DAY, TIME) INSPECT (REPLACING) MOVE STRING ³ UNSTRING ³ | | | | | | | |
| Ending | STOP RUN EXIT PROGRAM | | | | | | | |
| Input/Output | ACCEPT OPEN ACQUIRE READ ⁴ CLOSE REWRITE ² COMMIT ROLLBACK DELETE ² START ² DISPLAY STOP literal DROP WRITE ⁵ | | | | | | | |
| Ordering | MERGE RELEASE SORT | | | | | | | |
| Procedure Branching | ALTER EXIT GO PERFORM ⁶ | | | | | | | |
| Table Handling | SET | | | | | | | |
| Inter-program Communication | CALL ³ CANCEL | | | | | | | |

Figure 5-3. Types of Imperative Statements

| Туре | Compiler-Directing Statement |
|---------------|---------------------------------|
| Library | СОРҮ |
| Declarative | USE |
| Documentation | ENTER |

Figure 5-4. Types of Compiler-Directing Statements

Categories of Expressions

Two categories of expressions are used in COBOL: arithmetic expressions and conditional expressions.

Arithmetic expressions are used as operands of conditional or arithmetic statements.

Conditional expressions cause the object program to select alternative paths of control, depending on the value of a truth test. There are two types

⁵ Without the INVALID KEY or END-OF-PAGE phrase.

⁶ Without the UNTIL phrase.

of conditional expressions: simple conditions and complex conditions. Conditional expressions can be specified in the IF, PERFORM, and SEARCH statements.

Sample Procedure Division Statements

PROCEDURE DIVISION. DECLARATIVES. ERROR-IT SECTION USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT-DATA. ERROR-ROUTINE IF CHECK-IT = "30" ADD 1 TO DECLARATIVE-ERRORS. END DECLARATIVES BEGIN-NON-DECLARATIVES SECTION. 100-BEGIN-IT OPEN INPUT INPUT-DATA OUTPUT REPORT-OUT. 110-READ-IT READ INPUT-DATA RECORD AT END MOVE "Y" TO EOF-SW. IF EOF-SW NOT = "Y" ADD 1 TO RECORDS-IN. PERFORM PROCESS-DATA UNTIL EOF-SW = "Y". PERFORM FINAL-REPORT THRU FINAL-REPORT-EXIT. DISPLAY "TOTAL RECORDS IN = " RECORDS-IN UPON WORK-STATION. DISPLAY "DECLARATIVE ERRORS = " DECLARATIVE-ERRORS UPON WORK-STATION. STOP RUN PROCESS-DATA IF RECORD-ID = "G" ____PERFORM PROCESS-GEN-INFO ELSE ΙF RECORD-CODE = "C"PERFORM PROCESS-SALES-DATA ELSE PERFORM UNKNOWN-RECORD-TYPE.

Arithmetic Expressions

Arithmetic expressions are used as operands of certain conditional and arithmetic statements. An arithmetic expression can consist of any of the following:

- An identifier described as a numeric elementary item
- A numeric literal
- Identifiers and literals, as defined in Items 1 and 2, separated by arithmetic operators
- Two arithmetic expressions, as defined in Items 1, 2, and/or 3, separated by an arithmetic operator
- An arithmetic expression, as defined in Items 1, 2, 3, and/or 4, enclosed in parentheses.

Any arithmetic expression can be preceded by a unary operator.

Identifiers and literals appearing in an arithmetic expression must represent either numeric elementary items or numeric literals on which arithmetic can be performed.

Arithmetic Operators

The five binary arithmetic operators and two unary arithmetic operators shown in Figure 5-5 can be used in arithmetic expressions. The arithmetic operators are represented by specific characters that must be preceded and followed by a space.

Parentheses can be used in arithmetic expressions to specify the order in which elements are to be evaluated. Expressions within parentheses are evaluated first. When expressions are contained within a nest of parentheses, evaluation proceeds from the innermost to the outermost set of parenthetical expressions.

When parentheses are not used, or when parenthesized expressions are at the same level of inclusiveness, the following hierarchical order is implied:

- 1. Unary operator
- 2. Exponentiation
- 3. Multiplication and division
- 4. Addition and subtraction.

| Binary Operator | Meaning |
|--------------------|----------------|
| + | Addition |
| - | Subtraction |
| * | Multiplication |
| / | Division |
| ** | Exponentiation |

| Unary Operator | Meaning |
|----------------|--|
| + | Multiplication by $+1$; retains original sign |
| - | Multiplication by -1; changes sign |

Figure 5-5. Binary and Unary Operators

Parentheses either eliminate ambiguities in logic where consecutive operations appear at the same hierarchical level or modify the normal hierarchical sequence of execution when this is necessary. When the order of consecutive operations at the same hierarchical level is not completely specified by parentheses, the order is from left to right.

Figure 5-6 shows permissible arithmetic symbol pairs. An arithmetic symbol pair is the appearance of two such symbols in sequence.

An arithmetic expression can begin only with a left parenthesis, a unary operator, or a variable (that is, an identifier or literal). An arithmetic expression can end only with a right parenthesis or a variable. An arithmetic expression must contain at least one reference to an identifier or literal. There must be a one-to-one correspondence between left and right parentheses in an arithmetic expression; each left parenthesis is placed to the left of its corresponding right parenthesis.

Programming Notes: The results of exponentiation are truncated after the thirteenth fractional digit. The results of exponentiation when the exponent is noninteger are accurate to seven digits.

| | Second Symbol | | | | | |
|--|--|------------------------|--------------------|---|---|--|
| First Symbol | Variable (identifier or literal) | * / ** + - | Unary + Unary - | (|) | |
| Variable (identifier or literal) | - | р | - | - | р | |
| * / ** + - | р | - | р | р | - | |
| Unary + or Unary - | р | - | - | p | - | |
| (| р | - | р | р | - | |
|) | - | р | - | - | р | |
| p indicates a pe - indicates that | ermissible pairir the pairing is n | ng Not perr | nitted | | | |

Figure 5-6. Valid Arithmetic Symbol Pairs

Conditional Expressions

A conditional expression causes the object program to select alternative paths of control, depending on the truth value of a test. Conditional expressions can be specified in IF, PERFORM, and SEARCH statements. A conditional expression can be specified in simple conditions and in complex conditions. Both simple and complex conditions can be enclosed within any number of paired parentheses; parentheses do not change the category of the condition.

Simple Conditions

There are five simple conditions: class condition, condition-name condition, relation condition, sign condition, and switch-status condition. A simple condition has a truth value of true or false. When a simple condition is enclosed in paired parentheses, its truth value is not changed.

Class Condition

The class condition determines whether a data item is alphabetic or numeric.

Format

The identifier being tested must be described implicitly or explicitly as USAGE DISPLAY. This identifier is determined to be numeric only if the contents consist of any combination of the digits 0 through 9.

If the PICTURE of the identifier being tested does not contain an operational sign, the identifier is determined to be numeric only if the contents are numeric and an operational sign is not present.

If the PICTURE of the identifier being tested does contain an operational sign, the identifier is determined to be numeric only if the item is an elementary item, the contents are numeric, and a valid operational sign is present.

In the EBCDIC collating sequence, valid embedded operational positive signs are hexadecimal F, C, E, and A. Negative signs are hexadecimal D and B. The preferred positive sign is hexadecimal F, and the preferred negative sign is hexadecimal D. For items described with the SIGN IS SEPARATE clause, valid operational signs are + (hex 4E) and - (hex 60).

The NUMERIC test cannot be used with an identifier described either as alphabetic or as a group item that contains one or more signed elementary items. The identifier being tested is determined to be alphabetic only if the contents consist of any combination of the alphabetic characters A through Z and the space.

The ALPHABETIC test cannot be used with an identifier described as numeric.

Figure 5-7 shows valid forms of the class test.
| Type of Identifier | Valid Forms of the Class Test |
|--|--|
| Alphabetic | ALPHABETIC NOT ALPHABETIC |
| Alphanumeric, alphanumeric edited, or numeric edited | ALPHABETIC NOT ALPHABETIC NUMERIC NOT NUMERIC |
| Zoned decimal | NUMERIC NOT NUMERIC |

Figure 5-7. Valid Forms of the Class Test

Condition-Name Condition

A condition-name condition causes a conditional variable to be tested to determine whether its value is equal to any of the values associated with the condition-name (level-88 item).

Format

condition-name

A condition-name is used in conditions as an abbreviation for the relation condition, because the specified condition-name is equal to only one of the values or ranges of values assigned to the specified conditional variable. The result of the test is true if one of the values corresponding to the condition-name equals the current value of the associated conditional variable.

If the condition-name is associated with a range of values or with several ranges of values, the conditional variable is tested to determine whether or not its value falls within the range(s), including the end values. The result of the test is true if one of the values corresponding to the condition-name equals the value of its associated conditional variable.

The following example illustrates the usage of condition-names and conditional variables:

02 GRADE-ID PIC 99 88 PRIMARY-OTHER VALUE 1 THRU 3, 5, 6. 88 PRIMARY-FOUR VALUE 4. 88 JUNIOR-HI VALUE 7 THRU 9. 88 SENIOR-HI VALUE 10 THRU 12.

GRADE-ID is the conditional variable, PRIMARY-OTHER, PRIMARY-FOUR, JUNIOR-HI, and SENIOR-HI are condition-names. For individual records in the file, only one of the values specified in the condition-name entries can be present. To determine the grade level of a specific record, any of the following can be coded:

```
IF PRIMARY-OTHER
(which tests for values 1, 2, 3, 5, 6)
IF PRIMARY-FOUR
(which tests for value 4)
IF JUNIOR-HI
(which tests for values 7, 8, 9)
IF SENIOR-HI
(which tests for values 10, 11, 12)
```

Depending on the evaluation of the condition-name condition, alternative paths of execution are taken by the object program.

Relation Condition

A relation condition causes a comparison between two operands, either of which can be an identifier, a literal, or an arithmetic expression.

Format



Operand-1 is the subject of the relation condition; operand-2 is the object of the relation condition. Operand-1 and operand-2 can each be an identifier, a literal, or an arithmetic expression. The relation condition must contain at least one reference to an identifier. Except when two numeric operands are compared, operand-1 and operand-2 must have the same USAGE.

The relational operator specifies the type of comparison to be made. Figure 5-8 shows relational operators and their meanings. Each relational operator must be preceded and followed by a space.

| Relational Operator | Meaning |
|--|----------------------------------|
| IS [NOT] <u>GREATER</u> THAN IS [NOT] > | Greater than or not greater than |
| IS [NOT] <u>LESS</u> THAN IS [NOT] < | Less than or not less than |
| IS [NOT] EQUAL TO IS [NOT] = | Equal to or not equal to |

Figure 5-8. Relational Operators and Their Meanings

Rules for numeric and nonnumeric comparisons are given in the following paragraphs. If either of the operands is a group item, nonnumeric comparison rules apply. Figure 5-9 summarizes the permissible comparisons.

| | | Second Operand | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----|----------------|----|--------------|-----------|------------|----------|-----|-----|-----|----|----|-----------------|-----|
| First Operand | GR | AL | AN | ANE | NE | FC NNL | ZR NL | ZD | ві | PD | AE | во | IN | IDI |
| Group (GR) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | | | | |
| Alphabetic (AL) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | | | | |
| Alphanumeric (AN) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | | | | |
| Alphanumeric edited (ANE) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | | | | |
| Numeric edited (NE) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | | | | |
| Figurative constants, except ZERO (FC) and nonnumeric literal (NNL) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | NN | | | | | | |
| Figurative constant ZERO (ZR) and numeric literal (NL) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | | | NU | NU | NU | NU | | 101 | |
| Zoned decimal (ZD) | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NN | NU | NU | NU | NU | NU | | 10 ¹ | |
| Binary (BI) | | | | | | | NU | NU | NU | NU | NU | | IO1 | |
| Packed decimal (PD) | | | | | | | NU | NU | NU | NU | NU | | 10 ¹ | |
| Arithmetic expression (AE) | | | | | | | NU | NU | NU | NU | NU | | | |
| Boolean data item (BO) or Boolean literal | | | H | - colize dat | 1612 × 18 | | | | | | | во | | |
| Index-name (IN) | | | | | | entre di s | 101 | 101 | IO1 | IO1 | | | 10 | IV |
| Index data item (IDI) | | | | | | | | | | | | | ı٧ | IV |

NN = Comparison as described for nonnumeric operands.

NU = Comparison as described for numeric operands.

IO=Comparison as described for two index-names (by occurrence number).IV=Comparison as described for index data items (by value).

Blank = Comparison is not allowed.

 1 Valid only if the numeric item is an integer.

| Figure | 5-9. | Permissible | Comparisons | of | Operands |
|--------|------|-------------|---------------------------------------|----|-----------------|
| | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |

Comparison of Numeric Operands: For numeric class operands, algebraic values are compared. The length (number of digits) of the operands is not significant. Zero is considered a unique value, regardless of the sign. Unsigned numeric operands are considered positive; regardless of their USAGE, comparison of numeric operands is permitted.

IBM Extension

Comparison of Boolean Operands: Boolean operands can be used only in the [NOT] EQUAL TO relation condition. Boolean operands cannot be compared to non-Boolean operands. Boolean data items and literals must be one position in length. Two Boolean operands are equal if they both have a value of Boolean 1 or Boolean 0. The Boolean operands are unequal if one has a value of Boolean 1 and the other has a value of Boolean 0.

_ End of IBM Extension .

Comparison of Nonnumeric Operands: A comparison of two nonumeric operands or of one numeric and one nonnumeric operand is made with respect to the program collating sequence in use.

When a nonnumeric and a numeric operand are compared, the following rules apply:

- If the nonnumeric operand is a literal or an elementary data item, the numeric operand is treated as though it were moved to an alphanumeric elementary data item of the same size, and the contents of this alphanumeric data item were then compared with the nonnumeric operand.
- If the nonnumeric operand is a group item, the numeric operand is treated as though it were moved to a group item of the same size, and the contents of this group item were then compared with the nonnumeric operand. For further discussion of the rules for alphanumeric and group move operations, see the "MOVE Statement" later in this chapter.

Numeric and nonnumeric operands can be compared only when their USAGE, explicitly or implicitly, is the same. In such comparisons, the numeric operand must be described as an integer literal or data item; noninteger literals and data items must not be compared with nonnumeric operands.

The size of each operand is the total number of characters in that operand; the size affects the result of the comparison. There are two kinds of operands to consider: operands of equal size and operands of unequal size.

Operands of equal size: Characters in corresponding positions of the two operands are compared, beginning with the leftmost character and continuing through the rightmost character.

If all pairs of characters through the last pair test as equal, the operands are considered equal. If a pair of unequal characters is encountered, the characters are tested to determine their relative positions in the collating sequence. The operand containing the character higher in the sequence is considered the greater operand.

Operands of unequal size: If the operands are of unequal size, the comparison is made as though the shorter operand were extended to the right with enough spaces to make the operands equal in size.

Note: Valid comparisons for index-names and index data items are discussed under "Table Handling" in Chapter 6.

Sign Condition

The sign condition determines whether or not the algebraic value of a numeric operand is less than, greater than, or equal to zero.

Format



The operand being tested must be defined as a numeric identifier or as an arithmetic expression that contains at least one reference to an identifier.

The operand is POSITIVE if its value is greater than zero, NEGATIVE if its value is less than zero, and ZERO it its value is equal to zero. An unsigned operand is POSITIVE or ZERO.

When NOT is specified, one algebraic test is executed for the truth value of the sign condition. For example, NOT ZERO is regarded as true when the operand tested is positive or negative in value.

Switch-Status Condition

The switch-status condition determines the on or off status of an UPSI switch.

Format

condition-name

The condition-name must be defined to be associated with the ON or OFF value of a switch in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph.

The switch-status condition tests the value associated with the condition-name. The result of the test is true if the UPSI switch is set to the position corresponding to condition-name.

Complex Conditions

A complex condition is a condition in which one or more logical operators act upon one or more conditions. Complex conditions include:

- Negated simple conditions
- Combined conditions
- Negated combined conditions.

Each logical operator must be preceded and followed by a space. The logical operators and their meanings are shown in Figure 5-10.

The truth value of a complex condition depends on the truth values of the simple conditions and negated simple conditions that make up the complex condition. The logical operators tell the compiler how to combine these individual truth values.

| Logical Operator | Meaning |
|---------------------|---|
| AND | Logical conjunction – the truth value is true when both conditions are true. |
| OR | Logical inclusive $OR - the truth value is true when either or both conditions are true.$ |
| NOT | Logical negation – reversal of truth value (the truth value is true if the condition is false). |

Figure 5-10. Logical Operators and Their Meanings

Negated Simple Conditions

A simple condition is negated through the use of the logical operator NOT.

Format

 \underline{NOT} simple-condition

The simple-condition to be negated can be a class condition, a condition-name condition, a relation condition, a sign condition, or a switch-status condition. The simple-condition cannot be negated if the condition itself contains a NOT.

The negated simple-condition gives the opposite truth value as the simple condition. That is, if the truth value of the simple-condition is true, then the truth value of that same negated simple-condition is false.

Placing a negated simple-condition within parentheses does not change its truth value. For example, the following two statements are equivalent:

NOT A IS EQUAL TO B NOT (A IS EQUAL TO B)

Combined Conditions

Two or more conditions can be logically connected to form a combined condition.

Format

condition
$$\left\{ \left\{ \frac{AND}{OR} \right\}$$
 condition $\right\}$. . .

The condition to be combined can be a simple-condition, a negated simple-condition, a combined condition, a negated combined condition (that is, the NOT logical operator followed by a combined condition enclosed in parentheses). Combinations of the preceding conditions are specified according to the rules given in Figure 5-11.

Parentheses are never needed when either AND or OR (but not both) are used exclusively in one combined condition. However, parentheses might be needed to find a final truth value when a combination of AND, OR, and NOT is used. There must a one-to-one correspondence between left and right parentheses with each left parenthesis to the left of its corresponding right parenthesis.

Figure 5-11 summarizes the way in which conditions and logical operators can be combined and parenthesized. Figure 5-12 illustrates the relationships between logical operators and conditions C1 and C2 where C1 and C2 are any conditions as defined above.

Evaluating Conditional Expressions: If parentheses are used, logical evaluation of combined conditions proceeds in the following order:

- 1. Conditions within parentheses are evaluated first.
- 2. Within nested parentheses, evaluation proceeds from the least inclusive condition to the most inclusive condition.

If parentheses are not used (or are not at the same level of inclusiveness), the combined condition is evaluated in the following order:

1. Arithmetic expressions.

| | Permissible Position in Conditional Expressions | | | | | |
|-------------------|---|--|---|-----------|--|--|
| Condition Element | Leftmost | When Not Leftmost, Can Be Immediately Preceded By: | When Not Rightmost, Can Be Immediately Followed By: | Rightmost | | |
| Simple-Condition | Yes | OR NOT AND (| OR AND) | Yes | | |
| OR AND | No | Simple-Condition) | Simple-Condition NOT (| No | | |
| NOT | Yes | OR AND (| Simple-Condition (| No | | |
| (| Yes | OR NOT AND (| Simple-Condition NOT (| Νο | | |
|) | No | Simple-Condition) | OR AND) | Yes | | |

Figure 5-11. Valid Combinations of Conditions, Logical Operators, and Parentheses in a Conditional Expression

| Values for C1 | Values for C2 | C1 AND C2 | C1 OR C2 | NOT (C1 AND C2) | NOT C1 AND C2 | NOT (C1 OR C2) | NOT C1 OR C2 |
|------------------|------------------|--------------|-------------|--------------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| True | True | True | True | False | False | False | True |
| False | True | False | True | True | True | False | True |
| True | False | False | True | True | False | False | False |
| False | False | False | False | True | False | True | True |

Figure 5-12. How Logical Operators Affect the Evaluation of Conditions

(

- 2. Simple-conditions in the following order:
 - a. Relation
 - b. Class
 - c. Condition-name
 - d. Switch-status
 - e. Sign.
- 3. Negated simple-conditions in the same order as item 2.
- 4. Combined conditions, in the following order:
 - a. AND
 - b. OR.
- 5. Negated combined conditions in the following order:
 - a. AND
 - b. OR.
- 6. Consecutive operands at the same evaluation-order level are evaluated from left to right. However, the truth value of a combined condition can sometimes be determined without evaluating the truth value of all the component conditions.

The component conditions of a combined condition are evaluated from left to right. If the truth value of one condition is not affected by the evaluation of further elements of the combined condition, these elements are not evaluated. However, the truth value of the condition will always be the same (as if the condition had been evaluated in full), as described earlier in this paragraph.

For example:

NOT A IS GREATER THAN B OR A + B IS EQUAL TO C AND D IS POSITIVE

is evaluated as if parenthesized as follows:

(NOT (A IS GREATER THAN B)) OR (((A+B) IS EQUAL TO C) AND (D IS POSITIVE))

The order of evaluation in this example is as follows:

- 1. (NOT (A IS GREATER THAN B)) is evaluated. If true, the rest of the condition is not evaluated, as the expression is true.
- 2. (A+B) is evaluated, giving some intermediate result, x.
- 3. (x IS EQUAL TO C) is evaluated. If false, the rest of the condition is not evaluated, as the expression is false.
- 4. (D IS POSITIVE) is evaluated, giving the final truth value of the expression.

Abbreviated Combined Relation Conditions

When relation-conditions are written consecutively and no parentheses are used within the consecutive sequence, any relation-condition after the first can be abbreviated by either:

- Omission of the subject
- Omission of the subject and relation operator.

Format



In any consecutive sequence of relation-conditions, both forms of abbreviation can be specified. The abbreviated condition is evaluated as if:

- The last stated subject is the missing subject.
- The last stated relational operator is the missing relational operator.
- The resulting combined condition must comply with the rules for element sequence in combined conditions, as shown in Figure 5-11.
- The word NOT is considered part of the relational operator in the forms NOT GREATER THAN, NOT >, NOT LESS THAN, NOT <, NOT EQUAL TO, and NOT =.
- NOT in any other position is considered a logical operator, and thus results in a negated related-condition.

Figure 5-13 shows examples of abbreviated combined relation-conditions and their nonabbreviated equivalents.

| Abbreviated Combined Relation-Condition | Nonabbreviated Equivalent |
|---|---|
| A = B AND NOT LESS THAN C OR D | ((A = B) AND (A NOT LESS THAN C)) OR (A NOT LESS THAN D) |
| A NOT GREATER THAN B OR C | (A NOT GREATER THAN B) OR (A NOT GREATER THAN C) |
| NOT A = B OR C | (NOT (A = B) OR (A = C)) |
| NOT (A = B OR LESS THAN C) | NOT ((A = B) OR (A LESS THAN C)) |

Figure 5-13 (Part 1 of 2). Abbreviated Combined Relation-Condition Equivalent

| Abbreviated Combined Relation-Condition | Nonabbreviated Equivalent |
|---|--|
| NOT (A NOT = B AND C AND NOT D) | NOT (((A NOT = B) AND (A NOT = C)) AND (NOT (A NOT = D))) |

Figure 5-13 (Part 2 of 2). Abbreviated Combined Relation-Condition Equivalent

Declaratives

The Declaratives section provides a method of invoking procedures that are executed when an exceptional condition occurs that cannot normally be tested by the COBOL programmer. Declarative procedures are provided for the processing of exceptional input/output conditions and debugging procedures.

Format

| PROCEDURE DIVISION USING data-name-1 [, data-name-2]]. |
|---|
| DECLARATIVES. |
| section-name <u>SECTION</u> [segment-number] . USE statement. |
| paragraph-name. [sentence]] } |
| END DECLARATIVES. |

Declarative procedures are written at the beginning of the Procedure Division in a series of Declarative sections. Each such section is preceded by a USE statement that identifies under what conditions the section is used. The series of procedures that follow specify what actions are to be taken when the exceptional condition occurs. Each Declarative section ends with the occurrence of another section-name followed by a USE statement, or with the keywords END DECLARATIVES.

The entire group of Declarative procedures is preceded by the keyword DECLARATIVES, written on the next line after the Procedure Division header; the group is followed by the keywords END DECLARATIVES. The keywords DECLARATIVES and END DECLARATIVES must each begin in Area A and be followed by a period. No other text can appear on the same line.

In the Declaratives portion of the Procedure Division, each section header (with an optional segment number) must be followed by a period and a space, and must be followed by a USE statement followed by a period and a space. No other text can appear on the same line. There are two forms of the USE statement:

- USE AFTER EXCEPTION/ERROR
- USE FOR DEBUGGING.

The USE statement itself is never executed; instead, the USE statement defines the conditions that will cause execution of the immediately following procedural paragraphs, which specify the actions to be taken. After the procedure is executed, control is returned to the routine that activated it.

Within a Declarative procedure, except for the USE statement itself, there must be no reference to any nondeclarative procedure.

Within a Declarative procedure, no statement can be executed that would cause execution of a USE procedure that has been previously invoked and has not yet returned control to the invoking routine.

An exit from a Declarative procedure is effected by executing the last statement in the procedure.

In this chapter, only the USE AFTER EXCEPTION/ERROR Declaratives procedure is described. The USE FOR DEBUGGING Declaratives procedure is described under "Debugging Features" in Chapter 6.

EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative

The EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative specifies procedures for input/output exception or error handling that are to be executed in addition to the standard system procedures.

Format



The words EXCEPTION and ERROR are synonymous and can be used interchangeably.

File-Name Phrase

This phrase is valid for sequential, indexed, and relative files. When this phrase is specified, the procedure is executed only for the file(s) named. No file-name can refer to a sort-merge file. For any given file, only one EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure can be specified. For example, if an input file is specifically named in one EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure, there must not also be an EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure for all INPUT files.

—— IBM Extension

The file-name phrase is also valid for TRANSACTION files.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

INPUT Phrase

This phrase is valid for sequential, indexed, and relative files. When this phrase is specified, the procedure is applicable to all files opened in INPUT mode.

OUTPUT Phrase

This phrase is valid for sequential, indexed, and relative files. When this phrase is specified, the procedure is applicable to all files opened in OUTPUT mode.

I-O Phrase

This phrase is valid for sequential, indexed, and relative files. When this phrase is specified, the procedure is applicable to all files opened in I-O mode.

| | | |
|------|--|--|
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

Γ

- IBM Extension

The I-O phrase is also valid for TRANSACTION files.

End of IBM Extension _____

EXTEND Phrase

This phrase is valid for sequential files only. When this phrase is specified, the procedure is applicable to all files opened in EXTEND mode.

General Considerations

The EXCEPTION/ERROR Declaratives procedure is executed when one of the following conditions exists:

- After completing the standard system input/output error routine
- Upon recognition of an INVALID KEY or AT END condition when an INVALID KEY or AT END option has not been specified in the input/output statement
- When Status Key 1 is not equal to 0 following an I-O operation.

The EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedures are performed when an input/output error occurs during execution of a READ, WRITE, REWRITE, START, DELETE, ACQUIRE, DROP, OPEN, or CLOSE statement. For

example, these procedures are activated when an input/output statement fails on a file that is in the open status.

After execution of the EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure, control is returned to the statement immediately following the input/output statement that caused the error.

Within a Declarative procedure, there must be no reference to any nondeclarative procedure. In the nondeclarative portion of the program, there must be no reference to procedure-names that appear in an EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure, except that PERFORM statements can refer to an EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure or to procedures associated with it.

Within an EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure, no statement can be executed that causes execution of a USE statement that has been previously invoked and has not yet returned control to the invoking routine.

Programming Notes

EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedures can be used to check the status key values whenever an input/output error occurs. Additional information about the file causing the error can be obtained by using data from the mnemonic-names OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK.

Care should be used in specifying EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedures for any file. Prior to successful completion of an initial OPEN for any file, the current Declarative has not yet been established by the object program. Therefore, if any other I-O statement is executed for a file that has never been opened, no Declarative can receive control. However, if this file has been previously opened, the last previously established Declarative procedure receives control.

For example, an OPEN OUTPUT statement establishes a Declarative procedure for this file, and the file is then closed without error. During later processing, if a logic error occurs, control will go to the Declarative procedure established when the file was opened OUTPUT.

If there is no applicable USE procedure in the program when an I-O error occurs, execution can continue. Unless the program is terminated, or some other action taken, other errors may occur, causing undesirable results.

Conditional Statements

A conditional statement specifies that a truth value of a condition is to be determined, and that the subsequent action of the object program depends on this truth value. Figure 5-2 gives a list of the conditional statements.

Only the IF statement is discussed in this section; the other conditional statements are discussed elsewhere in this manual.

IF Statement

The IF statement causes a condition to be evaluated, and provides for alternative actions in the program, depending on that value.

Format



- An imperative statement
- A conditional statement
- An imperative statement followed by a conditional statement.

The scope of an IF statement can be terminated by any of the following:

- A separator period
- If nested, by an ELSE phrase associated with an IF statement at a higher level of nesting.

If the condition tested is true, one of the following actions takes place:

- Statement-1, if specified, is executed. If statement-1 contains a procedure branching statement, control is transferred according to the rules for that statement. If statement-1 does not contain a procedure-branching statement, the ELSE phrase, if specified, is ignored, and control passes to the next executable sentence.
- NEXT SENTENCE, if specified, is executed; that is, the ELSE phrase, if specified, is ignored, and control passes to the next executable sentence.

If the condition tested is false, one of the following actions take place:

• ELSE statement-2, if specified, is executed. If statement-2 contains a procedure-branching statement, control is transferred according to the rules for that statement. If statement-2 does not contain a procedure-branching statement, control is passed to the next executable sentence.

- ELSE NEXT SENTENCE, if specified, is executed. Therefore, statement-1, if specified, is ignored; control passes to the next executable sentence.
- If ELSE phrase is omitted, control passes to the next executable sentence.
- The ELSE NEXT SENTENCE phrase can be omitted if it immediately precedes the period that ends the conditional sentence.

Note: When the ELSE phrase is omitted, all statements following the condition and preceding the period for the sentence are considered to be part of statement-1.

Nested IF Statements

The presence of one or more IF statements within an initial IF statement constitutes a nested IF statement.

Statement-1 and statement-2 in IF statements can consist of one or more imperative statements and/or a conditional statement. If an IF statement appears as statement-1 or as part of statement-1, it is said to be nested. Nesting statements is much like specifying subordinate arithmetic expressions enclosed in parentheses and combined in large arithmetic expressions.

IF statements contained within IF statements must be considered as paired IF and ELSE combinations, proceeding from left to right. Thus, any ELSE encountered must be considered to apply to the immediately preceding IF that has not already paired with an ELSE.

Figure 5-14 shows the possible true/false combinations for the following nested IF statement:

IF condition-1 statement-1-1 IF condition-2 IF condition-3 statement-3-1 ELSE statement-3-2 ELSE statement-2-2 IF condition-4 IF condition-5 statement-5-1 ELSE statement-5-2.



Figure 5-14. Nested IF Statement – True/False Combinations

Programming Notes: Because their logic is often difficult to follow, nested IF statements should, wherever possible, be avoided in a COBOL program. Often a series of simple IF statements can be used in place of the nested IF statement.

For example, the following series of simple IF statements give results equivalent to those achieved using the preceding nested IF statement example:

IF condition-1 NEXT SENTENCE ELSE GO TO PARA-2.

statement-1-1.

IF condition-2 NEXT SENTENCE ELSE GO TO PARA-1.

IF condition-3 statement-3-1 GO TO PARA-2 ELSE statement-3-2 GO TO PARA-2 PARA-1.

statement-2-2.

IF condition-4 NEXT SENTENCE ELSE GO TO PARA-2.

IF condition-5 statement-5-1 ELSE statement-5-2.

PARA-2.

next-executable-statement.

Notice that Figure 5-14 also illustrates the logic flow for the preceding series of simple IF statements.

Input/Output Statements

COBOL input/output statements transfer data to and from files. In COBOL, the unit of data made available to the program is a record, and the COBOL user need be concerned only with such records. Provision is automatically made for such operations as the movement of data into buffers and/or internal storage, validity checking, error correction (when feasible), and unblocking and blocking of records.

The description of the file in the Environment Division and the Data Division governs which input/output statements are allowed in the Procedure Division.

All TRANSACTION file formats of the input/output statements are discussed in Chapter 7.

For information about COBOL file processing in relation to System/38 file processing, see Chapter 9. See Appendix I for a file structure support summary.

Common Input/Output Phrases

There are several phrases and concepts common to input/output statements. These are: status key, INVALID KEY condition, INTO/FROM identifier phrase, and current record pointer. The description of these phrases precedes the descriptions of the individual statements.

Status Key

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, a value is placed in the specified status key (the 2-character data item named in the FILE STATUS clause) during execution of any request on that file; the value indicates the status of that request. The value is placed in the status key before execution of any EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative or INVALID KEY/AT END phrase associated with the request.

The first character of the status key is known as status key 1; the second character is known as status key 2. Combinations of possible values and their meanings are shown in Appendix I.

INVALID KEY Condition

The INVALID KEY condition can occur during execution of a START, READ, WRITE, REWRITE, or DELETE statement. When the INVALID KEY condition is recognized, the actions are taken in the following order:

- 1. If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, a value is placed into the status key to indicate an INVALID KEY condition (see Appendix I).
- 2. If the INVALID KEY phrase is specified in the statement causing the condition, control is transferred to the INVALID KEY imperative-statement. Any EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure specified for this file is not performed.
- 3. If the INVALID KEY phrase is not specified, but an EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative procedure is specified for the file, the EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure is executed.

When an INVALID KEY condition occurs, the input/output statement that caused the condition is unsuccessful. If the INVALID KEY phrase is not specified for a file, an EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure must be specified.

INTO/FROM Identifier Phrase

This phrase is valid for READ, REWRITE, and WRITE statements. The identifier specified must be the name of an entry in the Working-Storage Section, the Linkage Section, or of a record description for another previously opened file. Record-name/file-name and identifier must not refer to the same storage area. In both phrases, an implicit move is executed according to MOVE statement rules without the CORRESPONDING phrase.

The following illustrate the use of the INTO/FROM identifier phrase in an input/output statement:

READ file-name RECORD INTO identifier.

WRITE record-name FROM identifier.

Current Record Pointer

The current record pointer identifies a particular record accessed by a sequential input request. The record identified depends on the statement being executed. The OPEN, READ, RETURN, ROLLBACK, and START statements position the current record pointer as follows:

• The OPEN statement positions the current record pointer to the first record in the file.

IBM Extension

The current record pointer can be positioned to any record in the file by using the POSITION parameter of the Override with Data Base File (OVRDBF) command.

____ End of IBM Extension _____

- For a sequential access READ statement, or a dynamic access READ NEXT statement, the following considerations apply:
 - If an OPEN or START statement positioned the current record pointer, the record identified by the current record pointer is made available. If this record does not exist, the next existing record is made available.
 - If a previous READ statement positioned the current record pointer, the current record pointer is updated to point to the next existing record in the file; that record is then made available.

IBM Extension

- For a dynamic access READ FIRST statement, the current record pointer is positioned to point to the first record in the file; that record is then made available.
- For a dynamic access READ LAST statement, the current record pointer is positioned to point to the last record in the file; that record is then made available.
- For a dynamic access READ PRIOR statement, the current record pointer is positioned to point to the previous existing record in the file; that record is then made available.

____ End of IBM Extension _____

- For the RETURN statement, the following considerations apply:
 - The first RETURN statement positions the current record pointer to the first record in the file, and that record is then made available.
 - If a previous RETURN statement positioned the current record pointer, the current record pointer is updated to point to the next existing record in the file, and the record is then made available.

- For the ROLLBACK statement, the following considerations apply to any file under commitment control:
 - The ROLLBACK statement sets the current record pointer to the pointer's position at the previous commitment boundary. This is important to remember if you are doing sequential processing.
 - The current record pointer is set to the pointer's position at the OPEN if no COMMIT statement has been issued since the file was opened.
 - The current record pointer is undefined for any file under commitment control that is not open.
- The START statement positions the current record pointer to the first record in the file that satisfies the implicit or explicit comparison specified in the START statement.

The setting of the current record pointer is affected only by the OPEN, START, RETURN, READ, and ROLLBACK statements. The concept of the current record pointer has no meaning for files with an access mode of random, for TRANSACTION files, or for output files.

[–] IBM Extension

DB-FORMAT-NAME Special Register

After the execution of an input/output statement, for a FORMATFILE or DATABASE file, the DB-FORMAT-NAME special register is modified according to the following rules:

- After completion of a successful READ, WRITE, REWRITE, START, or DELETE operation, the record format name used in the I-O operation is implicitly moved to the special register.
- After an unsuccessful input/output operation, DB-FORMAT-NAME contains the record format name used in the last successful input/output operation.
- DB-FORMAT-NAME is implicitly defined as PICTURE X(10).

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

ACCEPT Statement

The function of the ACCEPT statement is to obtain low volume data. ACCEPT statement execution causes the transfer of data into the specified identifier. There is no editing or error checking of the incoming data. The formats of the ACCEPT statement are as follows: Format 1

ACCEPT identifier FROM mnemonic-name

Format 2



Format 3-Feedback



Format 4-Local Data Area



IBM Extension

Format 5-TRANSACTION Attributes

See Chapter 7 for information about this format.

_ End of IBM Extension _

Format 1 Considerations

This format is used to transfer data from an input/output device to the identifier. Identifier can be any fixed length group item, or an elementary alphabetic, alphanumeric, or zoned decimal item.

When the FROM phrase is omitted, the ACCEPT statement obtains input from the job input stream for batch jobs, and from the work station for interactive jobs.

The job input stream is CL request data. If there is no data in the input stream, an exception occurs. See "How to Execute a COBOL Program" in Chapter 8 for further information on the placement of input data for a batch job.

When the FROM phrase is specified, mnemonic-name must be associated with an input/output device that is specified in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. The input/output device can be the work station (REQUESTOR) or the system operator's station (CONSOLE or SYSTEM-CONSOLE). If mnemonic-name is REQUESTOR and the job is a batch job, the job input stream is used.

When the input is from the job input stream, the following rules apply:

- An input record size of 80 characters is assumed.
- If the identifier is up to 80 characters in length, the input data must appear as the first character within the input record. Any characters beyond the length of identifier are truncated.
- If the identifier is longer than 80 characters, succeeding input records are read until the storage area of the identifier is filled. If the length of the identifier is not an exact multiple of 80 characters, the last input record is truncated.

When the device is the work station, the input record size is 100. When the device is console, the input record size is 58. The following steps occur:

- 1. A system-generated inquiry message containing the program-name, the text "AWAITING REPLY FOR POSITION(S)", and the beginning and ending positions is automatically sent to the system or work station operator. Previous DISPLAYs can also appear on the ACCEPT screen.
- 2. Execution is suspended.
- 3. The reply is moved into the identifier, and execution is resumed after a reply is made by the system operator to the inquiry in step 1. The reply value is made available to the program as it was entered, in uppercase or lowercase.
- 4. If the identifier is longer than the input record size, then succeeding input records are read (steps 1-3) until the identifier is filled.

If the incoming reply is longer than the identifier, the character positions beyond the length of identifier are truncated.

The source of input data is dependent upon the type of program initiation as follows:

| Method of Program Initiation | Mnemonic-Name Associated with SYSTEM-CONSOLE | Mnemonic-Name Associated with REQUESTOR | Data Source When FROM Phrase Omitted |
|------------------------------------|--|---|--|
| BATCH | System operator's station | Job input stream | Job input stream |
| INTERACTIVE | System operator's station | Work station | Work station |

Format 2 Considerations

This format is used to transfer the system date or system time to the identifier, using the rules for the MOVE statement without the CORRESPONDING phrase. Identifier can be a group item, or an elementary alphanumeric, alphanumeric edited, numeric, or numeric edited item.

IBM Extension

A numeric item can also be defined as COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMPUTATIONAL-4.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

DATE, DAY, and TIME implicitly have USAGE DISPLAY.

DATE has the implicit PICTURE 9(6). The sequence of data elements from left to right is: two digits for year of century, two digits for month of year, two digits for day of month. Thus July 4, 1976 is expressed as 760704.

DAY has the implicit PICTURE 9(5). The sequence of data elements from left to right is: two digits for year of century, three digits for day of year. Thus, July 4, 1976 is expressed as 76186.

TIME has the implicit PICTURE 9(8). The sequence of data elements from left to right is: two digits for hour of day, two digits for minute of hour, two digits for second of minute, two digits for hundredths of second. Thus 12.25 seconds after 2:41 p.m. is expressed as 14411225.

Format 3 Considerations

This format is used to transfer feedback information from an active file to the identifier. The identifier can be any fixed-length group item or an elementary alphabetic, alphanumeric, or zoned decimal item. The file must be defined in an FD entry, and must be open prior to the execution of the ACCEPT statement. If the file is not open, the contents of identifier remain unchanged.

The FROM phrase specifies a mnemonic-name that must be associated with a function-name of OPEN-FEEDBACK or I-O-FEEDBACK in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph.

When the FOR phrase is specified, the feedback information is from the file specified in the phrase. When the FOR phrase is not specified, the feedback information is from the last file opened or used in an input or output operation.

See Appendix I for a discussion of the I-O-FEEDBACK and OPEN-FEEDBACK areas. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for a layout and description of the data areas contained in the feedback areas.

Format 4 Considerations

This format is used to transfer data to identifier-1 from the system-defined local data area created for a job.

This format is only applicable when the mnemonic-name in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph is associated with the function-name LOCAL-DATA.

The move into identifier-1 takes place according to the rules for the MOVE statement for a group move without the CORRESPONDING phrase.

When the FOR phrase is specified, it is syntax checked during compilation but treated as comments during execution. The value of literal or identifier-2 indicates the program device name of the device that is associated with the local data area. There is only one local data area for each job, and all devices in a job access the same local data area. Literal, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier-2, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length.

See "Local Data Area" in Chapter 9 for more information.

Programming Notes

The Format 1 ACCEPT statement is useful for exceptional situations in a program when operator intervention (to supply a given message, code, or exception indicator) is required. The operator must, of course, be supplied with the appropriate messages with which to reply.

The Format 2 ACCEPT statement allows the programmer access to the current date (in two formats) and time of day, as carried by the system. This can be useful in identifying when a particular run of a program was executed. It can also be used to supply the date in headings, footings, and so on.

ACQUIRE Statement

IBM Extension

The ACQUIRE statement acquires a program device for a TRANSACTION file.

See Chapter 7 for the format, and for a discussion of this statement.

_ End of IBM Extension _

CLOSE Statement

The CLOSE statement terminates the processing of volumes and files. REWIND, LOCK, and REMOVAL phrases are specified, as applicable. The formats of the CLOSE statement are as follows:

Format 1



Format 2

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of the TRANSACTION file format.

Each file-name designates a file upon which the CLOSE statement is to operate. These files:

- Need not have the same organization or access mode
- Must not be sort or merge files.

A CLOSE statement without the REEL/UNIT phrase can be successfully executed for a file. In this case, an OPEN statement for the file must be executed before any other input/output statement can refer explicitly or implicitly to the file. This is true for all input/output statements except a SORT/MERGE statement with the USING or GIVING phrases.

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, the associated status key is updated when the CLOSE statement is executed.

If the file is open and the execution of a CLOSE statement is unsuccessful, the EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure for the file, if specified, is executed.

If a CLOSE statement for an open file is not executed before a STOP RUN for this run unit, the file is implicitly closed.

If a CANCEL statement is executed for a program with an open file:

- The status of that file is unpredictable
- The file can be logically damaged

• The file can keep the allocated device longer than necessary.

If the SELECT OPTIONAL clause is specified in the file-control entry for this file and the file is not present at execution time, standard end-of-file processing is not performed.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, device, and volume considerations for the CLOSE statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Access SEQUENTIAL READER PUNCH PRINT PUNCHPRINT PRINTER DISKETTE DISK DATABASE FORMATFILE Device К, Ј CLOSE <u>к, ј</u> K, J K, J K, J K, J К, Ј K, J К, J K, J, E K, J, E CLOSE WITH K, J, E K, J, E K, J, E K, J, E K, J, E K, J, E K, J, E LOCK ____ _ ____ ____ ____ -REEL/UNIT -----REMOVAL

Sequential Organization

Sequential Organization

| | Access SEQUENTIAL | | UENTIAL | | |
|-----------------------------------|-------------------|----------------|---------------|--|--|
| | Device | TAPEFILE | | | |
| | Volume | Single | Multi | | |
| CLOSE | | K, J, G | K, J, G, A | | |
| CLOSE WITH LOCK | | K, J, G, E_ | K, J, G, A, E | | |
| CLOSE NO REWIND | | K, J, B | K, J, B, A | | |
| CLOSE REEL/UNIT | | с | K, F, G | | |
| CLOSE REEL/UNIT | | С | K, F, D, G | | |
| CLOSE REEL/UNIT WITH NO REWIND | | с | K, F, B | | |

Indexed Organization

| | Access | | Any |
|------------|--------|-------|----------|
| | Device | DISK | DATABASE |
| CLOSE | | К, Ј | К, Ј |
| CLOSE WITH | | K, J, | K, J, E |
| REEL/UNIT | | | |
| REMOVAL | | — | |
| NO REWIND | | | — |

NO REWIND

Relative Organization

| | Access | | Any |
|------------|--------|------------|----------|
| | Device | DISK | DATABASE |
| CLOSE | | К, Ј | K, J |
| CLOSE WITH | | K, J, E | K, J, E |
| REEL/UNIT | | | |
| REMOVAL | | — | |
| NO REWIND | | | |

Letter Code Meaning

- An invalid combination.
- A No effect on any previous volumes. Any additional volumes are not processed.
- B The current volume is left in its present position. The reel is not rewound.

IBM Extension

The system always rewinds and unloads the tape when REEL/UNIT is specified on the CLOSE statement.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

- C Optional, but only syntax-checked (performs no function at execution time).
- D The current volume is rewound and unloaded. The system is notified that the volume is logically removed from this run unit. However, the volume can be accessed again, after execution of a CLOSE statement without the REEL/UNIT phrase and an OPEN statement for this file.
- E COBOL ensures that this file cannot be reopened during this execution of the program.
- F Close volume procedures. The labels are handled as follows:

| | Label Records | | |
|--------------|---------------|---------|--|
| Mode of File | Standard | Omitted | |
| INPUT | F01_ | F02 | |
| OUTPUT | F03 | F04 | |
| 1-0 | F01 | F02 | |

- F01 The current volume is positioned to read the labels. If this is the last volume for the file, the next executed READ statement receives the AT END condition. If this is not the last volume, the following actions are taken:
 - 1. The current volume is unloaded
 - 2. The beginning standard labels on the next volume are read
 - 3. The next executed READ statement gets the first record on the newly mounted volume.
- F02 The current volume is unloaded. If all of the reels as specified on the REELS parameter of the Create Tape File (CRTTAPF) or Override with Tape File (OVRTAPF) CL command have been processed, the next executed READ statement receives the AT END condition. If there are more reels, the next volume is mounted, and the next executed READ statement gets the first record on the newly mounted volume.
- F03 The standard end-of-volume labels are written. The next volume is mounted. The standard beginning labels are written on the new volume. The next executed WRITE statement places the next logical record on the newly mounted volume.
- F04 The system end-of-volume procedures for nonlabeled tapes are executed. The next volume is mounted. The system beginning of volume procedures for nonlabeled tapes are executed. The next executed WRITE statement places the next logical record on the newly mounted volume.
- G The current volume is positioned at its beginning.
- J The record area associated with the file-name is no longer available after successful execution of this statement. Unsuccessful execution of this statement leaves availability of the record data area undefined.

Labels are processed as follows:

| | Label Records | | |
|--------------|---------------|---------|--|
| Mode of File | Standard | Omitted | |
| INPUT | J01 | J02 | |
| OUTPUT | J03 | J04 | |
| 1-0 | J01 | J02 | |

- J01 If the file is positioned at its end, the label records are read and verified, and the file is closed. If the file is not at its end, the file is closed.
- J02 The file is closed.
- J03 The standard label records are written, and the file is closed.
- J04 The file is closed without any label processing.
- K May be executed only for an open file.

COMMIT Statement

The COMMIT statement provides a way of synchronizing changes to data base records while preventing other jobs from modifying those records until the COMMIT is performed. The format of the COMMIT statement is:

Format



When the COMMIT statement is executed, all changes made to files under commitment control since the previous commitment boundary are made permanent. A commitment boundary is established by the successful execution of a ROLLBACK or COMMIT statement. If no COMMIT or ROLLBACK has been issued in the current job, a commitment boundary is established by the first OPEN of any file under commitment control in the job. Changes are made to all files under commitment control in the job, not just to files under commitment control in the COBOL program that issues the COMMIT statement.

When a COMMIT is executed, all record locks held by the job since the last commitment boundary for files under commitment control are released and the records become available to other jobs.

The COMMIT statement only affects files under commitment control. If a COMMIT is executed and there are no files opened under commitment

control, the COMMIT statement has no effect and no commitment boundary is established.

The COMMIT statement does *not*:

- Modify the I-O-FEEDBACK area for any file
- Change the current record pointer for any file
- Set a file status value for any file.

For more information on commitment control, see "Commitment Control Considerations" in Chapter 9.

DELETE Statement

The DELETE statement logically removes a record from an indexed or relative file. The format of the DELETE statement is as follows:

Format

| DELETE file-name RECORD | FORMAT IS | (identifier) |
|-------------------------|------------------|--------------|
| <u>INVALID</u> KEY imp | erative-statemer | nt] |

After successful execution of a DELETE statement, the record is logically removed from the file. It is no longer accessible. Execution of the DELETE statement does not affect the contents of the record area associated with file-name.

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the FILE-CONTROL entry, the associated status key is updated when the DELETE statement is executed.

The current record pointer is not affected by the execution of the DELETE statement.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the DELETE statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

| | Device | Any |
|-------------|--------|-------------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL |
| DELETE Verb | | Not allowed |

Relative Organization

| | Device | DISK | | DATABASE | | | |
|----------|--------|------------|---------|----------|------------|---------|---------|
| Access | | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| DELETE V | /erb | A. P. Z | B. P. Z | B. P. Z | A, P, Z | B, P, Z | B, P, Z |
| INVALID | KEY | | 0, U | 0, U | | 0, U | 0, U |
| FORMAT | | | | | | | |

Indexed Organization

| | Device | Device DISK | | DATABASE | | | |
|----------|--------|-------------|---------|------------|---------|---------|---------|
| | Access | | | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | |
| DELETE V | /erb | A, P, Z | D, P, Z | D, P, Z | A, P, Z | D, P, Z | D, P, Z |
| INVALID | KEY | | 0, U | 0, U | | 0, U | 0, U |
| FORMAT | | | | | | S, F | S, F |

Letter Code Meaning

- An invalid combination.

- A The last input/output statement must have been a successfully executed READ statement. When the DELETE statement is executed, the system logically removes the record retrieved by that READ statement.
- B The system logically removes the record identified by the contents of the RELATIVE KEY data item. If the file does not contain such a record, an INVALID KEY condition exists. The space is then available for a new record with the same RELATIVE KEY value.
- D The system logically removes the record identified by the contents of the RECORD KEY data item. If the file does not contain such a record, an INVALID KEY condition exists.

IBM Extension

When EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified for the file, the key field in the record area⁷ for the format specified by the FORMAT

⁷ The key field in the record area is the location in the buffer selected in accordance with a record format or specification in order to build a search argument.

phrase is used to find the record to be deleted. If the FORMAT phrase is not specified, the first format defined in the program for the file is used to find the record to be deleted.

If the DUPLICATES phrase was specified for this file, the last input/output statement executed for this file before execution of the DELETE statement must have been a successfully executed READ statement. The record read by that statement is the record that is deleted.

In this case, the FORMAT phrase is not used to find the record to be deleted. The READ statement is required to ensure that the proper record is deleted when there are duplicates. If a successful read operation did not occur before the delete operation:

- The file status key, if defined, is set to 94.
- The USE AFTER STANDARD EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure, if specified, is executed.
- The delete operation is not executed.
- F The value specified in the FORMAT phrase contains the name of the record format to use for this I-O operation. The system uses this to specify or select which record format must be operated on.

The literal or identifier must be a character-string of 10 characters or less. If an identifier is specified, it must be the name of one of the following:

- A Working-Storage Section entry
- A Linkage Section entry
- A record-description entry for a previously opened file.

A value of all blanks is treated as though the FORMAT phrase were not specified. If the value is not valid for the file, a FILE STATUS of 9K is returned and a USE procedure is invoked, if applicable for the file.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

O Optional.

P Allowed when the file is opened for I-O.

- S Required when processing a file that has multiple record formats and has unique keys.
- U The INVALID KEY phrase must be specified for files in which an applicable USE procedure is not specified.

| | IBM Extension |
|---|---|
| Ζ | The action of this statement can be inhibited at program execution time by the inhibit write (INHWRT) parameter of the Override with Data Base File (OVRDBF) CL command. When this parameter is specified, non-zero file status codes are not set for data dependent errors. Duplicate key and data conversion errors are examples of data dependent errors. |
| | See the CL Reference Manual for more information on this |

command.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

DISPLAY Statement

The DISPLAY statement transfers low-volume data to an output device.

Format 1



IBM Extension

Format 2-Local Data Area



_____ End of IBM Extension _

Format 1 Considerations

The DISPLAY statement transfers the contents of each operand to the output device in the left-to-right order in which the operands are listed. When a DISPLAY statement is executed, the data contained in the sending field is transferred to the output device. The size of the sending field is the total character count of all operands listed. If the total character count is less than the maximum logical record size, the remaining rightmost characters are padded with spaces. If the total character count exceeds the maximum, as many records are written as are needed to display all operands. Any operand being displayed when the end of a record is reached is continued in the next record.

Numeric identifiers not described as USAGE IS DISPLAY are converted automatically to zoned decimal.

IBM Extension

COMPUTATIONAL-4 items are also converted to zoned decimal. Signed noninteger numeric literals are allowed.

____ End of IBM Extension _

Signed values in numeric fields cause the last character to show both the sign and number. For example, if SIGN WITH SEPARATE CHARACTER is not specified and two numeric items have the values -34 and 34, they are displayed as 3M and 34, respectively. If SIGN WITH SEPARATE CHARACTER is specified, a + or a - sign is displayed as either leading or trailing, depending on how the number was specified.

Programming Note: Group items containing packed or binary data (COMP, COMP-3, or COMP-4) should not be displayed on a display station. Such data can contain display station control characters which can cause undesirable and unpredictable results.

A literal can be any figurative constant except the ALL literal. When a figurative constant is specified as one of the operands, only a single occurrence of the figurative constant is displayed.

When the UPON phrase is omitted, the DISPLAY statement sends output to the REQUESTOR. When the UPON phrase is specified, mnemonic-name must be associated in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph with either the work station (REQUESTOR) or the system operator's station (CONSOLE or SYSTEM-CONSOLE).

The record length depends on the device as follows:

Output Maximum Logical Record Size

Job log Work station System console

120 characters 58 characters 58 characters

When a program in a batch job executes a DISPLAY statement without the UPON phrase, or with an UPON phrase associated with the REQUESTOR, the output is sent to the job log in an informational message of severity 80. You can change the severity of this message using the Change Message Description (CHGMSGD) CL command.

For more information, see the CL Reference Manual.

For an interactive job that uses display device files, DISPLAY statements are not normally used. If you do use them, the following considerations apply.

When an interactive job executes a DISPLAY statement, the logical record appears on the screen in the Program Messages display.

The following screen shows a sample Program Messages display.



This display contains messages from the current program execution, as well as messages relating to other activities in the session.

The display device file on the screen when a DISPLAY statement is executed determines whether program execution is suspended as a result of the DISPLAY statement execution.
- If the parameter RSTDSP(*NO) is specified when the display device file is changed or created (CHGDSPF or CRTDSPF command), DISPLAY statement execution suspends program execution, and the Program Messages display appears on the screen. You must press the Enter key to resume program execution. The previous display returns to the screen immediately.
- If the parameter RSTDSP(*YES) is specified when the display device file is changed or created (CHGDSPF or CRTDSPF command), DISPLAY statement execution does not suspend program execution. The Program Messages display appears on the screen, and remains on the screen until one of the following happens:
 - The program executes a nonsubfile READ or WRITE statement for that file. The Program Messages Display then disappears, and the display device file is returned to the screen.
 - The program terminates.

Programming Note: If you want to suspend program execution, code an ACCEPT statement after the DISPLAY statement. Program execution is suspended until you press the Enter key.

To view output records after the program terminates, press the CF7 key from the Command Entry display.

For additional information on interactive processing, see Chapter 7. For additional information on the RSTDSP parameter, see the CHGDSPF and CRTDSPF commands in the *CL Reference Manual*.

When a program started by a work station operator sends a DISPLAY to the system operator's station (separate from the work station), program execution is not suspended.

The location of the output data is dependent upon the type of program initiation as follows:

| Method of Initiation | Mnemonic-Name Associated with SYSTEM-CONSOLE | Mnemonic-Name Associated with REQUESTOR | UPON Phrase Omitted |
|-------------------------|--|---|------------------------|
| ВАТСН | System operator's station | Job log | Job log |
| INTERACTIVE | System operator's station | Work station | Work station |

IBM Extension

Format 2 Considerations

This format is used to transfer data to the system-defined local data area created for a job.

This format is only applicable when the mnemonic-name in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph is associated with the function name LOCAL-DATA.

The DISPLAY statement's literal operands, or the contents of the DISPLAY statement's identifier operands, are written to the system-defined local data area of the job containing the program that issues the DISPLAY. The data is written to the local data area according to the rules of the MOVE statement for a group move, without the CORRESPONDING phrase.

The FOR phrase, when specified, is syntax checked during compilation but is treated as comments during execution. The value of literal-3 or identifier-3 indicates the program device name of the device that is writing data to the local data area. There is only one local data area for each job, and all devices in a job access the same local data area. Literal-3, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less in length, and identifier-3, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item 10 characters or less in length.

For more information, see "Local Data Area" in Chapter 9.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

DROP Statement

IBM Extension

The DROP statement releases a program device that was acquired by a TRANSACTION file.

See Chapter 7 for the format, and for a discussion of this statement.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

OPEN Statement

The OPEN statement initiates file processing. It also checks and/or writes labels. The formats of the OPEN statement are as follows:

Format 1-Sequential Files



Format 2-Indexed and Relative Files



Format 3-TRANSACTION Files

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of this format.

Each file-name designates a file upon which the OPEN statement is to operate. The files specified need not have the same organization or access. Each file-name must be defined in an FD entry in the Data Division, and must not name a sort or merge file. The FD entry must be compatible with the information supplied to the system when the file was defined.

At least one of the phrases (INPUT, OUTPUT, I-O, or EXTEND) must be specified. These phrases can appear in any order. More than one file name can be specified in each phrase.

A file can be opened for INPUT, OUTPUT, I-O, or EXTEND in the same program. After the first OPEN statement is executed for a file, each subsequent OPEN statement execution must be preceded by a successful CLOSE file statement execution without the LOCK phrase.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the OPEN statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

| Access | | SEQUENTIAL | | | | | | | | |
|-----------|---------|------------|-------|------------|---------|-------------------|------------|---------------------|---------------|------------|
| Device | READER | PUNCH | PRINT | PUNCHPRINT | PRINTER | TAPEFILE | DISKETTE | DISK | DATABASE | FORMATFILE |
| OPEN Verb | s | S | S | S | S | L, S | S | s | S, C | S |
| INPUT | R, A, F | | _ | | | O, A, F, L1, N | O, A, F, N | O, A, K, F, N | O, A, K, F, N | O, A, K, F |
| OUTPUT | | R, J | R, J | R, J | R, J | O, J, L2, N | O, J, N | O, G, N | O, G, N | O, G |
| 1-0 | | | — | | | | | О, М, К | 0, М, К | О, М, К |
| NO REWIND | | | | | | 0, D | | | | |
| REVERSED | | | | | | О, В | | | | |
| EXTEND | | | _ | | | O, E, L3 | | 0, E | O, E | |

Relative Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | [| DATABASE | |
|----------|--------|------------|--------|---------|------------|----------|---------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| OPEN Ver | rb | H, S | Н, S | Н, S | H, S, C | н, s, c | н, s, c |
| INPUT | | 0, A, K, N | 0, A | О, А, К | 0, A, K, N | 0, A | О, А, К |
| OUTPUT | | O, G, N | 0, G | O, G | O, G, N | O, G | 0, G |
| 1-0 | | О, М, К | О, М | О, М, К | О, М, К | 0, M | 0, М, К |
| NO REWI | ND | | | | | | |
| REVERSE | D | | | | | | |
| EXTEND | | | | | | | |

Indexed Organization

Ĺ

| | Device | | DISK | | I | DATABASE | |
|------------|--------|-----------------|--------|---------|------------|----------|-----------------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| OPEN Ver | ъ | S | S | s | S, C | S, C | S, C |
| INPUT | | 0, A, K, N | 0, A | O, A, K | 0, A, K, N | 0, A | О, А, К |
| OUTPUT | | 0, <u>G</u> , N | 0, G | 0, G | O, G, N | 0, G | 0, G |
| <u>I-0</u> | | <u>о, м, к</u> | о, м | О, М, К | Ο, Μ, Κ | 0, M | О, М , К |
| NO REWI | ND | | | | | | |
| NO REVE | RSED | | | | | | |
| EXTEND | _ | | | | | | |

| Letter Code | Meaning |
|----------------|--|
| - | An invalid combination. |
| A | The file is opened for input operations. The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file. If no records exist in the file, the current record pointer is set so that execution of the first sequential READ statement results in an AT END condition. |
| В | OPEN statement execution positions the file at its end. Subsequent READ statements make the data records available in reverse order, starting with the last record. REVERSED can only be specified for input files. |
| | IBM Extension |
| С | The file may be be placed under commitment control. |
| | See "Commitment Control Considerations" in Chapter 9 for more information. |
| | End of IBM Extension |
| D | The OPEN statement does not reposition the file. The tape must be positioned at the beginning of the desired file before execution of the OPEN statement. |
| | IBM Extension |
| | The system keeps track of the current position on the tape and automatically positions the tape to the proper place. When processing a multifile tape volume, all CLOSE statements should specify the LEAVE phrase. When the next file on the volume is opened, the system determines which direction the tape should be moved to most efficiently get to the desired file. |
| L | End of IBM Extension |
| Е | The EXTEND phrase permits opening the file for output operations. OPEN EXTEND statement execution prepares the file for the addition of records. These additional records immediately follow the last record in the file. Subsequent WRITE statements add records as if the file had been opened for OUTPUT. The EXTEND phrase can be specified when a file is being created. |
| F | If SELECT OPTIONAL is specified in the file-control entry, OPEN statement execution causes the program to check for the presence or absence of this file at execution time. If the file is absent, the first READ statement for this file causes the AT END condition to |

occur.

| | IBM Extension |
|---|--|
| G | Only a physical file is cleared when opened for OUTPUT. When the file is successfully opened, it contains no records. If an attempt is made to open a logical file for OUTPUT, the file is opened but no records are deleted. The file is treated as though the EXTEND phrase had been specified. To clear a logical file, all the members on which the logical file is based should be cleared. |
| | End of IBM Extension |
| Н | Not allowed for logical file members: |
| | • That are based on more than one physical file. |
| | • That contain select/omit logic. |
| I | Allowed when the file is opened for INPUT. |
| J | The file is opened to allow only output operations. When the file is successfully opened, it contains no records. |
| | IBM Extension |
| K | The first record to be made available to the program can be specified at execution time by using the POSITION parameter on the OVRDBF CL command. See the <i>CL Reference Manual</i> for more information on this command. |
| | End of IBM Extension |
| L | When label records are specified but not present, or when label records are present but not specified, execution of the OPEN statement can have unpredictable results. |
| | L1 The beginning labels are checked. |
| | L2 The labels are checked, then new labels are written. |
| | L3 The following results occur: |
| | • Beginning file labels are processed only if this is a single-volume file. |
| | • Beginning volume labels of the last existing volume are checked. |
| | • The file is positioned to the existing ending file labels. The labels are checked and then deleted. |
| | • Processing continues as if the file were opened as an output file. |

C

- M The file is opened for both input and output operations. The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file. If no records exist in the file, the current record pointer is set so that execution of the first sequential READ statement results in an AT END condition.
- N The compiler generates code to block output records or unblock input records if the conditions listed in "Unblocking Input Records and Blocking Output Records" in Chapter 9 are satisfied.
- O Optional.
- R Required.
- S The successful execution of an OPEN statement determines the availability of the file and results in that file being open. Before successful execution of the OPEN statement for a file, no statement, except a SORT or MERGE statement with the USING or GIVING phrase, that refers explicitly or implicitly to that file can be executed. The successful execution of the OPEN statement makes the associated record area available to the program. It does not obtain or release a data record.

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, the associated status key is updated when the OPEN statement is executed.

If an OPEN statement is issued for a file that is already open, the EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure for this file, if specified, is executed. See Appendix I for the file status codes.

READ Statement

At execution time, the READ statement makes a record available before execution of any statement following the READ statement.

For sequential access, the READ statement makes available the next logical record from a file. For random access, the READ statement makes available a specified record from a file.

The formats for the READ statement are as follows:



READ file-name RECORD



Format 2-Sequential Retrieval Using DYNAMIC Access



- AT END imperative-statement
- Format 3-Random Retrieval



Format 4-TRANSACTION File (Nonsubfile)

Format 5-TRANSACTION File (Subfile)

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of these formats.

File-name must be defined in a Data Division FD entry, and must not name a sort or merge file. If more than one record-description entry is associated with file-name, these records automatically share the same storage area. That is, they are implicitly redefined.

After a READ statement is executed, only those data items within the range of the current record are replaced. Data items stored beyond this range are undefined. Figure 5-15 illustrates this concept.

Figure 5-15. READ Statement with Multiple Record Descriptions

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the READ statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

(

C

| Access | | | | | SE | QUENTIAL | | | | |
|----------------|----------------|-------|-------|------------|---------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------------|-------------------|-------------|
| Device | READER | PUNCH | PRINT | PUNCHPRINT | PRINTER | TAPEFILE | DISKETTE | DISK | DATABASE | FORMATFILE |
| READ Verb | A, I, G1, N | | | | | A, I, G1, N, V | A, I, G1, N, V | A, I, P, G1, N | A, I, P, G1, N | A, I, G1, N |
| NEXT | | | | | | | | _ | | |
| LAST | — | | | | | _ | — | — | | |
| FIRST | | | | | | _ | — | <u> </u> | | |
| PRIOR | | | _ | — | | — | _ | | | |
| INTO | О, В | | | | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| AT END | O, E, D1 | | | | | O, E, D1 | O, E, D1 | O, E, D1 | O, E, D1 | O, E, D1 |
| INVALID KEY | | | _ | | | | | | | _ |
| FORMAT | | | | | | | | — | | |

Relative Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | | DATABASE | |
|---------|--------|-------------|-------------|----------|-------------|-------------|----------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| READ Ve | rb | A, I, P, G2 | A, I, P, G3 | A, I, P | A, I, P, G2 | A, I, P, G3 | A, I, P |
| NEXT | | _ | | O, Z1 | | | 0, Z1 |
| FIRST | | | | | | | |
| LAST | | |) — |) — | — | | - |
| PRIOR | | — | | | | _ | — |
| INTO | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| AT END | | O, E, D2 | | O, E, D2 | 0, E, D2 | | O, E, D2 |
| INVALID | KEY | | 0, U | ο, υ | — | 0, U | ο, υ |
| FORMAT | | | | | | _ | - |

Indexed Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | [| DATABASE | |
|----------|--------|-------------|-------------|----------|-------------|-------------|----------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| READ Ver | rb | A, I, P, G4 | A, I, P, G5 | A, I, P | A, I, P, G4 | A, I, P, G5 | A, I, P |
| NEXT | | _ | | 0, Z2 | | | 0, Z3 |
| FIRST | | | | | 1 | | O, Z3 |
| LAST | | | | | _ | | O, Z3 |
| PRIOR | | | | | — | | 0, Z3 |
| INTO | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| AT END | | O, E, D2 | | O, E, D2 | O, E, D2 | | O, E, D2 |
| INVALID | KEY | | 0, U | ο, υ | | Ο, U | 0, U |
| FORMAT | | | | | O, F, X | 0, F, W | O, F, Y |

| Letter Code | Meaning |
|----------------|---|
| | An invalid combination. |
| A | If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, the associated status key is updated when the READ statement is executed. |
| | Following the unsuccessful execution of any READ statement, the contents of the associated record area and the position of the current record pointer are undefined. |
| В | The INTO identifier phrase makes a READ statement equivalent to: |
| | READ file-name RECORD MOVE record-name TO identifier |
| | After successful execution of the READ statement, the current record becomes available both in the record-name and identifier. |
| | When the INTO identifier phrase is specified, the current record is moved from the input area to the identifier area according to the rules for the MOVE statement without the CORRESPONDING phrase. Any subscripting or indexing associated with identifier is evaluated after the record has been read and immediately before it is transferred to identifier. |
| | The INTO identifier phrase cannot be specified when the file contains records of various sizes, as indicated by their record descriptions. The storage area associated with identifier and the record area associated with the file-name cannot be the same storage area. |
| D1 | When the AT END condition is recognized, a successful CLOSE statement, followed by a successful OPEN statement, must be executed for this file before executing a READ statement. |
| D2 | When the AT END condition is recognized, a sequential access READ statement for this file must not be executed without first executing one of the following: |
| | • A successful CLOSE statement followed by a successful OPEN statement. |

- A successful START statement for this file. ۲
- A successful random access READ statement for this file. ٠
- If no next logical record exists in the file when the READ statement Е is executed, an AT END condition occurs, and READ statement execution is unsuccessful. The following actions are taken, in the order listed:

| | 1. If the FILE STATUS clause is specified, the status key is updated to indicate an AT END condition. |
|----|--|
| | If the AT END phrase is specified, control is transferred to the AT END imperative-statement. Any EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure for this file is not executed. |
| | 3. If the AT END phrase is not specified, any EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure for this file is executed. |
| | The AT END phrase must be specified if no explicit or implicit EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure is specified for this file. |
| | IBM Extension |
| 1 | |
| F | The value specified in the FORMAT phrase contains the name of the record format to use for this I-O operation. The system uses this to specify or select which record format to operate on. |
| | The literal or identifier must be a character-string of 10 characters or less. If an identifier is specified, it must be the name of one of the following: |
| | • A Working-Storage Section entry |
| | • A Linkage Section entry |
| | • A record-description entry for a previously opened file. |
| | A value of all blanks is treated as though the FORMAT phrase was not specified. If the value is not valid for the file, a FILE STATUS of 9K is returned and a USE procedure is invoked, if applicable for the file. |
| | End of IBM Extension |
| G1 | The record that is made available by the READ statement is determined as follows: |
| | • If the current record pointer was set by the execution of an OPEN statement, the record pointed to is made available. |
| | • If the current record pointer was set by the execution of a previous READ statement, the pointer is updated to point to the next existing record in the file. That record is then made available. |
| G2 | The record that is made available by the READ statement is determined as follows: |
| | • If the current record pointer was set by the execution of a START or OPEN statement, the record pointed to is made available if it is still accessible through the path indicated by the current record pointer. If the record is no longer accessible |

(

(

(due, for example, to deletion of the record), the current record pointer is updated to indicate the next existing record in the file. That record is then made available.

• If the current record pointer was set by the execution of a previous READ statement, the current record pointer is updated to point to the next existing record in the file. That record is then made available.

If the RELATIVE KEY phrase is specified for this file, READ statement execution updates the RELATIVE KEY data item to indicate the relative record number of the record being made available.

- G3 The record with the relative record number contained in the RELATIVE KEY data item is made available. If the file does not contain such a record, the INVALID KEY condition exists, and READ statement execution is unsuccessful.
- G4 The record made available by the READ statement is determined as follows:
 - If the current record pointer was set by the execution of a START or OPEN statement, the record pointed to is made available if it is still accessible through the path indicated by the current record pointer. If the record is no longer accessible (due, for example, to deletion of the record), the current record pointer is updated to indicate the next existing record in the file. That record is then made available.
 - If the current record pointer was set by the execution of a previous READ statement, the current record pointer is updated to point to the next existing record in the file. That record is then made available.

IBM Extension

For a file that allows duplicate keys (the DUPLICATES phrase is specified in the file-control entry), the records with duplicate key values are made available in the order specified when the file was created. The system options are first-in first-out (FIFO) and last-in first-out (LIFO). See the LIFO keyword in the *CPF* Reference Manual – DDS.

- _____ End of IBM Extension _____
- G5 The record in the file with a key value equal to that of the RECORD KEY data item is then made available. If the file does not contain such a record, the INVALID KEY condition exists, and READ statement execution is unsuccessful.

IBM Extension

For a file that allows duplicate keys (the DUPLICATES phrase is specified in the file-control entry), the first record with the specified key value is made available. The first record is determined by the order specified when the file was created. The system options are first-in first-out (FIFO) and last-in first-out (LIFO). See the LIFO keyword in the *CPF Reference* Manual – DDS.

___ End of IBM Extension _____

- I Allowed when the file is opened for INPUT.
- N If SELECT OPTIONAL is specified in the file-control entry for this file and the file is not available when this program runs, execution of the first READ statement causes an AT END condition. Since the file is not available, the standard system end-of-file processing is not done when the file is closed.
- O Optional.
- P Allowed when the file is opened for I-O.
- U The INVALID KEY phrase must be specified for files in which an appropriate USE procedure is not specified.
- V If end of volume is recognized during execution of a READ statement and logical end of file has not been reached, the following actions are taken in the order listed:
 - 1. The standard ending volume label procedure is executed.
 - 2. A volume switch occurs.
 - 3. The standard beginning volume label procedure is executed.
 - 4. The first data record of the next volume is made available.

The program receives no indication that the above actions occurred during the read operation.

W If specified, the key as defined for the specified format is used to get a record of that format. If a record of that format is not found, a record-not-found condition is returned. This occurs even when there are records that have the defined key, but that have a different record format.

> If the format is omitted, the common key for the file is used to get the first record of any format that has that common key value. The common key for a file consists of the key fields common to all formats of a file for records residing on the data base. The common key for a file is the leftmost key fields that are common across all

record formats in the file. The common key is built from the data in the record description area using the first record format defined in the program for the file.

X If specified, the next record in the keyed sequence access path that has the requested format is made available. If omitted, the next record in the keyed sequence access path is made available.

| * 7 | |
|-----|--|
| v | |
| - 1 | |
| _ | |

| | FORMA | T Phrase |
|----------------------|-----------|----------|
| | Specified | Omitted |
| NEXT | Yl | ¥2 |
| PRIOR | ¥3 | ¥4 |
| FIRST | ¥5 | Y6 |
| LAST | ¥7 | ¥8 |
| None of the Above | ¥9 | ¥10 |

- Y1 The next record in the keyed sequence access path having the specified format is made available.
- Y2 The next record in the keyed sequence access path is made available regardless of its format.
- Y3 The record in the keyed sequence access path preceding the record identified by the current record pointer having the specified format is made available.
- Y4 The record in the keyed sequence access path preceding the record identified by the current record pointer is made available regardless of its format.
- Y5 The first record in the keyed sequence access path having the specified format is made available.
- Y6 The first record in the keyed sequence access path is made available regardless of its format.
- Y7 The last record in the keyed sequence access path having the specified format is made available.
- Y8 The last record in the keyed sequence access path is made available regardless of its format.
- Y9 The key as defined for the specified format is used to get a record of that format. If a record of that format is not found, a record-not-found condition is returned. This occurs even when there are records that have the defined key, but that have a different record format.

- Y10 The common key for the file is used to get the first record of any format that has that common key value. The common key for a file consists of the key fields common to all formats of a file for records residing on the data base. The common key for a file consists of the leftmost key fields that are common across all record formats in the file. The common key is built from the data in the record description area using the first record format defined in the program for the file.
- Z1 When specified, a sequential read is done (see G2). When omitted, a random read is done (see G3).
- Z2 When specified, a sequential read is done (see G4). When omitted, a random access read is done (see G5).
- Z3 When specified, a sequential read is done (see G4). If NEXT, FIRST, LAST and PRIOR are all omitted, a random access read is done (see G5).

REWRITE Statement

The REWRITE statement logically replaces an existing record in a file. When the REWRITE statement is executed, the associated file must be open. The formats for the REWRITE statement are as follows:

Format 1



Format 2-TRANSACTION

For a discussion of this format, see Chapter 7.

Record-name:

- Must be the name of a record in the File Section
- Must have the same number of character positions as the record being replaced
- Must not be subscripted or indexed
- Can be qualified.

After successful execution of a REWRITE statement, the logical record is no longer available in record-name unless the associated file is named in a

SAME RECORD AREA clause. In this case, the record is also available as a record of the files named in the SAME RECORD AREA clause.

The current record pointer is not affected by execution of the ${\tt REWRITE}$ statement.

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, the associated status key is updated when the REWRITE statement is executed.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the REWRITE statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

| | Access | | | | | SE | QUENTIAL | | | | |
|----------|------------|--------|-------|-------|------------|---------|----------|----------|------|----------|------------|
| | Device | READER | PUNCH | PRINT | PUNCHPRINT | PRINTER | TAPEFILE | DISKETTE | DISK | DATABASE | FORMATFILE |
| RE Ve | WRITE | _ | _ | _ | | | | | Α, Ρ | А, Р | |
| FR | ОМ | | | | | | | — | О, В | О, В | |
| IN KE | VALID Y | — | — | | | | | | - | | |
| FO | RMAT | | — | — | | — | | — | - | | |

Relative Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | DATABASE | | |
|---------|--------|------------|---------|---------|----------------|---------------|---------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| REWRITE | Verb | A, P, Z | S, P, Z | S, P, Z | A, P, <u>Z</u> | S, P, Z | S, P, Z |
| FROM | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| INVALID | KEY | | U, H, J | U, H, J | | <u>, н, Ј</u> | U, H, J |
| FORMAT | | — | | | | | L — |

Indexed Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | DATABASE | | | |
|---------|--------|------------|---------|---------|------------|---------|---------|--|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | |
| REWRITE | Verb | A. E. P. Z | D, P, Z | D, P, Z | A, E, P, Z | D, P, Z | D, P, Z | |
| FROM | | О. В | О, В | О, В | О, В | O, B | Ю, В | |
| INVALID | KEY | U, G, J | U, H, J | U, H, J | U, G, J | U, H, J | U, H, J | |
| FORMAT | | | | | | M, F | M, F | |

| Letter Code | Meaning |
|----------------|--|
| | An invalid combination. |
| A | The last input/output statement executed for this file must have been a successfully executed READ statement. When the REWRITE statement is executed, the record retrieved by that READ statement is replaced. |
| В | The FROM identifier phrase makes a REWRITE statement equivalent to: |
| | MOVE identifier TO record-name REWRITE record-name. |
| | After successful execution of the REWRITE statement, the current record is no longer available in record-name, but is still available in identifier. Record-name and identifier cannot both refer to the same storage area. |
| D | The record to be replaced is specified by the value in the RECORD KEY data item. If the file does not contain such a record, an INVALID KEY condition exists. |
| | IBM Extension |
| When E | XTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified for the file, the key field in the record area for the format specified by the FORMAT phrase (or, if not specified, the first format defined in the program for the file), is used to find the record to be replaced. |
| | If the DUPLICATES phrase was specified for this file, the last input/output statement executed for this file before the REWRITE statement must have been a successfully executed READ statement. The record read by that statement is the one that is replaced. In this case, the FORMAT phrase is not used in determining the record to be replaced. |
| | The READ statement is required to ensure that the proper record is replaced when there are duplicates. If a successful read operation did not occur before the rewrite operation: |
| | • The file status key, if defined, is set to 94. |

C

(

- The EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure, if any, is executed.
- The REWRITE statement is not executed.

Programming Note: The only way to rewrite one of a sequence of records with duplicate keys is to sequentially read each of the duplicate records and rewrite the desired one.

| | End of IBM Extension |
|---|---|
| Е | The value of the RECORD KEY data item must not have been changed since the record was read. |
| | IBM Extension |
| F | The value specified in the FORMAT phrase contains the name of the record format to use for this I-O operation. The system uses this to specify or select which record format to operate on. |
| | The literal or identifier must be a character-string of 10 characters or less. If an identifier is specified, it must be the name of one of the following: |
| | • A Working-Storage Section entry |
| | • A Linkage Section entry |
| | • A record-description entry for a previously opened file. |
| | A value of all blanks is treated as though the FORMAT phrase were not specified. If the value is not valid for the file, a FILE STATUS of 9K is returned and a USE procedure is invoked, if applicable for the file. |
| | End of IBM Extension |
| G | Executed when the value contained in the RECORD KEY of the record to be replaced does not equal the RECORD KEY data item of the last retrieved record from the file. |
| Н | Executed when the record specified by the key field in the record area is not found. |
| J | When an INVALID KEY condition exists, the updating operation does not take place. The data in record-name is unaffected. |
| М | Optional when processing a file that has one record format. |
| 0 | Optional. |
| Р | Allowed when the file is opened for I-O. |
| S | The record to be replaced is specified by the value in the RELATIVE KEY data item. If the file does not contain such a record, an INVALID KEY condition exists. |

U The INVALID KEY phrase must be specified for files in which an applicable USE procedure is not specified.

| | IBM Extension |
|---|---|
| Z | The action of this statement can be inhibited at program execution time by the inhibit write (INHWRT) parameter of the Override with Data Base File (OVRDBF) CL command. When this parameter is specified, non-zero file status codes are not set for data dependent errors. Duplicate key and data conversion errors are examples of data dependent errors. |
| | See the <i>CL Reference Manual</i> for more information on this command. |
| | End of IBM Extension |

ROLLBACK Statement

The ROLLBACK statement provides a way to cancel one or more changes to data base records when the changes should not remain permanent. The format of the ROLLBACK statement is:

Format



When the ROLLBACK statement is executed, any changes made to files under commitment control since the last commitment boundary are removed from the data base.⁸ A commitment boundary is the previous occurrence of a ROLLBACK or COMMIT statement. If no COMMIT or ROLLBACK has been issued, the commitment boundary is the first OPEN of a file under commitment control. Removal of changes takes place for all files under commitment control in the job, and not just for files under commitment control in the COBOL program that issues the ROLLBACK.

Once the ROLLBACK is successfully executed, all record locks held by the job for files under commitment control are released and the records become available to other jobs.

The ROLLBACK has no effect on files not under commitment control. If a ROLLBACK is executed and there are no files under commitment control, the ROLLBACK is ignored.

⁸ When a file is cleared while being opened for OUTPUT, execution of a ROLLBACK statement does not restore cleared records to the file.

A file under commitment control can be opened or closed without affecting the status of changes made since the last commitment boundary. A COMMIT must still be issued to make the changes permanent. A ROLLBACK, when executed, leaves files in the same open or closed state as before execution.

The ROLLBACK statement does *not*:

- modify the I-O-FEEDBACK area for any file
- set a file status value for any file.

For the ROLLBACK statement, the following considerations apply:

- The ROLLBACK statement sets the current record pointer to the pointer's position at the previous commitment boundary. This is important to remember if you are doing sequential processing.
- If no COMMIT statement has been issued since the file was opened, the ROLLBACK statement sets the current record pointer to the pointer's position at the OPEN.
- The current record pointer is undefined after a ROLLBACK if the file is closed with uncommitted changes.

At the end of every job, an implicit ROLLBACK of uncommitted records is automatically done for all files under commitment control. Any uncommitted changes to the data base are canceled.

START Statement

The START statement provides a way of positioning within an indexed or relative file for subsequent sequential retrieval. This positioning is achieved by comparing the key values of records in the file with the value you place in the RECORD KEY portion of a file's record area (for an indexed file), or in the RELATIVE KEY data item (for a relative file) prior to execution of the START statement. The format for the START statement is as follows: Format



File-name must be defined in an FD entry in the Data Division. It must not name a sort or merge file.

Data-name-1, data-name-2... can be qualified.

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the FILE-CONTROL paragraph, the associated status key is updated when the START statement is executed.

Programming Note: If a START operation with a KEY phrase is unsuccessful, the current record pointer is positioned to the first record in the file, and the record is locked. A WRITE operation for an indexed or sequential file does not release a record lock.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the START statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

| | Access | SEQUENTIAL |
|---------|--------|-------------|
| | Device | Any |
| START V | erb | Not allowed |

Relative Organization

| | Device DISK | | | DATABASE | | | |
|---------|-------------|------------|--------|----------|------------|--------|---------|
| _ | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| START V | erb | I, P, A | | I, P, A | I, P, A | | I, P, A |
| KEY IS | | 0, E | | 0, E | O, E | | Ο, Ε |
| INVALID | KEY | 0, U, D | | 0, U, D | 0, U, D | | 0, U, D |
| FORMAT | | — | | | | | |

Indexed Organization

| | Device | | DISK | | | DATABASE | |
|---------|--|------------|--------|---------|------------|----------|------------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| START V | erb | I, P, B | | I, P, B | I, P, B, K | | I, P, B, K |
| KEY IS | and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second | 0, G | | 0, G | O, G | | 0, G |
| INVALID | KEY | 0, U, D | | 0, U, D | 0, U, D | | 0, U, D |
| FORMAT | | | | | O, F, J | | 0, F, J |

Letter Code Meaning

- An invalid combination.
- A When the KEY phrase is not specified, the current record pointer is set to the record in the file with a key (relative record number) equal to the RELATIVE KEY data item.
- B When the KEY phrase is not specified, the current record pointer is set to the record with a key equal to the value contained in the RECORD KEY data item.
- D If the comparison is not satisfied by any record in the file, an INVALID KEY condition exists. The position of the current record pointer is undefined, and the INVALID KEY imperative-statement, if specified, is executed.
- E When the KEY phrase is specified, data-name-1 must specify the RELATIVE KEY. The current record pointer is positioned to the first logical record currently existing in the file with a key (relative record number) that satisfies the comparison with the RELATIVE KEY data item.

IBM Extension

The value specified in the FORMAT phrase contains the name of the record format to use for this I-O operation. The system uses this to specify or select which record format to operate on.

The literal or identifier must be a character-string of 10 characters or less. If an identifier is specified, it must be the name of one of the following:

- A Working-Storage Section entry
- A Linkage Section entry

F

• A record-description entry for a previously opened file.

A value of all blanks is treated as though the FORMAT phrase were not specified. If the value is not valid for the file, a FILE STATUS of 9K is returned and a USE procedure is invoked, if applicable for the file.

End of IBM Extension

- G When the KEY phrase is specified, the search argument used for the comparison is data-name-1, which can be:
 - The RECORD KEY itself.
 - An alphanumeric data item within a record description for the file with a leftmost character position that corresponds to the leftmost character position of the key field in the record area. This data item must be less than or equal to the length of the RECORD KEY for the file. This data item can be qualified.

Note: If the RECORD KEY is defined as COMP, COMP-3, or COMP-4, the key data item must be the RECORD KEY itself. A partial key field in the record area cannot be used.

The current record pointer is positioned to the first record in the file with a record key for a format that satisfies the comparison. If the operands in the comparison are of unequal length, the comparison proceeds as if the longer field were truncated on the right to the length of the shorter field. All other numeric and nonnumeric comparison rules apply, except that the PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE, if specified, has no effect.

IBM Extension

For a file that specified RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY, the following additional considerations apply:

- The reserved word EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY can be specified. This indicates that the complete key field in the record area should be used in the comparison.
- A series of data names can be specified. This allows a partial key field in the record area to be used (generic START). These data names must follow the following rules:
 - All except the last of the data names specified must be a record key for a format that was copied in for the file. The record format in which they are contained does not have to be the one that can be specified by the FORMAT phrase.
 - The order of these data names (key fields) must match the order of the keys as defined in DDS; that is, they must be specified from most significant field to least significant.
 - The total number of data names cannot exceed the number of key fields defined for that record format.
 - If the last data name specified in the series is not a key field in the record area, it must have its left byte occupy the same space as the key field that is defined at that relative position. If the key field in the record area at this position is a COMP, COMP-3, or COMP-4 field, only the key field itself can be used as the data name.

| | KEY Phrase | | | | |
|------------------|---------------------|---------|------------------------------|--|--|
| FORMAT Phrase | Data-name Series | Omitted | EXTERNALLY- DESCRIBED-KEY | | |
| Yes | G1, G2 | G3, G4 | G3, G2 | | |
| No | G1, G5 | G6, G7 | G6, G5 | | |

• The following table shows the action between the KEY IS phrase and the FORMAT phrase:

- G1 The search argument is built using the specified data items.
- G2 The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file of the format specified with a record key that satisfies the comparison specified in the key phrase.
- G3 The search argument is built using the key fields in the record area for the format specified in the FORMAT phrase.
- G4 The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file of the specified format with a record key equal to the search argument.

1

- G5 The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file with a common key for the file that satisfies the comparison specified in the KEY phrase. If there is no common key, the current record pointer is set to the first record in the file.
- G6 The search argument is built using the key fields in the record area for the first record format for the file as defined in the program.
- G7 The current record pointer is set to the first record in the file with a common key for the file that is equal to the search argument. If there is no common key, the current record pointer is set to the first record in the file.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

I Allowed when the file is opened for INPUT.

Κ

J If specified, the current record pointer is set to the first record of the specified record format that satisfies the comparison. If omitted, the current record pointer is set to the first record of any format that satisfies the comparison.

See the table in G (under "KEY IS Phrase") for a description of how this interacts with EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY and the KEY IS phrase.

IBM Extension

The meaning of the comparison can be affected by the type of key fields in the record area defined for the file. Key fields on this system can be defined as multiple fields, each of which can be in ascending or descending sequence. The system establishes a sequence (keyed sequence access path) for the records based on the values contained in the record key for the format and the sequencing specified in DDS. When a START statement is executed, the request is interpreted as follows:

| COBOL Comparison | System Result | | |
|-------------------------|-------------------|--|--|
| GREATER THAN | AFTER | | |
| NOT LESS THAN | EQUAL TO or AFTER | | |

For example, when a statement is executed using the comparison of GREATER THAN, a search is made of these sequenced records for the first record after the search argument specified by the START statement. If the file was sequenced using descending keys, the current record pointer would point to a record with a key less than the one specified and not greater than that specified in the START statement.

_ End of IBM Extension .

- O Optional.
- P Allowed when the file is opened for I-O.
- U The INVALID KEY phrase must be specified for files in which an appropriate USE procedure is not specified.

WRITE Statement

The WRITE statement releases a record to the system. The formats for the WRITE statement are as follows:

Format 1-Sequential Files



Format 2-Indexed and Relative Files



Format 3-FORMATFILE Files



Format 4-TRANSACTION File (Nonsubfile)

Format 5-TRANSACTION File (Subfile)

See Chapter 7 for a discussion of these formats.

Record-name:

- Must be the name of a record in the File Section of the Data Division
- Can be qualified
- Cannot be associated with a sort or merge file.

The maximum record size for a data base file is established at the time the file is defined to the system (using the Create Physical File [CRTPF] or the Create Logical File [CRTLF] CL command) and cannot be changed. If the record length defined in the program is incompatible with the record length defined to the system, the following occurs during output to the file:

- When the program record length is greater than the length defined to the system, the records are truncated to the system length. If the file is empty, the program record length is used.
- When the program record length is less than the record length defined in the system, the records are padded with blanks to make them the size specified in the system.

Execution of the WRITE statement releases a record to the file associated with record-name. After execution of a WRITE statement, the record is no longer available in record-name unless either of the following is true:

- The associated file is named in a SAME RECORD AREA clause. In this case, the record is also available as a record of the files named in the SAME RECORD AREA clause.
- The WRITE statement is unsuccessful due to a boundary violation (beyond extent).

If either of the above conditions is true, the record is still available in record-name.

The current record pointer is not affected by execution of the WRITE statement.

The number of character positions required to store the record in a file can be, but is not necessarily, the same as the number of character positions defined by the description of the record in the COBOL program. (See "PICTURE Clause" and "Usage Clause" in Chapter 4.)

If the FILE STATUS clause is specified in the file-control entry, the associated status key is updated when the WRITE statement is executed.

When an attempt is made to write beyond the externally defined boundaries of the file, WRITE statement execution is unsuccessful, and an

EXCEPTION/ERROR condition exists. The status key, if specified, is updated. If an explicit or implicit EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure is specified for the file, the procedure is executed. If no such procedure is specified, the results are unpredictable.

The following tables illustrate organization, access, and device considerations for the WRITE statement. The letter codes used in the tables are defined in the section following the tables.

Sequential Organization

| ſ | Access | SEQUENTIAL | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------|---------------|------------|-------|-------|------------|---------|------------|----------|---------------|------------|------------|
| Ī | Device | READER | PUNCH | PRINT | PUNCHPRINT | PRINTER | TAPEFILE | DISKETTE | DISK | DATABASE | FORMATFILE |
| WF | RITE Verb | _ | Q, T | Ω, Τ | Q, T | Q, T | V, Q, S, T | ν, α, τ | Q, S, T, Z | Q, S, T, Z | Q, T |
| FR | ОМ | _ | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| IN\ KE | /ALID Y | | — | _ | |] — | — | | | | |
| AD | VANCING | _ | O, D2 | 0, D2 | O, D2 | 0, D1 | | — | — | — | _ |
| AT OF | END- -PAGE | _ | | _ | | O, E1 | | | — | _ | O, E2 |
| FO | RMAT | _ | — | - | | | — | | | | N, F |
| INC | DICATORS | | — | | | | | | _ | | I |

Relative Organization

| | Device | DISK | | | DATABASE | | |
|----------------|--------|-------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------|--------------------|--------------------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| WRITE Verb | | Q, K, Z | P, Q, M, Z | .P, Q, M, Z | Q, K, Z | P, Q, M, Z | Р, Q, M, Z |
| FROM | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| INVALID KEY | | 0, J1, J, U | O, J1, J2, J. U | O, J1, J2, J, U | 0, J1, J, U | O, J1, J2, J, U | O, J1, J2, J, U |
| ADVANCING | | | | | | | — |
| AT END-OF-PAGE | | _ | _ | | | | _ |
| FORMAT | | | | | | _ | — |
| INDICATORS | | — |] | | | | |

Indexed Organization

| | Device | DISK | | | DATABASE | | |
|----------------|--------|-----------------|--------------------|--------------------|-----------------|--------------------|--------------------|
| | Access | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC | SEQUENTIAL | RANDOM | DYNAMIC |
| WRITE Verb | | G, H1, Q, Z | G, H2, P, Q, Z | G, H2, P, Q, Z | G, H1, Q, Z | G, H2, P, Q, Z | G, H2, P, Q, Z |
| FROM | | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В | О, В |
| INVALID KEY | | O, J1, J4, J, U | O, J1, J3, J, U | O, J1, J3, J, U | O, J1, J4, J, U | 0, J1, J3, J, U | O, J1, J3, J, U |
| ADVANCING | | — | | | | | |
| AT END-OF-PAGE | | | | | | | |
| FORMAT | | | | | N, F | N, F | N, F |
| INDICATORS | | | | | | | <u> </u> |

Letter

Code Meaning

- An invalid combination.
- A When the KEY phrase is not specified, the current record pointer is set to the record in the file with a key (relative record number) equal to the RELATIVE KEY data item.
- B The FROM identifier phrase makes a WRITE statement equivalent to:

MOVE identifier TO record-name WRITE record-name.

After successful execution of the WRITE statement, the current record pointer is no longer available in record-name, but is still available in identifier. Record-name and identifier cannot both refer to the same storage area.

- D1 When not specified, a default of AFTER ADVANCING 1 LINE is used. When specified, the following rules apply:
 - When BEFORE ADVANCING is specified, the line is printed before the page advances.
 - When AFTER ADVANCING is specified, the page advances before the line is printed.
 - When identifier-2 is specified, the page advances the number of lines equal to the current value in identifier-2. Identifier-2 must name an elementary integer data item. Identifier-2 can be zero.
 - When integer is specified, the page advances the number of lines equal to the value of integer. Integer can be zero.
 - When a mnemonic-name is specified, a page eject or space suppression occurs. The mnemonic-name must be equated with

function-name-1 in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. This phrase is not valid if a LINAGE clause is specified in the FD entry for this file.

• When PAGE is specified, the record is printed on the logical page BEFORE or AFTER (depending on the phrase specified) the device is positioned to the next logical page. If PAGE has no meaning for the device used, BEFORE or AFTER ADVANCING 1 LINE is provided (depending on the phrase specified).

If the FD entry contains a LINAGE clause, the device is positioned to the first printable line of the next page, as specified in that clause. If the LINAGE clause is omitted, the device is positioned to line 1 of the next page.

If the LINAGE clause is specified for this file, the associated LINAGE-COUNTER special register is modified during the execution of the WRITE statement, according to the following rules:

- If ADVANCING PAGE is specified, LINAGE-COUNTER is reset to 1.
- If ADVANCING identifier-2 or integer is specified,
 LINAGE-COUNTER is incremented by the value of identifier-2 or integer.
- If the ADVANCING phrase is omitted, LINAGE-COUNTER is incremented by 1.
- When the device is repositioned to the first printable line of a new page, LINAGE-COUNTER is reset to 1.
- D2 When not specified, stacker 1 is selected.

IBM Extension

The ADVANCING phrase using a mnemonic name can be specified to control the stacker selection. The mnemonic name must be equated with function-name-1 in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph and must be one of the valid stacker selection names.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

E1 The keywords END-OF-PAGE and EOP are equivalent. When the END-OF-PAGE phrase is specified, the FD entry for this file must contain a LINAGE clause. When END-OF-PAGE is specified, and the logical end of the printed page is reached during execution of the WRITE statement, the END-OF-PAGE imperative-statement is executed. The logical end of the printed page is specified in the LINAGE clause associated with record-name.

> An END-OF-PAGE condition is reached when execution of a WRITE END-OF-PAGE statement causes printing or spacing within the footing area of a page body. This occurs when execution of such a WRITE statement causes the value in the LINAGE-COUNTER to equal

or exceed the value specified in the WITH FOOTING phrase of the LINAGE clause. The WRITE statement is executed, and then the END-OF-PAGE imperative statement is executed.

An automatic page overflow condition is reached whenever the execution of any WRITE statement with or without the END-OF-PAGE phrase cannot be completely executed within the current page body. This occurs when an executed WRITE statement would cause the value in the LINAGE-COUNTER to exceed the number of lines for the page body specified in the LINAGE clause. In this case, the line is printed before or after the device is repositioned to the first printable line on the next logical page, as specified in the LINAGE clause.

If the END-OF-PAGE phrase is specified, the END-OF-PAGE imperative-statement is then executed. The END-OF-PAGE condition and automatic page overflow condition occur simultaneously in the following cases:

- When the WITH FOOTING phrase of the LINAGE clause is not specified. This results in no distinction between the END-OF-PAGE condition and the page overflow condition. No footing information can be printed at the bottom of a logical page when the FOOTING phrase is not specified.
- When the WITH FOOTING phrase is specified, but the execution of a WRITE statement would cause the LINAGE-COUNTER to exceed both the footing value and the page body value specified in the LINAGE clause.
- E2 The keywords END-OF-PAGE and EOP are equivalent. When the END-OF-PAGE is specified, and the logical end of page is reached, during execution of the WRITE statement for the FORMATFILE file, the END-OF-PAGE imperative statement is executed. The logical end of the printed page is specified in the overflow line number parameter of the CRTPRTF command or the OVRPRTF command.

IBM Extension

F The value specified in the FORMAT phrase contains the name of the record format to use for this I-O operation. The system uses this to specify or select which record format to operate on.

The literal or identifier must be a character-string of 10 characters or less. If an identifier is specified, it must be the name of one of the following:

- A Working-Storage Section entry
- A Linkage Section entry
- A record-description entry for a previously opened file.

A value of all blanks is treated as though the FORMAT phrase were not specified. If the value is not valid for the file, a FILE STATUS of 9K is returned and a USE procedure is invoked, if applicable for the file.

End of IBM Extension . G When the WRITE statement is executed, the system releases the record. Before the WRITE statement is executed, the user must set the key fields in the record area to the desired value. **IBM** Extension If the DUPLICATES phrase is specified, record key values for a format need not be unique (see "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, RECORD KEY Clause [Indexed File]" in Chapter 3.) In this case, the system stores the records so that later sequential access to the records allows retrieval in the order specified in DDS. End of IBM Extension _ H1 Records must be released in ascending RECORD KEY value sequence. *Note:* The records must be released in ascending key sequence even though the file can be ordered in descending key sequence by a DDS option. H2Records can be released in any user-specified order. Ι See "Indicators" in Chapter 7. When the INVALID KEY condition is recognized, WRITE statement J execution is unsuccessful, and the contents of the record are unaffected. See the "RECORD KEY Clause" of the "SELECT Statement" under "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3 for the order of the actions taken. J1 An INVALID KEY condition exists when an attempt is made to write beyond the externally defined boundaries of the file. J2An INVALID KEY condition exists when the relative key specifies a record that already contains data. J3An INVALID KEY condition exists when the value of the key field in the record area equals that of an already existing record and DUPLICATES are not allowed. **J**4 An INVALID KEY condition exists when the value of the key field in the record area is not greater than that for the previous record.

IBM Extension

If DUPLICATES are allowed, this condition exists only if the RECORD KEY is less than that for the previous record.

| | End of IBM Extension | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| K | The first record released has relative record number 1, the second has number 2, the third has number 3, and so on. If the RELATIVE KEY is specified in the file-control entry, the relative record number of the record just released is placed in the RELATIVE KEY during execution of the WRITE statement. | | | | | | |
| Μ | The RELATIVE KEY must contain the desired relative record number for this record before the WRITE statement is issued. When the WRITE statement is executed, this record is placed at the specified relative record number position in the file, if this position is vacant. | | | | | | |
| N | Required if there is more than one record format for the file. | | | | | | |
| 0 | Optional. | | | | | | |
| Р | Allowed when the file is opened for I-O. | | | | | | |
| Q | Allowed when the file is opened for OUTPUT. | | | | | | |
| S | Allowed when the file is opened for EXTEND. | | | | | | |
| Т | When an attempt is made to write beyond the externally defined boundaries of the file, the execution of the WRITE statement is unsuccessful and an EXCEPTION/ERROR condition exists. The contents of record-name are unaffected. If specified, the status key is updated, and if an explicit or implicit EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure is specified for the file, the procedure is executed. If no such procedure is specified, the results are unpredictable. | | | | | | |
| U | The INVALID KEY phrase must be specified for files in which an applicable USE procedure is not specified. | | | | | | |
| V | When end-of-volume is recognized for a multivolume OUTPUT file, the WRITE statement performs the following operations in the following order: | | | | | | |
| | 1. The standard ending volume label procedure is executed. | | | | | | |
| | 2. A volume switch occurs. | | | | | | |
| | 3. The standard beginning volume label procedure is executed. | | | | | | |
| | No indication that an end-of-volume has occurred is returned to | | | | | | |

the program.

(

Z The action of this statement can be inhibited at program execution time by the INHWRT parameter of the OVRDBF CL command. When this parameter is specified, non-zero file status codes are not set for data dependent errors. Duplicate key and data conversion errors are examples of data dependent errors.

IBM Extension

See the *CL Reference Manual* for more information on this command.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

Arithmetic Statements

Arithmetic statements are used for computations. Individual operations are specified by the ADD, SUBTRACT, MULTIPLY, and DIVIDE statements. The COMPUTE statement can be used to symbolically combine these operations in a formula.

Arithmetic Statement Operands

The data description of operands in an arithmetic statement need not be the same. Throughout the calculation, the compiler supplies any necessary data conversion and decimal point alignment.

Size of Operands

The maximum size of each operand is 18 decimal digits. The composite of operands (a hypothetical data item resulting from the superimposition of the operands aligned by an assumed decimal point) must not contain more than 18 decimal digits.

For the ADD and SUBTRACT statements, the composite of operands is determined by superimposing all operands in a given statement except those following the word GIVING.

For the MULTIPLY statement, the composite of operands is determined by superimposing all receiving data items.

For the DIVIDE statement, the composite of operands is determined by superimposing all receiving data items except the REMAINDER data item.

For the COMPUTE statement, the restriction on composite of operands does not apply.

For example, the items A, B, and C are defined in the Data Division as follows:

| 01 | А | PICTURE | S9(7)V9(5). |
|----|---|---------|-------------|
| 01 | В | PICTURE | S9(11)V99. |
| 01 | С | PICTURE | S9(12)V9(3) |

If the statement ADD A, B TO C is executed, then the composite of operands for this statement consists of 17 decimal digits. It has the following implicit PICTURE clause:

PICTURE S9(12)V9(5)

IBM Extension

The composite of all operands in an arithmetic statement can have a maximum length of 30 digits.

_____ End of IBM Extension .

Overlapping Operands

When operands in an arithmetic statement share part of their storage (that is, when the operands overlap), the result of the execution of such a statement is unpredictable.

Multiple Results

When an arithmetic statement has multiple results, execution conceptually proceeds as follows:

- The statement performs all arithmetic operations to find the result to be placed in the receiving items and stores that result in a temporary location.
- A sequence of statements transfers or combines the value of this temporary result with each single receiving field. The statements are considered to be written in the same left-to-right order that the multiple results are listed.

For example, executing the following statement:

ADD A, B, C TO C, D(C), E.

is equivalent to executing the following series of statements:

```
ADD A, B, C GIVING TEMP.
ADD TEMP TO C
ADD TEMP TO D(C)
ADD TEMP TO E
```

TEMP is a compiler-supplied temporary result field. When the addition operation for D(C) is performed, the subscript C contains the new value of C.

Note: The compiler does not generate a temporary result field when only one identifier is specified in the following cases: in the ADD statement, Format 1, preceding the keyword TO; in the SUBTRACT statement, Format 1,
preceding the keyword FROM; and in the MULTIPLY and DIVIDE statements, Format 1.

Programming Note: In all arithmetic statements, it is the user's responsibility to define data with enough digits and decimal places to ensure accuracy in the final result. Refer to Appendix E for more information.

Common Phrases

There are several phrases common to the arithmetic statements. They are the CORRESPONDING phrase, the GIVING phrase, the ROUNDED phrase, and the SIZE ERROR phrase. Their description precedes the descriptions of the individual statements.

CORRESPONDING Phrase

The CORRESPONDING phrase allows operations to be performed on elementary items of the same name simply by specifying the group items to which they belong.

The CORRESPONDING phrase is valid in the ADD, SUBTRACT, and MOVE statements. The abbreviation CORR is equivalent to the keyword CORRESPONDING.

Both identifiers following the keyword CORRESPONDING must name group items. In this discussion, these identifiers are referred to as d1 and d2.

A pair of subordinate data items, one from d1 and one from d2, correspond if the following conditions are true:

- In an ADD or SUBTRACT statement, both of the subordinate items are elementary numeric data-items.
- In a MOVE statement, at least one of the subordinate items is elementary.
- The two subordinate items have the same name and the same qualifiers up to but not including d1 and d2.
- The subordinate items are not identified by the keyword FILLER.
- The subordinate items do not include a REDEFINES, RENAMES, OCCURS, or USAGE IS INDEX clause in their descriptions; if such a subordinate item is a group item, the items subordinate to it are also ignored. However, d1 and d2 themselves can contain or be subordinate to items containing a REDEFINES or OCCURS clause in their descriptions.

For example, two data hierarchies are defined as follows:

05 ITEM-1 OCCURS 6 INDEXED BY X 10 ITEM-A ... 10 ITEM-B ... 10 ITEM-C REDEFINES ITEM-B . 05 ITEM-2. 10 ITEM-A ... 10 ITEM-B . 10 ITEM-C

If ADD CORR ITEM-2 TO ITEM-1(X) is specified, ITEM-A and ITEM-A(X) and ITEM-B and ITEM-B(X) are considered to be corresponding and are added together. ITEM-C and ITEM-C(X) are not included because ITEM-C(X) includes a REDEFINES clause in its data description. ITEM-1 is valid as either d1 or d2.

• Neither d1 nor d2 is described as a level 66, 77 or 88 item, or as a FILLER or USAGE IS INDEX item.

- IBM Extension -----

 $D1 \ and/or \ d2 \ can be subordinate to a FILLER item.$

_ End of IBM Extension _

GIVING Phrase

If the GIVING phrase is specified, the value of the identifier that follows the word GIVING is set equal to the calculated result of the arithmetic operation. Because this identifier is not involved in the computation, it can be a numeric edited item.

ROUNDED Phrase

After decimal point alignment, the number of places in the fraction of the result of an arithmetic operation is compared with the number of places provided for the fraction of the resultant identifier.

If the size of the fractional result exceeds the number of places provided for its storage, truncation occurs unless the ROUNDED phrase is specified. When the ROUNDED phrase is specified, the least significant digit of the resultant identifier has its absolute value increased by 1 whenever the most significant digit of the excess is greater than or equal to 5.

When the resultant identifier is described by a PICTURE clause containing rightmost Ps and when the number of places in the calculated result exceeds the number of integer positions specified, rounding or truncation occurs relative to the rightmost integer position for which storage is allocated.

SIZE ERROR Phrase

A size error condition exists if, after decimal point alignment, the value of a result exceeds the largest value that can be contained in the resultant field. Division by zero or zero raised to the zero power always causes a size error condition.

In the ADD, SUBTRACT, and COMPUTE statements, the size error condition applies only to final results. In the MULTIPLY and DIVIDE statements, the size error condition applies both to final results and to intermediate results.

If the ROUNDED phrase is specified, rounding takes place before size error checking.

When a size error occurs, the subsequent action of the program depends on whether or not the SIZE ERROR phrase is specified.

If the SIZE ERROR phrase is not specified and a size error condition occurs, the value of the affected resultant identifier is unpredictable. When multiple receivers are specified, those that do not have a size error are not affected by receivers that do have the error.

If the SIZE ERROR phrase is specified and a size error condition occurs, the error results are not placed in the receiving identifier. After completion of the execution of the arithmetic operation, the imperative-statement in the SIZE ERROR phrase is executed.

If an individual arithmetic operation causes a size error condition for ADD CORRESPONDING and SUBTRACT CORRESPONDING statements, the SIZE ERROR imperative-statement is not executed until all of the individual additions or subtraction have been completed.

ADD Statement

The ADD statement causes two or more numeric operands to be summed and the result to be stored. The formats of the ADD statement are as follows:

Format 1

$$\underline{ADD} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{, identifier-2} \\ \text{, literal-2} \end{array} \right] \dots \underline{TO} \text{ identifier-m} \left[\underline{ROUNDED} \right] \\ \left[\text{, identifier-n} \left[\underline{ROUNDED} \right] \right] \dots \left[ON \underline{SIZE} \underline{ERROR} \text{ imperative-statement} \right] \\ \end{array}$$



Format 3



In Formats 1 and 2, each identifier, except those following the keyword GIVING must name an elementary numeric item. In Format 2, each identifier following the keyword GIVING must name an elementary numeric or numeric edited item. In Format 3, each identifier must name a group item. In all formats, each literal must be a numeric literal.

In Format 1, all identifiers or literals preceding the keyword T0 are added together, and this sum is added to and stored immediately in identifier-m. If specified, the sum is then added to and stored immediately in identifier-n, and so on.

In Format 2, at least two operands must precede the keyword GIVING. The values of these operands are added together, and the sum is stored as the new value of identifier-m, and, if specified, identifier-n, and so on.

If Format 3, elementary data items within identifier-1 are added to and stored in the corresponding elementary items within identifier-2.

For the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases, and for operand considerations, refer to the preceding "Common Phrases" in this section.

COMPUTE Statement

The COMPUTE statement assigns the value of an arithmetic expression to one or more data items.

<u>COMPUTE</u> identifier-1 <u>[ROUNDED]</u>, identifier-2 <u>[ROUNDED]</u>... = arithmetic-expression ON <u>SIZE</u> <u>ERROR</u> imperative-statement]

The COMPUTE statement allows the user to combine arithmetic operations without the restrictions on the composite operands and/or receiving data items imposed by the rules for the ADD, SUBTRACT, MULTIPLY, and DIVIDE statements.

The identifiers that appear to the left of the equal sign (=) must name either elementary numeric items or elementary numeric edited items.

When the COMPUTE statement is executed, the value of the arithmetic expression is calculated; then this value is stored as the new value of identifier-1, identifier-2, and so on, in turn.

The arithmetic expression can be any meaningful combination of elementary numeric items, numeric literals, and arithmetic operators.

An arithmetic expression consisting of a single identifier or literal allows the user to set identifier-1, and so on, equal to the value of that identifier or literal.

For the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases, and for operand considerations, see "Common Phrases" earlier in this section.

DIVIDE Statement

The DIVIDE statement divides one numeric data item into others and sets the values of data items equal to the quotient and remainder. The formats of the DIVIDE statement are:

Format 1

$$\frac{\text{DIVIDE}}{\text{literal-1}} \frac{\text{INTO}}{\text{INTO}} \text{ identifier-2} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right]$$

$$\left[, \text{ identifier-3} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right] \cdot \cdot \cdot \left[\text{ON } \frac{\text{SIZE}}{\text{ERROR}} \text{ imperative-statement} \right]$$

$$\frac{\text{DIVIDE}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \frac{\text{INTO}}{\text{BY}} \right\} \left\{ \frac{\text{identifier-2}}{\text{literal-2}} \frac{\text{GIVING}}{\text{GIVING}} \text{ identifier-3} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right] \\ \left[\text{, identifier-4} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right] \right] \dots \left[\text{ON SIZE ERROR} \text{ imperative-statement} \right] \\ \end{array}$$

Format 3

$$\frac{\text{DIVIDE}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \frac{\text{INTO}}{\text{BY}} \right\} \left\{ \frac{\text{identifier-2}}{\text{literal-2}} \right\} \frac{\text{GIVING}}{\text{GIVING}} \text{ identifier-3} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right]$$

$$\frac{\text{REMAINDER}}{\text{identifier-4}} \text{ identifier-4} \left[\text{ON} \frac{\text{SIZE}}{\text{ERROR}} \text{ imperative-statement} \right]$$

Each identifier except those following the keywords GIVING and REMAINDER must name an elementary numeric item. Each identifier following the keywords GIVING and REMAINDER must name an elementary numeric or numeric edited item. Each literal must be a numeric literal.

In Format 1, the value of literal-1 or identifier-1 is divided into the value of identifier-2; then the quotient is placed in identifier-2. If identifier-3 is specified, the value of literal-1 or identifier-1 is divided into identifier-3; then the quotient is placed in identifier-3, and so on.

In Format 2, the value of identifier-1 or literal-1 is divided into/by the value of identifier-2 or literal-2. The value of the quotient is stored in identifier-3, and (if specified) identifier-4, and so on.

In Format 3, the value of identifier-1 or literal-1 is divided into/by identifier-2 or literal-2. The value of the quotient is stored in identifier-3, and the value of the remainder is stored in identifier-4.

The remainder is defined as the result of subtracting the product of the quotient and the divisor from the dividend. If identifier-3 (the quotient) is a numeric edited field, the quotient used to calculate the remainder is an intermediate field that contains the unedited quotient.

For the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases, and for operand considerations, see "Common Phrases" earlier in this section.

In addition to the conditions for common phrases, the following considerations apply when the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases are used in Format 3.

- When the ROUNDED phrase is specified, the quotient used to calculate the remainder is an intermediate field which contains the quotient truncated rather than rounded.
- When the ON SIZE ERROR phrase is specified and the size error condition occurs on the quotient, no remainder calculation is

meaningful. Therefore, the contents of the quotient field (identifier-3) and the remainder field (identifier-4) are unchanged.

• When the ON SIZE ERROR phrase is specified and the size error occurs on the remainder, the contents of the remainder field (identifier-4) are unchanged.

Note: In the two preceding cases, the user must analyze the results to determine which situation has actually occurred.

MULTIPLY Statement

The MULTIPLY statement causes numeric items to be multiplied and sets the values of data items equal to the results. The formats of the MULTIPLY statement are:

```
Format 1
```

Format 2

$$\frac{\text{MULTIPLY}}{\text{literal-1}} \underbrace{\text{BY}}{\text{BY}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\text{GIVING}}_{\text{identifier-3}} \underbrace{\text{ROUNDED}}_{\text{identifier-3}} \\ \left[, \text{ identifier-4} \underbrace{\text{ROUNDED}}_{\text{IDED}} \right] \\ \dots \underbrace{\text{CON SIZE}}_{\text{ERROR}} \text{ imperative-statement} \end{bmatrix}$$

Each identifier except those following the keyword GIVING must name an elementary numeric item. Each identifier following the keyword GIVING must name an elementary numeric or numeric edited item. Each literal must be a numeric literal.

In Format 1, the value of identifier-1 or literal-1 is multiplied by the value of identifier-2; the product is then placed in identifier-2. If identifier-3 is specified, the value of identifier-1 or literal-1 is multiplied by the value of identifier-3; the product is then placed in identifier-3, and so on.

In Format 2, the value of identifier-1 or literal-1 is multiplied by the value of identifier-2 or literal-2; the product is then stored in identifier-3, and, if specified, identifier-4, and so on.

For the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases, and for operand considerations, see "Common Phrases" earlier in this section.

SUBTRACT Statement

The SUBTRACT statement causes either one, or the sum of two or more numeric items to be subtracted from one or more numeric items and the result to be stored. The formats of the SUBTRACT statement are:

Format 1

Format 2

$$\frac{\text{SUBTRACT}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{, identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right] \cdot \cdot \cdot \frac{\text{FROM}}{\text{literal-3}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{literal-3} \end{array} \right\}$$

$$\frac{\text{GIVING}}{\text{identifier-4}} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{ROUNDED} \\ \text{ROUNDED} \end{array} \right] \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{, identifier-5} \\ \text{ROUNDED} \end{array} \right] \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{NOUNDED} \\ \text{ON SIZE ERROR imperative-statement} \end{array} \right]$$

Format 3



In Formats 1 and 2, each identifier except those following the keyword GIVING must name an elementary numeric item. In Format 2, each identifier following the keyword GIVING must name a numeric elementary or numeric edited elementary item. In Format 3, each identifier must name a group item. In all formats, each literal must be a numeric literal.

In Format 1, all identifiers or literals preceding the keyword FROM are added together, and this sum is subtracted from and stored immediately in identifier-3, and then, if specified, subtracted from and stored immediately in identifier-4, and so on.

In Format 2, all identifiers or literals preceding the keyword FROM are added together and this sum is subtracted from identifier-3 or literal-3. The result of the subtraction is stored as the new value of identifier-4, and, if specified, identifier-5, and so on.

In Format 3, elementary data items within identifier-1 are subtracted from and stored in the corresponding elementary data items within identifier-2. For the ROUNDED and SIZE ERROR phrases, and for operand considerations, see "Common Phrases" earlier in this section.

Data Manipulation Statements

Movement and inspection of data are the functions of the following COBOL statements: INSPECT, MOVE, STRING, and UNSTRING.

When the sending and receiving fields of a data manipulation statement share a part of their storage (that is, when the operands overlap), the result of the execution of such a statement is unpredictable.

INSPECT Statement

The INSPECT statement specifies that characters in a data item are to be counted, replaced, or counted and replaced. The formats of the INSPECT statement are:

Format 1



$$\left\{, \text{ identifier-2 } \underbrace{FOR}_{\text{CHARACTERS}} \left\{, \left\{ \underbrace{\left\{ \underbrace{\text{ALL}}_{\text{LEADING}} \right\}}_{\text{CHARACTERS}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ \left[\left\{ \underbrace{\text{BEFORE}}_{\text{AFTER}} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-4} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \right] \right\} \dots \right\} \dots$$

Format 2

INSPECT identifier-1 REPLACING

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{CHARACTERS BY} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-6} \\ literal-4 \end{array} \right\} \left[\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \end{array} \right\} INITIAL \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-7} \\ literal-5 \end{array} \right\} \right] \\ \left\{ , \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{ALL} \\ \underline{LEADING} \\ \underline{FIRST} \end{array} \right\} \left\{ , \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-5} \\ literal-3 \end{array} \right\} \underline{BY} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-6} \\ literal-4 \end{array} \right\} \left[\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \end{array} \right\} INITIAL \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-7} \\ literal-5 \end{array} \right\} \right] \right\} \dots \right\} \dots \right\} \\ \end{array} \right\}$$

INSPECT identifier-1 TALLYING



REPLACING



Either the TALLYING or the REPLACING phrase must be specified. Both the TALLYING and REPLACING phrases can be specified. If both TALLYING and REPLACING are specified (Format 3), all tallying is performed before any replacement is made.

Identifier-1 is the inspected item. Identifier-1 must be an elementary or group item with USAGE DISPLAY.

All other identifiers except identifier-2 (the count field) must be elementary alphabetic, alphanumeric, or zoned decimal items. Each is treated according to its data category. Each data category is treated as follows:

- Alphabetic or alphanumeric items are treated as a character-string.
- Alphanumeric edited, numeric edited, or unsigned numeric (zoned decimal) items are treated as though redefined as alphanumeric, and the INSPECT statement refers to the alphanumeric item.
- Signed numeric (zoned decimal) items are treated as though moved to an unsigned zoned decimal item of the same length, and then treated as though redefined as alphanumeric. The INSPECT statement refers to the alphanumeric item.

Each literal must be nonnumeric and can be any figurative constant except ALL.

The comparison operands of the TALLYING phrase (literal-1 or identifier-3, and so on) and/or REPLACING phrase (literal-3 or identifier-5, and so on) are

compared in the left-to-right order specified in the INSPECT statement. A maximum of 15 comparison operands may be specified for each REPLACING and each TALLYING phrase. When the INSPECT statement is contained within IF statements, this maximum number is reduced by the number of nested IF statements.

When the TALLYING/REPLACING operands are the compared operands, the following comparison rules apply:

- 1. When both the TALLYING and REPLACING phrases are specified, the INSPECT statement is executed as if an INSPECT TALLYING statement were specified and immediately followed by an INSPECT REPLACING statement.
- 2. The first operand is compared with an equal number of leftmost contiguous characters in the inspected item. The operand matches the inspected characters only if both are equal, character for character.
- 3. If no match occurs for the first operand, the comparison is repeated for each successive operand until either a match is found or all operands have been acted upon.
- 4. If a match is found, tallying or replacing takes place as described in TALLYING/REPLACING phrase descriptions. In the inspected item, the first character following the rightmost matching character is now considered the leftmost character position. The process described in comparison rules 2 and 3 is then repeated.
- 5. If no match is found, the first character in the inspected item following the leftmost inspected character is now considered the leftmost character position. The process described in comparison rules 2 and 3 is then repeated.
- 6. If the CHARACTERS phrase is specified, an implied 1-character operand is used in the process described in rules 2 and 3. The implied character is considered to always match the inspected character of the item inspected.
- 7. The actions taken in comparison rules 1 through 6-which are defined as the comparison cycle-are repeated until the rightmost character in the inspected item has either been matched or has been considered as the leftmost character position. Inspection then terminates.

Figure 5-16 illustrates INSPECT statement comparisons.

INSPECT ID-1 TALLYING ID-2 FOR ALL "**" REPLACING ALL "**" BY ZEROS. ID-1 before 0 ¥ × * * × ID-2 before 0 Execution Execution (initialized by programmer) Execution for TALLYING **TALLYING Phrase: Comparison Operand:** ID-2 Contains: 1st × (true) 1 × × Comparison 2nd × 0 (false) 1 Comparison 3rd 0 × (false) 1 Comparison 4th (true) 2 Comparison Execution for REPLACING **REPLACING Phrase:** Comparison Operand: 5th (true) ID-1 Changed to Comparison 0 0 * 0 × 6th * 0 × × **ID-1 Unchanged** (false) = Comparison 7th 0 × (false) **ID-1 Unchanged** = Comparison 8th (true) ID-1 Changed to · Comparison 0 0 × 0 0 0 At the end of inspection: ID-1 ID-2 0 0 0 0 0 × Contains: Contains: 2



Note: When the BEFORE/AFTER phrase is specified, the preceding results are modified as described in the BEFORE/AFTER phrase description.

INSPECT

The following example shows an INSPECT statement.

... 6 7 DATA DIVISION. WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. PIC X(10) VALUE "ACADEMIANS" DATA DIVISION PIC X(10) 1 PIC 99 2 PIC 99 CONTR-1 CONTR-2 VALUE OO. VALUE ZEROS. 01 01 PROCEDURE DIVISION * THIS ILLUSTRATES AN INSPECT STATEMENT WITH 2 VARIABLES. 100-BEGIN-PROCESSING. DISPLAY CONTR-1 SPACE CONTR-2 UPON MYTUBE. 101-MAINLINE-PROCESSING. PERFORM COUNT-IT THRU COUNT-EXIT STOP RUN. COUNT-IT INSPECT ID-1 TALLYING CONTR-1 FOR CHARACTERS BEFORE INITIAL "AD" CONTR-2 FOR ALL "MIANS" DISPLAY-COUNTS DISPLAY "CONTR-1 = " CONTR-1 UPON MYTUBE DISPLAY "CONTR-2 = " CONTR-2 UPON MYTUBE DISPLAY "******E0J******* UPON MYTUBE. COUNT-EXIT. EXIT

Resultant Output:

00 00 CONTR-1 = 02 CONTR-2 = 01 *******E0J*******

TALLYING Phrase

Identifier-2 is the tallying field and must be an elementary integer item defined without the symbol P in its PICTURE character-string. Identifier-2 must be initialized before the INSPECT statement is executed.

Identifier-3 or literal-1 is the comparison operand. If the comparison operand is a figurative constant, it is considered to be a one-character nonnumeric literal.

REPLACING Phrase

Identifier-5 or literal-3 is the comparison operand. Identifier-6 or literal-4 is the replacement field.

The comparison operand and the replacement field must be the same length. The following replacement rules apply:

- If the comparison operand is a figurative constant, it is considered to be a one-character nonnumeric literal. Each character in the inspected item equivalent to the figurative constant is replaced by the single-character replacement field, which must be one character in length.
- If the replacement field is a figurative constant, it is considered to be the same length as the comparison operand. Each nonoverlapping

occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item is replaced by the replacement field.

- When the comparison operand and replacement fields are character-strings, each nonoverlapping occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item is replaced by the character-string specified in the replacement field.
- Once replacement has occurred in a given character position in the inspected item, no further replacement for that character position is made in this execution of the INSPECT statement.

BEFORE/AFTER Phrases

The keywords BEFORE and AFTER should not be used in the same statement.

When either of these phrases is specified, the preceding actions for tallying and replacing are modified.

Identifier-4, identifier-7, literal-2, and literal-5 are delimiters. Tallying and/or replacement of the inspected item is bounded by their presence; however, the delimiters themselves are not counted or replaced.

If the delimiter (literal-2 or literal-5) is a figurative constant, it is considered to be 1 character in length.

In the REPLACING phrase, if the CHARACTERS phrase is specified, the delimiter (literal-5 or identifier-7) must be 1 character in length.

When the BEFORE phrase is specified, tallying and/or replacement of the inspected item begins at the leftmost character and continues until the first occurrence of the delimiter is encountered. If no delimiter is present in the inspected item, tallying and/or replacement continues to the rightmost character.

When the AFTER phrase is specified, tallying and/or replacement of the inspected item begins with the first character to the right of the delimiter and continues to the rightmost character in the inspected item. If no delimiter is present in the inspected item, no tallying or replacement takes place.

When the BEFORE/AFTER phrase is not specified, the following actions take place when the INSPECT TALLYING statement is executed:

- If the ALL phrase is specified, the tallying field is increased by one for each nonoverlapping occurrence in the inspected item of the comparison operand. This process begins at the leftmost character position and continues to the rightmost.
- If the LEADING phrase is specified, the tallying field is increased by one for each contiguous nonoverlapping occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item, provided the leftmost such occurrence is at the point where comparison began in the first comparison cycle for which the comparison operand is eligible to participate.

• If the CHARACTERS phrase is specified, the tallying field is increased by one for each character (including the space character) in the inspected item. Thus, execution of the INSPECT TALLYING statement increases the value in the tallying field by the number of characters in the inspected item.

When the BEFORE/AFTER phrase is not specified, the following actions take place when the INSPECT REPLACING statement is executed:

- If the CHARACTERS phrase is specified, the replacement field must be 1 character in length. Each character in the inspected field is replaced by the replacement field. This process begins at the leftmost character and continues to the rightmost.
- If the ALL phrase is specified, each nonoverlapping occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item is replaced by the replacement field, beginning at the leftmost character and continuing to the rightmost.
- If the LEADING phrase is specified, each contiguous nonoverlapping occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item is replaced by the replacement field, provided that the leftmost such occurrence is at the point where comparison began in the first comparison cycle for which this replacement field is eligible to participate.
- If the FIRST phrase is specified, the leftmost occurrence of the comparison operand in the inspected item is replaced by the replacement field.

INSPECT Statement Examples

The following examples illustrate some uses of the INSPECT statement. In all instances, the programmer has initialized the COUNTR field to zero before the INSPECT statement is executed.

| ID-1 Before | COUNTR After | ID-1 After |
|-------------|--------------|------------|
| 1234567 | 0 | 0000000 |
| HIJKLMN | 0 | 0000000 |

INSPECT ID-1 REPLACING CHARACTERS BY ZERO.

INSPECT ID-1 TALLYING COUNTR FOR CHARACTERS REPLACING CHARACTERS BY SPACES.

| ID-1 Before | COUNTR After | ID-1 After |
|-------------|--------------|------------|
| 1234567 | 7 | |
| HIJKLMN | 7 | |

INSPECT ID-1 REPLACING CHARACTERS BY ZEROS BEFORE INITIAL QUOTE.

| ID-1 Before | COUNTR After | ID-1 After |
|-------------|--------------|------------|
| 456"ABEL | 0 | 000"ABEL |
| ANDES"12 | 0 | 00000"12 |
| "TWAS BR | 0 | "TWAS BR |

INSPECT ID-1 TALLYING COUNTR FOR CHARACTERS AFTER INITIAL "S" REPLACING ALL "A" BY "O".

| ID-1 Before | COUNTR After | ID-1 After |
|-------------|--------------|------------|
| ANSELM | 3 | ONSELM |
| SACKET | 5 | SOCKET |
| PASSED | 3 | POSSED |

INSPECT ID-1 TALLYING COUNTR FOR LEADING "O" REPLACING FIRST "A" BY "2" AFTER INITIAL "C".

| ID-1 Before | COUNTR After | ID-1 After |
|-------------|--------------|-------------|
| 00ACADEMY00 | 2 | 00AC2DEMY00 |
| OOOOALABAMA | 4 | OOOOALABAMA |
| CHATAM0000 | 0 | CH2THAM0000 |

Programming Note: The INSPECT statement is useful for filling all or part of a data item with spaces or zeros. It is also useful for counting the number of times a specific character (for example, zero, space, asterisk) occurs in a data item. In addition, it can be used to translate characters from one collating sequence to another.

MOVE Statement

The MOVE statement transfers data from one area of storage to one or more other areas. The formats of the MOVE statement are as follows:

Format 1

$$\underline{MOVE} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{literal} \end{array} \right\} \underline{TO} \text{ identifier-2} \left[\text{, identifier-3} \right] \dots$$

Format 2

$$\underline{MOVE} \left\{ \underbrace{\underline{CORRESPONDING}}_{\underline{CORR}} \right\} identifier-1 \underline{TO} identifier-2$$

General Considerations

Identifier-1 or literal is the sending area. Identifier-2, identifier-3, and so on are the receiving areas.

An index data item cannot be specified in a MOVE statement. Any subscripting or indexing associated with the sending item is evaluated only once: immediately before the data is moved to the first receiving field. Any subscripting or indexing associated with the receiving items is evaluated immediately before the data is moved into the receiving field.

For example, the result of the statement:

MOVE A (B) TO B, C (B).

is equivalent to

MOVE A (B) TO TEMP. MOVE TEMP TO B. MOVE TEMP TO C (B).

where TEMP has been defined as an intermediate result item. The subscript B changed in value between the time the first move took place and the time the final move to C (B) was executed.

After execution of a MOVE statement, a sending field contains the same data as before execution, unless a receiving field overlaps the sending field.

Unexpected results can occur when a redefining item is moved to the redefined item (that is, if B REDEFINES C and the statement MOVE B TO C is executed). Unexpected results can also occur when a redefined item is moved to an item redefining it (from the previous example, unexpected results occur if the statement MOVE C TO B is executed).

Elementary Moves

An elementary move is one in which both the sending and receiving items are elementary items. Each elementary item belongs to one of the following categories:

- Numeric: Includes numeric data items, numeric literals, and the figurative constant ZERO/ZEROS/ZEROES
- Alphabetic: Includes alphabetic data items and the figurative constant SPACE/SPACES.

Both identifiers following the keyword CORRESPONDING must name group items. In this discussion, these identifiers are referred to as d1 and d2.

A pair of subordinate data items, one from d1 and one from d2, correspond if the following conditions are true:

• At least one of the subordinate items is elementary.

- The two subordinate items have the same name and the same qualifiers up to but not including d1 and d2.
- The subordinate items are not identified by the keyword FILLER.
- The subordinate items do not include a REDEFINES, RENAMES, OCCURS, or USAGE IS INDEX clause in their descriptions; if such a subordinate item is a group item, the items subordinate to it are also ignored. However, d1 and d2 themselves can contain or be subordinate to items containing a REDEFINES or OCCURS clause in their description.

For example, two data hierarchies are defined as follows:

05 ITEM-1 OCCURS 6 INDEXED BY X. 10 ITEM-A ... 10 ITEM-B ... 10 ITEM-C REDEFINES ITEM-B ... 05 ITEM-2. 10 ITEM-A ... 10 ITEM-B ... 10 ITEM-C ...

If MOVE CORR ITEM-2 TO ITEM-1(X) is specified, ITEM-A and ITEM-A(X), and ITEM-B and ITEM-B(X) are considered to be corresponding and the moves are performed. ITEM-C and ITEM-C(X) are not included because ITEM-C(X) includes a REDEFINES clause in its data description. ITEM-1 is valid as either d1 or d2.

• Neither d1 nor d2 is described as a level 66, 77 or 88 item, or as a FILLER or USAGE IS INDEX item.

[–] IBM Extension

D1 and/or d2 can be subordinate to a FILLER item.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

- Alphanumeric: Includes alphanumeric data items, nonnumeric literals, and all figurative constants except ZERO and SPACE.
- Alphanumeric edited: Includes alphanumeric edited data items.
- Numeric edited: Includes numeric edited data items.

IBM Extension

• Boolean: Includes Boolean data items and Boolean literals.

____ End of IBM Extension _____

Valid elementary moves are executed according to the following rules:

• Any necessary conversion of data from one form of internal representation to another along with any specified editing in the receiving item takes place during the move.

- For an alphanumeric or alphanumeric edited receiving item:
 - Justification and any necessary space filling take place as described under "Standard Alignment Rules" in Chapter 4. Unused character positions are filled with spaces.
 - If the size of the sending item is greater than the size of the receiving item, excess characters at the right are truncated after the receiving item is filled.
 - If the sending item has an operational sign, the absolute value is used. If the operational sign occupies a separate character, that character is not moved, and the size of the sending item is considered to be one less than its actual size.
- For a numeric or numeric edited receiving item:
 - Alignment by decimal point and any necessary zero filling take place as described under "Standard Alignment Rules" in Chapter 4, except where zeros are replaced because of editing requirements.
 - If the receiving item is signed, the sign of the sending item is placed in the receiving item, with any necessary sign conversion. If the sending item is unsigned, a positive operational sign is generated for the receiving item.
 - The absolute value of the sending item is used if the receiving item has no operational sign.
 - If the sending item has more digits to the left or right of the decimal point than the receiving item can contain, excess digits are truncated.
 - When the sending item is alphanumeric, the data is moved as if the sending item were described as an unsigned integer. It is the user's responsibility to ensure that the data is numeric.
- For an alphabetic receiving field:
 - Justification and any necessary space filling take place as described under "Standard Alignment Rules" in Chapter 4.
 - If the size of the sending item is greater than the size of the receiving item, excess characters at the right are truncated after the receiving item is filled.

IBM Extension

• For a Boolean receiving field, only the first byte of the sending item is moved.

_____ End of IBM Extension .

Note: If the receiving field is alphanumeric or numeric edited, and the sending field is a scaled integer (that is, it has a P as the rightmost character in its PICTURE character-string), the scaling positions are treated as trailing zeros when the MOVE statement is executed.

Figure 5-17 shows valid and invalid elementary moves for each category.

Group Moves

A group move is one in which one or both of the sending and receiving fields are a group item. A group move is treated exactly as though it were an alphanumeric elementary move except that data is not converted from one form of internal representation to another. In a group move, the receiving area is filled without consideration for the individual elementary items contained within either the sending area or the receiving area. See "OCCURS Clause" in Chapter 6 for additional information.

| Sanding | Receiving Item Category | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------|------------------------|--------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|---------|--|--|
| Item Category | Alphabetic | Alphanumeric | Alphanumeric Edited | Numeric Integer | Numeric Noninteger | Numeric Edited | Boolean | | |
| Alphabetic and SPACE | YES | YES | YES | NO | NO | NO | NO | | |
| Alphanumeric | YES | YES | YES | YES⁴ | YES⁴ | YES⁴ | YES⁵ | | |
| Nonnumeric Literal | YES | YES | YES | YES ¹ | YES ¹ | YES ¹ | YES⁵ | | |
| Alphanumeric Edited | YES | YES | YES | NO | NO | NO | NO | | |
| Numeric Integer ² | NO | YES | YES | YES | YES | YES | NO | | |
| Numeric Noninteger ² | NO | NO | NO | YES | YES | YES | NO | | |
| Numeric Edited | NO | YES | YES | NO | NO | NO | NO | | |
| LOW/HIGH- VALUES QUOTES | NO | YES | YES | NO | NO | NO | NO | | |
| ZERO | NO | YES | YES | YES | YES | YES | YES | | |
| Boolean ³ | NO | YES | YES | NO | NO | NO | YES | | |

YES = move is valid

NO = move is invalid

¹Moved only if an unsigned integer.

² Includes numeric literals.

³ Includes Boolean literals.

⁴Compiler assumes alphanumeric item is an unsigned integer.

⁵ Compiler assumes item is a 0 or a 1.

Figure 5-17. Valid and Invalid Elementary Moves

Format 1 Considerations

When Format 1 is specified, the identifiers can be either group or elementary items. The data in the sending area is moved into the first receiving area (identifier-2); then it is moved from the sending area into the second receiving area (identifier-3), and so on.

Format 2 Considerations

CORRESPONDING Phrase: The CORRESPONDING phrase allows data to be moved between elementary items of the same name simply by specifying the group items to which they belong.

The abbreviation CORR is equivalent to the keyword CORRESPONDING.

SET Statement

IBM Extension

The SET statement is used to alter the status of external switches and the values of conditional variables. See "SET Statement" in Chapter 6 for the other two formats.

Format 1

| SET mnemonic-name | 1 [, mn | emonic-nan | ne-2] | $\frac{1}{10} \left\{ \frac{ON}{OFF} \right\}$ | } |
|-------------------|-----------------|------------|-------|--|---|
| | | | | | |

Format 2

SET condition-name-1 [, condition-name-2] . . . TO TRUE

For Format 1 each mnemonic-name must be associated with an external switch, the status of which can be altered. The only external switches allowed are the UPSI switches, UPSI-0 through UPSI-7.

The status of each external switch associated with the specified mnemonic-name is modified such that the truth value resultant from evaluation of a condition-name associated with that switch will reflect an on status if the ON phrase is specified, or an off status if the OFF phrase is specified. For additional information, refer to "Simple Conditions, Switch-Status Condition" earlier in this chapter.

Format 2 allows conditional items to be set to their stated values. The literal in the VALUE clause associated with the condition-name is moved to the conditional variable according to the rules for elementary moves.

If multiple condition-names are specified, the results are the same as those obtained if a separate SET statement were written for each condition-name in the same order specified in the SET statement.

__ End of IBM Extension __

STRING Statement

The STRING statement gives the programmer the ability to concatenate the partial or complete contents of two or more data items into a single data item.

Format



Each literal must be a nonnumeric literal; each can be any figurative constant except the ALL literal. When a figurative constant is specified, it is considered a 1-character nonnumeric literal.

All identifiers except identifier-8 (the pointer item) must have USAGE DISPLAY, explicitly or implicitly.

The sending fields are identifier-1, identifier-2, identifier-4, identifier-5, or their corresponding literals.

The receiving field is identifier-7, which must be an elementary alphanumeric item without editing symbols and without the JUSTIFIED clause in its description.

The delimiters are identifier-3, identifier-6, or their corresponding literals, or the keyword SIZE. The delimiters specify the character(s) delimiting the data to be transferred; when SIZE is specified, the complete sending area is transferred.

When the sending field or any of the delimiters are elementary numeric items, they must be described as integers, and their PICTURE character-strings must not contain the symbol P.

The pointer field is identifier-8, which must be an elementary integer data item large enough to contain a value equal to the length of the receiving area plus one. The pointer field must not contain the symbol P in its PICTURE character-string.

STRING Statement Execution

When the STRING statement is executed, data is transferred from the sending fields to the receiving field. The order in which sending fields are processed is the order in which they are specified. The following rules apply:

- Characters from the sending fields are transferred to the receiving field according to the rules for alphanumeric to alphanumeric elementary moves except that no space filling is provided.
- When the DELIMITED BY identifier/literal is specified, the contents of each sending item are transferred character by character beginning with the leftmost and continuing until either a delimiter for this sending field is reached (the delimiter itself is not transferred) or the rightmost character of this sending field has been transferred.
- When DELIMITED BY SIZE is specified, each sending field is transferred in its entirety to the receiving field.
- When the receiving field is filled or when all the sending fields have been processed, the operation is ended.
- When the POINTER phrase is specified, an explicit pointer field is available to the COBOL user to control placement of data in the receiving field. The user must set the explicit pointer's initial value, which must not be less than one and not more than the character count of the receiving field. The pointer field must be defined as large enough to contain a value equal to the length of the receiving field plus 1; this precludes arithmetic overflow when the system updates the pointer at the end of the transfer.
- When the POINTER phrase is not specified, no pointer is available to the user. However, an implicit pointer with an initial value of one is used by the system.
- When the STRING statement is executed, the initial pointer value (explicit or implicit) points to the first character position within the receiving field into which data is to be transferred. Beginning at that position, data is then positioned character by character from left to right. After each character is positioned, the explicit or implicit pointer is incremented by one. The value in the pointer field is changed only in this manner. At the end of processing, the pointer value always indicates one character beyond the last character transferred into the receiving field.
- If, at any time during or after initiation of STRING statement execution, the pointer value (explicit or implicit) is less than one or exceeds a value equal to the length of the receiving field, no more data is transferred into the receiving field and, if specified, the ON OVERFLOW imperative-statement is executed. (The ON OVERFLOW statement is not executed unless there was an attempt to move in one or more characters beyond the end of identifier-7.)

• If the ON OVERFLOW phrase is not specified, then when the preceding conditions occur, control passes to the next executable statement.

After STRING statement execution is completed, only that part of the receiving field into which data was transferred is changed. The rest of the receiving field contains the data that was present before this execution of the STRING statement. Figure 5-18 illustrates the rules of execution for the STRING statement.

STRING Statement Example

The following example illustrates some of the considerations that apply to the STRING statement.

In the Data Division, the programmer has defined the following fields:

| 01 | RPT-LINE | PICTURE | X(120). |
|----|-----------|---------|--------------|
| 01 | LINE-POS | PICTURE | 99. |
| 01 | LINE-NO | PICTURE | 9(5) VALUE 1 |
| 01 | DEC-POINT | PICTURE | X VALUE ".". |

In the File Section, he has defined the following input record:

| 01 | RCD-01. | | |
|----|---------------|---------|----------------|
| | 05 CUST-INFO | | |
| | 10 CUST-NAME | PICTURE | X(15). |
| | 10 CUST-ADDR | PICTURE | X(34) |
| | 05 BILL-INFO. | | |
| | 10 INV-NO | PICTURE | X(6). |
| | 10 INV-AMT | PICTURE | \$\$ \$\$\$ 99 |
| | 10 AMT-PAID | PICTURE | \$\$ \$\$\$ 99 |
| | 10 DATE-PAID | PICTURE | X(8) |
| | 10 BAL-DUF | PICTURE | \$\$ \$\$\$ 99 |
| | 10 DATE-DUE | PICTURE | X(8). |

STRING Statement to be Executed:

STRING ID-1 ID-2 DELIMITED BY ID-3 ID-4 ID-5 DELIMITED BY SIZE INTO ID-7 WITH POINTER ID-8.

Results:



ID-8 (pointer) after Execution



(initialized to 01 before execution)

Figure 5-18. STRING Statement Execution Results

The user wants to construct an output line consisting of portions of the information from RCD-01. The line is to consist of a line number, customer name and address, invoice number, date due, and balance due, truncated to the dollar figure shown.

The record as read in contains the following information:

J.B.bSMITHbbbbb 444bSPRINGbST.,bCHICAGO,bILL.bbbbbb A14275 \$4,736.85 \$2,400.00 09/22/76 \$2,336.85 10/22/76 In the Procedure Division, the user initializes RPT-LINE to SPACES and sets LINE-POS (which is to be used as the pointer field) to 4. Then he issues this STRING statement:

| S 7 | FRI | NG | LΙ | ΝE | – N | 0 | S | PA | I C E | | |
|-----|-----|-----|--------------|-----|-----|----|----|----|-------|--------|-----|
| | | CUS | ST- | IN | FC | | SP | AC | Έ | | |
| | | ١N | V – N | 10 | SP | A | СΕ | | | | |
| | | DA. | TE- | DU | Е | SI | PΑ | СЕ | | | |
| | DE | LI | ΠIΝ | ΈD | В | Y | S | ΙZ | Έ, | , | |
| | | BAI | _ - D | IUE | | | | | | | |
| | DE | LI | TΙΝ | ΈD | В | Y | D | EC | ;-F | 01 O Y | ΝT |
| | ΙN | Τ0 | RP | 'T- | LI | N | E | | | | |
| | WI | TH | PC | IN | ΤE | R | L | IN | IE- | •P0 | IS. |

When the statement is executed, the following actions take place:

- 1. The field LINE-NO is moved into positions 4 through 8 of RPT-LINE.
- 2. A space is moved into position 9.
- 3. The group item CUST-INFO is moved into positions 10 through 58.
- 4. A space is moved into position 59.
- 5. INV-NO is moved into positions 60 through 65.
- 6. A space is moved into position 66.
- 7. DATE-DUE is moved into positions 67 through 74.
- 8. A space is moved into position 75.
- 9. The portion of BAL-DUE that precedes the decimal point is moved into positions 76 through 81.

After the STRING statement has been executed:

- RPT-LINE appears as shown in Figure 5-19.
- LINE-POS contains the value 82.

Programming Note: One STRING statement can be written instead of a series of MOVE statements.

Column 4 10 25 00001 J.B. SMITH 444 SPRING ST., CHICAGO, ILL. 60 67 76 4 4 A14725 10/22/76 \$2,336

Figure 5-19. STRING Statement Example Output Data

UNSTRING Statement

The UNSTRING statement causes contiguous data in a sending field to be separated and placed into multiple receiving fields.

Format

UNSTRING identifier-1



Each literal must be a nonnumeric literal; each may be any figurative constant except ALL literal. When a figurative constant is specified, it is considered to be a 1-character nonnumeric literal.

Sending Field

Identifier-1 is the sending field. It must be an alphanumeric data item. Data is transferred from this field to the receiving fields.

DELIMITED BY Phrase: This phrase specifies delimiters within identifier-1 that control the data transfer.

The delimiters are identifier-2, identifier-3, or their corresponding literals. Each identifier or literal specified represents one delimiter. No more than 30 delimiters can be specified. Each must be an alphanumeric data item.

If a delimiter contains two or more characters, it is recognized in the sending field only if the delimiter characters are contiguous and, in the sequence specified, in the delimiter item.

When two or more delimiters are specified, an OR condition exists and each nonoverlapping occurrence of any one of the delimiters is recognized in the sending field in the sequence specified. For example, if DELIMITED BY AB OR BC is specified, then an occurrence of either AB or BC in the sending field is considered a delimiter. An occurrence of ABC is considered an occurrence of AB, and the search for another delimiter resumes with C.

When the DELIMITED BY ALL phrase is not specified, and two or more contiguous occurrences of any delimiter are encountered, the current data receiving field is filled with spaces or zeros according to the description of the data receiving field. When the DELIMITED BY ALL phrase is specified, one or more contiguous occurrences of any delimiter are treated as if they were only one occurrence, and this one occurrence is moved to the delimiter receiving field (if specified). The delimiting characters in the sending field are treated as an elementary alphanumeric item and are moved into the current delimiter receiving field according to the rules of the MOVE statement.

The DELIMITER IN and COUNT IN phrases can be specified only if the DELIMITER BY phrase is specified.

Data Receiving Fields

Identifier-4, identifier-7, and so on, are the data receiving fields and must have USAGE DISPLAY. These fields can be defined as:

- Alphabetic (without the symbol B in the PICTURE string)
- Alphanumeric
- Numeric (without the symbol P in the PICTURE string).

These fields must not be defined as alphanumeric edited or numeric edited items. Data is transferred to these fields from the sending field.

DELIMITER IN Phrase: The delimiter receiving fields are identifier-5, identifier-8, and so on. These identifiers must be alphanumeric. They must not be defined as alphanumeric edited or numeric edited items.

COUNT IN Phrase: The data-count fields for each data transfer are identifier-6, identifier-9, and so on. These identifiers must be described as elementary numeric integer data items; they cannot contain the symbol P in their PICTURE clauses. Each field holds the count of delimited characters in the sending field to be transferred to this receiving field; the delimiters are not included in this count.

POINTER Phrase: The pointer field is identifier-10. This identifier must be described as an elementary numeric integer data item; it cannot contain the symbol P in its PICTURE clause. The identifier contains a value position in the sending field. When this phrase is specified, this field must be initialized before execution of the UNSTRING statement to a value that is not less than one and not greater than the count of the sending field.

TALLYING Phrase: The field-count is identifier-11. This identifier must be described as an elementary numeric integer data item; it cannot contain the symbol P in its PICTURE clause. The identifier is incremented by the number of data receiving fields acted upon in this execution of the UNSTRING statement. When this phrase is specified, this field must be initialized before execution of the UNSTRING statement.

The data-count fields, the pointer field, and the field-count field must each be integer items without the symbol P in the PICTURE character-strings.

UNSTRING Statement Execution

When the UNSTRING statement is initiated, the current data receiving field is identifier-4. Data is transferred from the sending field to the current data receiving field according to the following rules:

- If the POINTER phrase is not specified, the sending field character-string is examined beginning with the leftmost character. If the POINTER phrase is specified, the field is examined beginning at the relative character position specified by the value in the pointer field.
- If the DELIMITED BY phrase is specified, the examination proceeds left to right character by character until a delimiter is encountered. If the end of the sending field is reached before a delimiter is found, the examination ends with the last character in the sending field.
- If the DELIMITED BY phrase is not specified, the number of characters examined is equal to the size of the current data receiving field, which depends on its data category:
 - If the receiving field is alphanumeric or alphabetic, the number of characters examined is equal to the number of characters in the current receiving field.
 - If the receiving field is numeric, the number of characters examined is equal to the number of characters in the integer portion of the current receiving field.
 - If the receiving field is described with the SIGN IS SEPARATE clause, the characters examined are one fewer than the size of the current receiving field.
 - If the receiving field is described as a variable-length data item, the number of characters examined is determined by the current size of the current receiving field.
- The examined characters (excluding any delimiter characters) are treated as an alphanumeric elementary item, and are moved into the current data receiving field according to the rules for the MOVE statement.
- If the DELIMITER IN phrase is specified, the delimiting characters in the sending field are treated as an elementary alphanumeric item and are moved to the current delimiter receiving field according to the rules for the MOVE statement. If the delimiting condition is the end of the sending field, the current delimiter receiving field is filled with spaces.
- If the COUNT IN phrase is specified, a value equal to the number of examined characters (excluding any delimiters) is moved into the data count field, according to the rules for an elementary move.
- If the DELIMITED BY phrase is specified, the sending field is further examined, beginning with the first character to the right of the delimiter.

- If the DELIMITED BY phrase is not specified, the sending field is further examined, beginning with the first character to the right of the last character examined.
- After data is transferred to the first data receiving field (identifier-4), the current data receiving field becomes identifier-7. For each succeeding current data receiving field, the preceding procedure is repeated either until all of the characters in the sending field have been transferred, or until there are no more unfilled data receiving fields.
- When the POINTER phrase is specified, the contents of the pointer field behaves as if incremented by one for each examined character in the sending field. When this execution of the UNSTRING statement is completed, the pointer field contains a value equal to its initial value plus the number of characters examined in the sending field.
- When the TALLYING phrase is specified and the execution of the UNSTRING statement is completed, the tallying identifier contains a value equal to the initial value plus the number of data receiving areas acted upon; this count includes any null fields.
- When an overflow condition exists, the execution of the UNSTRING statement is terminated. If the ON OVERFLOW phrase has been specified, that imperative-statement is executed. If the ON OVERFLOW phrase has not been specified, control passes to the next executable statement. An overflow condition exists when:
 - An UNSTRING statement is initiated and the value in the pointer field is less than 1 or greater than the length of the sending field.
 - Or, all data receiving fields have been acted upon during UNSTRING statement execution, and the sending field still contains unexamined characters.

Note: If any of the UNSTRING statement identifiers are subscripted or indexed, the subscripts and indexes are evaluated as follows:

- Any subscripting or indexing associated with the sending field, the pointer field, or the field-count field is evaluated only once immediately before any data is transferred.
- Any subscripting or indexing associated with the delimiters, the data and delimiter receiving fields or the data-count fields, is evaluated immediately before the transfer of data into the affected data item.

Figure 5-20 illustrates the rules of execution for the UNSTRING statement.

The following UNSTRING statement has the execution results shown:

UNSTRING ID-SEND DELIMITED BY DEL-ID OR ALL "*" INTO ID-R1 DELIMITER IN ID-D1 COUNT IN ID-C1 (All the data **ID-R2 DELIMITER IN ID-D2** receiving fields ID-R3 DELIMITER IN ID-D3 COUNT IN ID-C3 are defined as ID-R4 COUNT IN ID-C4 alphanumeric.) WITH POINTER ID-P TALLYING IN ID-T ON OVERFLOW GO TO OFLOW-EXIT. **ID-SEND** at Execution DEL-ID 6 at Execution В ? 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 Α С D Е (7)(2) 4 5) (1) 3 (6) 8 b 3 b 4 5 6 7 В 2 b b 9 С 1 b b b ID-R1 after ID-R2 after ID-R3 after ID-R4 after Execution Execution Execution Execution ID-D2 ID-D3 ID-P ID-D1 ID-C1 ID-C3 ID-C4 ID-T (pointer) (tallying field) 3 b 0 b ? ? b 8 2 1 0 5 (after (after execution) (after execution) (after execution-both execution) initialized to 01 before execution) The order of execution is: considered to be the delimiter. The (1) Three characters are examined before a delimiter is second "?" is the delimiter for the next encountered. These characters are moved to ID-R1. receiving field. No characters are examined before the next (5) (2) The delimiter "*" is placed in ID-D1; the number of delimiter is encountered, so no characters are moved characters before the delimiter is moved to ID-C1. to ID-R3. Padding causes ID-R3 to be filled with spaces. The delimiter "?" is placed in ID-D3. The Note: Because ALL "*" is specified, the second number of examined characters (0) is moved to asterisk is treated as part of the delimiter. ID-C3. Only the first occurrence of the delimiter is moved to the DELIMITER IN data The remaining 8 characters are examined; no item, ID-D1. delimiter is found. These characters are moved to ID-R4. Because of the size of the receiving field, 3) Five characters are examined before the next the last 3 characters are lost due to truncation. delimiter is encountered. These characters are However, the total number of characters moved to ID-R2. examined (8) is moved to ID-C4. 4) The delimiter "?" is placed in ID-D2. After execution, ID-P is incremented by the Note: Because ALL is not specified for this number of characters examined, and ID-T is delimiter, only the first "?" is incremented by the number of receiving fields processed.

Figure 5-20. UNSTRING Statement Execution Results

UNSTRING Statement Example

The following example illustrates some of the considerations that apply to the UNSTRING statement.

In the Data Division, the user has defined the following input record to be acted upon by the UNSTRING statement:

| 01 | IN۱ | /-RCD. | | |
|----|-----|---------------|-----|---------|
| | 05 | CONTROL-CHARS | PIC | XX. |
| | 05 | ITEM-INDENT | PIC | X(20). |
| | 05 | FILLER | PIC | Χ. |
| | 05 | INV-CODE | PIC | X(10) |
| | 05 | FILLER | PIC | Χ. |
| | 05 | NO-UNITS | PIC | 9(6). |
| | 05 | FILLER | PIC | Χ. |
| | 05 | PRICE-PER-M | PIC | 99999. |
| | 05 | FILLER | PIC | Χ. |
| | 05 | RTL-AMT | PIC | 9(6).99 |

The next two records are defined as receiving fields for the UNSTRING statement. DISPLAY-REC is to be used for printed output. WORK-REC is to be used for further internal processing.

| 01 | DI 05 05 05 05 05 | SPLAY-REC INV-NO FILLER ITEM-NAME FILLER DISPLAY-DOLS | PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC | X(6) X VALUE X(20) X VALUE 9(6). | SPACE SPACE |
|----|----------------------------------|--|---------------------------------|--|----------------|
| 01 | WO 05 05 05 | RK-REC M-UNITS FIELD-A WK-PRICE | PIC PIC | 9(6). 9(6). | |
| | 05 | REDEFINES FIELD-A INV-CLASS | PIC PIC | 9999V99 X(3). | |

The user has also defined the following fields for use as control fields in the UNSTRING statement.

| 01 | DBY-1 | PIC | Χ. | VALUE 1 | [S ' | <u>ار ا</u> |
|----|-------------|-----|-----|---------|------|-------------|
| 01 | CTR-1 | PIC | 99, | VALUE | IS | ZERO. |
| 01 | CTR-2 | PIC | 99, | VALUE | IS | ZERO |
| 01 | CTR-3 | PIC | 99, | VALUE | ΙS | ZERO. |
| 01 | CTR-4 | PIC | 99, | VALUE | ΙS | ZERO. |
| 01 | DLTR-1 | PIC | X | | | |
| 01 | DLTR-2 | PIC | Χ. | | | |
| 01 | CHAR-CT | PIC | 99, | VALUE | IS | 3. |
| 01 | FLDS-FILLED | PIC | 99, | VALUE | ΙS | ZERO. |

In the Procedure Division, the user writes the following UNSTRING statement to move subfields of INV-RCD to the subfields of DISPLAY-REC and WORK-REC:

UNSTRING INV-RCD DELIMITED BY ALL SPACES OR "/" OR DBY-1 INTO ITEM-NAME COUNT IN CTR-1, INV-NO DELIMITER IN DLTR-1 COUNT IN CTR-2, INV-CLASS, M-UNITS COUNT IN CTR-3, FIELD-A, DISPLAY-DOLS DELIMITER IN DLTR-2 COUNT IN CTR-4 WITH POINTER CHAR-CT TALLYING IN FLDS-FILLED ON OVERFLOW GO TO UNSTRING-COMPLETE.

Before the UNSTRING statement is issued, the user places the value 3 in the CHAR-CT (the pointer item), so as not to work with the two control characters at the beginning of INV-RCD. In DBY-1, a period is placed for use as a delimiter, and in FLDS-FILLED (the tallying item) the value 0 is placed. The following data is then read into INV-RCD as shown in Figure 5-21.





When the UNSTRING statement is executed, the following actions take place:

- 1. Positions 3 through 18 (FOUR-PENNY-NAILS) of INV-RCD are placed in ITEM-NAME, left-justified within the area, and the unused character positions are padded with spaces. The value 16 is placed in CTR-1.
- 2. Because ALL SPACES is specified as a delimiter, the five contiguous SPACE characters are considered to be one occurrence of the delimiter.
- 3. Positions 24 through 29 (707890) are placed in INV-NO. The delimiter character / is placed in DLTR-1, and the value 6 is placed in CTR-2.
- 4. Positions 31 through 33 are placed in INV-CLASS. The delimiter is a SPACE, but because no field has been defined as a receiving area for delimiters, the SPACE is merely bypassed.
- Positions 35 through 40 (475120) are examined and are placed in M-UNITS. The delimiter is a SPACE, but because no receiving field has been defined as a receiving area for delimiters, the SPACE is bypassed. The value 6 is placed in CTR-3.
- 6. Positions 42 through 46 (00122) are placed in FIELD-A and right-justified within the area. The high-order digit position is filled with a 0 (zero). The delimiter is a SPACE, but because no field has been defined as a receiving area for delimiters, the SPACE is bypassed.

- 7. Positions 48 through 53 (000379) are placed in DISPLAY-DOLS. The period delimiter character is placed in DLTR-2, and the value 6 is placed in CTR-4.
- 8. Because all receiving fields have been acted upon and two characters of data in INV-RCD have not been examined, the ON OVERFLOW exit is taken, and execution of the UNSTRING statement is completed.

At the end of execution of the UNSTRING statement, DISPLAY-REC contains the following data:

707890 FOUR-PENNY-NAILS 000379

WORK-REC contains the following data:

475120000122BBA

CHAR-CT (the pointer field) contains the value 55, and FLD-FILLED (the tallying field) contains the value 6.

Programming Note: One UNSTRING statement can be written instead of a series of MOVE statements.

Procedure Branching Statements

Statements, sentences, and paragraphs in the Procedure Division are ordinarily executed sequentially. The procedure branching statements allow alterations in the sequence. The procedure branching statements are: ALTER, EXIT, GO TO, PERFORM, and STOP.

ALTER Statement

The ALTER statement changes the transfer point specified in a G0 T0 statement.

Format

Procedure-name-1, procedure-name-3, and so on, must each name a Procedure Division paragraph that contains only one sentence. That sentence must be a GO TO statement without the DEPENDING ON phrase.

Procedure-name-2, procedure-name-4, and so on, must each name a Procedure Division section or paragraph.

ALTER statement execution modifies the G0 T0 statement in the paragraph named by procedure-name-1, procedure-name-3, and so on. Subsequent executions of the modified GO TO statement(s) cause control to be transferred to procedure-name-2, and (if specified) procedure-name-4, and so on. For example:

```
PARAGRAPH-1
GO TO BYPASS-PARAGRAPH
PARAGRAPH-1A
BYPASS-PARAGRAPH
ALTER PARAGRAPH-1 TO PROCEED TO
PARAGRAPH-2
PARAGRAPH-2
```

Before the ALTER statement is executed, when control reaches PARAGRAPH-1, the GO TO statement transfers control to BYPASS-PARAGRAPH. After execution of the ALTER statement, however, the next time control reaches PARAGRAPH-1, the GO TO statement transfers control to PARAGRAPH-2.

Programming Note: The ALTER statement acts as a program switch, allowing, for example, one sequence of execution during initialization and another sequence during the bulk of file processing. Because altered GO TO statements are difficult to debug, it is preferable to test a switch, and based on the value of the switch, execute a particular code sequence.

Segmentation Information

A GO TO statement in a section whose segment-number is greater than or equal to 50 must not be referred to by an ALTER statement in a section with a different segment-number. All other uses of the ALTER statement are valid and are performed.

Modified G0 T0 statements in independent segments can sometimes be returned to their initial states. See "Program Segments, Independent Segments" in Chapter 6 for further discussion.

EXIT Statement

The EXIT statement provides a common end point for a series of procedures.
Format

EXIT [PROGRAM].

The EXIT statement must appear in a sentence by itself, and this sentence must be the only sentence in the paragraph. The EXIT statement lets the user assign a procedure-name to a given point in a program.

The EXIT statement has no other effect on the compilation or execution of the program.

The EXIT PROGRAM statement is discussed under "Procedure Division – Inter-Program Communication" in Chapter 6.

Programming Note: The EXIT statement is useful for documenting the end point in a series of procedures. If an exit paragraph is written as the last paragraph in a Declarative procedure or a series of performed procedures, it identifies the point at which control will be transferred. When control reaches such an exit paragraph and the associated Declarative or PERFORM statement is active, control is transferred to the appropriate part of the Procedure Division. When control reaches such an exit paragraph and no associated PERFORM statement or Declarative procedure is active, control passes through the EXIT statement to the first statement of the next paragraph.

If an EXIT statement is not written, the end of the sequence is difficult to determine unless the user knows the logic of the program.

GO TO Statement

The GO TO statement transfers control from one part of the Procedure Division to another. The formats of the GO TO statement are as follows:

Format 1

GO TO [procedure-name-1]

Format 2

GO TO procedure-name-1 [, procedure-name-2] . . . , procedure-name-n

DEPENDING ON identifier

Each procedure-name specified must name a paragraph or section in the Procedure Division.

Format 1-Unconditional GO TO

The GO TO statement transfers control to the first statement in the paragraph or section named in procedure-name-1 unless the GO TO statement has been modified by an ALTER statement.

When a Format 1 G0 T0 statement appears in a sequence of imperative statements, it must be the last statement in the sequence.

When a paragraph is referred to by an ALTER statement, the paragraph can consist only of a paragraph-name followed by a Format 1 G0 T0 statement.

If procedure-name-1 is not specified in a Format 1 G0 T0 statement, an ALTER statement must have been executed before the execution of the G0 T0 statement. The G0 T0 statement must immediately follow a paragraph-name and must be the only statement in the paragraph.

Format 2-Conditional GO TO

Control is transferred to one of a series of procedures, depending on the value of identifier. Identifier must name an elementary integer item. When identifier has a value of one, control is transferred to the first statement in the procedure named by procedure-name-1; if it has a value of two, control is transferred to the first statement in the procedure named by procedure-name 3, and so on.

If the value of identifier is anything other than a value within the range 1 through n (where n is the number of procedure-names specified in this G0 T0 statement), the G0 T0 statement is ignored. Instead, control passes to the next statement in the normal sequence of execution.

The maximum number of procedure-names permitted for a Format 2 GO TO statement is 255.

PERFORM Statement

The PERFORM statement transfers control explicitly to one or more procedures and implicitly returns control to the next executable statement after execution of the specified procedure(s) is completed. The formats of the PERFORM statement are as follows:

Format 1

$$\frac{\mathsf{PERFORM}}{\mathsf{PERFORM}} \text{ procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\mathsf{THROUGH}}{\mathsf{THRU}} \right\} \text{ procedure-name-2} \right]$$

Format 2

$$\underline{PERFORM} \text{ procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{ procedure-name-2} \right] \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{integer-1} \end{array} \right\} \underline{\text{TIMES}}$$

Format 3

$$\frac{\text{PERFORM}}{\text{PERFORM}} \text{ procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{ procedure-name-2} \right] \frac{\text{UNTIL}}{\text{UNTIL}} \text{ condition}$$

Format 4

PERFORM procedure-name-1
$$\left[\left\{\frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}}\right\} \text{ procedure-name-2}\right]$$
VARYING $\left[\substack{\text{identifier-1}\\\text{index-name-1}}\right]$ $EROM$ $\left[\substack{\text{identifier-2}\\\text{index-name-2}\\\text{literal-2}\end{array}\right]$ BY $\left\{\substack{\text{identifier-3}\\\text{literal-3}}\right\}$ UNTIL condition-1 $\left[AFTER$ $\left[\substack{\text{identifier-4}\\\text{index-name-4}}\right]$ $FROM$ $\left[\substack{\text{identifier-5}\\\text{index-name-5}\\\text{literal-5}\end{array}\right]$ BY $\left\{\substack{\text{identifier-6}\\\text{literal-6}\end{array}\right\}$ UNTIL condition-2 $\left[AFTER$ $\left[\substack{\text{identifier-7}\\\text{index-name-7}\right]$ $FROM$ $\left\{\substack{\text{identifier-8}\\\text{index-name-8}\\\text{literal-8}\end{array}\right\}$ BY $\left\{\substack{\text{identifier-9}\\\text{literal-9}\end{array}\right\}$ UNTIL condition-3 $\left]$

Each procedure-name must name a section or paragraph in the Procedure Division.

When both procedure-name-1 and procedure-name-2 are specified, if either is a procedure-name in a Declarative procedure, then both must be procedure-names in the same Declarative procedure.

Each identifier must name a numeric elementary item.

Each literal must be a numeric literal.

The set of statements within the range of procedure-name-1 (through procedure-name-2 if specified) for a PERFORM statement are referred to as the *specified set of statements*.

Whenever a PERFORM statement is executed, control is transferred to the first statement of the specified set of statements. Control is always returned to the statement following the PERFORM statement. The point from which this control is returned is determined as follows:

- If procedure-name-1 is a paragraph name and procedure-name-2 is not specified, the return is made after the execution of the last statement of procedure-name-1.
- If procedure-name-1 is a section-name and procedure-name-2 is not specified, the return is made after the execution of the last sentence of the last paragraph in that section.
- If procedure-name-2 is specified and it is a paragraph name, the return is made after the execution of the last statement of that paragraph.
- If procedure-name-2 is specified and it is a section-name, the return is made after the execution of the last sentence of the last paragraph in the section.

The only necessary relationship between procedure-name-1 and procedure-name-2 is that a consecutive sequence of operations is executed beginning at the procedure named by procedure-name-1 and ending with the execution of the procedure named by procedure-name-2.

When both procedure-name-1 and procedure-name-2 are specified, G0 T0 and PERFORM statements can appear within the sequence of statements contained in these paragraphs or sections. A G0 T0 statement should not refer to a procedure-name outside the range of procedure-name-1 through procedure-name-2. If this is done, results are unpredictable and are not diagnosed.

When only procedure-name-1 is specified, PERFORM and GO TO statements can appear within the procedure. A GO TO statement should not refer to a procedure-name outside the range of procedure-name-1. If this is done, results are unpredictable and are not diagnosed.

When the performed procedures include another PERFORM statement, the sequence of procedures associated with the embedded PERFORM statement must be totally included in or totally excluded from the performed procedures of the first PERFORM statement. That is, an active PERFORM statement whose execution point begins within the range of performed procedures of another active PERFORM statement must not allow control to pass through the exit point of the other active PERFORM statement. In addition, two or more such active PERFORM statements must not have a common exit.

IBM Extension

Two active PERFORM statements can have a common exit point.

_ End of IBM Extension _

When control passes to the sequence of procedures by means other than a PERFORM statement, control passes through the exit point to the next executable statement as if no PERFORM statement referred to these procedures.

The range of a PERFORM statement logically consists of all executed statements resulting from the execution of a PERFORM statement, and includes the implicit transfer of control to the end of the PERFORM statement. This range includes all executed statements in Declarative procedures as well as statements resulting from the transfer of control by CALL, EXIT without the PROGRAM phrase, GO TO, and PERFORM statements. The statements in the range of a PERFORM statement need not appear consecutively in the source program.

Figure 5-22 illustrates valid sequences of execution for PERFORM statements.

The preceding rules refer to all four formats of the PERFORM statement. The following sections give rules applying to each individual format.

Format 1

Format 1 is the basic PERFORM statement. The procedure(s) referred to is executed once, and then control passes to the next executable statement following the PERFORM statement.

Format 2

Format 2 uses the TIMES phrase. Identifier-1 must name an integer item. The procedure(s) referred to is executed the number of times specified by the value in identifier-1 or integer-1. Control then passes to the next executable statement following the PERFORM statement. The following rules apply:

- If identifier-1 is zero or a negative number at the time the PERFORM statement is initiated, control passes to the statement following the PERFORM statement.
- After the PERFORM statement has been initiated, any reference to identifier-1 or change in the value of identifier-1 has no effect in varying the number of times the procedures are executed.

Format 3

Format 3 uses the UNTIL phrase. The procedure(s) referred to is performed until the condition specified by the UNTIL phrase is true. Control is then passed to the next executable statement following the PERFORM statement.

If condition-1 is true at the time the PERFORM statement is encountered, the specified procedure(s) is not executed.





Format 4

Format 4 uses the VARYING phrase. This phrase increments or decrements one or more identifiers or index-names according to the following rules. Once the condition(s) specified in the UNTIL phrase is satisfied, control is passed to the next executable statement following the PERFORM statement.

No matter how many variables are specified, the following rules apply:

- In the VARYING/AFTER phrases, when an index-name is specified:
 - The index-name is initialized and incremented or decremented according to the rules for the SET statement. For a description of the SET statement, see "Table Handling" in Chapter 6.
 - In the associated FROM phrase, an identifier must be described as an integer and have a positive value; a literal must be a positive integer.
 - In the associated BY phrase, an identifier must be described as an integer; a literal must be a nonzero integer.

- In the FROM phrase, when an index-name is specified:
 - In the associated VARYING/AFTER phrase, an identifier must be described as an integer. It is initialized as described in the SET statement.
 - In the associated BY phrase, an identifier must be described as an integer and have a nonzero value; a literal must be a nonzero integer.
- In the BY phrase, identifiers and literals must have a nonzero value.
- Changing the values of identifiers and/or index-names in the VARYING, AFTER, FROM, and BY phrases during execution changes the number of times the procedures are executed.

The way in which operands are incremented or decremented depends on the number of variables specified.

Varying One Identifier

In the following discussion, every reference to identifier-n refers equally to index-name-n except when identifier-n is the object of the BY phrase.

The following actions take place:

- 1. Identifier-1 is set equal to its starting value, identifier-2 or literal-2.
- 2. Condition-1 is evaluated:
 - a. If it is false, steps 3 through 5 are executed.
 - b. If it is true, control passes directly to the statement following the PERFORM statement.
- 3. Procedure-1 through procedure-2 (if specified) are executed once.
- 4. Identifier-1 is augmented by identifier-3 (or literal-3), and condition-1 is evaluated again.
- 5. Steps 2 through 4 are repeated until condition-1 is true.

Figure 5-23 is a flowchart illustrating the logic of the PERFORM statement when one identifier is varied.



(

Figure 5-23. Format 4 PERFORM Statement Logic - Varying One Identifier

The following example shows a PERFORM statement varying one identifier. This PERFORM logic is executed 100 times.

| . 1 . | 2 . | 3 | 4. | 5 | 67 |
|----------------------|--|-------------------------------------|--|---|-------------------------------|
| DAT WOR 01 | A DIVISION KING-STORAGE : SUB1 | SECTION. | PIC 999 | | |
| 01 01 01 01 | TOTAL-HOLD HOLD-2 HOLD-THE-SUM TABLE-FLEMEN | т | PIC 99 PIC 99 PIC 99 PIC 99 | VALUE 57 VALUE 10 VALUE ZE | RO. |
| PRO | 03 ELEMENTS CEDURE DIVISI | - OF-TABLE ON. SING | PIC 9 | OCCURS 1 | OO TIMES. |
| * | THIS PERFORM PERFORM SAMP | LOGIC IS LE-PERFORM | EXECUTED 10 1 THRU PERFO | 00 TIMES. ORM-EXIT U SUB1 GRE | ΔΤΕΡ ΤΗΔΝ 100 |
| * | THIS ADD STA ADD TOTAL-HO DISPLAY "TOT UPON MYT | TEMENT IS LD HOLD-2 AL OF TWO | EXECUTED A GIVING HOLI VARIABLES | FTER PERFOR D-THE-SUM = "HOLD-TH | M IS DONE. |
| * | PERFORM ANOT THE TABLE WI DISPLAY "THE STOP RUN | HER-WAY-TO LL BE ALL TABLE " | D-INITIALIZ ZEROS AND TABLE-ELEM | E THRU AWTI SHOULD PRIN ENT UPON MY | -EXIT. T AS SUCH. TUBE. |
| SAM | PLE-PERFORM MOVE ZEROS T | O ELEMENTS | S-OF-TABLE | (SUB1). | |
| PER | FORM-EXIT. EXIT. | | | | |
| ANU AWT | MOVE ZEROS T I-EXIT. EXIT. | D TABLE-EL | EMENT. | | |

Varying Two Identifiers

In the following discussion, every reference to identifier-n refers equally to index-name-n except when identifier-n is the object of the BY phrase.

The following actions take place:

- 1. Identifier-1 and identifier-4 are set to their initial values, identifier-2 (or literal-2) and identifier-5 (or literal-5), respectively.
- 2. Condition-1 is evaluated:
 - a. If it is false, steps 3 through 7 are executed.
 - b. If it is true, control passes directly to the statement following the PERFORM statement.
- 3. Condition-2 is evaluated:
 - a. If it is false, steps 4 through 6 are executed.
 - b. If it is true, identifier-4 is set to the current value of identifier-5, and identifier-1 is augmented by identifier-3 (or literal-3), and step 2 is repeated.
- 4. Procedure-1 through procedure-2 (if specified) are executed once.

- 5. Identifier-4 is augmented by identifier-6 (or literal-6).
- 6. Steps 3 through 5 are repeated until condition-2 is true.
- 7. Steps 2 through 6 are repeated until condition-1 is true.

At the end of PERFORM statement execution, identifier-4 contains the current value of identifier-5. Identifier-1 has a value that exceeds the last used setting by the increment/decrement value (unless condition-1 was true at the beginning of PERFORM statement execution, in which case identifier-1 contains the current value of identifier-2).

Figure 5-24 is a flowchart illustrating the logic of the PERFORM statement when two identifiers are varied.



Figure 5-24. Format 4 PERFORM Statement Logic - Varying Two Identifiers

The following example shows a PERFORM statement varying two identifiers. This PERFORM logic is executed 126 times. This program searches a table and gives a total of female employees.

C

| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 |
|---|
| DATA DIVISION. |
| FD PRINTED-REPORT |
| 01 PRINT-OUT PIC X(132). |
| BLOCK CONTAINS 1 RECORDS |
| LABEL RECORDS STANDARD |
| 01 EMPLOYEE-RECORD PIC X(90). |
| 01 RECORDS-IN PIC 9(5) VALUE ZEROS. |
| 01 HOLD-INPUT-RECORD. |
| 88 MALE VALUE IS 1 |
| 03 EMPLOYEE - RACE PIC 9 03 EMPLOYEE CODES VALUES ARE 1 THRU 7 |
| 03 EMPLOYEE-JOB-CLASS PIC 99. |
| 03 FILLER PIC X(76) VALUE SPACES. |
| 03 E-SEX OCCURS 2 TIMES |
| 07 E-JOB OCCURS 18 TIMES PIC 99 |
| 01 SUB2 PIC 99. |
| 01 TOTAL-WOMEN PIC 9(5) VALUE ZEROS. |
| 100-START-IT. ODEN INDUT EMPLOYEE_DATA OUTPUT DEINTED PEDOPT |
| MOVE ZEROS TO EMPLOYEE-TABLE. |
| READ EMPLOYEE-DATA RECORD INTO HOLD-INPUT-RECORD |
| |
| * THE PERFORM STATEMENT USING 2 VARIABLES WILL BE DONE 126 * TIMES |
| PERFORM LOAD-TABLE UNTIL EOF-SW = "Y". PERFORM FIND-NUMBER-OF-WOMEN |
| VARYING SUB2 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB2 > 7 AFTER SUB3 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB3 > 18 |
| PERFORM WRITE-REPORT THRU WR-EXIT DISPLAY "TOTAL RECORDS IN " RECORDS-IN UPON MYTUBE |
| STOP RUN. LOAD-TABLE. |
| MOVE EMPLOYEE-SEX TO SUB1. MOVE EMPLOYEE-RACE TO SUB2. |
| MOVE EMPLOYEE-JOB-CLASS TO SUB3. ADD 1 TO E-JOB (SUB1 SUB2 SUB3). |
| PERFORM 200-READ-IT. FIND-NUMBER-OF-WOMEN. |
| ADD E-JOB (2 SUB2 SUB3) TO TOTAL-WOMEN. WRITE-REPORT. |
| MOVE IDIAL-WOMEN TO PRINT-OUT. WRITE PRINT-OUT. |
| WK-EXII. EXIT. |

Varying Three Identifiers

In the following discussion, every reference to identifier-n refers equally to index-name-n except when identifier-n is the object of the BY phrase.

The actions are the same as for varying two identifiers except that identifier-7 goes through the complete cycle each time that identifier-4 is augmented by identifier-6 or literal-6, which in turn goes through a complete cycle each time identifier-1 is varied.

At the end of PERFORM statement execution, identifier-4 and identifier-7 contain the current values of identifier-5 and identifier-8, respectively. Identifier-1 has a value exceeding its last used setting by one increment/decrement value (unless condition-1 was true at the beginning of PERFORM statement execution, in which case identifier-1 contains the current value of identifier-2).

Figure 5-25 is a flowchart illustrating the logic of the PERFORM statement when three identifiers are varied.



Figure 5-25. Format 4 PERFORM Statement Logic - Varying Three Identifiers

The following example shows a PERFORM statement varying three identifiers. This PERFORM logic is executed 250 times.

... 1 2 3 . . . DATA DIVISION WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. PIC 99. PIC 99. PIC 99. PIC 99. PIC 99 SUB1 SUB2 01 01 SUB3 TEST-IT 01 ŌĪ VALUE OO. VALUE ZEROS. PIC 99 01 TOTAL-RECS ŌĪ COMPANY-TABLE OCCURS 10 TIMES. PIC X(10). PIC 9(4). 05 DIVISION-IN 10 DIVISION-NAME 10 DIVISION-NUMBER OCCURS 5 TIMES OCCURS 5 TIMES 10 SECTION-IN 15 UNIT-IN 20 UNIT-NAME PIC X(5). PIC 9(4) 20 UNIT-NUMBER PROCEDURE DIVISION 100-START-PROCESSING THIS PERFORM LOGIC IS EXECUTED 250 TIMES PERFORM ZERO-OUT-BIG-TABLE VARYING SUB1 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB1 > 10 SUB1 IS VARIED LAST AFTER SUB2 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB2 > 5 * SUB2 IS VARIED SECOND AFTER SUB3 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB3 > 5. AFTER SUB3 IS VARIED FIRST PERFORM ADDRESS-THE-VARIABLES THRU ATV-EXIT. DISPLAY "VARIABLE TEST-IT = " TEST-IT UPON MYTUBE. STOP RUN ZERO-OUT-BIG-TABLE MOVE ZEROS TO UNIT-IN (SUB1 SUB2 SUB3). ADDRESS-THE-VARIABLES. IF UNIT-NUMBER OF UNIT-IN OF SECTION-IN OF DIVISION-IN OF COMPANY-TABLE (3 4 5) = 0 ADD 1 TO TEST-IT. ATV-EXIT. EXIT

Programming Note: The procedures executed by a PERFORM statement are, in effect, a closed subroutine that can be entered from many other points in the program.

The Format 4 PERFORM statement is especially useful in table handling. One Format 4 PERFORM statement can serially search an entire 3-dimensional table.

Segmentation Information

A PERFORM statement appearing in a permanent segment can have in its range only one of the following:

- Sections, each of which has a segment number less than 50
- Sections and/or paragraphs wholly contained in a single independent segment.

A PERFORM statement that appears in an independent segment can have in its range only one of the following:

• Sections, each of which has a segment number less than 50

• Sections and/or paragraphs wholly contained within the same independent segment as the PERFORM statement.

Control is passed to the performed procedures only once for each execution of the PERFORM statement.

STOP Statement

The STOP statement halts the object program either temporarily or permanently.

Format

 $\underline{\text{STOP}} \left\{ \frac{\text{RUN}}{\text{literal}} \right\}$

The literal can be numeric or nonnumeric, and can be any figurative constant except ALL literal. If the literal is numeric, it must be an unsigned integer.

When STOP literal is specified, the literal is communicated to the system operator for batch jobs and to the work station for interactive jobs. Program execution is suspended. Execution is resumed only after operator intervention.

The operator response determines whether the run unit continues at the next executable statement in the sequence, or a STOP RUN is executed.

| Operator Response | Action |
|----------------------|--|
| G (default) | Continue at next instruction. |
| С | Terminate execution of the run unit. Escape message CBE9001 is issued to the caller of the COBOL run unit. For batch jobs, the job is canceled if the CNLSEV parameter for the job contains a value that is less than or equal to the severity of the message. |

The output of the STOP literal contains the program-name followed by the literal.

If the literal cannot be contained in the length of one line of the display device, the Help key must be used to display the entire literal.

When STOP RUN is specified, execution of the run unit is terminated. If a STOP RUN statement appears in a sequence of imperative statements, it must be the last or the only statement in the sequence. All files should be closed before a STOP RUN statement is executed. If you do not close the files, they are closed by compiler generated code. An implicit STOP RUN is always generated after the last statement in the source program.

Programming Note: The STOP literal statement is useful for special situations when operator intervention is needed during program execution.

Compiler-Directing Statements

Compiler-directing statements provide instructions to the COBOL compiler. The compiler-directing statements are COPY, ENTER, and USE.

Only the ENTER statement is discussed in this chapter. The COPY statement is discussed under "Source Program Library" in Chapter 6. The USE statements are discussed under "Declaratives" in this chapter and under "Debugging Features" in Chapter 6.

ENTER Statement

The System/38 COBOL compiler does not allow another source language to be used in COBOL source programs. Therefore, the ENTER statement is not required or used by the System/38 COBOL compiler, but is only treated as a comment.

Format

ENTER language-name [routine-name].

Language-name and routine-name can be any user-defined word. The compiler expects a valid COBOL statement to immediately follow the ENTER statement.

Chapter 6. Additional Functions

System/38 COBOL offers several additional functions that are useful to programmers who are writing more advanced applications. The additional functions provided by the System/38 COBOL discussed in this chapter are:

- Table Handling
- SORT-MERGE
- Source Program Library
- Segmentation
- Inter-Program Communication
- Debugging
- FIPS Flagger.

TABLE HANDLING

Tables are often used in data processing. A table is a set of logically consecutive items, each of which has the same data description as the other items in the set. The items in a table can be described as separate contiguous items. However, this approach may not be satisfactory for two reasons. From a documentation standpoint, the homogeneity of the data items is not apparent; secondly, repetitive coding to reference unique data-names becomes a severe problem. Thus, a method of data reference is used which makes it possible to refer to all or to part of one table as an entity.

Table Handling Concepts

In COBOL, a table is defined with an OCCURS clause in its data description. The OCCURS clause specifies that the named item is to be repeated as many times as stated. The item so named is considered a table element, and its name and description apply to each repetition (or occurrence) of the item. Because the occurrences are not given unique data-names, reference to a particular occurrence can be made only by specifying the data-name of the table element, together with the occurrence number of the desired item within the element. The occurrence number is known as a subscript and the technique of supplying the occurrence number of individual table elements is called subscripting. A related technique, called indexing, is also available for table references. Both subscripting and indexing are described in subsequent sections.

Table Definition

COBOL allows tables in one, two or three dimensions.

To define a one-dimensional table, the user writes an OCCURS clause as part of the definition of a table element. However, the OCCURS clause must not appear in a data description entry that has a 01, 66, 77, or 88 level-number. For example:

01 TABLE-ONE. 05 ELEMENT-ONE OCCURS 3 TIMES. 10 ELEMENT-A PIC X(4). 10 ELEMENT-B PIC 9(4).

TABLE-ONE is the group item that contains the table. ELEMENT-ONE is an element of a one-dimensional table that occurs three times. ELEMENT-A and ELEMENT-B are elementary items subordinate to ELEMENT-ONE.

To define a two-dimensional table, a one-dimensional table is defined within each occurrence of another one-dimensional table. For example:

01 TABLE-TWO. 05 ELEMENT-ONE OCCURS 3 TIMES. 10 ELEMENT-TWO OCCURS 3 TIMES. 15 ELEMENT-A PIC X(4). 15 ELEMENT-B PIC 9(4).

TABLE-TWO is the group item that contains the table. ELEMENT-ONE is an element of a one-dimensional table that occurs three times. ELEMENT-TWO is an element of a two-dimensional table that occurs three times within each occurrence of ELEMENT-ONE. ELEMENT-A and ELEMENT-B are elementary items subordinate to ELEMENT-TWO.

To define a three-dimensional table, a one-dimensional table is defined within each occurrence of another one-dimensional table, which is itself contained within each occurrence of another one-dimensional table. For example:

01 TABLE-THREE. 05 ELEMENT-ONE OCCURS 3 TIMES. 10 ELEMENT-TWO OCCURS 3 TIMES. 15 ELEMENT-THREE OCCURS 2 TIMES PICTURE X(8).

TABLE-THREE is the group item that contains the table. ELEMENT-ONE is an element of a one-dimensional table that occurs three times. ELEMENT-TWO is an element of a two-dimensional table that occurs three times within each occurrence of ELEMENT-ONE. ELEMENT-THREE is an element of a three-dimensional table that occurs two times within each occurrence of ELEMENT-TWO. Figure 6-1 shows the storage layout for TABLE-THREE.

| ELEMENT-ONE Occurs Three Times | ELEMENT-TWO Occurs Three Times | ELEMENT-THREE Occurs Two Times | Byte Dis- placement |
|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 1, 1) | |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 1, 2) | |
| ELEMENT ONE (1) | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 2, 1 | |
| ELEMENT-ONE (1) | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 2, 2 | 32 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 3, 1 | 40 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (1, 3, 2 | |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 1, 1 | 56 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 1, 2 | |
| ELEMENT ONE (2) | | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 2, 1 | |
| | ELEMENT-TWO $(2, 2)$ | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 2, 2 |) 80 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 3, 1 |) |
| | ELEMENT-TWO(2,3) | ELEMENT-THREE (2, 3, 2 | |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 1, 1 |) |
| | ELEMENT-TWO (3, 1) | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 1, 2 |) 112 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 2, 1 |) 120 |
| ELEMENT-ONE (3) | ELEMENT-TWO $(3, 2)$ | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 2, 2 |) 120 |
| | | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 3, 1 |) |
| | ELEMENT-TWO (3, 3) | ELEMENT-THREE (3, 3, 2 |) |

Figure 6-1. Storage Layout for TABLE-THREE

C

Table References

Whenever the user refers to a table element, or to any item associated with a table element, the reference must indicate which occurrence is intended.

For a one-dimensional table, the occurrence number of the desired element gives the complete information. For tables of more than one dimension, an occurrence number for each dimension must be supplied. In the three-dimensional table defined in the previous discussion, for example, a reference to ELEMENT-THREE must supply the occurrence number for ELEMENT-ONE, ELEMENT-TWO, and ELEMENT-THREE. Either subscripting or indexing, described in the following paragraphs, can be used to supply the necessary references.

Subscripting

Subscripting is a method of providing table references through the use of subscripts. A subscript is an integer value that specifies the occurrence number of a table element. Subscripts can be used only when reference is made to an individual item within a table element.

Format

$$\begin{cases} data-name-1 \\ condition-name \end{cases} \left[\left\{ \frac{OF}{IN} \right\} data-name-2 \right] \dots \left(subscript-1 \left[subscript-2 \left[subscript-3 \right] \right] \right) \end{cases}$$

Data-name-1 must be the name of a table element. (Note that when qualification is used, it is data-name-1 that is subscripted, not data-name-2.)

The subscript can be represented either by a literal or a data-name.

A literal subscript must be an integer, and it must have a value of one or greater. The literal can have a positive sign or it may be unsigned. Negative subscript values are not permitted. For example, the following are valid literal subscript references to TABLE-THREE:

```
ELEMENT-THREE (1, 2, 1)
ELEMENT-THREE (2, 2, 1).
```

A data-name subscript must be described as an elementary numeric integer data item. A data-name subscript may be qualified; it may not be subscripted or indexed. For example, assuming that SUB1, SUB2, and SUB3 are all items subordinate to SUBSCRIPT-ITEM, valid data-name subscript references to TABLE-THREE are:

ELEMENT-THREE (SUB1, SUB2, SUB3) ELEMENT-THREE IN TABLE-THREE (SUB1 OF SUBSCRIPT-ITEM, SUB2 OF SUBSCRIPT-ITEM, SUB3 OF SUBSCRIPT-ITEM) The set of one to three subscripts must be written within a balanced pair of parentheses immediately following data-name-1 or its last qualifier. One or more spaces can optionally precede the opening parenthesis.

When more than one subscript is specified, each subscript must be separated from the next by either a space or a comma and a space.

When more than one subscript is required, the subscripts are written in the order of successively less inclusive data dimensions. For example, in the table reference ELEMENT-THREE (3, 2, 1), the first value (3) refers to the occurrence within ELEMENT-ONE, the second value (2) refers to the occurrence within ELEMENT-TWO, and the third value (1) refers to the occurrence within ELEMENT-THREE.

The lowest possible subscript value is 1; this value points to the first occurrence within the table element. The next sequential elements are pointed to by subscripts with values 2, 3, and so on. The highest permissible subscript value in any particular table element is the maximum number of occurrences specified in the OCCURS clause. For example, in TABLE-THREE the highest possible subscript value for ELEMENT-ONE is 3, for ELEMENT-TWO is 3, and for ELEMENT-THREE is 2.

If the RANGE option is specified or implied (see "COBOL Command Statement" or "Process Statement" in Chapter 8), the system ensures that the subscript value is valid. If the RANGE option is not active, it is your responsibility to ensure that the subscript value is valid.

Specify the RANGE option for subscripts only. The RANGE option does not verify that indexes are valid.

The following example shows subscripting using a 3-level table. In this example, UNIT-NUMBER does not need qualification and could also be referenced as UNIT-NUMBER (3, 4, 5).



Indexing

Indexing is the method of providing table references through the use of indexes. An index is a compiler-generated storage area used to store table element occurrence numbers. For System/38 COBOL, the index contains a value that is an offset into the table.

Format

$$\begin{cases} \text{data-name-1}\\ \text{condition-name} \end{cases} \left[\begin{cases} \underline{OF}\\ \underline{IN} \end{cases} \text{data-name-2} \right] \dots \left(\begin{cases} \text{index-name-1} \left[\begin{pmatrix} \pm \end{pmatrix} \text{literal-2} \right] \\ \text{literal-1} \end{cases} \right] \\ \left[, \begin{cases} \text{index-name-2} \left[\begin{pmatrix} \pm \end{pmatrix} \text{literal-4} \right] \\ \text{literal-3} \end{cases} \right] \left[, \begin{cases} \text{index-name-3} \left[\begin{pmatrix} \pm \end{pmatrix} \text{literal-6} \right] \\ \text{literal-5} \end{cases} \right] \right]$$

Data-name-1 must be the name of a table element. (Note that when qualification is used, it is data-name-1 that is indexed rather than data-name-2.)

Each index-name identifies an index to be used in table references. The index-name is specified through the INDEXED BY phrase in the OCCURS clause.

Each index named is a compiler-generated storage area, 2 bytes in length. Two forms of indexing are provided: direct and relative.

In direct indexing, the index-name is in the form of a subscript. In relative indexing, the index-name is followed by a space, a + or a -, another space, and an unsigned numeric literal. The literal is considered to be an occurrence number, and is converted to an index value before being added to or subtracted from the index-name index.

To be valid during execution, an index value must correspond to a table element occurrence number that is not less than one, or greater than the highest permissible occurrence number. This restriction applies to both direct and relative indexing.

The RANGE option (see "COBOL Command Statement" or "Process Statement" in Chapter 8) does *not* cause the system to verify that index values are valid. It is your responsibility to ensure valid index values.

An index-name must be initialized through a SET, PERFORM-Format 4, or SEARCH ALL statement before it is used in a table reference.

One or more index references (direct or relative) can be specified together with literal subscripts.

Further information on index-names is given later in this chapter in the description of the INDEXED BY phrase of the OCCURS clause.

Restrictions on Subscripting and Indexing

- A data-name must not be subscripted or indexed when it is being used as a subscript or qualifier.
- Indexing is not permitted when subscripting is not permitted.
- An index can be modified only by a PERFORM, SEARCH, or SET statement.
- When a literal is used in a subscript, it must be a positive or unsigned integer.
- When a literal is used in relative indexing, it must be an unsigned integer.

Table Initialization

A table can contain static values or dynamic values. Static values remain the same through every execution of the object program. When this is true, the initial values of table elements can be specified in Working-Storage in one of two ways:

• The table can be described as a record containing contiguous subordinate data description entries, each of which contains a VALUE clause for the initial value. The record is then redescribed through a REDEFINES entry that contains a subordinate entry with an OCCURS clause. Because of the OCCURS clause, the subordinate entries of the redefined entry are repeated. For example:

- 01 TABLE-ONE 05 ELEMENT-ONE PICTURE X VALUE "1" 05 ELEMENT-TWO PICTURE X VALUE "2" 05 ELEMENT-THREE PICTURE X VALUE "3" 05 ELEMENT-FOUR PICTURE X VALUE "4" 01 TABLE-TWO REDEFINES TABLE-ONE 05 OCCURS-ELEMENT OCCURS 4 TIMES PICTURE X
- If the subordinate entries do not require separate handling, the VALUE of the entire entry can be given in the entry that names the table. The lower level entries then contain OCCURS clauses, and show the hierarchical structure of the table. The subordinate entries must not contain VALUE clauses. For example:
 - 01 TABLE-ONE VALUE "1234". 05 TABLE-TWO OCCURS 4 TIMES PICTURE X.

Dynamic values may change during one execution of the object program, or from one execution to another. If the dynamic values are always the same at the beginning of object program execution, they can be initialized in the same manner as static values. If the initial values change from one execution to the next, then the table can be defined without initial values, and the changed values can be placed in the table before any table reference is made.

Tables can be initialized to a common value by a MOVE to the group item that defines the entire table. For example:

MOVE SPACES TO TABLE-ONE.

However, care should be exercised when this method is used with a table containing non-display type elements. For example:

01 BINARY-TABLE. 05 BINARY-COUNT OCCURS 4 TIMES PIC 9999 COMP-4.

The MOVE statement does not fill BINARY-TABLE with binary zeros, but with display-type zeros, hex "FO".

The following example shows two ways of initializing a table with zeros:



Data Division – Table Handling

COBOL Data Division clauses used for Table Handling are the OCCURS clause and the USAGE IS INDEX clause.

OCCURS Clause

The OCCURS clause eliminates the need to specify separate entries for repeated data items; it also supplies the information necessary for the use of subscripts or indexes. The formats of the OCCURS clause are as follows:

Format 1-Fixed Length Tables

OCCURS integer-2 TIMES



Format 2-Variable Length Tables

OCCURS integer-1 TO integer-2 TIMES

DEPENDING ON data-name-1

 $\left[\left\{ \frac{\text{ASCENDING}}{\text{DESCENDING}} \right\} \text{KEY IS data-name-2} \left[\text{data-name-3} \right] \dots \right] \dots$ INDEXED BY index-name-1 [index-name-2] ...]

The subject of an OCCURS clause is the data-name of the data item containing the OCCURS clause. Except for the OCCURS clause itself, data description clauses used with the subject apply to each occurrence of the item described.

Whenever the subject is used in any statement-other than SEARCH or USE FOR DEBUGGING, or unless it is the object of a REDEFINES clause-the subject must be subscripted or indexed. When it is subscripted or indexed, the subject refers to one occurrence within the table element.

Whenever the subject is used in a SEARCH or USE FOR DEBUGGING statement, or when it is the object of a REDEFINES clause, the subject must not be subscripted or indexed. When it is not subscripted or indexed, the subject represents the entire table length.

The table must contain less than 32 768 occurrences, the length of a table element must be less than 32 K bytes, and the length of the whole table must be less than 32 K bytes.

All data-names used in the OCCURS clause can be qualified; they cannot be subscripted or indexed.

All integers must be positive nonzero integers.

The OCCURS clause cannot be specified in a data description entry that:

- Has a level-01, level-66, level-77, or level-88 number.
- Describes an item of variable size (an item is of variable size if any subordinate entry contains an OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause).
- Describes redefined data items. (However, a redefined item can be subordinate to an item containing an OCCURS clause.) See "REDEFINES Clause" in Chapter 4.

Fixed Length Tables

When Format 1 is used, integer-2 specifies the exact number of occurrences.

Integer-2 must be greater than zero and less than 32 768.

Because three subscripts or indexes are allowed, three nested levels of the Format 1 OCCURS clause are allowed.

Variable Length Tables

When the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause is specified, integer-1 represents the minimum number of occurrences, and integer-2 represents the maximum number of occurrences. The value of integer-1 must be one or greater; it must also be less than integer-2. Integer-2 must be less than 32 768. The length of the subject item is fixed; it is only the number of repetitions of the subject item that is variable.

Data-name-1 is the object of the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause. The object is the data item whose current value represents the current number of occurrences of the subject item. The object of the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause:

- Must be described as a positive integer. That is, if data-name-1 is described as a signed item, at execution time it must contain positive data.
- Must not occupy any storage position within the range of this table. That is, the object must not occupy any storage position from the first character position in this table through the last character position in this record description entry.
- Must contain a value within the range of integer-1 and integer-2, inclusive.

The value of the object of the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause specifies that part of the table element available to the object program. Items whose occurrence numbers exceed the value of the object are not available. If, during execution, the value of the object is reduced, the contents of items whose occurrence numbers exceed the new value of the object are unpredictable.

When a group item containing a subordinate OCCURS DEPENDING ON item is referred to, the current value of the object determines which part of the table area is used in the operation.

In one record description entry, any entry that contains an OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause may be followed only by items subordinate to it. The OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause cannot be specified as subordinate to another OCCURS clause. However, the Format 1 OCCURS clause may be specified as subordinate to the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause; in this case, a table of up to three dimensions may be specified.

ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY Phrase

The ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY phrase specifies that the repeated data is arranged in ascending or descending key sequence (depending on the keyword specified) according to the values contained in data-name-2, data-name-3, and so on. The data-names are listed in their descending order of significance. The ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data items are used by the SEARCH ALL statement for a search of the table element.

The order is determined by the rules for comparison of operands. (See "Simple Conditions, Relation Condition" in Chapter 5.)

Data-name-2 must be the name of the subject entry or the name of an entry subordinate to the subject entry. If data-name-2 names the subject entry, that entire entry becomes the ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY and is the only key that can be specified for this table element. If data-name-2 does not name the subject entry, then data-name-2, data-name-3, and so on:

- Must be subordinate to the subject of the table entry itself
- Must not be subordinate to any other entry that contains an OCCURS clause
- Must not themselves contain an OCCURS clause.

The following example illustrates the specification of ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data items:

| 01 CURRENT-WEEK PICTURE 99 | |
|--|----|
| 01 TABLE-RECORD. 05 EMPLOYEE-TABLE OCCURS 100 TIMES | |
| ASCENDING KEY IS WAGE-RATE EMPLOYEE-NO INDEXED BY A. B | |
| 10 EMPLOYEE-NAME PIC X(20) 10 EMPLOYEE-NO PIC 9(6) | |
| 10 WAGE-RATE PIC 9999V99 10 WEEK-RECORD OCCURS 52 TIMES | |
| ASCENDING KEY IS WEEK-NO | |
| 15 WEEK-NO PIC 99 15 AUTHORIZED-ABSENCES PIC 9 | |
| 15 UNAUTHORIZED-ABSENCES PIC 15 LATENESSES PIC 9 | 9. |

The keys for EMPLOYEE-TABLE are subordinate to that entry, and the key for WEEK-RECORD is subordinate to that subordinate entry.

When the ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY phrase is specified, the following rules apply:

• Keys must be listed in decreasing order of significance.

• A key can have USAGE DISPLAY or COMPUTATIONAL.

IBM Extension

A key can have USAGE COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMPUTATIONAL-4.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

• The user is responsible for ensuring that the data present in the table is arranged in ascending or descending key sequence according to the collating sequence in use.

In the preceding example, records in EMPLOYEE-TABLE must be arranged in ascending order of WAGE-RATE and in ascending order of EMPLOYEE-NO within WAGE-RATE. Records in Week-Record must be arranged in ascending order of WEEK-NO. If they are not, SEARCH ALL statement results will be unpredictable.

INDEXED BY Phrase

The INDEXED BY phrase specifies the indexes that can be used with this table element. The INDEXED BY phrase is required if indexing is used to refer to this table element.

Each index-name must follow the rules for formation of a user-defined word; at least one character must be alphabetic. Each index-name specifies an index to be created by the compiler for use by the program. These index-names are not data-names and are not identified elsewhere in the COBOL program; instead, they can be regarded as compiler generated registers for the use of this object program only. Therefore, they are not data or part of any data hierarchy; as such, each must be unique. An INDEX-NAME can only be referenced by a PERFORM, SET, or SEARCH statement, as a parameter in the USING phrase in a CALL statement, or in a relational condition comparison.

USAGE IS INDEX Clause

The USAGE IS INDEX clause specifies that the data item named has an index format. Such an item is an index data item.

Format

USAGE IS INDEX

An index data item is a 2-byte elementary item that can be used to save index-name values for future reference. Through the SET statement, an index data item can be assigned an index-name value. The index-name value corresponds to the displacement for an occurrence number in the table, that is (occurrence-number - 1) * entry length. An index data item can be referred to directly only in a SEARCH statement, a SET statement, a relation condition, the USING phrase of the Procedure Division header, or the USING phrase of the CALL statement. An index data item can be part of a group item referred to in a MOVE statement or an input/output statement.

An index data item saves binary values that represent a table occurrence number; however, it is not itself necessarily defined as part of any table. Thus, when it is referenced directly in a SEARCH or SET statement, or indirectly in a MOVE or input/output statement, there is no conversion of values when the statement is executed.

The USAGE IS INDEX clause may be written at any level. If a group item is described with the USAGE IS INDEX clause, it is the elementary items within the group that are index data items; the group itself is not an index data item, and the group name cannot be used in SEARCH and SET statements or in relation conditions. The USAGE clause of an elementary item cannot contradict the USAGE clause of a group to which the item belongs.

An index data item cannot be a conditional variable; it cannot have a subordinate level-88 item.

The SYNCHRONIZED, JUSTIFIED, PICTURE, BLANK WHEN ZERO, or VALUE clauses cannot be used to describe group or elementary items described with the USAGE IS INDEX clause.

Since the format of an index data item is implementation dependent, an index data item should not be defined in the File Section.

Procedure Division – Table Handling

In the Procedure Division, the SEARCH and SET statements can be specified with indexed tables. There are also special rules involving table handling elements when they are used in relation conditions.

Relation Conditions

Comparisons involving index-names and/or index data items conform to the following rules:

- The comparison of two index-names is actually the comparison of the corresponding occurrence numbers.
- In the comparison of an index-name with a data item (other than an index data item) or in the comparison of an index-name with a literal, the occurrence number that corresponds to the value of the index-name is compared with the data item or literal.
- In the comparison of an index data item with an index-name or another index data item, the actual values are compared without conversion.

Results of any other comparison involving an index data item are undefined.

Figure 6-2 shows permissible comparisons for index-names and index data items.

| | Second Operand | | | | |
|--|---|----------------------------------|---|---|--|
| First Operand | Index-name | Index Data Item | Data-Name (numeric integer only) | Numeric Literal (integer only) | |
| Index-Name | Compare occurrence numbers | Compare without conversion | Compare occurrence number with data-name | Compare occurrence number with literal | |
| Index Data Item | Compare without conversion | Compare without conversion | Invalid | Invalid | |
| Data-Name (numeric integer only) | Compare occurrence number with data-name | Invalid | Invalid | Invalid | |
| Numeric Literal (integer only) | Compare occurrence number with literal | Invalid | Invalid | Invalid | |

Figure 6-2. Permissible Comparisons for Index-Names and Index Data Items

SEARCH Statement

The SEARCH statement searches a table for an element that satisfies the specified condition, and adjusts the associated index to indicate that element. The formats for the SEARCH statement are:







The Data Division description of identifier-1 must contain an OCCURS clause with the INDEXED BY phrase.

When specified in the SEARCH statement, identifier-1 must refer to all occurrences within the table element; it must not be subscripted or indexed.

Identifier-1 can be a data item subordinate to a data item that contains an OCCURS clause; it can be a part of a two- or three-dimensional table. In this case, the data description entry must specify an INDEXED BY phrase for each dimension of the table.

SEARCH statement execution modifies only the value in the index-name associated with identifier-1 (and, if present, of index-name-1 or identifier-2). Therefore, to search an entire two- or three-dimensional table, a SEARCH statement must be executed for each dimension. Before each execution, SET statements must be executed to reinitialize the associated index-names.

In the AT END and WHEN phrases, control passes to the next sentence after the imperative-statement is executed if any of the specified imperative-statements do not end with a G0 T0 statement.

Format 1

Format 1 SEARCH statement execution causes a serial search to be executed, beginning at the current index setting.

If the value of the index-name associated with identifier-1 is not greater than the highest possible occurrence number, when the search begins the following actions take place:

- 1. The conditions in the WHEN phrases are evaluated in the order they are written.
- 2. If none of the conditions are satisfied, the index-name for identifier-1 is incremented to correspond to the next table element, and step 1 is repeated.
- 3. If upon evaluation, one of the WHEN conditions is satisfied, the search terminates immediately, and the imperative-statement associated with that condition is executed. The index-name identifies the table element that satisfied the condition.
- 4. If the end of the table is reached (that is, the incremented index-name value is greater than the highest possible occurrence number) without the WHEN condition begin satisfied, the search terminates as described in the next paragraph.

If, when the search begins, the value of the index-name associated with identifier-1 is greater than the highest possible occurrence number, the search immediately ends, and, if specified, the AT END imperative-statement is executed. If the AT END phrase is omitted, control passes to the next sentence.

Each WHEN phrase condition can be any condition as described under "Conditional Expressions" in Chapter 5.

VARYING Index-Name-1 Phrase: When the VARYING index-name-1 phrase is omitted, the first (or only) index-name for identifier-1 is used for the search. When the VARYING index-name-1 phrase is specified, one of the following actions takes place:

- If index-name-1 is an index for identifier-1, this index is used for the search. Otherwise, the first (or only) index-name is used.
- If index-name-1 is an index for another table element, then the first (or only) index-name for identifier-1 is used for the search; the occurrence number represented by index-name-1 is incremented by the same amount as the search index-name and at the same time.

VARYING Identifier-2 Phrase: When this phrase is specified, the first (or only) index-name for identifier-1 is used for the search.

Identifier-2 must be either an index data item or an elementary integer item. During the search, one of the following actions takes place:

- If identifier-2 is an index data item, then whenever the search index is incremented, the specified index item is simultaneously incremented by the same amount.
- If identifier-2 is an elementary integer item, then whenever the search index is incremented, the specified data item is simultaneously incremented by 1.

Figure 6-3 is a flowchart of a Format 1 SEARCH operation containing two WHEN phrases.

Format 2

Format 2 SEARCH ALL statement execution causes a binary search to be executed. The search index need not be initialized by SET statements, because its setting is varied during the search operation. The index used is always the index that is associated with the first index-name specified in the OCCURS clause.

If the WHEN phrase cannot be satisfied for any setting of the index within this range, the search is unsuccessful. If the AT END phrase is specified, the AT END imperative-statement is executed. If the AT END phrase is not specified, control is passed to the next sentence. In either case, the final setting of the index is not predictable.

If the WHEN phrase can be satisfied, control passes to imperative-statement-2 and the index contains a value indicating an occurrence that allows the WHEN condition(s) to be satisfied.

WHEN Condition-Name Phrase: If the WHEN condition-name phrase is specified, each condition-name specified must have only a single value, and each must be associated with an ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY identifier for this table element.

WHEN Relation-Condition Phrase: If WHEN relation-condition is specified, the following considerations apply:

- Data-name-1 or data-name-2 must specify an ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data item in the identifier-1 table element and must be indexed by the first identifier-1 index-name, along with other indexes or literals as required. Each data-name may be qualified.
- Identifier-3 and identifier-4 must not be an ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data item for identifier-1 or an item that is indexed by the first index-name for identifier-1.
- Literal-1 or literal-2 must be a positive or unsigned numeric integer.



* Index setting equals highest permissible occurrence number.

- ** These operations are included only when called for in the statement.
- *** Each of these control transfers is to the next sentence unless the imperative-statement ends with a GO TO statement.

Figure 6-3. Format 1 SEARCH with Two WHEN Phrases
- Arithmetic-expression-1 or arithmetic-expression-2 may be any of those defined under "Arithmetic Expressions" in Chapter 5 with the following restriction: any identifier in the arithmetic-expression must not be an ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data item for identifier-1 or an item that is indexed by the first index-name for identifier-1.
- When an ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data item is specified either explicitly or implicitly in the WHEN phrase, then all preceding ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY data-names for identifier-1 must also be specified.

The results of a SEARCH ALL operation are predictable only when both of the following apply:

- The data in the table is ordered in ascending or descending key sequence.
- The contents of the ASCENDING/DESCENDING keys specified in the WHEN phrase provide a unique table reference.

Programming Notes

Index data items cannot be used as subscripts or indexes, because of the restrictions on direct reference to them. The use of a direct indexing reference together with a relative indexing reference for the same index-name allows reference to two different occurrences of a table element for comparison purposes.

When the object of the VARYING phrase is an index-name for another table element, one Format 1 SEARCH statement looks at two table elements at once.

One Format 4 PERFORM statement can search an entire multidimensional table.

To ensure correct execution of a PERFORM or SEARCH statement for a variable length table, the user must make sure that the object of the OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause (data-name-1) contains a value that correctly specifies the current length of the table.

SEARCH Example

The following example searches an inventory table for items that match those from input data. The key is ITEM-NUMBER.

| 1 | |
|-----------------|---|
| DAT. FIL | A DIVISION. E SECTION. |
| FD | SALES-DATA BLOCK CONTAINS 1 RECORDS |
| | RECORD CONTAINS 80 CHARACTERS LABEL RECORDS STANDARD DATA DECORD IS SALES DEPORTS |
| 01 FD | SALES-REPORTS PIC X(80). PRINTED-REPORT |
| | BLOCK CONTAINS 1 RECORDS RECORD CONTAINS 132 CHARACTERS |
| 01 | LABEL RECORDS OMITTED DATA RECORD IS PRINTER-OUTPUT. PRINTER-OUTPUT PIC Y(132) |
| FD | INVENTORY-DATA BLOCK CONTAINS 1 RECORDS |
| | RECORD CONTAINS 40 CHARACTERS LABEL RECORDS STANDARD |
| 01 | INVENTORY-RECORD. 03 I-NUMBER PIC 9(4) |
| | 03 INV-ID PIC X(26) 03 I-COST PIC 9(8)V99 |
| WOR 01 01 | KING-STORAGE SECTION. EOF-SW PIC X VALUE "N". EOF-SW2 PIC X VALUE "N" |
| 01 01 | SUB1 PIC 99 RECORDS-NOT-FOUND PIC 9(5) VALUE ZEROS |
| 01 01 | TOTAL-COSTS PIC 9(10) VALUE ZEROS. HOLD-INPUT-DATA. |
| | 03 PURCHASE-COST PIC 9(4)V99. 03 PURCHASE-DATE PIC 9(6). |
| 01 | 03 FILLER PIC X(64). PRINTER-SPECS |
| | 03 PRINI-LINE. 05 OUTPUT-ITEM-NUMBER PIC ZZZ9. 05 FILLER PIC X(48) VALUE SPACES |
| 01 | 05 TOTAL-COSTS-0 PIC \$(8).99. PRODUCT-TABLE. |
| | US INVENIORY-NUMBERS OCCURS 50 TIMES ASCENDING KEY ITEM-NUMBER INDEXED BY INDEX-1 |
| | 07 ITEM-NUMBER PIC 9(4) 07 ITEM-DESCRIPTION PIC X(26) |
| | 07 ITEM-COST PIC 9(8)V99. |

(

. ...7 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 100-START-IT. OPEN INPUT SALES-DATA INVENTORY-DATA OUTPUT PRINTED-REPORT. MOVE HIGH-VALUES TO PRODUCT-TABLE. PERFORM READ-INVENTORY-DATA. LOAD-TABLE-ROUTINE PERFORM LOAD-IT VARYING SUB1 FROM 1 BY 1 UNTIL SUB1 > 50 OR EOF-SW2 = "Y" PERFORM 110-READ-IT. 200-MAIN-ROUTINE. PERFORM PROCESS-DATA UNTIL EOF-SW = "Y" MOVE TOTAL-COSTS TO TOTAL-COSTS-0 PERFORM WRITE-REPORT THRU WRITE-REPORT-EXIT DISPLAY "RECORDS NOT FOUND - " RECORDS-NOT-FOUND UPON MYTUBE. STOP RUN. PROCESS-DATA SEARCH ALL INVENTORY-NUMBERS AT END PERFORM KEY-NOT-FOUND THRU NOT-FOUND-EXIT WHEN ITEM-NUMBER (INDEX-1) = INVENTORY-NUMBER MOVE ITEM-NUMBER (INDEX-1) TO OUTPUT-ITEM-NUMBER MOVE ITEM-COST (INDEX-1) TO TOTAL-COSTS-0 ADD ITEM-COST (INDEX-1) TO TOTAL-COSTS PERFORM WRITE-REPORT THRU WRITE-REPORT-EXIT DEPEORM 10 PEAD IT PERFORM 110-READ-IT. KEY-NOT-FOUND ADD 1 TO RECORDS-NOT-FOUND. NOT-FOUND-EXIT. EXIT. LOAD-IT MOVE INVENTORY-RECORD TO INVENTORY-NUMBERS (SUB1). PERFORM READ-INVENTORY-DATA WRITE-REPORT WRITE PRINTER-OUTPUT FROM PRINTER-SPECS. WRITE-REPORT-EXIT. EXIT *********END OF SAMPLE SEARCH PROGRAM******** READ-INVENTORY-DATA READ INVENTORY-DATA AT END MOVE "Y" TO EOF-SW2. 110-READ-IT READ SALES-DATA INTO HOLD-INPUT-DATA AT END MOVE "Y" TO EOF-SW

SET Statement

The SET statement establishes reference points for table handling operations by setting index-names to values associated with table elements. The SET statement may be used to transfer values between index-names and other elementary data items. The formats of the SET statement when it is used for table handling are described here. For information on the other formats allowed for SET statements, see "SET Statement" in Chapter 5. Format 3

$$\underbrace{\text{SET}}_{\text{identifier-1}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{index-name-1} \\ \text{i}, \text{ index-name-2} \\ \text{i}, \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\text{TO}}_{\text{index-name-3}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{index-name-3} \\ \text{integer-1} \\ \end{array} \right\}$$

Format 4

$$\underbrace{\text{SET}}_{\text{index-name-4}} \text{ [, index-name-5]} \dots \left\{ \underbrace{\underline{\text{UP BY}}}_{\text{DOWN}} \underbrace{\underline{\text{BY}}}_{\text{BY}} \right\} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-4} \\ \text{integer-2} \end{array} \right\}$$

Index-names are related to a given table through the INDEXED BY phrase of the OCCURS clause; they are not further defined in the program.

When the sending and receiving fields in a SET statement share part of their storage (that is, the operands overlap), the result of the execution of such a SET statement is undefined.

Format 3

When this form of the SET statement is executed, the value of the sending field replaces (with or without conversion) the current value of the receiving field.

The receiving field can be specified as follows:

- Index-name-1, index-name-2, and so on.
- Identifier-1, identifier-2, and so on. The identifiers must name either index data items or elementary numeric integer items.

The sending field can be specified as follows:

- Identifier-3, which must name either an index data item or an elementary numeric integer item
- Index-name-3, whose value before the "SET" statement is executed must correspond to an occurrence number of its associated table
- Integer-1, which must be a positive integer.

Figure 6-4 shows valid combinations of sending and receiving fields in a Format 3 "SET" statement.

Execution of the Format 3 "SET" statement depends upon the type of receiving field, as follows:

- Index-name receiving fields (index-name-1, index-name-2, and so on) with one exception are converted to a displacement value representing the occurrence number indicated by the sending field. To be valid, the resulting index-name value must correspond to an occurrence number in its associated table element. For the one exception, when the sending field is an index data item, the value in the index data item is placed in the index-name without change.
- Index data item receiving fields (identifier-1, identifier-2, and so on) are set equal to the contents of the sending field (which must be either an index-name or an index data item); no conversion takes place. A numeric integer or literal sending field must not be specified.
- Integer data item receiving fields (identifier-1, identifier-2, and so on) are set to the occurrence number associated with the sending field, which must be an index-name. An integer data item, an index data item, or a literal sending field must not be specified.

Receiving fields are acted upon in the left-to-right order they are specified. Any subscripting or indexing associated with an identifier receiving field is evaluated immediately before the field is acted upon.

The value used for the sending field is its value at the beginning of SET statement execution.

The value for an index-name after execution of a SEARCH or PERFORM statement can be undefined; therefore, a Format 3 SET statement should be used to reinitialize such index-names before other table handling operations are attempted.

Format 4

When this form of the SET statement is executed, the value of the receiving field is incremented (UP BY) or decremented (DOWN BY) by the value in the sending field.

The receiving field can be specified by index-name-4, index-name-5, and so on. These index-name values must correspond to an occurrence number in the associated table both before and after the SET statement execution.

The sending field can be specified as identifier-4, which must be an elementary integer data item, or as integer-2, which must be an integer.

When the Format 4 SET statement is executed, the contents of the receiving field are incremented (UP BY) or decremented (DOWN BY) by the value of identifier-4 or integer-2. Receiving fields are acted upon in the left-to-right order they are specified. The value of the sending field at the beginning of SET statement execution is used for all receiving fields.

| | Receiving Field | | | |
|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------|--|
| Sending Field | Index-Name | Index Data Item | Integer Data Item | |
| Index-name | Valid | Valid ¹ | Valid | |
| Index data item | Valid ¹ | Valid | | |
| Integer data item | Valid | | | |
| Integer literal | Valid | | | |

Figure 6-4. Sending and Receiving Fields for Format 3 SET Statements

SORT/MERGE

Arranging records in a particular order or sequence is a common requirement in data processing; such record ordering can be accomplished using sort or merge operations. While both operations accomplish record ordering, the functions and capabilities of a sort and a merge are different.

A sort produces an ordered file from one or more input files that can be completely unordered as to sort sequence. Thus, the sort operation must accept unordered input and produce ordered output.

A merge produces an ordered file from two or more input files, each of which is already ordered in the merge sequence.

IBM Extension

Input files need not be sequenced prior to a merge operation.

___ End of IBM Extension _

COBOL has special language features that assist in sort and merge operations so that the user need not program these operations in detail.

Sort/Merge Concepts

Sorting and merging have always constituted a large percentage of the workload in business data processing. COBOL standardizes the specification of these operations, making them easy to specify and modify. In addition, the COBOL user can alternatively use the System/38 logical file support to perform these operations as separate command language (CL) commands. The COBOL language supports these operations through the file-control entry in the Environment Division, the SD (sort-merge-file-description) entry in the Data Division, and the SORT and MERGE statements in the Procedure Division.

The sort or merge file is described through the file-control entry in the Environment Division, and the SD entry in the Data Division. The sort or merge file is the working file used during the sort or merge; it can be considered an internal file. As such, blocking and internal storage allocation for this file are not under the control of the COBOL user. However, a sort or merge file, like any file, is a set of records, and a sort-merge file description can be considered a particular type of file description.

The sort-merge file is processed through a Procedure Division SORT or MERGE statement. The statement specifies the key field(s) within the record upon which the sort or merge is to be arranged. Keys can be specified as ascending or descending. When more than one key is specified, a mixture of the two sequences is allowed. The sequence of sorted or merged records conforms to the mixture of keys specified.

Sort Concepts

Through the SORT statement, the COBOL user has access to input procedures (used before sorting) and output procedures (used after sorting) that can add, delete, alter, edit, or otherwise modify the records in the input and/or output files. A COBOL program can contain any number of sorts, each with its own independent input and/or output procedures. During SORT statement execution, these procedures are automatically executed at the specified point in processing; thus, extra passes through the sort file are avoided.

A COBOL program containing a sort is usually organized so that one or more input files are read and operated on by an input procedure. Within the input procedure a RELEASE statement (analogous to the WRITE statement) places a record in the sort file. That is, when input procedure execution is completed, a sort file has been created by placing records one at a time into the sort file through the RELEASE statement. If the user does not wish to modify the records before the sorting operation begins, the SORT statement USING phrase releases the unmodified records to the sort file.

After all the input records have been placed in the sort file, the sorting operation is executed. This operation arranges the entire set of sort file records in the sequence specified by the key(s).

After completion of the sorting operation, sorted records can be made available from the sort file, one at a time, through a RETURN statement for modification in an output procedure. If the user does not wish to modify the sorted records, the SORT statement GIVING option names the sorted output file.

Merge Concepts

Through the MERGE statement, the COBOL user has access to output procedures (used after merging) that can modify the records in the output file. The COBOL program can contain any number of merge operations, each with its own independent output procedures. During MERGE statement execution, these procedures are automatically executed at the specified point in processing.

The merge operation compares keys within the records of the input files and arranges the records within the merged file in the sequence specified by the key(s).

Merged records can then be made available, one at a time, through a RETURN statement for modification in an output procedure. If the user does not wish to modify the merged records, the MERGE statement GIVING phrase names the merged output file.

Environment Division – SORT/MERGE

In the Environment Division, the user must write file-control entries for each file used as input to or output from a sort or merge operation. The user must also write a file-control entry for each unique sort-file or merge-file.

File-Control Paragraph

See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3 for a description of input and output files of a sort or merge operation.

I-O-Control Paragraph

In the I-O-Control paragraph, the SAME SORT AREA or SAME SORT-MERGE AREA clause is used.

Format



The SAME SORT AREA and SAME SORT-MERGE AREA clauses are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation.

Restrictions on the specification of SAME RECORD AREA clause are given under "I-O-Control Paragraph" in Chapter 3.

Data Division – SORT/MERGE

In the File Section, the user must write an FD entry for each file that is input to or output from the sort/merge operation, as well as a record description entry. In addition, there must be an SD (sort-merge-file-description) entry for each sort or merge file.

Format



The level indicator SD identifies the beginning of the SD entry, and must precede the file-name. The file-name must specify a sort or merge file.

The clauses that follow file-name are optional, and their order of appearance is not significant. Both the RECORD CONTAINS clause and the DATA RECORDS clause are described in Chapter 4.

One or more record description entries must follow the SD entry. However, no input/output statements may be executed for this file.

The following example illustrates the File Section entries needed for a sort or merge file:

SD SORT-FILE. 01 SORT-RECORD PICTURE X(80).

Procedure Division – SORT/MERGE

The Procedure Division contains MERGE and SORT statements to describe the merge and sort operations and, optionally, sort input procedures and/or sort/merge output procedures. A sort input procedure must contain a RELEASE statement that makes each record available to the sorting operation. A sort/merge output procedure must contain a RETURN statement that makes a sorted/merged record available to the output procedure.

The Procedure Division can contain more than one SORT and/or MERGE statement. These statements can appear anywhere except in the Declaratives portion or in the sort input or sort/merge output procedures.

Files specified in the USING and GIVING phrases of the SORT and MERGE statements must be described explicitly or implicitly in their file-control entries as having sequential organization.

USE procedures are not executed if they reference files specified on a USING or GIVING phrase of a SORT or MERGE statement. If these files are also referenced in an I-O statement within an output procedure or a SORT input procedure, a USE procedure for the file specified is invoked when necessary.

MERGE Statement

The MERGE statement combines two or more identically sequenced files that have already been sorted in an identical ascending/descending key sequence on one or more keys. This statement makes records available in merged order to an output procedure or output file.

Format

 $\underline{\mathsf{MERGE}} \text{ file-name-1 ON } \left\{ \underline{\mathsf{ASCENDING}} \\ \underline{\mathsf{DESCENDING}} \right\} \text{KEY data-name-1 } \left[\text{, data-name-2 } \right] \dots$ $\left[ON \left\{ \frac{\text{ASCENDING}}{\text{DESCENDING}} \right\} \text{KEY data-name-3} \left[, \text{ data-name-4} \right] \dots \right] \dots$ COLLATING SEQUENCE IS alphabet-name USING file-name-2, file-name-3 [, file-name-4]... $\left\{ \frac{\text{OUTPUT}}{\text{PROCEDURE}} \text{ IS section-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{ section-name-2} \right] \right\}$ GIVING file-name-5

File-name-1 is the name given in the SD entry that describes the records being merged. No file-name may be repeated in the MERGE statement.

When the MERGE statement is executed, all records contained in file-name-2, file-name-3, and so on, are accepted by the sort/merge program and then merged according to the key(s) specified. These files must not be open when the MERGE statement is executed; they are automatically opened and closed by the MERGE operation, and all implicit functions are performed. The files are closed as if the CLOSE statement were written without any optional processing.

See "MERGE Statement and SORT Statement Phrases" later in this chapter for details about the phrases of the MERGE statement.

SORT Statement

The SORT statement accepts records from one or more files, sorts them according to the specified key(s), and makes records available either through an output procedure or in an output file.



File-name-1 is the name given in the SD entry that describes the records being sorted.

When the SORT statement is executed, all records contained in file-name-2, file-name-3, and so on are accepted by the sort/merge program and then sorted according to the key(s) specified. These input files must not be open at the time the SORT statement is executed; they are automatically opened and closed by the SORT operation, and all implicit functions are performed. The files are closed as if the CLOSE statement were written without any optional processing.

MERGE Statement and SORT Statement Phrases

Most SORT/MERGE statement phrases apply to both the SORT and the MERGE statements. The common SORT/MERGE statement phrases are the ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY phrase, the COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase, the USING phrase, the GIVING phrase, and the OUTPUT PROCEDURE phrase. The INPUT PROCEDURE phrase applies only to the SORT statements.

ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY Phrase

This phrase specifies that records are to be processed in an ascending or descending key sequence based on the specified sort/merge keys.

Each data-name specifies a KEY data item on which the sort-merge will be based. Each such data-name must identify a data item in a record associated with file-name-1. The following rules apply:

• A specific KEY data item must be physically located in the same position and have the same data format in each input file; however, it need not have the same data-name.

- If file-name-1 has more than one record description, then the KEY data items need be described in only one of the record descriptions.
- KEY data items must be fixed-length items.
- KEY data items must not contain an OCCURS clause or be subordinate to an item that contains an OCCURS clause.
- The total length (in bytes) of the KEY data items must not exceed 248.
- KEY data items can be qualified; they cannot be subscripted or indexed.

The KEY data items are listed in order of decreasing significance, regardless of how they are divided into KEY phrases. Using the SORT format as an example, data-name-1 is the most significant key and records are processed in ascending or descending order on that key; data-name-2 is the next most significant key and within data-name-1 records are processed on data-name-2 in ascending or descending order. Within data-name-2, records are processed on data-name-3 in ascending or descending order; within data-name-3, records are processed on data-name-4 in ascending or descending key sequence.

The direction of the sort/merge operation depends on the specification of the ASCENDING or DESCENDING keywords as follows:

- When ASCENDING is specified, the sequence is from the lowest key value to the highest key value.
- When DESCENDING is specified, the sequence is from the highest key value to the lowest.
- If the KEY data item is alphabetic, alphanumeric, alphanumeric edited, or numeric edited, the sequence of key values depends on the collating sequence used.
- The key comparisons are performed according to the rules for comparison of operands in a relation condition. See "Simple Conditions, Relation Condition" in Chapter 5.

COLLATING SEQUENCE Phrase

This phrase specifies the collating sequence to be used in nonnumeric comparisons for the KEY data items in this sort/merge operation.

Alphabet-name must be specified in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph alphabet-name clause. Any one of the alphabet-name clause phrases can be specified with the following results:

- When NATIVE is specified, the EBCDIC collating sequence is used for all nonnumeric comparisons.
- When STANDARD-1 is specified, the ASCII collating sequence is used for all nonnumeric comparisons.

• When the literal phrase is specified, the collating sequence established by the specification of literals in the alphabet-name clause is used for all nonnumeric comparisons.

When the COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase is omitted, the PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause (if specified) in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph specifies the collating sequence to be used. When both the COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase and the PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause are omitted, the EBCDIC collating sequence is used.

USING Phrase

When the USING phrase is specified, all input files are transferred automatically to file-name-1. At the time the SORT or MERGE statement is executed, these files must not be open; the COBOL compiler opens, reads, makes records available, and closes these files automatically. If EXCEPTION/ERROR procedures are specified for these files, the COBOL compiler makes the necessary linkage to these procedures.

The input files must have sequential organization.

All input files must be described in an FD entry in the Data Division, and their record descriptions must describe records of the same size as the record described for the sort or merge file. If the elementary items that make up these records are not identical, the user must describe the input records as having the same number of character positions as the sort record.

GIVING Phrase

When the GIVING phrase is specified, all the sorted or merged records in file-name-1 are automatically transferred to the output file (MERGE file-name-5 or SORT file-name-4). At the time the SORT or MERGE statement is executed, this file must not be open; the COBOL compiler opens, writes, and closes the output file automatically. The records overwrite the previous contents, if any, of the file.

IBM Extension

If file-name-1 is a logical data base file, the records are added to the end of the file.

_ End of IBM Extension _____

If EXCEPTION/ERROR procedures are specified for the output file, the COBOL compiler makes the necessary linkage to these procedures.

The output file must have sequential organization.

The output file must be described in an FD entry in the Data Division, and its record description(s) must describe records of the same size as the record described for the sort or merge file. If the elementary items that make up these records are not identical, the user must describe the output record as having the same number of character positions as the sort or merge record.

SORT INPUT PROCEDURE Phrase

This phrase specifies the section-name(s) of a procedure that is to modify input records before the sorting operation begins.

Section-name-1 specifies the first (or only) section in the input procedure. Section-name-2 (when specified) identifies the last section of the input procedure.

The input procedure must consist of one or more sections that are written consecutively and do not form a part of any output procedure. The input procedure must include at least one RELEASE statement in order to transfer records to the sort-file.

Control must not be passed to the input procedure except when a related SORT statement is being executed because the RELEASE statement in the input procedure has no meaning unless it is controlled by a SORT statement. The input procedure can include any procedures needed to select, create, or modify records. The following restrictions apply to the procedural statements within an input procedure:

- The input procedure must not contain any SORT or MERGE statements.
- The input procedure must not contain any transfers of control to points outside the input procedure. The execution of a CALL statement to another program, or the execution of USE Declaratives is not considered a transfer of control outside an input procedure. Hence, they are allowed to be activated within these procedures.

IBM Extension

• If control transfers via a PERFORM statement to a point outside the input procedure, a conditional level message is issued but compilation continues.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

• The remainder of the Procedure Division must not contain any transfers of control to points inside the input procedure with the exception of the return of control from a Declaratives Section.

IBM Extension

• If control transfers via a PERFORM statement to a point inside the input procedure from elsewhere in the Procedure Division, a conditional level message is issued but the compilation continues.

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

If an input procedure is specified, control is passed to the input procedure when the SORT program input phase is ready to receive the first record. The compiler inserts a return mechanism at the end of the last section of the input procedure and when control passes the last statement in the input procedure, the records that have been released to file-name-1 are sorted. The RELEASE statement transfers records from the Input Procedure to the sort file, which is then used in the input phase of the sort operation.

SORT/MERGE OUTPUT PROCEDURE Phrase

This phrase specifies the section-name(s) of a procedure that is to modify output records from the sort or merge operation.

Section-name-3 specifies the first (or only) section in the output procedure. Section-name-4 (when specified) identifies the last section of the output procedure.

The output procedure must consist of one or more sections that are written consecutively and are not part of any input procedure. The output procedure must include at least one RETURN statement in order to make sorted/merged records available for processing.

When all the records are sorted/merged, control is passed to the output procedure. The RETURN statement in the output procedure is a request for the next record.

Control must not be passed to the output procedure except when a related SORT or MERGE statement is being executed because RETURN statements in the output procedure have no meaning unless they are controlled by a SORT or MERGE statement. The output procedure can consist of any procedures needed to select, modify, or copy the records that are being returned one at a time from the sort/merge file. There are three restrictions on the procedural statements within the output procedure:

- The output procedure must not contain any SORT or MERGE statements.
- The output procedure must not contain any transfers of control to points outside the output procedure. The execution of a CALL statement to another program, or the execution of USE Declaratives are not considered as transfers of control outside an output procedure. Hence, they are allowed to be activated within these procedures.
 - IBM Extension

 If control transfers via a PERFORM statement to a point outside the output procedure, a conditional level message is issued but compilation continues.

 End of IBM Extension

 The remainder of the Procedure Division must not contain any transfers of control to points inside the output procedure with the exception of the return of control from a Declaratives Section.

• If control transfers via a PERFORM statement to a point inside the input procedure from elsewhere in the Procedure Division, a conditional level message is issued but the compilation continues.

IBM Extension

_____ End of IBM Extension _____

When an output procedure is specified, control passes to it after the sort/merge file (file-name-1) has been placed in sequence by the sort/merge operation. The COBOL compiler inserts a return mechanism at the end of the last section in the output procedure; when control is passed to the last statement in the output procedure, the return mechanism terminates the sort or merge, and passes control to the next executable statement after the SORT or MERGE statement.

SORT or MERGE INPUT/OUTPUT PROCEDURE Control

The INPUT or OUTPUT PROCEDURE phrases function in a manner similar to Format 1 of the PERFORM statement (the simple PERFORM). For example, naming a section in an OUTPUT PROCEDURE phrase causes execution of that section during the sort/merge operation to proceed as if that section were named in a PERFORM statement. As with the PERFORM statement, execution of the section is terminated after execution of its last statement. The last statement in Input and Output Procedures can be the EXIT statement. This is useful for documentation purposes.

RELEASE Statement (Sort Function Only)

The RELEASE statement transfers records from an input/output area to the initial phase of a sort operation. This statement is similar to the WRITE statement.

The RELEASE statement can be specified only within an input procedure associated with a SORT statement. Within an input procedure at least one RELEASE statement must be specified.

When the RELEASE statement is executed, the current contents of record-name are placed in the sort file; that is, made available to the initial phase of the sort operation.

Format

RELEASE record-name FROM identifier

Record-name must specify a record associated with the SD entry for file-name-1. Record-name can be qualified.

When the FROM identifier phrase is specified, the RELEASE statement is equivalent to the statement MOVE identifier to record-name followed by the statement RELEASE record-name. Moving takes place according to the rules for the MOVE statement without the CORRESPONDING phrase.

Identifier and record-name must not refer to the same storage area.

After the RELEASE statement is executed, the information in record-name is no longer available unless file-name-1 is specified in a SAME RECORD AREA clause, in which case record-name is still available as a record of the other files named in that clause. When the FROM identifier phrase is specified, the information is still available in identifier.

When control passes from the input procedure, the sort file consists of all those records placed in it by execution of RELEASE statements.

RETURN Statement

The RETURN statement transfers records from the final phase of a sort or merge operation to an input/output area. This statement is similar to the READ statement.

The RETURN statement can be specified only within an output procedure associated with a SORT or MERGE statement. Within an output procedure at least one RETURN statement must be specified.

Format

RETURN file-name RECORD [INTO identifier] AT END imperative-statement

When the RETURN statement is executed, the next record from file-name is made available for processing by the output procedure.

File-name must be described in a Data Division SD entry.

If more than one record description is associated with file-name, these records automatically share the same storage; that is, the area is implicitly redefined. After RETURN statement execution, only the contents of the current record are available; if any data items lie beyond the length of the current record, their contents are undefined.

When the INTO identifier phrase is specified, the RETURN statement is equivalent to the statement RETURN file-name followed by the statement MOVE record-name TO identifier. Moving takes place according to the rules for the MOVE statement without the CORRESPONDING phrase. Any subscripting or indexing associated with identifier is evaluated after the record has been returned and immediately before it is moved to identifier.

The record areas associated with file-name and identifier must not be the same storage area.

After all records have been returned from file-name, the AT END imperative-statement is executed, and no more RETURN statements can be executed.

SORT/MERGE Programming Notes

I

Sort/merge execution time can vary greatly and depends on the following factors:

- The size of the storage pool in which the job executes
- The number of records sorted
- Record size
- The number of key fields specified
- The collating sequence used
- The number and types of input files
- Message severity.

Storage Pool Size: A minimum storage pool size of 200 K is recommended, and 300 K is recommended for the average storage pool size. Executing sort/merge operations and other applications, especially interactive applications, in the same storage pool increases response time and increases sort/merge execution time.

Number of Records: Execution time increases when the number of records included in the sort increases. The sort/merge operation builds a work record for each input record in the sort. For efficiency, pass only required records to the sort.

Record Size: Execution time increases when the records are longer. To minimize execution time, do not include fields that contain unnecessary information.

Number of Key Fields: Execution time increases when there are more sort/merge key fields. As keys, character fields are more efficient than packed or binary signed fields.

Alternate Collating Sequences: Using an alternate collating sequence increases the execution time of the sort. Additional logic is required to change each key field from the standard collating sequence to the alternate collating sequence.

Number and Types of Files: Because the sort must move each record two times (from the file to the work record area, and from the work file to the output file), consider the characteristics of the file.

A logical file on the System/38 can be a subset of a physical file, a combination of physical files, and/or a restructuring of a group of fields from one or more physical files. Because of the added flexibility, use of logical files as input to the sort/merge operation can increase the execution time of the sort/merge operation. If possible, use a physical file for input to the sort/merge.

Processing a file from a unit record device, such as a diskette or a card reader, is much slower than processing a file from the data base or from tape. If a file is heavily used during a job or a series of jobs, execution time can be improved by copying the file into the data base.

Message Severity: In cases where an input or output procedure transfers control to points outside the procedure, or where control transfers to inside an input or output procedure from elsewhere in the Procedure Division, conditional level message CBL0492 is issued, but compilation does not fail.

In some cases, however, it may be desirable to have compilation fail. If desired, you can force such transfers of control to cause the compilation to fail by changing the conditional level message to a severe level message. This can be done by changing the severity of the message to 30 using the Change Message Description (CHGMSGD) CL Command. See the *CL* Reference Manual for more information about the CHGMSGD command. See the System/38 Messages Guide: COBOL for more information about message severities.

SOURCE PROGRAM LIBRARY

Prewritten source program entries can be included in a source program at compile time. Thus, an installation can use standard file descriptions, record descriptions, or procedures without recoding them. These entries and procedures can be saved in files. They can be included in the source program by means of the COPY statement.

COPY Statement

The COPY statement places previously written text in a COBOL program.

Format



Compilation of the source program containing COPY statements is logically equivalent to processing all COPY statements before processing the resulting source program.

The effect of processing a COPY statement is that the text associated with text-name is copied into the source program, logically replacing the entire COPY statement beginning with the word COPY and ending with the period, inclusive. When the REPLACING phrase is not specified, the text is copied unchanged.

The text-name is the name of the member to be copied. The text-name must begin with an alphabetic character. The first 10 characters of the text-name are used as the member name; these first 10 characters must, therefore, be unique within one file.

If text-name is not qualified, QCBLSRC is assumed as the System/38 file name. If the System/38 file name is not qualified by System/38 library name, it is assumed to reside in a library in the library list, *LIBL.

The System/38 library name, System/38 file name, and text-name must follow the rules for formation of any System/38 name.

A COPY statement can appear in the source program anywhere that a character-string or a separator can appear. However, a COPY statement must not be specified within the resulting copied text. Each COPY statement must be preceded by a space, and followed by a period and a space.

Comment lines can appear in copied text. Comment lines in text are copied into the source program unchanged and are interpreted logically as a single space.

Debugging lines can appear in copied text. When a COPY statement is specified on a debugging line, the copied text is treated as though it appeared on a debugging line except that comment lines in the text appear as comment lines in the resulting source program.

The syntactic correctness of the entire COBOL source program cannot be determined until all COPY statements have been completely processed, because the syntactic correctness of the copied text cannot be independently determined.

Text copied from a member is placed into the same area of the resultant program as it is in the member. Copied text must conform to the rules for standard COBOL format.

IBM Extension

The COPY statement, DDS or DD format, can also be used to create equivalent COBOL Data Division statements for a file that exists on the system. These descriptions are based on the file in existence at compile time. This statement does not use the DDS source statements for the file. The DDS or DD format of the COPY statement can be used only in the Data Division, and it is the user's responsibility to precede the statement with a group level item that has a level-number less than 05.

The COPY statement, DD format, can be used to reference an Alias (alternate) name. The specification of an Alias name in DDS allows a data name of up to thirty characters to be included in the COBOL program.

When the COPY statement DD format is specified, COBOL copies in Alias names and translates all underscores to hyphens in the alias names before any replacing occurs.

Note: Alias names which are included in the COBOL source file, can be used in the Procedure Division.

When the RECORD KEY clause specifies EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY, a format can be copied only once under an FD. For example, if all formats are copied under an FD, no other COPY statement, DDS or DD format, can be specified for the same file under that FD.

Format 2



The format-name is the name of the DDS record format definition that is translated into COBOL equivalent data description entries. The format-name must follow the rules for formation of any System/38 name.

If DDS-ALL-FORMATS or DD-ALL-FORMATS is specified or -I-0 is specified or assumed, each record format is generated as a redefinition of an 05 elementary item defined as the size of the largest record format definition.

If a separate storage area is needed in WORKING-STORAGE for each format, individual COPY statements must be specified for each format.

For example:

SELECT FILE-X ASSIGN TO DATABASE-CUSTMASTER. FD FILE-X LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD. 01 FILE-X-RECS. COPY DDS-ALL-FORMATS OF CUSTMASTER-QGPL. (See Note 1.) WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 01 ADR-REC. COPY DDS-CUSTADR OF CUSTMASTER. (See Note 2.) 01 DETAIL-REC. COPY DDS-CUSTDETL OF CUSTMASTER. (See Note 2.)

Notes:

1. This COPY statement generates only one storage area for all formats.

2. This COPY statement generates separate storage areas.

System/38 file name is the name of a System/38 file. The generated DDS entries represent the record format defined in the file. The file must be created before the program is compiled.

System/38 library name is optional. If it is not specified, the current job library list is used as the default value.

If neither -I nor -0 is specified, -I-0 is assumed.

If -I is specified, the generated data description entries contain either the input and input/output fields for a nonsubfile format, or the input, output, and input/output fields for a subfile format.

If -0 is specified, the generated data description entries contain one of the following:

- The output and input/output fields for the nonsubfile format.
- The input, output, and input/output fields for the subfile format.

The use of the INDICATOR attribute is discussed under "Indicators" in Chapter 7.

Data base files never have indicators.

Group level names are assigned as follows:

• INPUT

05 format-name-I

• OUTPUT

05 format-name-0

If indicators are requested, or exist in the format, an additional group name (06 level) is generated at the beginning of the structure.

06 format-name-(I or 0)-INDEC. 07 IN01 PIC 1 INDIC 01. 07 IN04 PIC 1 INDIC 04. 07 IN05 PIC 1 INDIC 05. 07 IN07 PIC 1 INDIC 07. 06 FLD1 PIC 06 FLD2 PIC

If redefinition is required, a group level name is generated as follows:

05 file-name-RECORD PIC X(largest record size).

Field names, PICTURE definitions, and numeric usage clauses are derived directly from the internal DDS format field names and data type representations. Field names and PICTURE definitions are constructed as follows:

Data Field Structures

06 field-name PIC (appropriate COBOL definition...see Figure 6-5).

_____ End of IBM Extension _

Floating Point Fields

COBOL treats floating point fields as FILLER. The fields can contain floating point values set outside of COBOL, and a COMP-4 definition is generated to maintain proper alignment in the record, but the data is *not* in binary format. No attempt must be made to use floating point data for processing in the COBOL program.

Programming Note: If you have not specified your own program collating sequence, you may create a record containing floating point fields in your COBOL program by moving LOW-VALUES to the entire record before moving in the values of the non-floating-point fields. This will give the floating point fields in the record a value of zero. Note that the above method is only recommended if valid floating point fields with a value of zero are desirable for your particular application.

Floating point key fields are not allowed. In cases where some formats exist without a floating point key field and other formats do not, you should use one or more COPY DD or COPY-DDS statements with specific format names, rather than using COPY DDS-ALL-FORMATS or COPY DD-ALL-FORMATS.

[–] IBM Extension [–]

J

Indicator Structures

07 INxx PIC 1 INDIC xx.

where xx is indicator number.

| PHYSICAL, LOGICAL, PRINTER, COMMUNICATIONS, AND BSC FILES | | | | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|--|--|
| DDS | | COBOL DATA DIVISION | | | |
| Data Type | Formats | m = number of decimals (DDS pos. 36 & 37) | | | |
| (Pos. 35) | | If DDS pos. 36 & 37 are blank | If DDS pos. 36 & 37 are not blank | | |
| 右 (Blank) | Default | PIC X(n) | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) | | |
| Р | Packed decimal | PIC S9(n) COMP-3 | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) COMP-3 | | |
| S | Zoned decimal/signed numeric | PIC S9(n) | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) | | |
| В | Binary | PIC S9(n) COMP-4 | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) COMP-4 | | |
| F | Floating Point ¹ | | | | |
| | single precision | PIC S9(5) COMP-4 | _ | | |
| | double precision | PIC S9(10) COMP-4 | _ | | |
| A | Character | PIC X(n) | - | | |
| DISPLAY FILES | | | | | |
| x | Alphabetic Only | PIC X(n) | _ | | |
| N | Numeric Shift | PIC X(n) | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) | | |
| Y | Numeric Only | PIC S9(n) | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) | | |
| I | Inhibit Keyboard entry | PIC X(n) | PIC S9(n-m)V9(m) | | |
| W | Katakana | PIC X(n) | _ | | |
| А | Alphanumeric Shift | PIC X(n) | - | | |
| ¹ COBOL treats floating point fields as FILLER. See <i>Floating Point Fields</i> . | | | | | |



Externally Described COPY Statement, DDS Format, and DD Format Considerations

When all field descriptions are identical, and the user has requested INPUT and OUTPUT fields implicitly or explicitly, only one set of field descriptions is generated. This type of description is annotated with a comment-line reading "I-O FORMAT: format-name" and neither -I nor -O is appended to the record format name. This is always the case for data base and printer device files. For example:

| 0 * * * * * | I RCUSREC COPY DI I-O FOI THE KEY I NUMBER 0001 / 0002 / | C. DS-CUSREC O RMAT:CUSREC DEFINITIONS NAME RETRI ARBAL ASCEN AREACD DESC | F CUSFILE FROM FIL FOR RECO EVAL TYPE DING SIGN ENDING AB | È CUSFILE RD FORMAT ALTSEQ ED NO SVAL NO | OF LIBRARY CUSLIB CUSREC | CUSREC |
|----------------------|--|---|--|--|-----------------------------|--|
| | 05 06 06 06 06 06 | CUSREC ARBAL AREACD BOSTAZ CNTCT CRCHKZ CSTAT CUSTNZ | PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC | S9(7)V9(2 S9(3) X(1). X(15). S9(2). X(1). S9(6). |) COMP-3. COMP-3. | CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC |
| | 06 06 06 06 06 | DLORD DSCPCZ INDUS NAME1 NAME2 NAME3 NAME3 | PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC | S9(6) S9(2)V9(3 S9(2) X(25) X(25) X(25) X(25) X(25) |) COMP-3. | CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC |
| | 06 06 06 06 06 06 | PHONE PRICIZ SHPINZ SLSMAZ TAXCDZ TERMSZ | PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC PIC | S9(7) S9(2) X(25) X(3) S9(2) S9(2) | COMP-3. | CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC |

The user should pay particular attention to the REDEFINES clause that may be generated for the ALL-FORMATS or -I-O phrases. Since all formats are redefined on the same area (generally a buffer area), several field names can describe the same area of storage, and unpredictable results can occur if the entire format area is not reinitialized prior to each output operation. Data items that are subordinate to the data item specified in a MOVE CORRESPONDING statement do not correspond and are not moved when they contain a REDEFINES clause or are subordinate to a redefining item.

To avoid reinitialization, multiple COPY statements, DDS or DD format, using -I and -O suffixes can be used to create separate areas of storage in the Working-Storage section for each format or format type (input or output). READ INTO and WRITE FROM statements can be used with these record formats. For example:

| FD ORDER-ENTRY-SCREEN 01 ORDER-ENTRY-RECORD |
|---|
| WORKING-STORAGE SECTION O1 ORDSFL-I-FORMAT COPY DDS-ORDSFL-I OF DOESCR O1 ORDSFL-O-FORMAT COPY DDS-ORDSFL-O OF DOESCR |
| PROCEDURE DIVISION. |
| READ SUBFILE ORDER-ENTRY-SCREEN NEXT MODIFIED RECORD INTO ORDSFL-I-FORMAT FORMAT IS "ORDSFL" AT END SET NO-MODIFIED-SUBFILE-RCD TO TRUE |
| MOVE CORR ORDSFL-I TO ORDSFL-O REWRITE SUBFILE ORDER-ENTRY-RECORD FROM ORDSFL-O-FORMAT FORMAT IS "ORDSFL" |

If a user-defined field-name is a COBOL reserved word, the suffix -DDS is appended to the field-name. The format-name can be a COBOL reserved word only if the REPLACING phrase is used to change the copied occurrence of the format-name.

The REPLACING phrase of the COPY statement can be used to replace any of the generated COBOL source, including the level-numbers and the format-name. For example:

| CO | PY DDS-MOVE OF DDSFILE-CUSLIB | |
|------|--|------|
| | REPLACING MOVE BY CUSREC | |
| *I-0 | FORMAT: MOVE FROM FILE DDSFILE OF LIBRARY CUSLIB | MOVE |
| * | | MOVE |
| * | THE KEY DEFINITIONS FOR THE RECORD FORMAT MOVE | |
| * | NUMBER NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEO | |
| * | 0001 CUST ASCENDING DIGIT NO | |
| | 05 CUSREC. | MOVE |
| | 06 CUST PIC X(5) | MOVE |
| * | CUSTOMER NUMBÈR | MOVE |
| | 06 NAME PIC X(20). | MOVE |
| * | CUSTOMER NAME | MOVE |
| | OG ADDR PIC X(20) | MÖVE |
| * | CUSTOMER ADDRÉSS | MOVE |
| | OG CITY PIC X(20) | MOVE |
| * | CUSTOMER CITY | MOVE |
| | 06 STATE PIC X(2) | MÖVE |
| * | STATE ABBREVIÀTION | MOVE |

When RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified, the REPLACING phrase cannot change the name of a field that is a key.

DDS field names can contain characters that are not allowed in the COBOL language. For example, the field name CUSTN# can be used as an abbreviation for customer number. This format can be used in a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, if the REPLACING phrase is used to change the invalid characters to valid COBOL characters.

COPY DDS-ALL-FORMATS of PHEADR2-CUSTLIB REPLACING ==CUSTN#== BY CUSTNO I-O FORMAT:HEDR2 FROM FILE PHEADR2 OF OF LIBRARY CUSLIB THE KEY DEFINITIONS FOR RECORD FORMAT HEADR2 NUMBER NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEQ * 0001 CUSTNO ASCENDING N NO 0002 RECCOD DESCENDING ZONE YES 05 PHEADR2-RECORD_PIC_X(113). * 05 PHEADR2-RECORD. HEADR2 REDEFINES CUSTNO PIC S9(6) 06 ORDERN PIC S9(6). 06 PIC PIC S9(1). 06 RECCOD X(25) X(25) 06 SHIP1 ÞĪČ PIC SHIP2 06 06 SHIP3 X(25).

End of IBM Extension .

REPLACING Phrase

In the REPLACING phrase, each operand can consist of one of the following: pseudo-text, an identifier, a literal, or a COBOL word. When the REPLACING phrase is specified, each operand-1 from the copied text is replaced by its associated operand-2.

Pseudo-text is a sequence of character-strings and/or separators bounded by, but not including, pseudo-text delimiters (==). Both characters of each pseudo-text delimiter must appear on one line; however, character-strings within pseudo-text can be continued.

Pseudo-text-1 must not be null; neither can it consist solely of the space character and/or of comment lines.

Pseudo-text-2 can be null. It can consist solely of space characters and/or comment lines.

Each identifier can be defined in any Data Division section.

Each literal can be numeric or nonnumeric.

Each COBOL word can be any single COBOL word.

Programming Note: Sequences of code (such as file and data descriptions, error and exception routines, and so on) that are common to a number of programs can be cataloged and used in conjunction with the COPY statement. If naming conventions are established for such common code, then the REPLACING phrase need not be specified. If the names will change from one program to another, then the REPLACING phrase can be used to supply meaningful names for this program.

REPLACING Phrase Processing

When the REPLACING phrase is specified, the text is copied, and each properly matched occurrence of operand-1 within the text is replaced by the associated operand-2.

For purposes of matching, each identifier-1, literal-1, or word-1 is treated as pseudo-text containing only identifier-1, literal-1, or word-1 respectively. Separator spaces in identifiers are optional in both the copied text and the comparison text.

The comparison proceeds as follows:

- Any separator comma, semicolon, and/or space preceding the leftmost word in the text is copied into the source program. Beginning with the leftmost text word and the first operand-1 specified in the REPLACING phrase, the entire REPLACING operand that precedes the keyword BY is compared to an equivalent number of contiguous text words.
- Operand-1 matches the text only if the ordered sequence of text words in operand-1 is equal, character for character, to the ordered sequence of words. For matching purposes, each occurrence of a comma or semicolon separator is considered to be a single space. However, when operand-1 consists solely of a separator comma or semicolon, it participates in the match as a text word. In this case, the space following the comma or semicolon separator can be omitted. Each sequence of one or more space separators is considered to be a single space.
- If no match occurs, the comparison is repeated with each successive operand-1 (if specified) until either a match is found or there are no further REPLACING operands.
- Whenever a match occurs between operand-1 and the copied text, the associated operand-2 is copied into the source program in the place of operand-1.

- IBM Extension -----

Operand-2 is copied in the place of operand-1 unless pseudo-text-2 positioning rules cause the replacement to be inserted in a different area.

____ End of IBM Extension __

- When all operands have been compared and no match is found, the leftmost text word is copied into the source program.
- The next successive uncopied text word is then considered the leftmost text word, and the comparison process is repeated, beginning with the first operand-1. The process continues until the rightmost copied text word has been compared.

- A comment line occurring in operand-1 and in the copied text is interpreted for matching purposes as a single space. A comment line appearing in operand-2 is copied unchanged into the source program.
- Debugging lines are not permitted in operand-1. Debugging lines, however, are permitted in copied text and in operand-2. Text words in a debugging line are matched as if no D appeared in column 7.
- Text words after replacement are placed in the source program according to standard COBOL format rules.

Notes:

- 1. Arithmetic and logical operators are considered to be text words and can be replaced only through the pseudo-text phrase.
- When a figurative constant is operand-1, it will match only exactly as specified. For example, if ALL "AB" is specified in the copied text, then "ABAB" is not considered a match. Only ALL "AB" is considered a match.

COPY Statement Example

In this example, the member PAYREC consists of the following Data Division entries:

```
02 B PIC S99.
02 C PIC S9(5)V99.
02 D PIC S9999 OCCURS 1 TO 52 TIMES
DEPENDING ON B OF A.
```

The user can use the COPY statement in the Data Division of a program as follows:

01 PAYROLL. COPY PAYREC OF PAYFILE.

In this program, the member is then copied. The resulting entry is treated as if it had been written as follows:

01 PAYROLL. 02 B PIC S99. 02 C PIC S9(5)V99. 02 D PIC S9999 OCCURS 1 TO 52 TIMES DEPENDING ON B OF A.

To change some (or all) of the names within the member, the user can use the REPLACING phrase:

```
01 PAYROLL. COPY PAYREC OF PAYFILE
REPLACING A BY PAYROLL
B BY PAY-CODE
C BY GROSS-PAY.
```

In this program, the member is copied. The resulting entry is treated as if it had been written as follows:

01 PAYROLL. 02 PAY-CODE PIC S99. 02 GROSS-PAY PIC-S9(5)V99. 02 D

PIC S9999 OCCURS 1 TO 52 TIMES DEPENDING ON PAY-CODE OF PAYROLL.

The changes shown are made only for this program. The entry as it appears in the member remains unchanged.

SEGMENTATION FEATURE

It is not necessary to be concerned with storage management when writing System/38 COBOL programs. Segmentation, however, is available for compatibility with other systems.

The segmentation feature provides programmer-controlled storage optimization of the Procedure Division by allowing that division to be subdivided both physically and logically.

Segmentation Concepts

Although it is not required, the Procedure Division of a source program is usually written as a consecutive group of sections, each of which is made up of a series of related operations that perform a particular function. Thus, the entire Procedure Division is made up of a number of logical subdivisions. Segmentation allows the programmer to physically divide the Procedure Division into segments, each of which has specific physical and logical attributes.

When Segmentation is used, the entire Procedure Division must be divided into sections. Each section must then be classified as to its physical and logical attributes. Classification is specified by means of segment-numbers. All sections given the same segment-number make up one program segment.

Segment-numbers must be integers from 0 through 99.

Program Segments

There are three types of program segments: fixed permanent, fixed overlayable, and independent.

Fixed Segments

Fixed permanent segments and fixed overlayable segments make up the fixed portion, the part of the Procedure Division that is logically treated as if it were always physically present in main storage. Fixed-portion segment-numbers must be integers from 0 through 49.

A fixed permanent segment is always made available in its last-used state.

A fixed overlayable segment is logically always in main storage during program execution; therefore, it is always available in its last-used state.

Any overlay of such a segment is transparent to the user. Thus, a fixed overlayable segment is logically identical with a fixed permanent segment.

Independent Segments

Logically, an independent segment can overlay and be overlaid by other segments during program execution.

An independent segment is made available in its initial state the first time control is passed to it (explicitly or implicitly) during program execution.

An independent segment is made available in its initial state during subsequent transfers of control when:

- The transfer is the result of an implicit transfer of control between consecutive statements that are in different segments (that is, when control drops through into the independent segment from the physically preceding segment).
- The transfer is the result of an implicit transfer from a SORT or MERGE statement in one segment to a SORT input procedure or SORT/MERGE output procedure in an independent segment.
- An explicit transfer of control from a section with a different segment-number takes place (as, for example, during the transfer of control in a PERFORM n TIMES statement).

An independent segment is made available in its last-used state during subsequent transfers of control when:

- With the exception of the two preceding kinds of implied transfers, an implicit transfer from a section with a different priority takes place (as, for example, when control is returned to the independent segment from a Declarative procedure).
- An explicit transfer results from an EXIT PROGRAM statement.

Independent segments must be assigned segment-numbers 50 through 99.

Segmentation Logic

In a segmented program, the sections are classified by a system of segment-numbers according to the following criteria:

- Frequency of Reference Much used sections, or those that must be available for reference at all times, should usually be within fixed permanent segments. Less frequently used sections should usually be within either fixed overlayable or independent segments, depending on the program logic.
- Frequency of Use The more frequently a section is referred to, the lower its segment-number; the less frequently it is referred to, the higher its segment-number.

• Logical Relationships – Sections that frequently communicate with each other should be given identical segment-numbers.

Segmentation Control

Except for specific transfers of control, the logical sequence and the physical sequence of program instructions are the same. The compiler inserts any instructions necessary to initialize a segment. It is not necessary to transfer control to the beginning of a segment, or to the beginning of a section within a segment. Instead, control can be transferred to any paragraph in the Procedure Division.

COBOL Source Program Considerations

The following elements of a COBOL source program implement the Segmentation feature:

- The SEGMENT-LIMIT clause in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph of the Environment Division. This clause allows the programmer to control the specification of fixed permanent and fixed overlayable segments.
- Procedure Division segment-numbers, which group sections into segments. The segment numbering scheme also allows specifications of independent segments, fixed permanent segments, and (in conjunction with the SEGMENT-LIMIT clause) of fixed overlayable segments.

Segmentation – Environment Division

In the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph, the SEGMENT-LIMIT clause allows the user to reclassify fixed permanent segments while retaining the properties of fixed portion segments for the reclassified segments.

Format

[, SEGMENT-LIMIT IS segment-number].

The SEGMENT-LIMIT clause allows the programmer to specify certain permanent segments as capable of being overlaid by independent segments without losing the logical properties of fixed portion segments.

Segment-number must be an integer ranging in value from 1 through 49.

When the SEGMENT-LIMIT clause is specified:

- Fixed permanent segments are those with segment-numbers from 0 up to, but not including, the segment-number specified.
- Fixed overlayable segments are those with segment-numbers from the segment-number specified through 49.

For example, if SEGMENT-LIMIT IS 25 is specified, sections with segment-numbers 0 through 24 are fixed permanent segments, and sections with segment-numbers 25 through 49 are fixed overlayable segments.

When the SEGMENT-LIMIT cause is omitted, all sections with segment-numbers 0 through 49 are fixed permanent segments.

Segmentation – Procedure Division

In the Procedure Division of a segmented program, section classification is specified through segment-numbers in the section headers.

Format

```
section-name <u>SECTION</u> [segment-number].
```

All sections with the same segment-number make up one program segment. Such sections need not be contiguous in the source program.

The segment-number must be an integer from 0 through 99.

Segments with segment-numbers 0 through 49 are in the fixed portion of the program. Declarative sections can be assigned only these segment-numbers.

Segments with segment-numbers from 50 through 99 are independent segments.

If the segment-number is omitted from the section header, the segment-number is assumed to be 0.

Segmentation – Special Considerations

When segmentation is used, there are restrictions on the ALTER, PERFORM, SORT, and MERGE statements.

There are also special considerations for calling and called programs.

ALTER Statement

A GO TO statement in an independent segment must not be referred to by an ALTER statement in a different segment. All other uses of the ALTER statement are valid and are performed, even if the GO TO statement referred to is in a fixed overlayable segment.

PERFORM Statement

A PERFORM statement in the fixed portion can have in its range, in addition to any Declarative procedures whose execution is caused within that range, only one of the following:

- Sections and/or paragraphs in the fixed portion
- Sections and/or paragraphs contained within a single independent segment.

A PERFORM statement in an independent segment can have within its range, in addition to any Declarative procedures whose execution is caused within that range, only one of the following:

- Sections and/or paragraphs in the fixed portion
- Sections and/or paragraphs wholly contained in the same independent segment as the PERFORM statement.

SORT and MERGE Statements

If a SORT or MERGE statement appears in the fixed portion, then any SORT input procedures or SORT/MERGE output procedures must appear completely in one of the following:

- The fixed portion
- A single independent segment.

If a SORT or MERGE statement appears in an independent segment, then any SORT input procedures or SORT/MERGE output procedures must appear completely in one of the following:

- The fixed portion
- The same independent segment as the SORT or MERGE statement.

Calling and Called Programs

The CALL statement can appear anywhere within a segmented program. When a CALL statement appears in an independent segment, that segment is in its last-used state when control is returned to the calling program.

INTER-PROGRAM COMMUNICATION FEATURE

Complex data processing problems are often solved by the use of separately compiled but logically interdependent programs which, at execution time, form logical and physical subdivisions of a single run unit. A run unit is the total program necessary to solve a data processing problem; it includes one or more programs, and can include programs from source programs written in languages other than COBOL. See "System/38 Inter-Program Communication Considerations" in Chapter 9 for more information on COBOL and non-COBOL program communication.

Inter-Program Communication Concepts

When the solution of a problem is subdivided into more than one program, the constituent programs must be able to communicate with each other through transfers of control and/or through reference to common data.

Transfers of Control

In the Procedure Division, a calling program can transfer control to a called program, and a called program can itself transfer control to yet another called program. However, a called program must not directly or indirectly call its caller. For example, if program A calls program B, program B calls program C, and program C then calls program A, the results are unpredictable.

When control is passed to a called program, execution proceeds in the normal way. When a called program processing is completed, the program can either transfer control back to the calling program, call another program, or end the run unit.

Common Data

Program interaction can require that both programs have access to the same data.

In a calling program, the common data items are described in the same manner as other File and Working-Storage Section items. Storage is allocated for these items in the calling program. In a called program, common data items are described in the Linkage Section. Storage is not allocated to them in the called program. Because a calling program can itself be a called program, common data items can be described in the Linkage Section of the calling program. In this case, storage is not allocated for these items in the calling program itself, but rather in the program that called the calling program. For example, program A calls program B which calls program C. Data items in program A can be described in the Linkage Sections of programs B and C, and the one set of data can be made available to all three programs.

When control is transferred from the calling to the called program, the programmer must furnish a list of the common data items in both programs. The sequence of identifiers in both lists determines the match of identifiers between the calling and called programs. A corresponding pair of identifiers in the list names a single set of data that is available to both programs. While the called program is executing, any reference to one of these identifiers is a reference to the corresponding data of the calling program.
COBOL Language Considerations

In the Data Division of the source programs, the programmer defines the common data items to be used by both the calling and called programs. In the calling program, these items can be defined in the File, Working-Storage, or Linkage Sections. In the called program, these items must be defined in the Linkage Section. Common data items need not have the same name and data description, but they must contain the same number of characters.

In the Procedure Division, the list of common data items is established through the USING phrase, which names those data items available to both programs. In the called program, only those items named in the USING list of the called program are available from the data storage of the calling program.

A CALL statement in the calling program transfers control to the first nondeclarative procedural statement in the called program. When the called program has completed execution, control is returned to the calling program by an EXIT PROGRAM statement. The entire run unit can be ended by a STOP RUN statement in either program.

Data Division – Inter-Program Communication

In the Data Division of a called program, the programmer specifies in the Linkage Section those data items that are common with the calling program.

Format



The Linkage Section has meaning only if this program functions under control of a CALL statement that contains the USING phrase, or a call statement from another language.

The Linkage Section describes data available within the calling program and referred to in both the calling and called programs. Items described in the Linkage Section do not have space allocated for them in the called program. Procedure Division references to these data items are resolved at object time by equating the reference in the called program to the location used in the calling program. For index-names, no such correspondence is established. Index-name references in the calling and called programs always refer to separate indexes. Index-name values can be passed by first moving them to an index data item and passing that index data item.

Items defined in the Linkage Section can be referred to in the Procedure Division only if they are one of the following:

- Operands of a USING phrase in this program
- Data items subordinate to such a USING phrase operand

• Items associated with such a USING operand (such as condition-names or index-names).

Each Linkage Section record-name and noncontiguous data-name must be unique, because neither can be qualified. Descriptions of each clause valid in the Linkage Section are given under "Data Description" in Chapter 4. The following additional considerations apply.

Record Description Entries

Items that have a hierarchical relationship with one another must be grouped into level-01 records according to the rules for formation of record descriptions. Data description clauses can be used to complete the description of the entry. Except for level-88 condition-names, the VALUE clause must not be specified.

Data Item Description Entries

Items that have no hierarchical relationship with each other can be defined as noncontiguous items with level-number 77. The following clauses are required:

- Level-number 77
- Data-name
- PICTURE or USAGE IS INDEX.

Other data description clauses are optional and, when necessary, can complete the description of the item. Except for level-88 condition-names, the VALUE clause must not be specified.

Procedure Division – Inter-Program Communication

In the Procedure Division, control is transferred between a COBOL program and another System/38 program by means of the CALL statement.

Reference to common data is provided through the USING phrase, which can be specified in the CALL statement and in the Procedure Division header of the called program.

The CANCEL statement releases storage used by a called program.

The EXIT PROGRAM statement allows termination of called program processing. The STOP RUN statement allows termination of the run unit.

CALL Statement

The CALL statement transfers control from one object program to another within the run unit. The calling program must contain a CALL statement at the point where another program is to be called.

Execution of the CALL statement passes control to the first nondeclarative instruction of the called program. Control returns to the calling program at the instruction following the CALL statement.

Called programs themselves can contain CALL statements, but a called program that contains a CALL statement that directly or indirectly calls the calling program gives unpredictable results.

Format



Literal-1 must be nonnumeric and must conform to the rules for formation of a program-name. The first 10 characters of the literal are used to make the correspondence between the calling program and the called program. The literal must specify the program-name of the called program.

If literal-1 is specified, the call is classified as a static call because the PROGRAM-ID is determined at compile time.

Identifier-1 must be an alphanumeric data item. Its contents must conform to the rules for formation of a program-name (see "PROGRAM-ID Paragraph" in Chapter 3). The first 10 characters of identifier-1 are used to make the correspondence between the calling and called program.

If identifier-1 is specified, the call is classified as a dynamic call because the PROGRAM-ID is resolved at execution time each time a call is made. If literal-1 is specified, the PROGRAM-ID is resolved only once.

CALL statement execution passes control to the called program which becomes part of the run unit. If a CALL statement names a program that does not exist in the job's library list (*LIBL) at execution-time, an error message is issued.

A called program is in its initial state the first time it is called within a run unit, and the first time it is called after a CANCEL statement for the called program has been executed.

On all other entries into the called program, it is in its last-used state, and the reinitialization of any items is the responsibility of the user. See Chapter 9 for more information about calling programs. If there is not enough storage resource available to accommodate the called program in the subsystem, the ON OVERFLOW phrase specifies the action to be taken.

If the ON OVERFLOW phrase is not specified, results are unpredictable.

The user return code is set to 0 at the start of execution of any COBOL program, and before a call is made to another program. See the RTVJOBA and DSPJOB commands in the *CL Reference Manual* for more information about return codes.

USING Phrase

The USING phrase makes data items in a calling program available to a called program. COBOL supports the passing of arguments to other System/38 programs. The attributes of the data passed depends on the definition requirements of the called program.

The following discussion of the USING phrase assumes that the calling and called programs are written in COBOL.

Format

USING data-name-1 [, data-name-2] . . .

In a calling program, the USING phrase is valid for the CALL statement; each USING data-name must be defined as a level-01 or level-77 item anywhere in the Data Division. The maximum number of data-names that can be specified is 30.

IBM Extension

In the USING phrase of the calling program CALL statement, the data-names can have level-numbers other than 01 or 77. These data-names can be indexed or subscripted, and can be qualified.

___ End of IBM Extension _____

In a called program entered at the beginning of the nondeclaratives portion, the USING phrase is valid in the Procedure Division header; each USING data-name must be defined as a level-01 or level-77 item in the Linkage Section of the called program.

Formats for these individual items show the correct syntax for specifying the USING phrase.

The USING phrase is specified if, and only if, the called program is to operate under control of a CALL statement and that CALL statement itself contains a USING phrase. That is, for each CALL USING statement in a calling program, there must be a corresponding USING phrase specified in the called program.

The order of appearance of USING data-names in both calling and called programs determines the correspondence of single sets of data available to both programs. The correspondence is positional and not by name. Corresponding data-names must contain the same number of characters, although their data descriptions need not be the same. For index-names, no correspondence is established; index-names in calling and called programs always refer to separate indexes.

The data-names specified in a CALL USING statement name data items available to the calling program that can be referred to in the called program. A given data-name can appear more than once.

In a called program, USING data-names must be defined in the Linkage Section. Of the items defined in the Linkage Section, only those named in the USING phrase are available to the program. Within the called program, USING data-names are processed according to their definition within this program.

When the USING phrase is specified, the program executes as if each reference to a USING data-name in the called program Procedure Division is replaced by a reference to the corresponding USING data-name in the calling program.

Examples that illustrate the USING phrase are given in Figure 6-6 and in "Inter-Program Communication Feature Examples" later in this chapter.

CPF Graphics Support

System/38 COBOL lets you use the CALL statement to access the following CPF Graphics routines:

- Graphical Data Display Manager (GDDM), a set of graphics primitives for drawing pictures
- Presentation Graphics Routines (PGR), a set of business charting routines.

You access all these graphics routines with the same format of the CALL statement:

Format

Routine-name is the name of the graphics routine you want to use.

The data-names that follow routine-name are the parameters necessary to use certain graphics routines. The number of parameters that you must specify varies, depending on which routine you select. When you select a graphics routine, make sure each parameter is the correct size and data type as required by that routine.

The following are examples of calling graphics routines. Remember, you must define each parameter as required by the graphics routine you use.

MOVE "FSINIT" TO CPF-GRAPHICS-ROUTINE-NAME. CALL "GDDM" USING CPF-GRAPHICS-ROUTINE-NAME.

MOVE "GSFLD" TO CPF-GRAPHICS-ROUTINE-NAME. CALL "GDDM" USING CPF-GRAPHICS-ROUTINE-NAME, PIC-ROW, PIC-COL, PIC-DEPTH, PIC-WIDTH.

For more information about graphics routines and their parameters, see the CFP Graphics Programmer's Guide and the CPF Graphics Reference Manual.

CANCEL Statement

The CANCEL statement releases the storage occupied by a called program.

Format

$$\underline{CANCEL} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{, identifier-2} \\ \text{, literal-2} \end{array} \right] \cdots$$

Each literal or identifier specified in the CANCEL statement must be nonnumeric. The contents must conform to the rules for formation of a program-name (see "PROGRAM-ID Paragraph" in Chapter 3). The first 10 characters of the literal or identifier are used to make the correspondence between the calling and called program.

Each literal or identifier specified in the CANCEL statement must be the same as the literal or identifier specified in the associated CALL statement(s).

Subsequent to the execution of a CANCEL statement, the program referred to by the statement ceases to have any logical relationship to the program in which the CANCEL statement appears.

The program named in a CANCEL statement can be entered in its initial state again after the CANCEL statement is executed: the program is entered in its initial state if a CALL statement that names the program is executed by any program in the run unit. A CALL statement is the only means by which a logical relationship to a canceled program can be reestablished.

A called program is canceled either by being directly referred to as the operand of a CANCEL statement or by the termination of the run unit of which the program is a member.

No action results from the execution of a CANCEL statement that names a program that has not been called in the run unit, or that names a program that was called but is at present canceled. In either case, control passes to the next statement.

If a CANCEL statement names a program that does not exist in the library list, an error message is issued.

Called programs can contain CANCEL statements. However, a called program must not contain a CANCEL statement that directly or indirectly cancels a calling program. In this case control is passed to the next statement.

A program named in a CANCEL statement must not refer to any program that has been called and has not yet returned control to the calling program. A program can, however, cancel a program that it did not call. For example, if A calls B and B calls C, when A receives control, it can cancel C; or if A calls B and A calls C, when C receives control, it can cancel B.

| Calling Program Description | Called Program Description |
|--|--|
| WORKING-STORAGE SECTION O1 PARAM-LIST O5 PARTCODE PIC A O5 PARTNO PIC X(4) O5 U-SALES PIC 9(5) | LINKAGE SECTION 01 USING-LIST 10 PART-ID PIC X(5) 10 SALES PIC 9(5) |
| PROCEDURE DIVISION. | PROCEDURE DIVISION USING USING-LIST. |
| CALL CALLED-PROG USING PARAM-LIST | |

Figure 6-6. Common Data Items in Inter-Program Communication

Note: In the calling program, the code for parts (PARTCODE) and the part number (PARTNO) are referred to separately. In the called program, the code for parts and the part number are combined into one data item (PART-ID); therefore in the called program, a reference to PART-ID is the only valid reference to them.

EXIT PROGRAM Statement

The EXIT PROGRAM statement specifies the logical end of a called program (subprogram).

Format

paragraph-name. EXIT PROGRAM.

The EXIT statement must be preceded by a paragraph-name, and it must be the only statement in the paragraph.

When control reaches an EXIT PROGRAM statement in a subprogram, control returns to the point in the calling program immediately following the CALL

statement. If control reaches an EXIT PROGRAM statement in a main program, control passes through the exit point to the first sentence of the next paragraph. For more information, see "System/38 Inter-Program Communication Considerations" in Chapter 9.

STOP RUN Statement

Format

STOP RUN

When STOP RUN is specified, execution of the run unit is terminated. If a STOP RUN statement appears in a sequence of imperative statements, it must be the last or the only statement in the sequence. All files should be closed before a STOP RUN statement is executed. If you do not close the files, they are closed by compiler generated code. For more information, see "System/38 Inter-Program Communication Considerations" in Chapter 9.

An implicit STOP RUN is always generated after the last statement in the source program.

Inter-Program Communication Feature Examples

A static CALL is illustrated in the following program example.

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION PROGRAM-ID. CALLSTAT. DATA DIVISION. WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 01 RECORD-2 PIC X. 01 RECORD-1. 05 SALARY PIC S9(5)V99. 05 RATE PIC S9V99. 05 HOURS PIC S9V99. PROCEDURE DIVISION CALL "PROG" USING RECORD-1. STOP RUN.

The following example illustrates a dynamic CALL. The dynamic CALL differs in execution from the static CALL that is illustrated in the preceding example.

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. PROGRAM-ID. CALLDYNA. DATA DIVISION. WORKING-STORAGE SECTION O1 IDENT PICTURE X(10) O1 RECORD-2 PIC X. O1 RECORD-1 O5 SALARY PIC S9(5)V99 O5 RATE PIC S9V99 O5 HOURS PIC XXX. PROCEDURE DIVISION. MOVE "PROG" TO IDENT CALL IDENT USING RECORD-1. CANCEL IDENT. STOP RUN.

The following called program can be associated with either of the calling programs in the two preceding examples.

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION PROGRAM-ID. PROG. DATA DIVISION. LINKAGE SECTION. O1 PAYREC. 10 PAY PIC S9(5)V99 10 HOURLY-RATE PIC S9V99. 10 HOURS PIC S99V9. O1 CODE PIC 9. ... PROCEDURE DIVISION USING PAYREC. ... EXIT PROGRAM.

Processing in these examples begins in the calling program, which can be either CALLSTAT or CALLDYNA. When the first CALL statement is executed, control is transferred to the first statement of the Procedure Division in the called program, PROG. Note that in each of the calling programs the operand of the first USING phrase is identified as RECORD-1.

When PROG receives control, the values within RECORD-1 are made available to PROG; however, in PROG they are referred to as PAYREC.

Note that the PICTURE character-strings within PAYREC and CODE contain the same number of characters as RECORD-1 and RECORD-2, although the descriptions are not identical.

When processing within PROG reaches the EXIT PROGRAM statement, control is returned to the calling program, and processing continues in that program.

In any given execution of these two calling programs, if the values within RECORD-1 are changed between the time of the first CALL and another CALL, the values passed at the time of the second CALL statement are the changed, not the original, values. If the user wishes to use the original values, then he must ensure that they have been saved.

DEBUGGING FEATURES

The debugging features specify the conditions under which procedures are to be monitored during program execution.

COBOL source language debugging statements are provided. The user decides what to monitor and what information to retrieve for debugging purposes. The COBOL debugging features simply provide access to pertinent information.

COBOL Source Language Debugging

COBOL language elements that implement the Debugging Feature are a compile-time switch (WITH DEBUGGING MODE), an execution-time switch, a USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative, the special register DEBUG-ITEM, and debugging lines that can be written in the Environment, Data, and Procedure Divisions.

Compile-Time Switch

In the SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph of the Configuration Section, the WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause acts as a compile-time switch.

Format

SOURCE-COMPUTER. computer-name

[WITH DEBUGGING MODE].

The WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause serves as a compile-time switch for the debugging statements written in the source program.

When WITH DEBUGGING MODE is specified, all debugging sections and debugging lines are compiled as specified in this chapter. When WITH DEBUGGING MODE is omitted, all debugging sections and debugging lines are treated as documentation.

Execution-Time Switch

The execution-time switch dynamically activates the debugging code that is generated when WITH DEBUGGING MODE is specified.

Two commands are provided to control the execution-time switch. To set the execution-time switch on, enter the command:

| ENTCBLDBG PGM program-name | |
|----------------------------|--|
|----------------------------|--|

To set the execution-time switch off, enter the command:

The default for the execution-time switch is off.

When debugging mode is specified, through the execution-time switch, all the debugging sections and debugging lines (D in column 7) compiled into the program are activated.

The ENTCBLDBG command must be entered for each COBOL program (main program or called program) to be debugged in the next COBOL run unit. At the end of the run unit, all execution-time switches that are on are set off. If a switch must be set off before a following execution of a COBOL run unit, the ENDCBLDBG command should be used. Execution-time switches for up to 15 programs can be on at once.

When the ENTCBLDBG or ENDCBLDBG command is issued in a CL program, concatenation expressions can be used for all parameter values. See the *CL Reference Manual* for more information about concatenation expressions:

When debugging mode is suppressed, through the execution-time switch, any USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative procedures are inhibited. However, all debugging lines (D in column 7) remain in effect.

Recompilation of the source program is not required to activate or deactivate the execution-time switch.

When WITH DEBUGGING MODE is not specified in the SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph, the execution-time switch has no effect on execution of the program.

USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative

The USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence in the Procedure Division identifies the items in the source program that are to be monitored by the associated debugging Declarative procedure.

Format

When specified, all debugging sections must be written immediately after the DECLARATIVES header. Except for the USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence there must be no reference to any nondeclarative procedure within the debugging procedure.

Automatic execution of a debugging section is not caused by a statement appearing in a debugging section.

A debugging section for a specific operand is executed only once as the result of the execution of a single statement, no matter how many times the operand is specified in the statement. An exception to this rule is that each specification of a subscripted or indexed identifier where the subscripts or indexes are different causes invocation of the debugging Declarative. For a PERFORM statement that causes repeated execution of a procedure, any associated procedure-name debugging Declarative section is executed once for each execution of the procedure.

For debugging purposes, each separate occurrence of an imperative verb within an imperative statement begins a separate statement.

Statements appearing outside the debugging sections must not refer to procedure-names defined within the debugging sections.

Except for the USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence itself, statements within a debugging Declarative section can only refer to procedure-names defined in a different USE procedure through the PERFORM statement. Procedure-names within debugging Declarative sections must not appear in USE FOR DEBUGGING sentences.

Figure 6-7 defines the points during program execution when the USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures are executed. Identifier-n, file-name-n, and procedure-name-n refer to the first and all subsequent specifications of that type of operand in one USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence. Any particular identifier, file-name, or procedure-name can appear in only one USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence, and only once in that sentence.

An identifier in a USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence:

- Must be specified without the subscripting or indexing normally required if it contains an OCCURS clause or is subordinate to an entry containing an OCCURS clause. (A SEARCH or SEARCH ALL statement that refers to such an identifier does not invoke the USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures.)
- Must not be a special register.

When ALL PROCEDURES is specified in a USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence, procedure-name-1, procedure-name-2, procedure-name-3, and so on, must not be specified in any USE FOR DEBUGGING sentence. The ALL PROCEDURES phrase can be specified only once in a program.

When a USE FOR DEBUGGING operand is used as a qualifier, such a reference in the program does not activate the debugging procedures.

References to the DEBUG-ITEM special register can be made only from within a debugging Declarative procedure.

| USE FOR DEBUGGING Operand | Upon execution of the following, the USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures are executed immediately |
|------------------------------|---|
| identifier-n | Before REWRITE/WRITE identifier-n and after FROM phrase move, if applicable. |
| | After each initialization, modification, or evaluation of identifier-n in PERFORM/VARYING/AFTER/UNTIL identifier-n. |
| | After any other COBOL statement that explicitly refers to identifier-n and could change its contents. (See note.) |

Figure 6-7 (Part 1 of 2). Execution of Debugging Declaratives

| USE FOR DEBUGGING Operand | Upon execution of the following, the USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures are executed immediately |
|-----------------------------------|---|
| ALL REFERENCES OF identifier-n | Before GO TO DEPENDING ON identifier-n, control is transferred, and before any associated debugging section for procedure-name is executed. |
| | Before REWRITE/WRITE identifier-n and FROM phrase move, if applicable. |
| | After each initialization, modification or |
| | evaluation of identifier-n in |
| | PERFORM/VARYING/AFTER/UNTIL identifier-n. |
| | After any other COBOL statement explicitly |
| | referring to identifier-n. (See note.) |
| file-name-n | After CLOSE/DELETE/OPEN/START file-name-n. |
| | After READ file-name-n where AT END/INVALID KEY was not executed. |
| procedure-name-n | Before each execution of the named procedure. |
| | After execution of an ALTER statement referring to the named procedure. |
| ALL PROCEDURES | Before each execution of every nondebugging procedure. |
| | After execution of every ALTER statement (except ALTER statements in Declarative procedures). |

Figure 6-7 (Part 2 of 2). Execution of Debugging Declaratives

Note: Operands acted upon but not explicitly named in such statements as ADD, MOVE, or SUBTRACT CORRESPONDING never cause activation of a USE FOR DEBUGGING procedure when such statements are executed. If identifier-n is specified in a phrase that is not executed, the associated debugging section is not executed.

DEBUG-ITEM Special Register

The DEBUG-ITEM special register provides information for a debugging Declarative procedure. DEBUG-ITEM has the following implicit description.

| 01 | DEE | BUG-ITEM | | |
|----|-----|----------------|---------|-------------------------|
| | Ō2 | DEBUG-LINE | PICTURE | IS X(6) |
| | 02 | FILLER | PICTURE | IS X VALUE SPACE. |
| | 02 | DEBUG-NAME | PICTURE | IS X(30) |
| | 02 | FILLER | PICTURE | IS X VALUE SPACE. |
| | 02 | DEBUG-SUB-1 | PICTURE | IS \$9999 SIGN IS |
| | ~ ~ | | LEADING | SEPARATE CHARACTER. |
| | 02 | FILLER | PICTURE | IS X VALUE SPACE. |
| | 02 | DEBUG-SUB-2 | PICIURE | 12 29999 21GN 12 |
| | 00 | | | SEPARATE CHARACTER. |
| | 02 | | PICTURE | IS X VALUE SPACE. |
| | 02 | DEBUG-SUB-3 | LEADINC | IS SUBURE CHARACTER |
| | 02 | | | IS Y VALUE SDACE |
| | 02 | DEBUG_CONTENTS | | $IS \times VALUE SFACE$ |
| | 02 | DEDOU-CONTENTS | TOTORE | 13 ///// |

The DEBUG-ITEM special register provides information about the conditions causing debugging section execution.

Before each debugging section is executed, DEBUG-ITEM is filled with spaces. The contents of the DEBUG-ITEM subfields are then updated according to the rules for the MOVE statement, with one exception: DEBUG-CONTENTS is updated as if the move were an alphanumeric to alphanumeric elementary move without conversion of data from one form of internal representation to another. After updating, each field contains:

- DEBUG-LINE: The compiler-generated statement number, right justified and padded on the left with zeros. For example, 000112.
- DEBUG-NAME: The first 30 characters of the name causing debugging section execution. All qualifiers are separated by the word OF (subscripts or indexes are not entered in DEBUG-NAME).
- DEBUG-SUB-1, DEBUG-SUB-2, DEBUG-SUB-3: If the DEBUG-NAME is subscripted or indexed, the occurrence number of each level is entered in the respective DEBUG-SUB-n. If the item is not subscripted or indexed, these fields remain spaces.
- DEBUG-CONTENTS: Data is moved into DEBUG-CONTENTS as shown in Figure 6-8. DEBUG-CONTENTS is the same size as the largest identifier in the program.

| Item Causing Debug Section Execution | DEBUG-LINE Contains Number of COBOL Statement Referring to | DEBUG-NAME Contains | DEBUG-CONTENTS Contains |
|--|--|------------------------|--|
| identifier-n | identifier-n | identifier-n | Contents of identifier-n when control passes to debug section. |
| file-name-n | file-name-n | file-name-n | For READ: contents of record retrieved. Other references: spaces. |
| procedure-name-n ALTER reference | ALTER statement | procedure-name-n | procedure-name-n in TO PROCEED TO phrase |
| GO TO procedure-name-n | GO TO statement | procedure-name-n | |
| procedure-name-n in SORT/MERGE INPUT/OUTPUT PROCEDURE | SORT/MERGE statement | procedure-name-n | "SORT INPUT" "SORT OUTPUT" "MERGE OUTPUT" as applicable |
| PERFORM statement transfer of control | This PERFORM statement | procedure-name-n | "PERFORM LOOP" |
| procedure-name-n in a USE procedure | Statement causing USE procedure execution | procedure-name-n | "USE PROCEDURE" |

Figure 6-8 (Part 1 of 2). DEBUG-ITEM Subfield Contents

| Item Causing Debug Section Execution | DEBUG-LINE Contains Number of COBOL Statement Referring to | DEBUG-NAME Contains | DEBUG-CONTENTS Contains |
|---|--|---|----------------------------|
| Implicit transfer from previous sequential procedure | Previous statement executed in previous sequential procedure (see note) | procedure-name-n | "FALL THROUGH" |
| First execution of first nondeclarative procedure | Line number of first statement in the procedure | First nondeclarative procedure-name | "START PROGRAM" |

Figure 6-8 (Part 2 of 2). DEBUG-ITEM Subfield Contents

Note: If this paragraph is preceded by a section header and control is passed through the section header, the statement number refers to the section header.

Debugging Lines

A debugging line is any line in a source program with a D coded in column 7 (the continuation area). If a debugging line contains nothing but spaces in Area A and Area B, it is considered a blank line.

Each debugging line must be written so that a syntactically correct program results whether the debugging lines are compiled into the program or syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation.

Successive debugging lines are permitted. Debugging lines can be continued. However, each continuation line must contain a D in column 7, and character-strings must not be broken across two lines.

Debugging lines can be specified only after the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph.

When the WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause is specified in the SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph, all debugging lines are compiled as part of the object program.

When the WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause is omitted, all debugging lines are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation.

FIPS FLAGGER

The FIPS (Federal Information Processing Standard) Flagger can be specified. Depending on the compiler option specified, it identifies source statements and clauses that do not conform to a specified level of the federal standard. For information on the FIPS Flagger, refer to Chapter 1 and to the *Messages Guide:* COBOL.

6-74

Chapter 7. TRANSACTION Files (IBM Extension)

IBM Extension

This chapter describes the System/38 COBOL language extensions that support work stations and program-to-program communication.

The TRANSACTION file organization allows a COBOL program to interactively communicate with:

- One or more work station users
- One or more programs on a remote system
- One or more devices on a remote system
- Any combination of the above.

On the System/38 you communicate with a program or device on a remote system by using LU1, BSC, or PEER devices. For a detailed discussion of these devices, see the *CPF Data Communications Programmer's Guide*.

When required, references are made to prior discussions in earlier chapters of this book, in order to avoid repetition. The language extensions in this chapter are presented in the following sequence: Environment Division, Data Division, and Procedure Division.

Externally Described Transaction File

A COBOL TRANSACTION file normally uses an externally described display file, BSC file, communications file, or mixed file that contains file information and a description of the fields in the records. The records in this file are described to the COBOL program by the DDS format of the COPY statement (see "Source Program Library" in Chapter 6).

In addition to the field descriptions (such as field names and attributes), the data description specifications (DDS) for a display device file:

- Specify the line number and position number entries for each field and constant to format the placement of the record on the screen.
- Specify attention functions such as underlining and highlighting fields, reverse image, or a blinking cursor.

- Specify validity checking for data entered at the display work station. Validity checking functions include:
 - Detecting fields where data is required
 - Detecting mandatory fill fields
 - Detecting incorrect data types
 - Detecting data for a specific range
 - Checking data for a valid entry
 - Performing modulus 10 or 11 check digit verification.
- Control screen management functions such as when fields are to be erased, overlaid, or retained when new data is displayed.
- Associate indicators 01 through 99 with command attention keys or command function keys. If a command key is described as a command function key (CF), both the modified data record and the response indicator are returned to the program. If a command key is described as a command attention key (CA), the response indicator is returned to the program, but the data record usually contains default values for input-only fields and the values written to the format for hidden output/input fields. For more information on CF and CA keys, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.
- Assign an edit code (EDTCDE keyword) or edit word (EDTWRD keyword) to a field to specify how the field's values are to be displayed.
- Specify subfiles.

A display device record format contains three types of fields:

- Input Fields: Input fields pass from the device to the program when the program reads a record. Input fields can be initialized with a default value; if the default value is not changed, the default value passes to the program. Uninitialized input fields are displayed as blanks into which the work station user can enter data.
- Output Fields: Output fields pass from the program to the device when the program writes a record to a display. The program or the record format in the device file can provide output fields.
- Output/Input (both) Fields: An output/input field is an output field that can be changed and, therefore, become an input field. Output/input fields pass from the program when the program writes a record to a display and pass to the program when the program reads a record from the display. Output/input fields are used when the user is to change or update the data that is written to the display from the program.

For a detailed description of an externally described display device file or data communications file and for a list of the valid data description specifications (DDS) keywords, see the *CPF Reference Manual-DDS*.

Figure 7-1 shows an example of the DDS for a display device file.

| le | | _ | | | | | | | Keying | Graphi | c | Τ | | TT | | | Description Page of |
|--------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-----------|-------------|-------------------------|---|---------------------------|---------|--|-----------------------|----------|----------|-------------|------------|--|
| ogrammer | | _ | | _ | _ | D | ate | | Instruction | Key | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | П | I | | | - | П | | | | | |
| | ן בן ר | T, | Cond | itioni | ng | | | | | | WII/N/X/X/S | | Locat | ion | | | |
| iequence iumber | * Form Type And/Or/Comment (A/O/* | e Not (N) | Indicator | | I Not (N) | 1 Indicator | C Name Type (IVR/K/S/O) | Name | (R) 5 26 27 28 29 30 3 | Length | 66 Data Type (B A/P/S/B A/ 66 Decimal 54 Positions | & Usage (B/O/1/B/H/M) | Line | Pos | 45 46 47 4 | 8 49 | Functions 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 68 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 |
| | ۸X | cυ | 51 | 01 | ١E | R | MA | STER I | OUTRY | FIL | E - | - | CU | SMI | NQ | | |
| | A X | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | REF | ۲ | CUSMSTP) 1 |
| | A | | | | | | R | CUSPMT | | | | | | | TEXT | ۲ (| ('Customer Prompt') |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | CAO | ۱(| (15 'End of program) 2 |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | 164 | i † | tomer Master Inquiry' |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | 3 | 3 | 'Cu | 5+ | tomer number ' |
| | A | | | | | | | CUST | R | | | I | 3 | 29 | 2 | | |
| | A | 9 | 9 | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | ERRI | 15 | sG('Customer number not found |
| | A | _ | | | | L. | Ц. | | | | | | | | pre | 55 | s reset, then enter valid numb |
| | A | | | L. | | | | | | | _ | | | | r' ' |) ° | |
| | A | + | | | _ | | 44 | | | | + | \square | 5 | 3 | 1056 | 2 | CF1 to end program, use enter |
| | A | + | - | + | + | L | | | · · · · · · · · · · | | + | Н | | | key | ţ | to return to prompt screen' |
| | A | + | | | + . | | R | CUSFLD | <u> </u> | | + | \vdash | | | TEXT | 1 | ('Customer Display') |
| | <u>^</u> | + | | ++ | + | | ++ | + | | | + | \vdash | | -+ | CAQ: | 10 | (15 'End of program') |
| | | + | ++ | + | + | ┝ | ++ | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | -+-+- | | + | Н | | | OVE | <u>C</u> | LAY 4 |
| | | + | + | + | ╋ | | | 10.005 | | | + | + | <u> </u> | 3 | <u>'Nar</u> | <u>ne</u> | |
| | <u>î</u> | | ++ | +-+ | + | | ++ | NAME | - K | | + | + | - ă | 11 | | | |
| ;;;;; | | + | + | ++ | + | | ++ | 4008 | | + + + + | + | + | 3 | <u> </u> | H AA | Y | <u> </u> |
| | | + | + | + - | + | | ╉╋ | - ULA | | | | H | 1 | - 1 1 | ICi- | ŀν | |
| | | + | - | 1 | + | | Ħ | CITY | P | | | H | 10 | 11 | | 4 | |
| + • • | | + | | - | + | | ++ | | | | + | 6 | 11 | | 15+ | 1+ | + e ¹ |
| -: : ; | | + | : | | | ÷ | tt | STATE | B | | + | ň | 11 | 11 | | | |
| | | + | + | | + | | tt | | | | + | Н | 11 | 21 | 'ziı | , | code 1 |
| | | | | 1 | 1 | | Ħ | ZIP | R | | | П | 11 | 31 | | T | |
| - | A | T | | T . | | | | | | | | | 12 | 3 | ' A / 6 | 2 | Balance |
| | A | | | | 1 | | | ARBAL | R | | | | 12 | 17 | EDTO | D | DE(J) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | T | | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | |

C

Figure 7-1 (Part 1 of 2). Example of the Data Description Specifications for a Display Device File

This display device file contains two record formats: CUSPMT and CUSFLDS.



Processing an Externally Described TRANSACTION File

When an externally described TRANSACTION file is processed, the Control Program Facility (CPF) transforms data from the program to the format specified for the file and displays the data. When data passes to the program, the data is transformed to the format used by the program.

CPF provides device control information for performing input/output operations for the device. When an input record is requested from the device, CPF issues the request, then removes device control information from the data before passing the data to the program. In addition, CPF can pass indicators to the program indicating which fields, or if any fields, in the record have changed.

When the program requests an output operation, it passes the output record to CPF. CPF provides the necessary device control information to display the record. CPF also adds any constant information specified for the record format when the record is displayed.

When a record passes to a program, the fields are arranged in the order in which they are specified in the DDS. The order in which the fields are displayed is based on the display positions (line numbers and positions) assigned to the fields in the DDS. Therefore, the order in which the fields are specified in the DDS and the order in which they appear on the screen need not be the same.

Indicators

Indicators are Boolean data items that can have the values B"0" or B"1".

When you define a record format for a file using DDS, you decide the options that are to be controlled by indicators, and the indicators that are to reflect particular responses. Option indicators provide options such as spacing, underlining, and allowing or requesting data transfer from a program to a printer or display device. Response indicators provide response information to a program from a device, such as which function keys are pressed by a work station user, and whether data has been entered.

Indicators can also be used with FORMATFILE files.

Indicators can be passed with data records in a record area, or outside the record area in a separate indicator area.

Indicators in the Record Area

If the keyword INDARA is not used in the DDS for a file, indicators are created in the record area. When indicators are defined in a record format for a file, they are read, rewritten, and written with the data in the record area.

The number and order of indicators defined in the DDS for a record format for a file determines the number and order in which the data description entries for the indicators in the record format must be coded in the program.

If a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, is used to copy indicators into a source program, the indicators are defined in the order in which they are specified in the DDS for the file.

Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area

If the file level keyword INDARA is specified in the DDS, then for any record format in the file, all indicators defined in the record format(s) for the file are passed to and from the program in a separate indicator area, not in the record area. For information on how to specify the INDARA keyword, see the *CPF Reference Manual* – *DDS*.

The file control entry for a file that has INDARA specified in its DDS must have the separate indicator area attribute, SI, as part of the assignment-name in the ASSIGN clause.

The advantages of using a separate indicator area are as follows:

- The number and order of indicators used in an I-O statement for any record format in a file need not match the number and order of indicators specified in the DDS for that record format.
- The program associates the indicator number in a data description entry with the appropriate indicator.

ASSIGN Clause with Separate Indicator Area Attribute

Assignment-name of the ASSIGN clause of a file control entry has the following general format:

device - System/38 file name - attribute

Device can be either WORKSTATION or FORMATFILE.

System/38 file name must refer to a file that has the file level keyword INDARA specified in its DDS.

Attribute must be the separate indicator area attribute, SI.

An example of an assignment-name is:

WORKSTATION-System/38 file name-SI

Data Description Entry – Boolean Data

When you use indicators in a COBOL program, you must describe them as Boolean data items using the data description entry for Boolean data.

Format



Special Considerations

The special considerations for the clauses used with the Boolean data follow. All other rules for clauses are the same as those for other data as described under "Data Description Entry" in Chapter 4.

PICTURE Clause: An elementary Boolean data-name is defined by a PICTURE containing a single 1.

USAGE Clause: USAGE must be defined implicitly or explicitly as DISPLAY.

OCCURS Clause: When the OCCURS clause and the INDICATOR clause are both specified at an elementary level, a table of Boolean data items is defined with each element in the table corresponding to an external indicator. The first element in the table corresponds to the indicator number specified in the INDICATOR clause; the second element corresponds to the indicator that sequentially follows the indicator specified by the INDICATOR clause.

For example, if the following is coded:

| 07 | SWITCHES | PIC 1 | |
|----|----------|-----------|-------|
| | | OCCURS 10 | TIMES |
| | | INDICATOR | 16. |

then SWITCHES (1) corresponds to indicator 16, SWITCHES (2) corresponds to indicator 17,..., and SWITCHES (10) corresponds to indicator 25.

INDICATOR Clause: If indicator fields are in a separate indicator area, the INDICATOR clause associates an indicator defined in DDS with a Boolean data item. If indicator fields are in the record area, the INDICATOR clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

Integer-3 must be a value of 1 through 99.

The INDICATOR clause must be specified at an elementary level only.

VALUE Clause: The VALUE clause specifies the initial content of a Boolean data item. The allowable values for Boolean literals are $B^{"0"}$, $B^{"1"}$, and ZERO.

INDICATOR Attribute of the COPY Statement, DDS Format or DD Format

The INDICATOR attribute specifies whether or not data description entries are generated for indicators.

If the INDICATOR attribute is specified, data description entries are generated for indicators, but not for data fields. The data description entries that are generated are determined by which one of the usage attributes (I, O, or I-O) is specified or assumed in the COPY statement.

- If ... I-INDICATOR... is specified, data description entries for input (response) indicators are generated for indicators used in the input record area.
- If ... 0-INDICATOR... is specified, data description entries for output (option) indicators are generated for indicators used in the output record area.
- If ... I-O-INDICATOR... is specified or assumed, data description entries for both input and output (response and option) indicators are generated for indicators used in the input and output record areas.

If the INDICATOR attribute is not specified, whether data description entries are generated for indicators depends on whether the file has the keyword INDARA specified in the DDS.

- If INDARA is not specified, data description entries are generated for both data fields and indicators.
- If INDARA is specified, data description entries are generated for data fields only, not for indicators.

Group level names are assigned as follows:

- INPUT
 - 05 format-name-I
- OUTPUT
 - 05 format-name-0

If indicators are requested, or exist in the format, an additional group name (06 level) is generated at the beginning of the structure.

If redefinition is required, a group level name is generated as follows:

05 file-name-RECORD PIC X(largest record size).

Field names, PICTURE definitions, and numeric usage clauses are derived directly from the internal DDS format field names and data type representations. Field names and PICTURE definitions are constructed as follows:

• Data Field Structures:

06 field-name PIC (appropriate COBOL definition).

• Indicator Structures:

07 INxx PIC 1 INDIC xx.

where xx is indicator number.

See "Source Program Library" in Chapter 6 for more information on the COPY statement.

INDICATORS Phrase

When the INDICATORS phrase is used in READ, REWRITE, and WRITE statements (see Figure 7-3) it specifies which indicators are to be read, rewritten, and written.

The identifier specified in the INDICATORS phrase can be either of the following:

- An elementary Boolean data item
- A group item with elementary Boolean data items subordinate to it.

Indicators in the Record Area

If INDARA is not specified in the DDS for the file, the size of the identifier in the INDICATORS phrase of an I-O statement (see Figure 7-3) should be equal to the number of option or response indicators defined in the DDS for that format.

- In a READ statement, the identifier size should be equal to the number of response indicators.
- In a REWRITE or WRITE statement, the identifier size should be equal to the number of option indicators.

The contents of the identifier are not checked, but are copied to or from the beginning of the record, on a byte by byte basis; indicator numbers are ignored.

If the INDICATORS phrase is omitted, the data in the indicator fields in the record are still passed in the record area. The INDICATORS phrase is only used to copy indicators into the record area before a WRITE or REWRITE statement, or out of the record area after a READ statement.

Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area

If INDARA is specified in the DDS for the file, the use of the indicators referenced in the INDICATORS phrase is based on indicator number.

- In a READ statement, only the response indicator numbers referenced by the INDICATORS phrase are updated. Indicators specified in the DDS for the format but not referenced by the INDICATORS phrase are ignored. Indicators referenced by the INDICATORS phrase but not specified in the DDS are not modified.
- In a WRITE or REWRITE statement, only the option indicators referenced by the INDICATORS phrase are used. Indicators specified in the DDS for the format but not referenced by the INDICATORS phrase are assumed to be off. Indicators referenced by the INDICATORS phrase but not used in the DDS for the format are ignored.

If the INDICATORS phrase is not specified, the following occurs:

- In the READ statement, indicators are not updated.
- In a WRITE or REWRITE statement, indicators are treated as through they are set off.

Indicators Sample Programs

This section contains sample COBOL programs that illustrate the use of indicators in either a record area or a separate indicator area.

All the programs do the following:

- 1. Determine the current date.
- 2. If it is the first day of the month, turn on an option indicator that causes an output field to appear and blink.
- 3. Allow the work station user to press CF keys to terminate the program, or turn on response indicators and call programs to write daily or monthly reports.

Figure 7-2 shows a program that uses indicators in the record area but does not use the INDICATORS phrase in any I-O statement. The associated DDS for the file is also shown.

Figure 7-3 shows a program that uses indicators in the record area and the INDICATORS phrase in the I-O statements. The associated DDS for the file is the same as that shown for the program in Figure 7-2.

Figure 7-4 shows a program that uses indicators in a separate indicator area, defined in WORKING-STORAGE by using the COPY statement, DDS format. The associated DDS for the file is also shown.

Figure 7-5 shows a program that uses indicators in a separate indicator area, defined in a table in WORKING-STORAGE. The associated DDS for the file is the same as that shown for the program in Figure 7-4.

C

.

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | -T | | 7 | | 1 | | | | | | - | | | | | 0.0./1 |
|--------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|----------------|---------|--------------|------------------------|-------|----------|---------------|-------|----------------------|----------------|-----------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|------|-------|-----|----------|----------|-------------|----------|---------|--------------|--------|-------|-----------------|---------|-------------------|----------------------|----------|------------------|----------|--------|
| ile | | | | | | | | | | | Ke | ying | | Graph | ic | | | | | | | _ | | | Descrip | otion | | | | | Pa | ige | | of | |
| rogrammer | _ | | | | | Da | ate | | | | In | truct | ion | Key | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | (./0 | | Cond | ition ion l | ing | | 0 | | | | | | | | A/S/X/Y/N/I/W) | | Loc | ation | , | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence Number | a Form Type And/Or/Comment (A/ | B Not (N) | Indicator | Indicator | Not (N) | 15 Indicator | Z Name Type (IN/R/K/S/ | 19 20 | Na | me 3 24 25 | 26 27 | ∞ ⊗ Reference (R) | Ler 30 31 3 | ngth 2 33 34 | S Data Type (& A/P/S/B S Decimal | E Positions E Usage (B/O/I/B/H/M) | Line | P | °OS | 15 46 4 | 7 48 44 | 9 50 51 | 52 53 | 3 54 55 | 56 57 51 | 8 59 6 | Funct | ions 2 63 64 | 65 66 | 67 6 8 | 69 70 7 [.] | 72 73 | 74 75 1 | 76 77 78 | 79 80 |
| | A | + | | 1 | 21 | SP | | Y | FIL | F | DD. | 5 | FOI | 2 1 | ND | 10 | ATC | R | E | | 1DI | FS | | | | | | | ; | | | | | | |
| | AN | + | | | ÷ | - | 1 | Ψ | | - | | 1 | | • | - | | | | | 1 | | _ | | _ | | | | | | | | | | - | |
| | A | + | • | + | 2 | - 1 | R | FO | RMA | 71 | | | | | | - | | + | 3 | . FC | 517 | 00 | 1 | FN | DC | TE | PF | 206 | RA | M/ |) | <u> </u> | | | • |
| | A | 1 | + | | - | | Ĥ | | | | - | | | | | | | + | -1 | SFC | 250 | 51 | _ | DA | ÎI Y | 1 | | 20R | T' | 7 | | · + · | | | |
| | A | + | • | | | | $^{++}$ | - | ······ | - | | | | | | | | + | | F | 29 | 52 | | MO | NTH | 11- | YF | 2FF | 2 CR | T ' |): | | | | |
| | | + | | T | \top | | tt | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | ÷ • | | | | • | | | | | |
| | A | + | - | | | | tt | | _ | | | Π | | | j 4 | | 10 | 5 | 10 | DF | -DA | RT | MF | =NT | NI | IM | RFI | R: | ./ | | | | | | |
| | A | | · | 1 | | | Ħ | DE | PTI | 10 | | | | 5 | | Ī | 10 | | 32 | | <u> </u> | * | | | _ | ц., | | | ·i | | | | : | | |
| | A | | 5 | 01 | | | T | | <u> </u> | | | | | | - | | 20 | | 26 | P | 200 | л | E | MC | NTH | 1L | YF | REP | OR | TS | / | | - 1 | | |
| | A | | T | | | | \square | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | Ē | SF | PA- | TRY | BL |) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | AX | 1 | - | - | | | 11 | 1 | | - | • | | | | | | | - | | | | . <u></u> , | | | | | | | • | | | | | | |
| | | | <u> </u> | 1 | 1 | | tt | 1 . | | - | | | | | -1 | ô – | 24 | L G | 01 | `C | FS | = | DA | AL L | YF | SEI | POI | ZT- | - | | | 1 | | | |
| | A | 1 | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | -, | | | 24 | 1 : | 26 | `CI | -9 | = | MO | DNT | HL | () | RE | POR | 21/ | | | | | | |
| | A | | | 1 | | | | | | | - | Π | | - | | | 24 | i i | 5.2 | \CI | FI | = | TE | RM | INA | AT | E1 | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | 1 | 1 | | | | | | | | П | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | |
| | A | | - | \uparrow | | | \square | | | | · · | П | | | | | ••• | - | | | - | | • | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | 1 | | 1 | | | \square | 1 | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | 1 | | T | | | | | | | | | |

- **1** The INDARA keyword is not used; indicators are stored in the record area with the data fields.
- 2 One record format, FORMAT1, is specified.
- 3 Three indicators are associated with three CF keys. Indicator 99 will be set on when CF key 1 is pressed, and so on.
- 4 One field is defined for input.
- 5 Indicator 01 is defined to cause the associated constant field to blink if the indicator is on.
- 6 The CF key definitions are documented on the work station screen.

Figure 7-2 (Part 1 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in the Record Area without Using the INDICATORS Phrase in the I-O Statement – Data Description Specifications



Figure 7-2 (Part 2 of 4).

Example of a Program Using Indicators in the Record Area without Using the INDICATORS Phrase in the I-O Statement



Figure 7-2 (Part 3 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in the Record Area without Using the INDICATORS Phrase in the I-O Statement



Figure 7-3 (Part 2 of 3). Example of a Program Using Indicators in the Record Area and the INDICATORS phrase in the I-O Statements

- **1** The separate indicator area attribute, SI, is not coded in the ASSIGN clause.
- 2 The COPY statement, DDS format, defines data fields and indicators in the record area.
- 3 Because the file does not have a separate indicator area, response and option indicators are defined in the order in which they are used in the DDS, and the indicator numbers are treated as documentation.
- All indicators used by the program are defined with meaningful names in data description entries in WORKING-STORAGE. Indicator numbers are omitted here because they have no effect. Indicators should be defined in the order needed by the display file.
- 5 INO1 in WORKING-STORAGE is set on if it is the first day of the month.
- 6 FORMAT1 is written to the work station screen:
 - The INDICATORS phrase causes the contents of the variable OPTION-INDICS to be copied to the beginning of the record area.
 - Data and indicator values are written to the work station screen.
- **7** FORMAT1, including both data and indicators, is read from the work station screen.
- **B** The INDICATORS phrase causes bytes to be copied from the beginning of the record area to RESPONSE-INDICS.
- 9 If CF key 5 has been pressed, a program call is executed.

Figure 7-3 (Part 3 of 3). Example of a Program Using Indicators in the Record Area and the INDICATORS phrase in the I-O Statements

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | Kevir | 10 | | Graphi | ic | | | Т | | | | | | | De | scriptio | n | | | | | Pa | age | | of | |
|--------|---------------------------------|---------|-----------|---------|-----------|---------|-----------|----------|---------|-----|----------|-------|--------|-----------------|-------|--------|-------------|-----------------------------------|------|--------|-----|-------------|---------|--------|-------|------------|---------------|----------|-----|---------|-----------|---------|--------|--------|--------|---------|-------|-------|
| rammer | | | | | | | Dat | e | | | | | Instru | uctio | n | Key | | | | | - | 1 | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Cor | diti | oning | | | | | | | | | | | | (W/I/N/ | | | cation | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| uence | (•/0/v) | | Cond | litio | n Nai | me | _ | (O)S/ | | N | ame | | | | Leng | th | 5/B A/S/X/Y | Ŷ | | | | | | | | | | | Fu | nction | s | | | | | | | |
| mber | • Form Type • And/Or/Comment | Not (N) | Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator | Reserved | 19 20 2 | | 2 24 | 05 26 | 27.28 | 8 Reference (R) | 21.22 | 12 24 | k Decimal | C Positions Usage (b/O/I/B/H/A | Line | F | Pos | 45 AC A | 17 AD A | 9 60 8 | 1 621 | E7 E4 | 66 6 0 | 67 69 E | | 1 67 6 | 2 64 6 | E 66 67 | . 69 6 | 9 70 7 | 1 72 7 | 2 74 76 | 78 77 | 78 70 |
| 3 4 5 | A 👗 | | 9 10 | | D | 15 | D | | Y 1 | FI | E | D | DS | 23 St | OR | 1 | ND | 1 (| ATO | | F | XAN | AP) | E | 5 | 03 04 | 55 56 | 57 58 5 | | 01 62 6 | 3 64 8 | 0000/ | 000 | 9 /0 / | | 3 /4 /5 | 10 11 | /8 /9 |
| | A * | FT | | | | - | | | • ; - ' | | | | | ť | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ++++ | |
| | A | П | | | | | | | | | | _ | | + | | | | | | | 1 | INC | AF | ZA | | ; | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | |
| | A | T | | | | | | R | FO | RM/ | AT | 1 | | | | | | | | | | CFO | 51(| 90 | > | `Ε | ND | OF | - 1 | PRO | DG | 2AN | 1 |) | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | CFC | 55(| 5 | | D. | A1 | LY | R | EPC | R | r^) | | | : | | 1 | |
| , , | A | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Τ | | | | | CFC | 29(| 5 | 2 | M | ON | THI | Y | R | EP | X | 77 |) | | | | |
| : | A # | | 1 | | | | : | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | : | _ | | | | | | | | 10 | 2 | 10 | DI | EPA | łR | TM | EN | Т | NL | MB | ER | : / | 1 | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | DE | PTh | N | | | | | 5 | | I | 10 | 2 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | |
| | A | | | C |)1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 20 |) | 26 | >PF | roc | 240 | Œ | M | ON | THI | -Y | R | ΞP | ORT | ۰S | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | DSI | 247 | R(| ΈB | L) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | |
| | A | | - | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | 24 | 1 9 | 01 | | FS | = | P, | A [| LΥ | RF | P |)R | ٢/ | | | | | | | |
| | A | | - | | - | | | | | | | | | | - | | T | | 24 | + | 26 | <u>`C</u> F | -9 | = | M | ON | TH | LY | R | EPC | DR1 | ٢/ | | | | | | |
| | A | | - | | - | | 1 | | | | | | ÷ | | | | | | 24 | 4 | 53 | \sim | F1 | Ξ | Т | ER | MI | NAT | E | / | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | : | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | T | | |

1 The INDARA keyword is specified, indicators are stored in a separate indicator area, not in the record area. Except for this specification, the DDS for this file is the same as that shown in Figure 7-2.

Figure 7-4 (Part 1 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, defined in WORKING-STORAGE by using the COPY Statement, DDS format

| 5714CB1 R04 M01 820813 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | 05/31/82 |
|---|--|------------|
| STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B 2 3 | •••• ••• 4 ••• •• 5 ••• •• 6 ••• •• 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME |
| 1 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. 2 000200 PROGRAM-ID. INDIC3. 000300≑ INDICATORS EXAMPLE 3 | . 00010000 00020000 - FILF WITH SEPARATE INDICATOR AREA. ≎00050000 | |
| 3 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. 4 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. | 00170000 00180000 | |
| 5 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S | 338 00190000 | |
| 6 000700 OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-1 | 538• 00200000 | |
| 7 000800 INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. | 00250000 | |
| 8 000900 FILE-CONTROL. | 00260000 | |
| 9 001000 SELECT DISPFILE | 00330000 | |
| 10 001100 ASSIGN TO WORKS | TATION-DISPFILE-SI | |
| 11 001200 ORGANIZATION IS | TRANSACTION 00350000 | |
| 12 001300 ACCESS 15 | SEQUENTIAL. 00350000 | |
| | 00360000 | |
| 14 UUISUU DATA DIVISIUN• | 00370000 | |
| | 00380000 | |
| | OMITTED 00560000 | |
| | SP-RFC . 0570000 | |
| 19 002000 01 DISP-REC. | 0580000 | |
| 20 002100 COPY DDS-ALL-FORM | ATS OF DISPFILE. 2 | |
| 22 +000001 05 DISPFILE-RECO | RD PIC X(8). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 23 +000002 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000003≉ INPUT FORMAT:FORMAT1 | FROM FILE DISPFILE OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000004* | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 24 +000005 05 FORMATI-I | REDEFINES DISPFILE-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 25 +000006 06 DEPTNO | PIC X(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 26 +000007 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000008# UUTPUT FURMAT:FORMATI | FROM FILE DISPFILE OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000009* | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| +000010~ 05 FURMATI~0 | REDEFINES DISPFILE-RECORD. | C-ALL-PMIS |
| 28 002200 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. | 00580000 | |
| 29 002400 01 CUBBENT-DATE. | 0580000 | |
| 30 002500 05 CURR-YEAR | PIC 99. 0580000 | |
| 31 002600 05 CURR-MONTH | PIC 99. 0580000 | |
| 32 002700 05 CURR-DAY | PIC 99. 0580000 | |
| 33 002800 | 0580000 | |
| 34 002900 77 IND-OFF F | PIC 1 VALUE B"O". 0580000 | |
| 35 003000 77 IND-ON | PIC 1 VALUE B"1". 0580000 | |
| 36 003100 01 DISPFILE-INDICS. | 0580000 | |
| 37 003200 COPY DDS-ALL-FORM | ATS-INDIC OF DISPFILE. 3 0580000 | |
| 39 +000001 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000002# INPUT FURMAT:FURMATI | FRUM FILE DISPFILE OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | C-ALL-FMIS |
| +000003* 40 +000004 06 E00MAT1-1-1 | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 41 +000004 00 PURMATI-I- | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| +0000055 07 INST +000006# | | |
| 42 +000007 07 TN52 | PIC 1 INDIC 52. | C-ALL-FMTS |
| +000008* | MONTHLY REPORT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 43 +000009 07 IN99 | PIC 1 INDIC 99. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000010* | END OF PROGRAM | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 44 +000011 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000012≑ OUTPUT FORMAT:FORMAT1 | FROM FILE DISPFILE OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000013* | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | | |
| | | |

(

Figure 7-4 (Part 2 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, defined in WORKING-STORAGE by using the COPY Statement, DDS format
| TMT | SEQNBR - | A 1 B 2 | 3 4 5 | • 5 ••• ••• 7 •IDENTFCN | S COPYNAME |
|-----|----------|--------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------------|------------|
| 45 | +000014 | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 46 | +000015 | 07 | INO1 PIC 1 INDIC 01. | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 47 | 003300 | ••• | | 01030000 | |
| 48 | 003400 | PROCEDURE DIVISION | • | 01060000 | |
| 49 | 003500 | OPEN I-O | DISPFILE | 090000 | |
| 50 | 003600 | ACCEPT CUR | RENT-DATE FROM DATE. | | |
| 51 | 003700 | MOVE IND-OF | F TO IN99 IN FORMATI-I-INDIC. | | |
| 52 | 003800 | PERFORM DIS | PLAY-SCREEN THRU READ-AND-PROCES | S-SCREEN | |
| | 003900 | UNT | IL IN99 IN FORMATI-I-INDIC = IND- | -ON• | |
| 53 | 004000 | CLOSE DISPF | ILE. | | |
| 54 | 004100 | STOP RUN. | | | |
| | 004200 | | | 01030000 | |
| | 004300 | DISPLAY-SCREEN. | | | |
| 55 | 004400 | MOVE ZEROS | TO FORMATI-O-INDIC. | | |
| 56 | 004500 | IF CURR-DAY | = 01 THEN | | |
| 57 | 004600 | 5 MOVE IND- | DN TO INOL IN FORMATI-D-INDIC. | | |
| 58 | 004700 | WRITE DISP- | REC FORMAT IS "FORMAT1" | | |
| | 004800 | | INDICATORS ARE FORMATI-D-IN | DIC. 6 1260000 | |
| | 004900 | | | | |
| | 005000 | READ-AND-PROCESS-S | | | |
| 59 | 005100 | MOVE ZEROS | TO FORMATI-I-INDIC. | | |
| 60 | 005200 | READ DISPFI | LE FORMAT IS "FORMAT1" | 7 | |
| | 005300 | | INDICATORS ARE FORMATI-I-ING | 1260000 | |
| 61 | 005400 | O IF INST IN | -UKMATI-I-INDIC = IND-UN THEN | | |
| 62 | 005500 | CALL "DAI | LY" USING DEPINU | | |
| 4.7 | 005600 | ELSE | CONNETT A THOTA - THE CH THE | | |
| 6.0 | 005700 | | N FURMAIL-I-INDIC = IND-ON THEN | | |
| 04 | 005800 | LALL "M | UNIALT" USING DEPINU. | | |
| | | * * * | * * END OF SOURCE * | * * * * | |

Figure 7-4 (Part 3 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, defined in WORKING-STORAGE by using the COPY Statement, DDS format

- **1** The separate indicator area attribute, SI, is specified in the ASSIGN clause.
- 2 The COPY statement, DDS format, generates data descriptions in the record area for data fields only. The data description entries for the indicators are not generated because a separate indicator area has been specified for the file.
- 3 The COPY statement, DDS format, with the INDICATOR attribute, INDIC, defines data description entries in WORKING-STORAGE for all indicators used in the DDS for the record format for the file.
- **4** Because the file has a separate indicator area, the indicator numbers used in the data description entries are not treated as documentation.
- 5 INO1 in the separate indicator area for FORMAT1 is set on if it is the first day of the month.
- 6 The INDICATORS phrase is required to send indicator values to the work station screen.
- 7 The INDICATORS phrase is required to receive indicator values from the work station screen. If CF key 5 has been pressed, IN51 is set on.
- 8 If IN51 has been set on, a program call is executed.

Figure 7-4 (Part 4 of 4). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, defined in WORKING-STORAGE by using the COPY Statement, DDS format



Figure 7-5 (Part 1 of 2). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, Defined in a Table in WORKING-STORAGE



- 1 The separate indicator area attribute, SI, is specified in the ASSIGN clause.
- 2 The COPY statement, DDS format, generates fields in the record area for data fields only.
- A table of 99 Boolean data items is defined in WORKING-STORAGE. The INDICATOR clause for this data description entry causes these data items to be associated with indicators 1 through 99 respectively. The use of such a table may result in improved performance as compared to the use of a group item with multiple subordinate entries for individual indicators; however, you must consider the number of references and indicators for example, to realize improved performance.
- A series of data items is defined in WORKING-STORAGE to provide meaningful subscript names with which to refer to the table of indicators. The use of such data items is not required.
- 5 INDIC-TABLE (01) in the separate indicator area for FORMAT1 is set on if it is the first day of the month.
- 6 The INDICATOR phrase is required to send indicator values to the work station screen.
- 7 The INDICATOR phrase is required to receive indicator values from the work station screen. If CF key 5 has been pressed, INDIC-TABLE (51) is set on.
- **8** If INDIC-TABLE (51) has been set on, a program call is executed.

Figure 7-5 (Part 2 of 2). Example of a Program Using Indicators in a Separate Indicator Area, Defined in a Table in WORKING-STORAGE

Subfiles

Subfiles can be specified in the DDS for a display file or mixed file to allow the user to handle multiple records of the same type on a display (see Figure 7-6). A subfile is a group of records that is read from or written to a display device. For example, a program reads records from a data base file and creates a subfile of output records. When the entire subfile has been written, the program sends the entire subfile to a display device in one write operation. The work station user can change data or enter additional data in the subfile; the program then reads the entire subfile from the display device into the program and processes each record in the subfile individually.

Records to be included in a subfile are specified in the DDS for the file. The number of records that can be contained in a subfile must also be specified in the DDS. One file can contain more than one subfile; however, only twelve subfiles can be active concurrently for a device. Twelve subfiles can be displayed on a device at the same time.

The DDS for a subfile consists of two record formats: a subfile record format and a subfile control record format. The subfile record format contains the field descriptions of all the records in the subfile. Specification of the subfile control record format on the READ or WRITE statement causes the physical read, write, or setup operations of a subfile to take place. Figure 7-7 shows an example of the DDS for a subfile record format, and Figure 7-8 shows an example of the DDS for a subfile control record format.

For a description of how the records in a subfile can be displayed and for a description of the keywords that can be specified for a subfile, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

Programming Note: In a mixed file, the formats used for defining the subfile records and the subfile control record can be used only in I-O operations to display devices.

| abuch | Codo | | | |
|--------|--|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------|
| bearch | code | | | |
| Number | Name | Address | City | State |
| XXXX | ***** | ***** | ***** | ХХ |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | ***** | ***** | ХХ |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | ***** | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| | ***** | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| | **** | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | **** | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | ***** | XX |
| XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | **** | **** | ХХ |
| (XXXX | XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | ***** | ***** | ХХ |
| XXXXX | **** | ***** | ***** | ХХ |

Figure 7-6. Subfile Display

To use a subfile for a display file or mixed file in a COBOL program, the SUBFILE phrase must be specified with the input/output operation. The valid subfile operations are:

• READ SUBFILE file-name RECORD

- WRITE SUBFILE record-name
- REWRITE SUBFILE record-name.

In COBOL, subfiles can be processed sequentially with the READ SUBFILE NEXT MODIFIED statement, or processed randomly by specifying a relative key value.

The TRANSACTION file must be an externally described file. In COBOL, all access to the subfile is done with a relative record number. If the SUBFILE phrases are used with a TRANSACTION file, the SELECT statement in the Environment Division must state that ACCESS MODE IS DYNAMIC and must specify the RELATIVE KEY to be used.

If more than one display device is acquired by a display file or mixed file, there is a separate subfile for each individual display device. If a subfile has been created for a particular display device acquired by a TRANSACTION file, all input operations that refer to a record format for the subfile are performed against the subfile belonging to that device. See the discussions on the TERMINAL phrase later in this chapter for information about how to determine which device is used. Any operations that reference a record format name that is not designated as a subfile are executed as an input/output operation directly to the display device.

Use of Subfiles

Some typical uses of subfiles include:

- Display only. The work station user reviews the display.
- Display with selection. The user requests more information about one of the items on the display.
- Modification. The user modifies one or more of the records.
- Input only, with no validity checking. A subfile is used for a data entry function.
- Input only, with validity checking. A subfile is used for a data entry function, but the records are checked.
- Combination of tasks. A subfile can be used as a display with modification.

| le | | | | | | | | | | | | Kevi | ina | Grap | hic | | Τ | | - | | | | | | | Des | cript | tion | | | | | | | | Pag | • | | c |)f | |
|--------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|------------|---------|----------|--------------|----------|----------------------|-------------------------|----------------|------------|----------|---------------|------------|------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-----------|------------|-----------|------------|------------|------------|-----------|------------|----------------|-------|----------|-------------|------|-------------|-----|-------------|------|------|-----------|------|------|----------|----------|---|
| ogrammer | | | | | | | D | ate | | | | Instr | uction | Key | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Τ | | 6 | ndi | tioni | | | | Π | | | | \prod | | (W/I/N) | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | - | | | | | - |
| | | Π | Cor | diti | on N | ame | | | | | | | | | A/S/X/Y/ | | | Loca | tion | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence Number | orm Type vnd/Or/Comment (A/O | iot (N) | ndicator | lot (N) | ndicator | tot (N) | ndicator | Vame Type (W/R/K/S/C | Teserved | Na | me | | Reference (R) | Length | Jata Type (# A/P/S/B | Decimal Distrions | Jsage (IJ/O/I/B/H/M) | Line | Pos | | | | | | | | | | Fun | ctio | nı | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2345 | 6 7 | à | 9 1 | 11 | 12 1 | 3 14 | 15 16 | 17 | 18 1 | 19 20 21 22 23 | 24 25 2 | 3 27 28 | 29 30 3 | 1 32 33 3 | 4 35 | 36 37 | 38 | 39 40 41 | 42 43 4 | 4 45 48 4 | 47 4 | 8 49 50 | 0 51 | 62 63 | 54 5 | 5 56 5 | 7 58 | 59 | 60 61 | 62 | 63 64 | 85 | 80 6 | 7 80 | 89 7 | 0 71 | 72 7 | 3 74 | 75 7 | 8 77 | 7 |
| | | Η | | ┝ | <u> </u> | 10 | 2 | + | | K IHE | | | LAI | | | | 녂 | F1 NTE | DA | AK | | : D 7 0 | | VM | | iт | 1 | 10 | ٥A | . 7 | F | Η | | | - | - | - | + | - | ÷ | + |
| | | $\left \right $ | | ┝ | | + | | + | n | | | <u> </u> | | | 귀나 | 5 | ۲ | NIC | | -1 | V.C | r | <u>_</u> | (1) | 51 | <u>v I</u> | ť | <u>'</u> | | - | 5 | Η | | + | | + | | + | + | ÷ | + |
| | A | | | + | | ┢ | | þ | | SUBET | IF | | | | + | | | | 1 | SEI | | | | | - | - | | | | | | | | | - | | | | - | - | - |
| | A | | | + | | +- | <u>+</u> | T | Ϊť | | | | | | | | Ħ | | | TE | X 1 | ·7• | 5 | ub | £ ; | 1 | | \$ | <u> </u> | | <u> </u> | 5 | + 6 | 211 | | - | 5 | 2 | m | 2 7 | - |
| | A¥ | Н | | T | | t | - | 1 | †† | | -+- | † | | | | | Ħ | - | | | | ` | | | ٣ | | | + | | T | | | | | | | - | - 7 | _ | - | |
| | A | Η | | | | 1 | 1 | | †t | ACPPM | T | 1 | | | ۶A | | r | 5 | | HTE | XT | -11 | A | ce | PT | 7 | 0 | 4 | V 94 | P | in t | . 1 | Y | | | | | | T | ÷ | • |
| | A | Η | - | T | | t | 1 | T | † f | | | 1 | ++- | | | • | | 2 | | VA | | ÈS | 57 | 1 * | YÉ | S | T. | ī | ¥N | 10 | ") | | 2 | | | | | | T | ÷ | 1 |
| | A | | 5. | | | T | | | | | | 1 | | | | | † ¦ | 4 - | | DS | PA | TR | 27 | RI | P | | r١ | | | | | • | ° ا | | | | | | Ť | Ť | |
| | A | N | 51 | | | 1 | | T | Ħ | | | 1 | | | \uparrow | | 11 | | | DSI | PA | TR | 21 | ND | ç | R | ١Ť | | | | | | | | | | | | Ť | T | • |
| | AX | | | T | | t | — | | | • | | | | | | | 1 | , | | 1 | - | | | | 1 | - | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | T | - | Ť | |
| <u>.</u> | A | | | T | | 1 | | T | Ħ | CUST | | 1 | | 5 | 5 | | B | <u> </u> | [] | STE? | x٦ | .7. | C | us | t e |) m (| r | 1 | nu | 1.00 | be | r | •) |) | | | | | | - | • |
| | A | Π | 51 | | | T | | T | \square | | | 1 | | | | | | 4 | | DS | PA | TR | 27 | RI |) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | T | |
| | A | | 53 | | | Т | | T | T | | | | | | | | | | | DSI | PP | TR | 27 | ND | ١ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | 54 | | | | | Τ | Π | | | | | | T | | Π | | | DSI | PA | TR | 2(| PR |) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Τ | 1 |
| | A¥ | | | Γ | | T | | Τ | Π | | | | | | Π | _ | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | Π | | Τ | | Т | | Т | П | AMPAI | D | | T | 5 | 3 | Ø2 | В | 5 | 2 | 4TE | XT | ') | A | mo | ur | 1 | P | Ja | 10 | 1 |) | | | | | | | | | J | |
| | A | Π | | | | Т | | | П | | | | | | | | Π | | | CH | EC | .K (| F | E) | | 5 | | Γ | | | | | | | | | | | | T | |
| | A | | | | | Τ | | Τ | П | | | | TT | | Π | - | Π | | | AU | TC |) (R | X A | B) | ż | | 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Ì |
| | A | | | | | Τ | | Τ | Π | | | T | | | | | Π | | | Cn | P (| GT | | Ø) | | 7 | | Ī | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | 52 | | | | | | \downarrow | | | | | | \square | | Ц | | | DS | <u> </u> | TR | 2(| RI |) | | | | | : | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | 53 | | | | | 1 | $\downarrow \downarrow$ | | | _ | \square | | \square | | | | | DSI | P A | TR | 24 | ND |) | _ | - | | | : | | | | | | | | | | - | |
| | A | | 51 | | _ | \downarrow | | | \downarrow | | | | \square | | \square | | Ļ | | | DSI | <u>P A</u> | TR | 24 | PR |) | <u> </u> | 4 | | | | | | | | | 1. | | | _ | | |
| | ^ ¥ | Ц | | 1 | | + | | + | $\downarrow\downarrow$ | | | | ↓ | | | | Ц | | | | | | - | | | | - | | | _ | | | | | | _ | | - | <u> </u> | | |
| | A | Ц | _ | 1 | | ╇ | | +- | \downarrow | ECPMS | G | _ | | | 1A | | 0 | 5 | 3 | ΤΕ | ΤХ | <u> </u> | E | xC | eç | <u>>t i</u> | ٥ | n | Ŵ | ie | 55 | ۵ | ge | 2 |) | _ | | _ | ÷ | | |
| | A | | <u>5</u> 2 | - | | | | | | | | | | | \square | | | | | DSI | <u>P A</u> | TR | 27 | <u>RI</u> | <u>)</u> | | - | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | 51 | 4 | | - | | + | ++ | | | | <u> -</u> | | + | - | | | | DS | PA | TR | ٤(| ND |) | | - | | | - | | | | | | | 4 | - | <u> </u> | _ | |
| | A | | 51 | + | | ┢ | | + | ++ | | | | | | + | | | | | DSI | PA | TR | 2(| BL |) | ++ | _ | - | | + - | | - | _ | | | | - | _ | <u> </u> | ÷ | |
| | A X | | | | _ | + | | \downarrow | $\downarrow\downarrow$ | | | | ↓ | | | | | | | | | - | - | | 1 | | - | - | _ | - | _ | - | | - | | - | _ | | _ | _ | |
| | | \square | | + | - | + | | + | H | OVRPM | IT. | + | ↓ ↓ → | | S Y | _2 | 0 | 5 | 70 | DTE | ×٦ | <u>'</u> ' | 0 | ve | r: | pe | ×۲ | 74 | en | t | <u>''</u>) | | | _ | | | - | | _ | - | |
| | A | Ц | | - | L. | + | + + | + | $\downarrow\downarrow$ | | | | ↓ | | $\downarrow\downarrow$ | | \square | | - 8 | ED. | TC | DE | (| T.) | _ | <u> </u> | - | | _ | | | - | _ | +- | | + | | _ | | _ | |
| | ^ | Ц | 55 | Ļ | | | L | 1 | $\downarrow\downarrow$ | | | <u> </u> | | to a state | \downarrow | | Ц | | | 051 | PA | TR | (| BL |) | 9 | - | - | | | | | | | | + | | _ | Ļ | - | |
| | A | \square | 56 | 4 | L. | \bot | | 1 | $\downarrow \downarrow$ | | - | _ | \square | | \downarrow | | Ц | | | 051 | PP | TR | ٤(| ND |) ' | + + | ' | | | | | _ | | | | \square | _ | | _ | <u> </u> | |
| | | ιí | | 1 | | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 1 | | 1 1 | 1 | 1 1 | | 1 1 | | () | | | 1 1 1 | - 6 | 1 | | | | 1 1 | | 1 1 | | 1.1 | | 1.1 | | 1.1 | 1 | 1 1 | 1 | 1.1 | | 1 | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

C

Figure 7-7 (Part 1 of 2). Data Description Specifications for a Subfile Record Format

The data description specifications (DDS) for a subfile record format describe the records in the subfile:



- 2 The line and position entries define the location of the fields on the display.
- 3 The VALUES keyword specifies that the user can only specify *YES or *NO as values for the ACPPMT field.
- The usage entries define whether the named field is to be an output (0), input (1), output/input (B), or hidden (H) field.
- 5 The entry CHECK(FE) specifies that the user cannot skip to the next input field without pressing one of the field exit keys.
- 6 The entry AUTO(RAB) specifies that data entered into the field AMPAID is to be automatically right-justified, and the leading characters are to be filled with blanks.
- 7 The entry CMP(GT 0) specifies that the data entered for the field AMPAID is to be compared to zero to ensure that the value is greater than zero.
- 8 The EDTCDE keyword specifies the desired editing for output field OVRPMT. EDTCDE(1) indicates that the field OVRPMT is to be printed with commas, decimal point, and no sign. Also, a zero balance will be printed and leading zeros will be suppressed.
- 9 The DSPATR keyword is used to specify the display attributes for the named field when the corresponding indicator status is true. The attributes specified are BL (blink), RI (reverse image), PR (protect), MDT (set modified data tag), and ND (nondisplay).

Figure 7-7 (Part 2 of 2). Data Description Specifications for a Subfile Record Format



*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-8 (Part 1 of 2). Data Description Specifications for a Subfile Control Record Format

The subfile control record format defines the attributes of the subfile, the search input field, constants, and command keys. The keywords used indicate the following:

- **1** SFLCTL identifies this record as a subfile control record and names the associated subfile record (SUBFILE1).
- 2 SFLSIZ indicates the total number of records to be included in the subfile (17).
- 3 SFLPAG indicates the total number of records in a page (17).
- 4 SFLCLR indicates when the subfile should be cleared (when indicator 61 is on).
- 5 SFLDSP indicates when to display the subfile (when indicator 62 is on).
- 6 SFLDSPCTL indicates when to display the subfile control record (when indicator 62 is on).
- 7 The LOCK keyword prevents the work station user from using the keyboard when the CONTROL1 record format is initially displayed.
- 8 HELP allows the user to press the Help key and sets indicator 99 on.
- 9 SFLMSG identifies the constant as a message that is displayed if indicator 99 is on.

In addition to the control information, the subfile control record format also defines the constants to be used as column headings for the subfile record format.

Figure 7-8 (Part 2 of 2). Data Description Specifications for a Subfile Control Record Format

Multiple Device Files and Single Device Files

A multiple device file is either a display file or a mixed file capable of having more than one program device acquired for that file. Communications and BSC files can never be defined as multiple device files.

A display file is capable of having multiple program devices when the MAXDEV parameter of the CRTDSPF CL command is greater than 1. For more information about how to create and use a display file, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

A mixed file is capable of having multiple program devices when the MAXPGMDEV parameter of the CRTMXDF CL command is greater than 1. For more information about how to create and use a mixed file, see the CPF Programmer's Guide.

COBOL determines at execution time whether a file is a single device file or a multiple device file based on whether the file is *capable* of having multiple devices. The actual number of devices acquired does not affect whether a file is considered a single or multiple device file. Determination of whether a file is a single or a multiple device file is *not* done at compilation time based on the current description of the display or mixed file.

For multiple device files, if a particular program device is to be used in an I-O statement, that device is specified by the TERMINAL phrase. The TERMINAL phrase can also be specified for a single device file.

The following example illustrates the use of multiple device files. The program uses a mixed file, and is intended to be run in batch mode. The program acquires terminals and invites those terminals via a sign-on screen. After the terminals are invited, they are polled. If nobody signs on before the wait time expires, the program ends. If the user enters a valid password, he is allowed to update an employee file by calling another COBOL program. Once the update is complete, the device is invited again and the terminals are polled again.

| | DATA | DESCRIP | TION | SPEC | FICAT | IONS | | GX | 21-7754-2 UM/050* Printed in U.S.A. |
|---|---|---------------|----------|----------|----------------|-------------------|--|---------------|--|
| File | Keying | Graphic | | | | | Description | Page | of |
| Programmer Date | Instruction | Key | | | | | | | |
| Α | | (M) | | | | | | | |
| Conditioning | | 1/N/J | | | | | | | |
| | | (/X/S | Loca | tion | | | | | |
| Condition Name | | E A/S | | | | | | | |
| Sequence | Name Len | igth /8/S | | | | | Functions | | |
| Number 2 | - | A/P/ | | | | | | | |
| | 8 | 9 | Line | Pos | | | | | |
| I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I | eren | a Ty | | | | | | | |
| | 8 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 33 | | 39 40 41 | A2 A2 AA | 45 A6 A7 A9 A9 | 50 E1 E2 E2 E4 EE | EE ET ED ED ED ET ET ET ET EK EE ET ED ED | | A 75 76 77 78 70 70 80 |
| | | | 33 40 41 | -2 -3 -4 | 45 46 47 48 49 | 50 51 52 53 54 55 | 30 57 88 59 00 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 | 10 11 12 13 1 | 4 /5 /6 // /6 /9 80 |
| AN PDS FOR TH | E MIXED FILE M | ULT | | | | | | | |
| A# | | | | | | 1 | | | |
| A R | SIGNON | | | | INVIT | E | | | |
| A | | 0 | 5 | 20 | RRRR | RARRAR | <u> </u> | | |
| | | - | <u> </u> | | DSPAT | K(RI) | | | |
| The for | mat SIGNON has the | C | 6 | 20 | | 0/01 | | | |
| | d INVITE associated | | - 2 | 20 | USPAT | N(NI) | ····· | | |
| | moone that if fam. | | 0 | _20 | DSPAT | R/RI | | | |
| with it. This | means that, if format | | 7 | 20 | 1881 | | | | |
| SIGNON is u | sed in a WRITE | | | -7 | DSPAT | R(RI) | | | |
| statement, th | ne device to which it | 0 | 7 | 27 | MADA | FI | | | |
| A is writing wil | l he invited | | | | DSPAT | R (HI E | L) | | |
| | | 0 | 7 | -38 | , P P , | | | | |
| | + | | | | DSPAT | <u> </u> | | | |
| | + | C | 8 | 2ø | | 0/01 | | | |
| | + | | 0 | 20 | DSPAT | R(RI) | | | |
| | + | · · · · | o | 20 | DSPAT | RIRI | | | { |
| | | 0 | a | 20 | KKKK | KKKHKK | KKKKKKKKKK | | |
| | | | | | DSPAT | R/RI) | <i>~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~</i> | | |
| | | 0 | 20 | 20 | PLEA | SE LOG | ON ' | | |
| A | | | | | DSPAT | R(HI) | | | |
| A | PASSWORD | 10A I | 20 | 43 | DSPAT | R(RI P | c) | | |
| | | 2,¢A 0 | 21 | 43 | | | | | |
| A | UPDATE | | | E | LIPOA | TE OF | DEPSOUNEL ELLE | T | |
| | + | | 2 | | DEPAT | R/RL | TERSONNEL FILL | | |
| | | 0 | 7 | 5 | TYPE | IN EM | PLOYEE NUMBER | + | |
| | ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | ++-+- | | | TO BE | UPDAT | ED' | | |
| A | NUM | 7A 1 | 7 | 44 | DSPAT | R(RI P | c) | | |
| A R | EMPLOYEE | | | | | | | | |
| | | 0 | 3 | 5 | EMPL | OYEE N | VMBER | | |
| | NUM | 7A B | 3 | 25 | DSPAT | R (PC) | A 14 C 1 | | |
| | NAME | | 2 5 | 5 | EMPL | DYEE N | AME | | |
| | | 30A P | | - 25 | E HP | OYEE A | DDPESS | | |
| | + | | á | 5 | STRE | ETT | PREJU | | |
| | STREET | 30A 8 | 9 | 25 | DSPAT | R(PC) | | | |
| A | | C | 11 | 5 | APAR | THENT | NU MBER' | | |
| A | APTNO | SA B | 11 | 25 | DSPAT | R(PC) | | | |
| A | 0.11 | 14 | 13 | 5 | CITY | 0/00 | | | |
| | | ZOP 1 | 12 | 25 | DSPAT | K(PC) | | | |
| | PROV | 70 4 9 | | 15 | DSPAT | RIPOT | | | |
| | RECOVERY | | 1.1 | 23 | UJ PA | | | | |
| | | 0 | 3 | 5 | THE | EMPLOY | EE NUMBER YOU | + | |
| A | | | | | HAVE | GIVEN | 15 INVALID | | |
| A | | C | 6 | 5 | TYPE | YTO | RETRY | | |
| A | | 0 | 8 | 5 | TYPE | N TO | EXIT | | |
| | ANSWER | 1X 1 | 10 | 5 | DSP AT | K(RI P | | | |
| A | | | | | THLVE | S('Y') | N') | | |
| Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly. | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 1 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

| | aness Machines | Corporati | | | | [| DATA | DES | SCRI | PT | ION | SPE | CIFICATIO | NS | | | GX2 | 1-7754-2 UM/0 Printed in U.S |
|-------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------|-------------------------------|-------------|---------|------------|---------------|----------|---------------------------------|---------------------|----------|----------|---------------------|---------------|-----------------------------------|---------------|------------|---------------------------------|
| File | | | | | | Keyi | ng | Grapt | nic | | | | | | Description | | Page | of |
| Programmer | | Dat | e | | | Instr | uction | Key | | -+ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | ŝ | 1 | | | | | | | | |
| | Conditioning | ne | (0) | | | | | | I/F A/S/X/Y/N/IV | (d. | Loca | tion | | | | | | |
| Sequence Vumber | Indicator Not (N) Indicator | Not (N) Indicator | Name Type (WR/K/S Reserved | | Name | | Reference (R) | ength | Data Type (b A/P/S/E Decimal | Usage (b/O/I/B/H/M/ | Line | Pos | | | Functions | | | |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 11 12 13 | 14 15 16 1 | 7 18 | 19 20 21 22 | 23 24 2 | 5 26 27 28 | 29 30 31 | 32 33 34 | 35 36 3 | 7 38 | 39 40 41 | 42 43 44 | 45 46 47 48 49 50 5 | 51 52 53 54 5 | 5 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 6 | 6 67 68 69 70 | 71 72 73 7 | 4 75 76 77 78 79 |
| J. J. | NG T | <u>0</u> | TU 1 | E DH | VC | () | 51 | 15 | | | 100 | 0 | | | | | _ | |
| | | | un | <u>L TR</u> | 131 | CAL | <u>rı</u> | LC | | 2 | WOR | <u>v</u> | | | | | | |
| A | ++++ | | | | | | | | | \uparrow | | | UNIQUE | | | | | |
| | | | R | PASS | wof | RDS | | | | \uparrow | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | | PASS | KEY | 1 | | 10 | | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | | PASS | WOF | 2D | | 10 | | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | ĸ | PASS | SKEY | | | | | | | | | | | - | | |
| A | | | | | | | | | | İ. | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | <u></u> . | | | | | |
| A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | | | | | | | | | | | ļ | | | | | |
| A . | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • | |
| A | | | | | | | | I | | Ц | | ļ | L | | | | | |
| A | | _ | | | | | | | | \perp | | | | | | | | <u>-</u> |
| A | | | + | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | L | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 1 | | | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | | 1 1 | | 0 | 1 | 1 | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 2 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

(

| [BM | ternation | el Bus | nese | Mac | hines | Cor | pora | tion | | | | | | | | D | ٩T | AI | DE | SC | RII | PT | 101 | 1 5 | SPE | CI | FIC | A 1 | FI C | ONS | S | | | | | | | | | | GX21 | Print | ed in | W/050 U.S.A |
|--------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------|------|-------|---------|-------|---------------------|-------|------|-------|--------|------|------|----------|------------|----------|------|------------|----------------------|--------------------|---------------------|-------|--------------|--------|-------|-------|------------|-------------|--------|--------|------|---------|----------------|--------|-----------------|----------|-----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|----------|----------------|
| File | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Key | ying | | | Grap | hic | | | | | | | | | | | | | Descri | otion | | | | | | Page | | 0 | f | |
| Programmer | | | | | | | Da | ate | | | | | | | Inst | truc | tion | | Key | | | | | | | | | | | | | l | | _ | | | | | | | | | | |
| Α | | | čond | itio | ning | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | (W/I/N/X/X/S | | | Lo | cati | on | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence Number | m Type //Or/Comment (A/O/*) | (N) | | tion | Nan | ne Z | cator | ne Type (WR/K/S/O) | Davia | | | Narr | ne | | | arence (R) | | Lenç | gth | Type (b A/P/S/B/F A/ | tions | je (b/O/I/B/H/M/P) | Line | | Pos | | | | | | | | | | Funct | ions | | | | | | | | |
| 1234! | | N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N | 101 | 1 12 | 13 | 14 1 | 5 16 | 17 1 | 8 19 | 20 3 | 21 22 | 2 23 2 | 24 2 | 5 26 | 27 2 | 8 29 | 30 3 | 1 32 | 33 34 | Data 35 | 20 G G 36 37 | 285 7 38 | 39 40 | 41 4 | 2 43 4 | 44 45 | 46 47 | 48 4 | 19 50 | 0 51 5 | 2 53 5 | 4 55 | 56 57 5 | 8 59 6 | 0 61 6 | 52 6 3 6 | i4 65 6i | 66768 | 8 69 70 | 0 71 72 | 73 74 | 75 76 | 77 78 | 79 80 |
| | | D | D | 5 | Ę | 01 | R | TI | HE | | P# | 11 | 51 | C | A | | F | 12 | E | T | ER | m | | + | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A ¥ | V | Ħ | C | Ħ | | co | N | 1/ | 11 | NS | , | TI | HE | | 41 | 5 | T | OF | | TE | R | MI | N | 41 | \$ | | | | | | | | | | | | · · · · · | | | | | | |
| | AX | | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | Γ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Α | | | | | | | R | 1 | E | Rt | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | ٢ | E | Rt | 1 | | | | | | | 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | _ | | _ | _ | _ | | | | | | | | | 1 | ļ., | | | | | | | \downarrow | | | | • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | · · · · | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | _ | | | | _ | | | _ | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | - |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | . | | | | • - • - • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | . | -i |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | Τ | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | _ | | | | | |
| | A | | | | T | | | Π | | | | | | | | T | | | | Π | | Π | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | T | | П | | | | | T | | | | [| | | Π | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | + | + | + | - | + | | | + | ++ | | | | | — | + | 1 | | • | | | 11 | | 1 | | - | •• | • • • | + | ++ | | | | | •• | | | | | ++ | | • • • • | • • • | |
| | | + | + | | + | + | | †† | - | •• | | | + | | - | + | | | | \uparrow | | | | + | | + | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | + | + | + | -+ | + | | + | - | | | | + | | + | + | + | - | tt | + | | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | + | | + | ••• | • • • • | | • • | | | | | ÷; | | | | | | · · · · | | | 1 |
| | | + | | +- | -+ | + | | ┢┤ | +- | •• | | | + | | | + | + | | • • | + | | ┽┼ | | + | | + | | • | + | ····· | | -•• | | ~ . | · · · | | | | • | | | ÷ | | <u>.</u> |
| | +;++ | | - | + | • + | + | - | + | +- | •• | | | | | | +- | ┝╌ | | • • • • | + | | + | | - | | + | | • • • | | | | | | | | | | | • | · · · · | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 3 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

| 57140 | 31 RO5 MOO 83061 | 0 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | | 03/04/ |
|-------|------------------|------------------|--|---|-----------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 B | 2 | 3 4 5 | 6 7 .IDEN | TECN S COPYNAME |
| 1 | 000100 PROCESS | | | | |
| 2 | 000200 IDENTIF | ICATION DIVISI | | | |
| 3 | 000300 PROGR | AM-ID. SAMPLE | | | |
| - | 000500******* | 0000000000000000 | 50000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 | |
| | 000600≎ THF | FOLLOWING PROG | RAM DEMONSTRATES SOME OF | THE FUNCTIONS # | |
| | 000700* AVAI | LABLE WITH MUL | TIPLE DEVICE FILE SUPPORT | * | |
| 5 | 000300-ENVIRON | MENT DIVISION. | | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 | |
| 6 | 001000 CONFIG | URATION SECTIO | N. | | |
| 7 | 001100 SOURC | E-COMPUTER. IB | 4-538. | | |
| 8 | 001200 DBJFC | T-COMPUTER. IB | M-538. | | |
| 10 | 001300 SPECI | ALTRIBUTE-DAT | A IS ATTR. 1 | | |
| 11 | 001500 INPUT- | OUTPUT SECTION | | | |
| 12 | 001600 FILE- | CONTROL. | | | |
| 13 | 001703 | SELECT MULTIPL | E-FILE | | |
| 14 | 001800 | ASSIGN TO WORK | STRANSACTION 2 | | |
| 16 | 002000 | ACCESS MODE IS | SEQUENTIAL | | |
| 17 | 002100 | FILE STATUS IS | MULTIPLE-FS1+ MULTIPLE-F | S2 2 | |
| 18 | 002200 | CONTRUL-AREA I | S MULTIPLE-CONTROL-AREA. | <u>э</u> | |
| 19 | 002300 | SELECT TEOMINA | 4 | | |
| 21 | 002500 | ASSIGN TO DATA | BASE-TERM | | |
| 22 | 002600 | ORGANIZATION I | S SEQUENTIAL | | |
| 23 | 002700 | ACCESS MODE IS | SEQUENTIAL | | |
| 24 | 002800 | FILE STATUS IS | TERMINAL-FSI. | | |
| 26 | 003000 | SELECT PASSWOR | D-FILE | | |
| 27 | 003100 | ASSIGN TO DATA | BASE-PASSWORD | | |
| 28 | 003200 | ORGANIZATION I | S INDEXED | | |
| 29 | 003300 | ACCESS MODE IS | RANDOM | | |
| 31 | 003500 | FILE STATUS IS | PASSWORD-FS1. | | |
| 32 | 003600 | | | | |
| 33 | 003700 | SELECT PRINTER | -FILE | | |
| 34 | 003800 | ASSIGN TO PRIN | IER-UPRINI. | | |
| 36 | 004000 | | | | |
| 37 | 004100 DATA DI | VISION. | | | |
| 38 | 004200 FILE S | ECTION. | _ | | |
| 40 | 004300 PD | MULTIPLE-REC. | COPY DDS-STGNON OF MULT. | 5 | |
| 42 | +000001 0 | 5 MULT-RECORD | PIC X(30). | <u> </u> | SIGNON |
| 43 | +000002 | | | | SIGNON |
| | +000003≎ INPUT | FORMATESIGNON | FROM FILE MULT | TH LIBRARY BATCHMDF | SIGNON |
| 44 | +000005 0 | 5 SIGNON-I | REDEFINES MULT-RECORD. | | SIGNON |
| 45 | +000006 | 06 PASSWORD | PIC X(10). | | SIGNON |
| 46 | +000007 | | U I | | SIGNON |
| | +000008* CUTPUT | FORMATISIGNON | FROM FILE MULT | OF LIBRARY BATCHMDF | SIGNON |
| 47 | +000010 0 | 5 SIGNON-D | REDEFINES MULT-RECORD- | | SIGNUN |
| | +000011 | 06 FILLER | PIC X(10). | | SIGNON |

(

Figure 7-9 (Part 4 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

| | | | | | | | - | | | | |
|------|-----------|---------|---|-----------|-----------|------------|---------|-----------|---------|---------------|------------|
| 2141 | SEQNER -A | 1 8 | •••• 2 ••• ••• | ··· ·· | | ••• | ···· · | •• • •• | • • • • | 7 .IDENTECN S | CUPYNAME |
| 49 | +000012 | | 06 WRONG | | PIC X(| 201. | | | | | SIGNON |
| 50 | 004500 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 51 | 004600 | FD T | ERMINAL-FILE. | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | 004700 | 01 1 | ERMINAL-REC. C | 004 005- | ALL-FOR | MAIS | DE LEKW | • | | | |
| 54 | +000001 | 05 | IERM-RECORD | PIC XIIU | | | | | | | C-ALL-PMI |
| ,, | +000002 | 1=0 | ENDMATITED | 6 P O M | ETLE T | c a M | 05 | | | HADE | |
| | +000004* | | | 1.0 | | | | LIDICA | | | <-ALL-=M1 |
| 56 | +000005 | 05 | TERM | REDEFI | NES TER | M-REC | DRD. | | | | <-ALL-FM1 |
| 57 | +000006 | | 06 TERM | | PIC XI | 16). | | | | | <-ALL-FMT |
| 58 | 004800 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 59 | 004900 | FD P | ASSWORD-FILE. | | | | | | | | |
| 60 | 205000 | 01 P | ASSWORD-REC. C | OPY DOS- | ALL-FOR | MATS | OF PASS | M 76 3 * | | | |
| 62 | +000001 | 05 | PASSWORD-REC | ORD PIC | x(20). | | | | | | <-ALL-FMT |
| 63 | +000002 | 1-0 | CODMAT - DACCHOR | | ETIC D | | | 1.1.0.0.2 | | UNDE | C-ALL-FMT |
| | +000003* | 1-0 | FURMAL PASSWUR | US FRUM | FILE P | A 3 3 M UI | () IF | LISKAR | TDAIL | n~ur | C-ALL-FMI |
| | +000005#1 | | | | EDRMAT | 246 | sunnas | | | | <- 4LL-FMI |
| | +000006* | NUMBER | SET INTITIONS FU | NAME | . U VIAI | | RETRIEV | A1 | TYPE | ALISEO | C-ALL-F-1 |
| | +000007* | 0001 | PAS | SKEY | | | ASCEND | TNG | AN | NO | <-ALL-FMT |
| 64 | +000008 | 05 | PASSWORDS | REDEFI | NES PAS | รษายุม | -RECORD | • | | | <-ALL-FMT |
| 65 | +000009 | | 06 PASSKEY | | PIC X(| 10). | | | | | <-ALL-FMT |
| 66 | +000010 | | 06 PASSWORD | | PIC XI | 10). | | | | | <-ALL-FMT |
| 67 | 005100 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 68 | 005200 | FD P | RINTER-FILE. | | | | | | | | |
| 69 | 005300 | 01 P | RINIER-REL. | | 0 | | | | | | |
| 70 | 005400 | U. | D PRIMIER-RECO | RO | PIC X | 1321. | | | | | |
| 72 | 005600 | ORK TND | -STORAGE SECTI | ON. | | | | | | | |
| 73 | 005700 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 005800** | ****** | | 00000000 | 0000000 | 00000 | 0000000 | 6600000 | ***** | 0.0 | |
| | 005900* | JECL | ARE THE FILE S | TATUS FO | R EACH | FILE | | | | 4 | |
| | 006000*** | 0000000 | 0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 66666666 | 2006080 | 00000 | ****** | 000000000 | 0000000 | 6¢ | |
| 74 | 006100 | | | _ | | | | | | | |
| 75 | 006200 0 | | 1916-653 | 7 | PIL | X(2) | VALUE | SPACES | • | | |
| 77 | 006400 | 05 | MULTIPLE-MAIOR | | PTC | ¥12) | VALUE | SPACES | _ | | |
| 78 | 006500 | 05 | MULTIPLE-MINOR | | PIC | x(2) | VALUE | SPACES | | | |
| 79 | 006600 | | | | | | | | - | | |
| 80 | 006700 0 | L TERM | INAL-FS1 | | PIC | X(2) | VALUE | SPACES | • | | |
| 91 | 006800 0 | I PASS | WORD-FS1 | | PIC | X(2) | VALUE | SPACES | • | | |
| 82 | 006900 | 20 | | | | | | | | | |
| | 007000*** | 000000 | 10000000000000000 | 000000000 | 400000000 | | | 00000000 | 0000000 | 0 10 0 | |
| | 007200** | UECL | ARE SIKULIURE | PUR HULD | AND FIL | C ALLI | ALBUIES | ***** | | ~ ^* | |
| 83 | 007200*** | | *********** | ******** | ******* | | | ~~~~~~~~~ | ****** | *** | |
| 94 | 007400 0 | | TON-ATTR. | | | | | | | | |
| A5 | 007500 | 05 | STATION-TYPE | | PIC | x. 1 | 0 | | | | |
| 86 | 007600 | 05 | STATION-SIZE | | PIC | х. | 0 | | | | |
| 87 | 007700 | 05 | STATION-LOC | | PIC | х. Т | | | | | |
| 88 | 007800 | 05 | FILLER | | PIC | х. | | | | | |
| 89 | 007900 | 05 | STATION-ACOUIR | E | PIC | X. | | | | | |
| 90 | 008000 | 35 | STATION-INVITE | | P1C | X. | | | | | |
| 91 | 008100 | 05 | STATION-DATA | | 219 | ¥• | | | | | |
| 45 | 009200 | 05 | STATION-STATUS | | PIL | *• | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 5 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

.

03/04/83 5714CB1 R05 M00 830610 COBOL SOURCE LISTING SAMPLEMDE STMT SFUNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 5 ... 5 ... 7 .IDENTECN 5 COPYNAME 008300 U5 STATION-DISPLAY PIC X. 008400 U5 STATION-SERVEDARD PIC X. 008500 U5 STATION-SIGNON PIC X. 008600 U5 STATION-SIGNON PIC X. 008000 U5 STATION-SIGNON U5 STATION-SIGNOUS U5 S 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 100 101 102 103 009800* DFCLARE ERROR REPORT VARIABLES * 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 132 133 134

Figure 7-9 (Part 6 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

| 5/1468 | 51 KU5 M | 00 830819 | COBIL | 300407 1131146 | SA TEL | E-0F | 03704 |
|--------|----------|------------------|----------------|------------------------|------------------|---------------|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR | -A 1 3 2 | • ••• 3 ••• • | •• 4 ••• ••• 5 ••• | ••• 5 ••• ••• | 7 .IDENTECN S | COPYNAME |
| | 013800 | USE AFTER SI | ANDARD EXCEPT | TON PROCEDURE ON | ULTIPLE-FILE. | | |
| | 013900 | MULTIPLE-PARAGRA | PH. | | | | |
| | 014000 | | | | | | |
| 135 | 014100 | WRITE PRINTE | R-REC FROM HE | ADER-LINE AFTER AD | VANCING PAGE+ | | |
| 1.27 | 014200 | | | | T1 | | |
| 130 | 014500 | MOVE "FILE A | AME 151" TO D | ETATL -VALUE OF DETA | ATL-LINF. | | |
| 138 | 014500 | WRITE DRINTE | P-PEC EP.IN DE | TATI - I THE ACTED A. | MILTLINE. | | |
| 1,0 | 014600 | | K KEC I KON DE | which criter an tex at | WARLENS / CINES | • | |
| 139 | 014700 | MOVE "FILE S | TATUS IS:" TO | DESCRIPTION OF DE | TAIL-LINE. | | |
| 140 | 014800 | MOVE MULTIPL | E-FS1 TO DETA | IL-VALUE UF DETAIL | -LINE. | | |
| 141 | 014900 | WRITE PRINTE | R-REC FRGM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AD | VANCING 2 LINES | • | |
| | 015000 | | | | | | |
| 142 | 015100 | Q MOVE "EXTEND | ED STATUS IS: | " TO DESCRIPTION U | OF DETAIL-LINF. | | |
| 143 | 015200 | MOVE MULTIPL | E-FS2 TO DETA | IL-VALUE OF DETAIL | -LINE. | | |
| 144 | 015300 | WRITE PRINTE | R-REC FRUM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AD | WANCING 2 LINES | • | |
| 1/5 | 015400 | | | | | | |
| 145 | 015500 | QA HOVE HETLE | TTUTHITES ADE | - TO DESCRIPTION | OF CETATINE INC. | | |
| 147 | 015700 | MOVE STATION | -ATTR TO DETA | L-VALUE DE DETATI | -ITNE. | | |
| 148 | 015800 | RITE PRINTE | R-REC FROM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AD | VANCING 2 LINES | | |
| 149 | 015900 | STOP RUN. | | | | | |
| | 016000 | | | | | | |
| | 016100 | TERMINAL-SECTION | SECTION. | | | | |
| | 016200 | USE AFTER ST | ANDARD EXCEPT | ION PROCEDURE ON 1 | ERMINAL-FILE. | | |
| | 016300 | TFRMINAL-PARAGRA | рн. | | | | |
| 1.50 | 016400 | | - | | | | |
| 190 | 016500 | WRITE PRINTE | K-KEG FRUM ME | AUER-LINE AFTER AL | VANCING PAGE. | | |
| 151 | 016700 | MOVE "ELLE N | AME IS:" TO D | ESCRIPTION DE DETA | IL-LINE. | | |
| 152 | 016800 | MOVE "TERMIN | AL-FILE" TO D | ETAIL-VALUE OF DET | AIL-LINE. | | |
| 153 | 016900 | WRITE PRINTE | R-REC FROM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AD | VANCING 5 LINES | • | |
| | 017000 | | | | | | |
| 154 | 017100 | MOVE "FILE S | TATUS IS:" TO | DESCRIPTION OF DE | TAIL-LINF. | | |
| 155 | 017200 | MOVE TERMINA | L-FS1 TO DETA | IL-VALUE OF DETAIL | -LINE. | | |
| 156 | 017300 | ARITE PRINTE | R-REC FROM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AD | WANCING 2 LINES | • | |
| 167 | 017400 | | | | | | |
| 1.57 | 017600 | STUP KUNA | | | | | |
| | 017700 | PASSWORD-SECTION | SECTION. | | | | |
| | 017800 | USE AFTER ST | ANDARD EXCEPT | ION PROCEDURE ON P | ASSHORD-FILE. | | |
| | 017900 | PASSWORD-PARAGRA | РН. | | | | |
| | 018000 | | | | | | |
| 158 | 018100 | WRITE PRINTS | R-REC FROM HE | ADER-LINE AFTER AD | WANCING PAGE. | | |
| | 018200 | | | | | | |
| 159 | 018300 | MOVE "FILE N | AME IS:" TO D | ESCRIPTION OF DETA | IL-LINE. | | |
| 160 | 018400 | MUVE "PASSWO | KU-FILE" IJ D | TALL-VALUE OF DET | AIL-LINE. | | |
| 101 | 019600 | WRITE PRINTE | K-ACC FRUM DE | TATCELINE AFTER AL | TANGING 7 LINES | • | |
| 162 | 018700 | MOVE METLE S | TATUS 15:# TO | DESCRIPTION OF DE | TATI -I INF. | | |
| 163 | 018800 | MOVE PASSWOR | D-FSI TO DETA | IL-VALUE OF DETAIL | -LINE. | | |
| 164 | 018900 | WRITE PRINTE | K-REC FROM DE | TAIL-LINE AFTER AL | VANCING 2 LINES | • | |
| | 019000 | | | | | | |
| 165 | 019100 | STOP RUN. | | | | | |
| | 019200 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 7 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files



Figure 7-9 (Part 8 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

| 5714CB | 1 R05 M00 | 830610 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | SAMPLEMDF | 03/04/83 |
|--------|-----------|------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------|
| STMT | SFQNBR -A | 1 B 2 | 3 4 5 | ••• ••• 5 ••• ••• 7 •IDENTFCM | S COPYNAME |
| | 024800 | | | | |
| 182 | 024900 | ACQUIRE LIST- | DF-TERMINALS(COUNTER) FOR M | ULTIPLE-FILE. | |
| 183 | 025000 | WRITE MULTIPL | E-REC | | |
| | 025100 | FORMAT IS | "SIGNDN" | | |
| | 025200 | TERMINAL I | S LIST-OF-TERMINALS(COUNTER |) . – – | |
| | 025300 | | | | |
| | 025400 | | 12 | | |
| | 025500 P | JLL-TERMINALS. | | | |
| | 025600 | | 12 | | |
| 184 | 025700 | READ MULTIPLE | -FILE RECORD. | | |
| | 025800 | | | | |
| 185 | 025900 | IF MULTIPLE-F | S2 = "0310" THEN 14 | | |
| 186 | 026000 | SET NU-DAT | A-AVAILABLE TO TRUE. | | |
| | 026100 | | | | |
| 187 | 026200 | 1F DATA-AVAIL | ABLE THEN | | |
| 188 | 026300 | MOVE MULTI | PLF-DEVICE-NAME TO CURRENT- | TERMINAL | |
| 189 | 026400 | D PERFORM PA | SSWORD-VALIDATION. | | |
| | 026500 | | | | |
| | 026600 | | | | |
| | 026700 P | ASSWORD-VALIDATI | ON. | | |
| | 026800 | | | | |
| 190 | 026900 | MOVE CURRENT- | TERMINAL TO PASSKEY OF PASS | WORD-REC. | |
| 191 | 027000 | READ PASSWORD | -FILE RECORD. | | |
| | 027100 | | | | |
| 192 | 027200 | IF PASSWORD O | F SIGNON-I = PASSWORD OF PA | SSWORD-REC THEN | |
| 193 | 027300 | CALL "UPDA | TE" USING CURRENT-TERMINAL | | |
| | 027400 | ELSE | | | |
| 194 | 027500 | MOVE "INVA | LID PASSWURD" TO WRONG OF S | IGNUN-U. | |
| 105 | 027600 | | | | |
| 145 | 027700 | WRITE MULTIPL | ETREC FURMAL IS "SIGNUM" | | |
| | 027000 | IEK*INA | L IS CURRENT-TERMINAL. | | |
| | 021900 | | | | |
| | 028100 0 | DOD-TODATNALS | | | |
| | 028100 0 | NUF-TERMINALS. | | | |
| 196 | 028300 | UROP LIST-OF- | TERMINALS (COUNTER) ERON NUT | 10 5-51 5. 16 | |
| 170 | 029400 | | | 10 | |
| | | | | | |

Figure 7-9 (Part 9 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

ATTR is the mnemonic-name associated with the function-name ATTRIBUTE-DATA. ATTR will be used in the ACCEPT statement to obtain attribute data for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. See item **9A**.

- 2 File MULT must have been created using the CRTMXDF CL command, where the ACQPGMDEV parameter has a value of *NONE and the MAXPGMDEVE parameter has a value greater than 1. The WAITRCD parameter specifies the wait-time for READ operations on the file. The WAITRCD parameter must have a value greater than 0.
- 3 MULTIPLE-FS2 is the extended file status for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. This variable has been declared in the WORKING-STORAGE section of the program. See item 7.
- 4 MULTIPLE-CONTROL-AREA is the control area for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. This variable will be used to determine which program device was signed on to. See item **15**.
- **5** The data description for MULTIPLE-REC has been defined using the COPY DDS statement. Note that only the fields which are copied are named fields. Refer to the DDS of this example for comments regarding the DDS used.
- 6 Format SIGNON is the format with the INVITE keyword. This is the format that will be used to invite devices via the WRITE statement.
- 7 This is the declaration for the extended file-status MULTIPLE-FS2. It is a 4-byte field which is subdivided into a major return code (first two bytes) and a minor return code (last two bytes).
- **B** STATION-ATTR is the structure which will be used by the ACCEPT statement to hold the attribute data for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. See item **9A**.
- 9 In this statement the extended file status MULTIPLE-FS2 is being written.
- **9A** This is an example of accepting attribute-data for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. Because we are not interested in a specific program device, but rather the last program device used, the FOR phrases are not used with the ACCEPT.
- 10 This statement opens the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE. Since the ACQPGMDEV parameter of the CRTMXDF command has the value *NONE, no program devices are implicitly acquired during this open.
- 11 This statement acquires the program device contained in the variable LIST-OF-TERMINALS (COUNTER), for the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE.
- 12 This WRITE statement is inviting the program device specified in the TERMINAL phrase. We know it is inviting the program device because the format SIGNON has the DDS keyword INVITE associated with it. Refer to item 13.
- 13 This READ statement will read from any invited program device. See item 12. If the wait time expires before anyone inputs to the invited devices, the extended file status will be set to "0310" and execution will continue. See item 14.
- 14 In this statement, the extended file status for MULTIPLE-FILE is being checked to see if the wait-time expired.
- 15 The program device name stored in the control area is used to determine which program device was signed on to. See item 4.
- **16** This DROP statement detaches the program device contained in the variable LIST-OF-TERMINALS from the TRANSACTION file MULTIPLE-FILE.

Figure 7-9 (Part 10 of 10). Example of the Use of Multiple Device Files

Program Described Transaction Files

Normally, COBOL TRANSACTION files are externally described. However, if these files are program described, only simple display formatting can be performed. All field level descriptions are defined in the COBOL program.

Packed or binary data (COMP, COMP-3, or COMP-4) should not be sent to a display station as output data. Such data can contain display station control characters which can cause unpredictable results.

See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more information about using program described display files.

Environment Division

File-Control Entry

The TRANSACTION file must be named by a file-control entry in the FILE-CONTROL paragraph. This entry also specifies other information related to the file.

Format

| SELECT file-name |
|---|
| ASSIGN TO assignment-name-1 [, assignment-name-2] |
| ORGANIZATION IS TRANSACTION |
| $\left[\frac{\text{ACCESS}}{\text{MODE}} \text{ IS} \left\{ \frac{\text{SEQUENTIAL}}{\text{DYNAMIC}, \text{RELATIVE}} \text{ KEY IS data-name-3} \right\} \right]$ |
| FILE STATUS IS data-name-1, data-name-5 |
| [CONTROL-AREA IS data-name-6]. |

ASSIGN Clause

The ASSIGN clause associates the TRANSACTION file with a display file, communications file, BSC file, or mixed file through the use of assignment-name-1.

Assignment-name-1 has the following structure:

device - system/38 file name - attribute

Device specifies the type of device associated with the file. The value must be WORKSTATION.

System/38 file name is a 1- to 10-character external name of the display file, communications file, BSC file, or mixed file specified on the create device file commands, CRTDSPF, CRTCMNF, CRTBSCF, or CRTMXDF.

Attribute specifies the file level option for a separate indicator area, SI. See "INDICATORS" earlier in this chapter.

The second and subsequent assignment-names are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation.

ORGANIZATION Clause

The ORGANIZATION clause specifies the logical structure of a file. TRANSACTION organization signifies interaction between a COBOL program and either a work station user or another system.

TRANSACTION Organization: TRANSACTION processing can be characterized as the random arrival of a record from one of multiple possible sources followed by appropriate processing, and finally, by the output of results or feedback information of some type to the source of the record.

In some cases, all records are homogenous; that is, a logical transaction is completed with one exchange of records. In other situations, a series of records is passed back and forth in a logical progression with various record types either being selected by the initiator or as part of the processing based on input data values.

Each transaction can be processed by a different program, or multiple transactions can be processed by the same program, depending on the system environment.

The initiation of a transaction can cause a program to be scheduled to process the transaction.

A transaction can consist of a series of alternating requests and responses (a dialogue). Each request and response can consist of multiple logical records.

ACCESS MODE Clause

The ACCESS MODE clause and the RELATIVE KEY clause are discussed under "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3.

For files with TRANSACTION organization, the access mode can be SEQUENTIAL or DYNAMIC.

When ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified or implied, the format name contained in the format name field of the control area specifies which record was accessed. When ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified for a TRANSACTION file, the RELATIVE KEY data item must not be specified.

When ACCESS IS DYNAMIC is specified, records in the file can be accessed sequentially or randomly, depending on the form of the specific input/output request. Random accessing of a TRANSACTION file is only valid if subfile processing is being performed. For subfile processing, ACCESS IS DYNAMIC *must* be specified.

RELATIVE KEY Clause

The RELATIVE KEY clause specifies the relative record number for a specific record in a subfile. The RELATIVE KEY data item, data-name-3, must be defined as an unsigned integer and must not be defined in a record description entry associated with the TRANSACTION file.

FILE STATUS Clause

Data-name-1 and general considerations about the FILE STATUS clause are described under "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph" in Chapter 3.

Data-name-5 identifies the extended file status data item, which contains major and minor return codes. These major and minor return codes can, in some cases, indicate I-O errors when the file status code does not.

Data-name-5 must be defined in the Data Division as a 4-byte alphanumeric data item, and must *not* be defined in the File Section. The first two bytes of the extended file status data item contain the major return code, and the second two bytes contain the minor return code. Return codes are moved into data-name-5 after any input or output operation (except the ACCEPT or CLOSE statement) on the TRANSACTION file. The values placed in data-name-5 can also be accessed by the ACCEPT statement using the I-O-FEEDBACK function-name. For more information about the major and minor return codes see the CPF Programmer's Guide and the Data Communications Programmer's Guide.

CONTROL-AREA Clause

The CONTROL-AREA clause specifies device dependent and system dependent information that is used to control input/output operations for TRANSACTION files.

Data-name-6 is a CONTROL-AREA data item that must be defined in the LINKAGE SECTION or WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. Data-name-6 is assumed to have the following format:

- 01 data-name-6.
 - 02 data-name-12 PIC X(2) (Function key feedback field)
 - 02 data-name-11 PIC X(10) (Program device name)
 - 02 data-name-10 PIC X(10) (Record format)

Data-name-6 must be 2, 12, or 22 characters long. Based upon the length of data-name-6, the compiler assumes the availability of key feedback bytes, the program device name, and record format.

Programming Note: For a mixed file, the actual name of a device may be different than the program device name (data-name-11).

Information is moved into data-name-6 for each READ operation from a file that has been assigned to a WORKSTATION device type. The information is valid only if the READ operation is successfully completed (provided the wait time has not expired). The information is in the fixed format as shown in the following example:

| FILE SELE | ASS ORGA CONT TRA | NTROL SCREE IGN 1 ANIZA FROL- ANSAC | N-FI O WO ATION AREA CTION | LE RKST IS IS -CON | ATION TRANS TROL- | -MYI ACT ARE/ | FMTS ION A. | |
|--------------|----------------------------------|---|---|--|-----------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|--------------|
| WORK 01 | ÍNG- TRAN FEEI 02 02 | -STOF NSACI DBACK COMN 03 03 FORN | RAGE TION- TITE 10N-A FUNC TERM 1AT-N | SECT CONT M REA. TION INAL AME | ION ROL-A -KEY -ID | REA PIC PIC F | C XX C X(1 PIC X | 0). (10). |

Each field in the TRANSACTION-CONTROL-AREA data item in the example is described as follows:

• FUNCTION-KEY: A two-digit number inserted in the field by the work station interface that identifies which function key the operator pressed to initiate the transaction. The codes are as follows:

| 00 | Enter key |
|-------|---------------------------|
| 01-24 | Command keys 1 through 24 |
| 90 | Roll Up key |
| 91 | Roll Down key |
| 92 | Print key |
| 93 | Help key |
| 94 | Clear key |
| 95 | Home key |
| 99 | Undefined |
| | |

Any function keys for which feedback information is desired must be defined for the display file or mixed file using DDS. The Print key must also be optioned by a response indicator before feedback information can be provided in the function key field of the CONTROL-AREA data-name.

- TERMINAL-ID: The program device name.
- FORMAT-NAME: The DDS record format name that was referenced by the last I-O statement executed.

Data Division

File Description Entry

A file description entry consists of a level indicator (FD), a file-name, and a series of independent clauses. For a TRANSACTION file, the independent clauses allowed are the RECORD CONTAINS clause the LABEL RECORDS clause, and the DATA RECORDS clause. Only the LABEL RECORDS clause is required.

Format



The LABEL RECORDS clause specifies whether or not labels are present. This clause is required in every file description entry. This clause is syntax-checked, but is treated as documentation.

The RECORD CONTAINS clause and the DATA RECORDS clause are described in Chapter 4.

Boolean Data Facilities

The use of Boolean data and the use of indicators is described under "INDICATORS" earlier in this chapter.

Procedure Division

See Appendix I for a file structure support summary.

ACCEPT Statement

The ACCEPT statement retrieves information (attribute data) about a particular program device associated with a TRANSACTION file.

Format



This format of the ACCEPT statement may only be used for files with an organization of TRANSACTION. If the file is not open at the time the ACCEPT is executed, message CBE7205 is issued and execution terminates. Mnemonic-name must be associated with the function-name ATTRIBUTE-DATA in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph.

If file-name is not specified, the default file for the ACCEPT statement is the first TRANSACTION file specified in a SELECT clause of the FILE-CONTROL paragraph.

Literal or the contents of identifier-2, if specified, indicates the program device name for which attribute data is made available. This device must have been defined (through a CRTxxxF, CHGxxxF, OVRxxxF, or ADDxxxDEVE CL command, where xxx has a value of BSC, CMN, or DSP) as available to be acquired by the file, but need not have actually been acquired. Literal, if specified, must be non-numeric and 10 characters or less in length. The contents of identifier-2, if specified, must be an alphanumeric data item 10 characters or less in length. If an invalid program device name is specified, message CBE7205 is issued and execution terminates.

If both FOR phrases are omitted (indicating the default TRANSACTION file is being used) the ACCEPT statement uses the program device from which a

READ, WRITE, REWRITE, or ACCEPT (Attribute Data) operation on the default file was most recently performed. If the only prior operation on the file was an OPEN, the ACCEPT statement uses the program device implicitly acquired by the file when the file was opened. When both FOR phrases are omitted, a program device must have been acquired in order to use this format of the ACCEPT statement.

Program device attributes are moved into identifier-1 from the appropriate attribute data format, according to the rules for a group MOVE without the CORRESPONDING phrase.

Attribute Data Formats

The attribute data retrieved by the ACCEPT statement has two different formats, depending on whether the data is for a work station or for a communications device. See Appendix I for format descriptions.

Programming Notes: For a mixed file containing different types of program devices, you may need to test the attribute data to determine the type of program device for which information has been returned. This is done by testing the first byte of the attribute data, which has different values for work stations and communications devices.

The ATTRIBUTE-DATA mnemonic name can be used *only* to obtain information about a program device acquired by a TRANSACTION file. Attribute data does *not* provide information about the status of a completed or attempted I-O operation. To obtain information about I-O operations, use the Format 3 ACCEPT statement with the I-O-FEEDBACK or OPEN-FEEDBACK mnemonic names. For more information about these mnemonic names, see "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5.

ACQUIRE Statement

The ACQUIRE statement acquires a program device for a TRANSACTION file.

Format



Literal or the contents of identifier indicates the program device name to be acquired by the specified file. Literal, if specified, must be non-numeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item 10 characters or less in length.

File-name must be the name of a file with an organization of TRANSACTION, and the file must be open when the ACQUIRE statement is executed. A compilation error message is issued if the organization is not TRANSACTION.

For a description of conditions that must be met before a device can be acquired, see the CPF Programmer's Guide.

Successful completion of the ACQUIRE operation makes the program device available for input and output operations. If the ACQUIRE is unsuccessful, the file status value is set to 9H and any applicable USE AFTER EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure is invoked.

Only one program device may be implicitly acquired when a file is opened. If a file is a mixed file, the single implicitly acquired program device is determined by the ACQPGMDEV parameter of the CRTMXDF CL command. If the file is a display file, the single implicitly acquired program device is determined by the first entry in the DEV parameter of the CRTDSPF, CHGDSPF, or OVRDSPF CL command. Additional program devices *must* be explicitly acquired. If the file is a communications or BSC file, the single implicitly acquired device is determined by the DEV parameter of the CRTCMNF, CRTBSCF, CHGCMNF, CHGBSCF, OVRCMNF, or OVRBSCF CL command. Communications and BSC files can never acquire multiple program devices.

A program device is explicitly acquired by using the ACQUIRE statement. For a mixed file, that device must have been added to the file with an ADDDSPDEVE, ADDCMNDEVE or ADDBSCDEVE CL command before the file was opened. For a display file, the program device must have been specified in the DEV parameter when the file was created, changed, or overridden, and before the OPEN is issued for the file.

For more information about these commands, see the CL Reference Manual and the CPF Programmer's Guide.

The ACQUIRE statement can also be used as an aid in recovering from I-O errors. For more information, see "Communications Recovery" in Chapter 9.

CLOSE Statement

The CLOSE statement terminates the processing of files.

Format

CLOSE file-name-1 [WITH LOCK] [file-name-2[WITH LOCK]]...

For a further discussion of the CLOSE statement, see "CLOSE Statement" in Chapter 5.

DROP Statement

The DROP statement releases a program device that has been acquired by a TRANSACTION file.

Format



Literal or the contents of identifier indicates the program device name of the device to be dropped. Literal, if specified, must be non-numeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length.

File-name must refer to a file with an organization of TRANSACTION, and the file must be open in order to be used in the DROP statement. If no DROP statement is issued, program devices attached to a TRANSACTION file are implicitly released when that file is finally closed.

Program devices specified in a DROP statement must have been acquired by the TRANSACTION file, either through an explicit ACQUIRE or through an implicit ACQUIRE at OPEN time.

After successful execution of the DROP statement, the program device is no longer available for input or output operations through the TRANSACTION file. The device may be reacquired if necessary. The contents of the record area associated with a released program device are no longer available, even if the device is reacquired.

If the DROP statement is unsuccessful, any applicable USE AFTER EXCEPTION/ERROR procedures are executed.

The DROP statement can also be used as an aid in recovering from I-O errors. For more information, see "Communications Recovery" in Chapter 9.

OPEN Statement

The OPEN statement initiates the processing of files.

Format

OPEN I-O file-name-1 [file-name-2] . . .

A TRANSACTION file must be opened in the I-O mode. For a further discussion of the OPEN statement, see "OPEN Statement" in Chapter 5.

The OPEN statement can cause a program device to be implicitly acquired for a TRANSACTION file. For a further discussion about the acquiring of program devices, see "ACQUIRE Statement" earlier in this chapter.

Common Processing Facilities

The following discussion on FORMAT, INDICATORS, SUBFILE, and TERMINAL phrases relates to the READ, REWRITE, and WRITE statements.

FORMAT Phrase

The literal or identifier specified must be a character-string of 10 characters or less in length.

Multiple data records, each with a different format, can be concurrently active for a TRANSACTION file. If the FORMAT phrase is specified, it must specify a valid format name that is defined to the system, and the I-O operation must be performed on a data record of the same format. If the format is an invalid name or if it does not exist, the FILE STATUS data item, if specified, is set to a value of 9K and the contents of the record area are undefined.

DB-FORMAT-NAME Special Register

After the execution of an input/output statement for a TRANSACTION file, the DB-FORMAT-NAME special register is modified according to the following rules:

- If the input/output operation is successful, the record format name is implicitly moved to the special register after completion of the input/output operation.
- If the input/output operation is unsuccessful, DB-FORMAT-NAME contains the record format name used in the last successful input/output operation.

When the FORMAT phrase is not specified, DB-FORMAT-NAME can be used if the file contains a default record format name. The default value is always moved to the DB-FORMAT-NAME special register.

DB-FORMAT-NAME is implicitly defined as PICTURE X(10).

INDICATORS Phrase

The identifier specified in the INDICATORS phrase must be either an elementary Boolean data item specified without the OCCURS clause or a group item that has elementary Boolean data items subordinate to it.

When a data record is written or rewritten, indicators can be written or rewritten with it. The indicators can control how the record is displayed and also the various Data Management functions.

When a data record is read, indicators can be read with it. The indicators can be used to pass information about the data record and how it was entered into the user program.

The user determines, when he defines a format using DDS, what functions are to be controlled by indicators, and which indicator(s) controls a particular function.

See "INDICATORS" earlier in this chapter for more information on the INDICATORS phrase.

SUBFILE Phrase

When the SUBFILE phrase is specified, it indicates that all formats referenced by the statement are subfiles. When SUBFILE is not specified in a TRANSACTION I-O statement, it indicates that none of the formats referenced by the statement are subfiles. This information is not verified at compile-time. If it is specified incorrectly, an incorrect program is generated; when the program is executed, the FILE STATUS data item, if specified, is set to a value of 92 (logic error), and the contents of the record are undefined.

When SUBFILE is not specified, the RELATIVE KEY data item associated with the file, if specified, is not referenced or changed by the I-O operation.

When SUBFILE is specified, a RELATIVE KEY data item must be defined for the file. Its value is referenced, and sometimes changed, by the I-O operation. See each I-O statement associated with SUBFILE operations for a detailed description of when and how the RELATIVE KEY data item is changed.

The SUBFILE phrase can be specified only for display files, and for display devices in a mixed file.

TERMINAL Phrase

When the TERMINAL phrase is specified, it indicates a specific program device is to be used for a READ, WRITE, or REWRITE operation on a TRANSACTION file.

The TERMINAL phrase can be omitted for I-O operations on single device files, since the single device is always used.

If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted for an I-O operation on a TRANSACTION file that has acquired multiple program devices, the program device that last attempted a READ, WRITE, REWRITE, ACQUIRE, DROP, or ACCEPT (Attribute Data) operation on the file is used. If the only prior operation on the file was an OPEN, the default program device used is the program device implicitly acquired by the TRANSACTION file when the file was opened. A run-time error message occurs if no program device is acquired when the file is opened.

For a READ statement with both the TERMINAL phrase and the NO DATA phrase specified, the imperative-statement in the NO DATA phrase is executed only if data is not immediately available from the program device specified by the TERMINAL phrase.

If the TERMINAL phrase is specified and the data-item or literal has a value of blanks, the phrase is treated at execution time as if it were not specified.

READ Statement

The READ statement makes available a record from a device, using a named format. If the format is a subfile, the READ statement makes available a specified record from that subfile.

Format 1



Format 1-Nonsubfile Format

Format 1 is used only to read a format that is not a subfile. The RELATIVE KEY data item, if specified in the FILE-CONTROL entry, is not used. The Format 1 READ statement is not valid for a subfile record. However, a Format 1 READ statement for the subfile control record format must be used

to place those subfile records that were updated on a display into the subfile.

If the data is available, it is returned in the record area. The names of the record format and the program device are returned in the I-O-FEEDBACK area in the CONTROL-AREA.

The READ statement is valid only when there are acquired devices for the file. If a READ is executed and there are no acquired devices, the file status is set to 92 (logic error).

The manner in which the Format 1 READ statement functions depends on:

- If the READ is for a single device file or a multiple device file
- If a specific program device has been requested through the TERMINAL phrase
- If a specific record format has been requested through the FORMAT phrase
- If the NO DATA phrase has been specified.

In the following discussions, references to "data available or returned" include the situation where only the response indicators are set. This is so even when a separate indicator area is used and the indicators are not returned in the record area for the file.

The following chart shows the possible combinations of phrases, and the function performed for a single device file or a multiple device file. For example, if TERMINAL is N, FORMAT is N, and NO DATA is N, then the single device is D and multiple device is A.

| | Phrase | Y = Yes $N = No$ |
|----------------------------|----------------------------------|---|
| Checked at Compilation | TERMINAL¹ FORMAT¹ NO DATA | N N N N Y Y Y Y N N Y Y N N Y Y N Y N Y |
| Determined at Execution | Single Device Multiple Device | D C D B D C D B A A D B D C D B |

Codes A through D are explained below.

Code A-Read From Invited Program Device (Multiple Device Files only)

This type of READ receives data from the first invited program device that has data available. An invited program device is a work station or communications device (LU1, BSC, or PEER) that has been invited to send input. Inviting is done by writing to the program device with a format that has the DDS keyword INVITE specified. Once an invited program device is actually read from, it is no longer invited. That program device will not be

¹ If the phrase is specified and the data item or literal is blank, the phrase is treated at execution time as if it were not specified.

used for input by another READ statement unless reinvited, or unless a READ is directed to it specifying the TERMINAL phrase or FORMAT phrase.

The record format returned from the program device is determined by the system. See the chapter on display devices in the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for information on how this is determined for work stations. For communications devices, see the *CL Reference Manual* for information on the FMTSLT parameter on the ADDBSCDEVE and ADDCMNDEVE commands.

This READ can complete without returning any data in the following cases:

- 1. There are no invited devices. This is the AT END condition, which occurs when:
 - There are no invited devices.
 - For a PEER device, another READ is done after a detach signal is received.
 - For an LU1 device, the session is terminated by the host.
- 2. A controlled cancel of the job occurs. This results in a file status value of 9A and a major-minor return code value of 0309.
- 3. The NO DATA phrase is omitted and the specified wait time expires. This results in a file status value of 00 and a major-minor return code value of 0310. The specified wait time is the value entered on the WAITRCD parameter for the file.
- 4. The NO DATA phrase is specified and there is no data immediately available when the READ is executed.

If data is available, it is returned in the record area. The record format is returned in the I-O-FEEDBACK area and in the CONTROL-AREA. For more information about "reading from invited program devices," see the CPF Programmer's Guide.

Code B-Read From One Program Device (Invalid combination)

A compilation time message is issued and the NO DATA phrase is ignored. See the table entry for the same combination of phrases with the NO DATA phrase omitted.

Code C-Read From One Program Device (with NO DATA phrase)

This function of the READ statement never causes program execution to stop and wait until data is available. Either the data is immediately available or the NO DATA imperative-statement is executed.

This READ function can be used to periodically check if data is available from a particular program device (either the default program device or one specified by the TERMINAL phrase). This checking for data is done in the following manner:

- 1. The program device is determined as follows:
 - a. If the TERMINAL phrase was omitted or contains blanks, the default program device is used. The default program device is the one used by the last attempted READ, WRITE, REWRITE, ACQUIRE, or DROP statement. If none of the above I-O operations were previously executed, the default program device is the first program device acquired.
 - b. If the TERMINAL phrase was specified, the indicated program device is used.
- 2. A check is done to determine if data is available and if the program device is invited.
- 3. If data is available, that data is returned in the record area and the program device is no longer invited. If no data is immediately available, the NO DATA imperative-statement is executed and the program device remains invited.
- 4. If the program device is not invited, the AT END condition exists and the file status is set to 10.

Code D-Read From One Program Device (without NO DATA Phrase)

This READ always waits for data to be made available. Even if the job receives a controlled cancel, or a WAITRCD time is specified for the file, the program will never regain control from the READ statement. This READ operation is performed in the following manner:

- 1. The program device is determined as follows:
 - a. If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted or contains a blank value, the default program device is used. The default program device is the program device used by the last attempted READ, WRITE, REWRITE, ACQUIRE, DROP or ACCEPT (Attribute Data) statement. If none of these operations has been done, the program device implicitly acquired when the file was opened is used. If there are no acquired devices, the AT END condition exists.
 - b. If the TERMINAL phrase is specified, the indicated program device is used.
- 2. The record format is determined as follows:
 - a. If the FORMAT phrase is omitted or contains blanks, the record format returned is determined by the system. For information on how the record format is determined for work station devices, see the chapter on "Display Device Support" in the *CPF Programmer's Guide*. For information about how the record format is determined for communications devices, see the section on the FMTSLT parameter on such commands as the CRTBSCF, CRTCMNF, ADDBSCDEVE, and ADDCMNDEVE commands in the *CL Reference Manual*.

- b. If the FORMAT phrase is specified, the indicated record format is returned. If the data available does not match the requested record format, a file status of 9K is set.
- 3. Program execution stops until data becomes available. The data is returned in the record area after the READ statement is executed. If the program device was previously invited, it will no longer be invited after this READ statement.
- 4. The AT END condition can only occur for LU1 or PEER devices. When there are multiple LU1 or PEER devices acquired for a TRANSACTION file, each individual device can cause an AT END condition to occur. The AT END condition occurs when:
 - For a PEER device, another READ is done after a detach signal is received. Since a detach signal can be sent with or without data, check the major-minor return codes to determine if there was any data.
 - For an LU1 device, the session is terminated by the host.

AT END Phrase

Imperative-statement-2 is executed when the AT END condition is detected.

FORMAT Phrase

Literal-1 or identifier-2 specifies the name of the record format to be read. Literal-1, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier-2, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length. If identifier-2 contains blanks, the READ statement is executed as if the FORMAT phrase was omitted.

NO DATA Phrase

When the NO DATA phrase is specified, the READ statement will determine whether data is immediately available. If data is available, the data is returned in the record area. If no data is immediately available, imperative-statement-1 is executed. The NO DATA phrase prevents the READ statement from waiting for data to become available.

TERMINAL Phrase

Literal-2 or identifier-3 specifies the program device name. Literal-2, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier-3, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length. The program device must have been acquired before the READ statement is executed. If identifier-3 contains blanks, the READ statement is executed as if the TERMINAL phrase was omitted. For a single device file, the TERMINAL phrase can be omitted. The program device is assumed to be that single device. If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted for a READ of a TRANSACTION file that has acquired multiple program devices, the default program device is used. See the general discussion about the TERMINAL phrase in the "Common Processing Facilities" section earlier in this chapter for details about how the default program device is determined.

Format 2

Format 2-Subfile Format



Format 2 is used only to read a format that is a subfile. The AT END phrase can only be used when the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is specified. The INVALID KEY phrase must not be used when the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is specified.

Format 2 cannot be used for communications devices. If the subfile format of the READ statement is used for a communications device, the READ fails and a file status of 90 is set.

Random Access of Subfile Records: The NEXT MODIFIED phrase must not be used to randomly access records in a subfile. The INVALID KEY phrase can only be used for random access of subfile records.

Sequential Access of Subfile Records: The NEXT MODIFIED phrase must be specified to access subfile records sequentially. The AT END phrase can only be specified with the NEXT MODIFIED phrase.

NEXT MODIFIED Phrase

When NEXT MODIFIED is not specified, the data record made available is the record in the subfile with a relative record number that corresponds to the value of the RELATIVE KEY data item.
When the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is not specified, and if the RELATIVE KEY data item contains a value other than the relative record number of a record in the subfile, the INVALID KEY condition exists and the execution of the READ statement is unsuccessful.

When the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is specified, the record made available is the first record in the subfile that has been modified (has the Modified Data Tag on). For information about turning on the Modified Data Tag, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

The search for the next modified record begins:

- At the beginning of the subfile if:
 - An I-O operation has been performed for the subfile control record.
 - The I-O operation cleared, initialized, or displayed the subfile.
- For all other cases, with the record following the record that was read by a previous read operation.

The value of the RELATIVE KEY data item is updated to reflect the relative record number of the record made available to the program.

If NEXT MODIFIED is specified and there is no user-modified record in the subfile with a relative record number greater than the relative record number contained in the RELATIVE KEY data item, the AT END condition exists. Imperative-statement-2, or any applicable USE AFTER ERROR/EXCEPTION procedure, if any, is then executed.

FORMAT Phrase

When a format-name is not specified, the format used is last record format written to the display device that contains input fields, input/output fields, or hidden fields. If no such format exists for the display file, the format used is the record format of the last WRITE operation to the display device.

If the FORMAT phrase is specified, literal-1 or the contents of identifier-2 must specify a format, which is active for the appropriate program device. The READ statement reads a data record of the specified format.

The FORMAT phrase should always be specified for multiple format files to ensure correct results. For more information on the FORMAT phrase, see "Procedure Division, Common Processing Facilities" in this chapter.

TERMINAL Phrase

See Format 1 above for general considerations concerning the TERMINAL phrase.

For a Format 2 READ, if the TERMINAL phrase is omitted for a file that has multiple devices acquired for it, a record is read from the subfile associated with the default program device. See the general discussion about the TERMINAL phrase in the "Common Processing Facilities" section earlier in this chapter for more details about how the default program device is determined.

INVALID KEY Phrase

If the RELATIVE KEY data item at the time of the execution of the READ statement contains a value that does not correspond to a relative record number for the subfile, the INVALID KEY condition exists and the execution of the READ statement is unsuccessful.

For a Format 2 READ, the INVALID KEY phrase should be specified if the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is not specified and there is no applicable USE procedure specified for the file-name.

If both an INVALID KEY phrase and a USE procedure are specified for the file when the INVALID KEY condition occurs, control transfers to the INVALID KEY imperative-statement, and the USE procedure is not executed.

AT END Phrase

If NEXT MODIFIED is specified and there is no user-modified record in the subfile, the AT END condition exists, and the execution of the READ statement is unsuccessful.

The AT END phrase should be specified when the NEXT MODIFIED phrase is used, and no applicable USE procedure is specified for the file-name. If the AT END phrase and a USE procedure are both specified for a file, and the AT END condition arises, control transfers to the AT END imperative statement and the USE procedure is not executed.

For a further discussion of the READ statement (and a related topic, the INTO phrase), the INVALID KEY phrase, and the AT END phrase, see "READ Statement" in Chapter 5.

REWRITE Statement

The REWRITE statement is used to replace a subfile record that already exists in the subfile.

Format



The number of character positions in the record referenced by record-name must be equal to the number of character positions in the record being replaced. A successful read operation on the record must be done prior to the rewrite operation. The record replaced in the subfile is the record in the subfile accessed by the previous read operation.

FORMAT Phrase

The record format specified in the FORMAT phrase must be the record format accessed on the previous read operation. Literal-1 or the contents of identifier-2 must be the name of the subfile format accessed on the previous READ. For more information on the FORMAT phrase, see "Procedure Division, Common Processing Facilities" earlier in this chapter.

TERMINAL Phrase

The TERMINAL phrase indicates which program device's subfile is to have a record rewritten. If the TERMINAL phrase is specified, literal-2 or identifier-3 must refer to a work station that has been acquired by the TRANSACTION file. If literal-2 or identifier-3 contains blanks, the TERMINAL phrase has no effect. The program device specified by the TERMINAL phrase must have been acquired, either explicitly or implicitly, and must have a subfile associated with the device.

Literal-2 or identifier-3 must be a valid program device name. Literal-2, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less. Identifier-3, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length.

If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted from a TRANSACTION file that has acquired multiple program devices, the subfile used is the subfile associated with the last program device from which a READ of the TRANSACTION file was attempted.

The REWRITE statement cannot be used for communications devices. If the REWRITE statement is used for a communications device, the operation fails and a file status of 90 is set.

INVALID KEY Phrase

If, at the time of the rewrite operation, the RELATIVE KEY data item contains a value that does not correspond to the relative record number of the record from the previous read operation, the INVALID KEY condition exists.

The INVALID KEY phrase should be specified for files for which an appropriate USE procedure is not specified. Undesirable results may occur if the INVALID KEY phrase is not specified, and no USE procedure is specified.

For a further discussion of the REWRITE statement (and the related topic, the FROM phrase) and the INVALID KEY phrase, see "REWRITE Statement" in Chapter 5.

WRITE Statement

The WRITE statement releases a logical record to the file.

Format 1

Format 1-Nonsubfile Formats



TERMINAL Phrase

The TERMINAL phrase specifies the program devices to which the output record is to be sent.

The contents of literal-2 or identifier-3 must be the name of a program device previously acquired, either implicitly or explicitly, by the file. Literal-2, if specified, must be nonnumeric and 10 characters or less in length. Identifier-3, if specified, must refer to an alphanumeric data item, 10 characters or less in length. A value of blanks is treated as if the TERMINAL phrase was omitted.

If only a single program device was acquired by the TRANSACTION file, the TERMINAL phrase can be omitted. That program device is always used for the WRITE.

If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted for a WRITE operation to a TRANSACTION file that has acquired multiple program devices, the default program device is used. See the general discussion about the TERMINAL phrase in the

"Common Processing Facilities" section earlier in this chapter for details about how the default program device is determined.

STARTING Phrase

The STARTING phrase specifies the starting line number for the record formats that use the variable start line keyword. This phrase is only valid for display devices.

The actual line number on which a field begins can be determined from the following equation:

| Actual | = | Starting line | + | The line number | - 1 |
|--------|---|------------------|---|---------------------|-----|
| line | | number specified | | specified in | |
| number | | in the program | | positions 39 | |
| | | | | through 41 of the | |
| | | | | Data Description | |
| | | | | Specifications form | |

The write is successful if:

- The result of the above equation is positive and less than or equal to the number of lines on the work station screen.
- The value specified for the STARTING phrase is 0. In this case, a value of 1 is assumed.

The write is unsuccessful and the program terminates if:

- The result of the above equation is greater than the number of lines on the work station screen.
- The value specified for the STARTING phrase is negative.

If the value specified for the STARTING phrase is within the screen area, any fields outside of the screen area are ignored.

Literal-3 of the STARTING phrase must be a numeric literal. Identifier-4 must be an elementary numeric item.

To use the STARTING phrase, the DDS record level keyword SLNO(*VAR) must be specified for the format being written. If the record format does not specify this keyword, the STARTING phrase is ignored at execution time.

The DDS keyword CLRL also affects the STARTING phrase. CLRL controls how much of the screen is cleared when the WRITE statement is executed.

See the CPF Reference Manual-DDS and the CPF Programmer's Guide for further information on SLNO(*VAR) and CLRL.

ROLLING Phrase

The ROLLING phrase allows you to move lines displayed on the work station screen. All or some of the lines on the screen can be rolled up or down. The lines vacated by the rolled lines are cleared, and can have another screen format written into them. This phrase is only valid for display devices.

ROLLING is specified in the WRITE statement that is writing a new format to the work station screen. You must specify whether the write is before or after the roll, the range of lines you want to roll, how many lines you want to roll these lines, and whether the roll operation is up or down.

After lines are rolled, the fields on these lines retain their DDS display attributes, for example, underlining, but lose their DDS usage attributes, for example, input-capability. Fields on lines that are written and then rolled (BEFORE ROLLING phrase) also lose their usage attributes.

If any part of a format is rolled, the entire format loses its usage attributes. If more than one format exists, only the rolled formats lose their usage attributes.

When you specify the ROLLING phrase, the following general rules apply.

- The DDS record level keyword ALWROL must be specified for every record format written in a WRITE statement containing the ROLLING phrase.
- Other DDS keywords mutually exclusive with the ALWROL keyword must not be used; see the *CPF Reference Manual-DDS*.
- Either of the DDS keywords, CLRL or OVERLAY, must be specified for a record format that is to be written and rolled to prevent the display screen from being cleared when that record format is written. See the *CPF Reference Manual DDS*.
- All the identifiers and literals must represent positive integer values.
- The roll starting line number (identifier-5 or literal-4) must not exceed the ending line number (identifier-6 or literal-5).
- The contents of lines that are rolled outside of the window specified by the starting and ending line numbers disappear.

Figure 7-9 shows an example of rolling. An initial screen format, FMT1 is written on the work station screen. The program processes this screen format and is now ready to write the next screen format, FMT2, to the work station screen. Part of FMT1 is rolled down 2 lines before FMT2 is written to the work station screen.

Execution of the following WRITE statement causes part of FMT1 to be rolled down 2 lines, and FMT2 to be written to the work station screen:

WRITE SCREENREC FORMAT "FMT2" AFTER ROLLING LINES 14 THROUGH 20 DOWN 2 LINES

When this WRITE statement is executed, the following steps occur:

1. The contents of lines 14 through 20 are rolled down 2 lines.

- a. The contents of lines 14 through 18 now appear on lines 16 through 20.
- b. The contents of lines 14 and 15 are vacated and cleared.
- c. The contents of lines 19 and 20 are rolled outside the window and disappear.
- 2. After the rolling operation takes place, FMT2 is written to the work station screen.
 - a. Part of FMT2 is written to the area vacated by the roll operation.
 - b. Part of FMT2 is written over the data left from FMT1.
- 3. When the contents of the work station screen are returned to the program by a READ statement, only the input capable fields of FMT2 are returned.

Format 2

Format 2-Subfile Formats



Format 2 can only be used for display devices. If the subfile form of the WRITE statement is used for any other type of device, the WRITE operation fails and a file status of 90 is set.

If the format is a subfile, and SUBFILE is specified, the RELATIVE KEY clause must have been specified on the SELECT clause for the file being written. The record written to the subfile is the record in he subfile identified by the format name that has a relative record number equal to the value of the RELATIVE KEY data item. (See *CPF Reference Manual-DDS*.)

TERMINAL Phrase

See Format 1 above for general considerations concerning the TERMINAL phrase.

The TERMINAL phrase specifies which program device's subfile is to have a record written to it. If the TERMINAL phrase is specified, literal-2 or identifier-3 must refer to a work station associated with the TRANSACTION file. If literal-2 or identifier-3 contains a value of blanks, the TERMINAL phrase is treated as if it was not specified. The work station specified by the TERMINAL phrase must have been acquired, either explicitly or implicitly.

If the TERMINAL phrase is omitted, the subfile used is the subfile associated with the default program device. See the general discussion about the TERMINAL phrase in the "Common Processing Facilities" section earlier in this chapter for details about how the default program device is determined.

The INVALID KEY condition exists if a record is already in the subfile with that record number, or if the relative record number specified is greater than the maximum allowable subfile record number. The INVALID KEY phrase should be specified in the WRITE SUBFILE statement for all files for which an appropriate USE procedure is not specified.

For a further discussion of the WRITE statement, the FROM phrase, and the INVALID KEY phrase, see "WRITE Statement" in Chapter 5. For information on the FORMAT phrase, see "Procedure Division, Common Processing Facilities" in this chapter.

DISPLAY BEFORE EXECUTION OF THE WRITE STATEMENT



USE Statement

The USE statement specifies procedures for input/output error handling that are in addition to the standard procedures provided by the input/output control system.

Format

| USE AFTER STANDARD $\left\{ \begin{array}{c} ERROR \\ EXCEPTION \end{array} \right\}$ | |
|---|----|
| $\frac{PROCEDURE}{I-O} ON \begin{cases} file-name-1 \ file-name-2 \ \vdots \end{cases}$ | }. |
| | |

See "Declaratives" in Chapter 5 for a further discussion of the USE statement.

Work Station Sample Programs

This section contains sample COBOL programs that illustrate work station applications on the System/38.

Figure 7-11 shows a basic inquiry program that uses the COBOL TRANSACTION file. The associated DDS for the files is also shown.

| TDM | | | | |
|------|---------------|----------|----------|-------------|
| 1011 | International | Business | Mechines | Corporation |

(

DATA DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

GX21-7754-1 UM/050° Printed in U.S.A.

| File | | | | | | | | | | | | wing | G | aphic | | Т | | Т | Т | | | Description | Pag | | of |
|-----------------|----------|----------------------------------|--------------|---------------------|------------------|---------|-------------------------------------|----------|---------------|---------------|---------|---------------|---|-------|----------|---------------------|----------|------------|-----|------------------|---|--|-----------------|-------------|---|
| Program | mer | | | - | | | Date | | | | | struction | K | ev. | | - | - | - | +- | | | | | | |
| | | | | - | | | | | | | 1 | | ^ | -, | | | | | _ | | | | | | |
| A | | • | Co Con | ndit | ioning on Nat | me | _ | | | | | | | | | | Loc | ition | | | | | | | |
| Sequen Numbe | ce r | Form Type And/Or/Comment (A/O | Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator Name Tvire (IV/R/K/S/O | Reserved | N | ame | | Reference (R) | Length | 0 | Decimal | Usage (B/O/I/B/H/M) | Line | Pos | 5 | | | Functions | | | |
| 123 | . 5 | 6 7 6 | 9 10 | 11 | 12 13 | 14 15 | 16 17 | 18 | 19 20 21 22 2 | 23 24 2 | 5 26 27 | 28 29 30 | 31 32 33 | 34 3 | 5 36 3 | 7 38 | 39 40 41 | 42 43 | 44 | 45 48 47 48 49 5 | 50 51 52 53 54 56 | 56 57 58 59 80 61 62 63 64 65 65 6 | 7 688 669 70 71 | 72 73 74 7 | 5 76 77 78 79 80 |
| | | <u>^X(</u> | <u>. U S</u> | I | OM | ER | 1 | A | STER | 1 | QU | IRY | <u> </u> | : L E | | | 20 | SM | IL | NQ | | | ++++ | | + |
| | | <u>^ *</u> | | 1 | : | _ | | | | | | | | | - | | | | -+ | | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | i la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra de la c | ++++ | | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ |
| | + | ▲ | | \square | | _ | - | | | | _ | | | | + | | | | _ | REF (CL | JSMSTP | | | | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ |
| | Ì | <u> </u> | | | | _ | R | 2 | CUSPI | 11 | - | \rightarrow | | | <u> </u> | | | | _ | TEXT | Lusto | mer Prompt' |) | <u>.</u> | |
| | 1 | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | CAOT(- | <u>15 'Er</u> | <u>id of program</u> | <u>n.)</u> | | |
| | | A | | | · | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | 3 | ' Custa | omer M | laster Inquir | ~y \ | | |
| | | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 3 | | 3 | 'Custa | omer n | umberi | | | |
| | | A | | Π | | | | | CUST | | | R | | | | Н | 3 | 2 | 6 | | | | | | |
| | | A | 99 | | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | ERRMSO | G('Lus | tomer number | - not | fou | ind + |
| | - | A | | \square | | 1 | - | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | press | reset | . then enter | · val | id v | umbet |
| | | | | | | | + | | | | | | | • | + + | + | | | • | -1 99 | | <u>,</u> | | | |
| | | | ++- | ┼┼ | + - | + | ÷-+- | + | + + + + | | *** | | | | | | | | 3 | 11150 | FI to | end proover | | | +00 |
| | ÷-[| | | t | | ╈ | -+- | + | | | ÷ | -+-+- | ++- | | + | + | | + | | سل برمان | | | | | |
| ÷ | ÷ | | | \vdash | | + | | - | (1) (5) | | | | ⊷ →- | • +- | | | | | | KEY TO | s retu | rn to promp | <u>, scr</u> | <u> </u> | ++++ |
| | ÷ |] | | + | | | | 9 | CUBPI | | 2 | | • • • | • | | + | | | - | | CUSTO | mer VISPIQY | | | +++++ |
| | | <u>^</u> - | ++- | + | + | | + | + | | | | | • • • • • • | ++ | + | + | | | - 1 | CAQTC | 12 En | <u>a of program</u> | <u> </u> | | +++++ |
| | | -1 | + | | | _ | + | - | | | | | | + | + | | | <u> </u> | - | OVERLA | <u> </u> | | | | +++++ |
| | | 4 | | | | | ┿┿ | | | | + | | , <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u> | ++ | 1. | | | | 3 | Name | | | | | |
| | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | NAME | | | R | | | | | 8 | 1 | 1 | | | | | _ | |
| | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | | | 4 | ╞ | | 9 | | 3 | 'Addre | 255 | | | | |
| | <u> </u> | A | | \square | | | | | ADDR | | | R | | ; | | | 9 | 1 | . 1 | | | | | | |
| | <u> </u> | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _⊥¢ | | 3 | 'city' | • | | | | |
| | 1 | A | | Π | | | | Π | CITY | | T | R | | | | | 14 | 1 | 1 | | | | | | |
| | · †, | A | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | 11 | | 3 | 1 State | e (| | | | |
| | · , | | | Π | | | | Π | STAT | 5 | | R | , | | 1 | | 11 | 1 | . Л | | | | · · · · · · · | | |
| | -+ | A | ++ | †† | | - | - | | | | | ++ | | 1 | + | + | 11 | 2 | 1 | 210 | codel | | | | |
| | ÷ | | 1 | + | . 1 | | + | | 770 | | | | | - †- | + | | 11 | 2 | | | | | | | |
| | - † | | 1 | H | | + | + | | 10 A T | -+ | | | | | + | + | <u> </u> | ╎── | 2 | 14/0 | | | | | |
| | · + | | + | ┼┤ | | | · + | | ARRA | | | | • • • | ++ | ╉┿╌ | + | | <u>+ -</u> | -7 | CATCA | E(T) | | | | . |
| | ÷ |] | + | ┝┥ | | | | + | PRDAI | ╘╌┼╴ | | ĸ | | | + | ┿┥ | A | + | -4 | EVICU | | | . | | |
| | | <u> </u> | + | ╄╌╄ | | _ | + | + | | \rightarrow | | | | | | + | | | -+ | | | _ | + + + | | <u></u> |
| | ÷ | ^↓ ↓ | + | \square | | _ | | + | | | | | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | • | + | + | | | | | | | | | |
| | | A | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-11 (Part 1 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

The data description specifications (DDS) for the display device file (CUSMINQ) to be used by this program describe two record formats: CUSPMT and CUSFLDS.

The CUSPMT record format contains the constant 'Customer Master Inquiry', which identifies the display. It also contains the prompt 'Customer Number' and the input field (CUST) into which the work station user enters the customer number. Five underscores appear under the input field CUST on the screen where the user is to enter the customer number. The error message 'Customer number not found' is also included in this record format. This message is displayed if indicator 99 is set on by the program. In addition, this record format defines a command attention key that the user can press to end the program. When the user presses command attention key 01, indicator 15 is set on in the COBOL program. This indicator is then used to end the program.

The CUSFLDS record format contains the constants 'Name', 'Address', 'City', 'State', 'Zip Code', and 'A/R Balance', which identify the fields to be written out from the program. This record format also describes the fields that correspond to these constants. All of these fields are described as output fields (blank in position 38) because they are filled in by the program; the user does not enter any data into these fields. To enter another customer number, the user presses the Enter key in response to this record. Notice that the CUSFLDS record is to overlay the CUSPMT record. Therefore, when the CUSFLDS record is written to the screen, the CUSPMT record remains on the screen.

In addition to describing the constants, fields, and attributes for the screen, the record formats also define the line numbers and horizontal positions in which the constants and fields are to be displayed.

Note: The field attributes are defined in a physical file (CUSMSTP) used for field reference purposes, instead of in the DDS for the display file.

Figure 7-11 (Part 2 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

| BM International Business Machines Corporation | | | | | | | D | ATA | DES | CRIF | די | ION | SPE | CIFICAT | IONS | | | GX21-7754-1 UN Printed in | |
|--|----------------|-------|--------------|--------------|--------------------|--------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|--|----------|-------------------|--------------|-------------------|------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------|------------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| File | | | | | | _ | | Keyin | 9 | Graphi | c | T | | | |] | Description | Page | of |
| Programmer | | | _ | | | Date | | Instru | ction | Key | | | | | |] | | | |
| A | | _ | | | | | Т | | | | | 7 | | | 1 | - | | | |
| Conditioning | | | | | | | | | | | W/I/N/A | | Loca | ition | | | | | |
| | Condition Name | | | | | | | | | | A/S/X/ | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence | nce C | | | | | 4 | ngth | 1/S/B | (W/+ | | | 1 | | Functions | | | | | |
| | a mer | | | | | e (K'R | | ĝ | E | | 8 | /1//8// | Line | Bra | | | | | |
| | | ator | Î | ato. | 2 | L L L | | | ane | | Train Type | e (N/O | Line | 103 | | | | | |
| | And And | indio | Not | ją | No i | E Z | | | e Personal de la companya de la | | Deci Posit | Ges O | | | | | | | |
| 2345 | 678 A¥ | 4 1 | 0 11 P LL | 12 13 Y < | 14 15 1 | Δ / | 6 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 CUSMSTP | 5 26 27 28 2 > | () () () | 570 | 15 36 37 M F R | 38 | 39 40 41 M A S | 42 43 4 T E B | 45 46 47 48 46 ETLE | 9 50 51 52 53 54 5 | 55 56 57 56 59 80 61 62 63 64 65 6 | 6 67 68 69 70 71 7 | 2 73 74 75 76 77 78 |
| | A | | 1 | 1.2 | | 2 | CUSHST | | | | | | | | TEXT/ | Custo | omer Master | Record | 411 |
| | | + | | | - | | CUST | | + | 5 | | | | | TEXT | Luste | omer number | 1.) | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | | | | | | | NAME | | | 25 | | | | | TEXT (| 'Custo | omer name () | | |
| | A | ++ | + | | | | ADDR | | + | 20 | - | | | | TEXTI | ' (usto | omer addres | 51) | |
| | A | + | + | | | | LITY | | 1 | 20 | | | | | TEXT (| '' (usto | omer city') | | |
| | A | - | | | | | STATE | | 1 | 2 | | _ | | | TEXT/ | 1 Stat | e ¹) | | |
| | | +- | + | | ++ | ++ | ZIP | • • • • | + • • | 5 | 60 | | | | TEXT/ | 1210 | code!) | | ····· |
| | | + | - | | | ++ | SBHCOD | | + | 6 | | | | | TEXT/ | '(usto | omer number | SPARC | n code |
| | | + | + | | - | | CUSTYP | | | 1 | 66 | | | | TEXT/ | 1645+0 | omer type L | = (+0V 2 | = 5 < H + |
| · | | +- | + | | -+- | ++ | 1 | | + | | 13 | | | | 3= 8115 | 5 4= P V 1 | Γ 5=0 T' | | |
| | A | | + | | | ++ | APBAL | | | 8 | 01 | | | | TEXT/ | Acete | s rec balan | 101) | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | A | + | - | | + | -+-+ | ORDBAL | | + | 8 | 01 | Η | | | TEXT | 'IA/P | ant in order | c file | 1 |
| | | +- | + | | | ++ | 1 STAMT | | + | - Z | 62 | | | | TEXT | ''l ast | amount Dair | | (81) |
| | | | | | + | | 60 | Η | | | TEX+/ | 11000 | date paid | A I P | | | | | |
| | | | | -++ | +++ | 2 | 6 1 | Η | | <u> </u> | TEXTI | 1/115+1 | omer credit | 1 mit | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | |
| | | | | | • • | + | | 6.2 | Η | | <u>├</u> ・・ | TEXT/ | 1 (45+) | omer sales . | this v | ar') | | | |
| <u> </u> | | + | + | | + | ++ | 51 51 YO | | + · · | | 100 | Н | | | TEYT/ | 10,000 | | lact v | 2051) |
| | ┼╢┼ | + | + | | -+- | ┤╷┤ | JUST K | -+-+ | +++ | | W.L | Η | | + | <u>+.~~``</u> | <u> </u> | JMEY JULES | INDI Ye | <u></u> |

The data description specifications (DDS) for the data base file that is used by this program describe one record format: CUSMST. Each field in the record format is described, and the CUST field is identified as the key field for the record format.

Figure 7-11 (Part 3 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device



The SEU listing of the Identification, Environment, and Data Division statements for this sample program is shown here. In particular, note the FILE-CONTROL and FD entries.

Figure 7-11 (Part 4 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | | |
|------------|------------|---|-------------|----------------|
| TMT | SEQNBR - | •A 1 B 2 3 4 5 6 7 | .IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME CHG/D |
| 1 | 0 00 1 0 0 | IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. | | |
| 2 | 0 00 20 0 | PROGRAM-ID. INQUIRY. | | |
| 3 | 0 00 30 0 | ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. | | |
| 4 | 000400 | CONFIGURATION SECTION. | | |
| 5 | 000500 | SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBN-S38. | | |
| 6 | 0 00 60 0 | OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. | | |
| 7 | 000700 | INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. | | |
| 8 | 00800 | FILE-CONTROL . | | |
| . 9 | 000 90 0 | SELECT CUST-DISPLAY | | |
| 10 | 001 000 | ASSIGN TO WORKSTATION-COSMING, ODGANIZATION IS TRANSACTION | | |
| 12 | 001 200 | CONTROL-AREA IS WS-CONTROL. | | |
| 13 | 001 300 | SELECT CUST-MASTER | | |
| 14 | 001400 | ASSIGN TO DATABASE-CUSMSTP. | | |
| 15 | 001 500 | ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED. | | |
| 16 | 001 60 0 | ACCESS IS RANDOM | | |
| 17 | 001 700 | RECORD KEY IS CUST OF CUSMST. | | |
| 18 | 001 800 | FILE STATUS IS CH-STATUS. | | |
| 19 | 001 900 | DATA DIVISIUN. | | |
| 20 | 0.02 00 0 | FILE SECTION F | | |
| 22 | 002200 | LABEL RECORDS ARE OMITTED. | | |
| 23 | 002 300 | 01 DISP-REC. | | |
| 24 | 002 400 | COPY DDS-ALL-FORMATS OF CUSMING. | | |
| 26 | +000001 | 05 CUSMINQ-RECORD PIC X(80). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 27 | +000002 | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000034 | F INPUT FORMAT:CUSPMT FROM FILE CUSMING OF LIBRARY PUBS | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 20 | +000004 | | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 29 | +000005 | 06 CUSPMT-1-INDICA | | C-ALL-FHTS |
| 30 | +000007 | 07 IN15 PIC 1 INDIC 15. | | -ALL-FMTS |
| | +000008 | END OF PROGRAM | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 31 | +000009 | 07 IN99 PIC 1 INDIC 99. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000104 | CUSTOMER NUMBER NOT FOUND PRESS RESE | т. тн | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 32 | +000011 | 06 CUST PIC X(5). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000124 | | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 33 | +000014 | OUTPUT FORMAT: CUSPNT FROM FILE CUSMINO OF LIBRARY PUBS | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | +0000154 | CUSTOMER PROMPT | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 34 | +000016 | 05 CUSPMT-0 REDEFINES CUSMING-RECORD. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 35 | +000017 | 06 CUSPMT-O-INDIC. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 36 | +000018 | 07 IN99 PIC 1 INDIC 99. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000019 | CUSTOMER NUMBER NOT FOUND PRESS RESE | T. TH | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 37 | +000021 | | | C-ALL-FHIS |
| | +000022 | END OF: CU | SPMT -> | C-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000023 | ¢ | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 38 | +000024 | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000025 | INPUT FORMAT:CUSFLDS FROM FILE CUSMING OF LIBRARY PUBS | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| _ | +000026 | CUSTONER DISPLAY | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 39 | +000027 | 05 CUSFLDS-I REDEFINES CUSMING-RECORD. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 4 U A I | +000028 | UD CUSPLUS-I-INDIC. 07 INIS DIC I INDIC 15. | | K-ALL+PMIS |
| -1 | +000029 | | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 42 | +000031 | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000324 | OUTPUT FORMAT:CUSFLDS FROM FILE CUSMING OF LIBRARY PUBS | | -ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000334 | CUSTOMER DISPLAY | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 43 | +000034 | 05 CUSFLDS-0 REDEFINES CUSMINQ-RECORD. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 44 | +000035 | 06 NAME PIC X(25). | | K-ALL-FMIS |
| 45 | +0000364 | OG ADDD DIC Y/201- | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| -9 | +0000384 | CUSTOMER ADDRESS | | K-ALL-FMTS |
| 46 | +000039 | 06 CITY PIC X(20). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000404 | CUSTOMER CITY | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 47 | +000041 | 06 STATE PIC X(2). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000424 | STATE | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 48 | +000043 | 06 ZIP PIC \$9(5). | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| A O | +000044 | | | |
| -7 | +0000464 | ACCTS REC BALANCE | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 50 | +000047 | | | K-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000048 | • | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000049 | END OF: CL | SFLDS -> | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | | | | Z-ALL_EMTC |

C

The Data Division for this sample program is shown after compilation to illustrate the data structures generated by the COPY statements, DDS formats.

Figure 7-11 (Part 5 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

51 002500 FD CUST-MASTER 52 002600 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD. 002700 01 CUST-REC. 53 002800 COPY DDS-CUSMST OF CUSMSTP. 54 56 +000001 CUSHST I-O FORMAT:CUSHST FROM FILE CUSHSTP OF LIBRARY PUBS +0000029 CUSMST CUSTOMER MASTER RECORD CUSMST +000003# 57 +000004 05 CUSMST. CUSMST 58 +000005 06 CUST PIC X(5). CUSHST +000006* CUSTOMER NUMBER CUSMST 59 +000007 06 NAME PIC X(25). CUSMST CUSTOMER NAME +00008# CUSMST +000009 06 ADDR PIC X(20) CUSMST .60 +000010 CUSTOMER ADDRESS CUSMST 61 +000011 06 CITY PIC X(20). CUSMST +000012* CUSTOMER CITY CUSIST 62 +000013 06 STATE PIC X(2). CUSMST STATE +000014* CUSMST +000015 06 Z IP PIC 59(5) COMP-3. CUSMST +000016* ZIP CODE CUSHST 64 +000017 06 SRHCOD PIC X(61. CUSMST +000018# CUSTONER NUMBER SEARCH CODE CUSMST +000019 06 CUSTYP PIC 59(1) 65 COMP-3. CUSMST +000020# CUSTOMER TYPE 1=GOV 2=SCH 3=BUS 4=PVT 5=OT CUSHST PIC 59(6)V9(2) +000021 06 ARBAL COMP-3. 66 CUSMST +000022* ACCTS REC BALANCE CUSMST 67 +000023 06 ORDBAL PIC 59(6) V9(2) COMP-3. CUSMST +000024# A/R AMT IN ORDER FILE CUSMST 05 LSTAMT PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. 68 +000025 CUSMST +0.00.026# LAST AMOUNT PAID IN A/R CUSMST PIC 59(6) +000027 06 LSTDAT COMP-3. 69 CUSMST LAST DATE PAID IN A/R +000028* **CUS**MST PIC S9(6)V9(2) CUSTOMER CREDIT LIMIT 70 +000029 06 CRDLMT COMP-3. CUSMST +000030* CUSMST 71 +000031 06 SLSYR PIC 59(8)V9(2) COMP-3. CUSMST +000032 CUSTOMER SALES THIS YEAR PIC S9(8)V9(2) COMP-3. CUSMST 72 +000033 06 SLSLYR CUSMST +000034# CUSTOMER SALES LAST YEAR CUSMST 002900 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 73 003000 01 ONE 74 PIC I VALUE B"I". 75 003100 01 CH-STATUS PIC XX. 76 003200 01 WS-CONTROL. 0 03 30 0 WS-1 ND 77 02 PIC XX. 78 003400 02 WS-FORMAT PIC X(10).

The Data Division for this sample program is shown after compilation to illustrate the data structures generated by the COPY statements, DDS formats.

Figure 7-11 (Part 6 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

COBOL SOURCE LISTING INQUIRY STMT SEQNOR -A 1 B.. ... 2 ... 3 ... 4 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 79 003500 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 003600 BEGIN. 80 003700 OPEN I-D CUST-DISPLAY. INPUT CUST-MASTER. MOVE ZERO TO IN99 OF CUSPMT-O. 81 003800 003900 LDOP. 004 000 WRITE DISP-REC FORMAT IS "CUSPMT". 82 0 04 1 0 0 READ CUST-DISPLAY RECORD. 83 004200 IF IN15 OF CUSPMT-I IS EQUAL TO ONE 84 004 30 0 85 004 40 0 THEN GO TO FINIS. MOVE CUST OF CUSPMT-I TO CUST OF CUSMST. READ CUST-MASTER RECORD. 86 004 500 87 0 04 60 0 IF CM-STATUS IS NOT EQUAL "00" THEN 004700 88 MOVE ONE TO IN99 OF CUSPMT-0, GO TO LOOP. 004 80 0 89 MOVE CORRESPONDING CUSMST TO CUSFLDS-0. 91 004 90 0 WRITE DISP-REC FORMAT IS "CUSFLDS". 005000 92 93 0 05 1 0 0 READ CUST-DI SPLAY RECORD. 005200 IF IN15 OF CUSFLDS-I 94 IS EQUAL TO ONE THEN GO TO FINIS. 0.0530.0 95 005400 MOVE ZERO TO IN99 OF CUSPMT-0. 005500 97 005600 GO TO LOOP. 005700 FINIS. 98 0 05 80 0 CLOSE CUST-DISPLAY. CUST-MASTER. 005900 RETURN-TO-CALLER. EXIT PROGRAM. 99 0 0 5 0 0 0

The WRITE operation in statement 82 writes the CUSPMT record to the display. This record prompts the user to enter a customer number. If the user enters a customer number and presses the Enter key, the next READ operation then reads the record back into the program.

The READ operation in statement 87 uses the customer number (CUST) field to retrieve the corresponding CUSMST record from the CUSMSTP file. If no record is found in the CUSMSTP file, indicator 99 is set on. The GO TO operation in statement 89, which is executed when indicator 99 is set on, causes the program to branch back to the beginning. The message 'Customer number not found' is displayed because it is conditioned by indicator 99 in the DDS for the file, and the keyboard is locked. The user must press the Reset key in response to this message to unlock the keyboard. The user can then enter another customer number.

If the READ operation retrieves a record from the CUSMSTP file, the WRITE operation writes the CUSFLDS record to the display work station. This record contains the customer's name, address, and accounts receivable balance.

The user then presses the Enter key, and the program branches back to the beginning of the calculations. The user can enter another customer number or end the program. To end the program, the user presses the command attention key 01, which sets on indicator 15 in the program.

When indicator 15 is on, the program closes all files and executes the EXIT PROGRAM statement, which causes the program to return control to whoever called the COBOL program.

Figure 7-11 (Part 7 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

This is the initial display written by the WRITE operation in statement 82:

Customer Master Inquiry Customer Number _____ Use CF1 to end program, use enter key to return to prompt screen

This display appears if a record is found in the CUSMSTP file for the customer number entered in response to the first display:

Customer Master Inquiry Customer Number 10000 Use CF1 to end program, use enter key to return to prompt screen Name EXAMPLE WHOLESALERS Address 3561 60TH STREET City MOLINE State IL Zipcode 61265 A/R balance 137.02

This display appears if the CUSMSTP file does not contain a record for the customer number entered in response to the first display:

Customer Master Inquiry Customer Number 10001 Use CF1 to end program, use enter key to return to prompt screen Customer number not found press reset, then enter valid number

Figure 7-11 (Part 8 of 8). Example of a TRANSACTION Inquiry Program Using a Single Display Device

Figure 7-12 shows a sample order inquiry program, ORD220, that uses subfiles. The associated DDS is also shown, except for the DDS for the customer master file, CUSMSTP. Refer to Figure 7-11 for the DDS for CUSMSTP.

ORD220 displays all the detail order records for the requested order number. The program prompts the user to enter the order number that is to be reviewed. The order number is checked against the order header file, ORDHDRP. If the order number exists, the customer number accessed from the order header file is checked against the customer master file, CUSMSTP. All order detail records in ORDDTLP for the requested order are read and written to the subfile. A write for the subfile control record format is executed, and the detail order records in the subfile are displayed on the screen for the user to review. The program is ended by pressing command key 12.



*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-12 (Part 1 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| IBM Internetional Business Machines Corporation | | | DAT | A DES | CR | IPT | TION | SPE | CIFICATIONS GX21-7754-1 UM/050 Printed in U.S.# | | | | | | |
|---|---|----------------------|------------------------|---------|-----------|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------|--|------------|--------------------|-------------------------|----------|---------|---|
| File | | | | | | | | Keyi | ing | Graphi | c | | | | Description Page of |
| | | | | | | | | | | Key | | | | | |
| A | | Cond Condi | litioning | me | | 6 | | | | | (W/I/N/A/X/S/S/ | | Loca | ntion | |
| Sequence Number | Form Type And/Or/Comment (A/(Not (N) | Indicator Vor (N) | Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator | Name Type (IV/R/K/S/(Reserved | Name | | Reference (R) | ength g | Decimal Decimal | (W/H/B/I/O/I/B/H/W) | Line | Pos | - Functions |
| 2341 | 5 6 7 à | 9 10 11 Del | 12 13 | 14 15 | 16 1 | 17 18 | 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 2 | 26 27 28 | 29 30 31 | 32 33 34 3 | 5 36 3 | 7 38 | 39 40 41 | 42 43 4 | 4 45 46 47 46 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 80 61 62 83 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 |
| | | PH | | 10 | <u>A</u> | 4 | OKDDTLP | - - | | DER | PE | T | AIL | FI | LE TEXT/INArchauca lacation) |
| | ۸¥ | | | | - | | | | | | + | | | | TOAT (HATEHOUSE TOLATION) |
| | A | - | | | | R | ORDDTL | | | | _ | | | | TEXT ('Order detail record') |
| | | | | +- | -+ | + | CHCE | + | | | + | + | | | |
| | | | ╡╧┨ | ╈ | + | + | CUN | | | > | + | Н | | | CHECK(MF) |
| | ^ * | | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | Н | | | COLHOB (CUSTOMER NUMBER) |
| | A | | | | | | ORDER | | | 5 | 1 | 6 | | | COLHOG('Order' 'Number') |
| - | ^ * | | | + | + | ╀ | | + | | | + | H | | | |
| | | | | ┿ | + | + | LINNUM | +++ | +- | <u> </u> | - 4 | 4 | | · · · · | |
| | | | | + | ┥ | + | | + | | + | ┼╌ | Ħ | | | TEXT ('Line number of line in order' |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| • • • • | ^ K | | | ╇ | 4 | - | | + + + | <u> </u> | | \downarrow | Ш | | | |
| | | ++- | +++ | + | | + | LTEM | + + | + | . 5 | - P | <u>+</u> + | | | CHECK(MLØ) |
| | | | | | - | | OTYORD | + + + | + | 3 | đ | H | • • | | COCHUG (Ltem Numper) |
| | A | | | | | Τ | 411000 | | | | | Ħ | | | KOLHDG ('Quantity' 'Ordered') |
| | A | | | | | | | | _ | | | П | | | TEXT ('Quantity ordered') |
| | ^ X | | <u> </u> | + | + | + | 255522 | + | | 0.4 | + | \mathbb{H} | | | |
| | AX I | | ┝╍┼ | ┾ | ╉ | ┝ | DESCRP | + + | + | -39 | + | Η | | | (OLADG('Item description') |
| <u> </u> | | + | | ╈ | ╈ | Ħ | PRICE | +-+ | | 6 | 2 | | | | CMP(GT Ø) |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | COLHDG ('Price') |
| | | | | | | \square | | | _ | | | Ц | | | TEXT('selling price') |
| | | - | | + | + | + | EVTENC | + | | 0 | +- | i l | | | EDTCDE(J) |
| | | + | $\left \cdot \right $ | ┾ | + | ╀┤ | EXIEND | + + | + | 8 | + -4 | ╢ | | | COLHDG ('Extension amount of advard x d |
| | | | | t | + | + | | ╉┊╋ | + | | + | Ħ | | | orice) |
| | ∧ ¥ | - | | | | | | | | | | Π | | | |
| | ĺ▲ | | | | _ | \downarrow | WHSLOC | | - | 3 | ļ | H | | | CHECK(MF) |
| • | | ++- | | + | + | ++ | | ╉┿╋ | +++ | ÷ , - | + | ⊢ | | | COLHDG('Bin' 'No.') |
| • • • | | | | ╉ | + | Н | OPDOAT | | +++ | 6 | 6 | $^{++}$ | - : | | TEXT ('Date order was t |
| 1.4.4 | | + | | | | | | | | | + * | | | | entered!) |
| | A | : | 1 | | | | CUSTYP | | | T | ¢ | | | | RANGE(1 5) |
| | <u> </u> | | | ┢ | + | ╄ | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | + | | | ₩ | | | COLHDG('Cust' 'Type') |
| | | | H | · | + | + | ÷ • • • • | ++ | + | | + | ╀┦ | | | A:BUS ASPUT SEATURY |
| | AX | | | | | Η | | | | | 1 | Ħ | | | |
| | | | | | | | STATE | | | 2 | | П | | | CHECK (MF) |
| | | | | 1 | - | \parallel | | + | | | + | $\downarrow \downarrow$ | | | COLHDG('State') |
| | | - | | | + | H | | + + | | | | ┢┥ | | | * |
| | | | | + | | H | ACTMTH | | | 2 | Ø | + | | | COLHDG('Acct' 'Mth') |
| + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | TEXT ('Accounting month of sale') |
| | ^ X | | μŢ | | | П | | | | | [., | П | | | |
| | | - | | | - | + | ACTYR | | | 2 | | ┞┼ | | | COLHUG('Acct' 'Year') |
| ÷ | ╏┼┼ | | | + | | ╢ | ARDER | +++ | + | | - | ╀╋ | | | HENIL ACCOUNTING YEAR OF SAIE] |
| • • • • | | | | | | 15 | LINNUM | +++ | + | | + | † | | | |
| | | | | 1 | | 11 | | | | | | Ħ | | | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-12 (Part 2 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | - | | _ | | _ | | - | | | T | | 0 | | Т | - T | ТТ | | | | Description | | Page | 01 |
|------------|------------|------------------|---------|--------------|-----------|---------|----------|-----|--------------|----------------------|---------|----------------|---------------|---------|---------------------|------------------|---------|------------|---------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------|----------------|
| Programmer | | | | | | _ | T | Det | | | Ke | ying Aructi | on Key | - | | + | ╀┦ | + | + | | | | - | |
| | | | | | _ | | _ | _ | - | 1 | A - | - | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | |
| 4 | | | 0 | and i | tice | ine | | 1 | | | | | | (WI) | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ┑┝ | , - T | | | | | | | | | | | | S | | Loca | tion | | | | | | | |
| | 5 | | Co | nditi | on P | lem: | • | | - | | | | | Ş | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence | <u>ع</u> | | | Т | | Т | Т | - | š | Nome | | | Longth | 5 | 2 | | | 1 | | | Functions | | | |
| Number | Ĭ | | | | | | | | 0 | | | = | | ¥. | H) | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | | | | | . [| <u>,</u> | | | 8 | | 8 | Į | Line | Pos | | | | | | | |
| | ŝ | N) | - North | N. | dice f | Î | | ğ | | | | feren | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2341 | 2 2 | ž | Ē | 0 Ž | 트 12 1 | 13 14 | 18 | 5 | 2 2 17 16 | 19 20 21 22 23 24 26 | 26 27 2 | a 29 | 0 31 32 33 34 | 36 26 3 | 7 38 1 | 10 4 0 41 | 42 43 4 | | 47 48 48 5 | 0 51 52 53 54 54 | 5 56 57 58 59 80 61 62 63 64 6 | 6 66 67 66 66 7 | 0 71 72 73 74 7 | 5 78 77 |
| | A # | × | (| SR | Di | 22 | ø | D | | EXISTIN | 6 (| OR | DER R | EV: | E | d | | | | | | | | |
| | * * | Ц | | | _ | _ | - | _ | _ | | _ | \square | | - | ++ | | | | | | | | | |
| | Ê | Н | | ┢ | - | ÷ | ╋ | | R | SUB1 | +- | ++ | 5 | + | | | | 말는 | L YT/1 | TLam | | | | _ |
| • • • • • | Ā | H | • | + | - | + | + | + | + | GTY ORD | +- | | 2 | + | 6 | 10 | ģ | 뉴튼 | XTC | 1 Quant | ity order | ed 1) | | |
| | A | | - | | | | | | | DESCRP | | | 30 | | | 10 | 1 | TE | XT(| Item | descriptio | 2M') | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | _ | PRICE | _ | | 6 | 0 | 2 | LØ | 46 | TE | XT(| Selli | na price! |) | | |
| | <u>^</u> | \mathbb{H} | | + | | + | +- | - | + | EXTENS | +- | ++ | 8 | Ø | 4+ | 10 | 56 | Ē | TCDE | E(J) | | | | |
| | | Н | | + | - | + | ┥ | ┥ | + | | +- | ++ | | - | ++ | | | 11 | <u> </u> | LXTEN | is on amous | nt of | <u> </u> | |
| | A | H | | ╈ | - | + | ╈ | | 2 | SUBCTIN | + | ++ | | - | ++ | | | ۲. ۲ | TI CTI | (SUBL | | | | |
| | A | H | 58 | 5 | | t | t | 1 | ┺ | | - | ++ | | | $^{++}$ | | | SF | LCL | 2 | <u></u> | | | |
| | A | | 57 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | SF | LOST | 2 | | | | |
| | 4 | Ń | 58 | 2 | | ╇ | + | 4 | + | | | ++ | | _ | ++ | | | SF | LDSF | PCTL | | | | |
| | <u>^</u> | $\left \right $ | | + | - | ╇ | +- | -+ | - | + + - | ++ | ++ | | +- | ++ | | | SF | | $\frac{2(57)}{(1+1)}$ | | | | |
| | | \square | 5- | | - | + | ┝ | + | + | + • • • • • • • | +- | ++ | | | ++ | | | SF | L PAC | 2(14) | ····· • | | | |
| | | H | | + | | + | ┢ | + | + | 1 | + | ++ | | + | ++ | | | δv | ERLF | AY | | | | |
| | A | | | T | | 1 | | | | | | | | | \square | | | LO | CK | | | | | |
| | A | N | 15 | 1 | | | L | | _ | | | | | | \square | | | | | | | | | |
| | 10 | N, | 47 | 4 | | ÷ | - | + | + | | _ | ++ | | + | ┼┼ | | | RO | LLUP | | Continue a | tisple | (4,) | |
| | | + | | + | | + | ┢ | ╉ | + | | | ++ | | +- | ++ | - | | CA | 12(9 | 78 En E(57 I | Display su | heile | | |
| | A | H | | | | ┿ | + | + | + | ++- | | ++ | | +- | ++ | | | SE | TOFF | -(58 | Off = Di Spla | v Sub | oct 1 (|)n = |
| | A | | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | ea | r su | ubfile | :) | ., | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | \square | 1 | 1 | ! ' E | xist | ting o | order inqui | ry | | |
| | A | | | 4 | | - | | _ | _ | | | | | | \parallel | 3 | 7 | 10 | rder | | | | | |
| | <u> </u> | \vdash | | + | | + | ┢╌ | + | + | ORDER | +- | ++ | 5 | Y 99 | 四 | 3 | 8 | TE | XT (| Order | number) | | | |
| · · · | | | 6 7 | - | | + | ┢╌ | + | + | ++ | | ┿┽ | | + | ++ | | | ER | RHSO | | ines for | this | order | |
| | A | | 62 | | | + | + | - | | 1 | - | ++ | | + | 11 | | | ER | RMS | 6 (1 No | customer 1 | ecord | four | vd. |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Π | | | r. | this | s orde | r' 62) | | | |
| | A | | | | _ | - | _ | _ | _ | - | - | ++ | | + | \downarrow | | 2 | <u>' D</u> | ate | 1 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| | | \vdash | | + | | + | + | + | - | ORDDAT | + | -+-+ | 6 | -19.6 | 9+ | -4 | | ITE. | XT(| Date #1 | order, was | enter | red) | |
| | | + | | + | | + | ┿╸ | ╈ | + | CUST | - | ++ | 5 | +- | ++ | 5 | 9 | TE | XT(| Custo | mer number | . 1) | | |
| | | H | | t | | + | + | + | - | NAME | +- | ++ | 25 | + | 11 | 3 | 16 | TE | XT(1 | Custo | mer name' |) | | |
| | A | | | | | T | Γ. | | | ADDR | | | 20 | | | 1 | 16 | TE: | XTC | Custo | mer addres | 55') | | |
| | A | | | | | - | | _ | | CITY | - | | 2¢ | - | ++ | 5 | LE | TE | XT(| Custo | mer city ' | | | |
| | <u>-</u> | H | | + | | + | | + | + | STATE | +- | ++ | 2 | - | ╆┼ | 6 | 16 | TE | <u>x T ('</u> | state | <u>; ')</u> | | | |
| | | H | | + | | + | + | + | + | | | ++ | 5 | - 91 | 1+ | | 51 | | XI C | | .oae] | | ····· | |
| | Ā | Η | | | | + | 1 | ╉ | + | ORDAMT | + | | 8 | d' | , † | 1 | 51 | TE | XT(| Total | dollar as | noant | of + | he |
| | A | | | | | T | r | | T | | | | | | | | ,z | or | der | ') | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 2 | 44 | 15 | tatu | 15 1 | | | | |
| | ^ | | | \downarrow | | \perp | _ | _ | _ | STSORD | - | | 12 | | ++ | | 51 | | | | | | · · · · · · · · · | |
| <u>.</u> | ^ | H | | + | _ | ┾ | +- | + | + | 670001 | | ┿┽ | | | ╈ | 3 | 44 | 0 | pen' | | | | - | |
| | | \vdash | | ┢ | | ╈ | +- | + | + | SISOPN | | ++ | | | ╈ | - 2 | | 10 | | mer o | rder! | | - | |
| | | H | | + | - | + | +- | ╉ | + | CUSORD | + | + | 15 | +- | †† | -4 | 50 | TE | XT() | Custo | mer purcha | se or | der + | - |
| | | | | T | | Τ | | | Ì | | T | | | | П | | | nu | mber | <u>(')</u> | | | | |
| | A | Π | | Γ | _ | T | F | | Ţ | | T. | Ħ | | F | П | 5 | 44 | 15 | hip | via' | | | | |
| | 4 | Щ | | +- | | + | _ | 4 | + | SHPVIA | | ++ | 15 | + | ╢ | - 5 | 5 4 | ΠĘ | XT(| Shipp | eing instru | sction | (کا | _ |
| | | H | | + | | + | +- | + | ╉ | PPTONT | + | ┼╋ | | - | \mathbb{H} | 6 | - 19 | HT-C | rint xtn | Det a | order ular | ari - I | - | |
| | | H | | + | | + | +- | ┥ | + | TE PAL | +- | ++ | 0 | - | ╡┤ | T | 29 | it - | NVO | ice! | 51461 WAS | Jer 1 11 1 | | |
| | | П | _ | T | | | Γ | | T | INVNUM | 1 | | 5 | ø | Ì | 1 | 36 | TE | XT (| Invoi | ce number | ·) | | |
| - | A | Π | | Γ | | | Γ | 1 | T | | | П | | | П | 1 | 64 | M | THT | | | | | |
| | 1 | Ц | | + | | + | 1 | - | + | ACTMTH | | ╁╽ | 2 | 10 | ¢+ | 1 | 68 | TE | XT(| Accou | inting mont | th of | sale | L. |
| | | Η | | + | | + | + | + | + | ACTVD | + | ╄ | | 4 | + | -7 | 72 | 72 | <u>car'</u> 17/1 | A | n+ | | ale'' | |
| | 17 | Η | | + | | + | ┢ | ┥ | + | BCTIK - | + | ++ | | -4.5 | 1+ | | - 10 | #두 | + 0 | 12200 | mind teal | <u>•</u> Ţ 3 | MIE | l |
| | 181 | | | | | 1 | | | | | - Anno | | | | +-+ | <u> </u> | _ | 1. 6 | | | | | | |
| | | H | · | | | | T | 1 | Ť | | | | | | 11 | 8 | | Ωu | TY' | | | | | |
| | A A | | | - | | | | | | | | | | | \square | 8 | 14 | - <u>u</u> | ten | descr | iption' | | | |

(

(

Figure 7-12 (Part 3 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | | COBOL SOUR | CE LISTING | | | | |
|------|---------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------------|-------------|----------------|----------------|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 B | | . 3 4 | ••• ••• 5 •• | 6 | • ••• 7 •IDENT | FCN S COPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 000100 IDENT | FICATION DIVIS | ION. | | | | | — |
| 2 | 000200 PROGR | M-ID. | | | | | | |
| 3 | 000300 0 | | | | | | | |
| | 000400 ENVIR | SUBATION SECTIO | | | | | | |
| 6 | 000600 50080 | -COMPLITER. | | | | | | |
| ĩ | 000700 | IBM-S38. | | | | | | |
| 8 | 000800 UBJEC | -COMPUTER. | | | | | | |
| 9 | 000900 | IBM-538. | | | | | | |
| 10 | 001000 INPUT | -DUTPUT SECTION | • | | | | | |
| 11 | 001100 FILE- | CONTROL . | | | | | | |
| 12 | 001200 S | ELECT ORDER-HEA | DER-FILE | | | | | |
| 13 | 001300 | ASSIGN TO DA | TABASE-ORDHORP | • | | | | |
| 16 | 001500 | ACCESS MODE | TS PANDOM | | | | | |
| 16 | 001600 | RECORD KEY 1 | 13 KANDUN | | CORD. | | | |
| 17 | 001700 \$ | | ATT-FILF | EN-HEAUER-RE | CORD. | | | |
| 18 | 001800 | ASSIGN TO DA | TABASE-ORDOTI P | • | | | | |
| 19 | 001900 | ORGANIZATION | IS INDEXED | | | | | |
| 20 | 002 000 | ACCESS MODE | IS DYNAMIC | | | | | |
| 21 | 002100 | RECORD KEY | S URDER-DETAIL | -RECORD-KEY. | , | | | |
| 22 | 002200 S | ELECT CUSTOMER- | MASTER-FILE | | | | | 1 |
| 23 | 002300 | ASSIGN TO DA | TABASE-CUSMSTP |) | | | | |
| 24 | 002400 | ORGANIZATION | IS INDEXED | | | | | |
| 25 | 002 500 | ACCESS MODE | IS RANDOM | | | | | |
| 26 | 002600 | RECORD KEY | IS CUST OF CUST | OMER-MASTER- | -RECORD . | | | |
| 21 | 002700 5 | ELECT EXISTING | -URDER-DISPLAY- | FILE | | | | |
| 20 | 002800 | OPCANTZATION | A TS TRANSACTIO | | | | | |
| 30 | 003000 | ACCESS NODE | TS DYNAMIC | | | | | 1 |
| 31 | 003100 | RELATIVE KEY | IS SUBFILE-RE | CORD-NUMBER | | | | |
| 32 | 003200 | FILE STATUS | IS STATUS-CODE | -ONE . | | | | |
| 33 | 003300 DATA | DIVISION. | | | | | | |
| 34 | 003400 FILE | SECTION. | | | | | | |
| 35 | 003500 FD 0 | RDER-HEADER-FIL | .E | | | | | |
| 36 | 003600 L | ABEL RECORDS AF | RE STANDARD. | | | | | |
| 37 | 003700 01 0 | RDER-HEADER-REC | URD . | | | | | |
| 38 | 003800 C | UPT DUS-OKOHOR | OF URDHORP. | | | | 00.00.00 | |
| 0 | +000002± 1 | | | | 05 1 199 49 | OV CAL 2840 | | 1 |
| | +000003* | S FORMAT LORUNI | | ADER RECORD | OF LIDEAR | | | |
| | +000004*THE K | EY DEFINITIONS | FOR RECORD FOR | MAT ORDHOR | | | ORDHDR | |
| | +000005* NUM | BER | NAME | RETR | IEVAL | TYPE ALTSEQ | ORDHDR | |
| | +000006\$ 00 | 01 (| DRDER | ASC | ENDING | N NO | ORDHDR | |
| 41 | +000007 | 05 URDHDR. | | | | | ORDHDR | |
| 42 | +000008 | 06 CUST | PIC | X(5)• | | | ORDHDR | |
| [| +000009\$ | | CUSTOMER | NUMBER | | | ORDHDR | |
| 43 | +000010 | 06 ORDER | PIC | \$9(5) | C DM P-3. | | ORDHDR | |
| | +000011¢ | 04 000047 | ORDER NL | JMBER | C 010 - 3 | | ORDHDR | |
| - 44 | +000012 | U6 URDDAT | PIC DATE ODD | , 57(6) Sed une enter | | | | |
| 45 | +000014 | 06 (115080 | DATE UKL | 268 WAS ENIE | | | | |
| , ,, | +000015* | | CUSTOME | PURCHASE OF | | 2 | | |
| 46 | +000016 | 06 SHPVIA | PIC | X(15). | | | ORDHDR | |
| | +000017= | | SHIPPING | INSTRUCTION | NS | | DRDHDR | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 4 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | (| COBOL SOURCE LISTING ORD220 | |
|------|---------------------|-----------------------|---|-------------------|
| | | a 3 . 3 | | |
| 2141 | SCAMPK - V I | | ••• ••• 4 ••• ••• 7 ••• 6 ••• 6 ••• ••• 7 •IUENIFCN S | CUPTNAME CHG/DATE |
| | | | | |
| 47 | •000018 | O6 ORUSTS | PIC \$9(1) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000019 | | ORDER STATUS IPCS 2CNT 3CHK 4RDY 5PRT 6PCK | ORDHDR |
| 48 | +000020 | 06 OPRNAM | PIC X(10). | ORDHDR |
| | +000021¢ | | OPERATOR NAME WHO ENTERED THE ORDER | ORDHDR |
| 49 | • 000022 | 06 ORDAMT | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000023* | | TOTAL DOLLAR AMOUNT OF THE ORDER | |
| 50 | +000024 | US LUSITP | | |
| 61 | +000025+ | | LUSIUMER ITPE I=GUV 2=SCH J=BUS 4=PVI J=UI | ORDHDR |
| 51 | + 000028 | 08 144404 | | ORDHDR |
| 52 | +000028 | OG PRIDAT | | ORDHDR |
| 72 | +000029= | 00 / 11041 | DATE ORDER WAS PRINTED | ORDHDR |
| 53 | +000030 | 06 OPNSTS | PIC S9(1) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000031= | | ORDER OPEN STATUS 1=OPEN 2=CLOSE 3=CANCEL | ORDHDR |
| 54 | +000032 | 06 TOTLIN | PIC 59(3) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000033# | | TOTAL LINE ITEMS IN ORDER | ORDHDR |
| 55 | +000034 | 06 ACTMTH | PIC S9(2) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000035\$ | | ACCOUNTING MONTH OF SALE | ORDHOR |
| 56 | +000036 | 06 ACTYR | PIC 59(2) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000037\$ | | ACCOUNTING YEAR OF SALE | ORDHDR |
| 57 | +000038 | 06 STATE | PIC X(2). | URDHUR |
| | +000039\$ | | STATE | |
| 58 | +000040 | 06 AMPAID | PIC 59(6)V9(2) LUMP-3. | |
| 6.0 | +000041# | | IUTAL DULLAK AMUUNI PATU | URDHUK |
| 59 | 003900 FU | | | |
| 60 | 004000 | ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD. | | |
| 62 | 004100 01 | | RODTLP. | |
| 64 | +000001 | | | ORDDTL |
| ••• | +000002¢ | 1-0 FORMAT:ORDDTL | FROM FILE ORDOTLP OF LIBRARY CBL2849 | ORDDTL |
| | +000003* | | URDER DETAIL RECORD | ORDDTL |
| | +000004 + TH | E KEY DEFINITIONS FOR | RECORD FORMAT ORDDTL | ORDDTL |
| | +000005÷ | NUMBER N | AME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEQ | ORDDTL |
| | +000006≠ | 0001 ORDER | ASCENDING N NO | ORDDTL |
| | • 000007≎ | 0002 LINNU | M ASCENDING N NO | ORDOTL |
| 65 | +000008 | 05 ORDDTL. | | |
| 66 | • 000009 | 06 CUST | PIC X(5). | |
| | +000010* | 06 00050 | LUSTOMET NUMDER | |
| 61 | +000011 | UG UKUEK | | |
| £ 0 | +0000124 | | | GRODTI |
| 00 | +000015 | US ETHION | LINE NUMBER OF LINE IN ORDER | ORDOTL |
| 69 | +000015 | 06 ITEM | P1C \$9(5) COMP-3. | ORODTL |
| | +000016# | | Item number | ORDOTL |
| 70 | +000017 | 06 QTYORD | PIC 59(3) COMP-3. | ORDDTL |
| | +000018¢ | | QUANTITY ORDERED | ORDOTL |
| 71 | +000019 | 06 DESCRP | PIC X(30). | ORDDTL |
| | +000020¢ | | Item description | ORDDTL |
| 72 | +000021 | 06 PRICE | PIC \$9(4)V9(2) COMP-3. | ORDDTL |
| | +000022 | | SELLING PRICE | ORDDTL |
| 73 | +000023 | 06 EXTENS | PIC \$9(6)V9(2) COMP-3. | ORDOTL |
| | +000024= | | EXTENSION AMOUNT OF QTYORD X PRICE | ORDOTL |
| 74 | +000025 | 06 WHSLOC | PIC X(3). | |
| | •000026* | A/ 000045 | | |
| 75 | +000027 | 06 URDUAT | PIL 34(6) COMP-3. | UKUUTL |

Figure 7-12 (Part 5 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

C

C

| | 1 | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING DR0220 | |
|------|---------------------|---------------------|--|-------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A L | B 2 3 | ••• ••• 4 ••• •• 5 ••• ••• 6 ••• •• 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| | | | | <u> </u> |
| | +000028¢ | | DATE ORDER WAS ENTERED | ORODTL |
| 76 | +000029 | 06 CUSTYP | PIC 59(1) COMP-3. | ORDDTL |
| | +000030≎ | | CUSTOMER TYPE 1=GOV 2=SCH 3=BUS 4=PVT 5=OT | ORDUTL |
| 77 | +000031 | 06 STATE | PIC X(2). | ORDDTL |
| | + 0000 32 ‡ | | State | ORDDTL |
| 78 | +000033 | 06 ACTMTH | PIC 59(2) COMP-3. | ORODIL |
| | +000034\$ | | ACCOUNTING MONTH OF SALE | ORDDTL |
| 79 | +000035 | 06 ACTYR | PIC 59(2) COMP-3. | ORDOTL |
| | +000036# | | ACCOUNTING YEAR OF SALE | ORDDTL |
| 80 | 004300 66 | ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD | -KEY RENAMES ORDER THRU LINNUM. | |
| 81 | 004400 FD | CUSTOMER-MASTER-FIL | E | |
| 82 | 004500 | LABEL RECORDS ARE S | TANDARD. | |
| 83 | 004600 01 | CUSTOMER-MASTER-REC | ORD. | |
| 84 | 004700 | COPY DDS-CUSMST OF | CUSMSTP. | |
| 86 | +000001 | | | CUSMST |
| | +000002¢ | I-O FORMAT:CUSMST | FROM FILE CUSMSTP OF LIBRARY CBL2849 | CUSMST |
| | + 00000 3* | | CUSTONER MASTER RECORD | CUSMST |
| | + 000004* THE | KEY DEFINITIONS FOR | RECORD FORMAT CUSMST | CUSMST |
| | +000005* N | UMBER | NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEQ | CUSMST |
| | +000006= | 0001 CUST | ASCENDING AN NO | CUSMST |
| 87 | + 000007 | 05 CUSMST. | | CUSMST |
| 88 | +000008 | 06 CUST | PIC X(5). | CUSMST |
| | +000009# | | CUSTOMER NUMBER | CUSMST |
| 89 | +000010 | 06 NAME | PIC X(25). | CUSMST |
| | +000011# | | CUSTOMER NAME | CUSMST |
| 90 | +000012 | 06 ADDR | PIC X(20). | CUSHST |
| | +000013+ | - | CUSTOMER ADDRESS | CUSMST |
| 91 | +000014 | 06 CITY | PIC X(20). | CUSMST |
| | +000015# | | CUSTOMER CITY | CUSHST |
| 92 | +000016 | 06 STATE | PIC X(2). | CUSMST |
| | +000017≑ | | STATE | CUSMST |
| 93 | +000018 | 06 Z I P | PIC 59(5) COMP-3. | CUSMST |
| | +000019+ | | ZIP CODE | CUSMST |
| 94 | +000020 | D6 SRHCOD | PIC X(6). | CUSMST |
| | +000021* | | CUSTOMER NUMBER SEARCH CODE | CUSMST |
| 95 | +000022 | 06 CUSTYP | PIC \$9(1) COMP-3. | CUSMST |
| | +000023\$ | | CUSTOMER TYPE 1=GOV 2=SCH 3=BUS 4=PVT 5=OT | CUSMST |
| 96 | +000024 | 06 ARBAL | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSHST |
| | +000025* | | ACCTS REC BALANCE | CUSMST |
| 97 | +000026 | 06 ORDBAL | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) CDMP-3. | CUSMST |
| •• | +000027\$ | | A/R AMT IN ORDER FILE | CUSMST |
| 98 | +000028 | 06 LSTAMT | PIC 59(6)V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSMST |
| | +000029\$ | | LAST AMOUNT PAID IN A/R | CUSMST |
| 99 | +000030 | 06 ISTDAT | PIC 59(6) COMP-3- | CUSMST |
| | +000031\$ | 00 25.041 | LAST DATE PAID IN A/R | CUSMST |
| 100 | +000032 | 06 CRDIMT | PIC 59(6) V9(2) COMP-3- | CUSMST |
| 100 | +000033+ | JU CROEN | CUSTONER CREDIT LIMIT | CUSHST |
| 101 | +000034 | 06 51 578 | PIC \$9(8)V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSHST |
| 101 | +000035# | UU JEJIN | CUSTOMER SALES THIS YEAR | CUSMST |
| 102 | +000036 | 06 SISI89 | | TZMZII |
| 102 | +000030 ▲000037☆ | VO JEJETK | FIG 37(0)47(2) GUMF-30 CHSTAWER SALES LAST VEAD | T2M2UC |
| 103 | | EXISTING_00050_0100 | LUJIUMEN JALEJ LAJI TEAN I AV-Eli e | C03H31 |
| 103 | 004800 FD | LABEL DECODOS ADE O | LAT-FILC WITTED | |
| 104 | 004 900 | EXISTING_OPDEP_DISP | 1911 I CU+ | |
| 105 | 005100 01 | | LATTRECURD: S DE 0803300 | |
| 106 | 003100 | LUFT DUS-ALL-FURMAT | | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 6 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING ORD220 | |
|------|--------------------|---|--|-------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A | 1 B 2 3 | ••• ••• 4 ••• ••• 5 ••• ••• 6 ••• •• 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| 108 | + 000001 | 05 ORD220D-RECOR | D PIC X(171). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 109 | +000002 | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000003 | I-O FORMAT:SUBI | FROM FILE ORD220D OF LIBRARY CBL2849 | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004\$ | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 110 | +000005 | 05 SUB1 | REDEFINES ORD220D-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 111 | +000006 | 06 ITEM | PIC \$9(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000007≑ | | ITEM NUMBER | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 112 | +000008 | 06 QTYORD | PIC \$9(3). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | •000009≑ | | QUANTITY ORDERED | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 113 | +000010 | 06 DESCRP | PIC X(30). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000011 ≑ | | ITEM DESCRIPTION | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 114 | +000012 | 06 PRICE | PIC \$9(4)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000013÷ | | SELLING PRICE | <-ALL-FNTS |
| 115 | +000014 | 06 EXTENS | PIC \$9(6)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000015¢ | | EXTENSION AMOUNT OF QTYORD X PRICE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 116 | +000016 | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000017≎ | INPUT FORMAT: SUBCTL1 | FROM FILE ORD220D OF LIBRARY CBL2849 | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000018 ≑ | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 117 | +000019 | 05 SUBCTL1-I | REDEFINES ORD 220D-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 118 | + 900020 | 06 SU3CTL1-I- | INDIC. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 119 | +000021 | 07 IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC 97. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000022 ≎ | | CONTINUE DISPLAY | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 120 | +000023 | 07 IN98 | PIC 1 INDIC 98. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000024¢ | | END OF PROGRAM | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 121 | +000025 | 07 IN57 | PIC 1 INDIC 57. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000026≑ | | DISPLAY SUBFILE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 122 | +000027 | 07 IN58 | PIC 1 INDIC 58. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000028¢ | | OFF=DISPLAY SUBCIL ON=CLEAR SUBFILE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 123 | +000029 | 07 IN61 | PIC 1 INDIC 61. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000030₽ | 27 14/7 | Urder number not found | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 124 | +000031 | 07 1847 | PICI INDIC 47. | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 1.76 | +000032+ | 07 1843 | NO TIMES FOR CHIS OFGER | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 125 | +000033 | 07 1482 | No sustance record found for this reder | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 1.74 | +000034+ | 04 08059 | pic solow | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 120 | +000035 | 08 ORDER | OPDER NUMBER | C-ALL-FHIS |
| 1.27 | + 000030+ | | SKOEK NOHDER | C-ALL-FHIS |
| 121 | +000038 | OUTPUT CORMAT: SUBCTI 1 | | C-ALL-FHIS |
| | +000039 | | THOM THE DEDEED OF EIDERART CDE2047 | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 128 | +000040 | 05 SUBCTI 1-0 | REDEFINES ORD220D-RECORD. | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 129 | + 000041 | | INDIC. | C-ALL-FNTS |
| 130 | +000042 | 07 IN58 | PIC I INDIC 58. | C-ALL-FNTS |
| | +000043 | •••••• | UFF=DISPLAY SUBCTL ON=CLEAR SUBFILE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 131 | + 000044 | 07 [N57 | PIC 1 INDIC 57. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000045\$ | ••••• | DISPLAY SUBFILE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 132 | +000046 | 07 IN45 | PIC 1 INDIC 45. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 133 | +000047 | 07 IN47 | PIC 1 INDIC 47. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000048 \$ | | No lines for this order | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 134 | +000049 | 07 IN61 | PIC 1 INDIC 61. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000050¢ | | Order number not found | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 135 | +000051 | 07 IN62 | PIC 1 INDIC 62. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000052≑ | | No customer record found für this order | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 136 | +000053 | 06 ORDER | PIC \$9(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | •000054 ≎ | | ORDER NUMBER | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 137 | +000055 | 06 ORDDAT | PIC 59(6). | <-ALL-FMTS |

Figure 7-12 (Part 7 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

Ċ

| | | | COBOL SOURCE | LISTING | ORD220 | |
|------|---------------------|---|---------------|-------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|
| | | | | _ | | |
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 | B 2 3 | ••• ••• 4 •• | • • • • 5 • • • • | • 6 ••• ••• 7 •IDENTFC | N S COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| | | | | | | • |
| | +000056≑ | | DATE ORDER | WAS ENTERED | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 138 | +000057 | 06 CUST | PIC) | ((5). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000058≎ | | CUSTOMER N | NUMBER | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 139 | +000059 | 06 NAME | PIC) | ((25). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000060 | | CUSTOMER N | NAME | | <-ALL - FMTS |
| 140 | +000061 | 06 ADDR | PIC > | (20). | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000062¢ | | CUSTOMER A | DDRE SS | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 141 | +000063 | 06 CITY | PIC) | ((20)• | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000064≠ | | CUSTOMER C | ITY | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 142 | +000065 | 06 STATE | PIC) | (2)• | | <-ALL-FMT5 |
| | +000066 | | STATE | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 143 | +000067 | 06 ZIP | PIC S | 59(5)• | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | +000068= | 04 000 117 | ZIP CODE | | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 144 | +000069 | UG UKJAMI | PIC S | 59(5)V9(2)• | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | +000070# | 04 535 000 | | LAK AMUUNI UP I | HE UKDEK | |
| 143 | +000071 | 06 212080 | PIC) | (12)• | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 140 | +000072 | US SISUPN | | (12)• | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 141 | +000073 | OB CUSUKD | | | NUMBER | |
| 140 | ♦ 000074 | | | VILLASE UNDER | NUMBER | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 140 | ♦000075 | 00 SHPVIA | | | | |
| 140 | +000070+ | OF PRIDAT | | | | C-ALL-FRIS |
| | +000078± | 08 FRIDAT | | D WAS DOINTED | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 150 | +000079 | 06 TAWARIM | | COIS). | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 1 50 | +000080 | 00 INVIOR | | INBER | | C-ALL-EMTS |
| 151 | +000081 | 06 ACTMTH | PIC | 59121. | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000082 | | ACCOUNTIN | G MONTH OF SALE | : | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 152 | +000083 | 06 ACTYR | PIC | 59(2). | - | C-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000084≑ | | ACCOUNTIN | YEAR OF SALE | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 153 | 005200 WDR | KING-STORAGE SECTION | • | | | |
| 154 | 005300 01 | EXISTING-DRDER-DISP | LAY-KEY. | | | |
| 155 | 005400 | 05 SUBFILE-RECORD- | NUMBER | | PIC 9(02) | |
| 156 | 005500 | | | | VALUE ZERD. | |
| 157 | 005600 01 | ORDER-STATUS-COMMEN | T-VALUES. | | | |
| 158 | 005700 | 05 FILLER | | | PIC X(12) | |
| 159 | 005800 | VALUE "1-IN PRO | CESS". | | | |
| 160 | 005900 | 05 FILLER | | | PIC X(12) | |
| 161 | 006000 | VALUE "2-CONTIN | UED ". | | | |
| 162 | 006100 | 05 FILLER | | | PIC X(12) | |
| 163 | 006200 | VALUE "3-CREDIT | CHK". | | | |
| 164 | 006300 | 05 FILLER | | | PIC X(12) | |
| 165 | 006400 | VALUE "4-READY | PKT "• | | | |
| 166 | 006500 | US FILLER | | | PIL X(12) | |
| 167 | 006600 | VALUE "5-PRINTE | U "• | | | |
| 108 | 006700 | VALUE NA DICKED | | | FIC A(12) | |
| 170 | 006800 | VALUE "O-PICKED | | | | |
| 170 | 005900 | | ED "- | | | |
| 171 | 007000 | VALUE "/-INVUIC | | | | |
| 172 | 007200 | VALUE MOLTANAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA | D " | | | |
| 17 | 007200 | VALUE "STINVALI | • | | PIC X(12) | |
| 176 | 007500 | VALUE NO-CANCEL | ED "- | | | |
| 174 | 007500 01 | | | | | |
| 177 | 007600 | PEDEEINES OPDER | -STATUS-COMM | ENT-VALUES. | | |
| 170 | 007700 | | CHIRS Q TIMES | - | | |
| 178 | 007700 | 05 ORDER-STATUS OC | CURS 9 TIMES | • | | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 8 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTIN | IG ORD220 | |
|-------|-------------|--|-----------------------------------|-------------------|
| STMT | SEONBR -A 1 | Baa aa 2 aa aa 3 aa aa 4 aa aa 4 | D and and 6 and and 7 AIDENTECN S | COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| 1 | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 179 | 007800 | 10 ORDER-STATUS-COMMENT | PIC X(12). | |
| 180 | 007900 01 | OPEN-STATUS-COMMENT-VALUES. | | |
| 181 | 008000 | 05 FILLER | PIC X(12) | |
| 182 | 008100 | VALUE "I-OPEN ". | | 11/11/80 |
| 183 | 008200 | | PIC X(12) | 11/11/80 |
| 185 | 008500 | 05 ETILER | PTC X(12) | 11/11/80 |
| 186 | 008500 | VALUE "3~CANCELED ". | | 11711780 |
| 187 | 008600 01 | OPEN-STATUS-COMMENT-TABLE | | ,, |
| 188 | 008700 | REDEFINES OPEN-STATUS-COMMENT-VALUE | ES. | |
| 189 | 008800 | 05 OPEN-STATUS OCCURS 3 TIMES. | | |
| 190 | 008900 | 10 OPEN-STATUS-COMMENT | PIC X(12). | |
| 191 | 009000 01 | ERRHDL-PARAMETERS. | | |
| 192 | 009100 | 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE | PIC XX. | 11/07/80 |
| 193 | 009200 | | VALUE "9M". | 11/11/80 |
| 194 | 009300 01 | ERREGHTERARATELERS. 05. DISPLAY-DADAMETER | | |
| 195 | 009400 | U) UISPLAT-PARAMETER | | 11/11/80 |
| 197 | 009600 | 05 DUMMY-ONE | | 11/11/80 |
| 198 | 009700 | | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 199 | 009800 | 05 DUMMY-TWO | PIC X(008) | |
| 200 | 009900 | | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 201 | 010000 | 05 STATUS-CODE-TWO. | | |
| 202 | 010100 | 10 PRIMARY | PIC X. | |
| 203 | 010200 | 10 SECONDARY | PIC X. | |
| 204 | 010300 | 10 FILLER | PIC X(005) | |
| 205 | 010400 | | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 200 | 010500 | US DUMMT-TAKEE | | |
| 208 | | SWITCH-AREA. | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 209 | 010800 | 05 SW01 | PIC 1. | |
| 210 | 010900 | 88 NO-MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 211 | 011000 | 88 MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS-EXIST | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 212 | 011100 | U5 SW02 | PIC 1. | |
| 213 | 011200 | 88 WRITE-DISPLAY | VALUE Bº1º. | |
| 214 | 011300 | 88 READ-DISPLAY | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 215 | 011400 | 05 SW03 | PIC 1. | |
| 216 | 011500 | 88 SUBCILI-FURMAT | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 1 21/ | 011600 | 00 NUI-SUBUILI-FUKMAI 05 Suda | VALUE B'U'. | |
| 210 | 011800 | AR SUBI-FORMAT | FIC I | |
| 220 | 011900 | 88 NOT-SUB1-FORMAT | | |
| 221 | 012000 01 | INDICATOR-AREA. | | |
| 222 | 012100 | 05 IN98 | PIC I INDIC 98. | |
| 223 | 012200 | 88 END-OF-EXISTING-ORDER-INQUIRY | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 224 | 012300 | 05 IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC 97. | |
| 225 | 012400 | 88 CONTINUE-DETAIL-LINES-DISPLAY | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 226 | 012500 | 05 IN62 | PIC 1 INDIC 62. | |
| 227 | 012600 | 88 CUSTOMER-NUT-FOUND | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 228 | 012400 | 00 LUSIUMERTEXISI 05 INAL | VALUE D'U'. | |
| 230 | 012900 | | FIG I INJIG DIA VALUE RAIA- | |
| 231 | 013000 | 88 DRDER-EXIST | VALUE BIDIA | |
| 232 | 013100 | 05 IN58 | PIC 1 INDIC 58. | |
| 233 | 013200 | 88 CLEAR-SUBFILE | VALUE B'1'. | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 9 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

C

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTI | NG ORD220 |
|------|----------|--|-------------------------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR - | A 1 B 2 3 4 4 | 5 6 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| | | | |
| 234 | 013300 | 88 DISPLAY-SUBFILE-CONTROL | VALUE B'O'. |
| 235 | 013400 | 05 IN57 | PIC 1 INDIC 57. |
| 236 | 013500 | 88 DISPLAY-SUBFILE | VALUE B'1'. |
| 237 | 013600 | 05 IN47 | PIC 1 INDIC 47. |
| 238 | 013700 | 88 NO-DETAIL-LINES-FOR-ORDER | VALUE B'1'. |
| 239 | 013800 | 88 DETAIL-LINES-FOR-ORDER-EXIST | VALUE B'O'. |
| 240 | 013900 | | PIC I INDIC 47. |
| 241 | 014000 | BB ENU-UF-UKUEK | VALUE B.I |
| 242 | 014100 | DECIARATIVES. | |
| | 014300 | TRANSACTION-ERROR SECTION. | |
| | 014400 | USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE | |
| | 014500 | EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-FILE. | |
| | 014600 | WORK-STATION-ERRUR-HANDLER. | |
| 243 | 014700 | IF SUBFILE-IS-FULL THEN NEXT SENTENCE | 11/07/80 |
| | 014800 | ELSE | 11/07/80 |
| 244 | 014900 | DISPLAY "WORK-STATION ERROR" STATE | JS-CODE-ONE. 11/07/80 |
| | 015000 | END DECLARATIVES. | |
| | 015100 | INQUIRY-INTO-EXISTING-ORDER SECTION. | |
| 746 | 015200 | MAINLINE-KUUTINE. | |
| 247 | 015500 | PERFORM SETTING_OPDED_INCHIPY | |
| 240 | 015500 | | 24. |
| 247 | 015600 | PERFORM CLEAN-UP-ROUTINE. | |
| | 015700 | SET-UP-ROUTINE. | |
| 248 | 015800 | OPEN INPUT ORDER-HEADER-FILE | |
| | 015900 | ORDER-DETAIL-FILE | |
| | 016000 | CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE | |
| | 016100 | I-O EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-FIL | .E• |
| 249 | 016200 | MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBCTLI-D | |
| | 016500 | NAME OF SUBLILI-U | |
| | 016400 | ADDE OF SUBCTIL-D | |
| | 016600 | | |
| | 016700 | STSORD OF SUBCTIL-O | |
| | 016800 | STSOPN OF SUBCTLI-D | |
| | 016900 | CUSURD OF SUBCTL1-0. | |
| 250 | 017000 | MOVE ZEROS TO ORDER OF SUBCTL1-0 | 11/07/80 |
| | 017100 | URDDAT OF SUBCTL1-0 | |
| | 017200 | ZIP UF SUBCTLI-O | |
| | 017300 | URDAMT OF SUBCTLI-O | |
| | 017400 | TANANA OF SUBCTLI-D | |
| | 017600 | ACTMIN DE SUBCILIEU | |
| | 017700 | | |
| 251 | 017800 | MOVE 9'0' TO INDICATOR-AREA. | |
| 252 | 017900 | SET READ-DISPLAY | |
| | 018000 | NOT-SUBCTL1-FORMAT | |
| | 018100 | NOT-SUB1-FORMAT TO TRUE. | |
| 253 | 018200 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBCTLI-O | - INDIC - |
| 254 | 018300 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, SUBCTLI-FORMAT TO | |
| 255 | 018400 | WRITE EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD F | URMAI 15 "SUBCTE1". |
| 256 | 018500 | KEAU EXISTING-UKDEK-DISPLAY+FILE RECU | |
| 271 | 018700 | HUVE CORR SUBCILITITINUIC TO INDICATO EXISTING-ORDER-INDICEY. | |
| | 019100 | EAIJIINU-UKUEK-INWUIKT. | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 10 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

```
COBOL SOURCE LISTING
                                                                         OR0220
STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 ... 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DATE
258
     018800
                 IF CONTINUE-DETAIL-LINES-DISPLAY THEN
                      PERFURN READ-NEXT-ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD
259
     018900
     019000
                      IF MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS-EXIST THEN
260
     019100
                          IF ORDER OF ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD IS NOT EQUAL TO
 261
                              URDER OF ORDER-HEADER-RECORD THEN
      019200
     019300
                              SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE.
262
                                  NO-DETAIL-LINES-FOR-DRDER TO TRUE
      019400
                          EL SE
      019500
                              PERFORM SUBFILE-SET-UP
 263
     019600
      019700
                     ELSE
 264
      019800
                          SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE.
      019900
                              NO-DETAIL-LINES-FOR-ORDER TO TRUE
      020000
                 ELSE
                     PERFORM ORDER-NUMBER-VALIDATION.
265
      020100
                 MOVE CORR INDICATUR-AREA TO SUBCTL1-0-INDIC.
 266
      020200
                 SET WRITE-DISPLAY, SUBCTLI-FORMAT TO TRUE.
WRITE EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD FORMAT IS 'SUBCTLI'.
 267
      020300
 268
      020400
                 READ EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-FILE RECORD.
 269
      020500
                 MOVE CORR SUBCTLI-I-INDIC TO INDICATOR-AREA.
 270
      020600
             URDER-NUMBER-VALIDATION.
      020700
                 PERFORM READ-ORDER-HEADER-FILE.
 271
      020800
                 IF ORDER-EXIST THEN
 272
      020900
                      PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE
      021000
 273
                         CUSTOMER-EXIST THEN
 274
      021100
                      IF
 275
      021200
                          PERFORM READ-FIRST-ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD
 276
      021300
                          1 F
                             DETAIL-LINES-FOR-ORDER-EXIST THEN
                              PERFORM SUBFILE-SET-UP
 277
      021400
      021500
                          ELSE
      021600
                              NEXT SENTENCE
      021700
                      ELSE
                          NEXT SENTENCE
      021800
      021900
                 ELSE
                      NEXT SENTENCE.
      022000
      022100 READ-ORDER-HEADER-FILE.
                 MOVE ORDER OF SUBCILI-I OF EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD
 278
      022200
                      TO ORDER OF ORDER-HEADER-RECORD.
      022300
                 READ ORDER-HEADER-FILE
 279
      022400
                     KEY IS ORDER OF DRDER-HEADER-RECURD
      022500
                      INVALID KEY SET ORDER-NOT-FOUND TO TRUE.
 280
      022600
      022700 READ-CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE.
                 MOVE CUST OF ORDER-HEADER-RECORD
 281
      022800
                      TO CUST OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD.
      022900
                 READ CUSTUMER-MASTER-FILE
 282
      023000
                     KEY IS CUST OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD
      023100
                      INVALID KEY SET CUSTOMER-NOT-FOUND TO TRUE.
 283
      023200
      023300 READ-FIRST-ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD.
                 MOVE ORDER OF ORDER-HEADER-RECORD
 284
      023400
                     TO ORDER OF URDER-DETAIL-RECORD.
      023500
                                                                                                        11/07/80
                 MOVE 1 TO LINNUM OF URDER-DETAIL-RECORD.
 285
      023600
                                                                                                        11/07/80
 286
      023700
                 READ ORDER-DETAIL-FILE
 287
      023800
                      INVALID KEY SET NO-DETAIL-LINES-FOR-ORDER TO TRUE.
      023900 SUBFILE-SET-UP.
      024000
                 SET CLEAR-SUBFILE TO TRUE.
 288
 289
      024100
                 MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBCTLI-O-INDIC.
 290
      024200
                 SET WRITE-DISPLAY, SUBCTL1-FORMAT TO TRUE.
```

Figure 7-12 (Part 11 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING ORD220 | |
|------|----------|---|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR - | A 1 B 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S CUPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| | | | |
| 291 | 024300 | | |
| | 024400 | | |
| 292 | 024500 | SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE-CONTROL TO TRUE. | |
| 293 | 024600 | PERFORM AULI D-DI SPLAY-SUBFILE | |
| - | 024700 | | |
| | 024800 | | 11/07/80 |
| 294 | 024900 | MOVE CJRR ORDHDR DE ORDER-HEADES-RECORD | , 0, 00 |
| | 025000 | TO SUBCTLI-0 OF EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD. | |
| 295 | 025100 | MOVE CORR CUSMST OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD | 11/06/80 |
| | 025200 | TO SUBCTLI-O OF EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECURD . | ,, |
| 296 | 025300 | MOVE ORDER-STATUS (ORDSTS) TO STSORD. | |
| 297 | 025400 | MOVE OPEN-STATUS(OPNSTS) TO STSOPN. | |
| 298 | 025500 | SET MCRE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS-EXIST TO TRUE. | |
| 299 | 025600 | MOVE ZEROS TO SUBFILE-RECORD-HUMBER. | 11/07/80 |
| | 025700 | BUILD-DISPLAY-SUBFILE. | , 0, 00 |
| 300 | 025800 | MOVE CORR JRDDTL OF ORDER-DETAIL-RECURD | |
| | 025900 | TO SUBL OF EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD. | |
| 301 | 026000 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, SUBI-FORMAT TO TRUE. | |
| 302 | 026100 | ADD 1 TO SUBFILE-RECORD-NUMBER. | |
| 303 | 026200 | WRITE SUBFILE EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-RECORD FORMAT IS 'SUBI'. | |
| 304 | 026300 | IF SUBFILE-IS-FULL THEN | 11/07/80 |
| 305 | 026400 | SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE TO TRUE | ,, |
| | 026500 | ELSE | |
| 306 | 026600 | PERFORM READ-NEXT-JRDER-DETAIL-RECORD | |
| 307 | 026700 | IF NO-MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS THEN | |
| | 026800 | NEXT SENTENCE | |
| | 026900 | EL SE | |
| 308 | 027000 | IF URDER OF ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD IS NOT EQUAL TO | |
| | 027100 | URDER OF ORDER-HEADER-KECORD THEN | |
| 309 | 027200 | SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE, | |
| | 027300 | ND-MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS TO TRUE | |
| | 027400 | ELSE | |
| | 027500 | NEXT SENTENCE. | |
| | 027600 | KEAD-NEXT-ORDER-DETAIL-RECORD. | |
| 310 | 027700 | READ ORDER-DETAIL-FILE NEXT RECORD | |
| 311 | 027800 | AT END SET DISPLAY-SUBFILE. | |
| | 027900 | NO-MORE-DETAIL-LINE-ITEMS TO TRUE. | |
| | 028000 | CLEAN-UP-ROUTINE. | |
| 312 | 028100 | CLOSE ORDER-HEADER-FILE | |
| | 028200 | JRDER-JETAIL-FILE | |
| | 028300 | CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE | |
| | 028400 | EXISTING-ORDER-DISPLAY-FILE. | |
| 313 | 028500 | STOP RUN. | |
| | | | |
| | | THE FOR THE SUUKLE FFORF | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 12 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

This is the initial order entry prompt display written to the workstation:

C

| Exist | ing Or | der In | nquiry | | | iotal Status | 000000 | 00 | | |
|-------|--------|--------|----------|---------|-------|-----------------|---------|--------|--------|---------|
| Order | 00000 | | | | | Open | | | | |
| Date | 000000 | | | | | Custom | er orde | r | | |
| Cust | # | | | | | Ship v | a | | | |
| | | | | 00000 | | Printe | d date | 000000 | | |
| | | | | Invoice | 00000 | | _ | | Mth 00 | Year OO |
| Item | Qty | Item | descript | ion | | Price | e Ex | tensio | n | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

This display appears if there are detail order records for the customer whose order number was entered in the first display:

| Open 2-CLOSED Customer order TESTCS1793301 Ship via TRUCKCO Printed date 042578 17924 Mth 12 Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 0068200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | 01I Year 78 |
|--|----------------------|
| Customer order TESTCS1793300 Ship via TRUCKCO Printed date 042578 17924 Mth 12 Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | 01I Year 78 |
| Ship via TRUCKC0 Printed date 042578 17924 Mth 12 Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | Year 78 |
| Printed date 042578 17924 Mth 12 Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | Year 78 |
| 17924 Mth 12 Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 008200 164.00 154.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | Year 78 |
| Price Extension NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| NCH 009115 273.45 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| 00 LB 015777 157.77 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| 006840 273.60 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| 008200 164.00 TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| TX6FT 007930 237.90 | |
| | |
| 4X4FT 007178 71.78 | |
| CHES 044488 2,224.40 | |
| OTE 104202 2,084.04 | |
| IPED 043002 1,720.08 | |
| ED 6FT 021954 219.54 | |
| | |
| | J 6F 1 U21954 219.54 |

Figure 7-12 (Part 13 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

This display appears if the ORDHDRP file does not contain a record for the order number entered on the first display:

| Exist | ing Ord | ler Iı | nquiry | | Total Status | 00000 | 000 | | |
|--------------|---------|--------|-------------|---------|-----------------|---------------|---------|--------|---------|
| Order | 12400 | | | | Open | | | | |
| Date Cue+ | 000000 | | | | Custom | er orde is | er | | |
| CUSI | * | | 0000 | D | Printe | d date | 000000 | | |
| | | | Invoic | e 00000 | _ | | | Mth 00 | Year OO |
| Item | Qty | Item | description | | Price | e Ex | ktensio | n | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-12 (Part 14 of 14). Sample Order Inquiry Program

Figure 7-13 shows a sample payment update program, ARC010, with the related DDS and sample display screens. For the DDS for the customer master file, CUSMSTP, refer to Figure 7-11.

In this example, payments from customers are registered. The clerk is prompted to enter one or more customer numbers and the amount of money to be credited to each customer's account. The program checks the customer number and unconditionally accepts any payment for an existing customer who has invoices outstanding. If an overpayment will result from the amount of the payment from a customer, the clerk is given the option to accept or reject the payment. If no customer record exists for a customer number, an error message is issued. Payments can be entered until the clerk ends the program by pressing command key 12.



*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-13 (Part 1 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| ile | | | | | | | Keving | | Graphic | | | | | | | | Description | | Page of | of | | |
|---------------|-----------------|-----|--------------|-----------|-------------------------|---------|--------------------|----------------------|-------------|-----------------|-------------|---------------|-------------------------|----------|---------|--------|--------------|-----------------|--|------------------|---|-------------------|
| igrammer Date | | | | | | Instruc | Instruction Key | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | - | | гт | | | 7 | | | | | | |
| | | | Condit | tionin | g | | | | | | AL 14 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Т | | | | | | | | | 2 | 2 | | Locat | tion | | | | | | | |
| | (./0 | G | onditi | on Na | Ime | | ō | | | | A ICI | Š | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| quence | II (A | | | | Π | | /K/S/ | Name | | L | ength u | 20 | Ŵ | | | 1 | | | Functions | | | |
| | mmer | | | | | | R | | á | 2 | | | 1/8/1 | | | | | | | | | |
| | Type | | b _ | ğ | = | ğ | a 1∕pe | | 20 | | 1 | | 0/10 | Line | Pos | | | | | | | |
| | ma/o | | N) to | dice | e g | dice | a Tele | [| lafara | | 5 | acim Sitic | 8 | | | | | | | | | |
| 345 | 67 | 8 9 | = Z 10 11 | 12 13 | 14 1 | 5 16 | 17 18 | 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 | 26 27 28 25 | 930 31 | 32 33 34 3 | 5 36 37 | 38 3 | 39 40 41 | 42 43 4 | 4 45 4 | 5 47 48 4 | 9 50 51 52 53 5 | 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 6 | 4 65 66 67 68 69 | 70 71 72 73 | 74 75 76 77 78 79 |
| | ^ X | | | | D | 5 | FC | R THE D | ISPL | AY. | DE | /IC | E | FI | LE | AF | CØJ | ØD. | | | | |
| | A X | _ | | | H | | A | CCOUNTS | REC | EI | VABL | <u> </u> | I | NTE | RAC | -T 2 | IVE | PAYMI | ENT UPDATE | | | |
| | ^ * | + | | | ++ | | 0 | SUBETIE | | + | | + | ++ | | | SI | | | | | - | |
| | Â | +- | | | ++ | | | SUBLICE | 4-+ | + | + | + | ╀╆ | | | TF | XT(| 1 Scale | File For C | istome | r na | umo n+ 1 |
| | ۸¥ | | | - | Ħ | | | | | 1 | | | † | | | 1 | | Jup | 1.10 101 0 | x 3 0 !!!! | · · · · | THEN |
| | A | | | | | | | ACPPMT | | | 4 | | I | 5 | 4 | HT | XT | Acce | ept paymen- | +1) | | |
| | A | | | | Π | | | | | | | | Π | | | N | LUE | 5 (1 * | YES' '*NO' |) | | |
| | A | 5 | 1 | | \square | | | | | 4 | | | $\left \cdot \right $ | | | P | SPAT | RR | MDT) | | | |
| | <u> </u> | 15 | + | | \downarrow | | | | | + | | | ₩ | | | DS | 5PA1 | RIND | PR) | | • | |
| | ^ * | ┿ | | | ┢┼ | | \vdash | CUET | +-+ | + | | | ┢ | | | | VT/ | 10.00 | h | | · · · · · · · | <u> </u> |
| | | 5 | 2 | | ++ | | \vdash | <u>cosi</u> | +-+ | ┽ᅲ | | + | P | | ; | | DAT | RIPT |) | er j | | |
| • | A | 5 | 3 | | Ħ | | $\left + \right $ | | + + | $+ \cdot \cdot$ | · · · · · † | + | Ħ | | | D | PAT | RIND | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | A | Š | 4 | - | Ħ | - | | | | + | · · · · · | + | Ħ | | | DS | PAT | R(PR) |) | | • • • • • • • | |
| | ۸¥ | | | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ····· | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | AMPAID | | | 8 | Ø2 | B | 5 | 24 | LTE | XT (| Amou | unt paid!) | | | |
| | A | | | | \prod | | | | | ₊ | | + | \square | | | CI | ECI | (FE) | | | ······· | |
| | <u> </u> | + | - | | ++ | | | | -+ | + | + | + | ++ | | | A | 100 | KAB) | | | ····· , | |
| | | 5 | 2 | | ╉╌╋ | | | | | | | | ┼┼ | | | | PAT | 0/0T | <u></u> | | | |
| | A | 5 | 3 | | ++ | | | | | 1 | | | \mathbf{H} | | | D | PAT | PIND |) | | | |
| | A | 5 | 4 | | $^{++}$ | | | | | + | •••• | + | Ħ | | | D | PAT | R(PR | $\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}$ | | * | |
| | ∧ ¥ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | \square | | | ECPMSG | | | 314 | | Ó | 5 | 3 | T | XT (| Exce | eption mes | sage ') | | |
| | A | 5 | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | D | PAT | RIRI |) | | · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | A | 5 | 3 | | $\downarrow \downarrow$ | | \square | | | + | | + | $\downarrow \downarrow$ | | | D | PAT | R(ND | <u>}</u> | | | <u> </u> |
| | A | 5 | 2 | | H | | | | +-+ | + | + | + | $\left \right $ | | | DS | PAT | R(BL |) | | | |
| | ^ X | + | | | ++ | | ┥ | 010045 | +++ | + | | 1-2 | H | F | | + | 171 | 10 | | ····· | | |
| | | +- | | | + | | ┝╌┟─ | UVKPEII | +++ | + | <u>, 9</u> | 4-4 | ۲ | | | 115 | - <u>^1(</u> | E(1) | payment. | J | •• | |
| | | 5 | 5 | | + | | $\left \right $ | <u> </u> | ╺┨╺┼ | + | | + | † | | | 0.4 | PAT | RIRI | <u>`````````````````````````````````````</u> | | | |
| | | | 6 | | †† | | ┝╋╌ | <u>├</u> | | + | ••••+ | + | † | | | ō- | PAT | R(ND) |) | ÷ • • | · · · · · · | |
| | AX | 42 | - | | $^{++}$ | • | H | ++- | | + | · · · · + | + | Ħ | | | | а н 4 | <u> </u> | * | | | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 7-13 (Part 2 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program



*Number of sheets per pad inay vary slightly

Figure 7-13 (Part 3 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program
| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | |
|------|----------------------------------|---|------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 B 2 3 | ••• ••• 4 ••• ••• 5 ••• •• 6 ••• •• 7 •IDENTFCN s | COPYNAME CHG/DAT |
| | 000100 IDENTIETCATION DIVISION | | |
| 1 | 000200 PROCRAM-ID | • | |
| 3 | 000300 ARC010 | | |
| 4 | 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. | | |
| 5 | 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. | | |
| 6 | 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. | | |
| 7 | 000700 IBM-538. | | |
| 8 | 000800 UBJECT-COMPUTER. | | |
| 9 | 000900 IBM-538. | | |
| 10 | 001000 INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION. | | |
| 11 | 001100 FILE-CONTROL. | | |
| 12 | 001200 SELECT CUSTOMER-INV | OICE-FILE | |
| 13 | OUISOU ASSIGN TO JATAB | ASE-URDHDRL | |
| 14 | | | |
| 15 | | | |
| 17 | | | |
| 18 | 001800 SELECT CUSTOMER-MAS | TER-EILE | |
| 19 | 001900 ASSIGN TO DATAB | ASE-CUSHSTP | |
| 20 | 002000 ORGANIZATION IS | INDEXED | |
| 21 | 002100 ACCESS MODE IS | RANDOM | |
| 22 | 002200 RECORD KEY IS C | UST OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD. | |
| 23 | OU2300 SELECT PAYMENT-UPDA | TE-DISPLAY-FILE | |
| 24 | 002400 ASSIGN TO WORKS | TATION-ARCOLOD | |
| 25 | 002500 ORGANIZATION IS | TRANSACTION | |
| 26 | 002600 ACCESS MODE IS | DYNAMIC | |
| 27 | 002700 RELATIVE KEY IS | REL-NUMBER | |
| 28 | | STATUS-CODE-ONE | |
| 30 | | WS-CUNIKUL. | |
| 31 | 003100 FUE SECTION. | | |
| 32 | 003200 ED CUSTOMER-INVOICE-EL | 1 F | |
| 33 | 003300 LABEL RECORDS ARE S | TANDARD. | |
| 34 | 003400 U1 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RE | CORD. | |
| 35 | 003500 COPY DUS-ORDHOR OF | ORDHDRL. | |
| 37 | + 000001 | | ORDHDR |
| | +000002* I-U FORMAT:ORDHOR | FROM FILE URDHORL OF LIBRARY CBL2849 | URUHDR |
| | +000003≎ | | ORDHDR |
| | +000004 #THE KEY DEFINITIONS FOR | RECORD FORMAT ORDHOR | ORDHDR |
| | +000005# NUMBER | NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEQ | ORDHDR |
| | +000005÷ 0001 COST | ASCENDING AN NO | |
| 3.8 | +000001* 0002 INVN | ASCENDING N NO | |
| 30 | +000000 00 0000K+ | PIC X(5). | |
| 27 | +000010\$ | | ORDHDR |
| 40 | +000011 06 INVNUM | P1C S9(5) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | +000012* | INVOICE NUMBER | JRDHDR |
| 41 | +000013 06 ORDER | PIC \$9(5) COMP-3. | ORDHDR |
| | •000014 [‡] | ORDER NUMBER | ORDHDR |
| 42 | +000015 06 ORDDAT | PIC 59(6) COMP-3. | ORDHOR |
| | +000016¢ | DATE URDER WAS ENTERED | ORDHDR |
| 43 | +000017 06 CUSORJ | PIC X(15). | ORDHDR |
| | +00013¢ | CUSTOMER PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER | ORDHOR |
| 44 | +000019 06 SHPVIA | PIC X(15). | ORDHDR |
| | 000020# | SHIPPING INSTRUCTIONS | URDHDR |

Figure 7-13 (Part 4 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| | | C | OBOL SOURCE LISTING ARCOLO | | |
|------|-------------|-----------------------|---|----------|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 | B 2 3 . | •••••• 4 •••• 5 ••• ••• 6 ••• 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| 45 | +000021 | 06 ORDSTS | PIC S9(1) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| | +000022\$ | | ORDER STATUS 1PCS 2CNT 3CHK 4RDY 5PRT 6PCK | ORDHDR | |
| 46 | + 00002 3 | 06 OPRNAM | PIC X(10). | ORDHDR | |
| | +000024* | | OPERATOR NAME WHO ENTERED THE ORDER | ORDHDR | |
| 47 | + 000025 | 06 ORDAMT | PIC S9(6)V9(2) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| | +000026≎ | | TOTAL DOLLAR AMOUNT OF THE ORDER | ORDHOR | |
| 48 | +000027 | 06 CUSTYP | PIC S9(1) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| | ¢000028≉ | | CUSTUMER TYPE 1=GOV 2=SCH 3=BUS 4=PVT 5=DT | ORDHDR | |
| 49 | +000029 | 06 PRTDAT | PIC \$9(6) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| | +000030≑ | | DATE ORDER WAS PRINTED | ORDHDR | |
| 50 | +000031 | 06 OPNSTS | PIC 59(1) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| _ | +000032* | | ORDER OPEN STATUS 1=OPEN 2=CLOSE 3=CANCEL | ORDHDR | |
| 51 | +000033 | 06 TOTLIN | PIC 59(3) COMP-3. | ORDHDR | |
| | +000034≎ | | TOTAL LINE ITEMS IN ORDER | ORDHDR | |
| 52 | +000035 | 06 ACTHTH | PI(S9(2)) (OMP-3. | DRDHDR | |
| | +000036# | | ACCOUNTING MONTH OF SALE | | |
| 53 | +000037 | 06 ACTYR | | ORDHDR | |
| | +000038 | ••• | ACCOUNTING YEAR GE SALE | OR OH DR | |
| 54 | +000039 | 06 STATE | PIC X(2) | ORDHON | |
| | +000040* | 00 01.012 | STATE | | |
| 55 | +000041 | 06 AMPATO | | | |
| | +000042* | | | | |
| 56 | 003600 66 | COMP-KEY RENAMES CUST | THEIL INVIOR- | UKUHUK | |
| 57 | 003700 ED | CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE | | | |
| 58 | 003800 | LABEL RECORDS ARE STA | NDAR D. | | |
| 59 | 003900 01 | | | | |
| 60 | 004000 | COPY DDS-CUSMST DE CU | | | |
| 62 | +000001 | | | CUSMST | |
| 02 | +000002¢ | I-O FORMAT:CUSMST | FROM FILE CUSMSTP OF LIBRARY CRI2849 | CUSHST | |
| | +000003 | | CUSTOMER MASTER RECORD | CUSHST | |
| | +000004+THE | KEY DEFINITIONS FOR R | ECORD FORMAT CUSMST | CUSMST | |
| | +000005* N | UMBER NA | ME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSED | CUSHST | |
| | +000006 | 0001 CUST | ASCENDING AN NO | CUSMST | |
| 63 | + 0000007 | 05 CUSMST. | | CUSMST | |
| 64 | +000008 | | PIC X(5) | CHEMET | |
| • • | + 000009\$ | | CUSTOMER NUMBER | CUSNIST | |
| 65 | +000010 | 05 NAME | | CUSMST | |
| | +000011\$ | | CUSTOMER NAME | CUSMST | |
| 66 | +000012 | 06 ADDR | $PIC \times (20)$ | CUSMST | |
| | +000013* | | CUSTOMER ADDRESS | CUSMST | |
| 67 | +000014 | 06 CITY | 216 × (20). | TZMZUD | |
| | +000015\$ | | | TZMZUC | |
| 68 | +000016 | 06 STATE | PIC X(2). | CHSMST | |
| •• | +000017\$ | | STATE | TISMST | |
| 69 | +000018 | 06 71P | PTC 59(5) COMP-3- | CUSMST | |
| ••• | +000019\$ | | | CUSMST | |
| 70 | +000020 | 06 SBHC00 | | TZMSUD | |
| | +000021* | | CUSTOMER NUMBER SEARCH CODE | CUSHST | |
| 71 | +000022 | 06 CUSTYP | PIC \$9(1) COMP-3. | CUSMST | |
| • • | +000023≎ | | CUSTOMER TYPE 1=GOV 2=SCH 3=BUS 4=PVT 5=AT | CUSMST | |
| 72 | +000024 | 06 ARBAL | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP=3. | CUSMST | |
| • • | +000025\$ | | ACCTS REC BALANCE | CUSMST | |
| 73 | +000026 | 06 ORDBAL | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSMST | |
| | +000027\$ | | A/R AMT IN ORDER FILE | CUSMST | |
| 74 | +000028 | 06 LSTAMT | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSMST | |
| •• | | | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 5 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

C

| | | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING ARCOLO | |
|------|-------------------|-----------------------|---|-------------------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A | 1 8 | • | • IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DAT |
| | +000029¢ | | LAST AMOUNT PAID IN A/R | C U SM S T |
| 75 | +000030 | 06 LSTDAT | PIC \$9(6) COMP-3. | CUSMST |
| | +000031\$ | | LAST DATE PAID IN A/R | CUSMST |
| 76 | +000032 | 06 CRDLMT | PIC \$9(6) V9(2) COMP-3. | CUSMST |
| | +000033 | | CUSTOMER CREDIT LIMIT | CUSMST |
| 77 | +000034 | 06 51 548 | PIC S9(8)V9(2) COMP=3. | CUSHST |
| | +000035# | 00 52511 | CUSTOMED SALES THIS YEAD | CUSNST |
| 78 | +000036 | | | CUSHST CUSHST |
| 10 | +000037± | CO JEJETK | CHISTINED SALES LAST VERD | |
| 79 | 004100 5 | | COSIDMEN SALES CASI TEAN | CUSHST |
| 80 | 004100 P | | | |
| 91 | 004200 0 | LADEL RECORDS ARE C | | |
| 01 | 004300 0 | I PATHENI-UPUALE-DISK | | |
| 82 | 004400 | CUPY DUS-ALL-FURMAN | S OF ARCOIOD. | |
| 84 | +000001 | US ARLUIUD-RELUR | D PIC $X(59)$. | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 85 | +000002 | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000003* | INPUT FORMAT: SUBFILE | FROM FILE ARCOIDD OF LIBRARY CBL20 | 849 <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004≑ | | SUBFILE FOR CUSTOMER PAYMENT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 86 | +000005 | 05 SUBFILE1-I | REDEFINES ARCOIOD-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 87 | + 000006 | 06 ACPPMT | PIC X(4). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0 <u>0</u> 0007≎ | | ACCEPT PAYMENT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 88 | +000008 | 06 CUST | PIC X(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000009¢ | | CUSTOMER NUMBER | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 89 | +000010 | 06 AMPAID | PIC 59(6)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000011\$ | | AMOUNT PAID | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 90 | +000012 | 06 ECPMSG | PIC X(31). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000013 | | EXCEPTION MESSAGE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 91 | +000014 | D6 OVRPMT | P1C \$9(6) V9(2). | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000015 | •• •• | UVER PAYMENT | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 92 | +000016 | 06 STSCDE | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000017\$ | 00 515002 | STATUS CODE | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 93 | +000018 | | 314103 2002 | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000019= | OUTPUT EDWMAT SUBETLE | | |
| | +000020= | | CURETLE END CUSTOMED DAVMENT | |
| 94 | +000021 | 05 511851-0 | | |
| 77 | +000021 | | REDEFINES AREVIOU-RECURD. | |
| | +000022 | | | |
| 70 | +000023 | 07 1951 | PIC I INDIC 51. | |
| 91 | +000024 | U7 IN52 | PIC I INDIC 52. | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 98 | +000025 | 07 IN53 | PIC I INUIC 53. | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | +000026 | 07 1854 | PICI INDIC 54. | <-ALL-FMIS |
| 100 | + 000027 | 07 IN55 | PIC I INDIC 55. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 101 | +000028 | 07 IN56 | PIC 1 INDIC 56. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 102 | +000029 | U6 CUST | PIC X(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000U30≑ | | CUSTOMER NUMBER | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 103 | +000031 | 06 AMPAID | PIC 59(6)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000032≎ | | AMOUNT PAID | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 104 | +000033 | 06 ECPMSG | PIC X(31). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000034# | | EXCEPTION MESSAGE | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 105 | +000035 | 06 OVRPMT | PIC 59(6)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000036≑ | | UVER PAYMENT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 106 | +000037 | 06 STSCDE | PIC X(1). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000038≉ | | STATUS CODE | C-ALL-FNTS |
| 107 | + 000039 | | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000040= | INPUT FORMAT:CONTROL | EROM ETLE ARCOLOD DE L'IBRARY CRUZ | 849 (-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000041# | | | C ALL FRITS |
| IVe | +000041* | | REDEFINES ARCOLOD-PECHED | |
| 109 | + 000042 | | NEDEFINES ANGULUD-KECUKD. | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 6 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| STHT SEQNBR - A L B 2 | | | COBOL SOURCE LISTIN | IG | ARCOLO | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--|---|---|-----------------|---|---|--|---|---|--|---|--|---|--|---|--|---|--|--|-----|-----------------|-------------|-----|--|------------|
| 100 • 000045 06 CONTRULI-I-INDIC. ALL-FMTS 111 • 000046 07 IN98 PEC I NUIC 99. ALL-FMTS 111 • 000046 07 IN98 PEC I NUIC 99. ALL-FMTS 111 • 000046 07 IN98 PEC I NUIC 99. ALL-FMTS 112 • 0000470 EXD PAYMENT UPDATE ALL-FMTS 113 • 0000540 0000470 FELD PAYMENT UPDATE ALL-FMTS 113 • 0000540 000718 EXD PAYMENT UPDATE ALL-FMTS 113 • 000054 00 CONTROLL-0 REDEFINES ARCOIDO-KECORD. ALL-FMTS 114 • 000054 05 CONTROLL-0 REDEFINES ARCOIDO-KECORD. ALL-FMTS 114 • 000054 05 CONTROLL-0 REDEFINES ARCOIDO-KECORD. ALL-FMTS 115 • 0000540 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 62. ALL-FMTS 116 • 0000540 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 62. ALL-FMTS 117 • 0000540 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 63. ALL-FMTS 118 • 0000570 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. ALL-FMTS 110 • 000001 07 IN78 PIC I INDIC | STMT | SEQNBR - A 1 8 2 | 3 4 5 | | 6 7 .IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME CHG/DATE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 109 *00043 06 CONTRUL-L-I-NDIC. 4LL-FMTS 110 *00004 07 INP9 PCI I IV0IC 99. ALL-FMTS *000055* 07 INP9 PCI I IV0IC 98. ALL-FMTS *000064 07 INP9 PCI I IV0IC 97. ALL-FMTS *000054* 000047 EXD PAYMENT UPDATE ALL-FMTS *000054* 07 INP9 PCI I IV0IC 97. ALL-FMTS *000054* IGADRE INPUT ALL-FMTS ALL-FMTS *000051 05 CONTROLL-O-TNOIC. ALL-FMTS ALL-FMTS *000054* 05 CONTROLL-O-TNOIC. ALL-FMTS ALL-FMTS *114 *000055 07 INA1 PIC I IV0IC 61. ALL-FMTS *116 *000054 07 INA2 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *117 *00056 07 INA3 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *118 *000051 07 INA3 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *119 *000059 07 INA3 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *120 *000060 07 INA3 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *121 *000061 07 INA3 PIC I IV0IC 63. ALL-FMTS *000062* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 110 000044 07 TW99 PIC 1 TVDIC 99. C-ALL-PHTS 111 0000450 07 TW99 PIC 1 TVDIC 98. C-ALL-PHTS 112 000046 07 TW99 PIC 1 TVDIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS 113 000046 07 TW99 PIC 1 TVDIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS 113 000046 07 TW97 PIC 1 TVDIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS 114 000046 07 TW97 PIC 1 TVDIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS 113 000046 CATL-PHTS C-ALL-PHTS C-ALL-PHTS 114 000051 OUTPUT FORMATICONTROLI FROM FILE ARCOLOD C-ALL-PHTS C-ALL-PHTS 115 000054 0 CONTROLL-O-TRODE FILE C-ALL-PHTS C-ALL-PHTS 115 000054 0 TW62 PIC 1 TVDIC 62. C-ALL-PHTS 116 000054 0 TW62 PIC 1 TVDIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 117 000059 0 TW64 PIC 1 TVDIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 118 000059 0 TW64 PIC 1 TVDIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 119 000059 0 TW64 PIC 1 TVDIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 121 0000 | 109 | +000043 06 CONTROL 1- | I-INDIC. | | | C-ALL-ENTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11. •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 99. C-ALL-PHTS •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 99. C-ALL-PHTS 12. •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS •00006; 00 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS •00005; 00 Not Net P PEC 1 NOIC 61. C-ALL-PHTS •00005; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 114. •00005; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 117. •00005; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 118. •00005; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 121. •00006; 05 NOT Net P PEC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-PHTS 121. •00006; 07 Net P PEC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-PHTS <t< td=""><td>110</td><td>+000045 00 00145</td><td>PIC 1 14010</td><td>99.</td><td></td><td>C-ALL-FAIS</td></t<> | 110 | +000045 00 00145 | PIC 1 14010 | 99. | | C-ALL-FAIS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 111 - 000046 07 1 W48 EXD PIC 1 NOIC 98. C-ALL-PHTS 112 - 000048 07 1 N47 PIC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-PHTS 113 000050 IGVORE INPUT C-ALL-FHTS C-ALL-FHTS 0000049 IGVORE INPUT C-ALL-FHTS C-ALL-FHTS 0000516 OUTPUT FORMATICONTROLL FAON FILE ARCOLOD DF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FHTS 114 000053 05 CONTROLL-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FHTS 117 000054 06 CONTROLL-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FHTS 117 000055 07 IN962 PIC 1 NOIC 62. C-ALL-FHTS 117 000056 07 IN963 PIC 1 NOIC 63. C-ALL-FHTS 110 000060 07 IN963 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 120 000060 07 IN963 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 120 000060 07 IN64 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 121 000060 07 IN64 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 122 000060 07 IN64 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 120 000060 07 IN64 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FHTS 121 000060 05 HESSAGEL FROM FILE ARCOLO DE LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FHTS | | ► 000045¢ | HELP KEY | | | C-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 112 000048 07 INT PIC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-FMTS 103 0000490 07 INT PIC 1 NOIC 97. C-ALL-FMTS 1000050 CALL-FMTS CALL-FMTS C-ALL-FMTS 0000500 SUPPTICE CONTROLL SUPPTICE CONTROLL C-ALL-FMTS 113 000050 CONTROLL-ONCOLD SUPPTICE CONTROLL C-ALL-FMTS 114 0000520 OS CONTROLL-ONCOLD-AECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 116 000055 OS CONTROLL-ONCOLD-AECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 116 000055 OT INS1 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 118 000057 OT INS2 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 120 000059 OT INS3 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000059 OT INS3 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000050 OT INS4 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000059 OT INS5 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000050 OT INS5 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000050 OT INS4 PIC 1 INDIC 63. C-AL | 111 | +000046 07 IN98 | PIC 1 INDIC | 98. | | C-ALL-ENTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 112 + 0000496 Of IN9T PIC_1 INDIC 97. C-ALL-FWTS 113 + 000050 IGAORE INPUT C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 0000510 = 001PUT FORMAT:CONTROLL FROM FILE ACCOLD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FWTS + 0000520 = SUBFILE CONTROL C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 0000520 = OS CONTROLL-0-INDIC. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000053 = OS CONTROLL-0-INDIC. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000054 = OS CONTROLL-0-INDIC. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000055 = OT 1Ne1 PIC 1 NOIC 61. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000056 = OT 1Ne3 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000060 OT 7 Ne6 PIC 1 NOIC 64. C-ALL-FWTS C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD AFECDRD. C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD AFECDRD. C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD AFECDRD. C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD AFECDRD. C-ALL-FWTS + 000064 OUPPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD AFECDRD. C- | • • • • | +000047* | END PAYMENT UPDAT | F | | C-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13. 000050 C-ALL-FMTS 13. 000050 C-ALL-FMTS 0000510 SUBPLIE CONTROL C-ALL-FMTS 114. 0000520 SUBPLIE CONTROL C-ALL-FMTS 114. 0000540 OS CONTROLI-O-NECENDRA C-ALL-FMTS 116. 0000540 OS CONTROLI-O-NECENDRA C-ALL-FMTS 116. 0000540 OS CONTROLI-O-NECENDRA C-ALL-FMTS 116. 0000540 OT INAL PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 117. 0000540 OT INAS PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 118. 0000540 OT INAS PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 119. 0000540 OT INAS PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121. 0000540 OT INAS PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121. 0000640 OT INAS PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121. 0000640 OT INAS AGE RECOND C-ALL-FMTS 122. 00006540 MESSAGEL FROM FILE ARCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS 122. 0000657 MESSAGEL-O-INOIC C-ALL-FMTS 122. 0000657 OF MESSAGEL-O-INOIC C-ALL-FMTS 122. 00000679 | 112 | +000048 07 IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC | 97. | | C-ALL-FATS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 113 * 0000510 C-ALL-FMTS * 0000510 OUTPUT FORMAT:CONTROLL FROM FILE ARCOLOD FLIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS * 0000510 OUS CONTROL-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FMTS * 000053 OS CONTROL-I-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FMTS * 000054 OS CONTROL-I-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000550 OT IN61 PIC 1 INOIC 61. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000560 OT IN62 PIC 1 INOIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000590 OT IN63 PIC 1 INOIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000600 OT IN64 PIC 1 INOIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS * 000060 OT IN64 PIC 1 INOIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000650 OT IN64 PIC 1 INOIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000650 OT IN64 PIC 1 INOIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS * 000066 OT SMATIMESSAGEI FROM FILE ARCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS * 000066 OF MESSAGEI FROM FILE ARCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS * 000066 OF MESSAGEI PORMATIMESSARCOLOD-RECORD. C-ALL-FMTS * 0000660 OF MESSAGEI PORMENTARESAGEI PORO | ••• | +000049* | IGNORE INPUT | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 0000510 0UTPUT FORMATICONTROLL FROM FILE ARCOLOD DF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS 114 0000520 SUBFLE CONTROL C-ALL-FMTS 115 0000540 GEONTROLI-O REDEFINES ARCOLOD-MECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 116 000055 OF INGL PIC I INDIC 61. C-ALL-FMTS 116 000056 OF INGL PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 117 0000560 OF INGL PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 110 0000560 OF INGS PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 110 000060 OF INGS PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 120 000060 OF INGS MCDID-MECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000060 OF INGS ARCOLOD-MECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 122 0000647 OF MESSAGEL-I REDEFINES ARCOLOD-MECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 123 0000640 OF MESSAGEL-I RECORD C-ALL-FMTS 124 0000647 OF MESSAGEL-I RECORD C-ALL-FMTS 123 0000060 OF MESSA | 113 | +000050 | | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| •000052e SUBFILE 'CONTROL CALL-FMTS 114 •000053 05 CONTROLI-O_INDIC. C-ALL-FMTS 115 •000054 06 CONTROLI-O_INDIC. C-ALL-FMTS 116 •000055 07 IN61 PIC I INDIC 61. C-ALL-FMTS 117 •000056 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 117 •000057 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 119 •000059 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 120 •000060 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 •000061 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 •000061 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 •000061 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 •000061 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 •000061 05 MESSAGEI T RESAGEI FROM FILE ARCOIDO OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS 123 •000064 05 MESSAGEI T RESERCENCO C-ALL-FMTS 123 •000069 06 MESSAGEI T RESERCENCO C-ALL-FMTS 124 •000069 06 MESSAGEI T RESAGENE RCORO C-ALL-FMTS | | +000051* OUTPUT FORMAT:CONTROL | 1 FROM FILE ARCOLOG |) OF | LIBRARY CBL2849 | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 114 + 000053 05 CDNTROLL-0 REDÉFINÉS ARCOLOD-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 115 + 000054 06 CONTROLL-0-INDIC. C-ALL-FMTS 116 + 000055 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 61. C-ALL-FMTS 117 + 000056 07 IN62 PIC I INDIC 62. C-ALL-FMTS 118 + 000057 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 119 + 0000580 MELP KEY C-ALL-FMTS 120 + 000060 07 IN63 PIC I INDIC 63. C-ALL-FMTS 121 + 000061 07 IN64 PIC I INDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 120 + 0000620 INPUT FORMATIMESSAGEI FROM FILE ARCOIDD FLIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS 00000640 05 MESSAGEI-10 REUEFINES ARCOIDD-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 00000640 05 MESSAGEI-10 REUEFINES ARCOIDD-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 122 + 000068 05 MESSAGEI-10 REDEFINES ARCOIDD-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 123 + 0000640 05 MESSAGEI-10 REDEFINES ARCOIDD-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 124 + 0000640 05 MESSAGEI-10 REDEFINES ARCOID-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 125 + 000065 05 MESSAGEI-10 REDEFINES ARCOID-KECORD. C-ALL-FMTS 124 000060 06 | | +000052* | SUBFILE CONTROL | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 115 + 000055 07 1N61 PIC 1 NDIC 61. <-ALL-FMTS | 114 | +000053 05 CONTROL1-0 | REDEFINES ARCOLOD-H | ECORD. | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 116 •000055 07 1 No1 PIC 1 1 NOIC 61. <-ALL-FMTS | 115 | +000054 06 CONTROL1- | U-INDIC. | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 117 + 000056 07 1N62 PIC 1 INDIC 62. - < | 116 | +000055 07 IN61 | PIC 1 INDIC | 61. | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 118 + 000057 07 IN99 PIC 1 INDIC 99. < | << <td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01PUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01PUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01PUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><</td> 123 + 000066 01PUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 << <td><<<td><<td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | < | << <td><<td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | < <td><<<td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><</td> 124 + 000067 0 FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 << <td><<<td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | < | << <td><<<td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><<<td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><<<td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <<td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | << <td><</td> 123 + 000066 01FUT FORMAT:MESSAGEI FROM FILE AKCOLOD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 < <td><<td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td></td> | < | < <td><<td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td></td> | < <td><<td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td></td> | < <td><<td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td></td> | < <td><<td></td><td>117</td><td>+000056 07 IN62</td><td>PIC L INDIC</td><td>62.</td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td> | < <td></td> <td>117</td> <td>+000056 07 IN62</td> <td>PIC L INDIC</td> <td>62.</td> <td></td> <td><-ALL-FMTS</td> | | 117 | +000056 07 IN62 | PIC L INDIC | 62. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| •0000589 HELP KEY C-ALL-FMTS 119<000059 | 118 | +000057 07 IN99 | PIC 1 INDIC | 99. | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 119 000059 07 1M63 PIC 1 INDIC 63. < | | +000058≑ | HELP KEY | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 120 000060 07 [N64 PIC 1 [NDIC 64. C-ALL-FMTS 121 000061 MESSAGE ACLORD C-ALL-FMTS 0000634 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 122 0000634 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 122 0000634 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 122 0000634 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 123 000064 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 124 000065 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 123 000066 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 124 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS C-ALL-FMTS 125 MO0067 MESSAGE ACCORD C-ALL-FMTS 124 MO0068 MESSAGE IDTINES ARCOLOD-RECORD C-ALL-FMTS 125 MO0070 DO KESSAGE IDTINES ARCOLOD-RECORD C-ALL-FMTS 126 MORADOR MORK ING-STORAGE SECTION PIC 1 INDIC 71. C-ALL-FMTS 127 MAG000 01 KEL-MUMBER PIC 9(05) C-ALL-FMTS 128 MO0000 01 SS MS-FINPAT PIC 9(02). C-ALL-FMTS 129 MESSAGE IDTINE PIC 9(05) | 119 | +000059 07 IN63 | PIC 1 INDIC | 63. | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 121 •000062* IMPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FRUM FILE ARC010D OF LIBRARY CBL2849 <-ALL-FMTS | 120 | +000060 07 IN64 | PIC 1 INDIC | 64. | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| + 000062* INPUT FORMAT: MESSAGE1 FRUM FILE AKCOLOD MESSAGE RECORD + 000064* MESSAGE RECORD + 000065* + 000066* MESSAGE RECORD + 000066* + 000066* MESSAGE1-I REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. + 000066* MESSAGE1-D REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. + 000064* MESSAGE1-D REDEFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. + 00006* MESSAGE1-D-INDIC. + 000070 MESSAGE1-D-INDIC. + 000070 MESSAGE1-D-INDIC. + 000070 MESSAGE1-D-INDIC. + 000070 MESSAGE SECTION. + 000070 + 000070 + 000070 + 000070 + 00070 + 000700 + 0007000 + 000700 | 121 | +000061 | | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| •000063* MESSAGE RECORD <-ALL-FMTS 122 •000064* 05 MESSAGEL1 REDFINES ARCOLOD-RECORD. <-ALL-FMTS | | +000062* INPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE | 1 FRUM FILE ARCOLOG |) OF | LIBRARY CBL2849 | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| •000064* 05 MESSAGEL-I REUFINES ARC0100-RECORD. <-ALL-FMTS | | +000063≎ | MESSAGE RECORD | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 122 *000065 C-ALL-FMTS •000066* UTPUT FORMATIMESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOIDD OF LIBRARY CBL2849 C-ALL-FMTS •123 •000068 05 MESSAGE RECORD C-ALL-FMTS 123 •000069 06 MESSAGE1-0-INDIC. C-ALL-FMTS 124 •000070 07 NT1 PIC 1 INDIC 71. 125 •000070 07 NT1 PIC 1 INDIC 71. 126 004500 00KKING-STORAGE SECTION. C-ALL-FMTS 127 004600 01 REL-NUMBER PIC 9(05) 128 004700 VALUE ZEROS. C-ALL-FMTS 129 004800 01 MS-FORMAT PIC 7(05) 128 004900 05 MS-FORMAT PIC 4(02). 131 005000 05 MS-FORMAT PIC X(10). 132 005100 01 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 136 005500 05 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 139 005800 <td></td> <td>+000064≑ 05 MESSAGE1-I</td> <td>REDEFINES ARCOLOD-P</td> <td>ECORD.</td> <td>•</td> <td><-ALL-FMTS</td> | | +000064≑ 05 MESSAGE1-I | REDEFINES ARCOLOD-P | ECORD. | • | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| •000066* DUTPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE1 FROM FILE ARCOLOD OF LIBRARY C5L2849 <-ALL-FMTS | 122 | +000065 | | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| •000067* MESSAGE RECORD <-ALL-FMTS 123 •000068 05 MESSAGE1-U-INDIC. <-ALL-FMTS | | +000066¢ DUTPUT FORMAT:MESSAGE | 1 FROM FILE ARCOLOG |) OF | LIBRARY CBL2849 | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 123 *000068 05 MESSAGE1-0 REDEFINES ARC010D-RECORO. <-ALL-FMTS | | + 000067* | MESSAGE RECORD | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 124 +000009 06 MESSAUE1-0-INDIC. | 123 | +000068 05 MESSAGE1-0 | REDEFINES ARCOLOD-P | ECORD. | • | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 125 +000070 VALUE VALUE <td< td=""><td>124</td><td>+000069 U6 MESSAGEL-</td><td>U-INDIC.</td><td></td><td></td><td><-ALL-FMTS</td></td<> | 124 | +000069 U6 MESSAGEL- | U-INDIC. | | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 126 004500 WKKING-STUKAGE SELTION. 127 004600 01 REL-NUMBER PIC 9(05) 129 004800 NS-CONTROL. VALUE ZEROS. 130 00500 05 NS-FORMAT PIC X(02). 131 00500 05 NS-FORMAT PIC X(10). 132 005100 US SYSTEM-OATE. PIC 99. 134 005400 05 SYSTEM-OATE. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-OATE. 134 005400 05 SYSTEM-OATE. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-OATE. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-OATE. 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-OAY PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-TATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-UATE PIC XX. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC X(31) 144 006400 01 EXCEPTION-NESSAGES. " | 125 | | PIC I INDIC | . /1• | | <-ALL-FMTS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 127 044600 01 REL-NUMBER PIC 9(05) 129 004700 VALUE ZEROS. 130 004900 05 MS-FORMAT PIC X(02). 131 005000 05 MS-FORMAT PIC X(02). 132 005100 01 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 99. 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 136 005500 05 PRUGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 137 005600 05 PRUGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PRUGRAM-VAR PIC 99. 140 005800 05 PRUGRAM-VARA PIC 99. 141 06600 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC X(31) 144 006300 1 | 120 | OU4500 WURKING-STURAGE SELTIC | | | 0.05 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 128 004800 01 WS-CONTROL. 130 004800 05 WS-FORMAT PIC X(02). 131 005000 05 WS-FORMAT PIC X(10). 132 005100 UI SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 99. 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-DAY PIC 99. 135 005600 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 144 006000 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC SY6(6). 141 066000 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. PIC X(31) 144 00 | 121 | UU46UU UI REL-NUMBER | | PIL | 9(05) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 129 004400 05 WS-TND PIC X(02). 131 005000 05 WS-TND PIC X(10). 132 005100 U1 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 90. 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-VEAR PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-VEAR PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 139 005400 05 PROGRAM-DATE. PIC 99. 139 005400 05 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 139 005400 05 PROGRAM-VEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC S9(6). 141 066000 05 PROGRAM-STATUS. VALUE YALUE YALUE 142 006100 05 HSTATUS. PIC XX. 143 006200 B8 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". </td <td>128</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>VALUE</td> <td>E ZERUS•</td> <td></td> | 128 | | | VALUE | E ZERUS• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 131 005000 05 HS-FDRMAT PIC X(10). 132 005000 05 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC Y(10). 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-DATE. PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-DAY PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. 91 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-DATE. 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FRUERATAUS PIC 99. 144 006000 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 144 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 EXCEPTION-NERSAGES. PIC X(31) 145 006400 | 129 | | | PIC | ¥ (02) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 132 005100 03 RENTALATE. 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-YEAR PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. 91 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-ADATE. 91 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-ADATE. 91 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-ADAY PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 006900 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. 141 006000 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-NESSAGES. 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-NESSAGES. 144 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 144 006600 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST " 147 006600 | 130 | 005000 05 HS-E08MAT | | | × (02)• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 133 005200 05 SYSTEM-YEAR PIC 99. 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-YEAR PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-DAY PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FICE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC S9(6). 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. VALUE "YOH". VALUE "YOH". 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "YOH". VALUE "YOH". 144 006300 1 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. PIC X(31) 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 145 006600 05 MESSAGE-THRE | 132 | 005100 01 SYSTEM=DATE. | | 10 | ~(10)• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 134 005300 05 SYSTEM-MONTH PIC 99. 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-DAY PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. | 133 | 005200 05 SYSTEM-YEAR | | PIC | 99 - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 135 005400 05 SYSTEM-DAY PIC 99. 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. 99. 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC 59(6). 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. 144 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006600 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". < | 134 | 005300 05 SYSTEM-MONTH | | PIC | 99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 136 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC S9(6). 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". | 135 | 005400 05 SYSTEM-DAY | | PIC | 99. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 137 005600 05 PROGRAM-MONTH PIC 99. 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC 99. 141 00600 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DDES NOT EXIST ". * 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC< | 136 | 005500 01 PROGRAM-DATE. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 138 005700 05 PROGRAM-DAY PIC 99. 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC 59. 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS- 01 99. 141 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES- PIC X(31) 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST "- 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER "- 149 006800 US MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 149 006800 US MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER "- 150 006900 <td>137</td> <td>005600 05 PROGRAM-MONTH</td> <td></td> <td>PIC</td> <td>99.</td> <td></td> | 137 | 005600 05 PROGRAM-MONTH | | PIC | 99. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 139 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR PIC 99. 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC S9(6). 141 006000 EXCEPTION-STATUS. PIC X8. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. VALUE "9M". 144 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST "- 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-THRO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER "- L X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER "- L 149 006800 US MESSAGE-THRE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". L 151 00710 | 138 | 005700 05 PROGRAM-DAY | | PIC | 99. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 140 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINES PROGRAM-DATE PIC \$9(6). 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. PIC \$\$X\$. 142 006100 05 \$\$TATUS-CODE-ONE PIC \$\$X\$. 143 006200 05 \$\$TATUS-CODE-ONE PIC \$\$X\$. 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. PIC \$\$X\$. 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC \$\$X\$(31) 146 006500 \$\$MESSAGE-TWD PIC \$\$X\$(31) 146 006600 \$\$MESSAGE-THRE PIC \$\$X\$(31) 148 006700 \$\$VALUE "ND INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". \$\$X\$(31) 149 006800 \$\$MESSAGE-THREE PIC \$\$X\$(31) 149 006800 \$\$MESSAGE-THREE PIC \$\$X\$(31) 150 006900 \$\$MESSAGE-THREE PIC \$\$X\$(31) 150 006900 \$\$MULUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". \$\$15 \$\$0700 01 \$\$PUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED \$\$\$PIC \$\$\$9(6)\$\$\$99. <td>139</td> <td>005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR</td> <td></td> <td>PIC</td> <td>99.</td> <td></td> | 139 | 005800 05 PROGRAM-YEAR | | PIC | 99. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 141 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. PIC X(31) 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. PIC X(31) 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". PIC X(31) 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC \$9(6)V99. | 140 | 005900 01 FILE-DATE REDEFINE | S PROGRAM-DATE | PIC | 59(6). | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 142 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ONE PIC XX. 143 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. VALUE "0M". 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 151 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC \$9(6)V99. | 141 | 006000 01 EXCEPTION-STATUS. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 143 0.06200 88 SUBFILE-IS-FULL VALUE "9M". 144 0.06300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. 145 0.06400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X (31) 146 0.06500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 0.06600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X (31) 148 0.06700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". . 149 0.06800 05 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X (31) 150 0.06900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". . 151 0.07000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. . 152 0.07100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC \$9(6) V99. | 142 | 006100 05 STATUS-CODE-ON | £ | PIC | XX. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 144 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES. 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-ONE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 05 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC S9(6)V99. | 143 | 006200 88 SUBFILE-IS | -FULL | VALUE | - "9M". | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 145 006400 05 MESSAGE-DNE PIC X(31) 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWD PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. PIC S9(6)V99. | 144 | 006300 01 EXCEPTION-MESSAGES | • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 146 006500 VALUE "CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST ". 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 US MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC \$9(6)V99. | 145 | 006400 OS MESSAGE-DNE | | PIC | X(31) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 147 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWO PIC X(31) 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED | 146 | 006500 VALUE "CUSTOME | R DOES NOT EXIST | ۳. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 148 006700 VALUE "NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER ". 149 006800 U5 MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED PIC S9(6)V99. | 147 | 006600 05 MESSAGE-TWD | | PIC | X(31) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 149 006800 US MESSAGE-THREE PIC X(31) 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMQUNT-OWED PIC S9(6)V99. | 148 | 006700 VALUE "ND INVO | ICES EXIST FOR CUSTON | 1ER ". | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 150 006900 VALUE "CUSTOMER HAS AN OVER PAYMENT UF". 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMQUNT-OWED PIC S9(6)V99. | 149 | 006800 US MESSAGE-THREE | | PIC | X(31) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 151 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES. 152 007100 05 AMQUNT-OWED PIC 59(6)V99. | 150 | 006900 VALUE "CUSTOME | R HAS AN OVER PAYMENT | ſUF". | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 152 007100 05 AMQUNT-OWED PIC \$9(6)V99. | 151 | 007000 01 PRUGRAM-VARIABLES | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 152 | 007100 05 AMOUNT-OWED | | PIC | 59(6)V99. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 7 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

ł

C

| | | | COBOL SOURCE LISTIN | IG ARCO10 | 1 |
|------|-------------|-----|---|----------------------|---|
| STAT | SEQNBR -A 1 | 8 | ••• 2 ••• ••• 3 ••• •• 4 ••• •• 5 | | |
| | | | | • | |
| 153 | 007200 | 05 | AMOUNT-PAID | PIC 59(6)V99. | |
| 154 | 007300 | 05 | INVOICE-BALANCE | PIC 59(6)V99. | |
| 155 | 007400 01 | ERR | PGM-PARAMETERS. | | |
| 156 | 007500 | 05 | DISPLAY-PARAMETER | PIC X(008) | |
| 157 | 007600 | ~ ~ | | VALUE "ARCOLOD ". | |
| 158 | 007700 | 05 | DUMMY-ONE | PIC X (006) | |
| 159 | 007800 | 05 | | VALUE SPALES. | |
| 161 | 007900 | 0, | DONNY-ING | | |
| 162 | 008100 | 05 | STATUS-CODE-TWO. | VALUE SFACES. | |
| 163 | 008200 | ••• | 10 PRIMARY | PIC X. | |
| 164 | 008300 | | 10 SECONDARY | PIC X. | |
| 165 | 008400 | | 10 FILLER | PIC X(005) | |
| 166 | 008500 | | | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 167 | 008600 | 05 | DUMMY-THREE | PIC X(010) | |
| 168 | 008700 | | | VALUE SPACES. | |
| 169 | 008800 01 | SWI | TCH-AREA. | | |
| 170 | 008900 | 05 | SWOL | PIC 1. | |
| 171 | 009000 | | BB WRITE-DISPLAY | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 172 | 009100 | 05 | 88 KEAU-DISPLAY | VALUE BYU'. | 1 |
| 174 | 009200 | 05 | AR SUBFILEL-FORMAT | PIC Le VALUE RATA | |
| 175 | 009400 | | | VALUE BADA | |
| 176 | 009500 | 05 | SW03 | | |
| 177 | 009600 | | 88 CONTROLL-FORMAT | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 178 | 009700 | | 88 NOT-CONTROL1-FORMAT | VALUE B'D'. | |
| 179 | 009800 | 05 | SW04 | PIC 1. | |
| 180 | 009900 | | 88 NO-MORE-TRANSACTIONS-EXIST | VALUE B"1". | |
| 181 | 010000 | | 88 TRANSACTIONS-EXIST | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 182 | 010100 | 05 | SW05 | PIC 1. | |
| 183 | 010200 | | 88 CUSTOMER-NUT-FOUND | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 184 | 010300 | 05 | BB CUSIUMER-EXIST | VALUE B'U'. | |
| 186 | 010400 | 05 | SNUD 88 NO-MORE-INVOICES-EXIST | | |
| 187 | 010600 | | 88 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-EXIST | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 188 | 010700 | 05 | SW07 | | |
| 189 | 010800 | | 88 NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 190 | 010900 | | 88 PAYMENT-EXIST | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 191 | 011000 | 05 | SWOB | PIC 1. | |
| 192 | 011100 | | 88 INPUT-ERRORS-EXIST | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 193 | 011200 | | 88 NO-INPUT-ERRORS-EXIST | VALUE B'0'. | |
| 194 | 011300 | 05 | SW09 | | |
| 195 | 011400 | | BB UVER-PAYMENT NOT DISPLAYED-UNCE | VALUE B'I'. | |
| 190 | 011500 | IND | DO UVER-PATMENT-NUT-DISPLATED | VALUE D'U'. | |
| 198 | 011700 | 05 | IN99 | PIC I INDIC 99. | 1 |
| 199 | 011800 | • • | 88 HELP-IS-NEEDED | VALUE D'1'. | |
| 200 | 011900 | | 88 HELP-IS-NOT-NEEDED | VALUE B'O'. | |
| 201 | 012000 | 05 | 1 N 9 8 | PIC 1 INDIC 98. | |
| 202 | 012100 | | 88 END-OF-PAYMENT-UPDATE | VALUE B'1'. | |
| 203 | 012200 | 05 | IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC 97. | |
| 204 | 012300 | | 88 IGNORE-INPUT | VALUE B'1'. | 1 |
| 205 | 012400 | 05 | INDI AD DICDLAW ACCEDI DAWMENT | PIC I INDIC 51. | 1 |
| 206 | 012500 | | 00 UISPLAT-ALCEPI-PATMENI 88 DO-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-DAYMENT | VALUE 0.4.00 | 1 |
| 201 | 012000 | | 00 DU-HUI-DISPLAT-ALLEPISPATMENT | TALVE D U . | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 8 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| | | | | | COBOL SOURCE LISTI | NG | ARCO10 | | |
|---|------|----------|------------|-------------------|----------------------|----------------|---------------------|----------|----------|
| C | STMT | SEQNBR - | -A 1 8 | ••• 2 ••• ••• | 3 4 | 5 6 | • ••• 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| | 208 | 012700 | 05 | IN52 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 52. | | |
| | 209 | 012800 | | 88 REVERSE-FI | ELD-IMAGE | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 210 | 012900 | | 88 JO-NOT-REV | ERSE-FIELD-IMAGE | VALUE 3'0'. | | | |
| | 211 | 013000 | 05 | IN53 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 53. | | |
| | 212 | 013100 | | 88 DO-NOT-DIS | PLAY-FIELD | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 213 | 013200 | | 88 DISPLAY-FI | ELD | VALUE B'0'. | | | |
| | 214 | 013300 | 05 | IN 54 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 54. | | |
| | 215 | 013400 | | 88 PROTECT-IN | PUT-FIELD | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 216 | 013500 | | 68 JO-NOT-PRO | ITECT-INPUT-FIELD | VALUE 8'0'. | | | |
| | 217 | 013600 | Ú5 | IN 55 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 55. | | |
| | 218 | 013700 | | BB MAKE-FIELD | -BLINK | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 219 | 013800 | | 88 DO-NOT-MAK | E-FIELD-BLINK | VALUE B'0'. | | | |
| | 220 | 013900 | 05 | 1N56 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 56. | | |
| | 221 | 014000 | | 88 DISPLAY-OV | ER-PAYMENT | VALUE 5'1'. | | | |
| | 222 | 014100 | | SIG-TON-DG BB | PLAY-OVER-PAYMENT | VALUE B'0'. | | | |
| | 223 | 014200 | 05 | 1N61 | | PIC 1 INDIC | 61. | | |
| | 224 | 014300 | | 88 CLEAR-SUBF | | VALUE E'1'. | | | |
| | 225 | 014400 | 05 | 88 DU-NUT-CLE | AK-SUBFILE | VALUE B'0'. | | | |
| | 226 | 014500 | 05 | 1862 | 0.564 | PIC 1 INDIC | 62. | | |
| | 221 | 014800 | | 88 DISPLAY-SC | | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 228 | 014700 | 05 | | PLAT-SUREEN | VALUE B'0'. | | | |
| | 229 | 014800 | 05 | | CERT-HEADTHO | PIL I INDIC | • • • | | |
| | 230 | 014000 | | AR DO-NOT ST | PLAY_ACCENT HEADING | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 231 | 015100 | 05 | 1064 UU-NUI-UIS | FLAT-ALLEPI-HEADING | VALUE 8'0'. | | | |
| | 232 | 015200 | 05 | 1104 AT COL AV-EY | CERTION | | 04• | | |
| | 233 | 015300 | | 88 DO-NOT-DIS | DI AV-EVCEDT TOM | VALUE B'1'. | | | |
| | 234 | 015400 | 05 | 1071 | CLAT-CALEPIIUN | PTC 1 THREE | 71 | | |
| | 237 | 015500 | 05 | | CEPT-MESSACE | | 11. | | |
| | 230 | 015400 | | AB DISPLAT-AU | | VALUE D'I'. | | | |
| | 230 | 015700 | PROCEDU | | T CAT-ACCEPT-MESSAGE | TALUE D'U'. | | | |
| | 2.30 | 015200 | DECLARA | TIVES. | | | | | |
| | | 015900 | TRANSAC | TION-FRAMA SECT | LON- | | | | |
| | | 016000 | IISE | AFTER STANDAPD | ERROR PROCEDURE | | | | |
| | | 016100 | 030 | PAYMENT-UPDATE | DISPLAY-FTIE | | | | |
| | | 016200 | WORK-ST | ATIUN-ERROR-HAN | DLER | | | | |
| 1 | 239 | 016300 | I SIGN ST. | SUBFILE-IS-FIL | L THEN NEXT SENTENCE | | | | |
| | | 016400 | | ELSE | - THEN BEAT SENTENCE | | | | |
| | 240 | 016500 | | | R IN PAYMENT-UPDATE | STATUS-CONE-ON | ۹E - | | |
| | 2.10 | 016600 | END DECI | LARATIVES- | | 3 103-CODE-OF | • • | | |
| | | 016700 | CUSTOME | R-PAYMENT-HPDAT | E SECTION. | | | | |
| | | 016800 | MAINLIN | E-ROUTINE - | | | | | |
| | 241 | 016900 | PFRI | FORM SET-UP-RINU | TINE. | | | | |
| | 242 | 017000 | PFRI | FORM PROCESS-TR | ANSACTION-FUF | | | | |
| | | 017100 | | UNTIL END-OF-P | AYMENT-UPDATE. | | | | |
| | 243 | 017200 | PERI | FORM CLEAN-IP-R | OUTINE. | | | | |
| | | 017300 | SET-UP- | RUUTINE | | | | | |
| | 244 | 017400 | OPE | N I-O CUSTON | ER-INVOICE-FILF | | | | |
| | | 017500 | 0. 5 | CUSTOM | ER-MASTER-FILF | | | | |
| | | 017600 | | PAYMEN | T-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FT | E. | | | |
| | 245 | 017700 | MOVE | E 8'0' TO INDIC | ATOR-AREA | | | | |
| | | 017800 | | SWITC | H-AREA. | | | | |
| | 246 | 017900 | ACC | EPT SYSTEM-DATE | FROM DATE. | | | | |
| | 247 | 018000 | MOVE | E SYSTEM-YEAR T | 0 PROGRAM-YFAR- | | | | |
| | 248 | 018100 | MOV | E SYSTEM-MONTH | TO PROGRAM-MONTH- | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 9 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING ARCOLO |
|------|----------|--|
| STMT | SEQNBR - | A 1 B 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DA |
| | | |
| 249 | 018200 | NOVE SYSTEM-DAY TO PROGRAM-DAY. |
| 250 | 018300 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, CONTROLI-FORMAT, |
| | 019400 | DO-NDT-DISPLAY-OVER-PAYMENT. |
| | 018500 | |
| | 018600 | |
| | 018700 | UU-NUI-MARE-FIELD-BLINN, DO-NOT-DISOU AV-ACCEDT-DAYMENT- |
| | 018800 | |
| 251 | 019000 | MOVE CORE INDICATOR-AREA TO CONTROLI-O-INDIC. |
| 252 | 019100 | |
| | 019200 | FORMAT IS "CONTROLL". |
| 253 | 019300 | SET DO-NOT-CLEAR-SUBFILE TO TRUE. |
| 254 | 019400 | PERFORM INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD 17 TIMES. |
| 255 | 019500 | SET DISPLAY-SCREEN TO TRUE. |
| 256 | 019600 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO CONTROLI-O-INDIC. |
| 257 | 019700 | WRITE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD |
| | 019800 | FORMAT IS 'CONTROLL'. |
| 258 | 019900 | READ PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE RECORD |
| 200 | 020000 | FURMAT IS "CUNTRULL". |
| 259 | 020100 | HOVE CURE CUNERDLI-I-INDIC TO INDICATOR-AREA. |
| 340 | 020200 | FRUCESSTIKANSACITUN-FILE. |
| 260 | 020300 | IF TCLPFIS-NUI-NEEDEU ITCN |
| 262 | 020500 | SET WEITE-DISDIAY. CONTROLI-FORMAT |
| 202 | 020600 | |
| | 020700 | |
| | 020800 | DD-NOT-PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD |
| | 020900 | DU-NOT-REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE |
| | 021000 | DU-NOT-UISPLAY-ACCEPT-PAYMENT |
| | 021100 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-HEADING |
| | 021200 | DD-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-MESSAGE |
| | 021300 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-EXCEPTION |
| 343 | 021400 | DU-NOI-MAKE-FIELD-BLINK IU IKUE |
| 203 | 021500 | HUVE LUKK INDICATUK-AKEA TO CUMINULI-D-INDIC LUTE DAVMENT-INDATE-DISDIAY_DECORD |
| 204 | 021700 | |
| 265 | 021800 | SET DO-NOT-CLEAR-SUBFILE TO TRUE |
| 266 | 021 900 | MOVE O TO REL-NUMBER |
| 267 | 022000 | PERFORM INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD 17 TIMES |
| | 022100 | ELSE |
| 268 | 022200 | SET TRANSACTIONS-EXIST |
| | 022300 | DU-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-HEADING |
| | 022400 | DD-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-MESSAGE |
| | 022500 | |
| 269 | 022600 | PERFURM REAU-MUUIFIEU-SUBFILE-RELUKU DEGEORM TVANSACTION-VALIDATION |
| 210 | 022100 | FERFURM TRANSACTION VALUATION |
| 271 | 022900 | SET NO-INDUT-ERRORS-EXIST TO TRUE |
| 212 | 023000 | PERFORM TEST-FOR-RECORD-INPUT-ERRORS |
| | 023100 | VARVING REL-NUMBER |
| | 023200 | FROM L |
| | 023300 | 9Y 1 |
| | 023400 | UNTIL REL-NUMBER IS GREATER THAN 17 |
| | 023500 | DR INPUT-ERRORS-EXIST |
| 273 | 023600 | IF NO-INPUT-ERRORS-EXIST THEN |

Figure 7-13 (Part 10 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | ARCO10 | | | |
|-------|----------|---|-----------|--------------|----------|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR - | -A 1 8 2 3 4 5 6 . | 7 | • IDENTFON S | COPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| | | | | | | |
| 274 | 023700 | IF OVER-PAYMENT-DISPLAYED-ONCE THEN | | | | |
| 275 | 023800 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, CONTROLI-FORMAT | | | | |
| | 023900 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-OVER-PAYMENT | | | | |
| | 024000 | DO-NOT-PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD | | | | |
| | 024100 | DU-NOT-REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE | | | | |
| | 024200 | DU-NOT-MAKE-FIELD-BLINK | | | | |
| | 024300 | DÚ-NOT-UISPLAY-ACCEPT-PAYMENT | | | | |
| | 024400 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-HEADING | | | | |
| | 024500 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-MESSAGE | | | | |
| | 024600 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-EXCEPTION | | | | |
| | 024700 | CLEAR-SUBFILE, DISPLAY-FIELD TO | TRUE | | | |
| 276 | 024800 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO CONTROLI | 1-0-INDIC | | | |
| 277 | 024900 | WRITE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD | | | | |
| | 025000 | FORMAT 15 "CONTROLL" | | | | |
| 278 | 025100 | SET DO-NOT-CLEAR-SUBFILE TO TRUE | | | | |
| 279 | 025200 | MOVE O TO REL-NUMBER | | | | |
| 280 | 025300 | PÉRFORM INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD 17 | 7 TIMES | | | |
| | 025400 | ELSE | | | | |
| 281 | 025500 | SET OVER-PAYMENT-DISPLAYED-ONCE TO 1 | TRUE | | | |
| | 025600 | ELSE | | | | |
| | 025700 | NEXT SENTENCE | | | | |
| | 025800 | ELSE | | | | |
| | 025900 | NEXT SENTENCE. | | | | |
| 282 | 026000 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, DISPLAY-SCREEN TO TRUE. | | | | |
| 283 | 026100 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO MESSAGE1-D-INDIC. | | | | |
| 284 | 026200 | WRITE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD | | | | |
| | 026300 | FURMAT IS "MESSAGEL". | | | | |
| 285 | 026400 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, CONTROL1-FORMAT TO TRUE. | | | | |
| 286 | 026500 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO CONTROLL-O-INDIC. | | | | |
| 287 | 026600 | WRITE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD | | | | |
| | 026700 | FURMAL IS "CUNIKULI". | | | | |
| 288 | 026800 | READ PATMENT-OPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE RECORD | | | | |
| | 026900 | FURMAL 15 "CUNTRULL". | | | | |
| 289 | 027000 | MOVE CORR CONTROLL-I-INDIC TO INDICATOR-AREA. | | | | |
| | 027100 | READ-MUDIFIED-SUBFILE-RECURD. | | | | |
| 290 | 027200 | READ SUBFILE PATMENT-UPUALE-DISPLAY-FILE | | | | |
| | 027300 | NEXT MODIFIED RECORD FURMAL IS 'SUBFILET' | | | | |
| 291 | 027400 | AT END SET NU-MURE-IRANSACTIONS-EXIST TO TRUE. | | | | |
| | 027500 | IEST-FUR-RELUKU-INPUT-ERKURS. | | | | |
| 242 | 027600 | READ SUBFILE PATMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE RECORD | | | | |
| 202 | 027700 | FURMAL IS "SUBFILEL". | | | | |
| 293 | 027800 | IF SISCUE OF SUBFILEI-1 IS EQUAL TO "1" THEN | | | | |
| 294 | 021900 | SEL THRAT-EWKOKS-EYIZE LA IKAF | | | | |
| | 028000 | ELDE NEWT CENTENCE | | | | |
| | 028100 | NEAL SENIENCE. | | | | |
| 206 | 025200 | IKATSAUTIUNTYALIUNI | | | | |
| 293 | 028500 | TO CUST OF SUBFILETEL OF PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-F | KECUKD | | | |
| 204 | 020400 | IU LUSI UF LUSIUMER-MASIER-RELUKD. | | | | |
| 296 | 025500 | SET CUSTOMER-EAIST TU TRUE. | | | | |
| 271 | 020000 | KEAU CUSIUMEKEMASIEKEELLE KEV IS CUSI DE CUSIONED MACTER DESCORD | | | | |
| | 020700 | NET IS LUST OF LUSIOMER-MASTER-RECORD | | | | |
| 298 | 028800 | INVALID KET SEI LUSIUMEK-NUI-FUUND IU TRUE. | | | | |
| 299 | 020700 | IF CUSTUMEK-EXIST THEN MOVE CUST OF CUSMET TO CUST OF DROVOD | | | | |
| 300 | 02 9000 | MOVE LUST OF LUSHST TO LUST OF URDHUR | | | | |
| 1 201 | 024100 | MUAE TEKNEZ IN TUANNW | | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 11 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

6

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING ARCOLO | |
|------|-----------|--|--------------|
| STMT | SEQNOR -A | A 1 B 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/D | A") |
| 302 | 029200 | SET CUSTOMED_TANATCE_EXIST TO TRUE | \checkmark |
| 303 | 029200 | DERECON START-ON-CUSTOMED_INVOICE-ETLE | |
| 304 | 029400 | | |
| 305 | 029500 | | |
| 306 | 029600 | | |
| 307 | 029700 | | |
| 308 | 02 98 00 | MOVE AMPAID DE SUBELLEI-I TO AMOUNT-PAID | |
| 309 | 029900 | SET PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE | |
| 310 | 030000 | | |
| | 030100 | UNTIL NO-MORE-INVOICES-EXIST | |
| | 030200 | UR NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST | l l |
| 311 | 030300 | IF ARBAL OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD IS NEGATIVE | |
| 312 | 030400 | SET MAKE-FIELD-BLINK, DISPLAY-FIELD. | |
| | 030500 | DO-NOT-REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE | |
| | 030600 | OVER-PAYMENT-NOT-DI SPLAYED | |
| | 030700 | DISPLAY-DVER-PAYMENT | |
| | 030800 | DISPLAY-EXCEPTION | |
| | 030900 | DO-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-PAYMENT | |
| | 031000 | PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD TO TRUE | |
| 313 | 031100 | MOVE ARBAL TO OVRPMT OF SUBFILE1-D | |
| 314 | 031200 | MOVE MESSAGE-THREE TO ECPMSG OF SUBFILE1-0 | |
| 315 | 0 31 300 | MOVE '0' TO STSCDE OF SUBFILE1-0 | |
| 316 | 031400 | PERFORM REWRITE-DISPLAY-SUBFILE-RECORD | |
| | 031500 | ELSE | |
| 317 | 031600 | SET DO-NOT-DISPLAY-FIELD | |
| | 031700 | DD-NOT-DI SPLAY-OVER-PAYMENT | |
| | 031800 | DO-NOT-REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE | |
| | 031900 | JO-NOT-MAK E-FIELD-BL INK | |
| | 032000 | DD-NOT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT-PAYMENT | |
| | 032100 | PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD TO TRUE | |
| 318 | 032200 | MOVE SPACES TO ECPMSG OF SUBFILE1-O | |
| 319 | 032300 | MOVE ZERGES TO OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O | |
| 320 | 032400 | NOVE 'O' TO STSCOE OF SUBFILE1-O | |
| 321 | 032500 | PERFORM REWRITE-DISPLAY-SUBFILE-RECORD | |
| | 032600 | ELSE | |
| 322 | 032700 | PERFÜRM NO-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-ROUTINE | |
| | 032800 | EL SE | |
| 323 | 032900 | PERFORM NO-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-ROUTINE | 1 |
| | 033000 | | |
| 324 | 0012200 | SET REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE | |
| | 033200 | DU-NUI-PRUIECI-INPUI-FIELD, DISPLAY-FIELD | |
| | 006660 | | |
| | 033400 | DU-NUI-MART-FIELD-BLINK DISDIAN EVESTION | |
| | 033500 | | |
| | 033600 | | |
| 176 | 033100 | BUTTULTERUTELITINGUTTELUTULTULE | |
| 323 | 033800 | MONE MESSAVES IN PROMISED OF SIDELLET-D Mone Severs in Aakami al Sablifet-D | |
| 320 | 036000 | HOVE HESSAGETUNE TO ECHASS OF SUDFILETU Nove tit to ststde de subetieten | |
| 124 | 034100 | NUME 'I' IN SISCHE UF SUBFILETFU | |
| 320 | 034200 | FERTURE REMAINTED FLATTSUDFILETREGURU. | |
| 529 | 034200 | FIRTURE READENDIFIED SUBFILE RECORD. | I |
| 330 | 004460 | START-ON-COSTONERTINGUETTLE. START-ON-COSTONERTINOTELETLE | 1 |
| 0.0 | 034500 | KEY IS SREATER THAN COMPLKEY | |
| 331 | 034600 | INVALIDA KEY SET NO-HORE-INVOLCES-EXISTIG IRUE. | 1 |
| ,,,, | 334000 | TARETO NEL JET NO-HORE-INVOLES-EXIST TO INCO | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 12 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| | | CODOL SOURCE L | ISTING | ARCOLO | | | |
|------|-----------|---|----------------|-------------|------|----------|----------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A | 1 8 | 5 | 6 7 .IDENTE | ON S | COPYNAME | CHG/DATE |
| | | | | | | | |
| | 034700 KI | AD-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. | | | | | |
| 332 | 034800 | READ CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE NEXT RE | CORD | | | | |
| 333 | 034900 | AT END SET NO-MORE-INVUICES-EX | IST TO TRUE. | | | | |
| 334 | 035000 | IF CUST OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD | | | | | |
| | 035100 | IS NOT EQUAL TO CUST OF CUSTOM | 1ER-INVUICE-RE | CURD THEN | | | |
| 335 | 035200 | SET NO-MORE-INVOICES-EXIST TO | TRUE | | | | |
| | 035300 | ELSE | | | | | |
| | 035400 | NEXT SENTENCE. | | | | | |
| | 035500 C | ISTOMER-MASTER-FILE-UPDATE. | | 0.00 | | | |
| 336 | 035600 | MOVE FILE-DATE TO ESTUAL OF CUSTOM | HER-MASIER-REC | .UKU • | | | |
| 337 | 035700 | MUVE AMPAID OF SUDFILEI-I TO ISTANT OF CUSTOMED-MASTED-O | | | | | |
| 1.14 | 035800 | SUBTRACT AMPALD OF CUSTOMER-MASTER-M | | | | | |
| ''' | 036000 | FROM ARBAL OF CUSTOMER-MASTER- | -RECORD. | | | | |
| 339 | 036100 | REWRITE CUSTOMER-MASTER-RECORD. | | | | | |
| 1 | 036200 R | WRITE-DISPLAY-SUBFILL-RECORD. | | | | | |
| 340 | 036300 | MOVE AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-I TO AMPAI | D OF SUBFILE | -0. | | | |
| 341 | 036400 | MOVE CUST OF SUBFILE1-I TO CUST OF | SUBFILE1-0. | | | | |
| 342 | 036500 | SET WRITE-DISPLAY, SUBFILE1-FORMAT | TTO TRUE. | | | | |
| 343 | 036600 | MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFIL | E1-0-INDIC. | | | | |
| 344 | 036700 | REWRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DIS | SPLAY-RECURD | | | | |
| | 036800 | FORMAT IS 'SUBFILE1'. | | | | | |
| | 036900 N | -CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RGUTINE. | | | | | |
| 345 | 037000 | IF STSCDE UF SUBFILEI-I IS EQUAL | TO 'I' THEN | T11CA) | | | |
| 340 | 037100 | IF ALPENT OF SUBFILET-1 15 EU | JUAL TU "ENU " | THEN | | | |
| 341 | 037200 | | WMENT | | | | |
| | 037400 | | THENT | | | | |
| | 037500 | | | | | | |
| | 037600 | DO-NUT-DISPLAY-ACCEPT- | -PAYMENT | | | | |
| | 037700 | PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD TO | TRUE | | | | |
| 348 | 037800 | NOVE SPACES TO ECPMSG OF | SUBFILE1-0 | | | | |
| 349 | 037900 | MOVE ZERGES TO OVRPMT OF | SUBFILE1-0 | | | | |
| 350 | 038000 | MOVE "O" TO STSCOL OF SUB | BFILE1-0 | | | | |
| 351 | 038100 | PERFORM REWRITE-DISPLAY-SU | JBFILE-RECORD | | | | |
| | 038200 | ELSE | | | | | |
| 352 | 038300 | PERFORM LUSTOMER-MASTER-FI | LE-UPDATE | | | | |
| 353 | 038400 | SET MAKE-FIELD-BLINK, DISP | PLAY-FIELD. | | | | |
| | 038500 | | MAGE | | | | |
| | 038600 | | AYEU | | | | |
| | 038800 | DISPLAT-DVEN-PATMENI DISPLAY-EXCEPTION | | | | | |
| | 038900 | | - PAYMENT | | | | |
| | 039000 | PROTECT-INPUT-FIFLO TO | TRUE | | | | |
| 354 | 039100 | MOVE ARBAL TO OVRPMT OF SL | JBFILE1-0 | | | | |
| 355 | 039200 | MOVE MESSAGE-THREE TO ECPM | ASG OF SUBFILE | 1-0 | | | |
| 356 | 039300 | MOVE "O" TU STSCDE UF SUBF | FILE1-0 | | | | |
| 357 | 039400 | PERFORM REWRITE-DISPLAY-SU | JBFILE-RECORD | | | | |
| 1 | 039500 | ELSE | | | | | |
| 358 | 039600 | SET REVERSE-FIELD-IMAGE, DISPL | LAY-FIELD | | | | |
| | 039700 | DD-NOT-PROTECT-INPUT-FIELD |) | | | | |
| | 039800 | | | | | | |
| | 040000 | DISPLAT-EXCEPTION DISPLAY-ACCEPTION | | | | | |
| 1 | 040000 | DISPLAT-AUCEPI-PATMENI STODLAY-ACCEPT-DEADING | | | | | |
| | 040100 | UISPLAT-AUCEPI-HEAUING | | | | | - |

Figure 7-13 (Part 13 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

C

(

| STAT SEQNER - A 1 B 2 | STMT | SEQNER - | A 1 8 2 3 4 5 6 6 7 .IDENTFON S CUPYNAME CHG/DA |
|--|------|----------|--|
| 040200 DISPLAY-ACCEPT-HESSAGE 040300 DO-NDI-MAKE-FIELO-RLINK TO TRUE 050 040500 050 040500 050 040500 050 040500 051 040600 060800 PAYENTI-TO SISCE DE SUBFILEI-O 060800 PAYENTI-UPDATE- 060800 PAYENTI-UPDATE- 061000 SUBTRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 061100 GTVING AMOUNT-PAED 061100 GTVING AMOUNT-PAED 061100 GTVING AMOUNT-PAED 061300 FROM ROBANT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 061400 GTVING INVICE-BALANCE - 061500 IF 061600 MOVE Z CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 061700 MOVE CRUANT-DAED OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 061800 TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 061900 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-ONED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 06200 ELSE 110 OACDON FROM ROMOUNT-ONED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 06200 ELSE 110 ADU AMUUNT-PAID TO CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD | | | |
| 040300 D0-N0T-MAKE-FIELO-BLINK TO TRUE 359 040400 MOVE FERSAGE-TNO TO FERDELELO-D 360 040500 MOVE MESSAGE-TNO TO FERDES OF SUBFILEI-D 361 040600 MOVE TI DI SISCOE OF SUBFILEI-D 362 040700 PERFORM REAKIT-DISPLAY-SUBFILE-RECORD 040800 PAYENT-UPDAIE. 363 040900 SUBTRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-PAED 04100 MOVE ZUDOMSIS 04100 GUNDAT-CARDE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 04100 MOVE ZUDOMSIS 04100 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-ONED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 04200 EUSE 368 041900 04200 EUSE 3710 OAD AMUUNT-PAID TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD <td< td=""><td></td><td>040200</td><td></td></td<> | | 040200 | |
| 359 0.00400 MOVE ZEBÜCS ITO OVÄPHT OF SUBFLEL-0 360 0.00500 MOVE HESDECT-MO TO LECPASE OF SUBFLEL-0 361 0.00500 MOVE HESDECT-MO TO LECPASE OF SUBFLEL-0 362 0.00700 PERFORM REARLIT-0ISPLAY-SUBFLE-RECORD. 0.00800 PAYMENT-UPDATE. 363 0.00900 SUBTRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 0.41000 FROM ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 FROM ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 FROM ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 FROM ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 FROM ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDANT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDANT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDANT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANDANT-ORD 0.41000 SUBTRACT ANDUNT-ORD 0.41000 GIVINC ANALON FOLCE-RECORD 3.66 0.41000 0.4200 SUBTACT ANDUNT-PALD TO ANPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 3.60 0.4200 ELST 3.61 0.4200 AND ANT-PALD T | | 040300 | |
| 560 0x0500 MOVE MESSACT-TNO TO ECMASC OF SUBFILEI-0 361 0x0600 PERFORM REWRITLOISPLAY-SUBFILEI-0 362 0x0700 SUBFRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 0x1000 SUBFRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 0x1000 SUBFRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 0x1000 SUBFRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 0x100 0x100 SUBFRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 365 0x100 0x100 GVING INVUICE-BALANCE ILESS 366 0x100 0x100 GVING INVUICE-BALANCE ILESS 366 0x100 367 0x100 368 0x100 368 0x100 369 0x100 360 ONUE CROWARD OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 3610 MOVE ORDANT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 36200 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-DAND OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 36200 ELSE 36300 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-DAND OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 3710 0x2000 ELSE 37200 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 3730 0x2000 NEXT SEMENCE </td <td>359</td> <td>040400</td> <td></td> | 359 | 040400 | |
| 361 040600 MOVE 'I' TO SISCDE DE SUUEILETO INTER 362 040700 PERFORM REMRIT-DISPLAT-SUBFILETRECORD. 040800 PAYMENT-UPDAIE. 363 040900 SUBTRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 04100 GEVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 0460 GIVING INVICE-BALANCE. 04100 GIVING INVICE-BALANCE. 04100 GIVING INVICE-BALANCE. 04100 GIVING INVICE-BALANCE. 041700 MOVE 200 DENSIS CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 061800 IV OBRANT DF CUSTOMEN-INVOICE-RECORD. 061800 FO MPAID UF CUSTOMEN-INVOICE-RECORD. 0700 BURACT AMDUNT-DAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMEN-INVOICE-RECORD. 080 04200 ELSE 190 OACOO SUBTRACT AMDUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 100 ACZOO SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST INTO 100 ACZOO ELSE 311 042300 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042400 ILSE SUBFILEI-O. | 360 | 040500 | MOVE HESSAGE-TWO TO FERMISE DE SUBELLEL-O |
| 362 000700 PERPORM REARITL-DISPLAY-SUBFILE-RECORD. 040800 PAYMENT-UPDATE. 363 040900 SUBTRATT AMAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 041000 FROM AROUNT-OWED. 364 041200 04100 GIVING ANDUNT-OWED. 364 041200 04100 GIVING INVOICE-BALANCE. 365 041500 366 041600 041400 GIVING INVOICE-BALANCE. 366 041600 367 041700 368 041600 368 041800 368 041800 369 042000 641800 SUBTRATT AMOUNT-DADE FROM AMOUTCE-RECORD 364200 SUBTRATT AMOUNT-DADE FROM AMOUTCE-RECORD 364 041900 364 042000 641800 SUBTRATT AMOUNT-PAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 371 04200 942000 ESE 371 042000 942000 SUBTRATT AMOUNT-PAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 372 042400 942400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMEN | 361 | 040500 | |
| 040800 PAYHENT-UPDATE. 040800 SUBTRATT AMAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 041100 FRUM ORDANT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 041100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 041100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 04100 GIVING TAUNT-FAID 04100 GIVING TO UPNICE-BALANCE. 04100 GIVING TO UPNICE-BALANCE. 04000 GIVING TO UPNICE-BALANCE. 04000 GIVING TO UPNICE-BALANCE. 04100 GIVING TO UPNICE-BALANCE. 04100 MOVE DRUAT DF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 04100 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-PAID TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 04200 ELSI 369 04200 310 4200 311 04200 312 04200 313 04200 314 04200 315 04300 04200 FENG 312 04200 313 04200 04200 FUST <td>362</td> <td>040300</td> <td></td> | 362 | 040300 | |
| 363 0.00000 SUBTRACT AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 0.41000 FROM ORDAMIOF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 0.41000 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 364 0.41200 0.41000 GIVING INVUICE-BALANCE. 365 0.41600 0.41400 GIVING INVUICE-BALANCE. 366 0.41600 0.41400 GIVING INVUICE-BALANCE. 366 0.41600 MOYE DENAMT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 367 0.41600 MOYE ORDANT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 368 0.41600 YO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 368 0.41900 SUBTRACT AMDUNT-PAID TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 369 0.42000 ELSE 371 0.42000 SET NO-MORE-PAYNENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 372 0.42000 SET NO-MORE-PAYNENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 373 0.42700 YERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 0.42800 NITILIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 0.42900 NEXT SENTENCE 0.42000 ELSE 373 0.42700 < | 302 | 040800 | DAYMENT-IPOATE. |
| 305 041000 FROM ONDART OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 041100 GIVING AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041500 IF INVOICE-BALANCE. 365 041500 IF INVOICE-BALANCE. 366 041600 GIVING TO OPNSTS OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 366 041700 MOVE DROAMT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 361 041700 MOVE DROAMT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 362 041800 SUBTACT AMOUNT-DALD OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 364 041200 ELSE 371 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042200 REWTE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042600 ILSE NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE SUBFILEI-O 042600 MOVE AVOICE-RECORD. 373 042700 REWATE ECORD. 374 042900 MOVE STAC | 363 | 040900 | SUBTRACT AMPATE OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD |
| 04100 GVING AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-OWED. 364 041200 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-PAID 041400 GTVING INVUICE-BALANCE. 365 041500 IF INVOICE-BALANCE. 366 041600 MOVE 2 TO UPNSTS OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 367 041600 MOVE 2 TO UPNSTS OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 364 041800 TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 364 041900 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-OWED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 10 369 042000 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042000 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042000 NEXT SENTENCE 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 INITIALIZE-SUBTILE-RECORD. 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 NOTE SPICES TO CUST DF SUBFILEI-0. 04300 GENRG SPISOBILE-ENCORD. 375 043100 MOVE ZERUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-0. 04300 MOVE ZERUES TO | ,0, | 041000 | |
| 364 041200 SUBTRACT AMDUNT-PAID 641300 FROM AMDUNT-DAED 365 041500 IF INVDICE-BALANCE IS LESS THAN .01 THEN 366 041500 IF INVDICE-BALANCE IS LESS THAN .01 THEN 366 041500 MOVE DRUMAT OF CUSTOMER-INVDICE-RECORD 367 041700 MOVE DRUMAT OF CUSTOMER-INVDICE-RECORD 368 041900 SUBTRACT AMDUNT-DWED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 369 04100 371 042000 S11 042000 S2200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042000 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 04200 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 04200 042200 DEKRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 375 043100 MOVE STO AMPUATIO DE SUBFILEI-0.< | | 041100 | |
| 300 041300 FROM AMOUNT-OWED 041400 GIVING INVUICE-BALANCE. 360 041600 MOVE 2 TO UPNSIS DF CUSIDMER-INVOICE-RECORD 361 041600 MOVE 2 TO UPNSIS DF CUSIDMER-INVOICE-RECORD 364 041800 TO AMPAID UF CUSIDMER-INVOICE-RECORD 364 041900 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-OWED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 041900 370 042000 ELSE 386 041900 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-PAID TO AMPAID UF CUSIDMER-INVOICE-RECORD 371 042000 ELSE 389 042100 ADD AMUUNT-PAID TO AMPAID UF CUSIDMER-INVOICE-RECORD 371 04200 ELSE 371 04200 ELSE 372 042400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TAUE. 373 042700 MERTIFALIZE-SUBFILE-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INTITALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 374 042900 MOVE STORT MERAD-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INTITALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 043000 375 043100 MOVE STORT MERAD-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 043000 CUST OF SUBTREE AND SUBFILEI-0.< | 364 | 041200 | |
| 041300 Giving Involce-Balance. 365 041500 IF Involce-Balance IS LESS THAN .01 THEN 366 041500 IF Involce-Balance IS LESS THAN .01 THEN 367 041700 MOVE DRDAMT DF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 041800 TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 041800 SUBTACT ANDUNT-DWED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 369 041200 371 042200 371 042200 371 042200 372 042400 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 NINTI ALLIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042800 MOVE SUBFILEI-0. 043000 ECPMSG UF SUBFILEI-0. 043000 OVE ANDALD UF SUBFILEI-0. 043000 OVE ANDALD UF SUBFILEI-0. 376 043200 MOVE CURN INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-0. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. <t< td=""><td>104</td><td>041200</td><td></td></t<> | 104 | 041200 | |
| 365 041500 IF INVOICE-BALANCE IS LESS THAN .01 THEN 366 041500 MOVE 2 TO OPNSTS OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 367 041700 MOVE ORDANT OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 368 041900 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-ONED FROM AMOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 369 042100 ADD AMUUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 371 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042300 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 372 042400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042600 ELSE 374 042900 MOVE SET SUBFILET-RECORD. 042600 ELSE 375 043100 MOVE 'O' TU SISCE OF SUBFILEI-O 043000 MOVE CURN TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE CURN TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE FAVENT-EXIST TO TO SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE YARDE AVENT OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE YARDE AVENT OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE CURN TO SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-MAVNER. 378 043500 MOVE CURN TO SUBFILEI-O. 379 043500 MOVE CURN TO SUBFILEI-O. 370 043500 MOVE CURN TO SUBFILEI-O. 378 043500 MOVE CURN TO SUBFILEI-O. 379 04300 CUNTATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 LUEAN-UP-ROUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSSE OUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 380 043900 SUBFILEI'. 380 043900 CLUSSE OUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 381 044200 STUP RUN. | | 041400 | |
| 360 041600 367 041700 367 041700 368 041900 369 042100 360 042000 370 042200 381 042300 371 042200 381 04200 372 042400 374 042900 375 042700 374 042900 375 042100 375 042100 376 042200 377 042200 378 042700 378 042700 379 042700 370 042200 371 042200 371 042700 370 042700 371 042700 371 042700 372 042400 373 042700 374 042900 375 043100 375 043100 376 043200 376 93200 377 043400 378 043500 378 043500 379 042500 370 042 00 371 070 371 070 371 070 372 042400 373 04300 374 042900 375 043100 376 93300 377 043400 378 043500 379 043500 379 043500 370 043500 371 070 371 070 371 070 372 043400 373 043500 374 043500 375 043500 375 043500 376 043500 377 043400 378 043500 379 043500 379 043500 370 04300 380 043900 380 043900 390 04300 390 04400 390 04400 390 04400 390 04400 390 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 | 365 | 041500 | IF INVITE-BALANCE IESS THAN OF THEN |
| 300 041000 MOLE 2:10 0.0103 0.0 2030 0.0 2030 0.0 2000 367 041000 TO AMPAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 368 041900 SUBTRACT AMDUNT-DWED FROM AMDUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 369 042100 ADD AMUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 370 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042300 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042600 ELSE 373 042700 DERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042600 ELSE 373 042700 DERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-0 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 375 043100 MOVE 2'' '' US SIGLE OF SUBFILEI-0. 376 043200 MOVE ZENJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-0. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE ZENJES NO UNFLE OSUBFILEI-0. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 380 04300 WIT E SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD <td< td=""><td>366</td><td>041500</td><td>IF INVOLCE DALANCE IS LESS THAN OUT THEN</td></td<> | 366 | 041500 | IF INVOLCE DALANCE IS LESS THAN OUT THEN |
| John CollingNote Constant of Colling041800TO AMMAID UF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD368041900SUBTRACT AMDUNT-DWED FROM AMDUNT-PAID042000ELSE369042100ADD AMDUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD370042200SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE.371042300REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOILE-RECORD.042400IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE.372042400IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN042500NEXT SENTENCE042600ELSE373042700PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD.042800INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECURD.042800MITE SUBFILE-RECURD.374042900MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-0.375043100MOVE ZURUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-0.376043200MOVE ZURUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-0.377043400ADU I TO REL-NUMBER.378043500MOVE CURN INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-0-INDIC.379043600WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD043700FORMAT IS "SUBFILEI".043800CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE044000CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE044000CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE044000CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE.381044200STUP RUN. | 367 | 041800 | HOVE 2 TO DENSIS OF COSTONER-INVOLCE-RECORD |
| 041800 SUBTRACT AMOUNT-OUSTOREA FINDAMA MOUNT-PAID 042000 ELSE 360 042100 371 042200 371 042200 371 042200 371 042200 371 042200 371 042200 372 042200 373 042200 374 042300 042500 NEMKITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 374 042900 042600 ELSE 375 043100 642600 MOVE SPACES TO CUST UP SUBFILEI-0. 043000 ECPMSC UF SUBFILEI-0. 043000 ECPMSC UF SUBFILEI-0. 375 043100 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID UF SUBFILEI-0. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID UF SUBFILEI-0. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE ZERJES TO SUBFILEI-0. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD | 201 | 041700 | |
| 336 041900 SUBIRAL AMOUNT-DALD TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 360 042100 ADD AMUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 370 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042200 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 372 042400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042600 ILSE 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE.OUST OF SUBFILEI-O 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE SUBFILEI-O. 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 043000 < | 360 | 041800 | TU AMPATU UP LUSIUMENTINULLERELUNG |
| 369 042100 ADD AMUUNT-PAID TO AMPAID OF CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD 370 042200 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042300 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 MOVE SENTENCE 043000 ECPMSG UF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 ECPMSG UF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE ZURUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE ZURUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE ZURUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 MOVE CURN INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 043500 MULT TO REL-NUMBEN. 379 043500 MRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPLATE-DISPLAY-RECORD <td>200</td> <td>041900</td> <td>SUDIRACI AMUUNI-UNEU ERIM AMUUNI-FAID</td> | 200 | 041900 | SUDIRACI AMUUNI-UNEU ERIM AMUUNI-FAID |
| 360 042000 SET NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST TO TRUE. 371 042000 REWRITE CUSTUMER-INVOILE-RECORD. 372 042400 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST DF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU STSCOE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043800 (LEAN-UP-ROUTINE. 380 043900 CLOSE CUSTUMER-INVOICE-FILE 043000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 STUP RUN. | 240 | 042000 | ELSE ADE ANGUNT-DAID TO ANDATO OF EUSTONED-INVOICE-DECORD |
| 371 042300 SET NO-NORE-PATHENT-EATST TO TROE. 372 042300 REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOILE-RECORD. 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU SISCOE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURK INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEST GURGENTINVOICE-FILE 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUST GURE-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 < | 304 | 042100 | ADD AMUNITERAID ID AMPAID OF COSTOMERTINVOICERECORD |
| 371 042300 IF NO-MORE-PAYMENT-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU SISCDE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 378 043500 MOVE ZERJES TO SUBFILEI-O. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSTGMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. | 370 | 042200 | SET NU-TURE-PATMENT-EAIST TU TRUE. |
| 372 042400 IF NU-MURE-PAYRENI-EXIST THEN 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 042800 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU STSCDE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 378 045500 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 378 043500 MOVE ZURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-ROUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044300 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. | 371 | 042300 | REWRITE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECURD. |
| 042500 NEXT SENTENCE 042600 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU STSCOE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 043300 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU I TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-ROUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D O F S U U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | 312 | 042400 | IF NU-MUKE-PAYMENI-EXISI IMEN |
| 042800 ELSE 373 042700 PERFORM READ-CUSTOMER-INVOICE-RECORD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST DF SUBFILEI-O 043000 ECPMSC DF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU STSCDE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERDES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 043800 CLUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. \$\$\psi \$\$\varepsilon \$\$ \$\$\varepsilon \$\$\varepsilon \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ | | 042500 | NEXT SENTENCE |
| 373 042700 PERFURM READ-COSTUMER-INVOICE-RECURD. 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O. 043000 ECPMSG OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE 'O' TU STSCDE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 MKITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. | | 042600 | |
| 042800 INITIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECOND. 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO CUST OF SUBFILEI-O. 375 043100 MOVE 'O' TU SISCDE OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O. 376 043200 OVRPHT OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. \$ | 313 | 042700 | PERFURM READ-COSTUMER-INVUICE-RECURG. |
| 374 042900 MOVE SPACES TO COST OF SUBFILET-0 043000 ECPMSG UF SUBFILET-0. 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU STSCDE OF SUBFILET-0. 376 043200 MOVE ZERUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILET-0. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILET-0-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILET'. 043800 CLUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE 0443000 CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 044200 STUP RUN. | | 042800 | INTIALIZE-SUBFILE-RECORD. |
| 043000 ECPMSC OF SUBFILET-O. 375 043100 MOVE 'O' TU STSCDE OF SUBFILET-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERJES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILET-O. 043300 OVRPMT OF SUBFILET-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CORR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILET-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILET'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. \$\$\$\$\$ 0 0 F S U U R C E \$ | 314 | 042900 | MOVE SPACES TO COST OF SUBFILET-O |
| 375 043100 MOVE '0' TU SISCUE OF SUBFILET-O. 376 043200 MOVE ZERUES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILET-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILET-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILET'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. \$\$\phi \alphi \a | | 043000 | ECPMSC OF SUBFICEL-O. |
| 376 043200 MOVE ZERDES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILEI-O 043300 OVRPMT OF SUBFILEI-O. 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLUSE CUSTUMER-INVOICE-FILE 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTUMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 044200 STUP RUN. | 375 | 043100 | MOVE 'O' TO SISCHE OF SUBFILEI-U. |
| 043300 377 043400 ADU 1 TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILEI-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D O F S U U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | 376 | 043200 | MOVE ZERGES TO AMPAID OF SUBFILET-O |
| 377 043400 ADU L TO REL-NUMBER. 378 043500 MOVE CURR INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILE1-O-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILE1'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ E N D O F S U U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | | 043300 | UVKPMI OF SUBFILET-O. |
| 378 043500 MUVE CURK INDICATOR-AREA TO SUBFILET-U-INDIC. 379 043600 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPUATE-DISPLAY-RECORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILET'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTUMER-INVUICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. \$\$\phi \alphi \ | 311 | 043400 | AUU LIU KEL-NUMBEK. |
| 379 043800 WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RELORD 043700 FORMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RÜUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D O F S U U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | 378 | 043500 | MUVE CURK INDICATOR-AREA TO SOBFILET-O-INDIC. |
| 043700 FURMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. 043800 CLEAN-UP-RÜUTINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVUICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-J2DATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D ∂ F S Û U R C E ¢ ¢ ◊ ◊ ◊ | 379 | 043600 | WRITE SUBFILE PAYMENT-UPDATE-DISPLAY-RECORD |
| U43800 CLEAN-UP-RUDIINE. 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVDICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢¢¢¢¢ END 0 F SUURCE ¢¢¢¢¢ | | 043700 | FURMAT IS 'SUBFILEI'. |
| 380 043900 CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVOICE-FILE 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D ∂ F S U U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | | 043800 | LLEAN-UP-RUUTINE. |
| 044000 CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE 044100 PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUP RUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D ∂ F S Ù U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | 380 | 043900 | CLUSE CUSTOMER-INVUICE-FILE |
| 044100 PAYMENT-J?DATE-DISPLAY-FILE. 381 044200 STUPRUN. ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ € N D ∂ F S Ù U R C E ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | | 044000 | CUSTOMER-MASTER-FILE |
| 381 044200 STUPRUN. ゆゆゆゆ END JFSUURCE やややや | | 044100 | PAYMENT-JPDATE-DISPLAY-FILE. |
| ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ END J F SOURCE ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ | 381 | 044200 | STUP RUN. |
| | | | ¢ ⇔ ⇔ ⇔ ∈ N D J F S U U R C E ⇔ ⇔ ⇔ ⇔ ⇔ |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 14 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

This is the initial display that is written to the work station to prompt the user to enter the customer number and payment:

| Customer Payment Update P | rompt | Date | 11/10/80 |
|--|--|------|----------|
| Customer P | ayment | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | | |
| •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | | |
| | Are an entry and a second | | |
| | | | |
| Section and a section of the section | | | |
| | | | |
| the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| 1 | | | |
| Real and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| _ | | | |

The user enters the customer numbers and payments:

C

| Customer | Payment | |
|----------|---------|--|
| 34500 | 2000 | |
| 40500 | 30000 | |
| 36000 | 2500 | |
| 12500 | 200 | |
| 22799 | 4500 | |
| 41900 | 7500 | |
| 10001 | 5000 | |
| 49500 | 2500 | |
| 13300 | 3500 | |
| 56900 | 4000 | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 15 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

Payments that would result in overpayments or that have invalid customer numbers are left on the display and appropriate messages are added:

| r | | | | | | | |
|----------|-------------------|----------------|--------------|---|---------|----------|---|
| | Customer | Payment Update | Prompt | | Date | 11/10/80 | |
| ſ | Accept Payment | Customer | Payment | Exception message | | | |
| | | 40500 | 30000 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CU | STOMER | | |
| | | 12500 | 200 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CU | STOMER | | |
| | | 41900 10001 | 7500 5000 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CU CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST | ISTOMER | | |
| | | 13300 | 3500 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CU | ISTOMER | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | Accept pa | yment values: | (*NO *YES) | | | | |
| | | | | | | | - |

The user indicates which payments to accept:

| Customer | Payment Update | e Prompt | Da | te | 11/10/80 |
|-------------------|----------------|---------------|---|----|----------|
| Accept Payment | Customer | Payment | Exception message | | |
| *N0 | 40500 | 300 00 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER | 2 | |
| *YES | 12500 | 200 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER | 2 | |
| *NO | 41900 10001 | 7500 5000 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER Customer does not exist | ! | |
| *NO | 13300 | 3500 | NO INVOICES EXIST FOR CUSTOMER | ! | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Accent n | avment values: | (*N0 ¥YES) | | | |
| Accept p | ayment values: | (*NO *123) | | | |

Figure 7-13 (Part 16 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

| Customer | Payment Update | Prompt | | Date | 11/10/80 |
|-------------------|----------------|---------|-----------------------------|------|----------|
| Accept Payment | Customer | Payment | Exception message | | |
| | 10500 | | | | 50.50 |
| | 12500 | 200 | CUSTUMER HAS AN OVER PATMEN | I UF | 58.50 |
| | 10001 | 5000 | CUSTOMER DOES NOT EXIST | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

The accepted payments are processed and overpayment information is displayed:

C

Figure 7-13 (Part 17 of 17). Sample Payment Update Program

End of IBM Extension _____

.

Chapter 8. Creating and Executing Programs

Entering the Source Program into the System

After you have written your COBOL program on the coding forms, you must enter the source program into source files in the system.

These source files should have a record length of 92. However, the COBOL compiler also supports a record length of 102. In addition to the usual fields of sequence number (6 characters), last modified date (6 characters), and the data (80 characters), a field of 10 characters that can contain additional information is placed at the end of the record (positions 93-102). This information is not used by the COBOL compiler, but is placed on the extreme right of the compiler listing. You are responsible for placing information into this field. If you want to use the additional field, create a source file with a record length of 102. The source file QCBLSRC has a record length of 92.

The normal ways of entering a source program are:

• You can enter it interactively by using the source entry utility (SEU) of the Interactive Data Base Utilities Licensed Program (IDU):



You can enter the EDTSRC (Edit Source) command to call SEU. Refer to the *SEU Reference Manual and User's Guide* for further information on the EDTSRC command.

• You can enter your source program in a batch manner (for example, from cards or diskettes) by using either the CPF copy or spooling functions:



Refer to the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more information on how to use the copy or spooling function for batch entry of the source program.

Using SEU to Enter Source

SEU provides special display screen formats for COBOL that correspond to the COBOL Coding Form to help you enter your COBOL source programs. Figure 8-1 shows a display screen format, the relationship between the headings on the COBOL Coding Form and the labels on the display screen, and where you can enter the source on the display screen.

If you specify the TYPE(*CBL) parameter on the EDTSRC command, SEU invokes a COBOL syntax checker that checks each line for errors as you enter it. The COBOL syntax checker finds invalid entries in the source statements and displays error messages that allow you to correct the errors before compiling the program. Since the COBOL syntax checker checks only one statement at a time, independently of statements that precede or follow it, only syntax errors within the source data can be detected. No interrelational errors, such as undefined names and invalid references to names, are detected. These errors are detected by the COBOL compiler when the program is compiled.

Syntax checking for COBOL source functions is subject to the following rules.

- Source on a line with an asterisk (*) or a slash (/) in column 7 is not syntax checked. An asterisk indicates a comment line, a slash indicates a comment line and page eject.
- Syntax checking occurs line by line as source is entered. The error messages that are generated by lines consisting of incomplete statements disappear when the statements are completed. In the example:
 - ADD A TO BCD.

An error message is generated after the first line is entered and disappears after the second line is entered, when the statement is completed. A sentence can span at most 45 lines.



Figure 8-1. Relationship between COBOL Coding Form and an SEU Display

- Any time a source line is entered or changed, up to 45 lines of source may be syntax checked as one unit. The length of a single unit of syntax checking is determined by extending from an entered or changed line as follows:
 - A unit of syntax checking extends towards the beginning of the source member until the first source line, or a line that ends in a period is encountered.
 - A unit of syntax checking extends towards the end of the source member until the last source line, or a line that ends in a period is encountered.

- If this unit spans more than 45 source lines (not including comment lines), the system responds with a message.
- If there is an error in a unit of syntax checking, the entire unit is presented in reverse image. The message at the bottom of the display screen refers to the first error in the unit.
- No compiler options are honored to control syntax checking.

For example, the syntax checker accepts either quotes or apostrophes as nonnumeric delimiters as long as they are not mixed within one unit of syntax checking. It does not check whether the delimiter is the one specified in the CRTCBLPGM command or in the PROCESS statement.

• The first sentence following any of the paragraph headers listed below must begin on the same line as the paragraph header:

PROGRAM-ID AUTHOR INSTALLATION DATE-WRITTEN DATE-COMPILED SECURITY SOURCE-COMPUTER OBJECT-COMPUTER SPECIAL-NAMES

• Character replacement specified by the CURRENCY and DECIMAL-POINT clauses of the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph is not honored during interactive syntax checking.

For a complete description of how to enter a source program using SEU, refer to the SEU Reference Manual and User's Guide.

Using SEU to Browse through a Compiler Listing

SEU lets the user browse through a compiler listing that is on an output queue. The following shows SEU's split-edit display that lets the user browse through the listing from a work station.



While browsing, the user can:

- Scan for errors
- Correct source statements that have errors.

For complete information on browsing through a compiler listing, see the SEU Reference Manual and User's Guide.

Compiling the Source Program

After you have entered the source program into the system, you need to compile the source program. This process of compilation is done by the COBOL compiler, which is part of the COBOL Licensed Program. To compile a COBOL program, you must use the CRTCBLPGM (Create COBOL Program) command, and the libraries QCBL and QTEMP must be in the library list. If the COPY statement, DDS or DD format is used by the program, the Control Program Facility (CPF) provides information about the externally described files to the compiled program. The compiler is invoked to create an executable COBOL program and a listing:

1



The compiler syntax checks the COBOL source program line by line and the interrelationships between the lines.

Compiler Options

You can specify various compiler options either by using the CRTCBLPGM command OPTION parameter or by using the PROCESS statement with the desired options. Any options specified in the PROCESS statement override the corresponding options on the CRTCBLPGM command. The PROCESS statement is discussed later in this chapter.

Create COBOL Program Command

To compile a COBOL source program into an executable program, you must enter the CRTCBLPGM (Create COBOL Program) command that invokes the COBOL compiler. The command is valid in batch and interactive jobs, or from other programs.

If the COBOL compiler terminates, the escape message CBL9001 is issued. A control language program can monitor for this exception by using the control language MONMSG (Monitor Message) command.

All object names specified on the CRTCBLPGM command must be composed of alphanumeric characters, the first of which must be alphabetic. The length of the names cannot exceed 10 characters. See the *CL Reference Manual* for a detailed description of CPF object naming rules and for a complete description of CPF command syntax.

The command syntax is as follows. The defaults are indicated by heavier branch lines. The brackets indicate that the options can be specified in any order.



When the CRTCBLPGM command is issued in a CL program, concatenation expressions can be used for all parameter values. See the *CL Reference Manual* for more information about concatenation expressions.

Programming Note: The number of entries in the Object Definition Table (ODT) and the amount of storage required by a COBOL program varies with the number and kinds of COBOL statements used in the program. A combination of these factors can cause System/38 internal size limits for the program to be exceeded. If this occurs, the *NOUNREF option can be tried. If the problem persists, the program must be rewritten.

When the *NOUNREF option is specified, only names that are referenced or are needed for data structuring are defined. This option is useful when the program contains many unreferenced identifiers.

The description of the parameters follows (the defaults are explained first and are underscored):

PGM Parameter: Specifies the qualified name by which the compiled COBOL program can be known and the library in which the compiled program is to be located.

<u>*PGMID</u>: The name specified as the PROGRAM-ID is used.

program-name: Specifies the name by which the compiled COBOL program is known. If program-name is specified for the PGM parameter, the first program in the batch job has that name, and all other programs use the name specified in the PROGRAM-ID paragraph in the source program.

<u>OGPL</u>: Name of the library in which the created program is stored if no library-name is specified.

library-name: Specifies the name of the library in which the created program is stored.

SRCFILE Parameter: Specifies the name of the source file that contains the COBOL source to be compiled.

<u>QCBLSRC</u>: Specifies that the IBM-supplied source file, QCBLSRC, contains the COBOL source to be compiled.

qualified-source-file-name: Enter the qualified name of the source file that contains the COBOL source to be compiled. If no library qualifier is given, $\star LIBL$ is used to find the file. This source file should have a record length of 92.

SRCMBR Parameter: Specifies the name of the member of the source file that contains the COBOL source to be compiled. This parameter can be specified only if the source-file-name in the SRCFILE parameter is a data base file.

<u>*PGM</u>: The COBOL source to be compiled is in the member of the source file that has the same name as that specified for the compiled program in the PGM parameter. If *PGMID is specified for the PGM parameter, the SRCMBR parameter is not used. For a data base source file, the first member is used.

source-file-member-name: Enter the name of the member that contains the COBOL source.

OPTION Parameter: Specifies the options to use when the COBOL source is compiled.

<u>*SOURCE</u> or *SRC: The compiler produces a source listing, consisting of the COBOL source input and all compile-time error messages.

*NOSOURCE or *NOSRC: The compiler does not produce a source listing.

<u>*NOXREF</u>: The compiler does not produce a cross-reference listing for the source program.

*XREF: The compiler produces a cross-reference listing for the source program.

<u>*GEN</u>: The compiler creates an executable program after the program is compiled.

*NOGEN: The compiler does not create an executable program after the program is compiled.

<u>*SEQUENCE</u>: The reference numbers are checked for sequence errors. Sequence errors do not occur if the *LINENUMBER option is specified.

*NOSEQUENCE: The reference numbers are not checked for sequence errors.

<u>*NOVBSUM</u>: Verb usage counts are not printed.

*VBSUM: Verb usage counts are printed.

<u>*NONUMBER</u>: The source file sequence numbers are used for reference numbers.

*NUMBER: The user-supplied sequence numbers (columns 1 through 6) are used for reference numbers.

*LINENUMBER: The compiler generated sequence numbers are used for reference numbers. This option combines program source code and source code introduced by COPY statements into one consecutively numbered sequence. Use this option if you specify FIPS flagging.

<u>*NOMAP</u>: The compiler does not list the Data Division map.

*MAP: The compiler lists the Data Division map.

*NOOPTIONS: Options in effect are not listed for this compilation.

*OPTIONS: Options in effect are listed for this compilation.

<u>*QUOTE</u>: Specifies that the delimiter " is used for nonnumeric literals and Boolean literals. This also specifies that the value of the figurative constant QUOTE has the EBCDIC value of a quote.

<u>*APOST</u>: Specifies that the delimiter ' is used for nonnumeric literals and Boolean literals. This also specifies that the value of the figurative constant QUOTE has the EBCDIC value of an apostrophe.

GENOPT Parameter: Specifies the options to use when the executable program is created. The listings could be required if a problem occurs in COBOL.

<u>*NOLIST</u>: No IRP, associated hexadecimal code or error messages are listed.

*LIST: The IRP, its associated hexadecimal code, and any error messages are listed.

<u>*NOXREF</u>: A cross-reference listing of all objects defined in the IRP is not produced.

*XREF: A cross-reference listing of all objects defined in the IRP is produced.

<u>*NOPATCH</u>: Space is not reserved in the compiled program for a program patch area.

*PATCH: Space is reserved in the compiled program for a program patch area. The program patch area can be used for debugging purposes.

<u>*NODUMP</u>: The program template is not listed.

*DUMP: The program template is listed.

***NOATR**: The attributes for the IRP source are not listed.

*ATR: The attributes for the IRP source are listed.

<u>*RANGE</u>: Execution time checks are performed for subscript ranges, but not index ranges. Checks are also performed for substring operations in compiler-generated code.

*NORANGE: Execution-time checks are not performed.

<u>*UNREF</u>: Unreferenced data items are included in the compiled program.

*NOUNREF: Unreferenced data items are not included in the compiled program. This reduces the number of ODT (object definition table) entries used, allowing a larger program to be compiled. The unreferenced data items still appear in the cross-reference listings produced by specifying OPTION (*REF).

<u>*NOOPTIMIZE</u>: The compiler performs only standard optimizations for the program.

*OPTIMIZE: The compiler generates a program for possibly more efficient execution that will possibly require less storage. However, specifying *OPTIMIZE can substantially increase the time required to compile a program.

GENLVL Parameter: Specifies when a program is generated. A severity-level value, corresponding to the severity level of the messages produced during compilation, can be specified in this parameter. If errors occur in a program with a severity level greater than the value specified in this parameter, an executable program is not generated. For example, if you do not want a program generated if you have messages with a severity level of 20 or greater, specify 19 in this parameter.

<u>29</u>: If a severity-level value is not specified, the default severity-level is 29.

severity-level: A two-digit number, 00 through 29, can be specified.

PRTFILE Parameter: Specifies the name of the file to which the compiler listing is directed and the library in which the file is located. The file should have a minimum record length of 132. If a file with a record length less than 132 is specified, information is lost.

<u>QSYSPRT</u>: If a file-name is not specified, the compiler listing is directed to the IBM-supplied file, QSYSPRT.

file-name: Enter the name of the file to which the compiler listing is directed.

<u>*LIBL</u>: If a library-name is not specified, the system searches the library list, LIBL, to find the library in which the file is located.

.library-name: Enter the name of the library in which the file is located.

FIPS Parameter: The source program is FIPS flagged for the following specified level. (Select the *LINENUMBER option to ensure that the reference numbers used in the FIPS flagging messages are unique.)

<u>*NO</u>: The source program is not FIPS flagged.

- *L: FIPS flag for low level and higher.
- *LI: FIPS flag for low-intermediate level and higher.
- *HI: FIPS flag for high-intermediate level and higher.
- *H: FIPS flag for high level.
- **FLAG Parameter:** Specifies the minimum severity level of messages to be printed.

<u>00</u>: All messages are to be printed.

severity-level: Enter a two-digit number that specifies the minimum severity level of messages that are to be printed. Messages that have severity levels of the specified value or higher are listed.

USRPRF Parameter: Specifies under which user profile the compiled COBOL program is to be executed. The profile of either the program owner or the program user is used to execute the program and control which objects can be used by the program (including what authority the program has for each object).

<u>*****USER</u>: The program user's user profile is to be used when the program is executed.

*OWNER: The user profiles of both the program's owner and user are to be used when the program is executed. The collective sets of object authority in both user profiles are to be used to find and access objects during the program's execution. Any objects that are created during the program are owned by the program's user.

Note: Specify the USRPRF parameter to reflect the security requirements of your installation. The security facilities available on System/38 are described in detail in the *CPF Programmer's Guide* and the *CL Reference Manual*.

PUBAUT Parameter: Specifies what authority for the program and its description is being granted to the public. The authority can be altered for all or for specified users after program creation through the GRTOBJAUT (Grant Object Authority) or RVKOBJAUT (Revoke Object Authority) commands. (For further information on these commands, see the *CL Reference Manual.*)

<u>*NORMAL</u>: The public has only operational rights for the compiled program. Any user can execute the program, but cannot change it or debug it.

*ALL: The public has complete authority for the program.

*NONE: The public cannot use the program.

Note: Specify the PUBAUT parameter to reflect the security requirements of your installation. The security facilities available on System/38 are described in detail in the *CPF Programmer's Guide* and the *CL Reference Manual*.

TEXT Parameter: Lets the user enter text that briefly describes the program and its function.

<u>*SRCMBRTXT</u>: Indicates that the text for the object being created is to be the same as the text for the data base file member containing the COBOL source. If the source comes from a device or in-line file, specifying *SRCMBRTXT has the same effect as specifying *BLANK.

*BLANK: No text is specified.

'text': The text that briefly describes the program and its function can be a maximum of 50 characters in length and must be enclosed in apostrophes. The apostrophes are not part of the 50-character string.

- **ITDUMP (n) Parameter:** An IBM debugging aid. Causes the compiler to dump the internal text at various times during the compilation. Refer to Appendix J for values allowed for n. (For IBM service personnel.)
- **DUMP Parameter:** An IBM COBOL debugging aid. (For IBM service personnel.)

PROCESS Statement

The PROCESS statement also lets you specify compile-time options. Options specified in the PROCESS statement override corresponding options specified in the CRTCBLPGM command. The PROCESS statement must be placed before the first source statement in the COBOL program immediately preceding the IDENTIFICATION DIVISION header.

The format of the PROCESS statement is as follows:

Format

PROCESS option-1 [option-2] . . . [option-n] [.]

The following rules apply to the PROCESS statement:

- The word PROCESS and all options must appear within positions 8 through 72. Position 7 must be left blank. The remaining positions can be used as in COBOL source statements, positions 1 through 6 for sequence numbers, positions 73 through 80 for identification purposes.
- Options must be separated by one or more blanks and/or commas.
- Options can appear in any order. If conflicting options are specified, for example, LIST and NOLIST, the last option encountered takes precedence.
- If the option keyword is correct and the suboption(s) is in error, the default suboption(s) is assumed.
- The PROCESS statement begins with the word PROCESS. Options can appear on more than one line; however, only the first line can contain the word PROCESS.

The allowable options for the PROCESS statement are described as follows. Defaults are underlined.

<u>SOURCE</u> or SRC: The compiler produces a source listing, consisting of the COBOL source input and all compile-time error messages.

NOSOURCE or NOSRC: The compiler does not produce a source listing.

<u>NOXREF</u>: The compiler does not produce a cross-reference listing for the source program.

XREF: The compiler produces a cross-reference listing for the source program.

<u>GEN</u>: The compiler creates an executable program after the program is compiled.

NOGEN: The compiler does not create an executable program after the program is compiled.

<u>SEQUENCE</u>: The reference numbers are checked for sequence errors. Sequence errors do not occur if the LINENUMBER option is specified.

NOSEQUENCE: The reference numbers are not checked for sequence errors. Since SEQUENCE is the default option, sequence errors are flagged until the NOSEQUENCE option is recognized. When NOSEQUENCE is the last item specified on a record, sequence checking is in effect between that record and the next record.

<u>NOVBSUM</u>: Verb usage counts are not printed.

VBSUM: Verb usage counts are printed.

NONUMBER: The source file sequence numbers are used for reference numbers.

NUMBER: The user-supplied sequence numbers (columns 1 through 6) are used for reference numbers.

LINENUMBER: The compiler generated sequence numbers are used for reference numbers. The option combines program source code and source code introduced by COPY statements into one consecutively numbered sequence. Use this option if you specify FIPS flagging.

<u>NOMAP</u>: The compiler does not list the Data Division map.

MAP: The compiler lists the Data Division map.

NOOPTIONS: Options in effect are not listed for this compilation.

OPTIONS: Options in effect are listed for this compilation.

 \underline{QUOTE} : Specifies the delimiter " is used for nonnumeric literals and Boolean literals. This also specifies that the value of the figurative constant QUOTE has the EBCDIC value of a quote.

APOST: Specifies that the delimiter ' is used for nonumeric literals and Boolean literals. This also specifies that the value of the figurative constant QUOTE has the EBCDIC value of an apostrophe.

NOLIST: No IRP, associated hexadecimal code, or error messages are listed.

LIST: The IRP, its associated hexadecimal code, and any error messages are listed.

GENLVL (n): Specifies when a program is generated. A severity-level value, corresponding to the severity level of the messages produced during compilation, can be specified in this parameter. If errors occur in a program with a severity level greater than the value specified in this parameter, the compilation is terminated. For example, if you do not want a program generated if you have messages with a severity level of 30 or greater, specify 29 in this parameter. The default value is 29.

FIPS: The source program is FIPS flagged for the following specified level. (Select the LINENUMBER option to ensure that the reference numbers used in the FIPS flagging messages are unique.)

- NO: The source program is not FIPS flagged.
- L: FIPS flag for low level and higher.
- LI: FIPS flag for low-intermediate level and higher.
- HI: FIPS flag for high-intermediate level and higher.
- H: FIPS flag for high level.

FLAG: Specifies the minimum severity level of messages to be printed.

<u>00</u>: All messages are to be printed.

severity-level: Enter a two-digit number that specifies the minimum severity level of messages that are to be printed. Messages that have severity levels of the specified value or higher are listed.

Batch Compiles

The PROCESS statement is used to separate multiple programs and/or subprograms to be compiled with a single invocation of the compiler. In the batch compile environment, all compiler options specified on the CRTCBLPGM command statement, plus all default options, plus the options specified on the last PROCESS statement will be in effect for the compilation. All compiler output is directed to the destinations as specified by the CRTCBLPGM command statement.

All executable programs are stored in the library specified on the PGM parameter. If program-name is specified for the PGM parameter, the first program in the batch job has that name, and all other programs use the name specified in the PROGRAM-ID paragraph in the source program.

Using COPY within the PROCESS Statement

The COBOL COPY statement can be used within the PROCESS statement to retrieve compiler options previously stored in a source library and include them in the PROCESS statement. COPY can be used to include options that override those specified as defaults by the compiler. Any PROCESS statement options can be retrieved with the COPY statement.

Compiler options can both precede and follow the COPY statement within the PROCESS statement. The last encountered occurrence of an option overrides all preceding occurrences of that option.

The following example shows the use of the COPY statement within the PROCESS statement. The COPY statement must be followed by a period. Notice also that in this example, NOMAP overrides the corresponding option in the library member:

| 000001 | PROCESS XREF | MYPROG |
|--------|--------------------------|--------|
| 000002 | COPY DEFLTS. | MYPROG |
| | MAP, SOURCE, LIST | DEFLTS |
| 000004 | NOMÁP, FLAGŽO | MYPROG |
| 200010 | IDENTÍFICATION DIVISION. | MYPROG |

Compiler Output

The output of the compilation job step can include:

- A summary of command options.
- An options listing: A listing of options in effect for the compilation.
- A source listing: A listing of the statements contained in the source program.
- A verb usage listing: A listing of the COBOL verbs and the number of times each verb is used.
- A Data Division map: A glossary of compiler-generated information about the data. Also included is a mapping of user-supplied names to compiler-generated internal names.
- FIPS messages: A list of all FIPS messages for the requested FIPS level and above.
- A cross-reference list.
- Compiler messages (including diagnostic statistics).
- Compilation statistics.
- A listing of the generated program in symbolic form.
- An executable program.

The presence or absence of some of these types of compiler output is determined by options specified on the PROCESS statement or through the CRTCBLPGM command. The level of diagnostic messages printed depends upon the FLAG option. Page ejection of the source program listing is obtained by placing the slash / character in the continuation area of a comment line.

Figures 8-2 through 8-8 illustrate the compiler output produced for the sample program. References to the figures are made throughout the following text. The letters in text correspond to the letters in the figures and reference an area of the output as it is being discussed.

Command Summary

This summary, which is output after compilation, lists all options specified in the CRTCBLPGM command statement and as modified by the PROCESS statement.

Command Summary

This summary, which is output after compilation, lists all options specified in the CRTCBLPGM command statement and as modified by the PROCESS statement.

Compiler Options

The PROCESS statement, if specified, is printed immediately. Figure 8-2 is a list of all options in effect for the compilation of the sample program. Compiler options are listed at the beginning of all compiler output when the OPTIONS option is specified.

```
COBOL SOURCE LISTING
STAT SEGNBR -A 1 8.. ... 2 ... ... 3 ... ... 4 ... ... 5 ... ... 6 ... ... 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME
   1 000100 PROCESS OPTIONS.LIST.MAP.XREF.FLAG(00).FIPS(L).VBSUM
                   COBOL COMPILER OPTIONS IN EFFECT
                       OPTIONS
                       SOURCE
                       XREE
                       MAP
                       VBSUM
                       NONUMBER
                       SEQUENCE
                       GE N
                       GENLVL (29)
                       FL AG ( 0)
                       FIPS(L)
                       QUOTE
                   COBOL GENERATION OPTIONS IN EFFECT
                       LIST
                       UNREE
                       RANGE
                       NOATR
                       NOXREF
                       NODUMP
                       NOPATCH
               Figure 8-2. Compiler Options
```

Source Listing

()

Figure 8-3 illustrates a source listing. The statements in the source program are listed exactly as submitted. The source is not listed if the NOSOURCE option is specified.

All compiler output pages after the page where the PROGRAM-ID paragraph is listed have the program-id name listed in the heading prior to the date field. Figure 8-3 displays the following fields:

Compiler-generated statement number: The numbers appear to the left of the source program listing. These numbers are referenced in all compiler output listings except for FIPS messages listings. A statement number can span several lines, and a line can contain more than one statement. *Reference number:* The numbers appear to the left of the source statements. The numbers that appear in this field and the column heading (shown as SEQNBR in this listing) are determined by an option specified in the CRTCBLPGM command or in the PROCESS statement, as shown in the following table.

| Option | Heading | Origin |
|------------|---------|--------------------------------------|
| NONUMBER | SEQNBR | Source file sequence numbers. |
| NUMBER | NUMBER | Standard COBOL sequence numbers. |
| LINENUMBER | LINNBR | Compiler generated sequence numbers. |

B

C

D

| Sequence error indicator column: An S in this column indicates that the line is out of sequence. Sequence checking is performed on the reference number field only if the SEQUENCE option is specified. |
|--|
| Copyname: The copyname, as specified in the COBOL COPY statement, is listed here for all records included in the source program by that COPY statement. If the DDS-ALL-FORMATS phrase is used, the name ' <all-fmts'< td=""></all-fmts'<> |

appears under copyname, and each individual format is terminated with the compiler-generated comment line 'END OF: format-name -->'.

• Change/date field: The date the line was last modified is listed here.

COBOL SOURCE LISTING

```
COPYNAME
                                                                                               CHG/DATE
STNT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 ... ... 3 ... ... 4 ... 5 ... ... 6 ... ... 7 .IDENTFCN
                                                                                 C
                                                                                      D
                                                                                                 e
A
      В
     000200 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION.
  2
     000300 PROGRAM-ID. TESTPR.
  3
             AUTHOR. PROGRAMMER NAME.
     000400
             INSTALLATION. ROCHESTER LABORATORY.
DATE-WRITTEN. APRIL 15, 1980.
  5
     000500
     000600
  6
     000700
             DATE-COMPILED.
                             11/06/80 18:29:28
     000800 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.
     000900 CONFIGURATION SECTION.
  q
             SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
DBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
     001000
 10
 11
     001100
 12
     001200 INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION.
     001 300 FILE-CONTROL .
 13
              SELECT FILE-1 ASSIGN TO DISK-SAMPLE.
     001 400
 14
               SELECT FILE-2 ASSIGN TO DISK-SAMPLE.
 15
     001 50 0
     001600 DATA DIVISION.
 16
     001700 FILE SECTION.
 17
     001800 FD FILE-1
 18
               LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD
 19
     001 900
 20
     0 02 00 0
               RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS
 21
     002100
               DATA RECORD IS RECORD-1.
     002200 01 RECORD-1.
 22
             02 FIELD-A PICTURE IS X(20).
     0 02 30 0
 23
 24
     002400 FD FILE-2
 25
     002 50 0
               LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD
               RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS
 26
     002600
               DATA RECORD IS RECURD-2.
 27
     002700
     002800 01 RECORD-2.
 28
 29
     0 02 90 0
             02 FIELD-A PICTURE IS X(20).
     003000 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION.
 30
     003100 01 FILLER.
 31
             05 KOUNT PIC S99 COMP-3.
 32
     003200
              05 ALPHABET PICTURE X(26) VALUE "ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ".
 33
     003300
             05 ALPHA REDEFINES ALPHABET PICTURE X DCCURS 26 TIMES.
 34
     003400
             05 NUMBR PIC S99 COMP-3.
     003500
 35
             05 DEPENDENTS PIC X(26) VALUE *012340123401234012340*.
05 DEPEND REDEFINES DEPENDENTS PICTURE X OCCURS 26 TIMES.
  36
     003600
 37
     003700
     003800 COPY WRKRCD.
 38
 40 +000100 01 WORK-RECORD.
                                                                                     WRKRCD
  41
    +000200
            05 NAME-FIELD PICTURE X.
                                                                                     WRKRCD
                                                                                     WRKRCD
 42 +000300
             05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE.
             05 RECORD-NO PICTURE 9995.
                                                                                      WRKRCD
 43 +000400
             05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE.
                                                                                      WRKRCD
  44 +000500
  45 +000600
              05 LOCATION PICTURE AAA VALUE IS "NYC".
                                                                                     WRKRCD
             05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE.
05 NO-OF-DEPENDENTS PICTURE XX.
  46 +000700
                                                                                     WRKRCD
                                                                                     WRKRCD
 47 +000800
              05 FILLER PICTURE X(7) VALUE IS SPACES.
                                                                                      WRKRCD
  48 +000900
    003900 PROCEDURE DIVISION.
  49
     004000 BEGIN.
     004200** THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH OPENS THE OUTPUT FILE TO BE CREATED***
              AND INITIALIZES COUNTERS.
     004 300**
                                                                     ***
     004 500 STEP-1. OPEN OUTPUT FILE-1.
 50
                   MOVE ZERO TO KOUNT NUMBR.
 51
     004600
     004800** THE FOLLOWING CREATES INTERNALLY THE RECORDS TO BE
                                                                     ***
     004900** CONTAINED IN THE FILE, WRITES THEM ON DISK, AND DISPLAYS #**
     005000** THEM.
     005200 STEP-2. ADD 1 TO KOUNT. ADD 1 TO NUMBR.
005300 MOVE ALPHA (KOUNT) TO NAME-FIELD.
 52
  54
  55
     005400
               MOVE DEPEND (KOUNT) TO NO-OF-DEPENDENTS.
  56
     005500
               MOVE NUMBE TO RECORD-NO.
 57
     005600 STEP-3. DISPLAY WORK-RECORD.
               WRITE RECORD-1 FROM WORK-RECORD.
     005700
  58
     005800 STEP-4. PERFORM STEP-2 THRU STEP-3 UNTIL KOUNT IS EQUAL TO 26.
     ***
      006000## THE FOLLOWING CLOSES OUTPUT AND REOPENS IT AS
     005100** INPUT.
                                                                     ***
     006300 STEP-5.
     005400
               CLOSE FILE-1
  60
  61
     006500
     006700** THE FOLLOWING READS BACK THE FILE AND SINGLES OUT EMPLOYEES***
006800** WITH NO DEPENDENTS. ***
     006900******
     007000 STEP-6.
     ---- KECORD INTO
JUI2UO AT END GO TO STEP-8.
007300 STEP-7.
007400
               READ FILE-2 RECORD INTO WORK-RECORD
  62
 63
     007400
               IF NO-OF-DEPENDENTS IS EQUAL TO "O"
Move "Z" to NO-OF-DEPENDENTS.
  64
 65
     007500
     007600
                GO TO STEP-6.
  66
     007700 STEP-8.
 67
     007800
               CLOSE FILE-2.
     007900
               STOP RUN.
  68
```

Figure 8-3. Source Listing

Verb Usage by Count Listing

Figure 8-4 shows the alphabetic list that is produced of all verbs used in the source program. A count of how many times each verb was used is also included. This listing is produced when the VBSUM option is specified.

| | | COBOL | VERB | USAGE | 6γ | COUNT | TESTPR |
|---------|-------|-------|------|-------|----|-------|--------|
| VERB | COUNT | | | | | | |
| ADD | 2 | | | | | | |
| CLOSE | 2 | | | | | | |
| DISPLAY | 1 | | | | | | |
| GD | 2 | | | | | | |
| IF | 1 | | | | | | |
| MOVE | 5 | | | | | | |
| OPEN | 2 | | | | | | |
| PERFORM | 1 | | | | | | |
| READ | 1 | | | | | | |
| STOP | 1 | | | | | | |
| WRITE | 1 | | | | | | |

Figure 8-4. Verb Usage by Count Listing

Data Division Map

The Data Division map, Figure 8-5, is listed when the MAP option is specified. The Data Division map contains information about names in the COBOL source program. The number of bytes required for the File Section and Working-Storage Section is given at the end of the Data Division map. Figure 8-5 displays the following fields:

Statement number: The compiler-generated statement Ø number where the data item was defined is listed for each data item in the Data Division map. Level of data item: The level-number of the data item, as G specified in the source program, is listed here. Index-names are identified by an IX in the level-number and a blank type field. Source name: The data-name as specified in the source Ø program is listed here. Section: The section in which the item was defined is shown here through the use of the following codes: **FS** File Section WS Working-Storage Section LS Linkage Section SM Sort/Merge Section SR Special Register Displacement: The offset, in bytes, of the item from the O level-01 group item is given here. Length: The decimal length of the item is listed here. œ

Type: The data class type for the item is shown here through the use of the following codes:

| GROUP | Group Item |
|--------|---------------------------------|
| A | Alphabetic |
| AE | Alphabetic edited |
| AN | Alphanumeric |
| ANE | Alphanumeric edited |
| INDEX | Index data item (USAGE INDEX) |
| BOOLN | Boolean |
| ZONED | Zoned decimal |
| PACKED | Packed decimal (COMP or COMP-3) |
| BINARY | Binary (COMP-4) |
| NE | Numeric edited |

0

0

Internal name: The compiler-generated internal names are listed here and are assigned as follows:

File-names The internal name uses the form .Fnn, where .F indicates a file-name, and nn is a unique two-digit number.

Data-names The internal name uses the form .Dxxxxxx, where .D indicates a data-name or index-name, and xxxxxx is a unique six-digit hex value. These names appear on the PRM listing if generated.

Attributes: The attributes of the item are listed here as follows:

- For files, the following information can be given:
 - Device type
 - ORGANIZATION
 - ACCESS MODE
 - BLOCK CONTAINS information
 - RECORD CONTAINS information
 - LABEL information
 - RERUN specified is indicated
 - SAME AREA specified is indicated
 - CODE-SET specified is indicated
 - SAME RECORD AREA specified is indicated
 - LINAGE specified is indicated.
- For data items, the attributes indicate whether the following information was specified for the item:
 - REDEFINES
 - VALUE
 - JUSTIFIED
 - SYNCHRONIZED
 - BLANK WHEN ZERO
 - SIGN IS LEADING
 - SIGN IS LEADING SEPARATE
 - SIGN IS SEPARATE
 - INDICATORS.
• For table items, the dimensions for the item are listed here in the form dim (). For each dimension, a maximum OCCURS value is given. When a dimension is variable, it is listed as such, giving the lowest and highest OCCURS values.

COROL DATA DIVISION MAP TESTPR

| ST MT | G | | SECTION | DISP J | LEN K | TY Pt ⁻ | I-IAME | ATTRIBUTES |
|-------|----|------------------|---------|-----------|----------|--------------------|-----------------------------|---|
| 18 | FD | FILE-1 | FS | | | | •F01 | DEVICE DISK, ORGANIZATION SEQUENTIAL, ACCESS SEQUENTIAL, BLOCK CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS, RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS, LABEL RECORDS STANDARD |
| 22 | 01 | RECORD-1 | FS | 000000 | 20 | GROUP | .0005394 | |
| 23 | 02 | FIELD-A | F S | 000000 | 20 | AN | .D0053E8 | |
| 24 | FD | FILE-? | FS | | | | •F02 | DEVICE DISK, ORGANIZATION SEQUENTIAL, ACCESS SEQUENTIAL, BLUCK CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS, RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS, LAREL RECORDS STANDARD |
| 28 | 01 | RECORD-2 | FS | 000000 | 20 | GROUP | .D0054E4 | |
| 29 | 02 | FIELD-A | FS | 000000 | 20 | AN | .0005538 | |
| 31 | 01 | FILLER | wS | 000000 | 56 | GROUP | •D005582 | |
| 32 | 02 | KOUNT | #S | 000000 | 2 | PACKED | 0005504 | |
| 33 | 02 | ALPHABET | #5 | 000007 | 25 | AN | . 0005636 | VALUE |
| 34 | 02 | ALPHA | *5 | 000002 | 1 | AN | D005692 | PEDEFINES .D005636, DIMENSION(26) |
| 35 | 02 | NUMBR | #S | 000028 | 2 | PACKED | ・いり05712 | |
| 36 | 02 | DEPENDENTS | w S | 01000 | 26 | AN | ·C005774 | VALUE |
| 37 | 02 | DEPEND | # 5 | 000030 | 1 | AN | .00057EE | PEDEFINES .D005774. DIMENSION(26) |
| 40 | 01 | WORK-RECORD | w S | 000000 | 21 | GEOUP | .D00584E | |
| 41 | 02 | NAME-FIELD | r# S | 000000 | 1 | AN | .D0058A6 | |
| 42 | 02 | FILLER | √S | 000001 | 1 | AN | • D0 0 5 8F C | VALUE |
| 43 | 02 | RECORD-NO | ₩S | 000002 | 5 | ZUNED | .D005956 | |
| 44 | 02 | FILLER | w S | 000007 | 1 | AN | .D00595E | VALUE |
| 45 | 02 | LOCATION | ws | 000009 | 3 | A | .D005A18 | VALUE |
| 46 | 02 | FILLER | wS | 000011 | 1 | AN | .0005A7E | VALUE |
| 47 | 02 | NO-OF-DEPENDENTS | ₩S | 000015 | 2 | AN | .D005AD8 | |
| 48 | 02 | FILLER | ۳S | 000014 | 7 | AN | .0105834 | VALUE |

FILE SECTION USES 40 BYTES OF STORAGE WORKING-STORAGE SECTION USES 77 BYTES OF STORAGE

Figure 8-5. Data Division Map

FIPS Messages

The FIPS messages, Figure 8-6, are listed when the FIPS option is specified. Only messages for the requested FIPS level and above are listed. Figure 8-6 displays the following fields:

| | cc | BOL FIPS MESSAGES | TESTPR |
|---------|--|-------------------------------|--------|
| FIPS-ID | DESCRIPTION AND SEQUENCE NUMBERS F | AGGED | |
| C8L8200 | FOLLOWING ITEMS ONLY VALID AT | FIPS LEVEL 2 OR HIGHER. | |
| CBL8201 | COPY STATEMENT. 38 | | |
| CBL8300 | FOLLOWING ITEMS VALID ONLY AT | FIPS LEVEL 3 OR HIGHER. | / |
| CBL8302 | PLURAL FORM OF FIGURATIVE COM 48 | ISTANTS USED. | / |
| C8L8303 | DATE-COMPILED PARAGRAPH. | | / |
| C8L8350 | UNTIL PHRASE OF PERFORM STATE 59 | MENT. | |
| CBL8500 | FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE IMPLEMENT | OR-DEFINED OR ARE INM EXTENSI | uns. |
| C8L8504 | ASSIGN TO SYSTEM-NAME-1 CLAUS 14 15 | E OR SYSTEM-NAME CLAUSE. | |
| CBL8506 | FILLER USED AS GROUP ITEM. | | |
| CBL8518 | USAGE IS COMPUTATIONAL-3. 32 35 | | |
| CBL8561 | COPY STATEMENT WITH DEFAULT L 38 | IBRARY ASSUMED. | |
| 10 FIPS | VIOLATIONS FLAGGED. | | |

Figure 8-6. FIPS Messages

0

e

0

ß

FIPS-ID: This field lists the FIPS message number.

Description and reference numbers flagged: This field lists a description of the condition flagged, followed by a list of the reference numbers from the source program where this condition is found. The type of reference numbers used, and their names in the heading (shown as SEQUENCE NUMBERS in this listing) are determined by an option specified in the CRTCBLPGM command or in the PROCESS statement, as shown in the following table.

| Option | Heading |
|----------------------------------|--|
| NONUMBER NUMBER LINENUMBER | DESCRIPTION AND SEQUENCE NUMBERS FLAGGED DESCRIPTION AND USER-SUPPLIED NUMBERS FLAGGED DESCRIPTION AND LINENUMBERS FLAGGED |
| | |

Items grouped by level: These headings subdivide the FIPS messages by level.

| FIPS viola | tions flagged: | The total nu | umber of F | IPS | |
|------------|----------------|----------------|------------|--------|----------|
| violations | flagged is inc | luded at the e | end of the | FIPS] | listing. |

Cross-Reference List

The cross-reference list, Figure 8-7, is produced when the XREF option is specified. It provides a list of all data references and procedure-name references, by statement number, within the source program. Figure 8-7 displays the following fields:

| NAMES (* = PROCEDURE-NAME) | DEFINED | REF | EREN | CES | (= = | CHANGED) |
|----------------------------|---------|------|------|-------|-------|----------|
| S | Ũ | | D | | • | |
| ALPHA | 34 | 54 | | | | |
| ALPHABET | 33 | 34 | | | | |
| ≠BEGIN | 50 | | | | | |
| DEPEND | 37 | 55 | | | | |
| DEPENDENTS | 36 | 37 | | | | |
| ¢DUMMY-SECTION | 50 | | | | | |
| FIELD-A | 23 | | | | | |
| FIELD-A | 29 | | | | | |
| FILE-1 | 18 | 14 | 50 | 60 | | |
| FILE-2 | 24 | 15 | 61 | 62 | 67 | |
| KOUNT | 32 | 51* | 52≑ | 54 | 55 | 59 |
| LOCATION | 45 | | | | | |
| NAME-FIELD | 41 | 54≎ | | | | |
| NO-OF-DEPENDENTS | 47 | 55‡ | 64 | 65≑ | | |
| NUMBR | 35 | 51\$ | 53≑ | 56 | | |
| RECORD-NO | 43 | 56¢ | | | | |
| RECORD-1 | 22 | 21 | 58* | | | |
| RECORD-2 | 28 | 27 | | | | |
| *STEP-1 | 50 | | | | | |
| \$STEP-2 | 52 | 59 | | | | |
| *STEP-3 | 57 | 57 | | | | |
| *STEP-4 | 59 | | | | | |
| *STEP-5 | 60 | | | | | |
| *STEP-6 | 62 | 66 | | | | |
| #STEP-7 | 64 | | | | | |
| ¢STEP−8 | 67 | 63 | | | | |
| WORK-RECORD | 40 | 57 | 58 | 62 \$ | | |
| | | | | | | |

Figure 8-7. Cross-Reference List

| 0 | <i>Names field:</i> The data-name or procedure-name referenced is listed here. All procedure-names are flagged with an * before the name. The names are listed alphabetically. |
|---|---|
| Ũ | <i>Defined field:</i> The statement number where the name was defined within the source program is listed here. |
| 0 | <i>References field:</i> All statement numbers are listed in the same sequence as the name is referenced in the source program. An * following a statement number indicates that the item was modified in that statement. |

Messages

Figure 8-8 shows the messages that are generated during program compilation. The fields displayed are:

| | | | | | COBOL | MESSAGES | | TESTPR |
|----|------------------------------------|--|---|----------------|------------|------------|-----------------|-----------------------|
| | STMT | SEONBR | MSGID | | | | | |
| \$ | 43 | +000400 | CBL 1 24 2 | 30 .S. USED IN | CORRECTLY | IN PICTUR | E. ASSUMED S9(5 | 1. |
| ¢ | 50 | 004 500 | C9L0335 | 00 EMPTY PARAG | RAPH OR SE | CTION PRE | CEDES ISTEP-1 | PARAGRAPH OR SECTION. |
| \$ | 54 | 005300 | C8L0010 | 10 MOVE INVA | LID IN ARE | A A. ACCE | PTED AS IF IN A | REA 8. |
| _ | | | | | MESSA | SE SUMMARY | , | |
| Z | TOTAL | . INF | 0(0-4) | WARNING (5-19) | ERROR | 20-29) | SEVERE (30-39) | TERMINAL(40-99) |
| | | 3 | 1 | 1 | | 0 | 1 | 0 |
| | 79 SOU 9 COP 1 COP 0 SEQU | URCE REC Y RECORD Y MEMBER JENCE ER | ORDS READ S READ S PROCES RORS CHEST SE | SED | 551160 | | | |

Figure 8-8. Diagnostic Messages

Ø

٢

Ø

Statement number: This field lists the compiler-generated statement number associated with the statement in the source program for which the message was issued.¹

Reference number: The reference number is issued here.¹ The numbers that appear in this field and the column heading (shown here as SEQNBR) are determined by an option specified in the CRTCBLPGM command or in the PROCESS statement, as shown in the following table.

| Option | Heading | Origin |
|------------|---------|-------------------------------------|
| NONUMBER | SEQNBR | Source file sequence numbers |
| NUMBER | NUMBER | Standard COBOL sequence numbers |
| LINENUMBER | LINNBR | Compiler generated sequence numbers |

When a message is issued for a record from a copy file, the number is preceded by a + or a -.

- MSGID and Severity Level: These fields contain the message number and its associated severity level. Severity levels are defined as follows:
 - 00 Informational
 - 10 Warning
 - 20 Conditional
 - 30 Severe
 - 40 Unrecoverable

Message: The message identifies the condition and indicates the action taken by the compiler.

¹ The statement number and the reference number do not appear on certain messages that reference missing items. For example, if the PROGRAM-ID paragraph is missing, message CBL0031 appears on the listing with no statement or reference number listed.

Message statistics: This field lists the total number of messages and the number of messages by severity level.

The totals listed are the number of messages generated for each severity by the compiler and will not always be the number listed. For example, if FLAG(10) is specified, no messages of severity less than 10 are listed. However, the counts will indicate the number that would have been printed if they had not been suppressed.

How to Execute a COBOL Program

Ø

There are many ways to execute a COBOL program depending on how the program is written and who is using the program. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for the various ways to execute a COBOL program. The three most common ways are through:

- A control language CALL statement or the COBOL CALL statement
- An application-oriented menu
- A user-created command.

A control language CALL statement can be part of a batch job, entered interactively by a work station user, or included in a CL program. An example of a control language CALL statement is CALL PAYROLL. Payroll is the name of a COBOL program that is called and then executed. A COBOL program can call another program with the COBOL CALL statement (see Chapter 6). Another way to execute a COBOL program is through an application-oriented menu. The work station user can request an application-oriented menu and then select an option that will call the appropriate program. The following is an example of an application-oriented menu:

PAYROLL DEPARTMENT MENU

- 1. Inquire into employee master
- 2. Change employee master
- 3. Add new employee
- 4. Return

Option:___

This menu is normally displayed by a control language program in which each option calls a separate COBOL program. When a COBOL program is ended, the system returns control to whoever called the program. This could be a work station user, a CL program (such as the menu handling program), or another COBOL program. You can also create a command yourself to execute a COBOL program by using a command definition. Refer to the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for information on using the command definition. For example, you can create a command, PAY, which calls a program, PAYROLL. A user-created command can be entered into a batch job, or it can be entered interactively by a work station user.

If a COBOL program terminates abnormally during execution, the escape message CBE9001 is issued. A control language program can monitor for this exception by using the MONMSG (Monitor Message) command.

If a program terminates other than by a STOP statement or falling through to the end of the program, the return code is set to 2. See the RTVJOBA and DSPJOB commands in the *CL Reference Manual* for more information about return codes.

When the user is executing a batch job that uses the ACCEPT statement, the input data is taken from the job stream. The data must be placed immediately following the CL CALL for the COBOL program. It is the user's responsibility not to request (through ACCEPTs) more data than is available. If more data is requested than is available, the CL statement following the data is treated as input data.

Programming Note: If more data is requested than is available, unpredictable results can occur.

When the user is executing a batch job that uses the ACCEPT statement, the input data is taken from the job stream. The data must be placed immediately following the CL CALL for the COBOL program. It is the user's responsibility to request (through ACCEPTs) the same amount of data as is available.

Programming Note: If more data is requested than is available, the CL statement following the data is treated as input data.

If more data is available than is requested, each extra line of data is treated as a CL command.

In either of the above cases, undesirable results can occur.

8-28

Chapter 9. Programmer's Guide Information

This chapter describes:

- The device-independent and device-dependent characteristics of COBOL on System/38.
- System/38 spooling functions.
- Level checking functions.
- File and record locking considerations.
- Unblocking and blocking records to improve performance.
- Multiple member processing.
- System override considerations.
- General information about the use of externally described files and program described files in the COBOL program.
- COBOL functions that relate specifically to a COBOL PRINTER device, and an MFCU device. Special considerations for DISK devices are also discussed.
- Commitment control considerations.
- General programming considerations.
- Recovery after a failure.
- Inter-Program Communications considerations.
- General information about the local data area available to a COBOL program.
- File considerations.

Device Independence/Device Dependence

The key element for all I-O operations on System/38 is the file. All files used on the system are defined to CPF. CPF maintains a description of each file that is accessed by a program when the file is used.

The files are kept online and serve as the connecting link between a program and the device used for I-O. The actual device association is made when the file is processed. In some instances, this type of I-O control allows the user to change the attribute of the file (and, in some cases, change the device) used in a program without changing the program.

In System/38 COBOL, the System/38 file name specified in the ASSIGN clause of the file control entry, rather than the device name specified, is used to point to the file. The System/38 file name points to the CPF file description:



The COBOL device name in the ASSIGN clause defines the COBOL functions that can be performed on the selected file. At compilation time, certain COBOL functions are valid only for a specific COBOL device name; therefore, in this respect, COBOL is device dependent. The following are examples of device dependency:

- SUBFILE operations are valid only for a WORKSTATION device.
- Indicators are valid only for WORKSTATION or FORMATFILE devices.
- LINAGE is valid only for the PRINTER device.
- Stacker select is valid only for the MFCU.
- OPEN INPUT WITH NO REWIND is valid only for a TAPEFILE device.

In the preceding example, stacker select specifications are valid in the program because the device name is READER.

For another example, assume that the file name FILEY is specified in the COBOL program with the FORMATFILE device. The device FORMATFILE is an independent device type; therefore, no line or page control specifications are valid in the COBOL program in the WRITE ADVANCING statement. When the program is executed, the actual I-O device is specified in the description of FILEY; for example, the device might be a printer, in which case only the default line and page control or those defined in the DDS would be used:



CPF commands can be used to override a parameter in the specified file description (such as specifying hopper 2 for a card input file instead of the default of hopper 1) or to redirect a file at compilation time or execution time. File redirection allows the user to specify one file at compilation time and another file at execution time:



In the preceding example, the Override to Diskette File command (OVRDKTF) allows the program to execute with an entirely different device file than was specified at compilation time.

Not all file redirections or overrides are valid. At execution time, checking occurs to ensure that the specifications within the COBOL program are valid for the file being processed. CPF allows some file redirections even if device specifics are contained in the program. For example, if the COBOL device name is PRINTER and the actual file the program uses is not a printer, CPF ignores the COBOL print spacing and skipping specifications.

There are other file redirections that CPF does not allow and that cause program termination. For example, if the COBOL device name is DATABASE or DISK and a keyed READ operation is specified in the program, the program is terminated if the actual file the program uses is not a disk or data base file. In addition, associated card files cannot be redirected because the compiler uses a single operation (PUTGET) to punch one record and read the next. This operation is valid only to a card device capable of both reading and punching.

See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more detailed information on valid file redirections and file overrides.

Spooling

System/38 provides for the use of input and output spooling functions. Each System/38 file description contains a spool attribute that determines whether spooling is used for the file at execution time. The COBOL program is not aware that spooling is being used. The actual physical device from which a file is read or to which a file is written is determined by the spool reader or the spool writer. Associated card files in COBOL must not be spooled, or results are unpredictable. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more detailed information on spooling.

Output Spool

Output spooling is valid for batch and interactive jobs. The description of the file that is specified in COBOL by the system-name contains the specification for spooling as shown in the following example:



File override commands can be used at execution time to override the spooling options that are specified in the file description, such as the number of copies to be printed. In addition, System/38 spooling support allows a user to redirect a file after the program has executed. For example, the user can direct the printer output to a different device, such as a diskette.

Input Spool

Input spooling is valid only for inline data files in batch jobs. If the input data read by COBOL comes from a spooled file, COBOL is not aware of which device the data was spooled in from.

The data is read from a spooled inline file:



See the CPF Programmer's Guide for more information on inline data files.

Level Checking

When a COBOL program uses an externally described file, System/38 provides a level check function. This function ensures that the format has not changed since compilation time.

COBOL always provides the information required by level checking when an externally described file is used (when a record description was defined for the file by using the COPY statement, DDS or DD format). Only formats that are copied by the COPY statement, DDS or DD format, under the FD for a file are level checked. The level check function can be requested on the create, change, and override file commands. The default on the create file command is to request level checking. If level checking was requested, level checking occurs on a record format basis when the file is opened. If a level check error occurs, COBOL sets a file status of 90 at OPEN time.

If an existing format is used in a new file, any existing COBOL programs that use that format can still be used (assuming that no other conflicts such as a change of keys exist) without recompilation.

COBOL does not provide level checking for program described files.

For more information on how to specify level checking, see the *CL Reference* Manual.

File and Record Locking by COBOL

CPF allows a lock state (exclusive, exclusive allow read, shared for update, shared no update, or shared for read) to be placed on a file used during a routing step. The file can be allocated in such a manner with the Allocate Object (ALCOBJ) command. (For more information on allocating resources and the lock states, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.) If an ALCOBJ command is not used for a routing step, COBOL places the following lock states on data base files when it opens the files:

| OPEN Type | Lock State |
|-----------|-------------------|
| INPUT | Shared-for-read |
| I-O | Shared-for-update |
| EXTEND | Shared-for-update |
| OUTPUT | Shared-for-update |

_ _ _ _ _

The shared-for-read lock state allows another user to open the file with a lock state of shared-for-read, shared-for-update, shared-no-update, or exclusive-allow-read, but the user cannot specify the exclusive use of the file. The shared-for-update lock state allows another user to open the file with shared-for-read or shared-for-update lock state.

In order for programs to share a data base file, the file must be opened by the first program (the program with the highest invocation in the stack) for the maximum amount of functions to be performed by any subsequent programs that share the same file. If a subsequent program requests a function that was not specified by the first program, an abnormal termination occurs.

COBOL places an exclusive-allow-read lock state on device files. Another user can open the file with a shared-for-read lock state.

The lock state placed on the file by COBOL can be changed if you use the ALCOBJ command.

Releasing a Record Read for Update

When a data base record is read by COBOL and the file is opened for I-O, a lock is placed on that record so that it is not available to another program. COBOL releases the record from its locked state when the next successful I-O operation occurs. No special action is required to release a record from its locked state if the record does not require any changes. If a requested record is already locked by another program, a file status of 9D is returned.

Unblocking Input Records and Blocking Output Records

To potentially improve the performance of input and output operations, the COBOL compiler generates code to unblock input records and block output records if all of the following conditions exist:

- ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL is specified for the file.
- The file is opened only for INPUT or OUTPUT in that program.
- The file is assigned to DISK, DATABASE, DISKETTE, or TAPEFILE.
- No START statements are specified for the file.

Even when all of the above conditions are met, certain CPF restrictions can cause blocking and unblocking to not be performed. In these cases, performance improvements will not be realized.

The I-O-FEEDBACK area is not updated after each read or write for files in which multiple records are blocked and unblocked by COBOL. See "I-O-Feedback" in Appendix I for more information.

For data base files, you may not see all changes as they occur, if the changes are made in different programs. For a description of the effect of blocking on changes to data base files, see the discussion on sequential-only processing in the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

Multiple Member Processing

Multiple member processing can be accomplished for a data base file, by overriding a data base file to process all members.

System Override Considerations

Any overrides must be specified before the file is opened by the COBOL program. The system uses the file override command to determine the file to open and the attributes of the file.

The simplest form of overriding a file is to override some attributes of the file. For example, FILE(OUTPUT) with COPIES(2) is specified when a printer file is created. Then, before the COBOL program is executed, the number of printed copies of output can be changed to 3. The override command is as follows:

OVRPRTF FILE(OUTPUT) COPIES(3)

Another form of file overriding is to redirect the COBOL program to access a different file. When the override redirects the program to a file of the same type (such as a printer file to another printer file), the file is processed in the same manner as the original file.

When the override redirects the program to a file of a different type, the overriding file is processed in the same manner as the original file would have been processed. However, device dependent specifications in the COBOL program are ignored and the defaults are taken by the system.

Not all file redirections are valid. A COBOL associated card file can only be overridden to another associated card file. An indexed file for a COBOL program can only be overridden to another indexed file with a keyed access path. A data base source file used for a COBOL program, cannot be overridden to process all members. Specifying OVRDBF MBR (*ALL) will result in the termination of the compile. A data base file used for a COPY statement, cannot be overridden to process all members. Specifying OVRDBF MBR (*ALL) will cause the COPY statement to be ignored. It is the COBOL programmer's responsibility to ensure that file overrides are applied properly. For more information on valid file redirections, the device dependent characteristics ignored, and the defaults assumed, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

Externally Described/Program Described Files

All files on System/38 are defined to CPF. However, the extent to which files can be defined differs:

- An *externally described file* is described at the field level to CPF through DDS. The description includes information about the type of file, such as data base or a device, and a description of each field and its attributes.
- A program described file is described at the field level within the COBOL program in the Data Division of the COBOL program. The description of the file to CPF includes information about the type of file and the length of the records in the file.

Both externally described files and program described files must be defined in the COBOL program within the INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION and the FILE SECTION. However, record descriptions in the FILE SECTION for externally described files can be defined with the DDS format of the COBOL COPY statement. (For more information on the COPY statement, DD or DDS format, see Chapter 6.)

Note: Actual file processing within the Procedure Division is the same, whether the file is externally described or program described.

Externally described files offer the following advantages:

- Less coding in COBOL programs. If the same file is used by many programs, the fields can be defined once to CPF and used by all the programs. This eliminates the need to code record descriptions for COBOL programs that use externally described files.
- Less maintenance activity when the file's record format is changed. The user can often update programs by changing the file's record format and then recompiling the programs that use the files without changing any coding in the program.
- Improved documentation because programs using the same files use consistent record format and field names.

Device-dependent functions such as stacker selection or forms control are not extracted by the COPY DDS operation. Only field level descriptions are extracted. When EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified as RECORD KEY, the field(s) that compose RECORD KEY are also extracted from DDS.

If the user chooses, he can use an externally described file within the program by specifying the file as program described (specifying the coding for the record description in the source). In this case, the compiler does not copy in the external field-level description of the file at compilation time. This approach can be used

in conversion where existing programs use program described files and new programs use externally described files to refer to the same file.

Figure 9-1 shows some typical relationships between COBOL programs and files on System/38.



- The COBOL program uses the field level description of a file that is defined to CPF. The COBOL user coded a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, for his record description. At compilation time, the compiler copies in the external field-level description and translates it into a syntactically correct COBOL record description. The file must exist at compilation time.
- 2 An externally described file is used as a program described file in the COBOL program. The entire record description for the file is coded in the COBOL program. This file does not have to exist at compilation time.
- 3 A file is described to CPF only to the record level. The entire record description must be coded in the COBOL program. This file does not have to exist at compilation time.
- A file-name can be specified for compilation time, and a different file-name can be specified for execution time. A COBOL COPY statement, DDS or DD format, generates the record description for the file at compilation time. At execution time, a different library list or a file override command can be used so that a different file is accessed by the program. The file description copied in at compilation time is used to describe the input records used at execution time.

Note: For externally described files, the two file formats must be the same. Otherwise, a level check error will occur.

Figure 9-1. Typical Relationships between COBOL and the Files on System/38

By using the COBOL COPY statement, DDS or DD format, the user can generate a record description for a COBOL file from the record format for a different file. An override command is unnecessary. The following example shows an application where the file actually processed is the MFCU card device, QCARD96, but the record description for that file is generated from the record format for the file FMT1. To do this, the user:

• Defines a physical file named FMT1 that has one record format containing the description of each field in the record format. The record format is defined

on data description specifications (DDS). The externally described file should contain only one record format for a card device.

- Creates the file named FMT1 with a CPF Create Physical File command.
- Specifies the file-name of QCARD96 (the IBM-supplied device file name for the MFCU) in his COBOL program; uses the COBOL COPY statement, DDS format, to create the record description; and specifies READER as the device.
- Creates the COBOL program using the CRTCBLPGM command.
- Calls the program at execution time. Because no file override is used at execution time for this program, the program then accesses the QCARD96 file:



Externally Described Files

For externally described files, COPY statements, DDS or DD format, are used for coding the record description for the file. Therefore, the file must be created before the program is compiled.

The external description for a file includes:

- The record format specifications that contain a description of the fields in a record
- Access path specifications that describe how the records are to be retrieved.

These specifications result from the DDS for the file and the CPF create file command that is used for the file.

Record Format Specifications

The record format specifications describe the fields in a record and the location of the fields in a record. The fields are located in the record in the order specified in DDS. The field description generally includes the field name, the field type (character, binary, zoned decimal, or packed decimal), and the field length (including the number of decimal positions in a numeric field). Instead of being specified in the record format for a physical or logical file, the field attributes can be defined in a field reference file (see Figure 9-2 and Figure 9-3).

The keys for a record format are specified in DDS. When you use a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, a table of comments is generated in the source program listing showing how the keys for the format are defined in DDS. The entries that may appear in the table and the table heading are listed below.

| Heading | Possible Entry |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| NUMBER NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE | key field number key field name ASCENDING, DESCENDING ZONE, DIGIT, SIGNED, ABSVAL, AN (Alphopumoric) N (Numoric) |
| ALTSEQ | NO, YES |

In addition, DDS keywords can be used to:

- Specify edit codes for a field (EDTCDE)
- Specify edit words for a field (EDTWRD)
- Specify that duplicate key values are not allowed for the file (UNIQUE)
- Specify a text description for a record format or a field (TEXT).

See the *CPF Reference Manual* - *DDS* for a complete list of the DDS keywords that are valid for a data base file.

Any editing that is to be performed on externally described output files is specified in DDS.

Figures 9-2 and 9-3 show an example of the DDS for a data base file and for a field reference file that defines the attributes for the fields used in the data base file. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more information on a field reference file.

| IBM | ternat | tionel | Buter | nees A | Auchi | nes C | orpo | ration | | | | D | AT/ | A DE | SC | RI | РТ | ION | SP | ECI | FICA | ١T | IC | DNS | | | | | GX2 | 1-7754-1 UM/ Printed in U | 050* I.S.A. |
|--------------------|-------------|--------------------------------------|-----------|------------|------------|---------|-----------|------------------------|----------|------------------------------|----------|----------------------|------------|---------|------------------------------------|-----------|-----------------------|------|----------|------|-------------|------|------|-------------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|----------|---------|-----------|------------------------------|----------------|
| File | | | | | | | | | | | ĸ | Ceying | | Gra | phic | | | | | Τ | | |] | | Descri | ption | | P | age | of | |
| Programmer Date | | | | | | | | | Ir | nstruct | truction | | Кеу | | | | | | | |] | | | | | | | | | | |
| Α | | | 0 | ondi | tioni | ng | | | | | | | | | (W/I/N/A | | | Loc | ation | | | | | | | | | | | - | |
| Sequence Number | a Form Type | And/Or/Comment (A/O/*) Pr Not (N) | indicator | (N) VON 1 | V ndicator | Not (N) | Indicator | S Name Type (WR/K/S/O) | Reserved | Name 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 | 28 27 | 8 8 Reference (R) | 1 | _ength | K S Data Type (B A/P/S/B A/S/X/ | d Decimel | s Usage (B/O/I/B/H/M) | Line | Po | | 48 47 48 | . 49 | . 50 | 61 67 69 E4 | | Functions | a: 47 69 | 40.70.1 | 1 72 73 7 | 4 16 78 77 78 1 | 29.80 |
| | A | ×× | | 0 | 61 | rln | A 1 | | (| CUSMSTL | | 20 20 | CI |)ST | OM | FG | 2 | MAS | TF | R | FTI | F | | 51 52 53 54 | 50 50 57 1 | 36 59 60 61 62 63 64 66 | 00 0/ 00 | | 1 /2 /3 / | - /3 /6 // /6 | /8 80 |
| | A | 1 | | 1 | | | 0.5 | 11 | Ť | | | | | | - | - | Ħ | | | | NTG | 10 | E | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 1 | | | | | R | 1 | CUSREC | | - | | | | | | | - | P | FTI | Ē | 7 | CUSM | STP |) | | • • • | • | | |
| | A | | 1 | | | | | 11 | | | - | | 1 | | | | + | | + | - ŀr | FYT | -7 | - | Cust | ome | r Master | Re | 6.01 | 11 |) | |
| | | - | + | 1 | | | | | 1 | TST | | | <u> </u> | • • • | \top | | | | 1 | | | + | | <u>C 43 </u> | <u>o nic</u> | 140.01 | | | <u>ц</u> | | |
| | | | | | | | | | Ţ, | VAME | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| | A | + | 1 | 1 | | | | + | 1 | ADDR | | | | | + | | \uparrow | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | - | | + | Ċ | CITY | • | | † • | ••• | + | | + | | + | | | | • | · · · · · · · · · | | | | • • • • | | | |
| | | + | | | | | | 11 | C | STATE | | | | | | 1 | | | 1 | - | | | | | | | • | | | | - |
| | A | 1 | | | | | | | 7 | 710 | | | | | | | \uparrow | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | + | <u> </u> | \uparrow | | | | 11 | ļ | SRACOD | -+- | | + • | • • • • | + | - | | | | • | • • • • | | | | | * * * * * * * * | | | | • • • • | |
| <u></u> | A | + | | | | | _ | ++ | 6 | CUSTYP | | | <u> </u> | ····· | + | | + | | + | | · · · · · · | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | \top | | | | | 1 | ARBAL | | | | | \top | | | • • | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | Ŕ | TROBAL | | | <u> </u> | * | 1 | | \uparrow | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | 1 | | | | 1 | | + | ī | STAMT | + | | 1 | | | | \uparrow | | 1 | - | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | •• | 1 | | T | | \square | Ī | LSTDAT | • + | • † | <u>†</u> | +++ | \top | ├ | + | | - | - | · · · · | | | | | ,,,, | | | | | |
| | | 1 | - | | | | | + | 6 | CROLHT | • | • | | • | | · · · | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | |
| | | 1 | <u> </u> | | | | - | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | SLSYR | - | | 1 | | | | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | +- | | | ÷ | | | | | | | | | _ |
| | A | + | - | | | | | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | SLSLYR | • | + | <u> </u> | ••-• | | | ++ | | 1 | | | | | ••••• | | | | | | • • • • • | |
| | | + | <u> </u> | 1 | | | | k | ĥ | CUST | · | • + | ├ | • • • | | | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | | <u> </u> | · | | • | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | _ |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

The sample data description specifications (DDS) are for the customer master logical file CUSMSTL. The file contains one record format CUSREC (customer master record). The data for this file is contained in the physical file CUSMSTP, which is identified by the keyword PFILE. The UNIQUE keyword is used to indicate that duplicate key values are not allowed for this file. The CUST field is identified by a K in position 17 of the last line as the key field for this record format.

The fields contained in this record format are listed in the order they are to appear in the record. The attributes for the fields are obtained from the physical file CUSMSTP. The physical file, in turn, refers to a field reference file to obtain the attributes for the fields. The field reference file is shown in Figure 9-3.

Figure 9-2. Example of the Data Description Specifications for a Data Base File



DATA DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

GX21-7754-1 UM/050* Printed in U.S.A.

| IBM, " | ternetion | al Bu | siness | Mach | ines C | orpo | ration | | D | AT/ | A DES | CF | li P1 | FION | SPE | CIFIC | AT | IONS GX21-7754-1 UM/050 Printed in U.S. |
|-----------|--------------------------------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-------------|------------------|--|-------------|----------|----------|---|-----------------------------------|------------------|-----------------|----------|------------|---|
| File | | | | | | | | | Keying | | Graph | ic | | | | | | Description Page of |
| Programme | | | | - | | 1 | Date | | Instruc | tion | Key | | | | | | | |
| А | | | Conc | lition | ing | | | | | | | (M/I/N/ | | Log | tion. | | | |
| Sequence | t (A/O/*) | - | Condi | tion | Name | | (V/S/0) | Name | | | _ength | VS/B A/S/X/V | (W) | | |] | | Functions |
| 1 2 3 4 | © Form Type ^ And/Or/Commen | er Not (N) B | Indicator | L NUC (N) | 1 Not (N) | 1 Indicator | 1 Name Type (IVR | 79 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 | 26 27 28 25 | 30 31 | 32 33 34 | <u>S Data Type (lé A/i</u> S Decimal | & Positions & Usage (#/O/I/B/H | Line 39 40 41 | Pos 42 43 44 | 45 48 47 | 48 49 |) 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 80 81 62 63 64 85 68 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 78 77 78 79 2 |
| | AX | 4 F | : 1 | R | FF | - | Η | DSTREE | | DT | STR | (B | UT | ION | ΔP | PIT | <u>(A</u> | TTON FTELD REFERENCE |
| | | | | + | - | - | R | DSTREE | | | | | | <u> </u> | | TEX | T(| 'Distribution Field Ref') |
| | A¥ | 6 | 10 | 11 | ON | | FI | ELDS USE | D AS | R | EFE | RE | NC | E | | 1 | | |
| 1 | A | | | Ţ | | | | BASDAT | | 1 | 6 | | 6 | | | EDT | CD | $E(\mathbf{Y})$ |
| | A | | - | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | TEX | T(| Base Data Field) |
| | A ¥ | F | I | ELI | DS | (| 15 | ED BY CU | STOP | ER | MA | sт | ER | FI | LE | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| 2 | A | Τ | | | | | Π | CUST | | Τ | 5 | | | | | CHE | ck | (MF) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | COL | HD | G('Customer' 'Number') |
| | A | | | | | | | NAME | | | 20 | Τ | | | | COL | HD | G(Customer Name!) |
| 3 | A | | | | | | | ADDR | R | | | Τ | | | | REF | FL | D(NAME) |
| | A | | • | 1 | | | | | | 1 | | | 1 | | | COL | HD | G('Customer Address') |
| | A | | - | | | | | CITY | R | 2 | | | | | | REF | FL | D (NAME) |
| | A | | | T | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | LOL | HD | G('Customer Citu') |
| 2 | A | | | 1 | | | | STATE | · | _ | 2 | | | 1 | | CHE | ск | (ME) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | COL | HD | 6/'State') |
| | A | | | - | | - | | SRHCOD | | 1 | 6 | | - | | | CHE | CK | |
| | A | | • | 1 | | - | Π | | | | | T | | | | LOL | HO | 6('search' 'Lode') |
| | A | T | | + | | - | | | | 1 | | 1 | - | | | Tex | T1 | Customer Number Search Code! |
| 2 | A | | • | 1 | | | | 2TP | | - | 5 | | Ø | | | CHE | CK | (ME) |
| | A | | - | + | | | | | • • • | † | | | * | <u> </u> | | LOL | HD | 6('Zip''Code') |
| 4 | | | | 1 | | | | CUSTYP | | T | T | | 0 | | | RAN | 6E | (1 5) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | LOL | HD. | G('Cust' 'Type') |
| | A | | • | | | | | | | | | | | | | TEX | T(| 'Customer Type L=Goy Z=Sch 3=B |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 45 | 4= | P + S = O + h' |
| 5 | A | | | | | | П | ARBAL | | | 8 | | 2 | | | LOL | HD | G(Accts Rec' 'Balance') |
| | A | | • | 1 | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | EDT | CD | б(Г) |
| 6 | A | | | | | | | ORDBAL | R | 2 | | | | | | REF | FL | D(ARBAL) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | COL | HD | G('A/R Amt in' 'Order File') |
| | A | | | 1 | | | | LSTAMT | R | 2 | | | | | | REF | FL | D(ARBAL) |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | COL | ΗD | G('Last' 'Amount' 'Paid') |
| | A | | | Γ | | | | | | | | T | | | | TEX | r(| 'Last Amount Paid in A/R') |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | \Box | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | Γ. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | L | | | | | | | | Ι | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | T | | | | | | | 1. | | | | L | | | | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Figure 9-3 (Part 1 of 2). Example of a Field Reference File

| IBM | terna | ntion | el Bu | sines | Mac | hines | Corpo | ration | | | | D | ATA | DE | SCR | RIP1 | TIC | DN | SPE | | FIC | AT | 101 | IS | | | | GX2 | 1-7754-1 UM Printed in I | 1/050* U.S.A. |
|--------------------|-----------|---------------------|---------|-----------|---------|------------|-----------|---------------------|-----------|---------|--------|---------------|----------|----------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|----------|-------|-------|------------|-------|--------------------|---------|---------|------|--|---------|--------------|-----------------------------|------------------|
| File | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | Keying | | Grap | hic | | | | | | | - | | | | Description | Pa | 9 e | of | |
| Programme | 7 | | | | | | C |)ate | | | ' | Instruc | tion | Key | | | | | | | | |] | | | | | | | |
| Α | _ | | | Conc | litior | ning | | | | | | | | | (W/I/N/A | | | Loca | tion | | | | | | - | | | | | |
| | | ŝ | | Condi | ition | Nam | • | 2 | | | | | | | A/S/X/ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sequence Number | Form Type | And/Or/Comment (A/C | MOC (N) | Indicator | NOT (N) | Indication | Indicator | Name Type (WR/K/S/C | na arrest | Name | | Reference (R) | | ngth | Deta Type (# A/P/S/B / Decimal | Positions Usade (IV/O/I/B/H/M) | | ine | Pos | | | | | | | Functions | | | | |
| 1234 | 5 6 | 1 | 8 9 | 101 | 1 12 | 13 14 | 15 1 | 8 17 1 | | 23 24 2 | 5 26 2 | 7 28 29 | 30 31 | 32 33 34 | 35 36 | 37 36 | 3 39 4 | 10 41 | 42 43 | 44 46 | 46 47 | 46 49 | 0 60 61 | 62 63 E | H 66 | 8 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 68 67 66 | 9 70 71 | 72 73 7 | 4 75 76 77 78 | 79 80 |
| | | | ╉ | ÷t | + | | | ++ | | | 1 | | + | | ++ | | + | | | | | <u>ר</u> נ 11 ה | | | 2 5 | t' Date 1 Pa | 1 | 1 | | |
| 7 | | tt | + | | + | | - | ++ | | | ÷- | | | | | + | | - | | - <u>×</u> | EX. | 7/ | 11 | 26 | + | Date Paid in | 4/8 | 17 | , | |
| | | H | + | Ħ | 1 | | | $\uparrow \uparrow$ | CRDL | MT | | R | <u>.</u> | | | - | | | | R | EF | FL | D(| AR | BA | | 44 | | | |
| | A | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | — | | | Z | ٥L | HD | 4(| ۱۲ | r e | edit' 'Limit') | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | Τ | | | | | | | | | | | | Т | бX | τ(| 16 | 45. | 40 | mer Credit Li | mi:t | ') | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | SLSY | R | | R | + | 2 | | | | | | R | FF | FL | DL | ARI | 64 | ¥L) | | | | |
| | A | Ш | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ۲ | OL | ŧΡ | G (| ۰5, | 21 | es' 'This' Y | ear | · ·) | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Т | Ex | ۲۷ | 16 | 45 | 10 | omer Sales Thi | s Y | ea | r') | |
| | A | | | | | | | | SLSL | YR | | R | + | 2 | | | | | | R | EF | ۴L | .D (| AR | 3A | ¥L) | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L | ٥٢ | HD | 4(| ۱ ۵ و | al | les' 'Last' 'Y | ear | •) <u>)</u> | | |
| | A | Π | Τ | | T | | | TT | | | | | | | IT | | | | | Τ | Ex | TI | 10 | 45- | t o | mer Sales Las | Η Y | ea | r') | |

This example of a field reference file shows the definitions of the fields that are used by the CUSMSTL (customer master logical) file, which is shown in Figure 9-2. The field reference file normally contains the definitions of fields that are used by other files. The following text describes some of the entries for this field reference file.

- The BASDAT field is edited by the Y edit code, as indicated by the keyword EDTCDE (Y). If this field is used in an externally described output file for a COBOL program, the COBOL-generated field is compatible with the data type specified in the DDS. The field is edited when the record is written. When the field is used in a program described output file, compatibility with the DDS fields in the file is the user's responsibility. When DDS is not used to create the file, appropriate editing of the field in the COBOL program is the user's responsibility.
- 2 The CHECK(MF) entry specifies that the field is a mandatory fill field when it is entered from a display work station. Mandatory fill means that all characters for the field must be entered from the display work station.
- 3 The ADDR and CITY fields share the same attributes that are specified for the NAME field, as indicated by the REFFLD keyword.
- 4 The RANGE keyword, which is specified for the CUSTYP field, ensures that the only valid numbers that can be entered into this field from a display work station are 1 through 5.
- 5 The COLHDG keyword provides a column head for the field if it is used by the Interactive Data Base Utilities (IDU).
- 6 The ARBAL field is edited by the J edit code, as indicated by the keyword EDTCDE(J).
- A text description (TEXT keyword) is provided for some fields. The TEXT keyword is used for documentation purposes and appears in various listings.

Figure 9-3 (Part 2 of 2). Example of a Field Reference File

Access Path

The description of an externally described file contains the access path that describes how records are to be retrieved from the file. Records can be retrieved based on an arrival sequence (nonkeyed) access path or on a keyed sequence access path.

The arrival sequence access path is based on the order in which the records are stored in the file. Records are added only to the end of the file.

For the keyed sequence access path, the sequence in which records are retrieved from the file is based on the contents of the key field(s) that is defined in the DDS for the file. For example, in the DDS shown in Figure 9-2, CUST is defined as the key field. The keyed sequence access path is updated whenever records are added, deleted, or the contents of a key field change.

See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for a complete description of the access paths for an externally described data base file.

Record Keys and Common Keys

For a keyed sequence access path, one or more fields can be defined in the DDS to be used as the key fields for a record format. All record types in a file do not have to have the same key fields. For example, an order header record can have the ORDER field defined as the key field, and the order detail records can have the ORDER and LINE fields defined as the key fields.

The key for a file is determined by the valid keys for the record types in that file. The file's key is determined in the following manner:

- If all record types in a file have the same number of key fields defined in DDS that are identical in attributes, the *key for the file* consists of all fields in the key for the record types. (The corresponding fields do not have to have the same name.) For example, if the file has three record types and the key for each record type consists of fields A, B, and C, then the file's key consists of fields A, B, and C. That is, the file's key is the same as the records' key.
- If all record types in the file do not have the same key fields, the key for the file consists of the key fields *common* to all record types. For example, a file has three record types and the key fields are defined as follows:
 - REC1 contains key field A.
 - REC2 contains key fields A and B.
 - REC3 contains key fields A, B, and C.

Then the file's key is field A, the key field common to all record types.

• If no key field is common to all record types, any keyed reference to the file will always return the first record in the file.

In COBOL you must specify a RECORD KEY for an indexed file to identify the record you want to process. COBOL compares the key value with the key of the file or record, and performs the specified operation on the record whose key matches the RECORD KEY value.

When RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified:

- If the FORMAT phrase is specified, the compiler builds the search argument from the key fields in the record area for the specified format
- If the FORMAT phrase is not specified, the compiler builds the search argument from the key fields in the record area for the first record format defined in the program for that file.

Programming Note: For a file containing multiple key fields to be processed in COBOL, the key fields must be contiguous in the record format used by the COBOL program, except when RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified.

COBOL Specifications for Externally Described Files

Data description specifications (DDS) are used to describe files at the field level to CPF. Each record format in an externally described file is identified by a unique record format name. Figure 9-4 shows an example of the DDS for a file with one record format (one record type).

The COBOL user can code a COPY statement, DDS format, of one of the following forms to have the external description retrieved:

COPY DDS-CUSREC-I-O OF CUSMSTL.

COPY DDS-CUSREC OF CUSMSTL.

COPY DD-CUSREC OF CUSMSTL.

The information from the external description is then retrieved by the COBOL compiler, and a COBOL data structure is generated. Figure 9-5 shows the COBOL code generated by the COPY statement, DDS format.

Figure 9-6 shows an example of DDS with the Alias keyword. Figure 9-7 shows the COBOL code generated by the COPY statement, DD format.

Actual file processing within the Procedure Division is the same for both program described and externally described files.

| xammer | | | | | | De | te | | Keyin | ng uctior | Grap N Key | hic | - | | | | \neg | | | Descripti | ion | | Page | 0 | đ |
|-----------------|---|--------|---------|--------|--------------|-------------|--------------------------------------|---------|----------|-----------------|---------------|----------------------------|--|-----------------|-----------|----------|---------|-------|------------|-------------|-----------|-----------------|------------|-------------|------|
| | | , , | Condi | tionin | 9 | | | | | | | (W/W/W/X/X/ | | Loc | tion | | | | | | | | | | |
| quence Imber | » Form Type ~ And/Or/Comment (A/O/*) | | (N) (N) | | T Not (N) | 1 Indicator | 2 Name Type (WR/K/S/O) in Recoved | Name | 26 27 28 | & Reference (R) | Length | M Oana Type (B A/P/S/B A/S | 6 Decimel 2: Positions 8: Leve. (8:/0/1/8/14/14) | Line 39 40 4 | Pos | 45 46 47 | 48 49 1 | 50 51 | 52 53 54 1 | 55 56 57 58 | Functions | 5 68 67 58 69 3 | 70 71 72 1 | 73 74 75 76 | 5 77 |
| | A ¥) | 4 | Lo | GI | C | AL | T. | CUSMSTL | . | Z | USTO | om | ER | MAS | TER | FI | LE | | | | | | | | - |
| - | A | 1 | - | | | | H | | | T | | | | | 2 | UNI | au | 5 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | T | 3 | R | CUSREC | | | | | | | _ | PFI | LE | (C | USM | STP) | | | | | 1 |
| | | | | | Ť | | Π | | | | | | | | | TEX | TC | 10 | UST | OMER | MASTER | RECO | SRD | 1 | |
| | A | Τ. | | | | | | CUST | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | NAME | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | Π | ADDR | | | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | + | 1 | | Π | | Ħ | CITY | | TT | | \square | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | + | + | | | | Ħ | STATE | | | | | | | · · · · | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | + | + | 1 | Η | | Ħ | ZIP | - | Ħ | | + | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | |
| • | | | + | + | Ħ | | Ħ | SPHCOD | | | | | | 1 | | | 1 | | | | | | | | ł |
| | A | + | - | + | Η | | | CUSTYP | | | | + | | | + · · · · | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | + | | Η | | ++ | ARBAL | | Ħ | | + | | + | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ÷ ÷ | | + | + | | Н | | ++ | OPOBAL | | ++ | | + | + | <u> </u> | + | | | | | | | | ÷ ; ; | | |
| · · · · | | + | + | - | H | | | LSTANT | | Ħ | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1.1 | | |
| • • • • | | + | + | ++ | Η | + | ++ | LSTDAT | -++- | ++ | . | | + | + | + | | | - | | | | | | | |
| • • • • • | | + | + | ++ | \mathbf{H} | | ++ | CPOLME | +++ | Ħ | ÷÷ | + | | + | + | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | | + | + | | | | ++ | SICYO | | ++ | | + | | 1 | + | | | - | | | | | | | |
| | | + | - | 1 | | | ++ | 2-21K | ++++ | ++ | + 5 - | + | | +++ | + + +- | | | - | | | | | | | - |
| | 11 | +- | - | | + | 4 | t.t | SUSLIK | + +- | ++ | ++++ | + | | | | | + | - | | | | | | | + |

- 1 A logical file for processing the customer master physical file (CUSMSTP) is defined and named CUSMSTL.
- 2 The UNIQUE keyword indicates that duplicate key values for this file are not allowed.
- 3 One record format (CUSREC) is defined for the CUSMSTL file.
- 4 The CUST field is identified as the key field for this file.

5 If field attributes (such as length, data type, and decimal positions) are not specified in the DDS for a logical file, the attributes are obtained from the corresponding field in the physical file. Any field attributes specified in the DDS for the logical file override the attributes for the corresponding field in the physical file. The definition of the fields in the physical file could refer to a field reference file. A field reference file is a data description file consisting of field names and their definitions, such as size and type. When a field reference file is used, the same fields that are used in multiple record formats have to be defined only once in the field reference file. For more information on a field reference file, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

Figure 9-4. Example of Data Description Specifications

| 01 CUS-MASTER COPY DDS-CUSREC OF C *I-O FORMAT: CUSREC FROM * *THE KEY DEFINITIONS FOR *NUMBER NAME RETRIEV *0001 CUST ASCENDI 05 CUSREC 06 CUST PIC > * CUSTOMEF 06 ADDR PIC > * CUSTOMEF 06 ADDR PIC > | CUSTMAST-CUSLIB. FILE CUSTMAST OF LIBRARY CUSL: THE RECORD FORMAT CUSREC /AL TYPE ALTSEQ ING AN NO ((5). R NUMBER ((20). R NAME& ((20). R ADDRESS | IB CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC | |
|--|---|---|--|
| 06 STATE PIC X * STATE AE 06 ZIP PIC S * ZIP CODE 06 SHRCOD PIC X | (2) BBREVIATION S9(5) COMP-3. | CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC | |
| * CUSTOMER 06 CUSTYP PIC X * CUSTOMER 06 ARBAL PIC S * ACCT/REC | R NAME SEARCH CODE ((1). R TYPE 59(8)V9(2) COMP-3. C BALANCE | CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC CUSREC | |

Figure 9-5. Example of the Results of the COPY Statement, DDS Format

Overriding or Adding COBOL Functions to the External Description

In addition to placing the external file description in the program through the use of the COPY statement, DDS format, the user can also use standard record definition and redefinition to describe external files or to provide a group definition for a series of fields. It is the programmer's responsibility to ensure that program described definitions are compatible with the external definitions of the file.



1 The name associated with the Alias keyword, which will be included in the program.

Figure 9-6. Example of Data Description Specifications with Alias

| 01 CUS-MASTER. COPY DD-CUSREC OF CUSTMAST-CUSLIB. *I-O FORMAT: CUSREC FROM FILE CUSTMAST OF LIBRARY CUSLIB * | CUSREC |
|--|--|
| *THE KEY DEFINITIONS FOR THE RECORD FORMAT CUSREC *NUMBER NAME RETRIEVAL TYPE ALTSEQ *0001 CUSTOMER-NUMBER ASCENDING AN NO | |
| 05 CUSREC. 06 CUSTOMER-NUMBER PIC X(5). CUSTOMER NUMBER 06 CUSTOMER-NAME PIC X(20). CUSTOMER NAME 06 ADDRESS PIC X(20). CUSTOMER ADDRESS 06 CITY PIC X(20). CUSTOMER CITY 06 STATE PIC X(2). STATE ABBREVIATION 06 ZIP PIC S9(5) COMP-3. CUSTOMER NAME SEARCH CODE 06 SEARCH-CODE PIC X(3). CUSTOMER NAME SEARCH CODE 06 CUSTOMER-TYPE PIC X(1) CUSTOMER TYPE 06 ACCT-REC-BALANCE PIC S9(8)V9(2) COMP-3. * | CUSREC |

Figure 9-7. Example of the Results of the Copy Statement, DD Format with the Alias Keyword

Program Described Files

Records and fields for a program described file are described by coding record descriptions in the File Section of the COBOL program instead of using the COPY statement, DDS or DD format.

The file must be created on the system before the program can be executed. This can be done by using one of the Create File commands. See the CL Reference Manual for the commands.

DDS can be used with the Create File commands. For a COBOL indexed file, a keyed access path must be created. This can be done by specifying a key in DDS when the file is created. The record key in COBOL must match the key defined when the file was created.

Printer File Considerations

You can obtain printed output from a COBOL program by issuing WRITE statements to one or more printer files. Each printer file must have a unique name and be assigned to a device of PRINTER or FORMATFILE in the ASSIGN clause of that file's FILE-CONTROL entry. A device of PRINTER must be used for program described files, and a device of FORMATFILE must be used for externally described printer files. The Create Print File (CRTPRTF) command can be used to create a printer file (see the *CL Reference Manual* for further information on the CRTPRTF command), or one of the IBM-supplied printer device files, such as QPRINT can be used.

The file operations that are valid for a printer file are WRITE, OPEN, and CLOSE. For a complete description of these operations, see Chapter 5.

FORMATFILE must be used when the file is an externally described printer file. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for information on the DDS for externally described printer files.

SPECIAL-NAMES Paragraph and the ADVANCING Phrase

When the mnemonic-name associated with the function-name CSP is specified in the ADVANCING phrase of a WRITE statement for a printer file, it has the same effect as specifying ADVANCING 0 LINES.

When the mnemonic-name associated with the function-name CO1 is specified in the ADVANCING phrase of a WRITE statement for a printer file, it has the same effect as specifying ADVANCING PAGE.

The ADVANCING phrase cannot be specified in WRITE statements for files assigned to FORMATFILE.

LINAGE Clause

When the LINAGE clause is specified for a file assigned to PRINTER, all spacing and paging controls are handled internally by the compiler. At OPEN time, the printer is positioned to a new physical page and the LINAGE-COUNTER is set to 1. All spacing or paging for following WRITE statements for the file is controlled internally, and the physical page size is ignored. For a file that has a LINAGE clause and is assigned to PRINTER, paging consists of spacing to the end of the logical page (page body) and then spacing past the bottom and top margins.

Use of the LINAGE clause degrades performance. The LINAGE clause should be used only as necessary. If the physical paging is acceptable, the LINAGE clause is not necessary.

The LINAGE clause should not be used for files assigned to FORMATFILE.

FORMATFILE Files

Externally described printer files must be assigned to a device of FORMATFILE. The term FORMATFILE is used because the FORMAT phrase is valid in WRITE statements for the file, and the data formatting is specified in the DDS for the file.

When you have specified a device of FORMATFILE, you can obtain formatting of printed output in two ways:

- 1. Choose which formats to print in which order by using appropriate values in the FORMAT phrases specified for WRITE statements. For example, use one format once per page to produce a heading, and use another format to produce the detail lines on the page.
- 2. Choose the appropriate options to be taken when each format is printed by setting indicator values and passing these indicators through the INDICATOR phrase for the WRITE statement. For example, fields may be underlined, blank lines may be produced before or after the format is printed, or the printing of certain fields may be skipped.

The use of external descriptions for printer files has the following advantages over program descriptions:

• Multiple lines can be printed by one WRITE statement. When multiple lines are written by one WRITE statement and the END-OF-PAGE condition is reached, the END-OF-PAGE imperative statement is executed after all of the lines are printed. It is possible to print lines in the overflow area, and onto the next page before the END-OF-PAGE imperative statement is executed.

Figure 9-8 shows an example of an occurrence of the END-OF-PAGE condition through FORMATFILE.

- Optional printing of fields based on indicator values is possible.
- Editing of field values is easily defined.
- Maintenance of print formats, especially those used by multiple programs, is easier.

Use of the ADVANCING phrase for FORMATFILE files causes a compilation error to be issued. Advancing of lines is controlled in a FORMATFILE file through DDS keywords such as SKIPA and SKIPB, and through the use of line numbers.

For FORMATFILE files, the LINAGE clause is invalid.

Figure 9-9 shows an example of using an externally described printer file through FORMATFILE.

| STMT | SFORBR -A L B 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 .IDENTF | CN S COPYNAME CHG/D |
|------|---|---------------------|
| 1 | 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. | |
| 2 | 000200 PRQGRAM-ID. FORMATFILE. | |
| 3 | 000300 AUTHOR. IBM CANADA LABORATORY. | |
| 4 | 000400 ENVIRGNMENT DIVISION. | |
| 5 | 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. | |
| 6 | 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. | |
| 7 | 000700 OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. | |
| 8 | 000800 INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION. | |
| 9 | 000900 FILE-CONTROL. | |
| 10 | 001000 SELECT PERSREPT ASSIGN TO FORMATFILE-PERSREPT-SI | |
| 11 | OOLLOO ORGANIZATION IS SEQUENTIAL. | |
| 12 | 001200 SELECT PERSFILE ASSIGN TO DATABASE-PERSFILE | |
| 13 | 001300 ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED | |
| 14 | 001400 ACCESS MODE IS SEQUENTIAL | |
| 15 | 001500 RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY. | |
| 16 | 001600 DATA DIVISION. | |
| 17 | 001700 FILE SECTION. | |
| 18 | 001800 | |
| 19 | 001900 FD PERSREPT | |
| 2Q | 002000 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD. | |
| 21 | 002100 01 PERSREPT-REC. | |
| 22 | 002200 COPY DDS-ALL-FURMAIS-U OF PERSKEPI-EXAMPLES. | |
| 23 | +000001 05 PERSKEPI-RECURD PIC X11461. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +0000027 NUTPUT FURPATTHEADING FRUM FILE PERSKEPT OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 34 | +000003* | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 24 | | |
| 25 | AUDOURDS OF ORDERATE FIC ALLST | C-ALL-FRIS |
| | | C-ALL-FAIS |
| 26 | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 27 | +000009 06 NAME PIC X(30). | C-ALL-FHTS |
| 28 | +000010 06 EMPLND PIC \$9(6). | C-ALL-FHTS |
| 29 | +000011 06 BIRTHDATE PIC X(6). | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 30 | +000012 06 ADDRESS1 PIC X(35). | C-ALL-FATS |
| 31 | +000013 06 MARSTAT PIC X(1)+ | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 32 | +000014 06 SPOUSENAME PIC X(30). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 33 | +000015 06 ADDRESS2 PIC X(35). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 34 | +000016 06 NUMCHILD PIC \$9(2). | C-ALL-ENTS |

Figure 9-8 (Part 1 of 3). Example of the END-OF-PAGE Condition



Figure 9-8 (Part 2 of 3). Example of the END-OF-PAGE Condition

| | | COBOL SOURCE LISTING FORMATFILE | |
|------|--------|--|-----------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR | -A 1 B 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S C | OPYNAME CHG/DA1 |
| | 003800 |)/ | |
| 62 | 003900 | PROCEDURE DIVISION. | |
| | 004000 |) FIRST-SECT SECTION. | |
| | 004100 |) FIRST-PARA. | |
| 63 | 004200 | D OPEN INPUT PERSFILE | |
| | 004300 | D OUTPUT PERSREPT. | |
| 64 | 004400 | PERFORM HEADING-LINE. | |
| 65 | 004500 |) PERFORM PROCESS-RECORD UNTIL END-OF-FILE. | |
| 66 | 004600 | CLUSE PERSFILE PERSREPT. | |
| 67 | 004700 | STUP RUN. | |
| | 004800 | | |
| 4.0 | 004700 | D READ REDECTION AT END OF THE AT THE | |
| 70 | 005000 | A READ FERSILE AL END SEL END-OF-FILE IN IRVE. | |
| 71 | 005200 | J PERFORM DETATLE INCM | |
| •• | 005300 | | |
| | 005400 | PRINT-RECORD. | |
| 72 | 005500 | | |
| 73 | 005600 | MOVE CORR PERSREC TO DETAIL-O. | |
| 74 | 005700 | IF MARSTAT IN PERSEILE-REC = MARRIED THEN | |
| 75 | 005800 | MOVE B"1" TO INOL IN DETAIL-O-INDIC | |
| | 005900 | DELSE | |
| 76 | 006000 | D MOVE B"O" TO INOL IN DETAIL-O-INDIC. | |
| 77 | 006100 |) WRITE PERSREPT-REC FORMAT IS "DETAIL" | |
| | 006200 | INDICATORS ARE DETAIL-O-INDIC | |
| 78 | 006300 | D AT EOP PERFORM HEADING-LINE. | |
| | 006400 | D HEADING-LINE. | |
| 79 | 006500 | NOVE HEAD-DRDER TO ORDERTYPE. | |
| 60 | 006600 | WRITE PERSREPT-REC FORMAT IS "HEADING". | |
| | | ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

1 If the number of lines per page has been exceeded, END-OF-PAGE occurs. The format HEADING is printed on a new page.

Figure 9-8 (Part 3 of 3). Example of the END-OF-PAGE Condition



Figure 9-9 (Part 1 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE



Figure 9-9 (Part 2 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE

| 1 | INDARA specifies | that a separate | indicator area | is to | be used | for the | file. |
|---|-------------------------|-----------------|----------------|-------|---------|---------|-------|
| | · · · | 1 | | | | | |

2 HEADING is the format name which provides headings for each page.

- **3** SKIPB(1) and SPACEA(3) are used to:
 - 1. Skip to line 1 of the next page before format HEADING is printed.
 - 2. Leave 3 blank lines after format HEADING is printed.
- **4** DATE, TIME and PAGNBR are used to have the current date, time and page number printed automatically when format HEADING is printed.
- 5 DETAIL is the format name used to print the detail line for each employee in the personnel file.
- 6 SPACEA(3) causes 3 lines to be left blank after each employee detail line.
- **7** SPACEA(1) causes a blank line to be printed after the field BIRTHDATE is printed. As a result, subsequent fields in the same format are printed on a new line.
- 8 01 means that these fields are printed only if the COBOL program turns indicator 01 on and passes it when format DETAIL is printed.
- 9 EDTCDE(3) is used to remove leading zeros when printing this numeric field.

Figure 9-9 (Part 3 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE

| 5/140 | NI KOS 400 830810 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | 03/04/ |
|-------|---------------------------------|--|-------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 B 2 2 | 3 4 5 5 7 .IDENTECN S | COPYNAME |
| 1 | 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISIO | 3N • | |
| 2 | 000200 PROGRAM-ID. FORMATFILE | • | |
| 3 | 000300 AUTHOR. IBM CANADA L | ABORATORY. | |
| 4 | 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. | | |
| 5 | 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. | , | |
| 6 | 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S | 538. | |
| 7 | 000700 OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S | 39. | |
| 8 | 000800 INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. | | |
| 9 | 000900 FILE-CONTROL. | | |
| 10 | 001000 SELECT PERSREPT A | SSIGN TO FORMATFILE-PERSR=PT-SI | |
| 11 | 001100 ORGANIZATION | IS SEQUENTIAL. | |
| 12 | 001200 SELECT PERSPILE | ISSIGN TO DATAGASE-PERSEILE | |
| 13 | OUI300 ORGANIZATION | 15 INDEXED | |
| 14 | | IS SEQUENTIAL | |
| 14 | | IS EXTERNALLY DESCRIDED-NOT. | |
| 17 | OOLOOD DATA DIVISION | | |
| 18 | 001800 | | |
| 19 | | | |
| 20 | | E STANDARD. | |
| 21 | 002100 01 PERSPERT-REC. | | |
| 22 | 002200 COPY DOS-ALL-EOR | MATS-D DE PERSREPT-EXAMPLES. 2 | |
| 24 | +000001 05 PERSREPT-REC | ORD PIC X(146). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 25 | +000002 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000003* OUTPUT FORMAT: HEADING | FROM FILE PERSREPT OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <- ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004* | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| Z6 | +000005 05 HEADING-0 | REDEFINES PERSREPT-PECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 27 | +000006 06 OKDERTYPE | PIC X(15). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 28 | +000007 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000008≑ OUTPUT FORMAT:DETAIL | FPOM FILE PERSREPT OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000009* | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 29 | +000010 05 DETAIL-0 | REDEFINES PERSREPT-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 30 | +000011 06 NAME | PIC X(30). | <-ALL+FMTS |
| 31 | +000012 06 EMPLND | PIC \$9161. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 32 | +000013 06 BIRTHDATE | PIC X(6). 3 | <-ALL-CMTS |
| 33 | +000014 05 AUDRESS1 | PIC X(35). | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 34 | +UUUUIS DE MARSTAT | PIL X(1). | <-ALL-CMTS |
| 35 | +000016 05 SPRUSENAM | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 36 | +UUUUL/ U6 ADDRESS2 | PIC X(35). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 37 | +UUUUUI8 US NUMCHILD | PIL 59(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |

Figure 9-9 (Part 4 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE

| 57140 | B1 805 M00 | 83061 | 0 | | | COBOL | SOURC | ELIST | ING | | | FORMA | TFILE | 03/04/ |
|-------|------------|-------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-------|---|---------|---------|-------|----------|---------------|--------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A | 1 8 | •••• | 2 | ••• 3 | ••• •• | • 4 • | •• ••• | 5 | • ••• | 5 | ••• | 7 •IDENTFCN S | COPYNAME |
| | 002300/ | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 38 | 002400 FC | PEF | SFILE | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 39 | 002500 | 1 | ABEL | FCDRO | S ARE | STANDA | RD. | | | | | | | |
| 40 | 002600 | 01 F | FRSFI | F-REC | | | | | | | | | | |
| 41 | 002700 | | OPY D | S-ALL. | FORM | ATS D | F PFR | SETLE- | FXAMP | LES. | | | | |
| 43 | +000001 | | 5 PFI | SFILE | RECO | RD PTC | x1145 | 1. | | | | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 44 | +000002 | - | | | | | | | | | | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000003* | 1-0 | | TIPER | SREC | ERDM | ETLE | PERSE | TIF | OF LT | 38ARY | ⊢ X A MI | PLES | <-ALL-EMTS |
| | +000004* | | | | | | | 1 2.101 | | | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000005¢TH | | DEET | | S EOR | RECORD | EOPM | AT 06 | RSPEC | | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +0000064 | NUMPE | R | | 5 1 0 1 | NAME | 10.01 | 41 · L | RETR | 15 VAL | т | YPE | AL TSEO | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000001+ | 0001 | | | EMPL | NO | | | 450 | ENGLIG | | N | NO | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 45 | +000008 | 0000 | 15 PFI | SAFC | | VEDEET | | COSETI | E-REC | URD. | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 46 | +000009 | | 05 | EMPLN | 2 | ACDET 1 | pir | 50161 | | | | | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 47 | +000010 | | 06 | NAME | | | PIC | YI301. | | | | | | C-ALL-EMTS |
| 48 | +000011 | | 06 | AUDRE | 122 | | DIC | ¥/351 | | | | | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 49 | +000012 | | 05 | ADORE | 522 | | PIC | ¥(35). | | | | | | C-ALL-EMTS |
| 50 | +000013 | | 06 | BIRTH | | | PIC | ¥161. | | | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 51 | +000014 | | 06 | MARST | AT | | PIC | ¥(1). | | | | | | C-ALL-EMTS |
| 52 | +000015 | | 06 | SPILLS | | | PIC | ¥(3)). | | | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 53 | +000016 | | 06 | NUMCH | TI D | | PIC | \$9121 | | | | | | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 54 | 002800 | | | 10.00 | | | - 10 | ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | | | | | | |
| 55 | 002900 W | | - STUR | GE SE | TION | | | | | | | | | |
| 56 | 003000 01 | F | FRSRE | T-FOR | MAT-I | NED. | | | | | | | | |
| 57 | 003100 | 05 1 | FAD-L | INES | PIC | 9 COMP | VALU | F 3. | | | | | | |
| 58 | 003200 | 05 1 | (EAD-O | OFR | PIC | X(15) | VALU | - | U UYE = | NIMIE | 2". | | | |
| 59 | 003300 | 05 0 | INTE | -I INES | PIC | 9 COMP | VALU | F 5. | LUIL | | • | | | |
| 60 | 003400 | | | | | , | | | | | | | | |
| 61 | 003500 01 | F | FRSRE | | 105- | | | | | | | | | |
| 62 | 003600 | Ċ | OPY D | 114-20 | FORM | 1-0-214 | NDIC | | SKEPT | -EXAMPI | 1.55 | 4 | | |
| 64 | +000001 | ć | 5 PF | SREPT | -RECO | RD. | | | | | | | | <-ALL-EMTS |
| 65 | +000002 | | 5 A A | | | | | | | | | | | C-ALL-EMTS |
| | +000003* | UTPUT | FORM. | T:HEA | DING | EROM | FILF | PERSE | EPT | DF LT | dRARY | LXAME | PLES | <- ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004* | | | | | | | | | | | | | <- ALL-FMTS |
| | +000005* | | 05 | HEADTI | NG-0- | INDIC - | | | | | | | | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 66 | +000006 | | | | | 0.50 | | | | | | | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000007* 0 | υτρυτ | FORM. | T:DET. | AIL | FROM | FILF | PERSH | EPT | OF LTH | | LXAME | PLES | <- ALL-CHTS |
| | +000008* | | | | | . (5.3 | | | | | | | | <- ALL-F 1TS |
| 67 | +000009 | | U6 | DETAI | L-0-1 | NDIC . | | | | | | | | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 68 | +000010 | | | 07 | INO1 | | PIC | 1 1 10 | 01C 01 | | | | | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 69 | 003700 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 70 | 003800 71 | r 6 | OF-FL | AG | PIC | x | VALU | E "O". | | | | | | |
| 71 | 003900 | 88 1 | OT-EN | 0-0F-F | ILE | | VALU | F "0". | | | | | | |
| 72 | 004000 | 89 6 | ND-OF | FILE | | | VALU | E "1". | | | | | | |
| 73 | 004100 71 | | ARRIE |) | PIC | X | VALU | F "M". | | | | | | |
| 74 | 004200 71 | · . | INE-C | JUNT | PIC | 9(3) | COMP | VALU | JE 99. | | | | | |
| 75 | 004300 71 | r i | AGE-S | 17 F | PIC | 91.11 | COMP | VALL | F 55. | | | | | |

Figure 9-9 (Part 5 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE



Figure 9-9 (Part 6 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE

- 1 The externally described printer file is assigned to device FORMATFILE.
- 2 The COPY statement, DDS format, is used to copy the fields for the printer file into the program.
- 3 Note that although the fields in format DETAIL will be printed on 3 separate lines, they are defined in one record.
- 4 COPY-DDS is used to copy the indicators used in the printer file into the program.
- 5 Paragraph PROCESS-RECORD performs PRINT-RECORD for each employee record.
- **1** If the number of lines per page has been exceeded, format HEADING is printed on a new page. The current line count is reset to the number of lines taken up by HEADING.
- 2 All fields in the employee record are moved to the record for format DETAIL.
- B If the employee is married, indicator 01 is turned on; otherwise the indicator is turned off, preventing the spouse's name field in DETAIL from being printed.
- 9 Format DETAIL is printed with indicator 01 passed to control printing.
- **10** The number of lines (including blank lines) taken up by DETAIL is added to the current line count.
- Figure 9-9 (Part 7 of 7). Example of the Use of Externally Described Printer Files Assigned to a Device of FORMATFILE

Card File Considerations

The following paragraphs discuss the COBOL processing unique to card files. This processing includes card file function specification, hopper selection, stacker selection, nonassociated card files, and associated card files.

Specifying the Function

For System/38 COBOL, card file processing is divided into four I-O functions: reading, punching, printing, and punching-printing. The device-name specified in the ASSIGN clause for a card file is a function selection. The valid devices are READER, PUNCH, PRINT, and PUNCHPRINT. At execution time, the system-name specified in the ASSIGN clause must correspond to a card file specified on a Create Card File (CRTCRDF) command.

Nonassociated Card Files

Card files are nonassociated if no association-number is specified in the ASSIGN clause. Nonassociated card file processing is limited to processing of only one of the four I-O functions. Thus, only one nonassociated card file can be open at a time, and only its specified function can be performed.
Associated Card File

Card files are associated when an association-number is specified in the ASSIGN clause. All card files with the same association-number are then processed at the same time. They must all be open before any processing is done, and all processing must be complete when a CLOSE is issued for any of the files. Associated card file processing allows the functions of reading, punching, and printing to be combined for one system and file. Only one set of associated card files per MFCU can be processed (open) at a time. Associated card files cannot be spooled.

File status on associated files is set only on the COBOL verb that actually causes the 5424 Multi-Function Card Unit (MFCU) to process the card. For example, if a READER and PUNCH or PRINT or PUNCHPRINT are associated, the card is processed only on the READ statement execution, and file status is set only for the READ statement. If a PUNCH and PRINT are associated, and the READER is not specified, card processing occurs only on the WRITE (Print) verb, and file status is set only for the WRITE statement. See Appendix D for more information on associated card file processing.

Stacker Selection

Stacker selection allows the user to specify the stacker that the cards are to be put into after a punch or print operation. The stacker selection is done in the COBOL program by:

- 1. Specifying a mnemonic-name for the function-names S01, S02, S03, S04, or S05 in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. S01 through S04 correspond to stackers 1 through 4, and S05 corresponds to stacker 1.
- 2. Specifying the mnemonic-name for the desired stacker in the WRITE ADVANCING mnemonic-name statement for the card file.

If a stacker is not selected by the program, stacker 1 is assumed.

Hopper Selection

Hopper selection allows the user to select the specific hopper from which the cards are to be processed. The hopper is selected in the ASSIGN clause by specifying P for the primary hopper and S for the secondary hopper. If a hopper is not specified, the primary hopper is assumed. The primary hopper must be used for associated card files.

A hopper can also be specified on the CRTCRDF command. For information on the CRTCRDF command, see the *CL Reference Manual*.

DISK and DATABASE File Considerations

Data base files, which are associated with the COBOL devices of DATABASE and DISK, can be:

- Externally described files, whose fields are described to CPF through DDS
- Program described files, whose fields are described in the program that uses the file.

All data base files are created by CPF create file commands. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for a description of the CPF commands that relate to data base files.

DATABASE versus DISK Files

Ass²gning a file to DISK in COBOL restricts the user to traditional DISK processing. The use of DATABASE as the device permits the user to make use of the special System/38 COBOL data base features such as formats and duplicate record keys.

Processing Methods for DISK and DATABASE Files

COBOL Indexed Files: An indexed file is a file whose access path is built on key values. The user must create a keyed access path for a 1 indexed file by using DDS.

To write standard ANS COBOL X3.23-1974 to access an indexed file, the file must be created with certain characteristics. The following table lists these characteristics and what controls them.

| Characteristic | Control | | | | |
|---|------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| The file must be a physical file. | The CRTPF CL command | | | | |
| The file cannot have records with duplicate key values. | The DDS keyword UNIQUE | | | | |
| The file cannot be a shared file. | The CRTPF CL command | | | | |
| A key must be defined for the file. | DDS | | | | |
| Keys must be in ascending sequence. | DDS | | | | |
| Keys must be contiguous within the record. | DDS | | | | |
| Key fields must be alphanumeric. They cannot be numeric only. | DDS | | | | |
| The value of the key used for sequencing must include all 8 bits of every byte. | DDS | | | | |
| A starting position for retrieving records cannot be specified. | The OVRDBF CL command | | | | |
| Select/omit level keywords cannot be used for the file. | DDS | | | | |

When a record is copied using the COPY statement, DDS or DD format, a comment table appears in the COBOL source program listing identifying the characteristics controlled by DDS. This table includes:

- Key field number
- Key field name
- Keywords specified
- Data type.

An indexed file is identified by the ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED clause of the SELECT statement.

The key fields identify the records in an indexed file. The user specifies the key field in the RECORD KEY clause of the SELECT statement. The RECORD KEY data item must be defined within a record description for the indexed file. If there are multiple record descriptions for the file, only one need contain the RECORD KEY data-name. However, the same positions within the record description that contain the RECORD KEY data item are accessed in the other record descriptions as the KEY value for any references to the other record descriptions for that file.

An indexed file can be accessed sequentially, randomly by key, or dynamically.

Valid RECORD KEYS: The DDS for the file specifies the field(s) to be used as the key field. If the file has multiple key fields, the key fields must be contiguous in each record unless RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY is specified.

When the DDS specifies only one key field for the file, the RECORD KEY must be a single field of the same length as the key field defined in the DDS.

If a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, is specified for the file, the RECORD KEY clause must specify one of the following:

- The name used in the DDS for the key field if the name is not a COBOL reserved word.
- The name used in the DDS for the key field with -DDS added to the end if the name is a COBOL reserved word.
- The data-name defined with the proper length and at the proper location in a program described record description for the file.
- EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY. This keyword specifies that the key(s) defined in DDS for each record format are to be used for accessing the file. These keys can be noncontiguous. They can be defined at different positions within the record format.

When the DDS specifies multiple contiguous key fields, the RECORD KEY data-name must be a single field with its length equal to the sum of the lengths of the multiple key fields in the DDS. If a COPY statement, DDS or DD format, is specified for the file, there must also be a program described record description for the file that defines the RECORD KEY data-name with the proper length and at the proper position in the record.

Referring to a Partial Key

A generic START statement allows the use of a partial key. The KEY IS phrase is required.

"START Statement" in Chapter 5 lists the rules for specifying a search argument that refers to a partial key.

Figure 9-10 shows an example of generic STARTS using a program described file.

Figure 9-11 shows an example of generic STARTS using an externally described file.

```
COBOL SOURCE LISTING
CHG/DATE
       000700 FILE-CONTROL.
                    SELECT FILE-1 ASSIGN TO DISK-FILE1
   8
       000800
       000900
                    ACCESS IS DYNAMIC RECORD KEY IS FULL-NAME IN FILE-1
   a
      001000
                   ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED.
  10
      001100 DATA DIVISION.
  11
  12
      001200 FILE SECTION.
      001300 FD FILE-1 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD.
  13
      001400 01 RECORD-DESCRIPTION.
  14
       001500
                   03 FULL-NAME.
  15
                      05 LAST-AND-FIRST-NAMES.
07 LAST-NAME
07 FIRST-NAME
  16
       001600
                                                        PIC X(20).
      001700
  17
      001800
                                                       PIC X(20).
PIC X(20).
  18
  19
      001900
                       05 MIDDLE-NAME
      002000
                   03 LAST-FIRST-MIDDLE-INITIAL-NAME REDEFINES FULL-NAME
  20
  21
      002100
                                                       PIC X(41).
PIC X(40).
  22
       002200
                   03 REST-OF-RECORD
       002300/
      002400 PROCEDURE DIVISION.
  23
       002500 START-PROGRAM
                   OPEN INPUT FILE-1.
  24
      002600
       002700*
       002800≠ POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME OF
       002900*
               "SMITH"
                   NOVE "SMITH" TO LAST-NAME.
START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LAST-NAME
INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR " LAST-NAME
      003000
  25
  26
      003100
  27
       003200
  28
       003300
                                        GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
      003400≠
003500≠
       003600*
       003700*
       003800* POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME OF
       003900* "SMITH" AND A FIRST NAME OF ROBERT
004000 MOVE "SMITH" TO LAST-NAME.
004100 MOVE "ROBERT" TO FIRST-NAME.
      004000
  29
  30
                   START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LAST-AND-FIRST-NAMES
INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR "
  31
       004200
  32
      004300
       004400
                                                  LAST-AND-FIRST-NAMES
  33
       004500
                                        GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
       004600*
                           .
       004700*
       004800*
       004900*
       005000≑ POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME OF
                "SMITH", A FIRST NAME OF ROBERT, AND A MIDDLE INITIAL OF "M"
MOVE "SMITH" TO LAST-NAME.
MOVE "ROBERT" TO FIRST-NAME.
       005100*
       005200
  34
  35
      005300
      005400
                    MOVE "M" TO MIDDLE-NAME.
  36
       005500
                    START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LAST-FIRST-MIDDLE-INITIAL-NAME
  37
                          INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR "
LAST-FIRST-MIDDLE-INITIAL-NAME
  38
       005600
       005700
       005800
                                        GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
  39
       005900
       006000
       006100 ERROR-ROUTINE.
  40
       006200
                    STOP RUN.
```

Figure 9-10. Generic STARTS Using a Program Described File

| SEQNBR | * | 1 | . 2 | ••• 3 ••• | | 4 5 6 7 8 DATE |
|--------|----------|---|--------|-----------|---|-----------------------------|
| 100 | A | | | | | UNIQUE |
| 200 | A | R | RDE | | | TEXT("RECORD DESCRIPTION") |
| 300 | A | | FNAME | 20 | | TEXT("FIRST NAME") |
| 400 | A | | MINAME | 1 | | TEXT("MIDDLE INITIAL NAME") |
| 500 | A | | MNAME | 19 | | TEXT("REST OF MIDDLE NAME") |
| 600 | A | | LNAME | 20 | | TEXT ("LAST NAME") |
| 700 | A | | PHONE | 10 | 0 | TEXT("PHONE NUMBER") |
| 800 | A | | DATA | 40 | | TEXT ("REST OF DATA") |
| 900 | A | ĸ | LNAME | | | |
| 1000 | A | ĸ | FNAME | | | |
| 1100 | A | κ | MINAME | | | |
| 1200 | Á | κ | MNAME | | | |

Figure 9-11 (Part 1 of 2). Generic STARTS Using an Externally Described File

```
COBOL SOURCE LISTING
STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 ... 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME
                                                                                                                                                                                                              CHG/DATE
           000700 FILE-CONTROL.
      7
                                 SELECT FILE-1 ASSIGN TO DATABASE-NAMES
ACCESS IS DYNAMIC RECORD KEY IS EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY
            000800
      8
      ٥
           000900
           001000
                                  ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED.
   10
            001100 DATA DIVISION.
   11
   12
           001200 FILE SECTION.
                                FILE-1 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD.
           001300 FD
   13
                                  RECORD-DESCRIPTION.
   14
           001400 01
           001500
                                 COPY DDS-RDE IN NAMES-PUBS.
    15
   17 +000001
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
          +000002*
                                  FROM FILE NAMES
                                                                            OF LIBRARY PUBS
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
                                 RECORD DESCRIPTION
          +000003¢
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
                                 05 RDE.
RECORD KEY FOR INDEXED FILE, KEY 0002 KEY FIELD NAME FNAME
   18 +000004
                                                                                                                                                                                       RDF
          +000005*
                                                                                                                                                                                       RDE
   19
        +000006
                                              06 FNAME
                                                                                         PIC X(20).
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
                                 FIRST NAME
RECORD KEY FOR INDEXED FILE, KEY 0003 KEY FIELD NAME MINAME
          +000007*
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
          +000008*
                                                                                                                                                                                       RDE
   20 +000009
                                              06 MINAME
                                                                                         PIC X(1).
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
          +000010$
                                  MIDDLE INITIAL NAME
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
          +000011*
                                 RECORD KEY FOR INDEXED FILE, KEY 0004 KEY FIELD NAME MNAME
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
                                              06 MNAME
   21 +000012
                                                                                         PIC X(19).
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDF
                                  REST OF MIDDLE NAME
          +000013*
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
                                 RECORD KEY FOR INDEXED FILE, KEY 0001 KEY FIELD NAME LNAME
          +000014*
                                                                                                                                                                                       RDE
   22 +000015
                                              06 LNAME
                                                                                         PIC X(20).
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDF
          +000016#
                                 LAST NAME
                                                                                                                                                                                       RDF
                                              06 PHONE
                                                                                         PIC 59(10)
                                                                                                                           COMP-3.
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
   23 +000017
          +000018$
                                  PHONE NUMBER
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
   24 +000019
                                             06 DATA-DDS
                                                                                         PIC X(40).
                                                                                                                                                                                        ROF
                                  REST OF DATA
          +000020*
                                                                                                                                                                                        RDE
   25
           001600 66
                                MIDDLE-NAME RENAMES MINAME THRU MNAME.
            001700/
           001800 PROCEDURE DIVISION.
   26
           001900 START-PROGRAM.
                                 OPEN INPUT FILE-1.
   27
           002000
            002100*
           002200# POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME
            002300* OF "SMITH"
            002400
                                  MOVE "SMITH" TO LNAME.
                                 START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LNAME
INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR " LNAME
   29
           002500
   30
           002600
            002700
                                                                      GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
            002800*
            002900$
                                              .
            003000$
            003100‡
          003100*

003200* POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE ...

003200* POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE ...

003400 MOVE "SMITH" TO LNAME.

003500 MOVE "ROBERT" TO FNAME.

003600 START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LNAME, FNAME

00370C INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR "

003800 LNAME " FNAME

003800 FOR THE START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START START STAR
            003200≉ POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME
   32
   33
   34
   35
   36
                                                                      GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
           004000*
           004100≉
           004200≎
           004300*
                           POSITION THE FILE STARTING WITH RECORDS THAT HAVE A LAST NAME OF
           004400≉
                           "SMITH", A FIRST NAME OF ROBERT, AND A MIDDLE INITIAL OF "M"
MOVE "SMITH" TO LNAME.
MOVE "ROBERT" TO FNAME.
            004500*
           004600
   37
           004700
   38
                                 MOVE "M" TO MINAME.
   39
           004800
           004900
                                 START FILE-1 KEY IS EQUAL TO LNAME, FNAME, MINAME
   40
                                             INVALID KEY DISPLAY "NO DATA IN SYSTEM FOR "
LNAME SPACE FNAME SPACE MINAME
   41
           005000
           005100
           005200
   42
                                                                       GO TO ERROR-ROUTINE.
            005300
           005400
           005500
                         ERROR-ROUTINE.
   43
           005600
                                 STOP RUN.
```

Figure 9-11 (Part 2 of 2). Generic STARTS Using an Externally Described File

Logical File Considerations

When a logical file with multiple record formats, each having associated key fields, is processed as an indexed file in COBOL, the following restrictions and considerations apply:

- The FORMAT phrase must be specified on all WRITE statements to the file.
- If the access mode is RANDOM or DYNAMIC, and the DUPLICATES phrase is not specified for the file, the FORMAT phrase must be specified on all DELETE and REWRITE statements.
- When the FORMAT phrase is not specified, only the portion of the RECORD KEY data item that is common to all record formats for the file is used by the system as the key for the I-O statement. When the FORMAT phrase is specified, only the portion of the RECORD KEY data item that is defined for the specified record format is used by the system as the key. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more information on logical file processing.
- When *NONE is specified as the first key field for any format in a file, records can only be accessed sequentially. When a file is read randomly:
 - If a format name is specified, the first record with the specified format is returned.
 - If a format name is not specified, the first record in the file is returned.

In both cases, the value of the RECORD KEY data item is ignored.

- For a program defined key field:
 - Key fields within each record format must be contiguous.
 - The first key field for each record format must begin at the same relative position within each record.
 - The length of the RECORD KEY data item must be equal to the length of the longest key for any format in the file.
- For an EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY:
 - Key fields within each record format can be noncontiguous.
 - The key fields can begin at different positions in each record format.

Figures 9-12 and 9-13 show examples of how to use DDS to describe the access path for indexed files.

| ile | | | | | | | | | | Key | ing | Grap | nhic | | | | | | | Description Page of | | |
|--------------------|-------------|------------|-------------|-----------|--------------|---------|-----------|-------------------------|---------|----------|------------------|---------------------|------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|------------------|------|----------|-------|--|--|--|
| rogrammer | | | | | | | Date | • | | Inst | ruction | Key | | | | | | | | | | |
| A | | | Con | nditi | onin n Ne | me | | | | | | | (W/I/N/X/X/N) | | | Loca | tion | | | | | |
| Sequence Number | e Form Type | ar Not (N) | e Indicator | I Not (N) | L Indicator | Not (N) | Indicator | 2 Name 1ype land N.S.V. | Name | 26 27 28 | 66 Reference (R) | Longth 1 32 33 3 | S Data Type (# A/P/S/B | 96 Decimal LE Positions | B Usage (I/O/I/B/H/M) | Line 39 40 41 | Pos | 45 48 47 | 48.49 | Functions 99 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 54 65 66 67 66 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 | | |
| | A | f | | | | | F | 2 | FORMATA | | | | | | | | | PFI | LE | E(ORDOTLP) | | |
| | A | | | | | | - | ╀ | | | | | | | | | | Tex | +(| (Access Path for Indexed File | | |
| | A | Γ | | | | | | | FLDA | | \square | 7. | ŧ | | | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | ORDER | | | | 5 | ø | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | FLDB | | | Ιø. | 4 | | | | _ | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | ŀ | < | ORDER | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| _ | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | · · | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | . [| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | Τ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ΙT | | | | | | | |

*Number of sheets per pad may vary slightly.

Data description specifications must be used to create the access path for a program described indexed file.

In the DDS for the record format FORMATA for the logical file ORDDTLL, the field ORDER, which is 5 digits long, is defined as the key field, and is in packed format. The definition of ORDER as the key field establishes the keyed access for this file. Two other fields, FLDA and FLDB, describe the remaining positions in this record as character fields.

The program described input field ORDDTLL is described in the FILE-CONTROL section in the SELECT clause as an indexed file.

The COBOL descriptions of each field in the FD entry must agree with the corresponding description in the DDS file. The RECORD KEY data item must be defined as a 5-digit numeric integer beginning in position 15 of the record.

Figure 9-12. Using Data Description Specifications to Define the Access Path for an Indexed File

| IBM | ernet | ionel | Bus | inete | Mach | nines | Corp | orati | ion | | | D/ | A T | A DES | CF | RIPT | | I SPE | CI F | IC. | ATI | 0 | NS | ; | | | | | | | | | | | GX2 | 1-775 Prin | 4-1 U ted in | M/050* | • |
|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------|-------------|---------|-----------|-------|------------|---|--------------------------------|----------------------|--------------|--------------------|------------|-------------|----------------------|-------------------------------------|---------|--------|------|------|-------|------|------|----------|-----|-------|-------|-------|-------|----|--------|------|--------|-------|---------|---------------|-----------------|---------|---|
| File | | | | | | | | | | | Γ | Kevina | | Graph | ic | | | | | | | | | | ſ | Descr | iptio | n | | | | | | Pa | ge | | of | | 1 |
| Programmer | | | | | | | | Date | e | | | Instruct | tion | Key | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Α | | | | Cond | ition | ing | | | | | | | | | (WI/N/X | | Lo | cation | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | |] |
| Secuence | | A/0/•) | a | ondit | tion | Nam | • | | 0/5 | Nama | | | | Length | X/S A/S/X | - | | -1 | _ | | | | | | | | | Fun | ction | | | | | | | | | | |
| Number | P Form Type | And/Or/Comment (P Not (N) | b Indiantas | (N) (N) | Indicator | | | Indicator | - Name Type (WR/K) Brearved | 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 | 7 8 - | 8 Beference (R) | 20.1 | 1 12 13 14 | K Data Type (K A/P/S | 2 Positions 3 Usage (B/O/I/B/H/M | Line | Pos | | | 49 40 | 50 5 | . 62 | £7 E | | 14 E7 | 60 G | | e7 6 | ., | as. 60 | e7 e | 0 60 - | 10.11 | 70 70 1 | 4 75 7 | e 77 7 | 9 79 90 | |
| 12348 | A | / | ŀ | - | 12 | 13 14 | | - | e | FORMAT | | 27 28 28 | 50 3 | 31 32 33 34 | 30 | , ,, ,, | 38 40 - | | D | ст. | | 10 | 2 | 0.0 | ×π | |) | 00 01 | 02.0 | | 00 00 | 0/0 | | | 12 13 1 | . /5 / | | 8 /9 80 | 4 |
| | A | | h | - | | + | 1 | ! | 1 | | | - | 1 | | | | | | Tε | EX 1 | r (| 1 A | 12 | <u> </u> | \$ | 5 | Pa | th | | Fa | r | I, | 10 | ex | e d | E | 1 | ••• | |
| | | | Γ | - | | + | +- | + | | FLDA | | | 1 | 14 | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | - | | | | | 1 |
| | | | | | | | | | | ORDER | | | 1 | 5 | | | | | | | | | ÷, | | + + | | | • • | | | | | | ÷ | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | T | | | - | | ITEM | | | 1 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | Τ | | | | | | | | FLDB | T | | | 96 | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | ; | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | | | Τ | | ĸ | ORDER | | | | | | | | | | : | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | | | Τ | | ĸ | ITEM | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | - | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | | | | | Τ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ; | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | | | Τ | | Τ | | Τ | | Γ | | | | | | - | | | | | | 1 | - | | 1 | | - | | | : : | 1 | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Г | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 11 | | | | | | | | | | • . | : . | • • | | 1 |
| | A | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | 1.3 | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | 1 | | | 1 |
| | A | | | | | | T | | | | | | | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 11 | • • | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | Γ | | Τ | 1 | T | | | | T | | 1 | | T | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | : | | | : | 1 |
| | A | 1 | | | | | T | 1 | 1 | | 1 | | 1 | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | | | t i | - | Г | | ┢ | 1 | + | | | | 1 | | ╈ | | | 1 | | | | - | | - | | | | | T | | | - | | | | | | | 1 |
| | A | | T | + | Г | + | \uparrow | + | 1 | | | | + • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | 1 |
| | | + | +-+ | - | 1 | | + | + | + | | - | | | | + | | | +++ | | 11 | | | Π | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | : | 1 |
| | 1at | + | Ħ | - | | + | \top | H | | | | | Ħ | | + | | | | + | | | | | | Π | | | 1 | 1 | | | Ħ | | | Ht | T | | | 1 |
| | | + | H | + | + | + | + | H | + | | | ++ | Ħ | | + | + | | | + | | | | T | + | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| Number of the | ets (% | ar part | | v varv | sliph | tiv. | | <u>. </u> | | | | | <u> </u> | | | ili | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| number of she | en be | n h ad | 11181 | y vary | siign | ιuγ. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

In this example, the data description specifications define two key fields for the record format FORMAT in the logical file ORDDTLL. For the two fields to be used as a composite key for a program described indexed file, the key fields must be contiguous in the record.

The COBOL description of each field must agree with the corresponding description in the DDS file. A 10-character item beginning in position 15 of the record must be defined in the RECORD KEY clause of the file-control entry. The COBOL descriptions of the DDS fields ORDER and ITEM would be subordinate to the 10-character item defined in the RECORD KEY clause.

Figure 9-13. Using Data Description Specifications to Define the Access Path (a Composite Key) for an Indexed File

COBOL Relative File: A COBOL relative file is a file to be processed by a relative record number. To process a file by relative record number, ORGANIZATION IS RELATIVE must be specified in the SELECT statement for the file. A relative file can be accessed sequentially, randomly by record number, or dynamically.

To write standard ANS COBOL X3.23-1974 to access a relative file, the file must be created with certain characteristics. The following table lists these characteristics and what controls them.

| Characteristic | Control |
|---|-----------------------|
| The file must be a physical file. | The CRTPF CL command |
| The file cannot be a shared file. | The CRTPF CL command |
| No key can be specified for the file. | DDS |
| A starting position for retrieving records cannot be specified. | The OVRDBF CL command |
| Select/omit level keywords cannot be used for the file. | DDS |

For a COBOL file with an organization of RELATIVE, the Reorganize Physical File Member (RGZPFM) CL command can:

- Remove all deleted records from the file. Since COBOL initializes all relative file records to deleted records, any record that has not been explicitly written will be removed from the file. This causes the relative record numbers of all records after the first deleted record in the file to change.
- Change the relative record numbers if the file has a key and the arrival sequence is changed to match a key sequence (with the KEYFILE parameter).

Either result of the RGZPFM CL command causes the COBOL concept of a relative file to change.

COBOL Sequential File: A COBOL sequential file is a file in which records are processed in the order in which they were placed in the file; that is, in arrival sequence. For example, the tenth record placed in the file occupies the tenth record position and is the tenth record to be processed. To process a file as a sequential file, ORGANIZATION IS SEQUENTIAL must be specified in the SELECT clause, or the ORGANIZATION clause can be omitted. A sequential file can only be accessed sequentially.

To write standard ANS COBOL X3.23-1974 to access a sequential file, the file must be created with certain characteristics. The following table lists these characteristics and what controls them.

| Characteristic | Control | | | | | |
|---|----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| The file must be a physical file. | The CRTPF CL command | | | | | |
| The file cannot be a shared file. | The CRTPF CL command | | | | | |
| The device specified in the assignment-name must match the actual device to which the file is assigned. | | | | | | |
| No key can be specified for the file. | DDS | | | | | |
| The file must have a file-type of data. | The CRTPF command | | | | | |
| Field editing cannot be used. | DDS | | | | | |
| Line and position information cannot be specified. | DDS | | | | | |
| Spacing and shipping keywords cannot be specified. | DDS | | | | | |

| Characteristic | Control |
|--|---------|
| Indicators cannot be used. | DDS |
| System-supplied functions such as date, time, and page number cannot be used. | DDS |
| Select/omit level keywords cannot be used for the file. | DDS |

COBOL File Organization and System/38 File Access Path

Considerations: A file with a keyed sequence access path can be processed in COBOL as a file with INDEXED, RELATIVE, or SEQUENTIAL organization.

To process a keyed sequence file as a relative file in COBOL, the file must be a physical file, or a logical file whose members are based on one physical file member. To process a keyed sequence file as a sequential file in COBOL, the file must be a physical file, or a logical file that is based on one physical file member and that does not contain select/omit logic.

A file with an arrival sequence access path can be processed in COBOL as a file with RELATIVE or SEQUENTIAL organization. However, the file must be a physical file or a logical file where each member of the logical file is based on only one physical file member.

When sequential access is specified for a logical file, records in the file are accessed through the access path created by the user with create file options.

File Processing Methods

Figure 9-14 shows the valid processing methods and expected operation for combinations of organization, access mode, open state, I-O verb, and I-O verb modifiers.

Programming Note: All physical data base files that are opened for output are cleared. Data base files with RELATIVE organization are also initialized with deleted records, which is necessary for successful relative file processing on System/38. Relative files should be cleared and initialized with deleted records before they are used when the first OPEN statement for the file is not OPEN OUTPUT. See the discussion of the CLRPFM and INZPFM commands in the CL Reference Manual. The RECORDS parameter in the INZPFM command must specify *DLT. Overrides are applied when COBOL performs the clear and initialize operations, but overrides are not applied when the user performs the clear and initialize operations with CL commands.

Users can expect lengthy delays in OPEN OUTPUT processing for extremely large relative files (over 1,000,000 records), such as when *NOMAX is specified on the create file command.

Device files, such as QTAPE and QDKT, must be initialized by the user. Refer to the *CL Reference Manual* for information on the INZTAP and INZDKT commands.

Descending File Considerations

Files created with a descending keyed sequence (in DDS) cause the READ statement NEXT, PRIOR, FIRST, and LAST phrases to work in a fashion exactly opposite that of a file with an ascending key sequence. For example, READ FIRST retrieves the record with the highest key value, and READ LAST retrieves the record with the lowest key value. Files with a descending key sequence also cause the START qualifiers to work in the opposite manner. For example, START GREATER THAN positions the current record pointer to a record with a key less than the current key.

| ORG | ACC | DEV | OPEN | READ | WRITE | START | REWRITE | DELETE | CLOSE | FORMAT | SELECT CLAUSE KEY IS | 2 |
|----------------|-------------------------------|------|--------|---------------------|------------|-------|---------|-----------|----------|--------|----------------------------|---|
| S | S | ANY | INPUT | x | | | | | x | | | |
| s | S | ANY | OUTPUT | | X(F1) | | | | x | A1 | | |
| s | S | ANY | I-O | x | | | x | | × | | | |
| s | s | ANY | EXTEND | | x | | | | x | | | |
| 1 | S | D/DB | INPUT | x | | х | | | x | B1 | C1 | |
| 1 | s | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(F1) | | | | x | B1 | C1 | |
| 1 | S | D/DB | 1-0 | x | | х | x | x | × | B1 | C1 | |
| 1 | R | D/DB | INPUT | x | | | | | x | B1 | D1 | |
| 1 | R | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(F1) | | | | × | B1 | D1 | |
| I I | R | D/DB | I-0 | x | х | | x | x | x | B1 | D1 | |
| I | D | D/DB | INPUT | X | | х | | | х | B1 | D1 | |
| I | D | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(F1) | | | | × | B1 | D1 | |
| I | D | D/DB | I-0 | x | × | x | x | x | × | B1 | D1 | |
| R | S | D/DB | INPUT | x | | х | | | × | | C1 | |
| R | S | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(G1) | | | | × | | C1 | |
| R | S | D/DB | I-0 | x | | х | x | x | x | | C1 | |
| R | R | D/DB | INPUT | x | | | | | × | | E1 | |
| R | R | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(G1) | | | | × | | E1 | |
| R | R | D/DB | I-O | x | . X | | x | x | × | | E1 | |
| R | D | D/DB | INPUT | x | | х | | | × | | E1 | |
| R | D | D/DB | OUTPUT | | X(G1) | | | | × | | E1 | |
| R | D | D/DB | I-O | x | x | х | x | x | × | | E1 | |
| Т | S | w | 1-0 | x | х | | | | × | H1 | | |
| Т | D | W | I-0 | X(K1) | X(K1) | | х | | x | 1 | J1 | |
| ORG: | ORG: | | | | | | | DEV: | | | | |
| S = Sequential | | | | S = See | quential | | | ANY = Any | / device | | | |
| R = Relative | | | | R = Random D = DISK | | | | | | | | |
| T = T | = TRANSACTION W = WORKSTATION | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 9-14. Processing Methods Summary Chart

The following paragraphs explain the keys used in Figure 9-14.

- X The combination is allowed.
- A1 The FORMAT phrase is required for FORMATFILE files with multiple formats, and is not allowed for all other device files.
- B1 The FORMAT phrase is optional for DATABASE files, and not allowed for DISK files. If the FORMAT phrase is not specified, the default format name of the file is used. The default format name of the file is the first format name defined in the file.

The special register, DB-FORMAT-NAME, can be used to retrieve the format name used on the last successful I-O operation.

- C1 The SELECT clause KEY phrase is ignored except for the START statement. If the KEY phrase is not specified on the START statement, the RECORD KEY phrase or the RELATIVE KEY phrase in the SELECT clause is used and KEY = is assumed.
- D1 The SELECT clause KEY phrase is used except for the START statement. If the KEY phrase is not specified on the START statement, the RECORD KEY phrase in the SELECT clause is used and KEY = is assumed.

NEXT, PRIOR, FIRST, or LAST can be specified only for the READ statement for DATABASE files with DYNAMIC access. If NEXT, PRIOR, FIRST, or LAST is specified, the SELECT clause KEY phrase is ignored.

E1 The SELECT clause RELATIVE KEY phrase is used.

The NEXT phrase can be specified only for the READ statement for a file with DYNAMIC access mode. If NEXT is specified, the SELECT clause KEY phrase is ignored.

The RELATIVE KEY data item is updated with the relative record number for files with sequential access on READ operations.

- F1 A physical file opened for output is cleared.
- G1 A physical file opened for output is cleared and initialized to deleted records.
- H1 The FORMAT phrase is required for the WRITE statement.
- I1 The FORMAT phrase is required to distinguish between the subfile records and the subfile control record. The WRITE FORMAT IS control-record-format-name displays the subfile, but a READ FORMAT IS control-record-format-name is required to allow data to be entered and to cause the operator input for the subfile records on the display to be placed in the subfile.
- J1 The SELECT clause RELATIVE KEY phrase is used for READ, WRITE, and REWRITE statements that use the SUBFILE phrase, except that the READ SUBFILE NEXT MODIFIED uses the current system relative record number rather than the RELATIVE KEY data item. The RELATIVE KEY data item is

updated with the relative record number for subfile records for READ statements with the NEXT MODIFIED clause.

K1 The SUBFILE phrase is required when an I-O operation deals with a particular record rather than an entire file.

Commitment Control Considerations

Commitment control is a function that allows:

- Synchronization of changes to data base files within the same job
- Cancellation of changes that should not be permanently entered into the database
- Locking of records being changed until changes are complete
- Techniques for recovering from job or system failure.

In some applications, it is desirable to synchronize changes to data base records. If the program determines the changes are valid, the changes are then permanently made to the data base (a COMMIT statement is executed). If the changes are not valid, or if a problem occurs during processing, the changes can be canceled (a ROLLBACK statement is executed). (When a file is cleared after being opened for OUTPUT, execution of a ROLLBACK does not restore cleared records to the file.) Changes made to records in a file that is *not* under commitment control are always permanent. Such changes are never affected by subsequent COMMIT or ROLLBACK statements.

Each point where a COMMIT or ROLLBACK is successfully executed is a commitment boundary. (If no COMMIT or ROLLBACK has yet been issued in a program, a commitment boundary is created by the first open of any file under commitment control.) The committing or rolling back of changes only affects changes made since the previous commitment boundary.

The synchronizing of changes at commitment boundaries makes restart or recovery procedures after a failure easier. For more information see "Recovery After Failure" later in this chapter.

When commitment control is used for data base files, records in those files are subject to either a high lock level LCKLVL (*ALL) or a low lock level LCKLVL (*CHG). With a low lock level (*CHG), all records that are changed (rewritten, deleted, or added) in files under commitment control are locked until a COMMIT or ROLLBACK statement is successfully executed. With a high lock level (*ALL), *all* records accessed, whether for input or output, are locked until a COMMIT or ROLLBACK is successfully executed. For both record locking levels, no other job can modify data in locked records until the COMMIT or ROLLBACK has been successfully completed. (A locked record can only be modified within the same job and through the same physical or logical file.)

The lock level also governs whether locked records can be read. With a high lock level (*ALL), you cannot read locked records in a data base file.

I

With a low lock level (*CHG), you can read locked records in a data base file, provided the file is opened as INPUT in your job.

Other jobs, where files are *not* under commitment control, can always read locked records, regardless of the lock level used, provided the files are opened as INPUT. Because it is possible in some cases for other jobs to read locked records, data can be accessed *before it is permanently committed to a data base*. If a ROLLBACK statement is executed *after* another job has read locked records, the data accessed will not reflect the contents of the data base.

Figure 9-15 shows record locking considerations for files with and without commitment control.

| VERB | RB OPEN MODE LOCK LEVEL | L | DURATION OF RECO | RD LOCK | |
|---------|-------------------------|---|------------------------|-----------------------|--|
| | | | | Next I-O Operation | |
| DELETE | 1-0 | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | DELETE o o | |
| READ | INPUT | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | READ o o o | |
| READ | 1-0 | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | READ 0 | |
| REWRITE | 1-0 | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | REWRITE 0 0 | |
| START | INPUT | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | START o o | |
| START | I-O | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | START 0 | |
| WRITE | I-O | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | WRITE 0 1 | |
| WRITE | OUTPUT | Without Commitment Co With Commitment Control | ontrol *CHG *ALL | WRITE o o | |



A file under commitment control can be closed or opened without affecting the status of changes made since the last commitment boundary. A COMMIT must still be issued to make the changes permanent, or a ROLLBACK issued to cancel the changes. A COMMIT statement, when executed, leaves files in the same open or closed state as before execution.

All files under commitment control within the same job must be journaled to the same journal. For more information about journal management and its related functions, and for more information about commitment control, refer to the *CPF Programmer's Guide*.

Commitment control must also be specified outside the COBOL language through the CPF control language (CL). The Begin Commitment Control (BGNCMTCTL) CL command establishes the capability for commitment control and sets the level of record locking at the high level (*ALL), or the low level (*CHG). The BGNCMTCTL command does not automatically initiate commitment control for a file. That file must also be specified in the COMMITMENT CONTROL clause of the I-O-CONTROL paragraph within the COBOL program. The commitment control environment is normally terminated by using the End Commitment Control (ENDCMTCTL) CL command. This causes any uncommitted changes for data base files under commitment control to be cancelled. (An implicit ROLLBACK is executed.) Refer to the *CL Reference Manual* for more information on the BGNCMTCTL and ENDCMTCTL commands.

For more information about commitment control see the CPF Programmer's Guide.

Programming Note: The ability to prevent reading of uncommitted data that has been changed is a function of commitment control and is only available if you are running under commitment control. Normal (non-commit) data base support is not changed by the commitment control extension, and allows reading of locked records when a file that is opened only for input is read. Try to use files consistently. Typically, files should always be run under commitment control or never be run under commitment control.

Figure 9-16 shows an example of the use of commitment control.

The following example illustrates a possible use of commitment control in a banking environment. The program processes transactions for transferring funds from one account to another. If no problems occur during the transaction, the changes are committed to the data base file. If the transfer is invalid due to improper account number or insufficient funds, a ROLLBACK is issued to cancel the changes.



Figure 9-16 (Part 1 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control



Figure 9-16 (Part 2 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control

| STMT | SFONBR -A 1 8 2 | 3 4 5 6 7 .IJENTFCN | 5 CUPYNAME |
|------|--------------------------------|--|---------------|
| 47 | +000007 05 ACCTTJ | PIC \$9(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 48 | +000008 06 TRANSAMT | PIC 59(8)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 49 | +000009 | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000010* OUTPUT FORMAT:ACCTPM | T FROM FILE ACCTEMIS OF LIBRARY COMMIT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000011¢ | CUSTOMER ACCOUNT PROMPT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000012* 05 ACCTPMI-0 | REDEFINES ACLIEMTS-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 50 | +000013 | | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | +000014* INPOI FURMALLERREMI | PROM FILE ACCIPMIS OF LISMANT COMMIN | C-ALL-FHIS |
| | +000015* 05 ERRENT-1 | REDECTNES ACCTEMIS-RECIRC. | (-ALL-FMTS |
| 51 | +000017 | NEOCITINES RECTIONS NEOSADE | C-ALL-ENTS |
| | +000018* OUTPUT FORMAT: FRREMT | FROM FILE ACCTEMIS OF LINBARY COMMIT | <- ALL-FMTS |
| | +000019* | | <-ALL-FATS |
| | +000020≈ 05 ERRFMT-0 | REDEFINES ACCTEMTS-RECURD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 52 | 003500 WORKING-STORAGE SECTI | ON. | |
| 53 | 003600 77 ACCOUNT-FILE-STAT | US PIC XX. | |
| 54 | 003700 77 IND-ON PIC 1 V | ALUE B"1". | |
| 55 | 003800 77 IND-OFF PIC 1 V | ALUE 3"O". | |
| 56 | 003900 GL FROM-ACCOUNT-RECU | RD. | |
| 51 | | ALS UP ALLIMSI. | 2-411-5HTC |
| 59 | +000001 U5 ALLIMSI-REL | URU PIL XI321. | <- ALL-PMIS |
| 00 | +000002 I-0 EORMATIACONT | EC FROM FILE ACCEMENT OF LEVERARY COMMEN | (-ALL-EMTS |
| | +000004¢ | EC PROPETCE ASCINT OF LISEART COMPLE | <- ALL - FMTS |
| 61 | +000005 05 ACCNTREC | KEDEFINES ACCIMST-RECORD. | K-ALL-FMTS |
| 62 | +000006 05 ACENTKEN | PIC \$9(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 63 | +000007 U6 NAME | PIC X(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 64 | +000008 06 ADDR | P1C x(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 65 | +000009 U6 CITY | PIC X(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 66 | +000010 J6 STATE | PIC X(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 67 | +000011 05 ZIP | PIC \$9(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 68 | +000012 05 BALANCE | PIC \$9(8)V9(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 69 | 004100 01 TH-ALLUONI-RELOR | • | |
| 70 | +000001 05 +CCTPST-REC | ALS OF ALLIMSI. | C-ALL-ENTS |
| 73 | +000001 07 ACCTHST-REC | SKO PIC KIGZI. | (-ALL-F413 |
| | +0000030 1-0 EDKMAT:ACCNTE | EC FROM FILE ACCEMST OF LEARARY COMMENT | C-ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004* | | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 74 | +000005 05 ACCNTREC | REDEFINES ACCIMST-RECORD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 75 | +000006 06 ACENTKEY | PIC 59(5). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 76 | +000007 06 NAME | PIC X(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 77 | +000008 U6 ADDR | PIC X(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 78 | +000009 06 CITY | PIC X(20). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 79 | +000010 06 STATE | PIC X(2). | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 80 | +000011 06 ZIP | MIC 59(5). | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 82 | | LTC 2410144151* | V-ALL-FMIS |
| 82 | | | |
| 85 | +000001 05 ACCTEMTS-RE | CURD. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 86 | +000002 | | <-ALL-FHTS |
| - | +000003* INPUT FORMAT:ACCTPM | T FROM FILE ACCTEMTS OF LIBRARY COMMIT | <- ALL-FMTS |
| | +000004* | CUSTOMER ACCOUNT PROMPT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 87 | +000005 U6 ACCTPMT- | I-INDIC. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 88 | +000006 07 INI | 5 PIC 1 INDIC 15. | <-ALL-FMTS |
| | •000007☆ | END OF PROGRAM | <-ALL-FMTS |

C

C

Figure 9-16 (Part 3 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control

| STMT SEQNBR - 89 •000008 •000009 90 •000011 91 •000013 92 •000013 93 •000013 93 •000013 93 •000013 94 •000013 93 •000013 94 •000013 95 •000013 94 •000013 95 •000025 •0000025 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000000 •000000 •00005 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •0000000 •000000 •000000 •0000000 •0000000 •0000000 •000000 •0000000 •0000000 •00000000 | -A 1 B 2 3 | 4 5 5 | | |
|--|-------------------------|----------------------------|------------------|-------------|
| 89 •000008 •000010 •000010 •000012 •000013 •000013 •000014 •000013 •000015 •000014 •000015 •000015 •000016 •000017 •000024 •000024 •000024 •000027 •000024 •000027 •000024 •000027 •000024 •000024 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000024 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000024 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000024 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000025 •000024 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •000025 •0 | | | 5 7 .IDENTFON S | CUPYNAME |
| +0000010 +000010 +000012 +000012 +000012 +000012 +000012 +000018 +000018 +000018 +000018 +000018 +000018 +000018 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000025 +000024 +000024 +000025 +000024 +000025 +000025 +000024 +000025 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +00005 +0005 | 07 IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC 97. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 90 +000011* 91 +000012* +000013* +000013* 92 +000015* +000015* +000015* 93 +000015* 94 +000015* 95 +000017* 94 +000017* 95 +000022* +000025* +000025* +000025* +000025* +000027* 98 +000021* +000027* 94 +000023* +000023* +0000031 100 +000031 101 +000031 102 04500 004500 004500 004500 004500 005000 105 103 005100 104 005203 005300 005400 105 005400 005400 005400 005500 005400 005400 006400 006400 006400 006400 00640 | * | INVALID TO ACCOUNT NUME | 3FR | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000012 +000012 +0000132 +0000132 +000015 +000015 +000015 +000016 +000018 +000018 +000019 +000019 +000022 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000024 +000030 +000030 +000030 +000030 +000031 +000031 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000032 +000032 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000031 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000031 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000032 +000031 +000032 /ul> | 07 IN98 | PIC 1 INDIC 98. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 71 0000013* 92 0000013* 93 000017* 94 000017* 95 000017* 94 000017* 95 000017* 96 000021* 97 000023* 97 000025* •000027* 000027* 98 000027* 98 000027* 99 000031 100 000031 101 000031 102 04500 004600 004700 004600 004900 005000 105 105 005400 106 005500 107 005700 108 005900 105 005400 005300 005400 005400 006000 005400 006000 006000 006000 006000 006000 006000 006000 005100 <td>≠ 07 IN99</td> <td>INSUFFICIENT FUNDS IN F</td> <td>RUM ACCOUNT</td> <td>C-ALL-FMIS</td> | ≠ 07 IN99 | INSUFFICIENT FUNDS IN F | RUM ACCOUNT | C-ALL-FMIS |
| 92 +000014 +000015° 93 +000015° 93 +000018° 93 +000018° +000018° +000022° +000022° +000022° +000023° +000028° +000008° +000008° +000008° +000008° +000008° +00008° +00008° +00008° +00008° +00008° +000008° +0008° +00008° +00008° +0008° +0008° | ± 07 1477 | INVALID FROM ACCOUNT N | 14360 | C-ALL-FMIS |
| | | | JIJER | C-ALL-ENTS |
| +0000165 93 +000017 94 +000018 +0000199 95 +000021 +000022 +000022 +000024 +000025 +000035 +000025 +000035 +000005 +00005 +000035 +00005 +0005 +0005 +0005 +00005 +005 | ♥ OUTPUT FORMAT:ACCTPMT | FROM FILE ACCTEMTS OF | F LIBRARY COMMIT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 93 •000017 94 •000018 •000018 •000018 •000024 •000022 •000023 97 •000024 •000025 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000005 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 •000000 | \$ | CUSTOMER ACCOUNT PROMPT | r | <- ALL-FMTS |
| 94 •000018 •0000199 95 •000020 •0000210 96 •000022 •0000239 97 •000024 •0000259 •0000259 •0000279 98 •0000279 98 •0000279 98 •0000279 98 •0000279 98 •0000279 99 •000031 100 •000032 0000000 99 •0000031 100 •000033 102 004500 004500 004500 004500 005500 105 005400 105 005900 006400 006400 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 100 006600 006000 00600 00600 006000 006000 00600 006000 006000 006000 0 | 06 ACCTPMT-0-1 | INDIC. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +0000199 +000020 +000020 +000022 +000023 +000023 +000024 +000026 +000026 +000026 +000026 +000030 +00003 +00 | 07 IN97 | PIC 1 INDIC 97. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 95 +0000210 +0000210 96 +000022 +0000239 97 +000024 +0000255 +0000255 +0000255 +0000256 +0000276 98 +000031 100 +000031 100 +000031 100 +000033 101 +000033 102 034500 004600 004600 004600 004500 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 106 005500 006000 006000 006000 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 006600 006000 00600 00600 00600 00600 00600 00600 00600 00600 006000 | \$ | INVALID TO ACCOUNT NUME | 1ER | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000012 +000022 +000022 +000024 +000025 +000030 +000030 +000032 +0000000 +0000000 +0000000 +0000000 +0000000 +0000000 +00000000 | 07 IN98 | PIC 1 INDIC 98. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 96 +000023 97 +000023 97 +000025 +000025 +000025 +000025 +000025 +000025 +000031 100 +000031 100 +000033 102 034500 004600 004600 004600 004600 005000 103 005100 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 005600 005600 005600 006000 006000 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 006600 006000 00600 006000 006000 006000 006000 006000 00600 | * | INSUFFICIENT FUNDS IN F | RUM ACCOUNT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +000024 +000024 +000026 +000026 +000027 98 +000028 +000030 +000030 +000030 +000031 +000030 +000000 +000000 +000000 +000000 +000000 | 07 199 | PIC I INDIC 99. | | C-ALL-PHIS |
| -000025 -000025 -000025 -000027 98 -000027 98 -000027 99 -000027 99 -000027 99 -000027 99 -000027 99 -000027 99 -000023 101 -004600 -004500 -00500 -00500 -00500 -005100 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005500 -005600 -005600 -005600 -005700 -005800 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -005400 -0 | 4 | INVALID FRUM ALCOUNT NU | JEBER | C-ALL-PHIS |
| +0000240 +0000276 +0000278 +000028 +000028 +000030 99 +000031 100 +000032 101 +000032 101 +000032 101 +000032 104 500 004 500 005 005 105 005 400 105 005 500 105 005 500 105 005 500 105 005 500 105 005 500 105 005 500 005 600 005 600 | | | LINGARY COMMEN | C-ALL-PHIS |
| +0000279 96 +000028 +000028 +000030 99 +000031 100 +000031 101 +000033 102 034500 004700 004600 004700 00500 103 005100 104 005203 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 005600 005600 006000 006000 006000 006400 006400 006500 | ¢ | FROM FILE ACCIENTS OF | CISCART COMMIT | C-ALL-FMTS |
| 98 +000259 +000259 +000259 +000031 100 +00031 101 +000032 101 +000032 101 +000032 101 +000032 004600 004600 005000 105 005400 105 005400 005500 106 005500 106 005500 005600 005600 005400 005400 006400 006400 006500 | D6 ERREMT-I-IM | NDIC. | | C-ALL-FMTS |
| +0000299 +0000300 99 +000031 100 +000032 101 +000032 102 004500 004500 004500 005000 103 005100 104 005203 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 107 005700 005000 005000 006000 006000 006400 006500 | | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| +0000300 99 +000031 100 +000032 101 +000033 102 034500 004600 004700 004900 005000 103 005100 104 005203 005300 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 006000 034100 006400 006400 006501 | OUTPUT FORMAT;ERREMT | FROM FILE ACCTEMTS OF | F LIBRARY COMMIT | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 9 +000031 100 +000032 101 +000033 102 004500 004600 004600 005000 005100 104 005200 105 005400 106 005500 107 005700 108 005900 107 005700 005800 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 006400 006400 005600 006400 006500 006400 | \$ | | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 100 +000032 101 +000033 102 004500 004600 004700 004900 005000 103 005100 104 005203 005300 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 105 005400 005600 005600 006000 006000 006000 006400 006500 | 06 ERREMT-0-IN | NDIC. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 101 +0004530 102 0004500 004600 004600 004800 005000 0040500 005100 104 005300 105 005400 105 005500 106 005500 107 005500 108 005900 005600 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 005400 006400 005600 006400 006500 006400 006500 006400 | 07 IN95 | PIC 1 INDIC 95. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 102 034500 014700 004700 014800 004900 013 005000 103 005100 005400 005400 105 005400 105 005600 107 005700 005600 005600 005600 006000 005400 006000 006000 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 006600 | 07 IN96 | PIC 1 INDIC 96. | | <-ALL-FMTS |
| 004700 004800 005000 103 005100 104 005200 105 005400 005500 105 005400 005600 005600 005600 004100 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 | PROCEDURE DIVISION. | | | |
| 004800 005000 103 005100 104 005203 105 005400 105 005400 106 005500 107 005700 006000 006000 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 | DECLARATIVES | | | |
| 004900 005000 103 005100 104 005203 005400 005400 005500 005600 005700 005700 005900 006000 006000 006200 006400 006500 006500 | ERROR-SECTION SECTION. | | | |
| 005000 103 005100 105 005300 105 005400 106 005500 107 005500 108 005900 005600 005400 005400 006400 006400 006500 109 006400 006500 100 006600 | USE AFTER STANDARD E | EXCEPTION PROCEDURE ON ACC | COUNT-FILE. | |
| 103 005100 104 005203 105 005400 105 005400 106 005500 005600 005600 107 005700 005800 006000 006000 006400 006400 006400 006600 110 006600 110 | ERROR-PARAGRAPH. | | | |
| 104 005200 005300 005400 105 005400 007 005700 005800 005800 108 005900 006400 006400 006400 006400 006400 006400 109 006600 100 006600 | IF ACCOUNT-FILE-STAT | (US NOT = "23" THEN 0 | | |
| 005300 105 005400 005600 107 005700 005800 006000 006100 006200 006400 006400 006600 | MOVE IND-ON TO IN | 196 OF ERRENT-D-INDIC | 1 | |
| 106 005500 005500 107 005700 005800 108 005900 006000 006000 006100 006300 109 006400 006500 | ELSE NOVE IND ON TO IN | OF CRACHE O INOIC | | |
| 109 005500 107 005700 005800 108 005900 006000 006100 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | HUVE IND-UN TO IN | 195 UF ERREMI-U-INUIL. | | |
| 107 005700 005800 108 005900 006000 00600 006200 006300 109 006400 006500 | ANTE UISPLAISREU PU | NOICATORS ARE ERRENT-O-INC | Mc. 5 | |
| 108 005900 006000 004100 006200 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | CLOSE DISPLAY-FILE. | STORE AND AND CARD OF THE | | |
| 108 005900 006000 004100 006200 006300 109 006400 110 006600 | ACCOUNT-FILE. | | | |
| 006000 007100 006200 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | STOP RUN. | | | |
| 005100 005200 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | END DECLARATIVES. | | | |
| 006200 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | | | | |
| 006300 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | BEGIN• | | | |
| 109 006400 006500 110 006600 | | - | | |
| 110 006600 | UPEN I-U ACCUUNT-FIL | .c, | | |
| | MOVE ZERDS TO ACCTON | | | |
| 006700 | ACCTPH | T-D-INDIC. | | |
| 111 006800 | PERFORM WRITE-READ-D | SISPLAY. | | |
| 112 006900 | PERFORM VERIFY-ACCOU | UNT-NO UNTIL IN15 = IND-OM | •• | |
| 113 007000 | CLOSE DISPLAY-FILE, | | | |
| 007100 | ACCOUNT-FILE. | | | |
| 114 007200 | STOP RUN. | | | |
| 007300 | | | | |

Figure 9-16 (Part 4 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control



Figure 9-16 (Part 5 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control

•

- **1** A separate indicator area is provided for the program.
- 2 The COMMITMENT CONTROL clause specifies files to be placed under commitment control. Any files named in this clause are affected by the COMMIT and ROLLBACK verbs.
- 3 The COPY statement, DDS format, with the indicator attribute INDIC, defines data description entries in WORKING-STORAGE for the indicators to be used in the program.
- 4 IN96 is set if there is an invalid file status.
- 5 IN95 is set if there is an INVALID KEY condition on the REWRITE operation.
- 6 IN99 is set if the entered account number is invalid for the account that money is being transferred to.
- **7** IN97 is set if the entered account number is invalid for the account that money is being transferred to.
- 8 If an INVALID KEY condition occurs on the READ, a ROLLBACK is used and the record lock placed on the record after the first READ is released.
- 9 If the transfer of funds is invalid (an indicator has been set), the ROLLBACK statement is executed. All changes made to data base files under commitment control are canceled.
- 10 If the transfer of funds was valid (no indicators have been set), the COMMIT statement is executed, and all changes made to data base files under commitment control then become permanent.
- **11** The INDICATORS phrase is required for indicators controlled by Command Function keys on the work station screen.

Figure 9-16 (Part 6 of 6). Example of Use of Commitment Control

Exceptions and Some of Their Causes

MCH1202 data exception:

- A numeric elementary item has been used as a source when no valid data has been previously stored in it. The item should have a VALUE clause, or a MOVE statement should be used to initialize its value.
- An attempt has been made to place nonnumeric data in a numeric item.
- Bad data was written to a subfile earlier in the program. The subfile data is not validated until it is written to the screen, so the 1202 error can occur on the WRITE of a subfile control record, but the bad data was actually put to the subfile earlier.

MCH3601 invalid pointer:

- The OPEN for the file was unsuccessful and the execution of any other I-O statement for that file is attempted. The file status should be checked before any other I-O is attempted.
- A reference is made to a record or a field within a record and the associated file has been closed or has never been opened.

MCH3402 reference destroyed object:

• A reference is made to a record or a field within a record and the associated data base file has been closed.

CPF2415 end of request:

• An attempt has been made to accept input from the job input stream while the system is running in batch mode and no input is available.

System/38 COBOL Programming Considerations

Performance Considerations

Segmentation

Use of segmentation increases the compile and execution times of the COBOL program. The segmentation feature is provided only for compatibility with other systems. It is not necessary to be concerned with storage management when using System/38 COBOL programs.

Debugging

COBOL source language debugging is provided to help the COBOL programmer debug a program that is not functioning as expected. Use of this facility increases the compile and execution times of a COBOL program.

Data Formats

Data described as packed (COMP or COMP-3) provides better performance than data described as binary (COMP-4) or zoned decimal (DISPLAY) at execution time.

***NORANGE** Option

This option of the GENOPT parameter of the CRTCBLPGM command removes the execution-time checks for subscript ranges. If frequent references to tables are made and the subscripts always reference elements within the table, use of this option can improve performance.

Indicators

If you use indicators in a separate indicator area (INDARA keyword specified in DDS) instead of in the record area, the use of the OCCURS clause to specify a table with up to 99 indicators can improve performance.

Commitment Control

Generally, the use of commitment control increases the execution time of a COBOL program. In addition, the record locking which results from the use of commitment control by a job may cause delays for other users attempting to access the same file.

Program Loops

When a program repeatedly executes the same series of instructions, and it is apparent that this will continue indefinitely, the program is in a loop. To identify loops, you can use information known about the program itself, as follows:

- Time: If the actual run time is substantially exceeding the expected run time, the program could be in a loop.
- I-O operations: If no input/output operations are taking place and I-O is expected to be occurring repeatedly, the program is probably in a loop.

Tracing a Loop in a Program

Frequently, a loop encompasses many instructions in a program. In this case, the user can use the COBOL debugging features as described in Chapter 6, or the System/38 debugging capabilities of Trace as described in Chapter 10.

Errors That Can Cause a Loop

A PERFORM statement with an UNTIL clause can cause a loop when the condition specified in the UNTIL clause cannot be met. For example:

PERFORM ... UNTIL COUNTR LESS THAN ZERO

where COUNTR is an unsigned numeric item.

A G0 T0 statement that refers to a previous procedure-name can cause a loop when no conditional statement exists to prevent the G0 T0 statement from being executed again. For example:

PARA-1. MOVE MOVE MOVE PARA-2. MOVE GO TO PARA-1.

A possible variation of this case is when a conditional statement exists, but the condition cannot be met or the statement does not branch (through a GO TO statement) to a paragraph outside the range of the loop.

Recovery after a Failure

Recovery with Commitment Control

When the system is restarted after a failure, files under commitment control are automatically restored to their status at the last commitment boundary.

For a job failure (either because of user or system error), files under commitment control are restored as part of job termination to the files' status at the previous commitment boundary.

Because files under commitment control are rolled back after system or process failure, this feature may be used to aid in restarting. You can create a separate record to store data which may be useful should it become necessary to restart a job. This restart data can include items such as totals, counters, record key values, relative key values, and other relevant processing information from an application.

By having the above restart data in a file under commitment control, that data too will be permanently stored in the data base when a COMMIT statement is issued. When a ROLLBACK occurs after job or process failure, you may retrieve a record of the extent of processing successfully performed before failure. Note that the above method is only a suggested programming technique and will not always be suitable, depending on the application.

Communications Recovery

In some cases, you can recover from I-O errors on TRANSACTION files without intervention by the operator, or the varying off/varying on of work stations or communications devices.

For potentially recoverable I-O errors on TRANSACTION files, the system initiates action in addition to the steps that must be taken in the application program to attempt error recovery. For more information about action taken by the system, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide* and the *Data Communications Programmer's Guide*.

By examining the file status after an I-O operation, the application program can determine whether a recovery from an I-O error on the TRANSACTION file may be possible. If the File Status Key has a value of 9N, the application program may be able to recover from the I-O error. A recovery procedure must be coded as part of the application program and varies depending on whether a single device was acquired by the TRANSACTION file or whether there were multiple devices attached.

For a file with one acquired device:

- 1. Close the TRANSACTION file with the I-O error.
- 2. Reopen the file.
- 3. Perform the steps necessary to retry the failing I-O operation. This may involve a number of steps, depending on the type of program device used.

(For example, if the last I-O operation was a READ, you may have to repeat one or more WRITE statements, which were executed prior to the READ statement.) For more information on recovery procedures, see the *Data Communications Programmer's Guide*.

For a file with multiple devices acquired:

- 1. DROP the program device that caused the I-O error on the TRANSACTION file.
- 2. ACQUIRE the same program device.
- 3. See Step 3 above.

Application program recovery attempts should typically be tried only once.

If the recovery attempt fails:

- If the file has only one program device attached, terminate the program through execution of the STOP RUN or EXIT PROGRAM statement, and attempt to locate the source of the error.
- If the file has multiple acquired program devices, you may wish to do one of the following:
 - Continue with execution without the program device that caused the I-O error on the TRANSACTION file, and reacquire the device later.
 - Terminate the program.

For a description of major-minor return codes that may aid in diagnosing I-O errors on the TRANSACTION file, see the *CPF Programmer's Guide* and the *Data* Communications Programmer's Guide.

Figure 9-17 gives an example of an error recovery procedure.

| BM International Business Machines Corporation | DATA DESCRIPTIO | N SPECIFICATIONS | GX21-7754-2 UM/050 Printed in U.S./ |
|---|---|--|--|
| File | Keying Graphic | Descript | tion Page of |
| Programmer Date | Instruction Key | | |
| A | | | |
| Conditioning | F AS/X/Y/N/ | ocation | |
| Secure Number Name Number (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) | revence (R) if terance (R) terand strond strond (N////B/H/M// C///B/H/M// | e Pos | Functions |
| | 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 4 | 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 | 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 8 |
| DISPLAY FILE FOR | ERROR RECOVER) | EXANGLE | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | ╶┼╍╂╁╾╍╌╴┾┼╌┽╁╼ | | |
| | -++ | 2 28 FUTER INDUTEI | |
| | | 7 42 | |
| | | A TAYCEN & TERMINE | |
| | +-++-++- | | |
| | | | |
| | · | ╺╂╼╼╏┊╪╦┊╞╘╞╧╒┾╡┾╞ | |
| | | | |
| | ╶┼┶┽┼╌╌╸╸┝╉╸┾┽╺ | | |
| | | | |
| | ╶╉┈┼╉┷┶╌╍╴╂╂╍╌┼╉┊ | ╾╂╌┺╍╘╶┨╌╡╴╡╴┋╴╡╸╪╶╡╴╪╸╡╸╪╴╡ | |
| | ╶┼┷┼╀╸╾╸╪╉╺┾┼╸ | ╾┧╌╸╴┟╪╧╧┊╞╶┊╶╞╶┊╶╞╶ | ╞╶┋╶┋╺┇╺┇╺┇╺╞╶┋╶┋╶┇╺┇╺╹ |
| ╺╸┙╸┥╏<mark>╽</mark>╊╋┇╬┦┊ ╋╋┊╋╋ | ╾╂┊╾┨╂┲╸╡┊╾╸╂┨╸╴╄┤┈╸ | | |
| | ╺╉╒╉╊┊╧┊┷╂╉╾╊╉╞ | | |
| | ╺╅╺╁╂┶╍╵╍╶╊╋╍╄╉╺ | ╾┨╺╍╌┫╘┼╧╅┼╧┼╧╧╧╧╧╧╧ | ┊┊┊┊╞╡┥┊╞┊╞┊╞┊┊┊╞╪╪╺╡┥ |
| | ╾╃┶┽╂╍┊╶┊┝╋┿┥┨┾ | | |
| | | <u>· │ · · · Ì ┣ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓</u> | |

Figure 9-17 (Part 1 of 4). Example of Error Recovery Procedure

C

| 5714CE | 1 RO5 MOO 830610 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | 03/0 |
|--------|--|--|-------------------|
| STMT | SEQNBR -A 1 B 2 3 | 3 4 5 6 7 .ID | ENTECN S COPYNAME |
| 1 | 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION | • 00 | 010000 |
| 2 | 000200 PROGRAM-ID. RECOVERY. | . 00 | 020000 |
| | 000300≑ EXAMPLE DE PROGRAM-D | DEFINED ERROR RECOVERY. \$00 | 050000 |
| 3 | 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. | 00 | 170000 |
| 4 | 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION | • 00 | 180000 |
| 2 | 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM- | -538. 00 | 190000 |
| 2 | 000800 INBUT-OUTPUT SECTION. | - 556 • 00 | 250000 |
| 8 | 000900 EILE-CONTROL | | 260000 |
| 9 | 001000 SELECT RECOVFILE | 00 | 330000 |
| 10 | 001100 ASSIGN TO WORKS | STATION-RECOVFILE-SI 00 | 340000 |
| 11 | 001200 ORGANIZATION IS | TRANSACTION 00 | 350000 |
| 12 | 001300 ACCESS IS | SEQUENTIAL 00 | 350000 |
| 13 | 001400 FILF STATUS IS | S STATUS-FLD+ STATUS-FLD-2 00 | 350000 |
| 14 | CONTROL-AREA IS | S CUNIKUL-FLD. 00 | 350000 |
| 15 | | | 360000 |
| 17 | | R-DPRINT. | |
| 18 | 001900 | | |
| 19 | 002000 DATA DIVISION. | 00 | 370000 |
| 20 | 002100 FILE SECTION. | 00 | 380000 |
| 21 | 002200 FD RECOVFILE | 0 | 550000 |
| 22 | QO2300 LABEL RECORDS ARE | UMITTED 00 | 560000 |
| 23 | 002400 DATA RECORD IS RE | COV-REC. 0 | 570000 |
| 24 | | | 580000 |
| 23 | +000001 05 RECOVELLE-REC | TORD PIC X(6). | <- AL - FN |
| 28 | +000002 | | <-ALL-FM |
| | +000003# INPUT FORMAT:FORMAT1 | FROM FILE RECOVFILE OF LIBRARY EXAMPLES | <-ALL-FM |
| | +000004* | | <-ALL-FM |
| 29 | +000005 05 FORMATI-I | REDEFINES RECOVFILE-RECORD. | <-ALL-FM |
| 30 | +000006 06 INPUTED | PIC XIST. | <-ALL-FM |
| 51 | | ERON ETTE RECOVETLE OF LINRARY - XAMPLES | < |
| | +000009* | | <-ALL-FM |
| | +000010* 05 FORMATI-0 | REDEFINES RECOVFILE-RECORD. | <-ALL-FM |
| 32 | 002700 | 00 | 350000 |
| 33 | 002800 FD PRINTER-FILE. | | |
| 34 | 002900 01 PRINTER-REC. | | |
| 35 | 003000 05 PRINTER-RECOR | CU PIC X(132). | |
| 36 | 003200 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION | | 620000 |
| 38 | 003300 01 I-0-VER8 | PIC X(10) . 05 | 80000 |
| 39 | 003400 01 STATUS-FLD | PIC X(2). 05 | 80000 |
| 40 | 003500 88 NO-ERROR | VALUE "00". | |
| 41 | 003600 B8 ACQUIRE-FAILED | VALUE "9H". | |
| 42 | 003700 88 TEMPORARY-ERRC | DR VALUF "9N". | |
| 43 | 003800 01 STATUS-FLD-2 | PIC X(4). 05 | 0000 |
| 44 | 003900 01 CONTROL-FLD. | 05 | 80000 |
| 45 | 004000 05 FUNCTION-KEY 004100 05 PCM-DEVICE-NA | PIL X(2) 05 | 80000 |
| 40 | 004100 05 PGM=0EVILE=NA 004200 05 RFC0R0=E0PMAT | T PTC X(10)= 05 | 80000 |
| 48 | 004300 | 05 | 80000 |
| 49 | 004400 01 END-INDICATOR | PIC 1 INDICATOR 1 VALUE 5"0". 05 | 90000 |
| 50 | 004500 88 FND-NOT-REQUES | STED VALJE 8"0". 0 | 580000 |
| | | | |

| 57140 | 11 RO5 MOO 8 | 30510 CD | ANE SOURCE LISTING | PECOVERY | 03/04/4 |
|-------|--------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------|
| STMT | SEQNOR -A 1 | B 2 3 | • ••• 4 ••• ••• 5 ••• • | • 5 ••• ••• 7 •IDENTECN | IS CUPYNAME |
| 51 | 004600 | 88 END-REQUESTED | VAL | JE PH14 0580000 |) |
| 52 | 004700 0 | 1 USE-PROC-FLAG | PIC 1 VALUE B"O". | 0590000 | |
| 53 | 004800 | 8P USE-PROC-NOT-EXEC | UTED VALUE 5"0". | 0580000 |) |
| 54 | 004900 | 88 USF-PROC+EXECUTED | VALUE B"1". | 0530000 |) |
| 55 | 005000 01 | 1 RECOVERY-FLAG | PIC 1 VALUE B"O". | 0580000 | |
| 56 | 005100 | 89 NU-RELOVERY-DONE | VALUE B"O". | 0580000 |) |
| 57 | 005200 | 88 RECOVERY-DONE | VALUE B"1". | 0580000 |) |
| 58 | 005300 | | | | |
| 59 | 005400 01 | HEADER-LINE. | | | |
| 60 | 005500 | 05 FILLEP | PIC X(60) VALUE | SPACES. | |
| 61 | 005600 | 05 FILLER | PIC X(72) VALUE | | |
| 62 | 005700 | | "ERROR REPOR | т". | |
| 63 | 005800 | | | | |
| 64 | 005900 01 | DFTAIL-LINE . | | | |
| 65 | 006000 | 05 FILLER | PIC X(15) VALUE | SPACES. | |
| 66 | 005100 | 05 DESCRIPTION | PIC X(25) VALUE | SPACES. | |
| 67 | 004200 | 05 DETAIL-VALUE | PIC X1921 VALUE | SPACES. | |
| 68 | 006300 | | | | |
| 69 | 006400 01 | MESSAGE-LINF. | | | |
| 10 | 005500 | US FILLER | PIC XIISI VALUE | SPALES | |
| /1 | 006600 | US DESCRIPTION | PIC X(117) VALUE | SPACES. | |

Figure 9-17 (Part 2 of 4). Example of Error Recovery Procedure



| 57140 | AL ROS MOD | 830610 | | C030F 2 | OURCE LISTIN | G | RECUVERY | 03/04/43 |
|-------|------------|-------------|----------------|--------------|--------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------------|
| STMT | SFQNBR - | A 1 3 | 2 | | 4 5 | ••• ••• 3 | ••• ••• 7 •IDFN | TECN & COPYNAME |
| 103 | 012200 | ACQUIRE | . PGM-DEV | ICE-NAME FOR | RECOVFILF. | 5 | | |
| | 012300 | PROP-FYTT. | | | | | | |
| 104 | 012500 | CLOSE A | , RECOVETLE | | | | | |
| | 012600 | P | RINTER-F | ILF. | | | | |
| 105 | 012700 | STOP RU | JN . | | | | | |
| | 912800 | | | | | | | |
| | 012900 E | END-OF-DECL | ARATIVES | • | | | | |
| | 013000 B | END DECLARA | TIVES. | | | | | |

Figure 9-17 (Part 3 of 4). Example of Error Recovery Procedure

| 5714CF | N1 R05 M00 | 830610 | COBOL SOURCE LISTING | PECOVERY | 03/04/9 | | |
|--------|------------|------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------------|----------|--|--|
| STMT | SEQNOR -A | 1 8 2 | 3 4 5 | • 5 ••• ••• 7 •IDENTFON S | CUPYNAME | | |
| | 013100/ | | | | | | |
| | C13200 M | AIN-PROGRAM SECT | ION. | | | | |
| | 013300 M | AINLINE. | | | | | |
| 106 | 013400 | MOVE "UPEN" T | 0 I-O-VER8. | | | | |
| 107 | 013500 | OPEN I-O RECO | IVFILE. | | | | |
| | 013600 | OUTPUT P | RINTER-FILE. | | | | |
| 108 | 013700 | PERFORM I-O-P | ARAGRAPH UNTIL END-REQUESTED. | | | | |
| 109 | 013800 | CLOSE RECOVEL | LE, | | | | |
| | 013900 | PRINTER | -FILE. | | | | |
| 110 | 014000 | STOP RUN. | | | | | |
| | 014100 | | | | | | |
| | 014200 1 | -U-PARAGRAPH. | | | | | |
| 111 | 014300 | MOVE "WPITE" | TO I-O-VFRB. | | | | |
| 112 | 214400 | SET USE-PRUC- | NOT-EXECUTED TO TRUE. | | | | |
| 113 | 014500 | WRITE RECOV-R | IEC FORMAT IS "FORMATI" | | | | |
| | 014600 | | INDICATOR IS END-INDICATOR. | | | | |
| 114 | 014700 | IF USE-PROC-E | XECUTED AND RECOVERY-DONE THEN | | | | |
| 115 | 014800 | GO TÚ I-O-P | AKAGRAPH. | - | | | |
| | 014900 | | | | | | |
| 116 | 015000 | MOVE "READ" T | 0 I-0-VER8. | | | | |
| 117 | 015100 | SET USE-PROC- | NOT-EXECUTED, NO-RECOVERY-DONE TO | TRUE - | | | |
| 118 | 015200 | READ RECOVEIL | E FORMAT IS "FORMATI" | - | | | |
| | 015300 | | INDICATOR IS END-INDICATOR. | | | | |
| 119 | 015400 | IF ND-ERROR T | HEN | | | | |
| 120 | 015500 | PERFORM SOM | F~PRDCESSING. | | | | |
| | 015600 | | | | | | |
| | 015700 S | OME-PROCESSING. | | | | | |
| | 7158000 | (INSERT DATAB | ASE PROCESSING+ FOR EXAMPLE) | | | | |
| | | 0.0 | · · · END OF SUURCE · | * * * * | | | |

- 1 This defines processing that takes place when an I-O error occurs on RECOVFILE.
- 2 This prints out information to help in diagnosing the problem.
- 3 If the file-status equals 9N (temporary error), and no previous error recovery has been attempted for this I-O operation, error recovery is now attempted.
- 4 If recovery was previously attempted, it is not attempted now. This is done to avoid program looping.
- **5** Recovery consists of dropping, then reacquiring, the program device on which the I-O error occurred.
- 6 The mainline of the program consists of writing to and reading from a device until the user signals an end to the program by pressing CF1.
- 7 If the WRITE operation failed but recovery was done, the WRITE is attempted again.
- 8 If the READ operation failed, execution will continue by writing to the device again, and then attempting the READ again.
- Figure 9-17 (Part 4 of 4). Example of Error Recovery Procedure

System/38 Inter-Program Communication Considerations

System/38 allows inter-program communication between COBOL and non-COBOL programs. For the following discussion a main program is defined as the COBOL program that is highest in the invocation stack. The main program is the first program in the run unit. A run unit is defined as a set of one or more programs that functions as a unit at execution time to provide a problem solution. A run unit starts with the first COBOL program in the invocation stack and includes all programs (of any type) that are below it in the invocation stack. A subprogram is a program in the run unit below the main program in the invocation stack. For a definition of invocation stack and other terms relating to System/38 inter-program communication see the *CL Reference Manual*.

Return of Control From a Called Program

In COBOL, you can issue either a STOP RUN statement or an EXIT PROGRAM statement to return control from a called program. The action of these statements depends upon the execution time environment, as explained below.

- Exit Program
 - When issued from a main program, control passes to the next statement (no operation is performed).
 - When issued from a subprogram, control returns to the calling program.
- Stop Run
 - Whether issued from a main program or a subprogram, the run unit is terminated. Control returns to the (non-COBOL) program that called the main program.

Initialization of Storage

The first time a COBOL program in a run unit is called, its storage is initialized. Storage is initialized again under the following conditions:

- The run unit is terminated, then reinitiated.
- The program is cancelled (COBOL CANCEL statement, RPG III FREE operation, CL RCLRSC command), then called again.

If a non-COBOL program is named in a CANCEL statement, its name must conform to the rules for formation of a COBOL program name.

The following examples illustrate the use of the EXIT $\mbox{PROGRAM}$ and \mbox{STOP} RUN statements in different parts of a run unit.

- The example in Figure 9-18 shows a single run unit.
- The example in Figure 9-19 shows multiple run units.
- The example in Figure 9-20 shows a run unit with a shared program that is both a subprogram and a main program.



PROGRAM EXECUTING STATEMENT

| STATEMENT | PGMA | PGMB | PGMD | PGME |
|--------------|------|------|------|------|
| EXIT PROGRAM | 1 | 2 | 2 | 2 |
| STOP RUN | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 |

- 1 No operation is performed because the statement is executed in a main program. Execution continues with the next statement in PGMA.
- 2 Control returns to the caller of the program that executes the EXIT PROGRAM statement.
- 3 Run unit A terminates. For all programs in the run unit, open files are closed. Storage is freed for all programs in the run unit. Control returns to the program that is at invocation number n-1. If n=1, the following considerations apply:
 - Run unit A operates as a routing step. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for more information.
 - For batch jobs, the STOP RUN causes the job to end. For interactive jobs, control returns to the system and the system terminates the routing step.

Figure 9-18. Example of a Single Run Unit

INVOCATION NUMBER



PROGRAM EXECUTING STATEMENT

| STATEMENT | PGMB | PGMC | PGME (RUN UNIT B) | PGME (RUN UNIT C) | PGMF |
|--------------|------|------|-------------------------|-------------------------|------|
| EXIT PROGRAM | ۵ | ۵ | 2 | 2 | 2 |
| STOP RUN | 3 | 4 | 3 | 4 | 4 |

- 1 No operation is performed because the statement is executed in a main program. Execution continues with the next statement in the main program.
- 2 Control returns to the caller of the program that executes the EXIT PROGRAM statement.
- 3 Run unit B terminates. All open files in run unit B are closed. Storage is freed for all programs in run unit B. Control returns to the caller of the main program for the run unit (PGMA).
- A Run unit C terminates. All open files in run unit C are closed. Storage is freed for all programs in run unit C. Control returns to the caller of the main program for the run unit (PGMA).

Figure 9-19. Example of Multiple Run Units

INVOCATION NUMBER



| STATEMENT | PGMB | (RUN UNIT B) | (RUN UNITE) | PGMF |
|--------------|------|-----------------|----------------|------|
| EXIT PROGRAM | 1 | 2 | | 1 |
| STOP RUN | 3 | 3 | 4 | 5 |

- 1 No operation is performed because the statement is executed in a main program. Execution continues with the next statement in the main program.
- 2 Control returns to the caller of the program that executes the EXIT PROGRAM statement.
- 3 Run unit B terminates. All open files in run unit B are closed. Storage is freed for all programs in run unit B. Control returns to the caller of the main program for the run unit (PGMA).
- 4 Run unit E terminates. All open files in run unit E are closed. Storage is freed for PGME. Control returns to the caller of the main program for the run unit (PGMC).
- **5** Run unit F terminates. All open files in run unit F are closed. Storage is freed for PGMF. Control returns to the caller of the main program for the run unit (PGMC).
- Figure 9-20. Example of a Run Unit with a Shared Program that is Both a Subprogram and a Main Program

Local Data Area

The system automatically creates a local data area for each job. The local data area is defined outside the COBOL program as an area of 1024 bytes of character data.

The local data area can be used to pass any desired information between programs in a job. This information may be free-form data, such as informal messages, or may consist of a fully structured or formatted set of fields.

When a job is submitted, the submitting job's local data area is copied into the submitted job's local data area. If there is no submitting job, the local data area is initialized to blanks.

A COBOL program can access the local data area for its job with the ACCEPT and DISPLAY statements, using a mnemonic name associated with the function-name LOCAL-DATA.

There is only one local data area associated with each job. If several work stations are acquired by a single job, still only one local data area exists for that job. There is *not* a local data area for each individual work station.

File Considerations

A file cannot be received as a parameter in a COBOL program. If a file is defined in both a calling program and a called program, it is treated as two separate files. The contents of the record area and the current record pointer in each program are independent, unless shared files are specified in CL commands. See the *CL Reference Manual* for further information on shared files.

The following statements affect file status differently:

- An EXIT PROGRAM statement does not change the status of any of the files in a run unit.
- A STOP RUN statement closes all the files in a run unit.
- A CANCEL statement does not change the status of any of the files in the program that is canceled. It does free the storage that contains information about the file. If the program has files that are open when the CANCEL statement is executed, those files remain open until the run unit is terminated. The program can no longer use the file. If the cancelled program is called again, the program considers the file closed. If the program opens the file, a new linkage to the file is established. This can cause additional system storage to be used.
9-66

Chapter 10. Testing and Debugging COBOL Programs

COBOL and CPF provide functions that you can use to test and debug the programs you develop:

CPF

COBOL

Test library Breakpoints Traces Debugging features Formatted dump

The CPF functions let you test programs while protecting your production files, and let you observe and debug operations as a program executes. No special source code is required for using the CPF functions.

The COBOL functions can be used independently of the CPF functions or in combinations with them to:

- Debug a program
- Produce a formatted dump of the contents of fields, data structures, arrays, and tables.

Source code is required for using the COBOL Debugging features and formatted dump capability. A formatted dump can also be obtained by a user's response to an execution-time message.

OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK contents can provide additional debugging information. The method for obtaining this information is described later in this chapter.

Using a Test Library

The basic concept of testing and debugging is that of a testing environment. Programs executing in a normal operating environment can read, update, and write records that are in either test or production libraries. Programs executing in a test environment can read, update, and write records in either test or production libraries. However, to prevent data base files in production libraries from being modified unintentionally, you can specify UPDPROD(*NO) on the Enter Debug (ENTDBG) command or Change Debug (CHGDBG) command (see the *CPF Programmer's Guide*).

On System/38, you can copy production files into the test library or you can create special files for testing in this library. A test copy of a file and its

production copy can have the same name if the files are in different libraries. You can use the same file name in the program for either testing or normal processing.



For testing, you must place the test library name ahead of the production library name in the library list for the job that contains the program to be tested. For normal execution, the test library should not be named in the library list for that job.

Testing



Normal



No special statements for testing are contained within the program being tested. The same program being tested can be run normally without modifications. All testing functions are specified within the job that contains the program and not within the program.





Testing functions apply only to the job in which they are specified. A program can be used concurrently in two jobs: one job that is in a test environment and another job that is in a normal processing environment.

Testing functions of CPF let you interact with a program as it executes to observe the operations being done. These functions include using breakpoints and traces.

Using Breakpoints

A breakpoint is a statement number or a label in your program where you want program execution to stop. If you use a statement number, it can be a statement number that appears on the compiler listing of the COBOL source program. If you use a label as a breakpoint rather than a statement number, the label can be:

- Associated with a function done by your COBOL program (for example, . OPEN indicates the open file function). See "Examples of Using Compiler Debugging Options" in Appendix A for a list of breakpoints and their functions.
- An internal COBOL compiler generated label (for example, L000001 indicates the first internally generated label).

Note: To determine the internally generated labels for your program, use the GENOPT parameter on the CRTCBLPGM command to get an IRP listing of the program.

When a breakpointed statement is about to execute for an interactive job, the system displays the breakpoint at which the program has stopped and, if requested, the values of program variables. After you get this information (in a display), you can enter CPF commands to request other functions (such as displaying or changing a variable, adding a breakpoint, or adding a trace).

For a batch job, a breakpoint program can be invoked when a breakpoint is reached. The breakpoint information is passed to the breakpoint program.

Example of Using Breakpoints

Figure 10-1 shows a sample COBOL program, TESTPRT. The following CPF commands add breakpoints at statements 51 and 60. The value of variable RECORDNO is displayed when the breakpoint at statement 60 is reached.

CPF Commands:

| ENTDBG | TESTPRT |
|--------|------------------|
| ADDBKP | STMT(51) |
| ADDBKP | STMT(60) |
| | PGMVAR(RECORDNO) |

All CPF commands are explained in the CL Reference Manual.

| | COBOL SOURCE LISTING |
|---------|--|
| STMT | SEGNBR -A 1 8 2 |
| 2 | 000200 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. |
| 3 | 000300 PROGRAM-ID. TESTPRT. |
| 4 | 000400 AUTHOR. PROGRAMMER NAME. |
| 2 | 000500 INSTALLATION. RUCHESTER LABORATURY. |
| 7 | 000700 DATE-WAITERS JOLI 136 1980. |
| | 00080 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. |
| 9 | 000 900 CONFIGURATION SECTION. |
| 10 | 001000 SDURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-538. |
| 11 | 001100 DBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-538. |
| 12 | ON THE FULL CONTROL |
| 14 | UNISUU FILE-LUMINUL. Anian Seifer file-1 Assien to database-masted. |
| 15 | 001500 SELECT FILE-2 ASSIGN TO DATABASE-MASTER. |
| 16 | OOL600 DATA DIVISION. |
| 17 | 001700 FILE SECTION. |
| 18 | 001800 FD FILE-1 |
| 19 | 001900 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD |
| 21 | 002000 DATA RECORD IS RECORD . |
| 22 | 002200 01 RECORD1. |
| 23 | 002300 02 FIELDA PICTURE 15 X(20). |
| 24 | 002400 FD FILE-2 |
| 25 | 002500 LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD |
| 20 | 002000 NECURO CUNIAINS 20 CHARACTERS |
| 28 | |
| 29 | 002900 02 FIELDA PICTURE IS X(20). |
| 30 | 003000 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. |
| 31 | 003100 01 FILLER. |
| 32 | UUSZUU US KUUMI PIL SYY CUMP-3. Antion as id daare dictiger kijaal value habraeegutiki wwidadstuwwyyh. |
| 34 | 003400 OS ALPHA REDEFINES ALPHABET PICTURE & OCCURS 26 TIMES. |
| 35 | 003500 05 NUMBR PIC 599 COMP-3. |
| 36 | 003600 05 NO-OF-DEPENDENTS PIC X(26) |
| 37 | 003700 VALUE "01000012000123001234002340". |
| 38 | UU3800 US DEPEND REDETINES NU-UF-DEPENDENTS FIC & UCCURS 20 TIMES. Anigan al worksecras. |
| 40 | 004000 05 NAMES-FIELD PICTURE X. |
| 41 | 004100 05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE. |
| 42 | 004200 05 RECORDNO PICTURE 5999. |
| 43 | 004300 05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE. |
| | 004400 OS LOCATION PICTURE AAA VALUE IS "NYC". |
| 45 | UNASUU US FILLER PICIURE A VALUE IS SPACE. |
| 47 | 004700 05 FILLER PICTURE X(7) VALUE IS SPACES. |
| 48 | 004800 01 NODEPEND PICTURE 99 COMP-3. |
| 49 | 004900 01 ZONE-DATA PICTURE 99. |
| 50 | 005000 PROCEDURE DIVISION. |
| | |
| | VUSZUUTT INE FULLUTING PARAGNAPH UPENS INE UVIPVI FILE ID BE CREATEUSSS Anstanda and Institai itse cruinteds. |
| | |
| \sim | 005500 STEP-1. |
| · · · · | 005600 OPEN OUTPUT FILE-I. |





The first breakpoint is used just so you know where you are in the program. The following is displayed as a result of reaching the first breakpoint.

06/16/81 11:08:31 BREAKPOINT DISPLAY Stmt/Inst: 51 /0015 Program: TESTPRT Inv lvl: 1 CF1-Cancel request CF3-Command Entry ENTER-Resume execution

The following is displayed as a result of reaching the second breakpoint.

11:09:54 BREAKPOINT DISPLAY 06/16/81 Stmt/Inst: 60 /003A Inv lvl: TESTPRT Program: *DCL Output start pos: 1 length: format: *CHAR Variable: RECORDNO Type: ZONED Length: 3 0 +26' CF1-Cancel request CF3-Command Entry ENTER-Resume execution

When specifying a variable for the PGMVAR parameter, every name must begin with an alphanumeric character (A through Z, , #, or @) and can be followed by the characters (A through Z, 0 though 9, , #, @, or _).

The following example shows how to display a COBOL variable, ZONE-DATA, in the sample program. Because the hyphen is treated by CPF as a special character, ZONE-DATA must be enclosed in quotes.

```
ENTDBG TESTPRT
ADDBKP STMT(60)
PGMVAR('ZONE-DATA')
```

To display the value of a table element, the appropriate occurrence numbers (subscripts) must be included with the variable name. Up to three dimensions of subscripting are allowed, and the subscripts must be separated by commas. You should not use an index-name or index data-item as a subscript. When an index is entered as a subscript, CPF uses the internal value of the index as the subscript, and undesirable results can occur. The following example shows how to specify the COBOL variable TABLE1 with three dimensions.

PGMVAR ('TABLE1 (SUB1, SUB2, SUB3)').

One or more blanks are allowed after each comma separating subscripts, but the total length of the variable plus subscripts, parentheses, commas, and blanks specified with the PGMVAR keyword cannot exceed 132 characters. For more information on how to code variables in CL commands, see the *CL Reference Manual*.

Variable names can be qualified in the PGMVAR parameter, for example, NAMES-FIELD OF WORKRECORD — Figure 10-1.

Another technique can be used to display variables that are not elements of a multi-dimensional table. For example, to display the field NAMES-FIELD you can use COBOL Data Division map to find its COBOL internal name (I-NAME). Next use the IRP cross-reference listing to find the Object Definition Table (ODT) number for the internal-name. (See "COBOL Command Statement" and "PROCESS Statement" in Chapter 8 for information on how to obtain these listings.) Figure 10-2 shows the Data Division map and Figure 10-3 shows the IRP cross-reference listing for the sample program, TESTPRT.

| STMT | LVL | SOURCE NAME | SECTION | DIVISIO | LEN | TYPE | I-NAME | ATTRIBUTES |
|------|-----|------------------|---------|----------|-----|--------|------------|---|
| | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | FD | FILE-1 | FS | | | | .f01 | DEVICE DATABASE, ORGANIZATION Sequential, access sequentia., Block contains 20 characters, record Contains 20 characters, label record Standard |
| 22 | 01 | RECORDI | FS | 00 00 00 | 20 | GROUP | .0005394 | |
| 23 | 02 | FIELDA | FS (| 000000 | 20 | AN | .D0053E8 | |
| 24 | FD | FILE-2 | FS | | | | •F02 | DEVICE DATABASE, ORGANIZATION SEQUENTIAL, ACCESS SEQUENTIAL, BLOCK CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS, RECORD Contains 20 Characters, Label Record Standard |
| 28 | 01 | RECORD2 | FS (| 000000 | 20 | GROUP | D0054E2 | |
| 29 | 02 | FIELDA | FS | 000000 | 20 | AN | .D005536 | |
| 31 | 01 | FILLER | WS | 000000 | 56 | GROUP | .D005580 | |
| 32 | 02 | KOUNT | WS | 000000 | 2 | PACKED | .D005502 | |
| 33 | 02 | ALPHABET | #5 | 000002 | 26 | AN | .D005634 | VALUE |
| 34 | 02 | ALPHA | WS | 00002 | 1 | AN | .D0 0568 0 | REDEFINES . DO05634. DIMENSION (26) |
| 35 | 02 | NUMBR | WS | 000028 | 2 | PACKED | .D005710 | |
| 36 | 02 | NO-OF-DEPENDENTS | ¥5 (| 000030 | 26 | AN | .D005772 | VALUE |
| 38 | 02 | DEPEND | 45 | 000030 | 1 | AN | .D0057F6 | REDEFINES .DO05772, DIMENSION(26) |
| 39 | 01 | WORKRECORD | wS | 000000 | 19 | GROUP | .D005856 | |
| 40 | 02 | NAMES-FIELD | ¥S (| 000000 | 1 | AN (| .D0058AC | |
| 41 | 02 | FILLER | WS | 000001 | 1 | AN | .D005904 | VALUE |
| 42 | 02 | RECORDNO | WS | 000002 | 3 | ZONED | •D00595E | |
| 43 | 02 | FILLER | WS | 000005 | 1 | AN | .D0059C2 | VALUE |
| 44 | 02 | LOCATION | WS I | 000006 | 3 | A | .D005A1C | VALUE |
| 45 | 02 | FILLER | WS | 000009 | 1 | AN | -D005A82 | VALUE |
| 46 | 02 | DEPENDENTS | WS | 000010 | 2 | AN | .D005ADC | |
| 47 | 02 | FILLER | WS | 000012 | 7 | AN | .D005832 | VALUE |
| 48 | 01 | NODEPEND | ¥5 | 000000 | 2 | PACKED | .D005B8C | |
| 49 | 01 | ZONE-DATA | WS | 000000 | 2 | ZONED | .D0058EE | |
| | | DB-FORMAT-NAME | SR | 000079 | 10 | AN | .D005CAA | |

Figure 10-2. Data Division Map for TESTPRT

| | | | | | 1 | BM S, | /38 (| .0801 | . 571 | 408 | L | | | I RP | L I S1 | 'I NG | FOR | TEST | PRT | | | | |
|------|-------------|------------|-------|-------|------|-------|-------|-------|-------|------|-------|-----|-------|------|--------|-------|------|------|------|-----|-----|-----|--|
| 001 | r 0 | DT NAME | | | | | | 5 | iea c | Ross | S REF | ERE | ICE I | • IN | DICA | TES | WHER | E DE | FINE | DI | | | |
| | а. | 0005502 | 5478 | 602 | 607 | 611 | 615 | 637 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01/ | | 0005536 | 545# | | | •••• | 0.5 | • • • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01/ | | D005580 | 5469 | 547 | 548 | 551 | 552 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 014 | | 0005680 | 55.04 | 613 | 540 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 017 | | 0005634 | SAGE | 540 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 011 | | D0057F6 | 5548 | 617 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01/ | F. | 0005710 | 5518 | 603 | 6.09 | 619 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 011 | | 0005772 | 5528 | 553 | | ••• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ái | Ē. | 0005840 | 55.64 | 613 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 011 | Υ. | 0005856 | 555* | 556 | 557 | 558 | 5 59 | 560 | 5.61 | 562 | 563 | 622 | 678 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01 | 7. | 0005902 | 559# | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 011 | 35 . | D005904 | 557* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 010 | 36 . | 000595E | 55.8* | 619 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01 0 | | D007D7C | 56.8* | 709 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 24 . | EXCALLX | 879* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | | EXCODE | 838* | 881 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 23 . | EXFSGN | 678* | 8 86 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | .6 . | EXFSIO | 844* | 851 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | ic . | EXFS22 | 864* | 866 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | ιе . | EXFS 34 | 86.8* | 870 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 20 . | EXFS 9K | 872* | 874 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02: | 26. | EXGNUSE | 881 | 882 1 | 884* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 12. | EXMSGID | 639* | 882 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 19 . | EXNOF | 853* | 862 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | ۱Á . | EXOPEOF | 854 | 86 04 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 14 . | EXOPLST | 841* | 857 | 880 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 10 . | EXPARMS | 837* | 838 | 839 | 840 | 856 | 679 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02 | 13. | EXPTR | 840* | 841 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | BD . | FCEXCN | 181* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | зс. | FCLIST | 180* | 1 92 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | | FCLPP | 286* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | :Е. | FCLSTC | 2849 | 285 | 286 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 004 | . 0 | FCLSTC# | 28 3* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | | FCLSTP | 289* | 2 90 | 291 | 292 | 293 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | | FCLSIPF | 200+ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | | FCPR RH | 1704 | 1.40 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 001 | | FCPR RAP | 1774 | 180 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 000 | | EID | 1044 | 102 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | | F10 | 24.04 | 3 70 | | 3 7 3 | | 374 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | BA . | FIGALT | 1048 | 5.05 | 760 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | NF . | FIBCA | 2488 | 5.55 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | 81 . | FIRCENT | 251+ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | - 06 | FIBCES | 222* | 627 | 628 | 747 | 749 | 753 | 764 | 774 | 793 | 795 | 810 | 829 | 847 | 849 | 855 | 864 | 868 | 877 | 878 | 881 | |
| 00 | Æ. | FIBCESI | 22 3* | 672 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | A7 . | FIBCHAN | 2394 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | AF . | FISCKID | 2490 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | ю. | F 1 8 C OP | 2210 | 792 | 815 | 818 | 828 | 8 3 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | 90 . | FIBCTID | 250* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 01 | 13. | FINCTL | 371* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | 98 . | FIBCUR | 220\$ | 221 | 222 | 223 | 746 | 791 | 809 | 627 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | . 8 | FIBCURK | 275* | 276 | 277 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | 97. | FIBFLGS | 208* | 748 | 752 | 756 | 769 | 784 | 787 | 794 | 802 | 803 | 845 | 846 | 854 | 860 | | | | | | | |
| 00 | AO . | FIBFMT | 225* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | 95 . | FIBEN | 197\$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 00 | .4. | FIBK ALN | 271* | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 10-3. IRP Cross-Reference Listing for TESTPRT

You can use the following CPF commands to add a breakpoint to the sample program at statement 60 that will display the variable NAMES-FIELD, using the appropriate ODT number:

| ENTDBG | TESTPRT |
|--------|-----------------------|
| ADDBKP | STMT(60) |
| | PGMVAR('/odt-number') |

This command is explained in the CL Reference Manual.

The following is displayed as a result of reaching this breakpoint:

06/16/81 11:08:31 Stmt/Inst: 60 BREAKPOINT DISPLAY /003A TESTPRT Program: Inv lvl: 1 Output start pos: Variable: /01B4 1 format: *CHAR length: *DCL Type: 'Z' ĊHARACTER 1 Length: CF1-Cancel request CF3-Command Entry ENTER-Resume execution At this point you could change the value of program variables to alter your program's execution. You can use the Change Program Variable (CHGPGMVAR) command to change the value of a variable. in the *CL Reference Manual*.

Considerations for Using Breakpoints

The following characteristics of breakpoints should be known before breakpoints are used:

- If a breakpoint is bypassed by a COBOL statement, for example the G0 T0 statement, that breakpoint does not execute.
- When a breakpoint is established on a statement, the breakpoint occurs before that statement is executed.
- Breakpoint functions are specified through CPF commands.

These functions include adding breakpoints to programs, displaying breakpoint information, removing breakpoints from programs and resuming execution of a program after a breakpoint has been displayed. See the *CL* Reference Manual for descriptions of these commands, and see the *CPF* Programmer's Guide for a further description of breakpoints.

Using a Trace

A trace is a record of some or all of the statements in a program that were executed and, if requested, the values of specific variables used in the statements.

| Program | Trace | |
|-----------|-------------------|-----------------------------------|
| Statement | Order of Executio | n Variables |
| 1 | 1 — | ~~~~~ |
| 2 | 6 — | |
| 3 | 7 | |
| 4 | 8 | ~~~~ |
| 5 | 6 — | ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ |
| 6 | 7 — | ~~~~~ |
| 7 | 2 | <u> </u> |
| 8 | 6 — | |
| | 7 — | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

A trace differs from a breakpoint in that a trace ends depending on which statements and how many statements are traced. The system records the traced statements that were executed. You must request a display of the traced information. The display shows the sequence in which the statements were executed and, if requested, the values of variables used in the statements. You specify what statements the system should trace. Also, you might specify that variables be displayed only when their value changes from the previous time a traced statement executed.

You can specify a trace of one statement in a program, a group of statements in a program, or an entire program.

Example of Using a Trace

Figure 10-4 shows a portion of a sample COBOL program, TESTPRT. The following CPF command adds a trace of statements 62 and 67 in that program. The variable NODEPEND is to be recorded only if its value changes between statements 62 and 67:

ADDTRC STMT (62 67) PGMVAR(NODEPEND) OUTVAR(*CHG)

Note: ENTDBG must be entered before the ADDTRC statement.

| STAT | COBOL SOURCE LISTING TESTPRT SEONBR -A 1 8 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON 5 COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
|----------|--|
| 50 | 005000 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 0051000******************************** |
| 51 52 | 005800 UPEN OUPUT FILE-1. OUEPEND. 05700 MOVE ZERU TO KOUNT NUMBR NODEPEND. 05900000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| * | |
| 53 | 006400 ADD L TH KOUNT. ADD L TO NUMBR. |
| 55 | 005500 NOVE ALPHA (KOUNT) TO NAMES-FIELD. |
| 56 | 006600 MOVE DEPEND (KOUNT) TO DEPENDENTS. |
| 57 | |
| 58 | 00500 STEFS: 00500 WRITE RECORD FROM WORKRECORD. |
| | 007000 STEP-4. |
| 59 | 007100 PERFORM STEP-2 THRU STEP-3 UNTIL KOUNT IS EQUAL TO 26. |
| | 007200********************************* |
| | 007300% THE FOLLOWING CLOSES OUTPUT AND REOPENS IT AS \$8% |
| | |
| | 007600 STEP-5. |
| 60 | 007700 CLOSE FILE-1. |
| 61 | 007800 OPEN INPUT FILE-2. |
| | |
| | UDBUDUW INE FULLUWING READS BACK THE FILE AND SINGLES DUI EMPLUYEES### |
| | 0 08 20 08 56 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 |
| \sim | 008300 STEP-6. |
| 62 | 008400 READ FILE-2 RECORD INTO WORKRECORD |
| 69 | 008500 AT END GO TO STEP-8. |
| 64 | 009000 SIEPT'' |
| 65 | 008800 MOVE "Z" TO DEPENDENTS |
| A | 003900 ADD 1 TO NODEPEND. |
| (67) | 009000 GO TO STEP-6. |
| | UVYIUV SICF-0. Dagodo – Ciace Elif-2. |
| 69 | 009300 DISPLAY "EMPLOYEES WITH NO DEPENDENTS " NODEPEND. |
| 70 | 009400 ADD 1 TO ZONE-DATA. |
| 71 | 009500 STOP RUN. |
| | |

Figure 10-4. COBOL Source Code

Figure 10-5 is an example of a display of the traced information. The following CPF command lists this information:

DSPTRCDTA OUTPUT(*LIST) CLEAR(*YES)

The Display Trace Data command is explained in the CPF Reference Manual - CL.

| 1/06/80 19:30:57 | PGN: | E DATA DIS | | 1 | 54 | |
|--|------|---------------|--------------|-----------|--------------|--|
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | ¢DČL | FORMAT | ¢C HAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| THT: 67 | PGM: | TESTERT | 1 11 1 | | 55 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | Fun: | LENGTH | *DCL | FORMAT: | *CHAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| TMT: 62 | PGM | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 56 | |
| AUTPUT START POS: 1 #VARIABLE: NODEPEND | | LENGTH: | *DCL | FORMAT | ¢CHAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| STMT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 57 | |
| TNT: 62 | PGMI | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 58 | |
| TMT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 59 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | ₽DCL | FORMAT | ₽CHAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| TMT: 62 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 60 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | *D CL | FORMAT | ¢CHAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| TMT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 61 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | *DCL | FOR MAT: | ¢C HAR | |
| *VARIABLE: NODEPEND | | | | | | |
| 1 + 3 | | LENGINS | 20 | | | |
| TMT: 62 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 62 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | *D CL | FORMAT: | *CHAR | |
| TYPE PACKED | | LENGTH | 2.0 | | | |
| + 31 | | LENGIN. | 20 | | | |
| STMT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 63 | |
| OUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | ‡DCL | FORMAT: | #CHAR | |
| TYPE: DACKED | | LENGTH | 2 0 | | | |
| +4 | | CLAGIA. | | | | |
| STMT: 62 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 64 | |
| DUTPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | ¢D CL | FORMAT | #CHAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 2 0 | | | |
| * +4* | | | | | | |
| TMT: 67 | PGM: | TES TPRT | LVL: | 1 | 65 | |
| AND A DIAN START POST 1 | | LENGTH: | #DCL | FORMAT: | HAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| * +5* | | | | - | | |
| OUTOUT START DOS' | PGM: | TESTPRE | EVL: | L OD MAT | \$C HAR | |
| *VARIABLE: NODEPEND | | ECHOTA: | TUCE | FOR AN IS | TUNAR | |
| TYPE: PACKED | | LENGTH: | 20 | | | |
| +5 | | T.C. T.D.O.T. | | | 47 | |
| TNT: 62 | PGMI | TESTERT | | 1 | 68 | |
| TMT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL | i | 69 | |
| 5TMT: 62 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 70 | |
| THT: 67 | PGM: | TESTPRT | LVL: | 1 | 71' | |
| JUIPUT START POS: 1 | | LENGTH: | #UCL | ⊢ OR MAT: | PCHAR | |

Figure 10-5. Trace Data Display Listing

Considerations for Using a Trace

The following characteristics of traces should be known before traces are used in COBOL programs:

- Statements bypassed by COBOL statements, such as the G0 T0 statement, are not included in the trace.
- Trace functions are specified through CPF commands in the job that contains the traced program. These functions include adding trace requests to a program, removing trace requests from a program, removing data collected from previous traces, displaying trace information, and displaying the traces that have been specified for a program.
- In addition to statement numbers, names of COBOL-generated routines can appear on the trace output STMT field. (See the list of breakpoints and their functions under "Examples of Using Compiler Debugging Options" in Appendix A.)

See the CPF Programmer's Guide for a further description of traces.

Using a Debug Execution-Time Switch

An execution-time switch is provided for the COBOL Debug facility. This switch activates the debugging code generated when WITH DEBUGGING MODE is specified. When the execution-time switch is set on, all debugging sections that were compiled are activated. When the execution-time switch is set off (the default), the USE FOR DEBUGGING Declarative procedures are inhibited. In both cases the debugging lines (D in column 7) remain in effect.

See "Debugging Features" in Chapter 6 for more information on COBOL Debug and how to use the switch.

File Status

The following format can be used to transfer data (OPEN-FEEDBACK or I-O-FEEDBACK areas) associated with an open file to an identifier.

Format



See Chapter 5 for more information on specifying this statement.

Appendix H contains a discussion of the OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK areas. See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for a layout and description of the data areas contained in the feedback areas.

Using a COBOL Formatted Dump

Some COBOL execution-time messages allow you to obtain a COBOL formatted dump option by giving a reply of D or F.

The output for the dump is sent to the IBM-supplied printer file QPPGMDMP.

The formatted dump (reply D) includes the current file information about the files in the program, contents of fields, data structures, arrays, and tables for user-defined COBOL data variables.

If you reply with an F option, the dump also includes a list of compiler-generated fields and their contents.

If you do not desire a dump, specify reply C (cancel with *no* dump). Reply C is also the default reply for all COBOL inquiry messages that allow a dump to be obtained.

Reply Modes and System Reply List

The need for a reply to execution time inquiry messages is controlled by the INQMSGRPY parameter on the following control language (CL) commands:

- CHGJOB Change Job
- CHGJOBD Change Job Description
- CRTJOBD Create Job Description
- JOB Job
- SBMJOB Submit Job.

Through the INQMSGRPY parameter, three reply modes for inquiry messages are possible. The reply modes are:

- *RQD A reply is required.
- *DFT Take the default reply.
- *SYSRPL Search the System Reply List and if the message is found, take the default action specified in the list. If the message is not found in the System Reply List, then take the default specified in the message description.

The System Reply List allows you to specify replies for inquiry messages CBE7200, CBE7201, CBE7203, CBE7204, and CBE7205. The replies may be specified individually or generically. This method of replying to inquiry messages is especially suitable for batch programs, which would otherwise require a console operator to issue replies.

To see the entries in the System Reply List, specify the Display Reply List (DSPRPYL) CL command. This allows you to change, remove, and add entries to the System Reply List.

For more information on message reply modes and the System Reply List, see the *CL Reference Manual*.

Example of Using a Dump

Figure 10-6 shows an example of a COBOL formatted dump.

The following list describes the areas of Figure 10-6 indicated by letters:

- The exception for which the dump was requested and the location in A the program where the exception occurred. B The COBOL statement number of the last I-O operation that was executed before the exception occurred. This information is produced only if at least one I-O operation has been executed. Current information for each file. This information is produced only G if the program has files. D Beginning of compiler-generated fields (included in the dump if the user responds with an F option). I-O flags for the current file: Ø Bit Meaning 1 File is open 2 File is locked 3 End of file MFCU 4 $\mathbf{5}$ **Optional** file 6 Check indexed file for duplicates at open 7 End of page 8 (Reserved) Previous status code. Ø Beginning of Module Global Table (MGT). G Last exception code. 0
- Invocation number of current program.
- Qualified program name and library.
- **&** Beginning of the Program Global Table (PGT).
- **L** Invocation number of the main COBOL program.
- Job date (YYMMDD).
- **Beginning of user fields.**
- Invalid zoned field printed in hexadecimal.

| | COBOL SQURCE LISTING |
|------|--|
| STMT | SEONBR -A 1 8 2 J 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE |
| 2 | 000200 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. |
| 3 | 000300 PROGRAM-ID. TESTPRT. |
| | 000400 AUTHUR, PRUGRAMMER NAME. 000500 Installation. Profester Labodatory. |
| | 000600 DATE-WRITTEN. JULY 15, 1980. |
| 7 | 000700 DATE-COMPILED. 11/06/80 18:32:31 . |
| e | 000800 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. |
| 9 | 000 900 CONFIGURATION SECTION. |
| 10 | 001000 SUUKCE-CUMPUTEN, 194-538. |
| 17 | |
| 1 13 | 001 300 FILE-CONTROL . |
| 14 | 001400 SELECT FILE-1 ASSIGN TO DATABASE-MASTER. |
| 15 | 001500 SELECT FILE-2 ASSIGN TO DATABASE-MASTER. |
| 16 | 001600 DATA DIVISION. |
| 1 | ON FOLE SECTION. |
| | ON BOO DE LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD |
| 20 | 002000 RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS |
| 21 | 002100 DATA RECORD IS RECORDI. |
| 22 | 002200 01 RECORD1. |
| 23 | 002300 02 FIELDA PICTURE IS X(20). |
| 24 | UQ24UU FD FILE-2 . 002500 I ABEL DECODES ADE STANDADD |
| 26 | 002600 RECORD CONTAINS 20 CHARACTERS |
| 27 | 002700 DATA RECORD IS RECORD2. |
| 26 | 002800 01 RECORD2. |
| 29 | 002900 02 FIELDA PICTURE IS X(20). |
| 30 | 003000 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. |
| 31 | 003100 01 FILLER. |
| 32 | 003200 US KOMI FIC SY COMPS, AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND |
| 34 | 003400 05 ALPHA REDEFINES ALPHABET PICTURE X OCCURS 26 TIMES. |
| 35 | 003500 05 NUMBR PIC \$99 COMP-3. |
| 36 | 03600 05 NO-OF-DEPENDENTS PIC X126) |
| 37 | 003700 AE DEDEND DEDEELNE NO NODEDEDUIZSUUIZSUUIZSUUIZSUUZSU". |
| 30 | · 003000 01 BERRECOR. |
| 40 | 004000 OS NAMES-FIELD PICTURE X. |
| 41 | 004100 05 FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE. |
| 42 | : 004200 05 RECORDNO PICTURE \$999. |
| 43 | A 004-300 OS FILLER PICTURE X VALUE IS SPACE. |
| |) VU94VU UD LUCATION PICTURE AAA VALUE ID "NYC". 6 Gaasaa ar Filipo Dictude X Value is Sace. |
| | 004600 05 DEPENDENTS PICTURE XX. |
| •7 | 004700 05 FILLER PICTURE X(7) VALUE IS SPACES. |
| 46 |) 004800 01 NDDEPEND PICTURE 99 CDMP-3. |
| 45 | 0 004900 01 ZONE-DATA PICTURE 99. |
| 50 | 005000 PROCEDURE DIVISION. |
| | 0021004453745574557457457454556565656565656555755555555 |
| | UUSZUVAT INE FULLUTING PARAGRAPH DPENS INE UUIPUI FILE IU DE CREAIEUAAT Angjanga Ang Initiai Izes chunteds. |
| | |
| | 005500 STEP-1. |
| | |

Figure 10-6 (Part 1 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump



Figure 10-6 (Part 2 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump



Figure 10-6 (Part 3 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

| NAME | UFFSEI | ATTRIBUTES VALUE | |
|--|---|---|-------------|
| • AD BUF | 000300 | POINTER(SPP) SPACE OFFSET 2592 *00000A20*X | |
| . AD BUFVL | 000A 20 | OBJECT PSSA CHAR(49) *EMPLOYEES WITH NO DEPENDENTS 13 * | |
| | 000A 20 | VALUE IN HEX *C5D4D7D3D6E8C5C5E240E6C9E3C840D5D640C4C5D7C5D5C4C5D5E3E240F1F3000000000 | 0000000°*X |
| ADENV | 000448 | +41 *000000000000000000 CHAR(1) *L* | |
| . ADFUNC | 000310 | CHAR (1) *D* | |
| + ADLN | 000314 | BINARY(2) 31 RTNARY(2) 0 | |
| . ADPGM | 000318 | CHAR(10) 'TESTPRT ' | |
| ADRLN ADRTN | 000318 | BINARY(2) 0 | |
| . ADRTYP | 00031A | CHAR(1) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | |
| . ADTOD | 000325 | CHAR(13) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | |
| .BINSUB | 0003E8 | BINARY(2) 26 | |
| -BIN2 | 0003EA | BINARY(2) 0 | |
| .BUFFER | | NUT ADDRESABLE | |
| BUFPTR | 000500 | POINTER(SPP) NULL | |
| *CALERF | 000420 | OBJECT PSSA | |
| -CALPHAB | 000841 | CHAR (27) • ETADINSHRDLUCHFWYPYBGKQJXZ• | |
| +CIMDSGN | 000AFB | Charled) | 86878889" x |
| | 000823 | +41 *C 0C1C2C3C4C5C6C7C8C9E0E1E2E3E4E5E6E7E8E9*X | |
| •CNLERP | 000410 | PDINTER(SPP) SPACE OFFSET 1008 *000003F0*X OBJECT PSSA | |
| . CNUMERC | 000B 37 | CHAR(10) *0123456789* | |
| CPADCHR CRCLEAR | 00085C 0008F0 | CHAR(1) • • POINTER(SYP) 08 JECT OCRCLEAR | |
| | | CONTEXT QCBL | |
| CSEPSGN DRUGRIN | 000AF9 | | |
| +DI SPPOS | 000840 | BINAR(2) 2 | |
| •DISPPTR | 000390 | POINTER(SPP) SPACE OFFSET 2623 *00000A3F*X | |
| . DL I NENO | 0003E2 | CHAR (6) ' '0000000000'X | |
| + DMCCOMT | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCCPOP | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| . DMCDCMT | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCDVL | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCFEOD | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCFRCE • DMCGET | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCGETD | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCGETK • DMCLINK | 000606 | NOT ADDRESSABLE ' BINARY(2) 0 | |
| . DMCODP | | NDT ADDRESSABLE | |
| •DMCOFFS | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCPTGT | | NUT AUDRESSADLE | |
| DHCPTGT | | NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCP TGT • DMCPUT • DMCRLSE • DMCRSV I | | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| • DMCPTGT • DMCPUT • DMCRLSE • DMCRSVI | | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DHCPTGT DHCPUT DHCRLSE DHCRLSVI | OFFSET | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE | |
| DHCPTGT DHCPUT DHCRLSE DHCRSVI NAME | OFFSET | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DHCPTGT DHCPUT DHCRLSE DHCRSVI NAME NAME DMCRSV2 DMCSV78 DMCSP78 | OFFSET | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSV2 - DHCSPT8 - DHCSPF8 - DHCUPD - DHDEVP | 0FFSET 000659 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPP) CANNOT HATERIALIZE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSV2 - DHCSPTB - DHCUPD - DHHCOFD - DHHCOFD | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSV2 - DHCSPTB - DHCVPD - DHPC0P0 - DHPC0P0 - DHPC0PP - DHPC0PP | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCSPTB - DHCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPDBFB - DHPDBFB | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPT8 - DHCOPD - DHPCOPD - DHPCOPD | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPT8 - DHCSPT8 - DHCVPD - DHCVPD - DHCVPD - DHCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPF - DHPCOPF - DHPCOPT - DHPCOT - DHPCO | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCVPD - DMPCOPO - DMPCO | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCSPTB - DHCSPTB - DHPCSPC - DHPCSPC - DHPDBFB - DHPDBFB - DHPFBCL - DHPFBCC - DHPFBDC - DHPFBDC - DHPFBDC | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCVPO - DHPCOPO - | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NUT ADDRESSABLE NUT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NUT ADDRESSABLE NUT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPT8 - DHCSPT8 - DHCVP0 - DHCVP0 - DHCVP0 - DHCVP0 - DHCVP7 - DHPCPP - DHPCPP - DHPCPP - DHPCPP - DHPCPF0 - DHPF8CL - DHPF8CL | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSV2 - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCVPD - DMPCVPD - DMPCVPD - DMPDGPB - DMPDGPB - DMPFGT - DMPFGDC - DMPFBDC - DMPFBDL - DMPFBH1 - DMPFBH2 - DMPFBH2 | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCSPTB - DHCVPD - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBDE - DHPFBDE - DHPFBN - DHPFBH2 - DHPFBL8 - D | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPLT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPCOFO - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBDU - DHPFBDU - DHPFBL - DHPFBL - DHPFBL - DHPFBLO - DHPFBLO | 0FFSET 000657 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPT8 - DHCSPT8 - DHCSPT8 - DHCUPD - DHCUPD - DHCOPP - DHCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPP - DHPCOPF - DHPCOFF - DHP | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCOPO - DMPCO - DMPCOPO - DM | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DHCPTGT - DHCPUT - DHCRLSE - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCRSVI - DHCSPTB - DHCSPTB - DHCVPD - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPCOPO - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBC - DHPFBL - DHPFBL - DHPFBLS - DHPFBL1 - DHPFBL2 - DHPFBL | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTER(SPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMPCOFO - DMPCOFO - DMPCOFO - DMPCOFO - DMPCOFO - DMPFBF - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBDE - DMPFBDE - DMPFBLB - DMPFBLS - DMPFBL2 - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBL2 - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBN - DMPFBLS - DMPFBN - DMP | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSYI - DMCRSYI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCOPP - DMPCOPP - DMPGEN - DMPFSCL - D | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABL | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCVP - DMPFBL - DMPFBL - DMFFBL - DMFFBD - DMFFBD | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCBT - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBL - DMPFBL | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCPTGT DMCPLT DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPDBFB DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBC | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSYI - DMCRSYI - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCDPP - DMCOPP - DMPCOPP - DMPOEP - DMPDEPN - DMPDEPN - DMPDEN - DMPSGL - D | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABL | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCOPO - DMPCOP | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCPTGT DMCRLSE DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCB8 DMPF8B DMPF8B DMPF8D DMPF8D DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8S DMPF8D | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| DMCPTGT DMCPLT DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMCSPTB DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPCOFO DMPCFP DMPDBFB DMPFBR DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBC DMPFBL DMPFBL DMFFBS DMFFBS | 0FFSET 000657 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSYI - DMCRSYI - DMCRSYI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPP - DMPCVP - DMPSFB - DMPSFC - DMPFSL - DMPFSL | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPCOPO - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBL - DMFFBL - DMFFBS - | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSAULE NOT ADDRESSAULE NOT ADDRESSAULE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSAULE NOT | |
| DMCPTGT DMCPLT DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMPCOF0 DMPCOF0 DMPCOF0 DMPCOF0 DMPCOF0 DMPCBT DMPFBT DMPFBT DMPFBT DMPFBT DMPFBL DMPFBL DMPFBL DMPFBLS DMPFBLS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS DMPFBSS DMPFBS DMPFBSS D | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 | NUT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABL | |
| DMCPTGT DMCRLSE DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSV7 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCVPD DMCVPD DMPC0PP DMPC0PP DMPC0PP DMPC0PP DMPC0PP DMPC0PF DMPF0F8 DMPF8 DMPF8 DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8C DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8L DMPF8C DMPF8SC DMPF8S DM | 0FFSET 0006570 0005F0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABL | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCSSTB - DMCVDD - DMPCVD - D | 0FFSET 000657 0005F0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABL | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCSPTB - DMCVPD - DMPCOPO - | 0FFSET 000650 0005F0 0005A0 | NOT ADDRESSALLE NOT ADDRESSALLE ATTRIBUTES VALUE NOT ADDRESSALLE NOT ADDRESSALLE NOT ADDRESSALLE NOT ADDRESSALLE POINTERISPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSALLE POINTERISPP) CANNOT MATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSALLE NOT ADD | |
| DMCPTGT DMCPLT DMCRLSE DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCRSVI DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMCSPT8 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPCOP0 DMPFB7 DMPFB8 DMPFB8 DMPFB8 DMPFB8 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB1 DMPFB8 DMPF | 0FFSET 000657 0005F0 0005A0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPPI CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPPI CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDR | |
| DMCPTGT DMCPUT DMCRUT DMCRSYI DMCRSYI DMCRSYI DMCSSYI DMCSSTB DMCSSTB DMCSSTB DMCSSTB DMCDFD DMFCOFP DMFCOFP DMFDEYN DMFFBCT DMFFBCT DMFFBCT DMFFBCT DMFFBCT DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBL DMFFBC DMFFB | 0FFSET 0006570 0005F0 0005A0 0005A0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPI) CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPI) CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDR | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPUT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSPTB - DMCUPO - DMPCOFO - DMPFGL - DMPFGL | 0FFSET 000657 0005F0 0005A0 0005A0 | MOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE ATTRIBUTES VALVE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPPI CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE POINTERISPPI CANNOT WATERIALIZE NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT ADD | |
| - DMCPTGT - DMCPLT - DMCRLSE - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCRSVI - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCSTB - DMCVPD - DMPCVPO - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBC - DMPFBL - DMFFBL - DMFFBC - DMFFBL - DMFFBS - DMFFBL - DMFFBL - DMFFBL - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBL - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBS - DMFFBL - | 0FFSET 000659 0005F0 0005A0 0005A0 | NOT ADDRESSABLE NOT AD | |

Figure 10-6 (Part 4 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

| NAME | | | |
|---|---|--|--|
| | OFFSET | ATTRIBUTES | VALUE |
| .FCLSTP | 000579 | CHAR(21) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| .FCLSTP# | 000566 | CHAR (21) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| .FCPARM | 000450 | CHAR (22) | |
| *F CFARAF | 000470 | PUINIERISPEI | OBJECT PSSA |
| .FCPTR | 00 04 40 | PO INTER(SYP) | DB JECT DCREXHAN |
| FIR | 000750 | CHAR (32767) | |
| | 0008 3A | +91 | |
| | 0007E0 | VALUE IN HEX | • C 6C 9D 3C 56 0F 24 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 |
| | 000808 | +41 | * 0 5 5 2 7 0 * 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 |
| | 000858 | +121 | •000000000000000000000000 x |
| •F18#0PT | 0004 C4 | CHAR(B) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| *FIBCA | 000875 | CHAR(22) | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| .FIBCENT | 000881 | CHAR(10) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| +FIBCFS | 000804 | CHAR(2) CHAR(1) | •00• |
| .FIBCHAN | 000860 | POINTER(SPP) | NULL |
| .FIBCKID | 000875 | 20NED(2.0) | ** *0000*x |
| .FISCTID | 000808 | CHAR(4) | • |
| .FIBCTL | 0005 B0 | POINTER(SPP) | NULL |
| •FIBCUR | 000806 | CHAR (6) | ·CLOSOO' |
| IF I DOWN | 000526 | +91 | |
| | 0004CC | VALUE IN HEX | • 0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 |
| . FIRELGS | 0004F4 | +41 | 3 LINES OF ZERDES SUPPRESSED |
| .FIBENT | 0008 0E | CHAR (10) | |
| +FIBEN | 0007E0 | CH AR (30) | IF ILE-2 |
| •FIBK#LN •FIBK#R# | 000465 | DINARY(2) BINARY(4) | 0 |
| .FIBK#RK | 000469 | BI NARY (2) | 0 |
| •FIBK#TP | 0004C4 | CHAR(1) | 1 1 100°X |
| +FIBKCGR | 0004 48 | CHAR (B) | * * * * * * * * * 200040000000 FF * X |
| .FISKCTL | 000480 | BINARY (2) | 0 |
| •FISKOLN | 0004 C0 | BINARY(2) | 2 |
| FISKOTP | 0004 BF | CHAR(1) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| .FIBKEY | 000518 | BI NARY (4) | 0 |
| •FIBKFLN | 000483 | BINARY(2) | 10 |
| *FIBKFTP | 0004B2 | CHAR(1) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| .FIBKKEY | 0004 CE | CHAR (1 20) | |
| | 000528 | +91 VALUE TH HEY | T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T |
| | 0004F6 | +41 | 2 LINES OF ZEROES SUPPRESSED |
| .FIGKKLN | 0004 CC | BINARY(2) | 0 |
| .FIBKLEN | 000408 | BINARY(2) | 0 |
| •F18L80 | 0008 IE | BI NARY (2) | 0 |
| FIBLET | 00081A | BINARY (2) | 0 |
| NAME | OFFSET | AT TR IBUTES | VALUE |
| | OFFSET | AT TR IBUTES | VALUE |
| NAME •FIBLIN •FIBLINE | 0FFSET 000818 000820 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) | VALUE 0 0 |
| NANE •FIBLIN •FIBLINE •FIBLOP •FIBLOP | OFFSET 000818 000820 000800 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) | VALUE 0 0 |
| NAME • FIBLIN • FIBLINE • FIBLOP • FIBNOP | OFFSET 000818 000820 000800 00081C 000870 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME • FIBLIN • FIBLINE • FIBLOP • FIBMOP • FIBOOPNT | OFFSET 000618 000820 000800 000810 000870 000859 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (10) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME • FIBLIN • FIBLINE • FIBLOP • FIBNOP • FIBOREY | OFFSET 000818 000820 000810 000810 000817 0008E9 000873 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) CHAR (120) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME •FIBLIN •FIBLOP •FIBLOP •FIBLOP •FIBOPN •FIBOPNT •FIBOKEY | OFFSET 000618 000620 000800 00081C 000873 0008CB 000873 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (10) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME •FIBLIN •FIBLOP •FIBLOP •FIBNOP •FIBOFMT •FIBOKEY | OFFSET 000618 000620 000800 00081C 000870 000873 0008C7 000873 000873 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) BINARY(2) CHAR(4) BINARY(2) CHAR(12) CHAR(120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME .FIELIN .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELOP .FIELON .FIELON | OFFSET 000618 000620 000800 00081C 000870 000873 0008073 000873 000873 000879 000873 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) BINARY(2) CHAR(4) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(20) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BINARY(2) CHAR(1) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME -FIBLINE -FIBLOP -FIBLOP -FIBNOP -FIBOP -FIBOREY -FIBOREY | DFFSET 000618 000800 000810 000850 000850 000853 000853 000871 000800 000871 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (10) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (122) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME -FIBLIN -FIBLOP -FIBLOP -FIBOP -FIBORP -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREN -FIBOREN | OFFSET 000818 000820 000800 00081C 000873 0008C 000873 0008071 000891 000871 0008071 0008071 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) YALUE IN HEX SI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (122) +91 | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBLOP .FIBOP .FIBOP .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOLD .FIBOLDK | 00FFSET 000818 000820 000800 000870 000850 000873 000850 000871 000871 000871 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) BINARY(2) CHAR(4) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(2) CHAR(6) CHAR(6) CHAR(6) CHAR(122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLINE - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBOP - FIBOLDK - FIBOLDK - FIBOD | 0FFSET 000818 000820 000800 000870 000870 000870 000870 000870 000871 0008071 0008871 000881 000871 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (4) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME • FIBLIN • FIBLOP • FIBLOP • FIBOOP • FIBOOP • FIBOREY • FIBOREY • FIBOREY • FIBORES • FIBORES | 000618 000620 000900 000910 000870 000870 000873 0008670 000873 000873 000870 000871 000873 000871 000871 000871 000800 000871 000820 000820 000820 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +01 VALUE IN HEX +1 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) | VALUE |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLINE .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBORY .FIBORY .FIBORLN .FIBOR .FIBOP .FIBOP .FIBOP2 .FIBOP3 | DFFSET 000618 000820 000800 000800 000850 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 0008071 0008071 0008071 0008071 0008071 0008071 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) BINARY(2) CHAR(4) BINARY(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(6) CHAR(6) CHAR(6) CHAR(4) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBOP - FIBOREY - FIBOREY - FIBOLOK - FIBOD - FIBOP - F | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) | VALUE |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBOFNY .FIBOKEY .FIBOLD .FIBOLD .FIBOLD .FIBOP | 000018 000020 000020 000000 0000010 0000000 0000000 0000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN MEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTEP (5PP) | VALUE |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBORY .FIBORKN .FIBORN .FIBOP | 0FFSET 000618 000820 000800 000800 000850 000870 000850 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GH AR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (2) CHAR (2) CHAR (2) CHAR (2) CHAR (1) CHAR | VALUE |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBOR - FIBOPI - FIBOPI - FIBOPI - FIBOPA - | 00755ET 000818 000820 000800 000870 000870 000870 000871 000871 000871 000870 000871 000870 000871 000870 000871 000870 000870 000871 000870 0008000 000800 000800 000800 0008000 0008000 0008000 0008000 000800000000 | ATTRIBUTES BI NARY (2) GH NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) C | VALUE |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLIOP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBORPY - FIBOREY - FIBORE | DFFSET 000918 000920 000920 000970 000950 000971 000950 000971 000950 000971 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000546 000546 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) BI NARY (4) CHAR (14) CHAR | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBLOP .FIBOFMT .FIBOFMT .FIBOKEY .FIBOREY .FIBOR .FIBOD .FIBOD .FIBOD .FIBOD .FIBOP .FIBOP .FIBOP .FIBOPA | 0FFSET 000618 000820 000800 000810 000850 000873 000850 000871 000800 0008610 000871 000820 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000850 000871 000220 000816 000549 000816 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +01 VALUE IN HEX +1 BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PD IN TER (5PP) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) BI NARY (4) PD IN TER (5PP) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLINE - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBOREY - FIBOREY | 0FFSET 000818 000820 000800 000870 000873 000873 000871 0008720 000873 00085 000873 000855 000873 000855 000873 000855 000873 000855 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GHAR (4) BI NARY (2) GHAR (1) GHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (6) CHAR (1) CHAR (| VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBOPY - FIBOP | DFFSET 000818 000820 000800 000810 000870 000850 000871 000800 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 000871 000220 000871 000240 000546 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GHAR(4) BI NARY (2) CHAR(4) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR(6) CHAR(122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR(1) CHAR(1) BI NARY (4) POINTER(5PP) POINTER(5PP) POINTER(5PP) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBOFMT .FIBOKEY .FIBOKEY .FIBOLD .FIBOLD .FIBOD .FIBOPA .FIBOP | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLOP .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBORMT .FIBORKY .FIBORKY .FIBORKN .FIBOLD .FIBOD2 .FIBOP2 .FIBOP3 .FIBOP4 .FIBOP4 .FIBORN .F | 0FFSET 000618 000820 000800 000810 000850 000873 000850 000800 000800 000800 000800 000800 000800 000800 000818 000840 000840 000840 000840 000840 000840 000840 000840 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GH AR (4) BI NARY (2) GH AR (4) BI NARY (2) GH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) CH AR (1) DI NARY (4) PO IN TER (5PP) PO INTER (5PP) PO INTER (5PP) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBNO | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO IN TER (5PP) PO INTER (5 | VALUE |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLIP - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBOP - FIBOP - FIBOREY - FIBOLDK - FIBOLDK - FIBOLDK - FIBOLDK - FIBOP2 - FIBOP2 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP5 - FIBO | 000918 000920 000920 000920 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 000950 0009546 000546 000840 000840 000840 000850 0008250 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO INTER (5PP) PO INTER (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) | VALUE |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLIOP .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBOFMT .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOR .FIB | 0FFSET 000618 000820 000800 000810 000850 000871 000850 000871 0008620 000602 000602 000602 000602 000850 000871 000220 000602 000602 000602 000602 000602 000546 0005580 00055580 00055800000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GHAR (4) BI NARY (2) GHAR (1) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) HI NARY (2) CHAR (120) HI NARY (2) CHAR (122) HI NARY (2) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) DI NTER (5PP) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) BI NARY (2) BI NARY | VALUE 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLINE - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBOP - | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) BI NARY (2) BI | VALUE '03000001*X 100*X MASTE' '00000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLIP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBNOP - FIBOREY - FIBOREY | DFFSET 000918 000900 000900 000910 000970 000070 000070 000970 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO INTER (5PP) PO INTER (5PP) PO INTER (5PP) PO INTER (5PP) BI NARY (2) BI | VALUE '03000001*X '000X MASTE' '00000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| NAME .FIBLIN .FIBLIOP .FIBLOP .FIBNOP .FIBNOP .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOREY .FIBOR .F | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) GHAR (4) BI NARY (2) GHAR (1) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +01 VALUE IN HEX +1 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) CHAR (122) CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) DINTER (1P) | VALUE 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| NAME . FIBLIN . FIBLINE . FIBLOP . FIBLOP . FIBORY . FIBORY . FIBORY . FIBORY . FIBORY . FIBOP . FIB | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) CHAR (12) CHAR (12) CHAR (12) CHAR (122) *01 CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) DI INTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (| VALUE |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLIP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBNOP - FIBOREY - FIBOREY - FIBOLX - FIBOLX - FIBOLX - FIBOLX - FIBOP2 - FIBOP2 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP5 - FIBOP4 - FIBOP5 - FIBOP5 | DFFSET 000918 000900 000900 000900 000970 000950 000970 000070 000970 000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) CHAR (1) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) | VALUE |
| NAME -FIBLIN -FIBLIOP -FIBLOP -FIBOP -FIBOP -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOR -FIB | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +01 VALUE IN HEX +1 BI NARY (2) CHAR (120) +01 VALUE IN HEX +1 CHAR (4) CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) POINTER (1P) DINTER (1P) BI NARY (2) BI R (1) CHAR (1) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLINE - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBORY - FIBOR - F | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (12) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (6) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (122) +91 CHAR (122) +91 POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) BI NARY (2) BI R (6) CHAR (10) CHAR | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME -FIBLIN -FIBLOP -FIBLOP -FIBNOP -FIBNOP -FIBORKY -FIBORKY -FIBOLX -FIBOLX -FIBODX -FIBODX -FIBOP2 -FIBOP2 -FIBOP2 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP5 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP5 -FIB | DFFSET 000818 000820 000800 000800 00087 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000220 000602 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 000870 000850 0008770 000820 000820 000820 000820 0008770 000820 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000850 000870 000800 000870 000800 000870 000800 000870 000800 000800 000800 000800 000870 000800 000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) CHAR (14) BI NARY (2) BI R (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (14) CHAR (14) | VALUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| NAME -FIBLIN -FIBLIP -FIBLOP -FIBNOP -FIBNOP -FIBNOP -FIBORKY -FIBORKY -FIBORKY -FIBOLDK -FIBOLDK -FIBOLDK -FIBOLDK -FIBOLDK -FIBOP2 -FIBOP2 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP4 -FIBOP5 -FIBOP5 -FIBOP5 -FIBOP6 -FIBOP6 -FIBOP6 -FIBOP7 -FIBOP6 -FIBOP7 | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (10) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) DI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) | VALUE 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLINE - FIBLOP - FIBLOP - FIBORY - FIBORY | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (6) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) BI NARY (2) BI R (6) CHAR (10) CHAR (10) | VALUE ' '03000001*X '00*X MASTE' '00000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| NAME -FIBLIN -FIBLOP -FIBLOP -FIBNOP -FIBNOP -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBOREY -FIBORE - | DFFSET 000818 000820 000800 000800 000850 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000800 000871 000220 000602 000871 000220 000871 000220 000871 000220 0008750 0008750 000850 000850 000850 000850 000826 000850 000826 000850 0000850 00000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (122) +91 YALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) POINTER (5PP) DI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) | VALUE |
| NAME - FIBLIN - FIBLIP - FIBLOP - FIBNOP - FIBNOP - FIBOREY - FIBOREY | DFFSET 000918 000920 0009620 000970 000981C 000970 00000 000970 000000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 000000 | AT TR IBUTES BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR (4) BI NARY (2) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 BI NARY (2) CHAR (120) +91 VALUE IN HEX +41 CHAR (4) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) CHAR (1) BI NARY (4) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) PO INTER (5P) BI NARY (2) BI R (1) CHAR | VALUE |

Figure 10-6 (Part 5 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

| •F02CUP F02CUR •F02FLGS •F02FNT •F02FN •F02DLD •F02DLD •F02UBTU •F02UBTU •F02UFCB | 000806 | | |
|---|---|---|--|
| •F02CUR •F02FLGS •F02FNT •F02FN •F02FN •F02DD •F02SPC •F02UBTD •F02UFCB | 000000 | CUAR(4) | |
| •F02FLGS •F02FMT •F02FN •F02FN •F02SPC •F02SPC •F02UBTD •F02UFCB | 000906 | CHAR(4) | |
| •F02FMT •F02FN •F020LD •F025PC •F02UBTD •F02UFCB | 000308 | CHAR(1) | • |
| •F02FN •F02DLD •F02SPC •F02UBTD •F02UFCB | 0008 OF | CHAR(10) | • • |
| •F020L0 •F02SPC •F02UBT0 •F02UFCB | 0007E0 | CH AR (30 ; | 'F1LE~2 ' |
| •F02SPC •F02UBT0 •F02UFCB | 000800 | CHAR (5) | • 10* •0300001F1F0*x |
| •F02UBT0 •F02UFCB | 000318 | CH AR (14) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| •F02UFCB | 000840 | POINTER(IP) |) NULL |
| | 000830 | POINTER(SPP | P) SPACE OFFSET 2160 +00000870+X |
| E0 300 T. | | 00101-01 | UNJELI PSSA |
| -FOZURTN | 000850 | POINTER(SPP | |
| +02USE# | 000800 | BINART(2) | |
| *TOCPTR | 000340 | PUTATERTSPP | |
| • 10F PT9 | 000620 | PRINTER(SYP | |
| | | | CONTEXT QSYS |
| . IOFDBEX | 0005E0 | POINTER(SPP | P) NULL |
| I OOP TR | 0005 30 | POINTERISPP | P) SPACE OFFSET 2054 *00000806*X |
| | | | DBJECT PSSA |
| • IORTN | 000210 | POINTER(IP) |) STAT 68 INSTR # 00000058 |
| | | | OBJECT TESTORT |
| | | | |
| • IP0000 I | 000880 | PUINICRIIPI | |
| | | | |
| . MAINRTN | 000200 | POINTERISYP | DOULET OCHAIN |
| | | | CONTEXT QSYS |
| .MGT | 00 00 A 0 | CHAR (16) | *C080L MGT 00+0 * |
| • MGTBIN8 | 000187 | CHAR (8) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| .MGTCNCL | 000196 | CH AP (1) | •0• |
| • MGTCNTR | 0001 30 | BI NARY (4) | DIMENSION(20) |
| | 0001 7C | (1-20) | |
| MG TOPON | 000200 | PUINTER(SYP | |
| - NGTEXCP | 000198 | CHAR(1) | · · · |
| MGTFIB | 000000 | POINTERISPE | P) SPACE OFFSET 1632 *00000660*X |
| | | . Ganaling JPP | OBJECT PSSA |
| .MGTFUNC | 000185 | BINARY (2) | 2 |
| .MGT IND | 000193 | CHAR (1) | DIMENSION(32) |
| | 000182 | (1-32) | •0• |
| .MGT INVC | 00018A | BENARY(2) | 2 |
| • MGT MSG I | 000262 | CHAR(7) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| MGTNSGN | 000260 | BINARY (2) | |
| . MGTMSGR | 000250 | POINTER(SPP | |
| . HGIHSGS | 0002 30 | POINTER(IP) | |
| - MGTNAME | 000240 | CHARITON | ·/ NULL · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| MGTNEXT | 000080 | POINTEDISO | P) NULL |
| .MGTOSZ | 000193 | CHAR(1) | • • • • |
| MGTOVEL | 000195 | CHAR (1) | •0• |
| . NGTPACK | 0001 BF | PACKED(31.0 | 0) |
| . MGTPARM | 000270 | PO INTER (SPP | P) SPACE OFFSET 768 +00000300+X |
| | | | OBJECT PSSA |
| - NGTPASA | 0000E0 | POINTER(SPP | P} SPACE OFFSET 2304 *00000900*X |
| | | | OBJECT PASA |
| • MGTPCS | 0001E0 | POINTER(SPP | P) NULL |
| | | | |
| -FM 00 | 0197 CHAR | TERISYPI OR | |
| | | co | NTEXT PUBS |
| 'GT 00 | 0000 POIN | TER(SPP) SP | PACE OFFSET 4816 •000012D0•X |
| | | 08 | DJECT PSSA |
| LVL 0 0 | 0101 BINA | RY(2) 1 | |
| TP 00 | OLFO POIN | TER(SPP) SP | ACE OFFSET 2512 *000009D0*X |
| | | 08 | BJECT PSSA |
| 18 00 | DZEO POIN | TERISPPI SP | |
| | | | JECI PSSA |
| | DICE BINA | | |
| IST OC | | TER(SPP) SP | ACE DFFSET 0 *0000000*X |
| IST OC IEG OC IEPT OC | 100F0 PDIN | | AJECT QINSEPT |
| IST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 | 100F0 PDIN | 08 | |
| IST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 | 000F0 PDIN | 08 C0 | DNTEXT QSYS |
| IST OC JEG OC JEPT OC | 000F0 PDIN | 08 C0 (1) •0 | DNTEXT GSYS |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 IOSZ 00 IPCD 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 10199 CHAR | 08 C0 (1) •0 (1) •0 | NTEXT QSYS |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 IPCD 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR | 08 C0 (1) *0 (1) *0 (1) * | NTEXT QSYS • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 IDSZ 00 IPCD 00 VPE 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR | 0B CO (1) *0 (1) *0 (1) *0 (1) *1 | NTEXT OSYS *80*X |
| RST 00 ;EG 00 ;EPT 00 ;PCD 00 ;W 00 ;YPE 00 (PTR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00180 PDIN | 08 C0 (1) *0 (1) *0 (1) *0 (1) *1 TER(SPP) SP | NTEXT QSYS |
| RST 00 GEG 01 SEPT 02 SOSZ 00 IPCD 00 IW 00 IVPE 00 IPTR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 10100 PDIN | 08 CO (1) •0 (1) •0 (1) •1 (1) •1 TER(SPP) SP 08 TE9(SPC) 08 | NTEXT OSYS |
| 15T 00 15G 00 15PT 00 15PC 00 15P | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 102A0 PDIN | 0B (1) 00 (1) 00 (1) 00 (1) 10 (1) 11 TER(SPP) SP 0B TER(SPP) SP | DNTEXT 05Y5 * *80*X * *80*X * *00000540*X SUECT PCS 001269 ACE OFFSET 040 *00000280*X SUECT PCS 001269 ACE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 IPCD 00 IPC 00 IPTR 00 ATR 00 .TMP 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 102A0 PDIN | 08 C0 (1) •0 (1) •1 (1) •1 (1) •1 TER(SPP) SP 08 TER(SPP) SP 08 RY(4) 77 | NTEXT OSYS *80*X *ACE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X JJECT PCS 001269 *00000280*X JJECT PSSA |
| NST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 PCD 00 WPE 00 IPTR 00 CATR 00 TMP 00 CATR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 002A0 PDIN 10280 BINA | 08 C0 (1) •0 (1) •0 (1) •1 TER(SPP) SP 08 TER(SPP) SP 08 RY(4) 32 (1) • | DNTEXT OSVS * *80*X * *80*X *ACE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X SUECT PCS 001269 *ACE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X SUECT PSSA * *FF*X |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 00 STR 00 CL 00 IPTR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00193 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 002A0 PDIN 002A0 PDIN 002B0 BINA 005C0 PDIN | 08 C0 (1) •0 (1) •0 (1) •1 TER(SPP) SP 08 TER(SPP) SP 08 RY(4) 32 (1) TER(SPP) CA | NTEXT OSYS |
| 45T 00 5EG 00 5FPT 00 5PCD 00 5PCD 00 5PC 00 6PTR 00 CL 00 6PTR 00 CL 00 6PTR 00 6PTR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 00240 PDIN 00280 BINA 00600 CHAR 005C0 PDIN | 08 C0 (1) •0 (1) •0 (1) •1 TER(SPP) SP 08 RY(4) 32 (1) • TER(SPP) CA (32) • | NTEXT OSYS *80*X ACE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X SJECT PCS 001269 *ACE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X SJECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SSZ 00 IPCD 00 IPT 00 IPTR 00 CATR 00 IPTR 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 002A0 PDIN 002A0 PDIN 00540 CHAR 00340 CHAR | 08 C0 (1) 00 (1) 00 (1) 1 TER(SPP) SP 08 TER(SPP) SP 08 RY(4) 32 (1) 1 TER(SPP) CA (32) 1 E IN MEX 0 | NTEXT 05Y5 *80*X *80*X *ACE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X SUECT PCS 001269 *ACE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X SUECT PSSA *FF*X NMOT HATERIALIZE * |
| tst 00 seg 00 sosz 00 spcp 00 ve 00 vvi 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00180 PDIN 00280 PDIN 00280 PDIN 00280 PDIN 00500 PDIN 10350 CHAR 00340 VALU | 0B 0B CO 00 (1) 00 (1) 01 (1) 11 TER(SPP) SP 0B 08 RY(4) 32 (1) 1 TER(SPP) SP 0B 08 RY(4) 32 (12) 1 (132) 1 | •80*x •80*x •80*x •80*x •CE OFFSET 1344 •00000540*x JJECT PCS 001269 •CE OFFSET 640 •00000280*x JECT PSSA •FF*X INNOT HATERIALIZE •FF*X |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SSPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 00 SPCD 00 SW 00 | 000F0 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00199 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00100 PDIN 00240 PDIN 00240 PDIN 00240 PDIN 00340 CHAR 00340 CHAR 10340 CHAR 10360 CHAR | 0B CO | NTEXT 05V5 *80*X *80*X *CC 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X SUECT PCS 001269 SUECT PCS 001269 SUECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 00 IPTR 00 IPTR 00 IVE 00 IVE 00 IVI 00 ICUR 00 | 00060 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00193 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00180 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00180 CHAR 00180 CHAR 00180 PDIN 00280 PDIN 00280 PDIN 00500 PDIN 00500 PDIN 00340 VALU 00360 VALU 00360 PDIN 00360 PDIN | 08 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 09 09 01 02 01 02 03 04 04 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 | NTEXT 05V5 *80*X NCE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X JECT PCS 001269 NCE 0FFSET 640 *0000000000 *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tst 00 seg 00 sept 00 spcD 00 cd 00 vvt 00 vvt 00 ccur 00 spcD 00 spcD 00 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 30193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 30100 PDIN 30240 PDIN 105200 BINA 10540 CHAR 10340 CHAR 10350 VALU 10360 VALU 10360 VALU 100000 PDIN 10290 POIN | 08 CO | NTEXT 05V5 *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X DJECT PCS 001269 * VACE 0FFSET 640 * USCT PSSA * * *FF*X * * * NNOT MATERIALIZE * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 00 SW 00 SW 00 SW 00 SW 00 SW 00 STAR 00 CL 00 SW 00 VE | 3000F0 PDIN 30194 CHAR 30193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30186 PDIN 30280 PDIN 106280 BINA 105200 PDIN 30540 CHAR 30340 CHAR 30360 VALU 100360 VALU 100360 VALU 100290 PDIN 102760 PDIN | 00 00 01 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 11 01 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 132 1 133 1 134 | NTEXT 05VS *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *000002540*X SJECT PCS 001269 * SJECT PSA * * *FF*X * * * NNOT MATERIALIZE * * *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 PPCD 00 IPTR 00 CATR 00 IPTR 00 IPTR 00 IPTR 00 IVE 00 IVE 00 IVT 00 IPTR 00 IVT 00 IPTR 00 | 000660 РОІМ 00194 СНАР 00193 СНАР 00183 СНАР 00184 СНАР 00184 СНАР 00280 РОІМ 00280 ВІМА 00500 РОІМ 00340 СНАР 00340 VALU 00360 СНАР 00340 VALU 10360 СНАР 00360 РОІМ 10360 РОІМ 10360 РОІМ | Image: Constraint of the second sec | NTEXT 05Y5 *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X JJECT PCS 001269 *00000280*X JJECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT #ATERIALIZE *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 00 SPCD 00 SW 00 SW 00 SW 00 STAR 00 CL 00 SW 00 VE 00 VE 00 VE 00 IDM 00 1004 00 | 3000F0 PDIN 30194 CHAR 30193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30280 PDIN 106280 BIAA 10520 PDIN 30520 POIN 30340 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 100290 PDIN 1027E0 PDIN 1037E0 PDIN | CILI OB CILI OC TER(SPP) SP OB OC RY(4) 32 CILI OC TER(SPP) CA TER(SPP) SP OB OP TER(SP) SP OP SP TER(SP) SP OP SP | NTEXT 05VS *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *000002540*X JECT PCS 001269 * SJECT PSA * * VNOT HATERIALIZE * * V000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 00 SPTR 00 CL 00 SPTR 00 VPE 00 VV1 00 VU1 00 VPTR 00 IDM 00 IDM 00 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 30240 PDIN 30500 CHAR 30340 VALU 30340 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN 10290 PDIN 10270 PDIN | Image: Constraint of the second sec | NTEXT 05Y5 180*X 160*X 100* |
| NST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 02 /PTR 00 CL 00 VPE 00 VVE 00 VVI 00 LOUR 00 IOD4 00 'CTR 00 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 30280 BINA 10500 CHAR 105200 BINA 10540 CHAR 10340 CHAR 10350 CHAR 10360 CHAR 10360 PDIN 10290 POIN 107E0 POIN 107E0 POIN 103E0 BINA | 00 00 01 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 02 01 03 01 04 01 05 01 06 01 07 01 | NTEXT 05VS *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000260*X DJECT PCS 001269 *00000280*X JECT PSA *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE * *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 00 SPTR 00 CL 00 VVE 00 VCUR 00 VCUR 00 VPTR 00 VIM 00 VIM 00 VETR 00 VETR 00 VIM 00 VETR 00 VETR 00 VETR 00 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 30280 BINA 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 30500 CHAR 30340 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN 30290 POIN 10920 POIN 10950 BINA 103200 CHAR | 08 08 C0 01 C0 01 C11 00 C11 00 C11 01 TER(SPP) SP C0 08 TER(SPP) SP C132) + C132) + C132) + C0 89 TER(SPP) SP TER(SPP) SP C0 RY(2) C0 C0 RY(2) L C13270 + | NTEXT 05YS NTEXT 05YS NACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X SJECT PCS NACE 0FFSET 14 *00000280*X SJECT PSSA * *FF*X NMOT MATERIALIZE *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SDSZ 01 SPCD 02 SPTR 02 CL 02 CUR 02 VV1 02 VU1 02 SD04 02 SCTR 02 'CTR 02 OC 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 PDIN 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 103290 POIN 107E0 PDIN 107E0 PDIN 103E0 BINA 103E0 BINA 103E0 CHAR | 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 1 12 1 132 1 14 1 15 1 | NTEXT 05VS •80*X ACE OFFSET 1344 •00000280*X JECT PSA •FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPTR 02 CL 00 SPTR 02 CL 02 VE 02 VE 02 VU 02 SUM 02 SUM 02 'CTR 02 'CTR 02 'CTR 02 'CTR 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30280 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 CHAR 30340 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN | OB OB CI CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO RY(2) L CO CO RY(2) L CO CO RY(2) L CO CO RY(2) L E E CO CO RY(2) L E E E E E E E E E E CO CO | INTEXT 05YS *80*X *ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X Spect PCS 954 *FF*X WHOT *FF*X NATE IALIZE *FF*X 1000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tst 00 seg 00 sept 00 spcD 01 spcD 02 spcD 02 spcD 02 spcD 02 spcD 02 vVE 02 vVE 02 vVI 02 vVI 02 vVI 02 vVI 02 vUM 02 vCTR 02 vCTR 02 02 02 03 02 04 02 05 02 06 02 07 02 08 02 09 02 00 02 02 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10350 PDIN 10350 PDIN 10350 PDIN 10350 BINA 10350 BINA 10350 HAR 10350 HAR 10350 HAR 10350 VALU 10350 HAR 10350 VALU 10350 HAR 10326 VALU 10327 VALU | (1) 60 (1) 90 (1) 10 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 11 (1) 12 (1) 12 (1) 12 (1) 12 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 | NTEXT 05VS *80*X *80*X ACE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X JECT PCS 01269 ACE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X JECT PSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *G000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SDSZ 01 SPCD 02 JPTR 02 CL 03 SPTR 02 VE 02 VE 02 VUN 04 SOL 02 SPTR 02 VE 02 VE 02 VOM 04 SOL 02 SCTR 02 </td <td>3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 CHAR 30340 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN 30360 PDIN 30360 PDIN 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 PDIN 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 303700 CHAR 30380 VALU</td> <td>08 08 C0 01 C0 01 C11 0 C11 0 C11 0 C11 1 TER(SPP) SP RY(4) 32 C11 1 C12 1 C132 1 C14 0 C15 0 C0 0 TER(SPP) C0 C0 0 RY(2) 1 C0 C0 RY(2) 1 C0 C0 RY(2) 1 1 10</td> <td>INTEXT 05Y5 *80*X *80*X SACE OFFSET 1344 *00000250*X SJECT PCS PSA *FF*X NNOT *FF*X NNOT *FF*X NOO 00000000000000000000000000000000000</td> | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 PDIN 30200 CHAR 30340 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN 30360 PDIN 30360 PDIN 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 PDIN 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 CHAR 303700 CHAR 30380 VALU | 08 08 C0 01 C0 01 C11 0 C11 0 C11 0 C11 1 TER(SPP) SP RY(4) 32 C11 1 C12 1 C132 1 C14 0 C15 0 C0 0 TER(SPP) C0 C0 0 RY(2) 1 C0 C0 RY(2) 1 C0 C0 RY(2) 1 1 10 | INTEXT 05Y5 *80*X *80*X SACE OFFSET 1344 *00000250*X SJECT PCS PSA *FF*X NNOT *FF*X NNOT *FF*X NOO 00000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tst 00 seg 00 sepr 00 spcp 01 spcp 01 spcp 01 spcp 01 spcp 01 spcp 02 spcp 02 spcp 02 spcp 02 spcp 02 spcp 02 vvt 02 vt 02 vt 02 vt 02 vt 02 vt 02 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 30100 PDIN 30240 PDIN 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10340 VALU 10360 PDIN 10320 PDIN 11324 +9 11324 +1 11348 +1 | (11) 00 (11) 00 (11) 01 (11) 11 (11) 11 (11) 11 (11) 11 (11) 11 (11) 11 (11) 11 (12) 10 (132) 1 | NTEXT 05V5 *80*X *80*X NEE OFFSET 1344 *00000540*X NEE OFFSET 640 *00000280*X SUECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE ************************************ |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 01 SPTR 00 CUP 00 VVE 00 VCUR 00 SOL 00 SCTR | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 300184 CHAR 300100 PDIN 30280 PDIN 30280 BINA 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 PDIN 30360 PDIN 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 3009E0 PDIN 11320 CHAR 11320 CHAR 11320 CHAR 1134 +1 1134 +1 11340 +1 | 08 08 C0 01 C0 01 C11 00 C11 01 TER(SPP) SP RY(4) 08 RY(4) 08 RY(4) 08 RY(4) 08 RY(4) 08 E IN HEX 0 TER(SPP) SP TER(IP) SP RY(2) I I 00 RY(2) I I 00 | NTEXT 05Y5 *80*X ACE 0FFSET SJECT PC5 SJECT PC5 SJECT PS4 *FF*X *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE >00000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tst 00 seg 00 sepr 00 spcp 00 vvt 00 vvt 00 spcp 00 spcp 00 vvt 00 spcp 00 spcp 00 <td>3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30280 BINA 10280 BINA 10300 CHAR 10350 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 VALU 10360 CHAR 10370 PDIN 10320 PDIN 10320 PDIN 10320 CHAR 112200 CHAR 11324 +9 11324 +1 11320 CHAR 11343 +1 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR</td> <td>0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 11 0 11 11 0 11 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 12 1 1 132 1 1 14 132 1 152 1 1 14 132 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 163 1 1 17 1 1 184 1 1 194 1 1</td> <td>NTEXT 05VS NCE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X JECT PCS 001269 * JECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE * * D000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30280 BINA 10280 BINA 10300 CHAR 10350 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 VALU 10360 CHAR 10370 PDIN 10320 PDIN 10320 PDIN 10320 CHAR 112200 CHAR 11324 +9 11324 +1 11320 CHAR 11343 +1 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR 11340 CHAR | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 11 0 11 11 0 11 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 1 12 1 1 132 1 1 14 132 1 152 1 1 14 132 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 152 1 1 163 1 1 17 1 1 184 1 1 194 1 1 | NTEXT 05VS NCE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X JECT PCS 001269 * JECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE * * D000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SW 01 SW 01 SW 01 SW 01 STMP 02 CL 02 SPTR 02 CUN 02 VE 02 VE 02 SOS 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 POIN 30280 BINA 10280 BINA 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 30500 POIN 10340 CHAR 30360 VALU 103060 POIN 103290 POIN 103200 CHAR 11200 CHAR 11320 CHAR | CILI OG CILI OG CILI OG CILI OG CILI OG TER(SPP) SP RY(4) 32 CILI TER(SPP) TER(SPP) SP TER(SP) SP TER(SP) SP SP SP | NTEXT 05VS *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000260*X JJECT PCS 001269 *00000280*X JJECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT HATERIALIZE *FF*X NACE 0FFSET 540 *0000400000000000000000000000000000000 |
| NST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 00 SPCD 01 SPTR 00 CCUR 01 VVE 00 VCUN 00 SPTR 00 VVE 00 VVE 00 SPTR | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 301193 CHAR 301194 CHAR 301194 CHAR 301194 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30100 PDIN 30280 BINA 10500 CHAR 30500 CHAR 30500 CHAR 30340 VALU 30340 CHAR 30340 VALU 30350 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30370 PGIN 30360 CHAR 313200 CHAR 11324 +9 11320 CHAR | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 11 1 | NTEXT 05YS *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X JJECT PCS 001269 *0000020*X JJECT PSSA *FF*X NMOT #FF*X NMOT #FF*X NMOT #FF*X NMOT #ATERIALIZE 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SPCD 01 SW 01 SW <td>3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10360 PDIN 103760 PDIN 10320 BINA 10320 BINA 10320 CHAR 10321F L</td> <td>08 08 01 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 02 01 03 01 04 02 05 02 06 02 07 02 01 02 02 02 03 02 04 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 06 02 07 02 07 <</td> <td>NTEXT 05V5 *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000280*X JECT PCS 2000 *60*X 326CT PCS 136CT PCS 136CT *0000280*X 136CT PSA *FF*X *FF*X NNOT KATERIALIZE *FF*X 000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 30183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30180 PDIN 10280 BINA 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10500 CHAR 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10340 VALU 10350 PDIN 10360 PDIN 103760 PDIN 10320 BINA 10320 BINA 10320 CHAR 10321F L | 08 08 01 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 02 01 03 01 04 02 05 02 06 02 07 02 01 02 02 02 03 02 04 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 05 02 06 02 07 02 07 < | NTEXT 05V5 *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000280*X JECT PCS 2000 *60*X 326CT PCS 136CT PCS 136CT *0000280*X 136CT PSA *FF*X *FF*X NNOT KATERIALIZE *FF*X 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| RST 00 SEG 00 SEPT 00 SOSZ 01 SPCD 01 SPTR 01 SPTR 02 VVE 02 VVE 02 VVE 02 SUM 02 | 3000F0 PDIN 300194 CHAR 300193 CHAR 300183 CHAR 300183 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30185 CHAR 30184 CHAR 30100 PDIN 30280 BINA 10500 CHAR 30500 CHAR 30500 CHAR 30340 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 VALU 30360 CHAR 31320 CHAR 31320 CHAR 31320 CHAR 313216 CHAR 31320 CHAR 313216 CHAR 313217 CHAR 31320 CHAR 313217 CHAR 313200 CHAR 313200 CHAR< | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 11 0 11 10 11 11 TER(SPP) SP 0 0 0 12 11 12 11 12 11 12 11 12 11 12 11 12 12 1 132 1 14 10 15 1 16 1 17 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 | NTEXT 05YS *80*X *80*X ACE 0FFSET 1344 *00000540*X > JECT PCS 001269 ACE 0FFSET 640 *00000200*X * > JECT PSSA * *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| tst 00 seg 00 seg 00 sept 00 spcD 01 smcD 02 smcD 03 smcD 03 smcD 03 smcD | 000660 PDIN 00194 CHAR 00193 CHAR 00183 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00185 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00185 CHAR 00184 CHAR 00185 PDIN 00240 PDIN 00500 PDIN 00340 VALU 00360 VALU 00360 PDIN 01270 CHAR 01324 +9 01325 +4 11324 +1 11324 +1 11320 HNA 11220 CHAR 11220 CHAR 11220 PDIN 11220 PDIN <td>Image: Constraint of the second sec</td> <td>NTEXT 05V3 *80*X *80*X ACE OFFSET 1344 *0000000000 *00000000 X JECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> | Image: Constraint of the second sec | NTEXT 05V3 *80*X *80*X ACE OFFSET 1344 *0000000000 *00000000 X JECT PSSA *FF*X NNOT MATERIALIZE *000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| | - 100PTR - 100PTR - 10RTN - 10RTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINRTN - MAINE - MAINE - MAINSCH - MAINSCH | IODPTR 0006.30 IDRTN 000210 .IDRTN 000210 .MAINRTN 000220 .MGT 000860 .MGTHNB 000187 .MGTCACL 000187 .MGTCACL 000187 .MGTCACL 000187 .MGTCACL 000187 .MGTCACC 000187 .MGTCACC 000187 .MGTCACC 000187 .MGTCACC 000187 .MGTFUNC 000183 .MGTFUNC 000183 .MGTMSGI 000260 .MGTMSGI 000260 .MGTMSGI 000260 .MGTMSGI 000260 .MGTMSGI 000260 .MGTMSGI 000270 .MGTPACK 000195 .MGTPASA 0000270 .MGTPASA 000197 .MGTPASA 000197 .MGTPASA 000197 .MGTPASA 000197 .MGTPASA 000197 .MGTOSZ 000197< | .100PTR 000530 POINTERISPI .10RTN 000210 POINTERISPI .10RTN 000210 POINTERISPI .10RTN 000210 POINTERISPI .10RTN 000220 POINTERISPI .10RTN 000220 POINTERISPI .4MINRTN 000220 POINTERISPI .4MGT 000187 CHAR(8) .4MGTENCL 000180 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC 000186 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC 000185 BINARY(2) .4MGTEUNC 000185 BINARY(2) .4MGTEUNC 000185 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC 000185 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC 000185 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC 000186 CHAR(1) .4MGTEUNC |

Figure 10-6 (Part 6 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

(

| | NAME | OFFSET | ATTRIBUTES | VALUE | |
|---|--|---|--|---|---|
| | | | | | |
| | | 0007F8 | +41 | 0 00A1 3210E00065A0 0040000000000 | 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| | • PTABLE | 0009E0 0009E0 | CHAR(48) VALUE IN HEX | * 4000000000000900000A13210E00065 | I • • A4 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 1 32 1 0E 00 065A0 0040 00 00 00 00 00 0 * X |
| | | 000A08 | +41 CHAR(16) | *000000000000000 * X | 1 1 7 5 34 0 5 0 5 1 4 BE 00 01 00 00 1 5 00 00 00 00 1 X |
| | • PTNUM | 000909 | BINARY (2) | l | |
| | • PTSEG • P010200 | 0009DB 000370 | CHAR(1) PACKED(2+0) | •0• | |
| | . QCRD I SP | 000880 | POINTER(SYP) | OBJECT OCRADRIN | |
| | . OCRXHAN | 000C 20 | POINTER(SYP) | OBJECT QCREXHAN | |
| | -RCI M | 006360 | CHAR(L) | CONTEXT OCBL | |
| | . RCL Ma | 000800 | POINTER(SPP) | SPACE OFFSET 3008 .000008 | C0*X |
| | - RETURNP | 000610 | POINTER(1P) | OBJECT PSSA NULL | |
| | • RTNPTR | 0003F0 | POINTER(SPP) | SPACE UFFSET 2304 •000009 | 00 • X |
| | . SE PT P | 000280 | POINTER(SPP) | NULL | |
| | • SI ZERP | 0004 30 | POINTER(SPP) | SPACE OFFSET 1008 *000003 OBJECT PSSA | F0•X |
| | .SVOBUFR | 000AC1 | CHAR (56) | • | • |
| | | 000AE9 | +41 | *00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 0• x |
| | . TADR 00 1 | 000410 | POINTER(SPP) | SPACE OFFSET 2443 *000009 DBJECT PSSA | 88 • X |
| | - TC00001 | 000A51 | CHAR (56) | • | • |
| | | 000A51 000A79 | VALUE IN HEX +41 | * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0° × |
| | .TC00002 | 000489 | CHAR (56) | | • |
| | | 000AB1 | +41 | •00000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 0'X |
| | . TMPNOL | 000370 000370 | CHAR(32) VALUE IN HEX | • • 013F00000000000000000000000000000000000 | • 00000000000000000000000000000000 * X |
| | . 1000001 | 0004.75 | NOT ADDRESSAB | .Е | |
| | • 1000002 | 000A3F | VALUE IN HEX | • | x•000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| | • T000003 | 000A3F 000380 | ZONED(2.0) CHAR(32) | ** • | •0000•x |
| | | 000380 | VALUE IN HEX | • 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| | • 12 | 0003A0 0003A0 | CHAR(32) VALUE IN HEX | - • 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | - 000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| | • T 3 | 0003C0 | CHAR (32) | • | • |
| | •UCB | 000870 | CHAR (32767) | • | x |
| | | 0008CA | +91 VALUE IN HE¥ | • | MAST* 00 0000 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 |
| | | 000898 | +41 | 2 LINES OF ZEROES SUPPRESSED | |
| | .UCBCLMG | 0008E8 000928 | +121 CHAR(1) | •0000000000000000000000000000000000000 | •00•x |
| | UCBEDOP | 000929 | CHAR(1) | • • | *00*X |
| | • UCBFLGS | 0008F0 | CHAR(2) | MASTER . | *8020*X |
| | .UCBFLG1 | 00091E 00091E | CHAR(1) CHAR(1) | • • | *80*X *20*X |
| | .UCBIBRa | 000880 | POINTER(SPP) | NULL | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| - | NANE | OFFSET | ATTRIBUTES | | |
| | NAME | OFFSET | ATTRIBUTES | VALUE | |
| | NANE • UCBI NDX | DFFSET | ATTRIBUTES BLNARY(2) | VALUE | |
| | NANE •UCBINDX •UCBIOF@ •UCBIAST | DFFSET 00091C 000880 000912 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(IO) | VALUE 0 NULL | *00000000000000000** |
| | NAME •UCBINDX •UCBIOF@ •UCBLAST •UCBLBID | DFFSET 00091C 0008B0 000912 0008FA | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(L0) BINARY(2) | VALUE 0 NULL . -75 | •00000000000000000•x |
| | NAME • UCBINDX • UCBIOFƏ • UCBLAST • UCBLAST • UCBLIB • UCBLIB • UCBLIBS | DFFSET 00091C 0008B0 000912 0008FA 0008FA | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000 X *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040* X |
| | NAME • UCBINDX • UCBIOF# • UCBLAST • UCBLAST • UCBLIB • UCBLIB • UCBHBID • UCBMBID • UCBMBID | DFFSET 00091C 000880 000912 0008FA 0008FA 0008FA 0008FA | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(12) BINARY(2) BINARY(2) | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000000000 *FF855CD3C9C2D3404040404040*X |
| | NAME .UC81NDX .UC8LOF3 .UC8LAST .UC8LB1D .UC8L18 .UC8MB1D .UC8MB1D .UC8MB1D .UC8MB1D | DFFSET 00091C 0008B0 000912 0008FA 0008FC 0008FA 000906 000906 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) BINARY(2) CHAR(12) CHAR(10) | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -115L -11 -11 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 x *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34 04 04 04 04 0* x *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0* x |
| | NANE .UC81NDX .UC8LOF3 .UC8LAST .UC8L81D .UC8L18 .UC8H10 .UC8H81D .UC8H81S .UC8H81S .UC8H81S .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8H88 .UC8L8 .UC8 | DFF5ET 00091C 000860 000912 0008FA 0008FC 0008FA 000966 000906 000908 000908 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(IO) BINARY(2) CHAR(IO) BINARY(2) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) | VALUE 0 NULL . -75 . -75 . •2L18L . -71 . NULL . | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 |
| | NANE .UC81NDX .UC8LOFa .UC8LAST .UC8L81D .UC8L18 .UC8H10 .UC8H18 .UC8H81D .UC8H81D .UC9H81D .UC9M81B .UC9M81B .UC9M81B .UC9M87a .UC9M87a .UC90A2 .UC | DFFSET 00091C 000902 0008FA 0008FA 0008FA 000906 000906 000906 000908 0008C0 000890 000850 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) GHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(10) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000 x *FF8 55CD 3C9C2D 34 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FF8 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X |
| | NAME .UCBINDX .UCBLOF8 .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLIB .UCBLIB .UCBLIB .UCBMBID .UCBMBS .UCBMRS .UCBMRS .UCBMRS .UCBMRA .UCBOP8 .UCBOP8 .UCBOP8 | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 00091C 0008FA 0008FA 000906 000906 000906 000906 000870 0008870 0008A0 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) BI INARY (2) | VALUE 0 NULL 75 -71 -71 -71 -71 NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL | *0000000000000000000 X *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X |
| | NAME - UCBINDX - UCBINDX - UCBLAST - UCBLBID - UCBLBID - UCBMBID - UCBMAN - UCBLBID - UCBMAN - UCBLBID - UCBMAN - UCBLBID - UCBMAN - | DFFSET 00091C 000880 000972 0008FA 000966 000906 000906 000906 000870 000880 000870 000870 000840 000942 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY[2] CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BINARY[2] BINARY[2] | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000 X *FFB 55CD 3C9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X |
| | NAKE .UC81NDX .UC81AST .UC84AST .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC84B10 .UC804Fa .UC800Fa .UC800Fa .UC80Fa .U | DFFSET 00091C 000880 000972 0008FA 000966 000906 000906 000906 000870 000880 000870 000880 000942 000942 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY (2) BI NARY (2) CHAR(4) POINTER(SPP) | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -6LIBL -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 |
| | NAME .UC81NDX .UC8LAST .UC8LAST .UC8LB1D .UC8L185 .UC8M61D .UC8M61D .UC8M61D .UC8M675 .UC8M675 .UC800Pa .UC800Pa .UC800Pa .UC80PFa .UC80PFa .UC80PFa .UC80PFa .UC80PFa .UC80PFa .UC80FFA .UC80FA .UC80FFA .UC80FFA .UC80FFA .UC80FFA | DFFSET 00091C 000860 000972 0008FA 0008FC 000966 000906 000908 000860 000850 000940 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000920 000950 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) BI NARY(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) | VALUE 0 NULL | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 x *FF8 55 CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FF8 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X 70 * X |
| | NAME - UC81NDX - UC8LOF3 - UC8LAST - UC8L81D - UC8L18 - UC8H10 - UC8H18 - UC8H8R5 - UC8H8R5 - UC8H8R5 - UC8H8R5 - UC80P8 - | DFFSET 00091C 000880 000972 0008FA 0008FC 000966 000906 000908 000800 000870 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000920 000590 000860 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BT NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) BI NARY(2) CHAR(4) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(1P) PD INTER(1P) PD INTER(1P) PD INTER(1P) | VALUE 0 NULL | *000000000000000000 x *FF8 55 CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FF8 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * 0 * X 70 * X |
| | NANE .UCBINDX .UCBLOF8 .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLBID .UCBHEID .UCBHEID .UCBHEID .UCBMERS .UCBMF8 .UCBMF | DFFSET 00091C 00091C 00092C 0008FA 0008FA 00096C 00096C 000906 000905 000870 000942 00092 00092 00092 000920 0000920 00000000 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) DINTER(SPP) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) | VALUE 0 NULL 75 - 0L18L - 71 - 71 | *000000000000000000 X *FFB 55CD 3C9C 2D 34 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 |
| | NAKE - UCBINDX - UCBIAST - UCBLAST - UCBLB - UCBLB - UCBLB - UCBMBID - UCBMBID - UCBMBID - UCBMBID - UCBMBID - UCBMBID - UCBMBIA - UCBMFA - UCBMFA - UCBMLVR - UCBRLVR - USERTN - | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 000912 0009FA 00096 000906 000906 000906 000906 000906 000906 000900 000970 00094 000530 0008E0 00040 00040 00040 00040 000570 0008E0 0004 00070 000700 00070 000700 00000 00 000 000 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BINARY (2) BINARY (2) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) CHAR(| VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 | *0000000000000000000*X *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FFB94040404040404040*X 70*X *0010*X |
| | NAKE .UC81NDX .UC8LAST .UC8LAST .UC8LB10 .UC8H18 .UC8H810 .UC8H810 .UC8H810 .UC8H810 .UC8H810 .UC80P3 .UC80P | DFFSET 00091C 000912 000972 0008FA 000966 000966 000906 000850 000870 000870 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000751 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -71 - 1 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -7 | *00000000000000000000 *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FFB940404040404040*X *0010*X *0010*X *001*X |
| | NAME .UC81 IND X .UC81 LOF a .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC80 | DFF5E1 00091C 00091C 0009FA 0008FA 0008FA 000966 000906 000850 000850 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000701 000701 000710 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) BINARY(2) BINARY(2) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) | VALUE 0 NULL | *000000000000000000 x *FF855CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FF894040404040404040*X *0010*X *8010*X *001*X |
| | NAME .UC81NDX .UC8LAST .UC8LAST .UC8LBID .UC8LI8 .UC8MBRS .UC8MBRD .UC8MBRS .UC8MBRS .UC8MBRS .UC8MPA .UC8MP | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 000952 0008FA 000966 000906 000906 000906 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000710 000710 000710 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) PD | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -71 -71 NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL 1 20 -0100- SPACE OFFSET 2160 *000008 0JJCC T PSSA , , NUL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL | *000000000000000000 x *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34040404040*X *FFB 94040404040404040*0 X *0010 * X *8010 * X *8010 * X *00 * X *00 * X |
| | NANE .UC81NDX .UC8LAST .UC8LAST .UC8LB1D .UC8L18 .UC8HB1D .UC8HB1D .UC8HB1D .UC8HB1D .UC8HB1D .UC8DP3 .UC8DP3 .UC8DP3 .UC8DP3 .UC8DP3 .UC8DP3 .UC8DP4 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF4 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF4 .UC8DF4 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF4 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF3 .UC8DF4 .USERTN .USERTN .USERTN .USEF4 .U01FC5 .U01FC5 .U02F4 | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 000912 0009FC 000965 000906 000965 000906 0008670 0008670 0008670 0008670 0008670 000942 00092 0009590 000860 000942 000942 00092 0009590 000860 00094 00094 00094 00094 00094 00095 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 000700 000866 00091 000700 000866 00092 00092 00092 00092 00092 00092 0000 000 | ATTRIBUTES BLNARY[2] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[10] BNNARY[2] CHAR[10] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] PDINTERISPPI PDINTERISPPI DINTERISPPI PDINTERISPPI CHAR[2] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] CHAR[1] PDINTERISPPI CHAR[1] | VALUE 0 NULL | *000000000000000000 x *FFB 55CD3C9C2D34040404040 * X *FFB 9404040404040404040 * X 70 * X *0010 * X *0010 * X *00 * X *00 * X |
| | NAME - UCBINDX - UCBIAST - UCBLAST - UCBLB - UCBLB - UCBMBID - UDBID - UD | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 000912 0008FA 0008FA 000906 000906 000800 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 0009710 000710 000710 000710 000710 000710 000710 000951 000880 000951 000895 0008 0008 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) BINARY(2) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) | VALUE 0 NULL -7 -75 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 | *000000000000000000 x *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34040404040 * X *FFB 9404040404040404040 * X 70 * X *0010 * X *8010 * X *8010 * X *8010 * X *8010 * X *8010 * X *00 * X *8020 * X *00 * X |
| | NAKE .UC81NDX .UC8LAST .UC8LAST .UC8LB10 .UC8H18 .UC8H19 .UC8H19 .UC8H19 .UC8H19 .UC8H19 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .U011F5 .U011VAL .U01F8 .U010F8 .U02F4 .U02F8 .U02F8 .U02F6 .U02VC | DFF5ET 00091C 000812 00087A 0008FA 000966 000906 000906 000870 000870 000870 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000701 000770 000770 000701 000771 000701 000710 000710 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) POINTE | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -74 -71 - 1 - NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NULL NU | *0000000000000000000 x *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040* x *FFB940404040404040* x *0010 * x *0010 * x *0010 * x *0020 * x *0020 * x *0020 * x |
| | NAKE .UC81 IND X .UC81 LOF a .UC84 LS5 .UC84 LS5 .UC84 LS5 .UC84 LS5 .UC84 LS5 .UC84 LS5 .UC804 LS .UC804 LS | DFF 5E1 00091C 00091C 0009FA 0009FA 00096 00096 00096 00096 000870 000870 000870 000870 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 0009700 000700 000770 0009701 0007701 000710 000710 000751 000850 000951 000890 000870 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1 | VALUE 0 NULL | *00000000000000000000 x *FF855CD3C9C2D34040404040* x *FF8940404040404040* x *0010* x *0010* x *0010* x *00* x *00* x *00* x |
| | NAME .UCBINDX .UCBIAST .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLIB .UCBMERS .UCBMERS .UCBMERS .UCBMERS .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMPA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UCBMFA .UDDFA .U | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 00095C 0008FA 00096C 00096C 000906 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000970 000700 000700 000701 000701 000701 000650 000951 000890 000851 0008551 | ATTRIBUTES BI NARY(2) PD INTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PD INTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) DTNTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000 x *FF855CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FF894040404040404040*X *FF894040404040404040*X *0010*X *0010*X *00*X *00*X |
| | NAME . UCBINDX . UCBINDX . UCBLAST . UCBLAST . UCBLBID . UCBLBS . UCBMBD . UCBMBD . UCBMBD . UCBMBD . UCBMBA . UCBMPS . UCB | DFF5ET 00091C 0009542 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00096 0008690 0008690 000964 000964 0009742 000929 0008590 000860 000796 000796 000790 000870 000941 00071 000710 00071 000710 00071 000710 000951 000850 000951 000855 0009555 0009542 000555 0009542 000555 000544 000555 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 000554 000544 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 000 000 00 0 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR[10] BINARY[2] CHAR[10] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR[1] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR[1] CHAR[| VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -71 -71 NULL NUL NU | *000000000000000000 x *FFB 55CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X 70 * X *001 0 * X *001 0 * X *001 0 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X |
| | NAME - UCBINDX - UCBIAST - UCBLAST - UCBLAST - UCBLBS - UCBMBS - UCBMBD - UCBMBD - UCBMBD - UCBMBA - UCBMBA - UCBMBA - UCBMBA - UCBMATA - UCBMLBA - UCBMATA - UCBMLAN - U | DFF 5ET 0009 1C 0009 1C 0009 1C 0009 1C 0009 1C 0009 1C 0009 C 0000 C 000 C 000 C 0000 C 000 C 0000 C 000 C 000 C 0000 C | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY[2] CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) BINARY[2] CHAR(12) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHA | VALUE 0 NULL | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 x *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34 04 04 04 04 04 0* x *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0* x *001 0* X *001 0* X *001 0* X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X |
| | NAKE .UCBINDX .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLBS .UCBMBRS .UCBMBRS .UCBMBRS .UCBMBRS .UCBMBRS .UCBMPA .UCBMLB .UCBMFA .UCBMLBN .UCBMLBN .UCBLAN .UCBLAN .UCBLAN .UCBLAN .UCBLAN .UCBLAN .UCBLASN .UCBMFA .UCBLASN .UCBMFA .UCBLASN .UCBMFA .UCBLASN .UODFA | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 000972 0008FA 000966 000966 000906 000870 000870 000870 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000701 000770 000770 000770 000701 000751 000951 0005551 0005550 0005550 0005500 00055000000 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHA | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000 x *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040* x *FFB940404040404040* x *FFB940404040404040* x *0010* x *0010* x *0010* x *0010* x *00* x *00* x *00* x |
| | NAME .UC81 IND X .UC81 LOF a .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC84 LS1 .UC80 | DFF SET 00091C 00091C 00097C 0008FA 00096C 00096C 000906 000870 000870 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000970 000701 000701 000770 000701 000751 000850 000851 0008540 000540 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) CHAR(12) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CH | VALUE 0 NULL | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 x *FFB 55 CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *001 0 * X *001 0 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X *00 * X |
| | NAME .UC81INDX .UC81INDX .UC8LAST .UC8LB10 .UC8ME18 .UC8ME10 .UC8ME10 .UC8ME10 .UC8ME10 .UC8ME16 .UC8MF3 .UC80P3 .UC80P3 .UC80P4 .UC | DFF 5 E1 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 1 C 0009 6 0009 6 0009 0 0008 70 0009 0 0008 70 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 40 0009 51 0008 40 0009 51 0008 40 0009 51 0008 50 0009 51 0008 50 0005 51 0008 50 0005 51 0005 54 0005 0005 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PD INTER(SPP) DT NTER(SPP) DT R(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PD INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) DT NTER(SPP) CHAR(1) DT NTER(SPP) CHAR(1) DT NTER(SPP) CHAR(1) DT NTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(| VALUE 0 NULL | *00000000000000000000 x *FFB 55CD 3C9C2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * 0 * X 70 * X *001 0 * X *001 0 * X *00 |
| | NAME . UCBINDX . UCBINDX . UCBIAST . UCBLAST . UCBLBD . UCBABD . UCBABD . UCBABD . UCBABD . UCBABD . UCBABAD . UCBABAD . UCBABAD . UCBABAD . UCBABAD . UCBALAN . UCBABAD . UCBABAD | DFF5ET 0009 LC 0008 B0 0009 LC 0008 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0009 FA 0007 FA | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY[2] CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) BINARY[2] CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CH | VALUE 0 NULL -75 -75 -75 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 -71 | *0000000000000000000 x *FFB 55 CD 3C 9C 2D 3 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 * 0 * X *FFB 55 CD 3C 9C 2D 3 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 * 0 * X *FFB 9 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 * 0 * X *FFB 9 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 * 0 * X *00 0 X *00 * X *00 * X 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | NAKE - UCBINDX - UCBINDX - UCBLAST - UCBLAST - UCBLB - UCBHEB - UCBHEB - UCBHED - UCBHEB - UCBHEB - UCBHEB - UCBHEB - UCBHEB - UCBHER - UCBHEN - UCBHE | DFF 5ET 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 FA 0009 C 0000 C 00 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY [2] PD INTER (SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PD INTER (SPP) PD INTER (SPP) PD INTER (SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(2) PD INTER (SPP) PD INTER (SPP) PD INTER (SPP) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(2) CHAR(2) CHAR(1) CHAR(| VALUE 0 NULL | *0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 |
| | NAKE .UCBINDX .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLAST .UCBLBS .UCBMBID .UCBMBID .UCBMBID .UCBMBID .UCBMBID .UCBMS .UCBOP3 .UCBOP3 .UCBOP3 .UCBOP4 .UCBNLB .UCBMF3 .UCBNF4 .UCBLVR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBRLWR .UCBLAST .UDITAL .UDIT | DFF5ET 00091C 000840 00091C 0008FA 000966 000966 000966 000850 000870 000870 000870 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000940 000951 000701 000710 000710 000751 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000951 000551 000551 000551 000551 000555 0005551 0005551 0005551 000555 0005551 0005550 0005551 0005550 0005551 0005550 000550 000555000000 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY (2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) POINTER(SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(12) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) POINTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(| VALUE 0 NULL | *000000000000000000000 *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FFB940404040404040*0*X *FFB94040404040404040*0 * *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *00*X *00*X *00*X *00*X *00*X *00*X |
| | NAKE .UC81 IND X .UC81 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC84 IND X .UC80 | DFF SET 00091C 00091C 00097C 0008FA 00096 000966 000906 000870 000870 000870 000870 000870 000840 000940 000940 000940 000940 000701 000701 000701 000770 000701 000759 000559 000551 000551 000551 0005542 0005542 000554 000554 000555 | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY(2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(12) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) PO INTER(SPP) BI NARY(2) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) PO INTER(SPP) CHAR(1) CHA | VALUE 0 NULL | *00000000000000000000 *FFB 55CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 55CD 3C 9C 2D 34 04 04 04 04 0 * 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X *FFB 94 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 * X ********************************* |
| | NAME .UC81NDX .UC81AST .UC8LAST .UC8LB10 .UC8HE18 .UC8MB10 .UC8MB10 .UC8MB10 .UC8MB10 .UC8MB10 .UC8MB7 .UC8MB7 .UC8MF8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .UC80F8 .U00118F8 .U0114AL .U014AL .U014AL .U014F8 .U014AL .U014F8 .U014AL .U014AL .U014F8 .U014AL .U021F8 .U014AL .U021F8 .U027F8 .U027F8 .U027F8 .U | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 00091C 000912 00095 000905 000905 000905 000905 000905 000905 000905 000905 00090 000942 00092 00092 00092 0009590 000860 0000590 000955 000700 000955 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 00055 0005 0005 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00 000 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR[10] BHNARY[2] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[12] CHAR[1] PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) DINTER(SPP) CHAR[2] PDINTER[SPP] CHAR[2] PDINTER[SPP] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHAR[2] CHAR[1] CHAR[2] CHA | VALUE 0 NULL | *00000000000000000000 *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FFB55CD3C9C2D34040404040*X *FFB94040404040404040*X *FFB94040404040404040*X *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *00*X *00*X *00*X *00*X *00*X |
| | NAKE - UCBINDX - UCBINDX - UCBIAST - UCBLAST - UCBLBS - UCBLBS - UCBHBD - UCBHBD - UCBHBD - UCBHBD - UCBHAR - UCBNLB - UCBNLB - UCBNLA - UCBLA - UCBL | DFF5ET 00091C 00091C 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 00097A 000710 000710 0007701 0007701 0007701 0007701 0007701 000755 0009555 000555 000555 000555 000555 | ATTRIBUTES BINARY[2] PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(10) BINARY[2] CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(12) CHAR(10) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) BINARY[2] CHAR(1) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(2) PDINTER(SPP) PDINTER(SPP) CHAR(1 | VALUE 0 NULL | *000000000000000000000 *FFB55CD3C9C2D340404040+0*X *FFB94040404040404040+0*X *FFB94040404040404040+0*X *FFB94040404040404040+0*X *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *000*X *00*X *00** *00** *00** *00** *00** *00** *00** *00** |
| 2 | NAKE - UCB INDX - UCB INDX - UCB AST - UCB, AST - UCB, BID - UCB, IB - | DFF 5ET 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0009 LC 0008 FA 0000 GC 0009 CC 0009 FA 0000 GC 0009 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 0000 CC 000 CC | ATTR IBUTES BI NARY [2] PO INTER (SPP) CHAR(10) BI NARY (2) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) CHAR(10) PO INTER (SPP) PO INTER (SPP) PO INTER (SPP) PO INTER (SPP) BI NARY (2) CHAR(2) PO INTER (SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER (SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER (SPP) CHAR(2) PO INTER (SPP) CHAR(1) C | VALUE 0 NULL | *0000000000000000000000 *FFB55C03C9C2D340404040*X *FFB55C03C9C2D340404040*X *FFB940404040404040*X *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *0010*X *0020*X *0020*X *00*X |

Figure 10-6 (Part 7 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

| 11-NATE 0009A 00097 00098 ITS 00099 | CHAR (10) 2 CHAR (1) 8 (3-26) 6 CHAR (2) NOT ADDRESSA | 0 THENSION (26) 0 |
|--|--|---|
| 00099 00098 ITS 00099 | 2 CHAR(1) 8 (3-26) 6 CHAR(2) NOT ADDRESSA | UTRENSIJAN(20) 101 121 |
| ITS 00099 | 6 CHAR(2) NOT ADDRESSA | |
| 113 00044 | NOT ADDRESSAL | |
| | NOT ADDRESSA | |
| | NOT ADDDECCA | |
| | NOT ADDRESSA | |
| | NOT ADDRESSA | |
| 00005 | A CHARISSI | 7LE - 7ABC DE EGNT IVI NNDDODE TUVY VYZ 7010000120001230012340023401 |
| 00095 | A VALUE IN HEY | 10 26 C (2 C A C S C A C A C A D L D 3 30 A D S A C TA C D C C 2 S C C S C C C C C C C C C C C C C |
| 00093 | C +41 | |
| 00094 | D CHAR(1) | |
| 00099 | B CHAR (7) | • • |
| 00099 | 5 CHAR (1) | |
| 00099 | 1 CHAR(1) | ••• |
| 00095 | 4 PACKED (2.0) | 26 |
| 00099 | 2 CHAR (3) | INYC I |
| ELD 00098 | C CHAR(1) | |
| PENDENTS 00097 | 2 CHAR (26) | • 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 30 0 1 2 3 0 0 1 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 4 0 * |
| 0009A | 0 PACKED (2.0) | 13 |
| 00050 | 1 CHAR(1) | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| 00097 | 0 PACKED (2.0) | 26 |
| 00098 | E ZONED(3.0) | 26 |
| | NOT ADDRESSA | BLE |
| | NOT ADDRESSA | BLE |
| RD 00098 | C CHAR [19] | • Z 026 NYC Z • |
| A 0009 A | 2 ZONED(2.0) | |
| | ** INVALID DATA | 10000*X |
| | 00095 00095 00095 00096 00099 00099 00099 00095 00095 00095 00095 00096 00097 00096 00097 000000 | 000954 CHAR(156) 000954 VALUE IN HEX 00097C 441 000980 CHAR(1) 000980 CHAR(1) 000995 CHAR(1) 000995 CHAR(1) 000954 PACKED(2+0) 1 000954 PACKED(2+0) 1 000954 PACKED(2+0) 1 000964 CHAR(1) 000960 CHAR(1) 000967 PACKED(2+0) 000967 PACKED(2+0) 000968 CHAR(1) 000968 CHAR(1) 000968 CHAR(1) 000968 CHAR(1) 000968 CHAR(1) 000968 CHAR(1) |

Figure 10-6 (Part 8 of 8). COBOL Formatted Dump

10-22

Chapter 11. COBOL Problem Determination

If a problem occurs while you are using COBOL, the cause of the problem may not be obvious. An error in your application, in system operation, or in the COBOL compiler could have caused the problem. The problem determination procedure in this chapter can help you solve or circumvent the problem. If you need to call for service, this chapter refers you to the *Problem Determination Guide*.

How to Use This Procedure

This procedure is arranged in a sequence of questions that you can answer with a YES or NO. Based on your answer, you are directed to another question or to a recommendation for action.

Start at the beginning of the procedure and follow the question-and-answer sequence, answering each question to which you are directed based on your previous answer. If the problem is a condition that requires more detailed procedures, you are referred to those procedures.

Identifying COBOL Problems

When a COBOL problem occurs, you can use the following series of questions to pinpoint its possible cause:

Have changes been made to the user program since the last time it compiled or ran successfully?

NO YES

Read on, but consider what has been changed. For example, have operating procedures changed, are new device files being used, or have program changes been applied recently? A good starting point for problem determination can be a changed item.

Are you using the current release of the COBOL compiler? The release number is printed on the first line of the source listing.

YES NO

Install the current release of the compiler and the program changes that apply to the release, and recompile the program. Refer to the Guide to Program Product Installation and Device Configuration for an explanation of installing the compiler.

Have all IBM-supplied program changes you have received that apply to the current release of the compiler been installed?

YES NO

Install the program changes you have received that have not yet been applied, and recompile the program. Refer to the *Operator's Guide* for an explanation of installing program changes.

Are you using the current release of the CPF?

YES NO

Install the current release of the CPF and any program changes you have received that apply to the CPF release. Refer to the *Guide to Program Product Installation and Device Configuration* for an explanation of installing the CPF.

Have all IBM-supplied program changes you have received that apply to the current release of the CPF been installed?

YES NO

Install the program changes you have received that have not yet been applied. Refer to the System/38 Operator's Guide for an explanation of installing program changes.

Have any non-IBM-supplied modifications been made to the compiler or to the CPF?

NO YES

If the compiler has been changed, install its current release and program changes, and recompile the program. If the CPF has been changed, install its current release and program changes. Refer to the *Guide to Program Product Installation and Device Configuration* for an explanation of installing the compiler and the CPF.

Did the COBOL compiler have an exception?

NO YES

An exception is an error indicating an abnormal compiler termination. The exception is displayed at the work station or printed in the job log for the job that requested the compile. Exception data is printed and can be used to investigate the problem. For example, the name of the compiler phase executing and the number of the COBOL source statement being processed at the time of the exception are printed. You can refer to the source statement in the user program and try to modify the code to circumvent the problem. Retry the compilation and specify the DUMP parameter on the Create COBOL Program command. Whether or not you successfully circumvent the problem, you should report it to your service representative.

Refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Did the COBOL compiler loop or wait while compiling a user program?

NO YES

A loop or a wait is a seemingly never-ending compilation for which neither output nor error messages are produced.

For either condition you can (1) enter service mode for the job, (2) request a dump of the job, and (3) cancel the job. Refer to the IBM System/38 Operator's Guide, SC21-7735, for descriptions of entering service mode, requesting a dump, and cancelling a job.

Use the invocation stack layout at the beginning of the dump to investigate the problem. If you cannot circumvent or solve the problem, refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Did the COBOL compiler produce incorrect output?

NO YES

One of the following conditions can indicate incorrect compiler output:

- An IRP syntax error, which causes the compiler to end abnormally and an error message to be issued to the compiler requester. IRP, which is an intermediate representation of a program that is produced by the compiler, is described in Appendix A.
- An unexpected result produced by a user program during its execution.

IRP Syntax Error: If your program caused an IRP syntax error, the IRP will be listed and you can trace the incorrect IRP statement back to the COBOL source statement(s) that produced it. Try to modify the COBOL source program to circumvent the error and then recompile the program. Appendix A provides information about relating IRP to COBOL source statements and using compiler debugging options such as *LIST.

Even if you circumvent the problem, you should also report it to your service representative. If you cannot circumvent the problem, refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Unexpected Results: If a user program produces unexpected results, you can use CPF debugging functions such as traces and breakpoints, or you can use COBOL debugging feature USE FOR DEBUGGING statement to isolate problems within a user program. Refer to Chapter 6 for a description of COBOL debugging features and to Chapter 10 for an overview of CPF debugging functions. If after investigating the problem you suspect a compiler error, recompile the program and specify \star LIST for the GENOPT parameter on the Create COBOL Program command. The IRP will be listed, and you can trace the incorrect IRP statement back to the COBOL source statement(s) that produced it. Try to modify the COBOL source program to circumvent the error and then recompile the program. Appendix A provides information about relating IRP to COBOL source statements and using compiler debugging options such as \star LIST.

If you cannot circumvent the problem, refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Did the COBOL user program have an exception/error?

NO YES

Two types of exception/error can occur: program and file. Examples of program exception/errors are division by zero, use of an invalid index, and use of uninitialized data items in an arithmetic operation. Examples of file exception/errors are undefined record types and device errors.

You can begin investigating the problem at the source statement indicated by the message. Use CPF debugging functions or COBOL Debugging features to pinpoint the problem. Chapter 6 describes COBOL Debugging features, and Chapter 10 provides an overview of CPF debugging functions.

If you cannot solve or circumvent the problem, refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Did the COBOL user program loop or wait during its execution or produce incorrect output?

NO YES

A loop is a sequence of instructions that is executed repeatedly, and a wait is a situation in which neither output nor error messages are produced.

For either condition you can (1) enter service mode for the job, (2) request a dump of the job, and (3) cancel the job. Refer to the IBM System/38 Operator's Guide, SC21-7735, for descriptions of entering service mode, requesting a dump, and canceling a job.

Use the invocation stack at the beginning of the dump to investigate the problem. Also check for program logic errors; if the program appears to be coded correctly, you can use CPF debugging functions or COBOL debugging features to pinpoint the problem. For example, you can trace the execution of certain statements and display the contents of fields at stopping points in the program. Refer to Chapter 6 for a description of COBOL debugging features and to Chapter 10 for an overview of CPF debugging functions.

When you isolate the problem to one or more source statements, you can list the IRP by recompiling and specifying *LIST for the GENOPT parameter on the Create COBOL Program command. If the IRP does not appear to be an accurate representation of the COBOL source statement, the compiler might be generating incorrect output. Appendix A provides IRP information for further investigating this type of problem.

If you cannot solve or circumvent the problem, refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Refer to "Calling for Help" later in this chapter.

Calling for Help

If you require additional assistance, do the following:

 Cancel the failing job and print the job log, if you have not already done so. Do this by signing off your work station and choosing *LIST for the OUTPUT parameter. For example:

SIGNOFF OUTPUT(*LIST)

Call your system operator to verify that the job log was printed.

- 2. Examine the job log, and any other available information on your job, to determine why your problem occurred. If you still require additional assistance, go to the next step.
- 3. Before calling for service, have your system operator go to the System/38 Problem Determination Guide.

11-6

Appendix A. COBOL Compiler Service Information

This appendix is provided for COBOL service personnel to use when investigating COBOL problems and provides the following information:

- Compiler overview
- Compiler debugging options
- IRP layout.

COBOL programmers can also use this information to investigate COBOL problems on their own before, or instead of, calling for service.

For more detailed information, refer to the microfiche for phase QCBR00T.

Compiler Overview

This section provides the following compiler information:

- How the compiler works
- Compiler phase descriptions
- Execution time subroutines
- Major compiler data areas descriptions
- Compiler error message organization.

This section provides an internal view of the compiler. If you need an external view to investigate a COBOL problem, refer to Chapter 8, which describes entering a COBOL program into the system, compiling the program, and using the listings that the compiler produces.

Figure A-1 summarizes how a COBOL source program is compiled into an executable (encapsulated) program.

Intermediate text, which is output from step 1 in Figure A-1, is a representation of COBOL source statements that is created by compiler phases and exists only during their execution. This text can be dynamically listed through the ITDUMP parameter of the CRTCBLPGM command. See "Compiler Debugging Options" later in this appendix for explanations of these parameters and examples of intermediate text.

When compilation ends, intermediate text has been processed and converted to appropriate IRP (intermediate representation of a program). IRP, which is output from step 2 in Figure A-1, can be listed through an *LIST value for the GENOPT parameter on the CRTCBLPGM command. See "Compiler Debugging Options" later in this appendix for explanations of these parameters and examples of IRP statements.

A program template is output from step 3 in Figure A-1. A template is the final form of a program before it is converted to an executable program, which is called an encapsulated program. A template can be listed at the end of a compilation through an *DUMP value for the GENOPT parameter on the CRTCBLPGM command. See "Compiler Debugging Options" for an explanation of this parameter and an example of a program template listing.



Figure A-1. Overview of the COBOL Compiler

Compiler Phases

The compiler consists of the phases listed in Figure A-2. These phases are shown in the order in which they are executed.

The first compiler phase is named QCBCBL. The names of all phases that follow QCBCBL begin with QCB and end with the function of the phase.

Execution-Time Subroutines

Figure A-3 lists the execution-time subroutines that are used by the compiler.

Major Compiler Data Areas

The major compiler data areas are a common area (XCBCOM), the dictionary (DHPACKET), and intermediate text (ITXT). Detailed information about these data areas can be found in the microfiche listing for phase QCBGEN.

Compiler Error Message Organization

Compiler error messages are organized as follows:

| Error Messages | Description |
|--------------------|--|
| CBL0000 to CBL0999 | Messages with severity less than 30 |
| CBL1000 to CBL1999 | Messages with severity greater than 29 |
| CBL8000 to CBL8999 | FIPS messages |

The Messages Guide: COBOL describes all compiler messages.

| Phase Name | Phase Description |
|---------------|---|
| QCBCBL | Command interface that receives control when the CRTCBLPGM command is entered, and passes the command parameter list to QCBROOT. |
| QCBROOT | Root phase that controls the calling of all other compiler phases. This phase also sets the options from the command and the PROCESS statement. |
| QCBDATA | Phase that processes the first three COBOL divisions. The dictionary is built and those phrases that have dependencies on phrases that have not yet been processed are written to I-text to be processed by the next phase. |
| QCBENVIR | Phase that processes the I-text from the first three divisions. |
| QCBPROC | Phase that processes the Procedure Division statements. The COBOL statements are broken down into basic operations that are written to I-text. |
| QCBPARA | Phase that resolves procedure-names. All symbolic procedure-names in the I-text are resolved to dictionary entries. |
| QCBGEN | Phase that generates the IRP. The dictionary is scanned to produce the declarations and then the I-text is read to generate the IRP code for the Procedure Division statements. |
| QCBLIST | Phase that produces the listings. The verb sum list, Data Division map, FIPS flagging, cross-reference, and COBOL messages listing. |
| QCBOBJ | Phase that calls the PRM to create the program. |

Figure A-2. Compiler Phases

| Subroutine Name | Subroutine Description | Called: Unconditionally (U) Conditionally (C) |
|--------------------|--|---|
| QCRMAIN | Initializing the COBOL program | U |
| QCRADRTN | Run-time routine for ACCEPT and DISPLAY | С |
| QCRANEDT | Run-time routine for doing alphanumeric editing | С |
| QCRCLEAR | Run-time routine to clear a file | С |
| QCREXHAN | Run-time routine to provide a symbolic dump | С |
| QCRFPWR | Run-time routine for noninteger exponentiation | С |
| QCRGDDM | Run-time routine for CALL "GDDM" | С |
| QCRIPWR | Run-time routine for integer exponentiation | С |
| QCRNAMCK | Run-time routine to verify that a name is a valid COBOL name and convert it if necessary | С |
| QCRSORT | Run-time routine for SORT/MERGE | С |
| QCRSTR | Run-time routine for STRING | С |
| QCRUNST | Run-time routine for UNSTRING | С |

Figure A-3. Execution-Time Subroutines

Compiler Debugging Options

Figure A-4 shows parameters in the CRTCBLPGM command that can be used to debug COBOL problems. This section explains each of these parameters. For information on the other parameters, see "COBOL Command Statement" in Chapter 8. For examples of debugging information that can be requested by these parameters, see "Examples of Using Compiler Debugging Options", later in this appendix.



Figure A-4. Debugging Parameters

DUMP Parameter

The DUMP parameter produces a dictionary dump and also dumps compiler flow information and data for the statements specified.

This parameter is intended for use by IBM service personnel only.

ITDUMP Parameter

The ITDUMP parameter produces a dump of the I-text. The parameter is a number from 1 to 31 that controls when the I-text is dumped.

- 1 Dump the I-text after phase QCBPARA runs.
- 2 Dump the I-text before phase QCBPARA runs.
- 4 Dump the I-text as phase QCBGEN reads the I-text.
- 8 Dump the I-text as phase QCBGEN reads the I-text for the statements specified by the DUMP parameter.
- 16 Dump the I-text in phase QCBLIST.

Note: Any combination can be specified by adding the values together for the lists desired.

This parameter is intended for use by IBM service personnel only.

Examples of Using Compiler Debugging Options

Figure A-5 shows examples of debugging information that can be requested by compiler debugging options on the CRTCBLPGM command. The compiler listing in Figure A-5 was printed for a CRTCBLPGM command that specified debugging parameters as follows:

GENOPT(*LIST *DUMP) DUMP(53 54) ITDUMP(4)

The DUMP(53 54) parameter causes a dump of tokens, semantic exits, all dictionary activity, and all I-text written for statements 53 through 54. (See A in Figure A-5.)

Whenever the DUMP parameter is specified, a dump of the dictionary is printed at the end. (See **G** in Figure A-5.)

The ITDUMP(4) parameter causes printing of the intermediate text as it is processed by phase QCBGEN. The name of the routine that processes the intermediate text is listed in front of each record. (See **B** in Figure A-5.)

The *LIST value for the GENOPT parameter causes printing of IRP and machine instructions when compilation ends. (See) in Figure A-5.) The headings in this IRP listing indicate the following information:

• SEQ: A sequential numbering of the IRP statements. Error messages such as IRP syntax errors issued by the program resolution monitor use this number to refer to the IRP statements in error.

- INST: A sequential numbering of the machine instructions generated from the IRP statements. Not all IRP statements cause machine instructions to be generated. The instruction number can be used as a breakpoint for CPF debugging functions. Refer to Chapter 10 or the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for further information about breakpoints.
- OFFSET: Displacement of the machine instruction into the instruction portion of the program template.
- GENERATED CODE: Machine instructions that have been generated from IRP statements.
- GENERATED OUTPUT: IRP statements.
- BREAK: Breakpoints in the IRP that can be used for stopping points in CPF debugging functions. If the breakpoint is a number, it indicates the COBOL source statement from which the IRP statement was generated.

The following chart lists breakpoint names and the COBOL functions that they handle. These breakpoint names can appear in error messages. They help the user relate the statement number (field) to the function being performed.

| Breakpoint Name | COBOL Function |
|--------------------|---|
| .CALEXCP | ON OVERFLOW exception monitor |
| .CLOSE | Close file |
| .CNLEXCP | CANCEL exception monitor |
| .CPF5004 | Page overflow exception monitor |
| .CTRL | Control-Area processing |
| .DBUGBLD | Debug execution table build routine |
| .DBUGOUT | Debug table maintenance code |
| .DELETE | Delete routine |
| .EXCKRD | Called before doing a delete operation or a rewrite operation |
| .EXFSGN | Generic exception monitor |
| .EXFS10 | End of file exception monitor |
| .EXFS11 | No data available for file exception monitor |
| .EXFS12 | No modified subfile record found exception monitor |
| .EXFS22 | Duplicate key exception monitor |
Breakpoint Name COBOL Function

| name | |
|----------|---|
| .EXFS23 | Record not found exception monitor |
| .EXFS24 | Boundary violation exception monitor |
| .EXFS30 | Permanent error or hardware error exception monitor |
| .EXFS34 | Permanent error or boundary violation exception monitor |
| .EXFS9D | A record is locked |
| .EXFS9G | Input buffer too small exception monitor |
| .EXFS91 | Write operation failed exception monitor |
| .EXFS9K | Invalid format name exception monitor |
| .EXFS9M | Last record written to subfile exception monitor |
| .EXFS9N | Recoverable I-O error exception monitor |
| .EXFS9P | Commitment control exception monitor |
| .EXFS91 | Invalid or unauthorized access exception monitor |
| .EXFS92 | Logic error exception monitor |
| .EXINVT | Device was acquired but not invited |
| .EXISLD | Called before doing a sequential PUT to an indexed file |
| .EXNOF | File or member not found exception monitor |
| .EXRWRT | Called before doing a rewrite operation to an indexed file with sequential access |
| .EXSB23 | Subfile record not found exception monitor |
| .EXSB24 | Subfile boundary violation exception monitor |
| .FCEXCP | Function check exception monitor |
| .FEOV | Force end of volume |
| .GET | GET |
| .GETKEY | Reads the record by the key value |
| .GETREL | GET relative |
| .INIT | Initialization code and declares |
| .INIT002 | Initialize return pointer |
| .LSKA | Linage control: before advancing page |

| Breakpoint Name | COBOL Function |
|--------------------|--|
| .LSKB | Linage control: after advancing page |
| .LSPA | Linage control: before advancing n lines |
| .LSPB | Linage control: after advancing n lines |
| .LSTRT | Linage initialization |
| .NOALTR | Unaltered GOTO |
| .OPEN | Open file |
| .PAGING | Paging routine |
| .PRINIT | Printer initialization |
| .PRPUT | Printer PUT |
| .PSPA | Print control: before advancing |
| .PSPB | Print control: after advancing |
| .PUTALL | PUT |
| .PUTGET | PUTGET |
| .PUTKEY | Indexed keyed PUT |
| .REWRIT | Rewrite |
| .SIZEXCP | Internal size error exception monitor |
| .STARTR | Relative I/O start |
| .STPEXCP | STOP RUN exception monitor |
| .USETEST | Save the CFIB address |

See Chapter 10 or the CPF Programmer's Guide for further information on breakpoints.

The *DUMP value for the GENOPT parameter causes printing of the program template when compilation ends. (See **()** in Figure A-5.)

IRP Layout

The COBOL compiler generates code that has the following sections:

• Declaration of MGT (see **D** in Figure A-5). The Module Global Table (MGT) defines a common area for the module. This table is used to pass information to execution-time subroutines.

- Declaration of PGT (see) in Figure A-5). The Program Global Table (PGT) is a communication area for the entire COBOL run unit (there is only one PGT for the run unit).
- Declarations for Environment and Data Division (see) in Figure A-5). The declarations are generated in the same order as they appear in the COBOL source. The HLL keyword gives the source COBOL name.
- Procedure Division Code (see 1) in Figure A-5). This lists the generated code for the Procedure Division statements. The BRK statement identifies the COBOL statement number, and the comment indicates the COBOL verb.
- Paragraph Initialization Table (see G in Figure A-5). This table contains information about paragraphs that are performed.
- Compiler-Generated Subroutines (see **(**) in Figure A-5). Common subroutines are included as needed for each program.

Some of the labels that can appear in the IRP for a COBOL program are:

| .INIT | Label on the first executable MI instruction in the generated program. |
|----------|---|
| .Lnnnnnn | Compiler-generated labels where nnnnnn is a six digit number. |
| .PARnnnn | Generated for each paragraph-name in the Procedure Division, where nnnn is the paragraph number. The paragraphs are defined in the Procedure Division. |
| .SECnnnn | Generated for each section-name in the Procedure Division, where nnnn is the section number. The sections are numbered sequentially starting with 1 as they are defined in the Procedure Division. |
| RETURN | Label on the code for program termination. |



Figure A-5 (Part 1 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information



Figure A-5 (Part 2 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information



ſ

| | STMT | SEONE | BR -A | 18. | : | | | са з | 80L SI | URCE | L 1 S | TING | • | 6 | ' | ESTPRT | .1DENTFON S | COPYNAME | CHG/DATE | |
|---|-----------|---------|------------|---------|---------|--------|-------|---------|--------|--------------|-------|----------|------|---------|------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|--|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | PROCEDU | REDI | IV 1 S 1 O | N SE | MANT IC | EXIT | COUN | TS | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 1 | - 10 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 11 | - 20 | 0 | 51 | 28 | з | 1 | 5 | | 0 | 1 | 0 | 6 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | XITS | 21 | - 30 | 35 | 0 | 8 | 27 | 0 | 9 | | 11 | 11 | 0 | ı | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | EXITS | 31 | - 40 | 8 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 2 | | 2 | 0 | 1 | 5 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | EXITS | - 21 | - 50 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 2 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | | VITC | 51 | - 70 | | | | | ~ | | | | | | 2 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | XITS | 71 | - 80 | ŏ | | ĩ | ĭ | ő | 2 | | | õ | õ | õ | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | XITS | 81 | - 90 | ō | 20 | 2 | 1.0 | 2 | 2 | | 0 | ō | ō | ī | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 91 | -1 00 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | ò | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 101 | -110 | 4 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | ٥ | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 111 | -1 20 | 0 | 4 | 0 | 0 | 6 | а | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | EXITS | 121 | -1 30 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 25 | | 1 | 1 | 2 | 1 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR 6 | XITS | 131 | -140 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | | XIIS | 141 | -150 | 2 | | 5 | | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | • | 2 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | TTS | 161 | -170 | | | | | | 2 | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR | XITS | 171 | -180 | ŏ | ŏ | ŏ | ŏ | ŏ | ő | | õ | ŏ | õ | õ | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | XITS | 181 | -190 | ò | ò | 0 | ò | 0 | 0 | | ō | ò | Ó | ò | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR E | EXITS | 191 | -2 00 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR 6 | XITS | 201 | -210 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | COUNTS | FOR 8 | XITS | 211 | -2 20 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | ٥ | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| B | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | OCBGEN | + OCE 1 | | A. 0 | THT HOP | ANI IC | C X I | 5600 | 00000 | | - 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| _ | 008610 | : 00 | 00310 | C: N | I-TUPLE | OPEN | | 2: | 0000 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 80 | 00 00 | 3 | | 0 | 0000 | 0000 | 000 | 052EC | FILE-1 | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 20 | 00 00 | 0 | | 0 | 0000 | 0000 | 000 | 20000 | | | | |
| | QCBGEN | : 00 | 000313 | 4: 5 | TMT HDI | R 52 | 00 | 5700 | 0000 | 00 1 | - 2 | 9 | | | | | | | | |
| | OCBGHOV | E: 00 | 00 03 14 | 8: 1 | I-TUPLE | MOVE | | 2: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 80 | 00 41 | 18 | | 2 | 0000 | 0002 | 000 | 05502 | KOUNT | | | |
| | OCBGNOV | F: 01 | 100317 | · • • • | | MOVE | | 2. | 00 00 | 24 | | • | 0000 | 0001 | 000 | 00195 | | | | |
| | 465 51401 | | | ••• | | | 00 | 80 | 00 41 | 18 | | 2 | 0000 | 0002 | 000 | 05710 | NUMBR | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 01 | 00 10 | 24 | | 1 | 0000 | 0001 | 000 | 00195 | | | | |
| | OCR GMOV | E: 00 | 0 03 1 9 | 8: N | -TUPLE | MOVE | | 2: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 80 | 00 00 | 18 | | 2 | 0000 | 0002 | 000 | 0588C | NODEPEND | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 01 | 00 00 | 24 | | 1 | 0000 | 0001 | 000 | 00195 | | | | |
| | UCBGEBE | : 00 | 50 03 IC | 0: 1 | I-TUPLE | LABE | L | 1: | | | | ~ | | | | | 6 FC 8 - 0 | | | |
| | OCRGEN | : 00 | 100310 | A: 4 | | > 51 | 00 | 6400 | 00000 | · · | • | <u>,</u> | 0000 | 0000 | 000 | U JDC a | 3124-2 | | | |
| | QCBGART | н: 0 | 00031E | C: N | -TUPLE | ADD | | 2: | | | • | - | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 90 | 00 41 | 19 | | 2 | 0000 | 0002 | 000 | 05502 | KOUNT | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 01 | 00 40 | 21 | | 1 | 0000 | 0 0 0 1 | F14 | 04040 | | | | |
| | OCBGEN | : 00 | 00321 | 4: 5 | THT HDF | ₹ 54 | 00 | 6400 | 00000 | 00 | 0 | 2 | | | | | | | | |
| | OCBGART | H: 00 | 00322 | 8: 1 | -TUPLE | ADD | - | 21 | | • • | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 80 | 00 41 | 18 | | 2 | 0000 | 0002 | 000 | 05710 | NUMBR | | | |
| | QCBGEN | : 04 | 00325 | 0: 4 | | 2 55 | 00 | 6500 | 00000 | ء <u>َ</u> م | | | 0000 | 0001 | F 14 | 04040 | | | | |
| | ACBGSBS | c: 00 | 00326 | 4: N | -TUPLE | SUBS | c٩Ŭ | 3: | | | | - | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 08 | 00 00 | 0 | | ı | 0000 | 0000 | 000 | 00000 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 00 | 80 | 00 00 | 11 | | 1 | 0000 | 0 00 1 | 000 | 05690 | ALPHA | | | |
| | | _ | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure A-5 (Part 3 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

CJBOL SOURCE LISTING TESTPRT STMT SEQNBR -A 1 8..... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 00 02 00 41 18 QCBGLBL : 000037E4: N-TUPLE LABEL 1: 1 0000 0002 0000000
 QC8G1D
 :
 00003860:
 N-TUPLE
 CLOSE
 2:

 00
 00
 00
 0
 0
 0
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000543A
 FLE-2

 00
 00
 00
 0
 0
 0
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000543A
 FLE-2

 00
 20
 00
 0
 0
 0
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000
 0000543A
 FLE-2

 00
 20
 00
 00000
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 "EMPLOYEES WITH NO DEPENDENTS " NODEPEND QCBGMQVE: 0001E2D4: N-TUPLE NOVE 2: 00 02 00 41 11 00 80 00 00 22 L 0000 001D 0000000 31 0000 001D 00007D7C "EMPLOYEES WITH ND DEPENDENTS " QCBGMOVE: 0001E204: N-TUPLE MOVE 2: 00 02 00 41 16 00 80 00 00 18 009400 000000 0 1 0000 0002 2 0000 0002 2 00000000 0000588C NODEPEND QCBGEN : 000038D4: STMT HDR 70 QCBGARTH: 000038E8: N-TUPLE ADD 2: 00 80 00 00 16 00 01 00 40 21 2 0000 0002 00005BEE 1 0000 0001 F1404040 QCBGNOVE: 00018404: N-TUPLE MOVE 00 02 00 41 16 00 80 00 00 16 1 0000 0002 2 0000 0002 00000000 000058EE ZONE-DATA GCBGMOVE: 00018404: N-TUPLE MOVE 2: 00 80 00 00 16 00 02 00 41 16 2 1 0000 0002 000058EE ZUNE-DATA 0000 0002 00000000 00 02 00 41 16 5 0CBGEN : 00003910: STMT HDR 71 009500 000000 1- 43 0CBGSTDP: 00003924: N-TUPLE STDP 1: 0 0000 0000 0000000 0 0000 0000 000000 **** END OF SOURCE ****

COBOL MESSAGES TESTPRT STAT SEGNER ASGLD SEV TEXT MESSAGE SUMMARY TOTAL INFO(0-4) WARNING(5-19) ERROR(20-29) SEVERE(30-39) TERNINAL(40-99) C C DUMP OF DICTIONARY FOLLOWS QUMP OF DICTIONARY FOLLOWS G00052EC FILE-I DHCODE = FILE-FKT DHPARENT = 0000000 DHTP = 10000000 0000 DFT = 0000000 DFSACHN = 0000000 DFSACHN = 0000000 DFRELKY = 0000000 DFLFOOT = 0000000 DFRECT = 20 DFWKSTND = 0 DFGEXCP = 00001001 00
 DHTL
 =
 168
 DHTP
 =
 1000000

 DHALSH
 =
 18
 DHSQNR
 =
 001800

 DHALSH
 =
 0000000
 DHTWIN
 =
 00000000

 0FDRG
 1
 DFACC
 =
 1

 DFSRH
 =
 0000000
 DFASTGN
 =
 0

 DFSRCH
 =
 0000000
 DFSTSTT
 =
 0000000

 DFRECKY
 =
 0000000
 DFALTKY
 =
 0000000

 DFRECKY
 =
 0000000
 DFALTKY
 =
 0000000

 DFHXPRL
 =
 20
 DFHXPRL
 =
 20

 DFS
 =
 20
 DFLENJ
 =
 1

 DFS
 =
 00000100
 DG00100
 =
 1

 DFS
 =
 00000000
 DFSTATZ
 =
 00000000

 DFSNLEN
 =
 0
 DFSTATZ
 =
 00000000
 101010 DF101NF0 = 11001000 00000000 00005394 RECORDI DHCDDE = DATA-NAM DHADE HT = 000052 EC DHDE BUG = 000000 00 DHTE = 1100000 000 DO INLE VL = 1 DOSC = GROUP DOC = GROUP DOEL VL = 1 DODO POS = 0 DHTL = 84 DHLINE = 22 DHHASH = 0000000 DOLEN = 20 DDSSUB = 0 DDAKCHN = 0000000 DDAKCHN = 0000000 DHTP = 11000000 DHSQNR = 002200 DHTWIN = 0000000 DDFLAG = 00000000 DDS = 00000000 DDLATR = 20 00000000 000053E6 FIELDA DHCD0E = DATA-AM DHAENT = 00005394 DHDEBUG = 0000300 DHTP = 0000000 DHTP = 0000000 DINLEVL = 2 DD5 = AM DDC = AM DDC = AM DDC = 2 DD5 ELEVL = 2 DD00PD5 = 0 DHTL = 82 DHLINE = 23 DHHASH = 0000000 DHTP = 0000000 DHSQNR = 0C2300 DHTWIN = 00005536 DAREDEF 0 0000000 DDLEN = 20 DDSUB = 0 DDADDR = 0 DDACHN = 0000000 DDREDEF 0 = 0000000 DDFLAG = 00000000 0000000 DDS = 00000000 DDLATR = 20 0000543A F1LE-2 DHCODE = F1LE-PKT DHPARENT = 00000000 DHTL ≓ DHLINE = 168 24 DHTP ≈ 1000000 DHSQNR = 002400

Figure A-5 (Part 4 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| | | | C080L | MESSAGES | TESTPRT |
|---------------|-------------|-----------------|-----------|-------------------|---------|
| STMT SEGNER | MSGID SEV | TEXT | | | |
| 00005577 5 | 160-5 | | | | |
| 0000JE/C 3 | DROC-NH | DHTI - | 60 | | |
| OHPARENT | 00005048 | DHI INF = | 60 | DHSONR = 007600 | |
| DHDEAUG a | 000000000 | DHHASH = 0 | 00 05 394 | DHTWIN = 00000000 | |
| DHTP = | 00000000 | 0000000 | | | |
| DPCFLAGS= | 10000000 | 00000000 | | DPSMSTNR= 0 | |
| DPPROC NR= | 6 | DPSEGNR = | 0 | DPAGOPNR= 0 | |
| DPAGOS NR = | 0 | DPNXTNBR= | 7 | DPNXTSEG= 0 | |
| 00007CC8 S | TEP-6 | | | | |
| DHCODE = | PROC-NM | DHTL = | 60 | DHTP = 10000000 | |
| DHP ARE NT = | 00005D48 | DHLINE = | 62 | DH 50NR = 008300 | |
| DHDEBUG = | 000000000 | DHHASH = C | 000 054E2 | DHTWIN = 00000000 | |
| DHTP = | 10000000 | 00000000 | | | |
| DPCFLAGS= | 10000010 | 00000000 | _ | DPSMSTNR= 0 | |
| DPPROC NR= | 7 | DPSEGNR = | 0 | DPAGOPNR= 0 | |
| UP AGUS NR 2 | U U | UPNAT NOR= | | DPNATSEG= 0 | |
| 00007D04 S | TEP-7 | | | | |
| DHC005 = | PROC-NM | DHTL = | 60 | OHTP = 0000000 | |
| OHPARE NT = | 00005D48 | DHLINE ≈ | 64 | DHSONR = 008600 | |
| DHDEBUG = | 00000000 | DHHASH = C | 00000000 | DHTWIN = 00000000 | |
| DHTP = | 00000000 | 00000000 | | | |
| DPCFLAGS= | 10000000 | 00000000 | | OPSMSTNR= 0 | |
| OPAGOS NR= | | DPSEGNR = | 9 | DPAGOPNR= 0 | |
| | - | | | | |
| 00007D40 5 | TEP-8 | - | | - | |
| DHCUDE | PRUC-NM | DHIL | 60 | DHTP = 10000000 | |
| DHDERUC - | 00005046 | | 0000000 | DHISING = 000100 | |
| | 10000000 | 00000000 | | | |
| DPCFLAGS= | 10000010 | 00000000 | | DPSMSTNR= 0 | |
| DPPROC NR = | 9 | DPSEGNR = | 0 | DPAGDPNR= 0 | |
| DPAGDS NR = | 0 | DPNXTNBR= | 0 | DPNX TSEG= 0 | |
| 00007D7C * | EMPLOYEES | WITH NO DEPENDE | NTS . | | |
| DHCODE = | NONNUM-L | DHTL = | 42 | | |
| OCLLEN | = 31 | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| 95 SOURCE REC | UNDS READ | | | | |
| O COPY RECORD | S READ | | | | |
| O CUPY MENBER | IS PROCESSE | 0 | | | |
| U SEQUENCE EN | NUNS | | | | |
| | NARY DUTE | | | | |
| 51 510101 | and rula | | | | |

(

| | | 18M S/38 C080 | L 5714CBI | IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT | | PAGE |
|-----------|-------------|----------------|-----------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| SEQ | INST OFFSET | GENERATED CODE | * | 1 2 3 4 | . 5 6 7 8 | B BREAK |
| 00 00 1 | | | | TITLE "IBM S/38 COBOL 5714C81 R02M00 | IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT | ; |
| 00002 | | | | ENTRY * EXT | | ; |
| | | | • | | | |
| 00003 | | | n | APK | | |
| 00004 | | | | DCL DD .MGT CHAR(16) BDRY(16) INIT("CD | BOL MGT 00.0") | MGT |
| 00005 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .MGTNEXT | /*PTR TO NEXT PGT*/ | .MGT |
| 0 0 0 0 6 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .NGTFIB | /*PTR TO FIRST FIB*/ | .MGT |
| 00007 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .NGTPGT | /*PTR TO PGT*/ | i .MGT |
| 00008 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .NGTPASA | /*PTR TO PASA*/ | ; . ₩ GT |
| 00009 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .MGTSEPT | /*PTR TO SEPT*/ | .MGT |
| 00010 | | | | JCL SPCPTR .NGTUPTR | /*PTR TO WCB WORK AREA*/ | .MGT |
| 00011 | | | | DCL SYSPTR .NGTPGM | /#SYSTEM PTR TO PGH#/ | .MGT |
| 00012 | | | | DCL INSPTR .MGTRST | /*RESTART INSTRUCT PTR*/ | .MGT |
| 00013 | | | | DCL DD .MGTCNTR(20) BIN(4) INIT | /#COUNTERS#/ | MGT |
| | | | | | | .MGT |
| | | | | /#I - SIZE EACEPTIONS#/ | | •MGT |
| 00014 | | | | NCL 00 HCTNAME CHAR(10) | (*D20C2 + H- 10* (| • •MGT |
| 00015 | | | | DEL DD ANGINAME CHAR(10) DEL DD ANGTINNE BIN(2) INIT | /*PRUGRAM-104/ | MGT |
| 00018 | | | | DCL DD .MGTINVC BIN(2) INIT | AN AST EXCEPTION CODER/ | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| 00017 | | | | DCL DD ANGTERCH CHAR[/] INTI DCL DD ANGTIND(32) CHAR[1] INTI(33140 | /+LAST EXCEPTION CODE#/ | MGT |
| 00018 | | | | DEL DD AMOTINU(32) CHAR(1) (NIT((32)) | -, /+INUICATORO#/ | MGT |
| | | | | 41-09 SIZE ERR 1804/ | | MGT |
| | | | | /#2-STNT OSE IND#/ | | MGT |
| | | | | /#3-DVFL EXCPT-CALL#/ | | MGT |
| | | | | /*4-CNCL EXCPT-PROG ACTIVE*/ | | MGT |
| | | | | /*5-FIRST TIME PERFORM FOR STATEMENT*/ | | . MGT |
| | | | | /*6-EXEC TIME DEBUG ON FOR PROGRAM#/ | | . MGT |
| | | | | /*7-PUT OUT SPECIAL DEBUG ITEMS4/ | | .MGT |
| .00019 | | | | | | .MGT |
| 00020 | | | | DCL DD .NGTOSZ CHAR(1) DEF(.NGTIND) PO | S(1) /+ON SIZE ERROR IND+/ | .MGT |
| 00021 | | | | DCL DD .MGTSOSZ CHAR(1) DEF(.MGTINO) P | OS(2) /*STMT ON SIZE ERROR IND*/ | .MGT |
| 00022 | | | | DCL DD .MGTOVFL CHAR(1) DEF(.MGTIND) P | OS(3) /#OVERFLOW ON CALL STMT#/ : | ; .MGT |
| 00023 | | | | DCL DD .MGTCNCL CHAR(1) DEF(.MGTIND) P | OS(4) /*ND CANCEL - PROG ACTIVE* | •₩GT |
| | | | | | / | .MGT |
| 00024 | | | | DCL DD .HGTPFH CHAR[1] DEF(.HGTIND) PO | S(5) /VIST TIME PERF FOR STATEM #/ | .MGT |
| 00025 | | | | DCL DD .MGTDBUG CHAR(1) DEF(.MGTIND) P | OS(6) /*EXEC TIME DEBUG ON FOR*/ | .MGT |
| 00026 | | | | DCL DD .MGTSPCD CHAR(1) DEF(.MGTIND) P | OS(7) /*SPECIAL DEBUG*/ | MGT |
| 00027 | | | | DCL DD .MGTSW CHAR(1) INIT(X*00*) | /*MODULE SWITCHES#/ | MGT |
| | | | | | - | .MGT |
| | | | | /#BIT 1 - FIRST TIME SWITCH#/ | | .MGT |
| 00028 | | | | | | . MGT |
| 00029 | | | | DCL DD .MGTTYPE CHAR(1) | /*TYPE OF RUN - I OR 8#/ | .MGT |
| 00030 | | | | DCL DD .MGTFUNC BIN(2) INIT | /*FUNCTION CODE - QCRMAIN* | . MGT |
| | | | | | / | • MGT |
| | | | | | | .MGT |
| | | | | /#1 - STOP RUN#/ | | • MGT |
| | | | | /#2 - INITIAL CALL#/ | | . MGT |
| | | | | /03 - CONVERT FROM PACKED 31 TO BINARY | 8*/ | . MGT |
| | | | | /TA - CUNVERT FROM BINARY & TO PACKED | 31#/ | .MGT |
| 00037 | | | | /#5 - REFRESH PROC PTRS FOR SEGMENT#/ | | • MGT |
| 000.11 | | | | | | • •MGT |

Figure A-5 (Part 5 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| | | IBM 5/38 COBO | 2 3/14/01 | THE EISTING FOR TESTERT | | |
|--|-------------|--------------------------------|-----------------|--|---|---|
| SEQ | INST OFFSET | GENERATED CODE | *··· ··· | I 2 3 4 5 . | 6 7 8 | BREAK |
| 00033 | | | | DEL DD HETRACK DKOL 31 AL | CONVERTINE CONVERTION | |
| 00034 | | | | DCL DD .MGTSEG BIN(2) | /*TARGET SEGMENT #*/ ; | .MGT |
| 00035 | | | | DCL DD •MGTPLVL BIN(2) DCL DD • CHAR(13) | /#PARM LEVEL#/ ; /#FOR ALGNMNT#/ : | •MGT •MGT |
| 00037 | | | | DCL SPCPTR . MGTPCS | /*-> PGM COL SEQ TEL*/ | MGT |
| 00038 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .NGTPTP INIT(.PT) DCL SYSPTR .NGTCPGN | /*-> PARAGRAPH TABLE*/ ; /*CANCELED PGH*/ ; | • 4GT |
| 00040 | | | | DCL INSPTR . IORTN | /*RETURN POINT FROM I/O RT | . MGT |
| 00041 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .FIBPTR | NS#/ | - #GT • MGT |
| 00042 | | | | DCL INSPTR .MGTMSGS | /+->COBOL STMT+/ | . MGT |
| 00043 | | | | DCL SPCPTR JMGTMSGT DCL SPCPTR +MGTMSGR | /*SUBSTITUTION TEXT*/ : /*REPLY AREA*/ : | .MGT .MGT |
| 00045 | | | | DCL DD .MGTMSGN BIN(2) | PRELATIVE INVOCATION NOR* | • MGT |
| 00046 | | | | DCL DD .MGTMSGI CHAR(7) | / ; /*#SG [D*/ ; | .PGT .NGT |
| 00047 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(7) | /*UNUSED*/ | .MGT |
| 00048 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .NGTPARM | /#->ADDTNL PARMS#/ | •MGT |
| | | | | /*END OF MGT*/ | | • 4GT |
| 00049 | | | | DCL CON .MGTCT8T CHAR(1) INIT(*8*) | /*BATCH JOB*/ | • MGT • MGT |
| 00051 | | | | DCL CON .MGTCTIN CHAR(1) INIT(*1*) | /*INTERACTIVE JOB*/ | . MGT |
| 00052 | | | | DCL SYSPTR .WCBSEPT(32767) BAS(.MGTSEPT) | • | •MGT |
| | | | | | | |
| 00053 | | | | BRK ". WCBDTA" | /#WCB USER DATA AREA#/ | . WCBDTA |
| 00054 | | | | DCL DD .WCBLURC BIN(2) DIR | /+L/U RETURN CODE+/ | . WCBDTA |
| | | | | | | . VCBDTA |
| | | | | /+U - NURMAL#/ /+1 - LR NOT SET#/ | | . CODTA |
| | | | | /*2 - ERROR*/ | | . WCBDTA |
| 00056 | | | | /+3 - MALI 3214/ | | . WCBDTA |
| 00057 | | | | DCL DD .WCBPINF BIN(2) DIR | /*PRODUCT INFO*/ | . WCBDTA |
| 00059 | | | | DCL DD +WCBURC CHAR(2) DIR | /*USER RETURN CODE AREA#/ | - WCBDTA |
| 00060 | | | | DCL DD .WCBCHLS CHAR(1) DIR | A LOB DATE CHANN I | . WCBDTA |
| 00062 | | | | DCL DD .WCBSWTC CHAR(8) DIR | /+UPSI SWITCHES#/ | . NCBOTA |
| 00063 | | | | DCL DD .*COUD CHAR(1) DEF(.*CBSVTC) POS(1) | | . WCBDTA |
| 00065 | | | | DCL DD ++CBUI CHAR(1) DEF(++CBSWTC) POS(2) DCL DD ++CBU2 CHAR(1) DEF(++CBSWTC) POS(3) | | . WCBDTA |
| 00066 | | | | DCL DD .WCBU3 CHAR(1) DEF(.WCBSWTC) POS(4) | : | CBDTA |
| 00068 | | | | DCL DD .#CBUS CHAR(1) DEF(.#CBS#TC) POS(5) | | • CBDTA |
| 00069 | | | | DCL DD .WCSUG CHAR(1) DEF(.WCSSWTC) POS(7) | • | . #CBDTA |
| | | | | | | |
| 00071 | | | E | BRK ".PGT " | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ ; | .PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 | | | E | BRK ".PGT " DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16) DIR | /OPROCESS GLOBAL TAMLEO/ ; ; ; | .PGT .PGT .PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 | | 18M S/38 COB | GL 5714CB1 | BRK ".PGT " DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : | .PGT .PGT .PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 | INST OFFSET | LBM S/38 COB Generated Code | QL 5714CB1 • | BRK ".PGT " DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | - 06T - 06T - 196T - 196T |
| 00071 00072 00073 | INST OFFSET | EDM 5/38 COB Generated Code | QL 5714C81 + | BRK *.PGT * DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCDTR .PGTMGTI DIR | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; | .pgt .pgt .pgt .pgt |
| 00071 00072 00073 SE0 00074 00075 | INST OFFSET | IBM 5/30 COB Gemerated Code | GL 5714C61 | BRK ".PGT " DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DSPCPTR .PGTMGTL DIR | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; | .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 SEQ 00074 00075 00076 90077 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB Generated Code | GL 5714C61 * | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHAR[1] DIR | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | - 06T - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 SEQ 00074 00075 00076 90077 | INST OFFSET | LBH 5/34 COB | 0L 5714C61 * | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT 8AS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR PCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR PCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR PCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | |
| 00071 00072 00073 SEQ 00074 00075 00076 00076 | INST OFFSET | EBN 5/38 COB Generated Code | 0. 5714C91 | BRK *.PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTL DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTL DIR DCL DD .PGTINUCS] CHAR(1) DIR DCL DD .PGTINUCS BIN(2) CHAR(1) DIR PGL DD .PGTINUC BIN(2) CHAR(1) DIR PGL DD .CHAR(1) DIR PGL DD .CHAR(1) DGEL MGTNAMEL INIT/FEET | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT .pGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 5E0 00074 00075 00076 90077 00078 00078 | INST OFFSET | LDM 5/30 COB | 0L 5714C81 + | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T . 06T |
| 00071 00072 00073 5E0 00074 00075 00076 90077 00078 00079 00078 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB | 0L 5714C91 • | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 0GT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT - PGT |
| 00071 00073 5E0 00073 00074 00075 00076 00076 00076 00074 00070 00078 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB Gemerated Code | GL 5714C01 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 OCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL SPCTR .DEF[.NGTNAE] INIT[.FDIFN] DCL SPCPTR .DEF[.NGTFIB] INIT[.FDIFN] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 06T - PGT - PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 | INST OFFSET | IBH 5/34 COB | 0L 5714C01 • | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCDTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGI32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGI32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGI32] CHAR[1] DIR CCL DD .PGTINGIA] BRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 5EQ 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00078 | INST OFFSET | EBH 5/34 COB | G. 5714C91 | BRK *.PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.WGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLWL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ : | - PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 5E0 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | OL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARIGID DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | - 06T - 07T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 5E0 00074 00075 00076 00076 00076 00078 00076 00078 00078 00078 00080 | INST OFFSET | IBH 5/34 COB | GL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZJ CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZJ CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZJ CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTINGIZJ CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTINGIZJ CHAR[1] DIR CL SPCPTR * DEF(.HGTNAME) INIT[*TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.HGTFIB] INIT[*FOIFN] BRK *.INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD .HRCTMP BIN(4) BDRY[16] INIT[32] DCL SPCPTR .VSRATR INIT[.HPRCTMP] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 06T - PGT - PHIT - NHIT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00081 | INST OFFSET | LBH 5/34 COB | GL 5714C61 + | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL SPCPTR • DEF[.WGTNAME] INIT["FEST DCL SPCPTR • DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT[.FDIFN] BRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD • CHAR[12] DCL DD • CHAR[12] DCL DD • CHAR[12] DCL DD • CHAR[12] DCL SPCPTR .PDSACTR BIN[6] BDRY[16] INIT[32] DCL SPCPTR .PGSACTR BIN[6] SASATTA] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ : | - PGT |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 5E0 00075 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00080 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/38 COB | OL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARIIGI DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 1012 DIR CCL DD .PGTINC 1012 DIR /41 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED#/ DCL DD & CHARIIDI DEF[.KGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT(*FOIFN) BRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES#/ DCL DD & CHARIIZI DCL SPCPTR .PSACHT NIT(*PGCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .PSACHT NIT(*PGCTMAIN*.TYPE(PGC | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | - 06T - 07 - 0 |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .CHAR[10] DEF[.HGTNAME] INIT[*FGT DCL DSPCPTR + DEF[.HGTNAME] INIT[*FGT CL SPCPTR .PGASATR DCL SPCPTR .PGASATR DCL SPCPTR .ANNATN INIT[*CRMAIN*.TYPE[FG DCL SYSPTR .HAINTN INIT[*CRMAIN*.TYPE[FG | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ : | - 06T - PGT - INIT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00080 00072 00074 00074 00074 00075 00076 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBH 5/34 COB | 0L 5714C01 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTL DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR /41 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED9/ DCL DD + CHAR[10] DEF(.HGTNAME) INIT("TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.HGTFIB] INIT(.FDIFN) BRK *.INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD .HDRCTMP BIN(A) BDRY(16) [NIT(32) DCL SPCPTR # DEF(.HGTNAME) [NIT(32) DCL SPCPTR .PGRACH DCL SPCPTR .HGTFIB INIT(.HPRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HGTFIB INIT(.HPRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HGTFIB INIT(.HPRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HGTFIB INIT(.HGT) | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - PGT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 5E0 00075 00075 00075 00077 00077 00074 00074 00074 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 | INST OFFSET | LDM 5/30 CODE | 0L 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 06T - 76T - 77T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00076 00076 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB | GL 5714C01 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHAR(I] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHAR(I] DIR CL SPCPTR .DESLATER DCL SPCPTR .PGTAFTR NIT(.HCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .PGTAFTR DCL SPCPTR .PGTAFTR NIT(.HCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR NIT(.HCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR NIT(.HCTMP) DCL D.L .HGTLST (.HCTPTR) | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : /*PRR TO FIRST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*INDICATORS// /*NAIN PGR INVOC **/ *** /**POINTER TO PASA*/ /**TO SYS EP TBL */ ***1) /**TO SYS EP TBL */ ***1) /**TO SYS EP TBL */ ***1) /**TO SYS EP TBL */ ***1) | - 06T - PGT - P |
| 00071 00072 00073 00074 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00070 00081 00081 00082 00082 00083 00085 00086 00085 00086 00085 00086 00089 | INST OFFSET | IBH 5/34 COB Generated Code | GL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : /*PRR TO FIRST NGT*/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGT*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*PRT *) /*PRT TO SYS EP T&L */ **INDICATOR S* COULT /*CODOL NODULE GLOBAL TARL E PTR*/ /*INDICATOR ON YALUE*/ | - 06T - PGT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 520 00074 00075 00075 00075 00076 00076 00076 00070 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 00080 | INST OFFSET | LDM 5/34 COB | GL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 06T - 76T - 76T - 76T - 96T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C01 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARIGID DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB2] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB3] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB3] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB3] CHARIID DIR CL DD .PGTINGIB3] CHARIID DIR GRK *-INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES4/ DCL DD .MPRCTMP BIN(4) BDRY(16) INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR .PGRCTR INIT(.WRCTMP) CL SPCPTR .PGRCTR INIT(.WRCTMP) CL SPCPTR .PGNCATR INIT(.WRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .PGNCATR INIT(.WRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HAINATN INIT(*OCRMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL SPCPTR .HAINATN INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL SPCPTR .HAINATN INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL SPCPTR .HAINATN INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL SPCPTR .HAINATN INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL CON 40N CHARIIJ INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL CON 40N CHARIII INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL DN 40N CHARIII INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE(PG DCL DN 40N CHARIII INIT(*OCMAIN | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PTR TO FIGST MGT0/ /*PTR TO FIGST MGT0/ /*INDICATORS0/ /*POINTER TO PASA*/ /*PTR TO SYS EP TBL */ *1)) /*RT *1 /*RT PTR FROM DEBUG INCLO SF/ /*COBOL MODULE GLOBAL TABL E PTR0/ /*INTERACTIVE JD8/ | - 06T - 07 - 07 |
| 00071 00072 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00076 00076 00076 00076 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | GL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING[32] CHAR[1] DIR CL SPCPTR + DEF(.WGTFIR] INIT[*FGT DCL SPCPTR + DEF(.WGTFIR] INIT[*FGT DCL SPCPTR + DEF(.WGTFIR] INIT[*FGT DCL SPCPTR + DEF(.WGTFIR] INIT[*F] DCL SPCPTR .PGASATR DCL SPCPTR .WGTATR INIT[.WFRCTMP] DCL SPCPTR .WGTATR INIT[.WFRCTMP] DCL SPCPTR .WGTATR INIT[.WFRCTMP] DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT[.WFGT] DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT[.WFGT] DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] DCL CON 40N CHAR[1] INIT[**] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PRR TO FIRST NGT0/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGT0/ /*PTR TO LAST NGT0/ /*INDICATORS0/ /*INDICATORS0/ /*********************************** | - 06T - PGT - |
| | INST OFFSET | LDM 5/34 COB | GL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 12 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : | - 06T - 76T - 77T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714CB1 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARI(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [32] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [32] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTINC [34] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [34] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [34] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC [34] DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [34] CHAR[1] DIT[12] DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [34] CHAR[1] CHARTNPI DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [34] CHAR[1] CHARTNPI DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [34] CHARTNPI DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [35] CHARTNPI DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR [35] CHARTN | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*NAIN PGH INVOC #*/ **NOINTER TO PASA*/ /*PTR TO SYS EP TBL */ **1) /*RT "1 /*RT TTR FROM DEBUG INCLO S*/ /*CONDL MODULE GLOBAL TARL E PTR*/ /*INTERATIVE JOBS/ /*SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION*/ /*SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION*/ | - 06T - |
| | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARIGID DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 OCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHARIJ DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHARIJ DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHARIJ DIR /*1 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED*/ DCL DO * CHARIJOI DEF(.MGTNAMEJ INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF(.MGTIA) INIT(*FOIFN) BRK *.INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD .WRCTMP BIN(4) BDRY(16) INIT(32) DCL SPCPTR .PGASATR DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.MGT) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.MGT) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.MGT) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.MGT) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(***) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(***) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(****) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(*****) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(*****) DCL CN 00N CHARIJI INIT(*********************************** | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ /*PRR TO FIRST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /**NAIN PGH INVOC **/ **/ **/ /**TR TO SYS EP TBL */ **/ **/ **/ **/ **/ **/ **/ | - 06T - PGT - |
| | INST OFFSET | IBH 5/34 COB | CL 5714C61 | BRK ",PGT " DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.HGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZ] CHAR[1] DIR CL SPCPTR .DEGF[.HGTNAME] INIT["TEST DCL SPCPTR .DEF[.HGTFIA] INIT["TEST DCL SPCPTR .PGAGTER INIT[.FD[FN] DCL DD .HGRCTHP BIN[4] BDRY[16] INIT[32] DCL SPCPTR .PGAGTR INIT[.HGRMAIN".TYPE[PG DCL SPCPTR .PGAGTR INIT[.HGRMAIN".TYPE[PG DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT[.HGT] DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT["""] DCL SPCPTR .HGTPTR INIT["""] DCL CN @ON CHAR[1] INIT["""] DCL CN @ON CHAR[1] INIT["""] DCL CN @ON CHAR[1] INIT["""] DCL CN @FF CHAR[1] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] DCL CN #FSOC CHAR[2] INIT["""] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ : /*PTR TO FIRST NGT*/ /*PTR TO LAST NGT*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*NAIN PGM INVOC #*/ PRT ") /*RT TO SYS EP TBL */ **111 /*RT PTR FROM DEBUG INCLO **COBOL MODULE GLOBAL TABL E PTR*/ /*INDICATOR ON VALUE*/ /*INDICATOR ON VALUE*/ /*INTERACTIVE JOB*/ *SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION*/ /*DUMDICATE REY-ALLOWED*/ /*NU MODUTE OSUPTIE RECE | - 06T - 76T - 77T - |
| | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARI(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 132) CHARI(1) DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 132) CHARI(1) DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 132) CHARI(1) DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 132) CHARI(1) DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 132) CHARI(1) DIR CL DD .PGTINC 134, 2000 CL DD .PGTINC 134, 2000 CL DD .PGTINC 134, 2000 CL DD .PGTCHAR 134, 2000 CL SPCPTR .PGACTR 1NT(.HGTAR) DCL SPCPTR .FGTCHAR[1] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(.HGTAR) DCL CON 9FSO CHAR[2] NT(| /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*NTORS/ | - 06T - |
| | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHARIGID DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 OCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZI CHARIJ DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZI CHARIJ DIR DCL DD .PGTINGIZI CHARIJ DIR CL DD .PGTINGIZI CHARIJ DIR /*1 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED*/ DCL DD .* CHARIJOI DEF[.*GTNAME] INIT(*FGT DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.*GTFIB] INIT(*FOIFA) BRK *.INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD .#RCTMP BIN(4) BDRY(16) INIT(32) DCL DD .#RCTMP BIN(4) BDRY(16) INIT(32) DCL SPCPTR .PASATR DCL SPCPTR .MGTATR INIT(.*RFCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .MGTATR INIT(.*GTMP) DCL SPCPTR .MGTATR INIT(***) DCL ON ON CHARIJI INIT(***) DCL CON ON CHARIJI INIT(****) DCL CON ON CHARIJI INIT(*****) DCL CON ON CHARIJI INIT(****) DCL CON ON CHARIJI INIT(*****) DCL CON ON CHARIJI INIT(****) DCL CON ON CHARIZI INIT(****) DCL CON ON CHARIZI INIT(****) | /************************************* | - DGT - PGT - |
| | INST OFFSET | LBM 5/34 COB | CL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC .PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR(16) DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*PTR TO SYS EP TBL */ *********************************** | - 06T - 76T - 77T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 1012) CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTINC 1012) DIR /41 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED#/ DCL DD & CHAR[10] DEF[.WGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR • DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT(*FOILTM) GRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES#/ DCL DD & CHAR[10] DEF[.WGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR • DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT(*FOILTM) GRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES#/ DCL DD & CHAR[10] DEF[.WGTNAME] INIT(*FOILTM) GRK *.INIT * /* INITITALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES#/ DCL DD & CHAR[10] DEF[.WGTNAME] INIT(*FOILTM) DCL DD & CHAR[11] DIN[*] DCL SPCPTR .PGACTR INIT(.WGCTMAIN*.TYPE[PG DCL SPCPTR .WGTFTR INIT(*DGT) DCL SPCPTR .HAINATIN INIT(*OCMAIN*.TYPE[PG DCL CN #GTC CHAR[1] INIT(**) DCL CN #GTC CHAR[1] INIT(***) DCL CN #GTC CHAR[1] INIT(***) DCL CN #GTC CHAR[1] INIT(***) DCL CN #GTC CHAR[1] INIT(***) DCL CN #GTSO CHAR[2] INIT(*GO*) DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*GO*) DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**) DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**] DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**] DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**] DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**] DCL CN #FSO CHAR[2] INIT(*1**] DC | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PTR TO LAST NGTS/ /*NTO FIRST NGTS/ /*NTORS/ | - 06T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00076 00070 000000 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C81 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTMGTI DIR DCL DO .PGTINGI 22] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DO .PGTINGI 23] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DO .PGTINGI 23] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DO .PGTINGI 23] CHAR[1] DIR CL DO .PGTINGI 24] CHAR[1] DIR CL DO .PGTINGI 25] CHAR[1] DIR CL DO .PGTINGI 25] CHAR[1] DIR CL DO .PGTING 26] AND DECLARES*/ DCL DO .WRCTMP BIN(4) BDRY[16] INIT(32) DCL SPCPTR .PASADTR DCL SPCPTR .PGACUM BAS(.PASADTR) DCL SPCPTR .PGACUM BAS(.PASADTR) DCL SPCPTR .PGACUM BAS(.PASADTR) DCL SPCPTR .PGACUM BAS(.PASADTR) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.WGT) DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT(.WGT) DCL CN 00N CHAR[1] INIT(**) DCL CN 00N CHAR[1] INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***) DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***] DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] INIT(***] | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PRR TO FIRST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*PTR TO LAST MCT*/ /*INDICATORS/ /*NNIN PGH INVOC **/ /*PTR TO SYS EP TOL */ **1) /*RET PTR FROM DEBUG INCLO S*/ /*COROL MODULE GLOBAL TARL E PTR*/ /*INDICATOR OFF VALUE*/ /*INTERACTIVE JOB*/ /*INTERACTIVE JOB*/ /*INTERAC | - DGT - PGT - |
| 00071 00073 5E0 00073 00075 00075 00075 00076 00077 00076 000076 000700000000 | INST OFFSET | LBM 5/34 COB | CL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLE*/ /*PTR TO FIRST NGT*/ /*PTR TO LAST NGT*/ /*PTR TO LAST NGT*/ /*INDICATORS*/ /*NAIN PGM INVOC #*/ PRT ") /*TO SYS EP TBL */ **III /*CROOL MODULE GLOBAL TABL /*CROOL MODULE GLOBAL TABL /*DINDICATOR ON VALUE*/ /*INDICATOR ON VALUE*/ /*INTERACTIVE JOB*/ /*SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION*/ /*DO DATA AVAILABLE*/ /*SOUCCESSFUL COMPLETION*/ /*DO DATA AVAILABLE*/ /*DO DATA AVAILABC | - 06T - 76T - 77T - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00075 00075 00075 00075 00075 00077 00078 00077 00078 00077 00078 00077 00088 00081 00081 00080 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714CB1 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTL DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTL DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTHGTL DIR DCL DD .PGTIWC BILL 2) DIR /*1 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED*/ DCL DD .*GTIWC BILL 2) DIR /*1 - STOP STATEMENT EXECUTED*/ DCL DD * CHAR[10] DEF[.KGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT(*FOIT) DCL DD * CHAR[10] DEF[.KGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL SPCPTR * DEF[.WGTFIB] INIT(*FOIT) DCL DD * CHAR[10] DEF[.KGTNAME] INIT(*TEST DCL DD * CHAR[10] DEF[.KGTNAME] INIT(*FOIT) DCL DD * CHAR[12] DCL DD * CHAR[12] DCL DD * CHAR[12] DCL SPCPTR .PGSACTR INIT(*BRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .PGSACTR INIT(*BRCTMP) DCL SPCPTR .HAINTNT INIT(*GT) DCL SPCPTR .HAINTNT INIT(*GT) DCL SPCPTR .HAINTNT INIT(*GT) DCL SPCPTR .HAINTNT INIT(*GT) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[1] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(*TO) DCL CON *FSOC CHAR[2] INIT(* | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PRE TO FIRST NGTS/ /*PRE TO LAST NGTS/ /*PRE TO LAST NGTS/ /*NOINT DE SYS EP TBL */ *III) /*RET PTR FROM DEBUG INCLO SY/ /*CODUL NODULE GLOBAL TABL E PTRY/ /*INDICATOR ON VALUES/ /*INDICATOR ERRORS/ /*INDICATOR FROM TERRORS/ /*INDICATOR FRO | - 0GT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00075 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00076 00077 00077 00070 00000 000000 | INST OFFSET | LBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C91 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTI DIR DCL SPCPTR .PGTNGTI DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR CL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR DCL DD .PGTING 123] CHAR[1] DIR MRK *.INIT * /* INITITIALIZATION CODE AND DECLARES*/ DCL DD .WPGTMP BIN(3) BAS(IG) INIT(32) DCL DD .WPGTM PASAFTR DCL SPCPTR .PGSAFTR DCL SPCPTR .PGSAFTR DCL SPCPTR .MAINTN INIT[.WGCTMA] DCL SPCPTR .MGTPTR INIT[.WGT,TYPE[PG DCL CN 00N CHAR[1] INIT[*] DCL CN 00N CHAR[2] IN | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PRR TO FIRST MGT*/ /*PRR TO FIRST MGT*/ /*PRR TO LAST MGT*/ /*PRR TO LAST MGT*/ /*PRR TO LAST MGT*/ /*PRT TO LAST MGT*/ /*PRT TO SYS EP TBL */ */1) /*RET PTR FROM DEBUG INCLO S*/ /*CODDL MODULE GLOBAL TABL E PTR*/ /*INDICATOR OF YALUE*/ /*INDICATOR SUPFILE REC*/ /*OUD RECESSFL COMPLETION*/ /*DUP REVENT ALLOWED*/ /*INDICATOR SUPFILE REC*/ /*INDICATOR | - 0GT - NGT - NGT - NGT - PGT - NIT - |
| 00071 00072 00073 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00074 00076 00076 00077 00080 00077 00080 00077 00080 00077 00080 00097 00080 00097 00097 00097 00099 00097 00099 00090 000000 | INST OFFSET | IBN 5/34 COB | CL 5714C61 | BRK *,PGT * DCL SPC -PGT BAS(.MGTPGT) DCL DD .PGTLVL CHAR[16] DIR IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I | /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TARLES/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TAGTS/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TAGTS/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TAGTS/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TAGTS/ /*PROCESS GLOBAL TAGTS/ /*COBOL MODULE GLOBAL TAGT E PTR*/ /*INDICATOR ON VALUES/ /*GINDICATOR ON VIOLATIONS/ /*GINDICATOR ON VIOLATIONS/ /*GINDICATOR ON VIOLATIONS/ /*GINDICATOR ON TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDICATOR TEROTORS/ /*GINDIC | - 06T - |

Figure A-5 (Part 6 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| | | | | IBM S | /38 0 | :080L 5 | 714081 | IRP LISTING FOR TESTP | RT | | |
|-------|-----------|-------|-------|--------|-------|---------|------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|----------------|
| SEQ | INST OFF | SET | GENER | ATED | CODE | | • | 1 2 3 | • ••• ••• 5 •• | 6 7 8 | PREAK |
| 00163 | | | | | | | | ENTRY .CALRTN INT | | : | .CALEXCP |
| 00164 | 000 A 000 | 003C | 3082 | 0012 | 0050 | | | CPYBLA .MGTUVFL.#ON | | ; | .CALEXCP |
| 00165 | 000B 000 | 042 | 03E1 | 0084 | | | | RTNEXCP .CALERP | | ; | .CALEXCP |
| | | | | | | | | /*INTERNAL SIZE ERROR EXCEPTIO | N HANDLER#/ | | +CALEXCP |
| 00166 | | | | | | | | | | ; | CALEXCP |
| 00167 | | | | | | | | BRK ".SIZEXCP" | | ; | • SIZEXCP |
| 00168 | | | | | | | | DCL EXCM .SIZEXCM EXCID(H"0C03 | * . H* 0COA* . H* 0C | 08"] INT(+SIZERTN) IND CV(| • S I ZE XCP |
| | | | | | | | | x • 00000000 •) | | : | SIZEXCP |
| 00169 | | | | | | | | DCL SPCPTR .SIZERP INIT(.RTNPT | R) | : | • SIZE XCP |
| 00170 | | | | | | | | ENTRY .SIZERTN INT | | • | • STZEXCP |
| 00171 | 0000 000 | 0046 | 31 43 | 400B | 2001 | 2 00 1 | | ADDN(S) .MGTCNTR[1].1 | | /*-ADD 1 TO SIZE COUNT*/ ; | • SIZEXCP |
| 00172 | 0000 000 | 004E | 1082 | 400F | 2001 | 0050 | | CPYBLA .MGTIND(1).#ON | | /#-INDICATE ON SIZE ERROR# | • SI ZE XCP |
| | | | | | | | | | | · | +SIZEACP |
| 00173 | 0002 000 | 1050 | 0361 | | 20.02 | 0050 | | DINE YOO CI7500 | | : | • 5 1 2 E X CP |
| 00174 | 5507 000 | 10 DE | 0.361 | 0.007 | | | | ALAC +312CRP | 1100 - CALLE / | | • 51 2C XCP |
| 00176 | | | | | | | | A THORE I UN CHECK EACEPTION AUN | TITUR - CALLS C | LALADANY/ | SIZEACP |
| 00176 | | | | | | | | ARK ".FCEXCP" | | : | FCEXCP |
| 00177 | | | | | | | | DCI SYSPTR .FCPTR INIT (COCPEYE | ANT. TYPE (PON) | : | FCEXCP |
| 00178 | | | | | | | | DCI DD -ECPARN CHAR(22) INIT | | | FCFXCP |
| 00179 | | | | | | | | DCI SPOPTR -FORARD INIT(-FORA | 0.001 | <u>.</u> | FCFXCP |
| 00180 | | | | | | | | DCL DL .FCLIST (.FCPARMPMGTP | TRI | | FCEXCP |
| 00181 | | | | | | | | DCL EXCM .FCEXCM EXCID(H*9999* |) BP(.CPF99991 | IMD CV(*CPF*) | .FCEXCP |
| 00182 | 0010 000 | 2002 | 2283 | 0089 | ooac | 0000 | . CPF 9999 | CALLX .FCPTR FCLIST .* | | /#CALL GCREXHAN WITH 2 PAR | .FCEXCP |
| | | | | | | | | | | MS#/ ; | .FCEXCP |
| 00183 | 0011 000 | 006A | 1011 | 0 LF 8 | | | | 8 .RETURN | | /* GO DO STOP RUN FUNCTION | .FCEXCP |
| | | | | | | | | | | */ ; | •FCEXCP |
| | | | | | | | | | | | •FCEXCP |
| | | | | | | | | /#STOP RUN EXCEPTION MONITOR#/ | | | •FCEXCP |
| 00184 | | | | | | | | | | : | •FCEXCP |
| 00185 | | | | | | | | BRK ".STPEXCP" | | : | •STPEXCP |
| 00186 | | | | | | | | DCL EXCM .STPEXCM EXCID(H*9999 | •) BP(.RTX) [• | ID CV(*CRL*) | • STPE XCP |
| 00187 | | | | | | | | BRK ". INIT002" | | : | • INIT 00 2 |
| 00188 | 0012 000 | 00 6E | 21 32 | 007E | 004A | | . INIT 002 | CPYBWP .RTNPTRPASACUR | | | . INIT002 |
| 00189 | 0013 000 | 074 | 1042 | 00/9 | 2001 | | | CPYNY .PERFCIR.1 | | /VINIT PERFORM NEST CTRV/ ; | .INIT002 |
| 00144 | | | | | | | | BAR ".DICI" | | 74 START OF DICTIONANT DEC | .DICT |
| | | | | | | | | | | LARES #/ | DICT |
| | | | | | | | | AFTH DECT (FUE INFORMATION | BLOCK MA | | -0101 |
| 00191 | | | | | | | | VALUE VALUE INFORMATION | | | -0101 |
| 00192 | | | | | | | | DCI INSPTR JUSERTN | | A USE PROCEDURE RINPOINTE | -0101 |
| | | | | | | | | | | R #/ | DICT |
| 00193 | | | | | | | | DCL INSPTR .FIBUSAV | | /* USE SAVE POINTER */ | DICT |
| 00194 | | | | | | | | DCL INSPTR . PBPDUM BASI.FIBPTR | .) | /*PROCEDURE RTNPOINTER */ : | .DICT |
| 00195 | | | | | | | | DCL SPCPTR .FIBPTR | | /*.F18 BASE*/ | .DICT |
| 00196 | | | | | | | | DCL SPC .FIB BAS(.FIBPTR) | | | .DICT |
| 00197 | | | | | | | | DCL DD .FIBEN CHAR(30) DIR | | /#FD NAME#/ | .01CF |
| 00198 | | | | | | | | DCL DD .FIBALT CHAR(1) DIR | | /#ALTERNATE ID FLAGS#/ ; | .DICT |
| | | | | | | | | | | | .DICT |
| | | | | | | | | /* BIT 1 CLEAR FILE */ | | | .DICT |
| 00199 | | | | | | | | | | : | .DICT |
| | | | | | | | | /# BIT 2 INITIALIZE FILE TO DE | LETED RECORDS | */ | .DICT |
| 00200 | | | | | | | | | | : | .DICT |
| | | | | | | | | /* BIT 3 RESET CURRENT RECORD | POINTER IN EFF | ECT #/ | •DICT |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |

(

| | | IBM \$/38 COBO | L 5714CB1 | IRP LISTING FOR TEST | PRT | | |
|-------|-------------|----------------|-----------|--------------------------------|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------------|
| SEQ | INST OFFSET | GENERATED CODE | * | 1 2 3 | • ··· ··· 5 ·· | 6 7 8 | BR≝ AK |
| | | | | /#FILE CONTROL BLOCK#/ | | | .DICT |
| 00489 | | | | | | : | 10161 |
| 00490 | | | | 8RK ".F02" | | ; | .F02 |
| 00491 | | | | DCL DD .FO2FN CHAR(30) 3DRY(1 | 6) INIT("FILE-2 | 2 ") | .F02 |
| | | | | | | /# FD NAME #/ ; | .F02 |
| 00492 | | | | DCL DD .FOZALTS CHAR(1) | | /*NBR ALT KEYS*/ | .F02 |
| 00493 | | | | DCL DD .F02FLGS CHAR(1) INIT(| x"00") | /#BITS - OPEN.LOCKED.EOF.M | •F02 |
| | | | | | | FCU.OPTIONAL*/ | .F02 |
| 00494 | | | | DCL DD .F020LD CHAR(6) INIT(X | *00000000F0F0* | /#LAST OP AND STATUS#/ ; | •F02 |
| 00495 | | | | DCL DD .FO2CUR CHAR(6) INIT(X | *00000000F0F0* | ; | .F02 |
| 00496 | | | | DCL DD .F02COP CHAR(4) DEF(.F | 02CUR) POS(1) | /*CUR OP AND STATUS*/ ; | .F02 |
| 00497 | | | | DCL DD .FO2USE# BIN(2) INIT | | /#USE PARA#/ ; | • F O 2 |
| 00498 | | | | DCL DD .F02FMT CHAR(10) INIT | | /*FMT IN EFFECT#/ | •F02 |
| 00499 | | | | DCL DD .F02SPC CHAR(14)INIT(x | • 00000000000000000 | 000000000000") | •F02 |
| | | | | | | /*SPECIAL DATA*/ | •F02 |
| 00500 | | | | DCL DD * CHAR(10) | | /#FILLER#/ | 62 |
| 00501 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .F02UFCB INIT(.U02 | VFC8) | /*PTR TO UFC8*/ ; | •F02 |
| 00502 | | | | DCL INSPTR .FO2UBTO | | /#USE BRANCH TO POINTER #/; | •F02 |
| 00503 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .FOZUNTN | | 74USE RETURN POINTER 47 ; | •F02 |
| 00504 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .F02CHAN | | /#NULL PTR TO FIB#/ ; | .F02 |
| | | | | | | | .F02 |
| | | | | /# UFC8 FOR THE FILE #/ | | | •F02 |
| 00505 | | | | | | | .+ 02 |
| 00506 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .U02UFC8 | | JEPTR TO ODPCHEZ ; | .+02 |
| 00507 | | | | DCL SPCPTR .00210Fa | | APTR TO INPUT BUF #/ | .FU2 |
| 00508 | | | | DEL SPEPTR .00208Fa | | | |
| 00509 | | | | | | /+UPEN FEEDBACK+/ | |
| 00510 | | | | | | VOTO FEEDBACK | |
| 00511 | | | | DEL SPEPTR + | | JOPTR TO NEXT OFCO TO OPEN | |
| 00512 | | | | DCI DD # CHAR(13) | | 2047 | 102 |
| 00513 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(10)INIT(#MASTER | | | |
| 00514 | | | | OCL 00 + 8IN(2) INIT(-75) | | /\$I I HRARY\$/ | . 502 |
| 00515 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(10) INIT("+1 IBL | •) | | -F02 |
| 00516 | | | | DCL DD * BIN(2) [NIT(-71) | | /*NEMBER#/ | . F02 |
| 00517 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(10) INIT | | | .F02 |
| 00518 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(10) | | /* NAME OF DEVICE #/ ; | . F 0 2 |
| 00519 | | | | DCL DD # BIN(2) INIT | | /#INDEX OF DEVICE IN ODP#/; | •F02 |
| 00520 | | | | DCL DD .U02FLGS CHAR(2) INIT(| x#8000#1 | | .F02 |
| 00521 | | | | DCL DD * CHAR(4) INIT(#0100*) | | /#REL AND VER#/ ; | • F 0 2 |
| 00522 | | | | DCL DD * CHAR(28) | | /#RESERVED#/ | .F0? |
| | | | | | | | .F02 |
| | | | | TREND OF COMMON PARM OF UFCB | <i>i</i> / | | .F02 |
| 00523 | | | | | | : | .F02 |
| | | | | /# OPTION - PRIMARY RECORD LE | NGTH #/ | | • F 0 2 |
| 00524 | | | | | | | .+02 |
| 00525 | | | | UCL 00 # 91N(2) INIT(0)) | | | • • • • • • |
| 00526 | | | | OCT DO 4 BIN(21 INIT[00020] | | /* LENGTH OF RECORD \$/ ; | |
| | | | | | | | |
| 00527 | | | | TH OFIIUN - INMIBLE PAGE UVER | 0 LU##/ | | |
| 00527 | | | | DCL DD & BIN(2) INIT(20) | | | .502 |
| 00529 | | | | DCL DD + CHAR(1) INIT(******* | | /#INHIBLI = YES#/ | |
| 00329 | | | | | | | -F02 |
| | | | | /* OPTION - DEVICE DEPENDENT | | T USED#/ | .502 |
| 00530 | | | | server sevensen | | | .F02 |
| | | | | | | • | |

Figure A-5 (Part 7 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| IDE S/36 CUBUL S/14/91 IDE LISTING FOR TESTERI SEQ INST OFFSET GENERATED CODE 0 | |
|--|--|
| 00531 DCL DD ♦ BIN(2) INIT(03) , F0 00532 OCL DD ♦ CHAR(1) INIT(X=#0*) /*DEVICE CONTROLS USED+/ ; F0 00533 DCL DD ♦ INI(2) INIT(X=0) ; F0 | EAK |
| 00532 OCL DD € ch44(1 INIT(#80°) /*DEVICE CONTROLS USED⊄/ : +F0 00533 DCL DD € 81x(2) INIT(58) : +F0 | 02 |
| | 02 |
| 00534 DCL DD * CHARLII INIT(X*00*") ; .FO 00535 DCL DD * HN[2] INIT(0) /*INDICATE BLOCKING DESIRE .F0 | 02 02 |
| ••• ••• ••• ••• ••• ••• ••• ••• ••• •• | 02 02 |
| 00536 /* OPTION - LEVEL CHECK NO */ .70 | 02 02 |
| 00537 DCL DD ♥ 81N(2) INT1061 /8L 00538 DCL DD ∪021VCK CHARII /8L 00538 DCL DD ∪021VCK CHARII /8L 00538 CCL DD ∪021VCK CHARII /8L 00537 · ··· | 02 |
| 00539 DCL DD SUDZEVAL (HARTI) DEFISUDZEVAL INTIKAUUFI : - 0 00540 DCL DD S CHARTI INTIKAUFI : - 0 | 02 |
| 00541 /// 00541 // 00541 // 00541 // 00541 // 00541 // 00541 | 02 02 |
| 005+3 DCL DD - F027NUFR (CHAR(00020) DAS(,U0200FP3) LVL(1FD-1) HLL(1FTLE-2*) - 01 005-4 DCL DD - D075-F2 (HAR(00020) DFE(-F029LFB) F02(1) LV (14) LU (1 005-4 DCL DD - D075-F2 (HAR(00020) DFE(-F029LFB) F02(1) LV (14) LU (1 | |
| 0054 *********************************** | |
| 00556 0 D510 00556 (H210055) 600551 60051 (011) 1 (101050) 1 (101050) 1 (101050) 1 (1010551 60051) 1 (100551 600510) 1 (10055160051) 1 (10055160051) 1 (10055005000) 1 (1005500 | |
| 00547 DCL DD =0005507 PFK102.00) DEF(=0005580) POS(1) LVL(*05*1 HLL(*K0UNT*) =01 Parent(*file=?**01) : 01 | ICT |
| 00548 UCL DO .D00534 CHAR(0026) DEFL.D005580) POSIJI LVL(*05*) HLL(*Alp*naet*i parent(*fluer.*01) Init(*arcefacily.und/modestuwary*) ; .01 | ICT |
| 00549 DCL D0 .A00560(22) (DAR(00001) DEF(.D005634) LVL(*05*) HLL(*ALPHA*) .01 PARENT(*TLLER*.*01*) .01 | 101 |
| 00550 DCL DD _0005800 CHAN(00001) DEF(_05181NG) PD5(1) ; .01 00551 DCL DD _0005710 PK0(02,00) DEF(_005580) PD5(129) LV((*05*) HL(*NVP3*01) | 101 |
|) PARENT("FILLER","01") ; .DI 00552 DCL DD .D005772 CHAR(00026) DEF(.D005580) PDS(31) LVL("05") HLL(.DI | 101 |
| •NO-OF-DEPENDENTS•) PARENT(•FILLER•,•OI•) INIT(.01 •O1000012000123001234002340*) ; .DI | 101 |
| 00553 DCL DD +A0057F6(26) CHAR(00001) DEF(+D005772) LVL(*05*) HLL(*DEPEND*) -JI PARENT(*FILLER*+*01*) ; .01 | ICT |
| 00554 UCL DD .D0057F6 CHAR(00001) DEF(.BSTRING) POS(1) ; .D1 00555 DCL DD .D005856 (HAR(00013) BDRY[2] LVL(*01*) HLL(*VORKRECORD*) ; .J1 | 101 |
| 00356 DCL DD .D0056AC CHAR(00001) DEF(.D005656) PDS(1) LVL(*05*) HLL(.D1 "NAMES-FIELD") PARENT(*MORRECORD**01*) ; .D1 | 101 |
| UU557 UCL DU .D005904 (HARIORORI) DEF(.D005956) PDS(2) LVL(*05*) HLL(.D1 *FILLER*] PARENT(*D0KRECORD*,*01*) INIT ; .D1 | |
| ULUU JUUUSYSE KUI(103,00) UEFI,D005856) PUS(3) LYL(1051) HLL(+01 *RECORDNO1) PARENT(140RKRECORD+*011) ; 01 00550 DLUU DUJUSYSE KUI(140RKRECORD+*011) ; 01 | |
| UUSSV OLL DU SUUSSX2 CHARLOUDDI I OFFI JOUSSBAF PUSIER LAVLTUST MLLI - 01 +FILLER1 PARENTI + GORGECORD-+ 01-1 INIT - 1 - 01-1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - | |
| 0050 OLE 00 JD005ALE CAAK(D0003) DEF. J00055ALE VL'1051 HLL | |
| 00561 UCL 00 10005482 (MARQ00001) DC+10003656) POSTOF (41:005) ALL (.01 +FILLER*) PARENT(*WORKRECORD*.01*) INIT ; DI 00562 DC+ DD_00054DC (MARQ0002) DCF(10065654) PDS(11) (V(*05*) HL) (.01 | |
| 0054 1025 00517 (124054) 00517 (124054) 00510 (1251) 124 (1051) 12 | |
| *FLLER*1 PAGENT('WORKECDAD'.'01') INIT : .DI 00564 DCLDD.JD05886 CFX0102.00) 800F12 LVL['01'] HLL('YODEFEND'] : .DI | |
| 00565 DCL DD .DO358EE ZND[02.00] BDRY(2) LVL[+01+) HLL(+ZONE-DATA+) ; .DI | ICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT | |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT SEQ INST DFFSET GENERATED CODE 0 | REAK |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEQ INST OFFSET GENERATED CODE * | REAK Dict Dict |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEQ INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE * | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEQ INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE * | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEQ INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE * | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE * | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE * | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT IP SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEG INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT H SEO INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT IP SEG INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT IP SEG INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE I | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT ID SEG INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE ************************************ | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPAT ID SEG INST OFFSET GENERATED CODE Introduction Introduction <thintroduction< th=""> <thintroduction< th=""></thintroduction<></thintroduction<> | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/30 COBOL 5714C01 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT Image: Seg inst offset generated code ************************************ | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/30 COBOL 5714C01 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT ID SEG INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE Interval Interval <thinterval< th=""> Interval In</thinterval<> | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/36 CODOL 3714CB1 IBP LISTING FOR TESTPAT IBM 5/36 CODOL 3714CB1 IBP LISTING FOR TESTPAT IBM 5/36 CODOL 3714CB1 IAP LISTING FOR TESTPAT IBM 5/36 CODOL 3714CB1 IAP LISTING FOR TESTPAT OSS67 OSS67 OSS69 OCL D0 -VOSTRE CHARLOODOL ULIOITI HILIOD-FORMAT-NAME') DD OS570 OCL D0 -OPOSCAA CHARLOODOL ULIOITI HILIOD-FORMAT-NAME') DD OS570 OCL D0 -PORDACAPATINITIALIZATIO DD OCL D0 -PORDACAPATINITIALIZATIO DD OCL D0 -PORDACAPATINITIALIZATIO DD OS570 OCL D0 -PTHOR CHARLISO DEFL-PTHORI POSIBILI NITION 1. /* PARAGRAPH TABLE HEADER /* OCL D0 -PTHOR CHARLISO DEFL-PTHORI POSIBILI NITION 1. /* NAME AND LEVEL */ / OCL D0 -PTHOR CHARLISO DEFL-PTHORI POSIBILI NITION 1. /* NAME AND LEVEL */ / OCL D0 -PTHOR CHARLISO DEFL-PTHORI POSIBILI NITION 1. /* NAME AND LEVEL */ / OCL D0 -PTHOR CHARLISO DEFLOPTORI POSIBILI NITION 1. /* NAME AND LEVEL */ / / O | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/30 COBOL 5714.C01 IRP LISTING FOR TESTPAT IND IND DFFSET GEMERATED COME IND LISTING FOR TESTPAT IND IND DFFSET GEMERATED COME IND LISTING FOR TESTPAT IND ODS57 ODS57 ODS57 IND OCL DD -VODSKE (MARIO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO // PARAGAPH INITALIZATIO IND OCL DD -PTHOR CHARLO0004) < | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IBM 5/30 COBOL 5714C01 IBP LISTING FOR TESTPRT ID INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE OS557 00557 00557 00557 00557 00557 INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE INST DFFSET GEMERATED CODE OCL DD .V005REE (HARIG0001) UCLIGUIT HLIGDEFORMAT-AMERI) IDD DCL DD .0007CA (HARIG0002) INTICIDERAUVES WITH NO DEFENDENTS *) IDD DCL DD .0007CA (HARIG0002) INTICIDERAUVES WITH NO DEFENDENTS *) IDD DCL DD .0007CA (HARIG0002) O0570 00571 00573 OCL DD .0007CA (HARIG0002) INTICIDERAUVES WITH NO DEFENDENTS *) IDD DCL DD .0007C (HARIG0002) INTICIDERAUVES WITH NO DEFENDENTS *) IDD DCL DD .0007C (HARIG0002) 00571 00573 OCL DD .0007C (HARIG0002) INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD CL DD .0007FLPT0001 POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ IDD POSIDI INTICIDERAUVES */ | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IDM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IDM LISTING FOR TESTRT IDM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 IDM LISTING FOR TESTRT IDM 5/38 COBOL 5714CB1 C <th< td=""><td>REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT</td></th<> | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| UD IBM 5/36 COBOL 571401 IBM LISTING FOR TESTRET UD INST OFFSET GEMERATED CODE | REAK DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT DICT |
| IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM LISTIM FOR TESTM IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM LISTIM FOR TESTM IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM LISTIM FOR TESTM IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM LISTIM FOR TESTM ODS50 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS70 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS71 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS72 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS73 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS74 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS75 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 ODS76 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM S/30 CODL 3714001 ODS77 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM S/30 CODL 3714001 IDM S/30 CODL 3714001 ODS77 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDF S/31 CODL 371401 IDF S/31 CODL 371401 ODS77 IDM S/30 CODL 371401 IDM S/30 CODL 3714000000000000000000000000000000000000 | REAK DICT |

Figure A-5 (Part 8 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| SEO | INST OFFS | T GENER | ATED CODE | | * | 1 2 3 4 5 | 6 7 8 | BREAK |
|---|---|--|--|--|---|---|--|--|
| 0061 | 0 02 3 00 00 | 6 1083 (2040 | 0184 81AE | 0108 | | CPYBLAP .D0059ACTADR001->.D005680." " | ; | 55 55 |
| 00614 | 0024 0000 | 0 1042 | 0078 01A8 | | | BRK #56# CPYNV +BINSUB++D0055D2 | /*MOVE #/ ; /*-COPY SOURCE TO RECVR #/; | 56 56 |
| 0061 | 0025 0000 | 6 0082 0 | 01CB 4181 | 0078 | | SETSPP .TADROO1A0057F6(.BINSUB) | | 56 56 |
| 0061 | 0026 0000 | 2040 | . IOA 8182 | 0108 | | C-1024P +000340C++1408001-9+0003/F6+" " | • | 56 |
| 0061 | 0027 0000 | 8 1042 | 0186 01AF | | | 8RK #57# CPYNV +D00595E,+D005710 | /*MOVE */ ; /*-COPY SOURCE TO RECVR */: | 57 57 |
| 0062 |) | | | | .PAR0004 | | | 57 |
| 0062 | 0028 0000 | E 3083 | 0179 0183 | 2040 | | CPY9LAP +D005394++D005856+* * | /*#KIIE #/ \$ | 58 |
| 0062 | 0029 0001 | 6 0082 | 0023 0140 | | | SETSPP .FIBPTR,.FOIFN | /*POINT TO CECB#/ | 58 58 |
| 0062 | 0028 0001 | 2 0082 | 0126 0114 | | | SETSPP .I OCPTR NULLCL | /* NULL CONTROL LIST*/ | 58 |
| 0062 | 002C 0001 | 8 0293 0 0 3CC2 0 | 020F 0000 C000 009D | 0022 005C | | CALLI +PUTALL, 4, +IORTN CMP3LA(B) +FIBCFS, 4F524/NEQ(?L000001) | /#CALL WITH RETURN POINT#/; /#INVALID KEY#/ | 58 58 |
| 0010 | 0.025 0000 | 0100 | | | | (DVB) A | | 58 58 |
| 0062 | 0022 0001 | - 1082 | 5070 UUSE | | ?L000001 | | /* LABEL NEQ FS24 */ | 58 |
| 00630 | 002F 0001 | 10 3042 (16 0083 (| 00A2 2007 0117 00DD | 0119 | | CPYNV .FIBVER0.07 Addspp .dmpcdfpucbidfðdmpcdf0 | /#SAVE VERB TYPE#/ : /#ADD OFFSET#/ : | 58 58 |
| 0063 | 0031 0001 | E 1083 | 018F 0143 | 2040 | | CPYBLAP +D005CAA++DMPRFNT+" | /* COPY FORMAT NAME*/ | 58 |
| 0063 | 0032 0001 | 0 1011 | | | .PAR0 005 | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | 58 |
| 0063 | | | | | .L000001 | BRK "59" | /*PERFORM */ ; | 59 59 |
| 0063 | 0033 0001 | A 3C 46 | C 00 0 01 AB | 201 A | | CMPNV(8) .D0055D2.26/NEQ(.L000004) | | 59 |
| 0063 | 0034 0091 | 01DF | 0 1E 3 | | | B .L000002 | : | 59 |
| 00639 | | | | | .L000004 | : DCL INSPTR . 1200001 | 1 1 | 59 59 |
| 0064 | 0035 0001 | 8 2132 | 0160 0108 | | | CPY8WP .IP00001PBP0004 | /+-SAVE OLD BR PT+/ | 59 |
| 0064 | 0036 0001 | E 1022 (| 01C8 01E1 01D9 | | | SETTP .PBP0004,7L000004 8 .PAR0003 | /+-SET RETURN ADDR+/ : /+-GOTO PARAGRAPH+/ : | 59 59 |
| 00644 | 0038 0001 | 8 2132 | 01C8 01E0 | | 71000004 | :CPYBWP .P8P00041P00001 | /*-RESTORE OLD BR PT*/ | 59 59 |
| 0064 | 0039 0001 | E 3011 | OIDE | | 1200003 | B .L000001 | | 59 |
| 0064 | | | | | .L000002 | : | | 59 59 |
| 0064 | 0.01.0.0 | 2 3000 | 0023 00/- | | | BRK #60# | /#CLOSE #/ i | 60 60 |
| 0065 | 0038 0001 | 8 01 32 | 00D7 00A4 | | | CPYBWP +UFCBPTR++FIBUFCB | /*SET UFCB ADDR*/ ; | 60 |
| 0065 | 003C 0001 | E 1197 (| 00EA 2080 | 0022 | | DR (S) +UCBFLG1+X [#] 80 [#] CALLI +CLOSE +*++IDRTN | /* PERM, CLOSE*/ ; /*CALL WITH RETURN POINT*/: | 60 60 |
| 00 654 | 003E 0001 | C 3042 | 00A2 2001 | | | CPYNV .FIRVER9.01 | /*SAVE VER8 TYPE*/ : | 60 |
| 0065 | 003F 0001 | 2 108E (| U1BF 2040 | | | CPTBHEP #D005CAA#" " BRK #61" | /* BLANK FORMATNAME*/ ; /*OPEN */ ; | 61 |
| 0065 | 0040 0001 | 8 0082 0 | 0023 0178 | | | SETSPP .FIBPTRF02FN CPYNV .FIBUSE#.0 | /*POINT TO CFC8*/ ; /*NO USE SPECIFIED#/ ' | 61 61 |
| 00659 | 0042 0001 | 4 1082 | 0197 01E5 | | | CPYBLA .U02FLGS.X"0020" | /*SET OPEN INPUT */ | 61 |
| 00660 | 0043 0001 | A 0293 (| 01FE 0000 00BE 2040 | 0022 | | CALLI .OPEN | /*CALL WITH RETURN POINT#/; | 61 |
| 0000 | | | | | | CPTBREP +FIBRERI * | / DEARK FURMATRANCY/ | 01 |
| 0066 | 0045 0001 | 8 1042 | 00A2 2003 | | BADOORT | CPTBREP .FIBRENI." " CPTBREP .FIBRENI." " | /*SAVE VERB TYPE*/ | 61 |
| 0066 | . 0045 0001 | 18 1042 | 00A2 2003 | | •PAR0007 | CYTREP - FISK#1," " CYNN - FISK#8.03 : BRK #62* | / OLARK FORMATMARE/ /OSAVE VERD TYPE/ : /OREAD 0/ ; | 61 61 62 |
| 0066; 0066; 0066; | 0045 0001 | 18 1042 1 | 00A2 2003 | COBOL | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.MIT" " CPNN .FIBKER0.03 BRK #62# IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 | ************************************ | 61 61 62 |
| 0066; 0066; 0066; 0066; 0066; | INST OFFS | 18 1042 1 1 T GENER/ 0 1042 0 | 0042 2003 | COBOL 1 | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBKEN.1" - CPNN .FIBKEN.03 BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPNN .T00003.000588C CPNN .T00003.000588C | /*05AVE VERB TYPE// : /*READ */ : /*READ */ : /*READ */ : /*READ */ : /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /#DICE FLEW WERY /: | 61 61 62 AREAK 69 69 |
| 0086 0066 0066 00664 00664 00664 00664 006714 00714 00714 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 | 18 1042 1 T GENER/ 10 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1043 (| 1 BM 5/38 A TED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F1 2002 006E 2002 | COBOL | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBKEN.J | /*05AVE VERB TYPE// /*0FAVE VERB TYPE// /*0FEAD */ | 61 61 62 BREAK 69 69 69 |
| 50066 0066 0066 0066 0066 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0065 0002 | IB 1042 (T GENER/ 0 1042 (6 1042 (C 1143 (2 0083 (4 0082 (| 00A2 2003 IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F1 2002 01F1 2002 01F0 01F0 01F0 01F0 | COBOL : | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBKEN.03 : BRK #62# IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T000001,.000588C (PYNV .DISPER.00002 ADDNIS1 .ADLN.00002 ADDNIS1 .ADLN.00002 SETSPP .OISPERDISPER | /*05AVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ | 61 61 62 AREAK 69 69 69 69 |
| 00065 0065 0066 0066 0066 0066 0076 0076 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0065 0002 | IB 1042 | 00A2 2003 IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F1 2002 01F1 2002 01F0 01F0 01F0 01F0 0068 20C4 | COBOL : | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBXER 1, " " CPYNV .FIBXER .03 BRK #62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T080003,.000588C CPYNV .DISPDS.00002 ADDNIS .ADLN.00072 ADDSP .01SPFTRDISPDS SETSPP .ADBUGF.ADBUFU CPYBLA .ADBUGF. | /*GREAD */ | 61 61 62 8REAK 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 0006: 006: 006: 006: 007: 007: 007: 007: | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 | B 1042 (T GENER/ 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1083 (1 082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1042 | 00A2 2003 IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 006E 2002 0160 01F0 01F0 0068 20C4 0066 20C4 0066 20C4 | 0 1F 1 | •PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.WIJ" - C CPYNV .FIBVERB.03 : BRK #62" IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T000001.000588C CPYNV .T05PPDS.00002 ADDNF51 .ADLN.00002 ADDSPP .015PPTRDISPPTBDISPPDS SETSPP .ADBUF.ADBUFU CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.V.1 | /*05AVE VERB TYPE/* : /*05AVE VERB TYPE/* : /*07EAD */ : /*07EAD */ : /*015P ELMA LNGTH#/ : /*015P ELMA LNGTH#/ : /*04020 PTR#/ : /*015P TR#/ : /*015P LAM LNGTH#/ : /*015PLAN DATA*/ : /*015PLAN DATA*/ : /*015PLAN DATA*/ : /*015PLAN DATA*/ : /*015PLAN DATA*/ : | AREAK 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 00065 0065 00664 00664 00714 007710 00714 007710 00772 00772000000000000000000000 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 0143 (7 0 | 00A2 2003 16M 5/36 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F2 002 01F0 01F0 006A 01CC 006B 2024 006C 2009 001D 2001 001A 006A 01F2 0064 | 0 1F 1 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.W1, | /*05AVE VERB TYPE/* : /*05AVE VERB TYPE/* : /*READ */ : /*READ */ : /*OISP ELEX LNGTH*/ : /*01SP ELEX LNGTH*/ | AREAK 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 00060 0060 0060 0060 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00712 00722 00722 | INST DFFS 0063 0002 0063 0002 0065 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 | T GENER/ 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 0143 (7 0 | 1 BM 5/38 A TED CODE 0 1F4 015 0 1F4 015 0 065 2002 0 066 2002 0 066 2002 0 066 2002 0 066 2002 0 066 2004 0 016 0 016 0 017 0 010 0 000 2004 | 0 1F 1 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.WIT | /*05APC VERB TYPE/ /*05APC VERB TYPE/ /*0READ */ /*0READ */ /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*0ISP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*0CINT LNGTH*/ /*0CINT TO BUFER*/ /*0DISPLAN LNGTH*/ /*0DISPLAN LNGTH*/ /*0DISPLAN LNGTH*/ /*0DISPLAN LNGTH*/ /*0ISP SUBR*/ /*0ISP SUBR*/ /*0ISP SUBR*/ /*0DISP SUBR*/ /*0DISP SUBR*/ /*0DISP SUBR*/ /*0DISP SUBR*/ | 61 61 62 8REAK 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 0006: 0066: 0066: 0066: 0066: 0066: 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00716 00712 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 | B 1042 (T GENER/ T GENER/ O 1042 (O 1042 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 1082 (O 2033 (O 2033 (O 1042 (| 1 BH 5/38 A TED CODE 0 1F4 0162 0 064 2002 0 065 2002 0 066 2002 0 066 2004 0 066 2002 0 066 2004 0 067 2004 0 00000000000000000000000000000000 | 0 1F 1 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.WI," " CPYNV .FIBK.WI," " IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T000003,.D005BBC CPYNV .JDISPDS,00002 ADDNS J. ADLN.00002 ADDSP .01SPDTRDISPTRDISPDS SETSPP .ADLWG."0" CPYNL .ADFUK."0" CPYNL .ADFUK.1 SETSPP .ADFUK.1 SETSPP .ADFUK.1 SETSPP .ADFUK.1 SETSPP .ADFUK.1 SETSPP .ADFUK.1 CPVN .AGTPLV.1 SETSPP .MOTLST.0 CALLX .OCRDISPMGTLST.0 BRK "70" DCL D0 .Y010200.D005BEE | /*0LANK 'GUNNINAMA /*0SAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECVR */: /*OISP ELEM LNGTH9/ /*ACCUM LNGTH9/ /*OISP ELEM LNGTH9/ /*OISP ELEM LNGTH9/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISPLAN DATA6/ /*OISP SUBR9/ /*OISP SUBR9/ /*ADD 9/ ; /*O-COPY SOURCE TO RECVR #/: | 61 61 62 8REAK 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 00066 0066 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 | INST OFFS 0045 0001 1NST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 0083 (8 1042 (7 0083 (8 1042 (7 0083 (8 1042 (7 0083 (8 1042 (9 0283 (9 0 | 100A2 2003 100A2 2003 100 5/38 A TED CODE 0 IF4 018C 0 IF1 2002 0 IF0 01F0 0 066 2002 0 060 01C0 0 060 2004 0 060 01F2 0 04F 0 1F5 018D 0 IF5 018D 0 IF5 018D | 0 1F 1 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBX.WIJ- C CPYNV .FIBVCR0.03 BRK =62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .TO00001.D005B8C CPYNV .TO00001.D005B8C CPYNV .TO00001 ADDOP .DISPTGDISPTRDISPD5 SETSPP .ADBUF.ADBUF CPYNV .ADTYP.00002 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTPANW.ADBUF CALLX .OCATDSPKTLST.0 BRK #70* DC.0D .010200.JN0(02.00)DEF(.TMPN01) CCDNS1 .Y010200.1 ENTRAMG.D05FFVID200 | /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*OLSP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*OLSP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*OLSP LCMECK*/ /*DISTON DATA*/ /*DISTON DAT | 61 61 62 82 84 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 70 70 70 70 70 70 |
| 00066 0066 0066 0066 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00712 0072 007 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 | I I <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""></thi<></thi<></thi<></thi<> | 1 BM S/38 A TED CODE 0 1F1 2 005 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 0 0F2 0 0F3 2002 0 0F4 0 0F5 0 0F3 2004 0 0F5 2001 0 1F5 0 01B0 0 1F5 2001 | 0 1F 1 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBX.W1," " CPYNV .FIBVERB.03 BRK #62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 CDYNV .T00003.D005BC CPYNV .T019PDS.00002 ADDN151 .ADLH.00002 ADDSPP .OLSPPTRDISPPTBDISPPOS SETSPP .ADBUG."0" CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTPR.V.1 SETSPP .KGTPARA.ADBUF CALLX .CORDISPKGTLST.* BRK "70" DCL DD .Y010200 .D005BEE ADDN151 .Y010200.1 EXTRAG.0005BEE.Y010200 BRK "71" | <pre>/************************************</pre> | 61 61 62 80 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 70 70 70 70 70 71 |
| 00066 0066 0066 0066 0066 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 INST OFFS 0064 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0066 0002 0070 0000 0070 0000 0070 0000 0070 0000 0000000000 | T GENERA G 1042 (T GENERA G 1042 (G 1 | 1 BH S/38 A TED CODE 0 IF1 2002 0 IF1 2002 0 0F6 2019 0 0F6 0 107 0 0F6 0 005 0 0F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2005 | совоц - 0 1F 1 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.W1," " CPYNV .FIBK.W1," " BRK #62" IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T000003,.D005B8C CPYNV .DISPF05.00002 ADDNSJ .ADLN.00002 ADDSP .015PF18015PF18DISPF05 SETSPP .ADLF.ADBUF.V CPYRL .ADFUK.O" CPYNV .DISPF18015PF18DISPF05 SETSPP .ADLF1.000 CPYNV .DISPF18015PF18DISPF05 SETSPP .ADLF1.000 CPYNV .ADLF1.000 CPYNV .Y010200.100 EXTRAG.D005BEE.Y010200 BRK #71" CPYNV .MGTFUK.1 CALLX .ADNTFUK.1 CPYNV .MGTFUK.1 CPYNV .MGTFUK.1 CPYNV .MGTFUK.1 CALLX .ADNTYN.KGTLST.* | /*05APE VERB TYPE/ /*05APE VERB TYPE/ /*0FEAD 0/ /*0FEAD 0/ /* | 61 61 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 71 71 71 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00720 | INST OFFS 1NST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0060 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0002 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 00000000 | T GENERA 0 1042 (C 1042 (C 1143 (C 1143 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1042 (C 1052 (C 1 | 00042 2003 | 0 1F 1 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LPTBREP .FIBK.WIT | /*0LANC VERB TYPE/ /*0SAVE VERB TYPE/ /*0READ */ /*0READ */ /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*0LSP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*0LSP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*0DISPLAW LNGTH*/ /*0TOP FO DISP4/ /*0TOP FO DISP4/ /*0TOP FO DISP4/ /*0LSP SUBR*/ /*0LSP SUBR*/ /*0LSP SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*0-EXTRACT MAGNITUDE */; /* STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */ | 61 61 62 62 62 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 |
| 5E0 00711 00711 00711 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00712 00721 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00733 00733 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 INST OFFS 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0067 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 0083 (7 0082 (0 1082 (7 0082 (0 1082 (7 0082 (0 1082 (7 0082 (7 0082 (7 0083 (7 0082 (7 0083 (7 0 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F1 2002 0068 2004 0068 2004 0068 2004 0068 2004 0068 2004 0068 2004 01F2 0018 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 0019 2001 | 0 1F 1 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LPUBMEP .FIBK.W1," " CPYNV .FIBK/W1," " BRK #62" IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .TOBOOD,.DOG5B8C (PYNV .TOBOOD2 ADDNI5) .ADLN.00002 ADDNI5) .ADLN.00002 ADDSPP .OISPPTRDISPPTSDISPPOS SETSPP .ADUGF.ADBUFVL (PYNL .ADFVHC."0" CPYNV .GTEVHC."1 SETSPP .AGTPANHADBUF CALLX .CALTPSVG1250. BRK "0" CPXNV .GTDISCFGLST." EXTRAG.0005BEEVG10200 BRK "1" CALLX .AAINRTNMGTLST." | /*SAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*SAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | INST 0FF5 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 | T GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1062 (0 0 1062 (0 0 0 0) (0 1062 (0 0 0) (0 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 016C 01F4 016C 01F1 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006B 2004 006C 2009 001F 2001 001F 01F0 01F2 004F 01F5 0018 01F5 0018 01F5 0018 01F5 004F 01F5 004F 01F5 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.WI," " CPYNV .FIGKVRD.03 BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T00000J.000588C CPYNV .T000002 ADDNF51 .ADLN.00002 ADDSPP .015PPTR015PPTTDISPPDS SETSPP .ADBUG40BUGVL CPYNL .ADTPHUK.1 SETSPP .MGTPARM.ADBUG CPYNV .ADTPHUK.1 SETSPP .MGTPARM.ADBUG CCHLX .0CG15PKGTLST.* HRK *70* DCL DD .Y010200 ZN(02.00) DEF(.TMPN01) CYNV .V010200.20058EE ADDNISJ 010200 BKK *71* CPYNV .MGTPUK.1 CCYNV .MGTFUKC.1 CALLX .MAINRTNMGTLST.* | /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLSP ELKH ALGTHA/ /*OLSP ELKH ALGTHA/ /*OLSP ELKH ALGTHA/ /*OLSP ICHE ALGTHA/ /*OLSP ICHE ALGTHA/ /*OLSP ICHE ALGTHA/ /*ALOW SUBRE/ /*ALOW SUBR/ /*ALOW | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 71 71 71 71 71 |
| SEQ 0066 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 | INST 0FF5 0063 0002 0064 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0068 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (0 0142 | 1 BM 5/38 ATED CODE 0 1F4 018C 0 0F4 018C 0 0F5 2002 0 0F5 2002 0 0F6 01F0 0 0F6 01F0 0 0F6 01F0 0 0F6 01F0 0 0F6 01F0 0 0F6 00F6 0 1F5 0018 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 04F0 04F 0 04C 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LUTBREP .FIBK.W1," " CPYNV .FIBK/W1," " BRK #62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T000003D005BBC CPYNV .DISPDS.00002 ADDNSD .ADLN.00003CPDTRDISPD5 AETSPP .ADDHG.TO CPYNV .DISPDS.ADBUFV. ADDNSD .ADBUFK.ADBUFV. CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTPLV.1 SETSPP .KOTEST.F ERK #70* DCL DD .V010200.L EXTRAGG .D005BEE ADDN(S) .J010200.L EXTRAGG .D005BEE CPYN .KOTFUNC.1 CALLX .MAINRTNNGTLST.* CCLDD .RCLW CAMA(1) INIT!*C*) DCL DD .RCLW CAMA(1) INIT!*C*) | /*GAUE VERB TYPE/ /*GAUE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COBY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OISP ELEA LNGTH*/ *OISP ELEA LNGTH*/ *OISP ELEA LNGTH*/ *OISP TRA*/ *OISP TRA*/ *OISP TRA*/ *OISP SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ADD */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ADD */ /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */: /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */: /*STOP RUN FUNCTION*/ /*CODE FOR CELO909 EXCEPTI DN - STOP RUN*/ | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0066 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00714 00724 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 1042 (6 1042 (9 0082 (9 0082 (9 0083 (0 1042 (9 0083 (0 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (0 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (0 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (0 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (0 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (1 1042 (1 1042 (9 0083 (1 1042 (1 1 | 18M 5/38 ATED CODE 01F4 016C 000 01F4 016C 000 006C 2002 006C 2002 006C 2002 006C 2002 001D 2001 006C 2000 01F2 004F 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 00000 | .PAR0007 | LUTDREP .FIGK.WI," " CPYNV .FIGKVWI," " IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T000003D005B8C CPYNV .T000003D005B8C CPYNV .DISPF05.00002 ADDNSJ .ADLN.00002 ADDSP .015PF18DISPF05. SETSPP .ADLFV015PF18DISPF05 SETSPP .ADLFV01 CPYNL .ADFUK."O" CPYNU .ADFUK."O" CPYNU .ADFUK."O" CALL JOCRUJSPHGTLST." MARKING .D005EEV010200 BRK 471" CPYNV .MGTFUK.1 CALLS .MAINRTNMGTLST." CCL D0. ACLM CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL D0.RCLM CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL D0.RCLM CHAR(LWA) | /*0LANC YEAR TYPE/ /*0SAVE YEAR TYPE/ /*0SAVE YEAR TYPE/ /*0SAVE YEAR TYPE/ /*0SAVE YEAR TYPE/ /*0SAVE YEAR TYPE/ /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*0COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*0STOP RUN FUNCTION*/ /*0STOP RUN FUNCTION*/ /*CODE FOR CEL9999 EXCEPTI DN - STOP RUN*/ ; | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 5E0 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 00 | INST OFFS 0045 0001 INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 0074 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 203 (0 1042 (0 203 (| IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F2 0020 0068 2024 0068 2024 0068 2024 0068 2024 01F2 0094 01F2 0094 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F2 0094 0044 004F 0019 2001 | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LCVDMCP .FIGK.M1, | /*SAVE VERB TYPE/ /*SAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ | 61 61 62 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 1007 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1082 (0 203 (0 20 (0 203 (0 20) | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F1 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2004 01F2 004F 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 004F 01F5 004F 01F2 004F 004F 2004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.W1," " CPYNV .FIGKVR.0.03 BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T00003,.D05586C (PYN .T059PDS.00002 ADDN151 .ADLN.00002 ADDSPP .0159PTRDISPPTRDISPPDS SETSPP .ADBUG40BUG (CPNN .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 COMMINICAL | /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ACOPY INTO BUFFER*/ /*ACOPY INTO BUFFER*/ /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */: /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */: /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */: /*CODE FOR CEL9999 EXCEPTI DN - STOP RUN Y /*DECLAIN RESOURCE*/ /*RECLAIN RESOURCE*/ | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | INST 0FF5 0063 0002 0064 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 0074 0002 0075 0002 | T GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 20 (0 1062 (0 20 (0) | 1 BM S/38 ATED CODE 0 1F4 018C 0 0F1 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F3 2002 0 0F3 2002 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F5 0 018 0 01F2 0018 0 01F2 0018 0 01F2 0018 0 01F2 0018 0 01F2 0018 0 01F2 0018 0 005 0 005 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 0000 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.W1," " CPYNV .FIGKVW1,"" BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 C(PYNV .T000003000588C CPYNU .T000003000588C CPYNU .T05PPCS.00002 ADDORP .015PPTRD15PPTSD15PPO5 SETSPP .ADBUF.ADBUFVL CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .GTPLVL.1 SETSPP .MCTPARAADBUF CALLX .COLSPGLIST.* BRK *70* DCL DD .Y010200.10058EE ADDN(5) CCPNUGTFUKC.1 CALLX CALLX CCFV CPYNV GTFUC.1 CCLLX CCFV CCD CCLWC.1 CCLLX CCLWC.1 CCLLX CCLWC.1 CCLLX CCLWC.1 CCLLX CCLWC.1 CCLUC.1 CC | /*GAUE VERB TYPE/ /*GAUE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COBY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLSP ELEM LNGTHO/ /*ACCUM LNGTHO/ /*ACCUM LNGTHO/ /*ACCUM LNGTHO/ /*OLSP ELEM LNGTHO/ /*OLSP LCHECK*/ /*ADD */ /*ADD / /*AD */ | 61 61 62 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 1007 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 0075 0002 | T GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 003 (0 1062 (0 003 (0 1062 (0 003 (0 0003 (0 000) (0 000) (0 000) (0 000) (0 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 016C 01F4 016C 01F1 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2004 006E 2004 006E 2004 006E 2004 001F 2001 001F 2001 001F 2001 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 004F 001F 2001 004C 004F 004C 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 01F 8 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.W1, | /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOP SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ADD */ /*OLOP SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOP SOURCE */: | 61 61 62 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| SEQ 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 | INST OFFS 0045 0001 0063 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 | T GENERA GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1082 (0 0083 (0 1082 (0 0083 (0 0082 (0 0082 (0 0083 (0 0082 (0 0082 (0 0082 (0 0083 (0 0082 (| 1 BM 5/38 A TED CODE 0 1F4 018C 0 0F1 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F3 2002 0 0F4 0 0F3 0 0F4 0 0F4 0 0F2 0 0F4 0 0F5 2001 0 0F5 2000 0 0F5 2000 0 0F5 2000000000000000000000000000000000 | 01F1 0000 0000 0000 01F8 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.WI," " CPYNV .FIGK/WI," " BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T000003D0058BC CPYNV .DISPDS.00002 ADDISJ .ADLN.00003 CPYNV .DISPDS.0002 ACTOPY .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTPA CCYNV .GTFUK.1 EXTRAMG .D0058EE ADDNISJ .00058EE .V010200.1 EXTRAMG .D0058EE .V010200 CALLX .MAINRTNNGTLST.* CCHLX .MAINRTNNGTLST.* CCHLX .MAINRTNKGTLST.* CCL DD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL DD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL DD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL DT .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT(| /*GLORE VERB TYPE/ /*GLORY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*GLORY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*GLORY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*GLORY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*GLORY DATA*/ *OUDOT TRA*/ *OUDOT TRA*/ *OUDOT RA*/ *OUDOT RA*/ */*OUDOT RA*/ */**OUDOT RA*/ */**OUDOT RA*/ */**OUDOT RA*/ */**OUDOT RA*/ */***OUDOT RA*/ */***OUDOT RA*/ */********************************* | 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| SEQ 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00712 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 | INST OFFS 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 0074 0002 | T GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (1 143 (2 1043 (1 062 | 000A2 2003 18M S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 00F1 2002 00F2 2002 00F2 2002 00F2 2002 00F2 2004 001F2 2004 01F2 004F 01F5 018D 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2004 00F2 2005 0000 | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 1F 8 | .PAR0007 | LUTBREP .FIBK.W1," " CPYNY .FIBK.W1," " BRK #62" IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 CPYNY .T000003D005BBC CPYNY .DISPPOS.00002 ADDS9 .015PPTS015PTRDISPPOS SETSPP .ADDH.F.ADBUF.V. CPYNY .GTPADF015PTRDISPPOS SETSPP .ADDH.F.ADBUF.V. CPYNY .GTPADF.A. DCL D0 .V010200D005BEE CALLX .OGADISPBGTLST.0 BRK #71" CPYNY .GTFUK.1 EXTRAG. D005BEEV010200 BRK #71" CPYNY .GTFUK.1 CALLX .AMINRTNBGTLST.0 CCL.CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL DD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) INIT("C") DCL CD .RCLW CHAR(1) .RCLW0L.0 RTX 0 // | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ 678 /*-COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*DISE LEMA NGTH*/ /*OLOPY TR*/ /*OLOPY TR*/ /*OLOPY TR*/ /*OLOPY TR*/ /*OLOPY FR*/ /*OLOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*STOP RUN IS ACTIVE */ /*STOP RUN SOURCE TO RECYR *: /*OEACTIVATE THIS PGM*/ /*RECLAIM RESOURCE*/ ; /*SAVE OLD UFCB FLAGS*/ ; | 61 61 62 62 62 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 |
| 5E0 00711 00711 00711 00712 00712 00712 00712 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00731 00741 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 0066 0002 0066 0002 0071 0002 0074 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (7 0083 (1082 (9 0083 (9 0083 (1042 (6 1143 (0 0083 (9 0083 (1042 (6 1143 (0 0083 (1042 (6 0283 (0 0082 (9 0283 (0 0283 (0 0283 (0 0082 (0 0283 (0 0082 (0 0283 (0) | 18M S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F2 002C 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2004 016F 2001 01F5 018D 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 004C 004F 0019 2001 004C 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 01F 8 | .PAR0007 5714CB1 • | LCYDREP .FIGK.W1, " " CPYNV .FIGKVW1, " BRK =62" IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T00000, .D005B8C (PYNV .T00000, .D005B8C (PYNV .T00000, .D005B8C (PYNV .T015PTRDISPPT8DISPPOS SETSPP .ADUFADUF CPYN .ADTYP.00002 CPYN .ADTYP.00009 CPYN .ADTYP.00009 CPYN .ADTYP.00009 CPYN .ADTYP.00009 CPYN .ADTYP.00009 CPYN .ADTPH1 SETSPP .ADTPH1 SETSPP .ADTPH1 SETSPP .ADTPH1 SETSP .ADTPH1 CALL X .ANINATNMGTLST.* CALLX .MAINATNMGTLST.* CYNV .MGTFUNC.1 CALLX .MAINATNMGTLST.* CCPYNV .MGTFUNC.1 CALLX .MAINATNMGTLST.* CALLX .MAINATNMGTLST.* CL DJ .GL CHAMCL.FACLW3 DECL DJ .GL CHAMCL.4 /2 COMMON INCLUDES DCL DJ .UFLGSAV CHAR(2) | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ | 61 61 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 5EQ 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0072 0072 | INST 0FF5 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0074 0002 0076 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 203 (0 1042 (0 203 (0 20 (0 203 (0 20) | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2002 006E 2004 006E 2004 01F2 001F 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F2 004F 0019 2001 004C 004F 0019 2001 004C 004F | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 01F B | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.W1, | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ | 61 61 62 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| 550 0066 0066 0066 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 1057 0065 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 0075 0002 0076 0002 | Image: 10 42 (1) T GENERA 0 1042 (1) 6 1042 (1) 0 2043 (1) 0 3042 (1) 0 2043 (1) 0 2043 (1) 0 2043 (1) 0 2043 (1) 0 2043 (1) | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F2 0202 0068 2022 0068 2024 0068 2024 0068 2024 0068 2024 0068 2024 01F2 004F 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 004F 01F5 004F 0019 2001 004C 004F 0019 2001 004C 004F 0000 402D 2056 0000 | 01F1 0000 0000 01F8 | .PAR0007 | LUTDREP .FIGK.W1, CPYNV .FIGKVW1, IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T00003, .D00588C CPYNV .T00003, .D00588C CPYNV .T05PPG.00002 AD00151 .ADLN.0002 AD05PP .015PPTRDISPPTADISPPDS SETSPP .AD0UGAD0UF CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTYP.00009 CPYNU .ADTPANAAD0UF CALLX .0C015PWGTLST.* HRK #70* DCL DD .V010200 .D0058EE ADDNISJV10200 EXTRAGC .D0058EE T01200 BKR #71* CPYNV .NGTFUNC.1 CALLX .MAINRTNMGTLST.* CPYNV .NGTFUNC.1 CALLX .MAINRTNMGTLST.* CDV. JORCLM CHAR(1) INIT(.C*) DCL DD .RCLM CHAR(1) INIT(.C*) DCL SPCTR .RCLW3 INIT(.RCLM) DCL OL .RCLMGLACLW3] DEACTPG 9 CALLX .WCBSEPT(86)RCLMOL.* RTX * /\$ COMMON INCLUDES DCL DD .UFLGSAV CHAR(2) | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ACOPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*ACOPY LENE LINETH*/ /*ACOPY LINETH*/ /*ALOVE LINETH*/ /*ALOVE LINETH*/ /*ALOVE LINET*/ /*ALOVE LINET*/ /* | 61 61 61 62 62 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |
| SEQ 00066 00661 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00721 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00734 00741 00741 | INST OFFS 0045 0001 0064 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0074 0002 0075 0002 0076 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (1 143 (1 143 (2 1042 (1 143 (1 143 (2 1042 (1 143 (1 14 | 1 BM S/38 A TED CODE 0 1F4 018C 0 0F1 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F2 2002 0 0F3 2002 0 0F4 2002 0 0F3 2001 0 0F4 2004 0 0F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 1F5 2001 0 0F5 2000 0 0F5 20000 0 0F5 20000 0 0F5 2000000000000000000000000000000000 | 00000 00000 00000 01F8 | .PAR0007 | LUTDREP .FIGK.W1, *** CPYNV .FIGKVR.0.03 : BRK *62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT 1 2 3 4 5 CPYNV .T00003.000586C CPUNV .DISPPTS.00002 ADDSPP 0.159PTRDISPPTDISPPOS SETSPP .ADBUK.*0 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTYP.00009 CPYNV .ADTPLV.1 SETSPP .ADTPA00UF CALLX .CORDISPKGTLST.* ERK *70* DCL DD .V010200.10058EE ADDNIS] .V010200.1 EXTRAGG .D0058EEV010200 BRK *71* CPYNV .MGTFUNC.1 CALLX .HAINATNHGTLST.* CCLLX .HAINATNHGTLST.* CCL DD .RCLW CHAG(1) INITIC") DCL DC.LW CAGEUNC.1 CALLX .WGSEPT(86)RCL40L.* RTX * /2COMMON INCLUDES DCL DD .UFLGSAV CHAR(2) BRK *.GPEN * ENTRY .OPEN INT POYNLA .FIDCES.Y*007/FEGL.NDEMON11 | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECVR */: /*OLSP ELEM LIGHT*/ /*OLSP ELEM LIGHT*/ /*OLSP TRA/ /*OLSP TRA/ /*OLSP ELEM LIGHT*/ /*OLSP LIGHT*/ /*OLSP CHECK*/ /*ADD */ /*ADD */ /*ADA */ /*AD | Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi G |
| 00046 0066 0066 0066 00711 00711 00711 00712 0072 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00733 00733 00733 00733 00734 00741 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00751 00752 00753 00754 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 00756 0075 | 1NST OFFS 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 0074 0002 0075 0002 | T GENERA 0 1042 (0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1042 (0 1062 (0 0062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 0062 (0 0060 | 18M S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 0062 2002 0062 2002 0062 2002 0066 2002 0060 2001 0060 2001 0060 2001 0060 2001 001F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 004C 004F 004C 004F 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 | 01F1 0000 0000 01F8 2080 | .PAR0007 5714CB1 0 .L0000165 .L000015 .RETURN: .RTX: | LUTDREP .FIGK.MI," - C CPYNV .FIGKVP.CO.3 BRK =62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T00000].D005B8C (PYNV .T00000].D005B8C (CPNN .J05PPGS.00002 ADDNF) .ADLN.0002 ADDSP .OISPPTRDISPPTRDISPPOS SETSPP .ADUWC."0" CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTYN.00007 CPYNU .ACTON | /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*CAPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLAY ELEM LNGTHØ/ /*OLAY ELEM LNGTHØ/ /*STOP RUN FUNCTIONØ/ /*STOP FUNCTIONØ/ /*STOP RUN FUNCTI | ан ан ан ан ан ан ан ан ан ан |
| 5E0 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 00 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 INST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0075 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0076 0002 0077 0003 0076 0002 0076 0003 0076 0000 | T GENERA 0 1042 (1 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1082 (0 1042 (0 1042 (0 1082 (0 10 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 01F2 0202 0068 2024 0068 2024 01F2 0017 01F2 0017 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F5 01BD 01F2 004F 004F 004F 004F 004F 004F 004F 004F | 0 1F1 0 0000 0 0000 0 1F5 2 080 | .PAR0007 | LCYDREP .FIGK.WIT | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */; /*OLSP ELEM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*ACCUM LNGTH*/ /*ADD DF TR*/ /*OLSP LCMECK*/ /*ALTYPE OF DISP*/ /*ALTYPE OF DISP*/ /*ALTYPE OF DISP*/ /*ALTYPE CHECK*/ /*ALTYPE | А В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В |
| SEQ 00741 00741 00741 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00712 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00734 00744 00741 00741 00741 00741 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 INST OFFS 0063 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 00000 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 00 | T GENERA 0 1042 (0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 1042 (0 0 0 1042 (0 0 0 1042 (0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 01BC 01F4 01BC 0064 2004 0066 2002 0066 2002 0066 2002 0066 2002 0067 01F1 2002 0068 2004 001F 2001 001F br>0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 | 0000 0000 0000 01F8 2080 | | LUTDREP .FIGK.MI," " CPYNV .FIGKVM.J." IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I | /*GAVE OLD UFCB TUPE/ /*GAVE OLD UFCB FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAG VALUE /*GAVE OLD FLAG VALUE /*GET FARCE STATUS/ /*GET FARCE STATUS/ | Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi Gi G |
| 5EQ 00741 00741 00741 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00711 00721 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00731 00741 00741 00741 00741 | INST OFFS 0045 0001 0063 0002 0064 0002 0064 0002 0064 0002 0064 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0071 0002 0075 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 00000 000000000000000 | Image: Term of the second se | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F1 2002 0068 2002 01F0 100 01F1 2002 0068 2002 01F0 01F0 001F1 2002 0068 2002 0068 2002 01F2 001F1 0010 2015 00000 <td< td=""><td>0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 1F 8 2 0 80 2 0 4 0</td><td>. DPEN001</td><td>LUTDREP .FIGK.WIT</td><td><pre>/*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOP SELME LNGTH*/ /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*ADD */ /*A</pre></td><td>GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI G</td></td<> | 0 1F 1 0 0000 0 0000 0 1F 8 2 0 80 2 0 4 0 | . DPEN001 | LUTDREP .FIGK.WIT | <pre>/*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ /*COPY SOURCE TO RECYR */: /*OLOP SELME LNGTH*/ /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*OLOP TRAY /*ADD */ /*A</pre> | GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI GI G |
| 550 00741 00741 00741 00711 00711 00711 00712 00712 00722 00722 00722 00722 00722 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00723 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00724 00725 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00733 00734 00745 00755 00 | INST OFFS 0064 5 0001 1NST OFFS 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0073 0002 0074 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0077 0003 0076 0002 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 | T GENERA T GENERA 0 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (6 1042 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 1062 (0 203 (0 200 (0 20 (0 200 (0 10) | 00A2 2003 00A2 2003 18M 5/38 ATED CODE 01F4 0162 0062 2002 0064 2002 0065 2004 01F2 004F 01F2 004F 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 01F2 2004 0042 2004 0042 2004 0046 2004 0047 2004 0046 2004 0047 2004 0040 2001 0047 2004 0040 2004 0047 2004 00400 2004 00000 2004 00000 2004 00000 2004 00000 2004 00000 0054 00000 0097 0 | COBOL 4 0 1F1 00000 00000 01F8 2080 2080 | . DARDOOD 5714CB1 0 .L0000165 .L000015 .RETURN: .RTX: | LCYDREP .FIGK.MIL" - CPYNV .FIGVER0.03 BRK =62* IRP LISTING FOR TESTPRT I 2 3 4 5 (PYNV .T000003.000586C CPYNV .T000003.000586C CPYNV .T000001.000586C CPYNV .ADSPPCS.00002 ADDNF1 .ADLN.00002 ADDSPFDISPPTRDISPPTS CPYNL .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTYP.00003 CPYNV .ADTPH.L.1 SETSPP .ADTPH.L.1 SETSPP .ADTPH.L.1 SETSPP .ADTPH.L.1 SETSPP .ADTPH.L.1 SETSP .ADTPH.L.1 SETSP .ADTPH.L.1 CPYNL .ADSOBEC .DO. Y010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0151 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .D0150 .V010200 .D0058EE .V010200 .D005 | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE SUBCE TO RECYR */: /*GAVE SUBCE TO RECYR */: /*GAVE SUBCE TO RECYR */: /*GAVE DET STATUS*/ /*GAVE OLD UFCB FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD UFCB FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GAVE OLD FLAGS*/ /*GA | С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С |
| SEQ 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 0071 007 | 004 5 0001 INST 0FF5 0063 0002 0064 0002 0065 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0066 0002 0067 0002 0071 0002 0075 0002 0076 0002 0077 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0076 0002 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0077 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 0003 0076 </td <td>T GENERA 0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1011 (0 1041</td> <td>IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F1 2002 0068 2004 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F2 004F 0040 004F 0040 004F 0040 004F 00000 00000 0098 00000 0098 00098 00984 0000 0097 0090 0045 0090 0047 0090 0048 0090 0048 0090 0049 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0042</td> <td>COBOL 4 0 1F1 0 0000 0 0000 0 01F8 2 080 2 040</td> <td>. DPEN001</td> <td>LCYDREP .FIBKUP:</td> <td>/*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ </td> <td>Ане ак 61 61 61 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69</td> | T GENERA 0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1042 (0 1041 (0 1011 (0 1041 | IBM S/38 ATED CODE 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F4 018C 01F1 2002 0068 2004 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F5 018D 01F2 004F 0040 004F 0040 004F 0040 004F 00000 00000 0098 00000 0098 00098 00984 0000 0097 0090 0045 0090 0047 0090 0048 0090 0048 0090 0049 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0090 0041 0042 | COBOL 4 0 1F1 0 0000 0 0000 0 01F8 2 080 2 040 | . DPEN001 | LCYDREP .FIBKUP: | /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*GAVE VERB TYPE*/ /*READ */ | Ане ак 61 61 61 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 63 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 |

(

Figure A-5 (Part 9 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

| OTTO NUMERICAL STATUS NUMERICAL STATUS 00000000 0000000 00000000 00000000 0000000 <t< th=""></t<> |
|---|
| OFFSET NI TEMPLATE DISPLAT 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 00000000 |
| 00000660 00000000 |
| 00000060 00000FC 0000070 0000700 0000724 0000100 00000000 00000000 0000000 0000000 |
| 00000000 00000000 00000000 0000000 0000000 00000000 0000000 0000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 |
| 0000000 00000000 00000000 0000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 000000000 000000000 0000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 00000000 0000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 0000000 0000000 0000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000000000 000000000 00000000000000 |
| 00000000 000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 00000100 000005C4 2330049 0007200 00073002 00173002 0283004C 00441002 00000120 10082060 0018103 00720002 0000130 10082060 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 0051082 40072001 01420147 20011420 01420001 40071401 01420147 20011420 01420001 40171140 01620140 10420147 2001140 01420001 40171140 4007200 11471000 41171140 4007200 10420147 40071001 41191140 40071140 40071140 40072001 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 40071140 |
| 00000140 1082006D 0018013 007200C 20011022 0013055 0351055 0351055 0351055 0351055 0351055 0351051 00500351 00000140 00830351 0083008C 0001101 01782132 00750041 01820163 01820163 01820163 018220163 01800042 0011011 01820163 018020163 018020163 01800162 0001101 01781013 01820163 01801062 0011011 01801062 0011013 01841182 016200160 00230161 0180082 01601103 01841182 01620000 01230161 0180082 01601103 01841182 01623000 0119103 01841182 01623000 0119103 01841182 01623000 0119103 0180100 0119103 0180010 0119103 01800022 00230100 0119103 0180100 0119103 0181040 01802002 0023000 01000022 0120010 0119103 0180000 0180000 0180000 0180000 0180000 0180000 01800000 010000022 0120010 |
| 00000140 00000141 00000140 00000140 00000140 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000141 00000140 00000141 00000140 00000141 00000140 00000141 00000140 01000140 01000140 01000140 01000140 010000140 00000022 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 000000220 <t< td=""></t<> |
| 00000160 0007200 0000101 0107212 0007200 00071001 0107212 0007200 00071001 0107213 0007200 0022134 0107200 0022334 00000160 00223145 10022016 00781003 01781003 01781003 01082143 0107200 002200 01230145 01078103 01081042 01078103 01081042 01078103 01081042 01078103 01081042 01078103 01081042 01078103 01081042 0000002 0123014 01080042 0000003 01170000 01191033 00000220 0123014 01021042 00000022 0123014 01010022 0023014 01010022 0023014 0101003 01078103 01070003 01170000 01191033 00000220 0123014 0102104 0102304 01082104 0102304 0102304 010000223 0123014 0102304 01000223 0123044 01022304 0102014 0102304 0102023 0101003 0102014 0101033 01020143 01020143 <td< td=""></td<> |
| CONDUME CONTINUE |
| 0000011C0 00011143 01450061 01450075 01450082 10763160 0014451042 31763204 0000012C 0020075 01450082 01781053 01741105 014451042 31763204 10420075 00000220 0124011 01641512 01620082 01240114 0171105 01451082 01220114 0290327 00000023 01270015 0110105 01241010 0110163 0124011 010110 0163101 01022082 0023014 01010022 0123014 01022003 01170100 01191083 000002260 0163011 0163101 01623047 0101107 01221082 0023014 01022007 00441197 000002260 0047200 1062107 01650114 02730207 0000022 00000223 00200022 0040023 0178104 2733020 00000223 0020007 0040230 01781043 01822146 01420167 0161042 0023042 00400230 01781043 0162042 00230104 00400223 01420167 0161042 00400223 01820467 |
| 000001E0 1000002 01000020 01000100 01000100 01000100 01000100 010000100 010000100 010000100 010000100 0100000000 0100000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 00000200 01700183 20400022 0020014C 1080012 01200114 0290277 0000022 00000220 0166012 00700052 00700052 00700053 01700003 01700003 01700003 01700003 01700003 01700000 01910103 00000240 01670143 20401011 01630164 01012002 0023014C 012301C0 01610123 02330020 00000223 00223082 0002200 00020023 01072000 00000223 00000224 01072100 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000223 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000022 00000024 00020160 0162017 01161041 00000024 00000022 00000024 00020160 01672016 0161002 0040104 |
| 00000220 3CC2C000 000005C 010C1002 0000026 01170002 0127002 0273020 0023014C 0132007 00441197 00000220 00730170 0165023 01760100 02230020 0000022 00420042 2007002 2032007 00441197 00000220 01170000 01191003 0187143 20401C2 2001002 20710168 10110167 1013016 00000220 0162001 10520180 01650161 10652040 10620162 00230178 1032007 00441197 00000320 01662000 10630173 01622011 001632 0016200 00440162 004490160 0016022 00220102 00230162 00440006 0041002 00449000 00000241 |
| 00000240 018F0143 2040101 01631648 2010108 0110163 2130160 0164102 00000260 01660161 10110109 21320160 0163011 0102208 0082007 0041197 00000280 00642030 0293029 0000022 30420042 2001108 01872404 0082023 01781042 00000280 00972000 01190081 01852933 0176000 202308E 00800223 30420042 20040023 2040023 20400032 20400032 20400032 20400032 20400032 2040003168 1062161 10111167 10182143 20692040 10420171 201010151 10161167 10110143 20692040 10420174 20010032 00240178 0132007 00441197 00000320 01851163 01621014 30620178 0132007 00441197 00000330 00642200 02900223 10420171 20010183 20692040 1042174 2010113 306520178 01320017 0041197 006171 006171 006171 00 |
| 00000260 01C601E1 10110109 213201C8 01E30110 01D22082 0023014C 01320007 0041197 00000220 00042000 10923020 0000022 01230082 01082040 20032008 0008022.0 10420042 20332082 0000022 00230178 10420042 20332082 0000022.0 10420042 20332082 0000022.0 10420042 20332082 0000022.0 10420042 20332082 0000022.0 10420042 20400430 10420142 20400430 10420142 10420142 10420142 10420142 10430183 21640043 10420141 10430168 2019420 10430107 01330007 00441197 00000300 00642000 10430147 01620041 00420147 20101082 01620140 00420042 00420147 010420145 0167010 0031160 01670161 00600040 10420141 201143 00642000 00400164 00420043 0140004 0230170 01430007 0040004 01420145 01450016 01470145 0140000 00000401 |
| 00000280 0062029 00000223 00200223 00820022 00820023 00820023 01781042 00000280 00097200 00972000 1082097 01676000 0022308E 0082023 01781042 2033082 00000280 0007200 01170000 01191083 01876143 20401CC2 20000022 00420022 00420022 00420022 00420022 00420022 0023007 00441167 00000320 01851143 01820147 0105218 0105118 01052180 0107200 00441167 00000330 00662200 02303209 0000022 0420161 20010143 0062110 003150 01670161 01171002 00000330 006622016 0201012 0102011143 00622100 00316172 0447000 00000340 00620176 01671042 01751042 01751042 0171060 0171002 00300061 0110022 0170044 00000400 0040040 00972040 00972040 00972040 <th070044< th=""> 0170044 0170044</th070044<> |
| 00000220 00797200 10820107 01E5023 01F0000 00223020 00822140 10420A2 2033028 000002C0 00730178 108201C 0170010 01170100 01171000 01171000 011710100 011710100 011711000 0117101000 0117101000 0000022 00201000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 00230000 0030100 0044100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 00441100 004411000 004411000 00441 |
| 000002C0 0023017B 1002011C 01E700B2 014701D 00000022 304200A2 20400093 000002E0 011700D0 011910B3 01E704B2 001C2C 20000094 207101B3 2052040 104201E3 00000320 01BC143 01E7040 302301E2 105201E0 01501EE 103101B3 2052040 104201F2 01101E3 015201E0 015201E2 104201F1 011143 00521F0 0151050 015201E2 014201F1 2011143 00521F0 0151050 0150150 01500100 00000320 01220150 01220110 012511042 01250110 01521140 0150150 01250110 01521100 01511042 01320050 000120023 002000210 0231042 00400123 01220010 10310000 02410120 0241040 |
| 000002E0 011700D 011910B3 01876143 20401CC2 C0000042 0101101EF 101101EF 101101EF 101101EF 10421EA 00000330 3030130 115201B3 CSC3000 018620F0 10501EE 103301EA 205220F0 104201EA 00000330 01861143 01E52001 105201EC 01230170 0133007 0041177 00000340 006E2000 10330173 01C22401 2042004 2001108E 01872100 00521010 01501161 0167101 01501161 0167101 0167110 0167010 00501160 0167101 0167117 01670116 0167117 0167011 0167117 0167011 0167117 </td |
| 00000300 30830183 0152040 3CC3C000 018A20F0 01501EE 1083018A 2052040 104201F2 00000320 018C143 01572018C 0152018C 0152018C 01552082 00330174 01320170 00441197 00000340 00662200 02301202 20421042 20011082 10157204 008201F0 0157016 01210143 00562100 008301F3 016701F1 016701F2 01620061 20010220 104300162 00420167 20101082 00720040 203104C 024301C 200470000 00000340 104201F1 0101251 01520180 01521080 017200210 273104C 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 02410000 0072040 231304C 00470041 1244001 007072040 11710022 1033007 20570112 00700044 00000040 12244000 00762040 0231082 01700071 02810200 01621001 12242000 10820040 005210 |
| 00000320 018C1143 01622001 1052018C 018C3011 01622022 00230178 0132007 00441197 00000340 006422000 2833209 00000223 00000223 00420042 2001106E 01672040 00820176 0132007 00441167 00000340 00642200 10830173 01622041 10420171 2011143 00622010 00830160 014700170 014700170 014700170 014700170 004700100 0044700170 004700170 004700170 004700100 0044700170 004700100 00470000 02410010 00470000 02410000 02410000 02410000 004710000 014710000 004710000 014710000 014710000 02410000 014710000 04710000 00471000 01471000 00471000 00471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 01471000 0147100 0147000 |
| 00000340 00062200 0200022 0000022 0001022 0001012 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620160 01620161 01620161 01620161 01620161 01620161 01620160 00201162 01620160 00201162 01620160 00201162 01620160 00201162 01620160 00201162 01620160 00201162 01620160 0020125 0016020 00201062 00201062 00201062 00201062 00200125 01601161 01620160 0020125 0016020 0016201 023304C 0046000 00470000 0077040 00900245 0162000 02430020 0110022 0190070 0077004 00900641 0110022 0190072 00900641 0110022 00900641 0110022 0290000 02410020 0077004 00900460 00221062 00900460 00221062 00900460 00221062 00000105 0163224 02000000 024102200C 0122000 00221062 |
| 00000360 00662000 10830F3 01C02401 10420F1 2010143 00662010 0003016 01F00F1 00000380 10420F3 01F1202 11430064 20020083 0166010 01F00F2 00640100 00470050 01F00F0 01F1002 00640100 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00470050 00471050 |
| 00000380 104201F4 018C1042 01F12002 11430062 20020083 01F010F2 01F1002 006A01C2 000003A0 106201F4 018C1042 0062007 1062001F2 01F2001 20020083 01F2001 2003006 0293004C 004F0000 000003E0 106201F3 01F30102 0175001 105201B0 01F51042 0012201 0293004C 004F0000 000004E0 306200F3 00701062 00000254 1272001 10720162 10790072 30721071 20090061 10110022 30930072 2057132 00070044 00000440 12244000 00972646 0000254 1272000 01282007 02810202 20100001 1220000 0072004 00000440 12244000 00972046 0000254 1220007 1222000 0052061 2201022 2010202 2010122 2020100 02240122 00001163 2264122 00000112 0072004 0090054 1220007 1220007 1220007 1220007 122000700 02521122 0070 |
| 000003A0 10020066 20c41022 00622009 10022010 20011032 0024005A 02290172 00440000 000003A0 1002105 0107203 01672001 10520180 01751042 0012002 0024005A 02290172 00446000 00446000 000003C0 3042019 20011023 0045204F 0000223 00007230 01751042 0017030 01761002 0000006 1011022 0000040 3042049 0001053 0045004F 0000223 00007230 0171000 0241000 0241000 0241000 0241000 0041002 0000054 02000064 00221642 0000054 0000234 0403200C 0124000 027204 0000054 02010025 0230207 12243202 0010001 127200 0060046 0077201 0230027 12243202 0000064 0206122 002000 0230102 0040005 1017007 2050202 0040008 022007 0043020 0040005 0040053 0026101 0027201 03000700 0261122 01102022 |
| 000003E0 104201F3 01F31042 01F31042 001F31042 00F702061 00F7020611 0 |
| 00000400 3042014 20010283 00400424 0000223 00000283 0122030 0170103 0122030 0170103 |
| CONCOMPAC CONCOMPAC <thconcompac< th=""> <thconcompac< th=""> <thc< td=""></thc<></thconcompac<></thconcompac<> |
| 00000440 1C2A4000 0006200 02011002 01750050 1231202 02010001 1C22402 00000450 0021002 0221002 02010001 1C22402 0000105 00000460 0201022 02500120 02010001 1C2A0000 000281 4222000 102800100 1C2A000 0008010 6201102 40001105 0000040 02000200 02000200 02000200 02000200 02081022 02000200 02081023 02000200 02081021 02000200 02081021 02081024 020000000 1002000000 10020000000 10020000000000 10020000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 00000450 0022102 0000100 10000281 4002000 11280000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 1228000 12380000 12380000 12380000 12380000 12380000 12380000 123800000 123800000 12380000 |
| 00000440 02041CC2 40000105 20C40206 10110205 3CC24000 0052062 0052062 40000105 0000040 20000206 0302009 00531CA 20000068 20201C2 40000105 000004C0 20000268 20300207 1C2A2000 00682010 100220132 00980004 10110205 3CCA2000 000004C0 20000268 20300277 1C2A2000 00672010 0020122 00980004 10110205 3CCA2000 00000500 0204132 00980004 1C2A2000 00972010 00902020 1010022 2122007 00000500 0204132 00980004 1C2A2000 00972010 00972010 1032007 2076101 00000500 0204132 00980004 1032014 0091092 00990090 01541C2A 40000068 00000540 00222132 0007044 1320114 0091082 0080098 10320009 0132008 01270007 2050182 01820090 01320080 00320151 00900111 0022123 00900103 |
| 000004-0 20000206 3082000 00631C2A 2000006 203C0207 122 0060000 00682018 02001C2A 000004-C0 20000068 2030027 1262000 00682010 2070132 0060000 10110208 1282009C 00000500 0204108 02090054 12622000 0072080 02001197 0090098 1082009C 00000550 02041082 0090054 1262200 0090108 0090098 1082009C 10110022 21320007 0000550 02041082 0090054 1232014 0001032 0090098 1082009C 00541C2A 40000058 00000550 2008020 1224020 01102005 2005103 0090098 1082009C 00541C2A 40000058 00000550 0202132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 1082009C 0132008 00051 00000550 0222132 000700A 0132014 0091082 0090098 1082009C 0132008 00051 00000550 0222132 000700A 0132014 0091082 0090098 1082009C 0132008 00051 00000550 0222132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 1082009C 0132008 00051 00000550 0222132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 0120005 10110022 308209C 00000550 0222132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 0120005 1011002 2080005 00000550 0222132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 0120005 1011002 2080090 00000550 0222132 000700A 01320114 0091082 0090098 01240127 0000151 00000550 0222132 000007 20010217 11970097 20210125 00900283 01240127 0000151 00000550 0223124 0200097 20010217 11970097 2021018C 0090055 0110022 3082090 00000600 0005101 10223082 00900050 10110222 01820090 005101 10223082 0090055 00000600 3085010 2040233 0215024 0000077 20201020 0051011 0223082 0090055 00000660 3085010 2040233 0215024 00001C2 4000214 1082090 0051011 0223082 0090055 00000660 3085010 2040033 0215024 0000157 0000211 10222092 1220000 0051011 0223082 0090055 00000660 3085010 20400233 0215024 00001572 0000211 10222090 00550 1011022 2082020 00000660 3085010 2040033 0215024 0000157 2040000 1501042 2022000 2000057 00000660 3085010 2040023 02150400 0057200 1051011 0222197 020000 1002000 12000020 1010002 000057 00000660 3085010 2040023 02150400 0057200 1010022 10220020 0051011 0222082 10220020 000051 1022082 0070055 |
| 000004C0 200000EB 203002F7 1C2A2000 000E02010 0008000A 1011020B 3C2A2000 000004E0 00972010 02004132 000A00DB 1070097 20081011 0022002 1098009B 1082092 00000520 02040132 009E00054 1C2A2000 00972010 2008128 00091070 20081028 009002B 1010022 2132007 00000520 02040132 009E0000 423402D 2008128 0001197 0972200 1130027 207F1011 00000550 02082122 00070044 01320114 0091092 0980098 01822009 01320104 0022132 00970040 0132014 00091082 0980098 10820090 01320009 000111 00000256 000232129 0010217 10970097 2021982 00900056 10080026 00023129 0010217 10970097 2021982 00900056 1011022 10820090 00321247 0001011 00231252 10820091 00502081 011202140 0230215 0050256 1011022 |
| 000004E0 00972010 02080132 000A00B 3197007 20801011 00223082 0098039B 1082097 00000500 02041082 0098054 1624200 0097208 02020B 1010022 2132007 00000520 00440132 00980540 12087208 0097208 1010228 1193097 207F101 00000540 00222132 007004 0132014 0091078 00990099 1097200 0151224 4007006B 00000540 208020E 1224200 011020E 2281028 0182001 0392090 0112008 1012001 00000540 00222132 007004 0132014 0091082 00980098 1082009C 0112080 004101 00000550 01480132 01244020 0132014 00291082 00980098 1082009C 0112087 0090011 00000550 00252132 007004 0132014 00291082 00980098 1082009C 0112082 0090058 00000550 00252132 0017004 0132012 4020135 00980098 1082009C 0112082 0090051 00000550 00252132 0007004 0132012 1197007 20201382 00980095 0112082 0090055 00000550 00253124 2000007 20010217 1197007 20201382 00980056 1011022 3082090 00000500 00253101 10223262 2000097 20010217 10920190 00575106 2011022 3082090 00000500 005510 1022362 0090055 1011022 30820090 00561011 00223082 0090055 00000640 005510 1022362 0090052 0151011 0022090 00561011 00223082 0090055 00000640 3056101 0223023 0256124 000111022 30820090 0056101 10223802 0090055 00000640 3056101 0223023 025020 0151011 00223092 005065101 102233082 0090055 00000640 3056101 0223023 0256124 0001522 2002009 0056101 102233082 0090055 00000640 3056101 0223023 0256124 000151011 00223192 2050223 0228012 0050057 00000660 3056101 0223023 0256204 0090055 10110022 3022030 00561011 00223082 0090055 00000640 3056101 0023082 0290055 10110022 3020030 0056101 00223082 0090055 00000640 3056010 2040823 0256204 0090055 10110022 3022030 0056101 00223082 0090055 00000660 3056101 00223082 029005214 0001052 2120223 0228012 0260121 20240220 212025 00000640 3056010 0240823 0256400 0097200 0157011 00223192 20280120 10320092 00000640 0092004 10228092 004605224 0101045 2132023 0228012 0302010 10000 |
| 00000500 02041082 00900054 1C242000 00972080 02061082 00900208 1010022 2132007 00000520 00040132 00900054 1C242000 00972080 00902080 1100222 2132007 00000550 00222132 00070044 01320114 00091072 00950090 00531022 01930097 00972080 01520090 01520090 01541C2A 400000E8 00000560 00022132 000700A4 01320114 00091082 0180098 10127000 01320008 0140111 00000560 00050129 01140148 01320114 00091082 00960098 10820090 01320008 00001111 00000560 000232129 0001021 10970097 2021182 00900056 1010022 009001111 0023107 0001011 0000560 00251011 0022122 0000097 000802182 00960056 10110022 01201212 0120121 00000560 1010022 0120121 00000560 10210406 02321317 000971010 000971082 00981098 10 |
| 00000520 00A40132 00DE0000 0283A02D 20080126 00001197 00972020 11930097 207F1011 00000540 00222132 00D700A4 01320114 00091092 00960098 1092000 0051C2A 400000E8 00000550 01480132 0124402D 0110200E 020E1082 011E2003 309209C 011C00A3 01240114 00000550 00222132 00D700A4 01320114 00091082 00980098 1082009C 011C1082 0090054 00000550 00232132 00D700A4 01320114 00091082 00980098 1082009C 011C1082 0090056 00000550 0023212A 2000007 20010217 1197007 20201082 00900056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 10421462 20000097 20010217 1097007 20201082 0090056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 10223C2A 2000007 20010217 1097007 20201082 0090056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 10223C2A 2000007 20010217 1097007 20201082 0090056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 10223C2A 2000007 20010217 1097007 20201082 0090056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 00550 10223C2A 2000007 200002F1 1097007 2021082 0090056 10110022 3082009 00000600 00550 00550 100223C2A 2000007 200002F1 1097007 2051080 00550 00550 0020155 0090055 00000640 305501 10022302 20090055 10110022 3082009D 00551011 00223082 009005F 00000660 3055010 2040283 0215214 0001CC2 4000211 20C40256 10C2020 01212025 00000660 3055010 2040283 0215024 0007500 10F(0111 00223192 20260231 0120027 00000660 3055010 2040283 0215024 0097005 10F(0111 0022130 2026003 10220203 01212025 00000660 3055010 0090052 0246002 0057000 01F(0111 0022130 20260131 20C40226 023021 0120027 00000660 005200005 0050574 01010052 3022013 0220010 10000 00005700 0057000 00000000 0052001 00000050 |
| 00000540 00222132 00070044 01320114 00091072 09900990 00524020 0132014 00300178 00900990 00524020 0132014 00000178 009800990 010520090 00524122 010200178 009800980 010220120 0132014 00091078 009800981 010820097 01127000 01320009 00001101 00000550 00722132 00070044 01320114 00910782 009800981 01820097 01120102 00001011 00000550 000232524 0000097 00091082 009800981 0101002 01220123 009000560 010232123 0000097 00091082 009800981 00110005 0101022 009000560 00232524 20000097 20080214 10820090 00561011 0223022 0092007 20082114 10820090 00561011 0223022 00920055 001100221197 009110100 01100122 01001212 00920055 00100022110 00110012 01010012 00120055 00000660 00551011 0223012 00000555 00101012 00001211 |
| 00000560 2000820E 12242000 0110200E 020E1082 011E2003 3082009C 011C00A3 01290114 00000580 01400132 01240420 01310082 0125009C 02430124 01270000 0132000B 000A1011 000005C0 00352132 00D700A 01320114 00091082 0098009E 1082009C 011C1082 0090055 000005C0 00232122 01140148 01320124 40200135 00920125 009C0233 01240127 00001011 00000550 00232124 20000097 20010217 11970097 20201082 009D0556 10110022 30820090 00000650 002531C24 20000097 20010217 0005214 1092009 005761 0110022 30820090 00000650 02140000 1264600 009F2000 01FC1011 00223197 0097202 01010022 30820090 00000660 308E0210 0243028 02900551 0110022 30820090 00561011 00223082 009D055 00000660 308E0210 20400283 02150214 00001CC2 40000211 20C40286 1CC2C000 02120285 00000660 308E0210 20400283 02150214 00001CC2 4000211 0022212 02260023 01220292 00000660 30980016 10228093 0266204 010FC1011 00222132 02280023 01320092 00000660 00920016 10228093 00669200 01FC1011 0022130 2028013 0090055 |
| 00000580 01480132 0124402D 01310082 0125009C 0280124 01270000 0132001B 000701082 00980096 10820000C 0132001B 00071082 00980096 10820000C 0132001B 00071082 00980096 10820000C 012101B2 00000154 00020123 01240127 00001182 00980096 10820000C 012101B2 00000154 00022132 01240127 0000111 00221322 2010122 20010127 20010217 1097007 20201182 00990056 01120022 20810213 0000016 01240023 20810213 2000007 20010211 11971007 20201182 00990056 01120022 20810213 20820125 00000162 0021020 00110021 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820123 20820090 20810213 20820132 20820132 < |
| 000005A0 00222132 00D700A 01320114 00091092 00900096 1082009C 011C1082 0090055 000005C0 00430129 011401A8 01320124 4020135 00820125 009C0528 0124217 00001011 000005E0 00223C2A 20000097 20010217 11970097 20201082 009D0556 10110022 3082049 00000650 00551011 00223C2A 20000097 2005021 10970097 20201082 009F056 10110022 3082049 00000650 02140000 1C646000 009F2000 01FC1011 00223197 0097202 10110022 3082049 00000660 308E0210 2040028 0215214 00001CC2 40000211 20C40286 1CC2C000 0212025 00000660 308E0210 2040028 02150214 00001CC2 40000211 00223102 009D055 00000660 308E0210 2040028 02150214 00001CC2 40000211 0022212 02260020 01212025 00000660 309E0210 2040028 02150214 00001CC2 4000021 022212 0226002 1012022 00000660 0092001 0092005 20164000 009F200 01FC1011 0022212 0226002 0120225 |
| 00000550 00030129 01140140 01320124 40200135 00820125 00902023 01240127 0000011 00000550 00223122 20000097 20010217 11970097 22011082 00900556 011020122 30820090 00000620 00214010 00223122 20000097 2000214 10820090 005F109E 0210202 30820090 00000620 00214010 10243027 00972000 01F0110 00223107 00970200 10110022 30820090 00000640 00541011 00223082 0090005E 10110022 30820090 200800111 20223082 0090005E 0090005E 0090005E 0090005E 0090005E 0090005E 00223107 00970037 1021022 0120225 1021000 0090005E 00223112 20520050 02120225 1021022 1021022 1021022 1021022 1021022 1021022 1022308 0090005E 1021022 1022236 1022000 1021022 1022236 1022000 10210225 1021022 1022338 |
| 000005E0 002231C2A 20000097 20010217 11970097 20201082 0090056 1011022 30820090 00000660 00581011 002231CA 20000097 2000097 20080214 10820090 00511016 0212400 02830215 00000662 02140000 1C464000 0097052 0110022 30820090 0061011 0023082 0090055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00232082 0090055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00232082 0090055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00232082 0090055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00232082 0090055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00232082 0090055 10110022 30820090 1001002 10110022 30820090 1002102 30820090 1002102 30820090 10021000 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001002 1001000 1001000 100000 |
| 00000660 00581011 0022322A 20050097 2008021A 10822090 005F104E 0210240 02810215 00000620 02140000 1646400 00472000 101F2011 00223197 00972020 10110022 30820090 00000640 00541011 00223092 0040055E 10110022 30820200 0040005E 00000640 0056101 00223092 0040055E 10110022 30820200 0240005E 00000640 00561014 00223092 02180214 00001212 20620205 122245 00000640 02251092 02180214 00400325 3264000 00472003 01470012 202245 0224000 0224003 0240034 0120245 122245 0240034 0120245 122450 0024004 0224003 0120245 0240034 0120245 122450 0240034 0120010 00100010 00100010 00100010 00100010 10010001 00100010 00100010 00100010 00100010 00100010 00100001 00100001 00100 |
| 00000620 02140000 1C464000 00072000 01FC1011 0022107 00072020 10110022 30820090 00000640 005A1011 00233082 00900055 10110022 30820090 00661011 00223082 00900055 00000660 30660210 20400283 02150214 00001CC2 40000211 20C40226 1CC2C000 02120225 00000680 02261082 00900055 3C464000 0097200 01FC1011 0022212 02260023 01320092 00000640 80930046 10228093 00460224 10110045 21320023 02280132 80930046 00921011 00000640 80930046 10228093 00460224 10110045 21320023 02280132 80930046 0092101 |
| 00000640 00541011 00223002 0040005E 10110022 30620050 00661011 00223082 0040005 00000660 30660210 2040023 02180214 00001C22 40000211 20C60226 1C2CC000 0212025 00000660 02261092 0040030C 3C464000 00472000 01475001 00222132 02260023 0132002 00000600 02261092 004003C 3C464000 00472000 01475001 00222132 02260023 0132002 00000600 02261092 0040005 2011001 |
| 00000660 3062210 2000225 02150210 00011C2 0000251 20200226 122223 00000680 02261082 00900055 26464000 00972000 011672101 00222122 02280023 01320092 000006A0 809300A6 10228093 00A6022A 101100A5 21320023 02280132 809300A6 00921011 00000670 00910250 00000AF 2013001 0010000 10010000 1001000 |
| 00000660 0226102 090005C 3C65000 00972000 017C1011 0222132 02280023 01320092 00000660 809300A6 10228093 00A6022A 101100A5 21320023 02280132 809300A6 00921011 00006670 00910366 00000AAC 20010001 004000A 1001000 1001000 10010000 |
| 0000050 0001020000 10220000 00002x 10110000 21320023 02200132 80930046 00921011 |
| |
| |
| |

• --

Figure A-5 (Part 10 of 10). Examples of Compiler Debugging Information

Appendix B. Summary of IBM Extensions

This appendix contains a brief summary of the extensions to System/38 COBOL with references to discussions of the extensions elsewhere in this manual.

Character-String Considerations

The maximum length of a non-numeric literal is 160 characters. See "Character-Strings, Literals" in Chapter 2.

Identification Division

The system uses the first 10 characters of the program-name specified in the PROGRAM-ID paragraph. See "PROGRAM-ID Paragraph" in Chapter 3.

Environment Division

The DEV parameter of an Override command can change the device type that the file will use. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, Assign Clause" in Chapter 3.

FORMATFILE must be specified in the ASSIGN clause to use an externally described printer file. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, Assign Clause" in Chapter 3.

COBOL programs can process data base files. The ORGANIZATION of the file indicates the current program usage. See "File Processing Summary" and "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, ORGANIZATION Clause" in Chapter 3.

If the DDS keyword DESCEND is used when the field is specified as a key, the sequence can be a descending key sequence. The OVRDBF command can set the current record pointer when the file is opened. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, ACCESS MODE Clause" in Chapter 3.

The RECORD KEY data item, data-name-2, can be numeric. EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY can be specified in the RECORD KEY clause. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, RECORD KEY Clause (Indexed File)" in Chapter 3.

The DUPLICATES phrase can be specified for the RECORD KEY clause. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, RECORD KEY Clause (Indexed File)" in Chapter 3. Additional information is given in discussions of the READ, REWRITE, DELETE, and WRITE statements in Chapter 5. The keywords specified for the data item in DDS can modify record sequence. See "FILE-CONTROL Paragraph, RECORD KEY Clause (Indexed File)" in Chapter 3.

The COMMITMENT CONTROL clause can be specified to enable the synchronizing or cancelling of data base changes, and to provide additional record locking for records being changed. See "I-O-CONTROL Paragraph, COMMITMENT CONTROL Clause" in Chapter 3 and and "Commitment Control Considerations" in Chapter 9.

Data Division

Elementary items or group items immediately subordinate to one group item can have unequal level-numbers. See "Data Description Concepts, Level-Numbers" in Chapter 4.

The OVRTAPF command can change the LABEL RECORDS clause at execution time. See "File Description Entry, LABEL RECORDS Clause" in Chapter 4.

If the CODE-SET clause is omitted, the CODE parameter of the CRTDKTF or the CRTTAPF command is used. The OVRDKTF or the OVRTAPF command can change the CODE-SET clause at execution time. See "File Description Entry, CODE-SET Clause" in Chapter 4.

For the USING phrase of the CALL statement, data-names can have level-numbers that are not 01 or 77, and the data-names can be indexed, subscripted, or qualified. See "CALL Statement, USING Phrase" in Chapter 6.

A FILLER item can be used as a group item definition. See "Data-Name or FILLER Clause" in Chapter 4.

COMPUTATIONAL-3 (packed decimal) and COMPUTATIONAL-4 (binary) can be specified for the USAGE clause of numeric items. See "USAGE Clause" in Chapter 4.

The key specified for an OCCURS clause can have USAGE of COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMPUTATIONAL-4. See "OCCURS Clause" in Chapter 6.

The JUSTIFIED clause can be specified for alphanumeric edited items. See "JUSTIFIED Clause" in Chapter 4.

Procedure Division

The mnemonic-names OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK are used for file information and are accessed through an ACCEPT statement format. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5.

THEN is used as a separator on the IF statement. See "IF Statement" in Chapter 5.

The AT END phrase can be omitted for the READ statement. See "Common Input/Output Phrases, INVALID KEY Condition" in Chapter 5.

The FORMAT phrase is valid for DELETE, READ, REWRITE, START, and WRITE statements. See "DELETE Statement", "READ Statement", "REWRITE Statement", "START Statement", and "WRITE Statement" in Chapter 5.

The special register DB-FORMAT-NAME contains information about execution of file input/output statements. See "Common Input/Output Phrases, DB-FORMAT-NAME Special Register" in Chapter 5.

The identifier in an ACCEPT statement can have USAGE of COMPUTATIONAL-3 or COMPUTATIONAL-4. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5.

The ACCEPT statement can be used to transfer data from a job's local data area to a specified data item. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 5.

The system always rewinds and unloads the tape when REEL/UNIT is specified in the CLOSE statement. See "CLOSE Statement" in Chapter 5.

The INHWRT parameter of the OVRDBF command can inhibit the DELETE, READ, and WRITE statements. See "DELETE Statement", "READ Statement", and "WRITE Statement" in Chapter 5.

For a file with duplicate primary keys allowed, a READ statement must immediately precede a DELETE or REWRITE statement to ensure proper deletion. See "DELETE Statement" and "REWRITE Statement" in Chapter 5.

For the DISPLAY statement, COMPUTATIONAL-4 items are converted to zoned decimal items and signed noninteger numeric literals are allowed. See "DISPLAY Statement" in Chapter 5.

The DISPLAY statement can be used to transfer data to a job's local data area. See "DISPLAY Statement" in Chapter 5.

A logical file opened for OUTPUT does not remove all records in the physical file on which it is based. The OVRDBF command can specify the first record to be made available to the program at execution time. See "OPEN Statement" in Chapter 5.

FIRST, PRIOR, and LAST can be specified on the READ statement for indexed files with dynamic access. See "READ Statement" in Chapter 5.

The KEY phrase of the START statement can specify EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY. A comparison can be affected by the type of key fields in the record area defined for the file. See "START Statement" in Chapter 5.

For the WRITE statement, the mnemonic-name phrase can be used for stacker selection on a card punch file. See "WRITE Statement" in Chapter 5.

The composite of all operands in an arithmetic statement has a maximum of 30 digits. See "Arithmetic Statement Operands" in Chapter 5.

In the CORRESPONDING phrase of an arithmetic statement, the identifiers d1 and d2 can be subordinate to a FILLER item. See "Common Phrases, CORRESPONDING Phrase" in Chapter 5.

The two additional formats of the SET statement can be used to set mnemonic-names to on or off and to set condition-names to true. See "SET Statement" in Chapter 5.

Two active PERFORM and G0 T0 statements can have a common exit point. See "PERFORM Statement" in Chapter 5.

Input files do not need to be sequenced before a merge operation. See "SORT/MERGE" in Chapter 6.

In SORT/MERGE, input or output procedures can transfer control outside the input or output procedure using a PERFORM statement, or have control transferred inside the input or output procedure from elsewhere in the Procedure Division using a PERFORM statement, without causing compilation to fail. See "SORT/MERGE" in Chapter 6.

The COMMIT statement can be used to synchronize changes to records in data base files under commitment control, while preventing other jobs from accessing or modifying those records until the COMMIT is complete. See "COMMIT Statement" in Chapter 5.

The ROLLBACK statement can be used to cancel data base changes from files under commitment control when the changes should not remain permanent. See "ROLLBACK Statement" in Chapter 5.

COPY Statement – All Divisions

Pseudo-text for the REPLACING phrase of the COPY statement has considerations for division, section, and paragraph entries, and also for the placement of copied text as it appears in pseudo-text-2. See "COPY Statement, Replacing Phrase" in Chapter 6.

The file-name is optional. The default file-name is QCBLSRC. See "Qualification, Qualification Rules" in Chapter 2.

The COPY statement, DDS or DD format, is used to create Data Division entries for externally described files in a program. See "COPY Statement" in Chapter 6.

TRANSACTION Files

The data organization for work stations, display files, BSC files, communications files, and mixed files is TRANSACTION. TRANSACTION files have special formats for the file-control entry, file description entry, and the input/output statements. TRANSACTION file considerations are in Chapter 7.

Considerations for the TRANSACTION file-control entry include those for:

- The ASSIGN clause
- The ORGANIZATION clause
- The ACCESS MODE clause

- The FILE STATUS clause
- The CONTROL-AREA clause.

Considerations for the TRANSACTION file description entry are the same as those for other file description entries.

Boolean data provides a means of modifying and passing the values of the indicators associated with the display screen formats. See "Indicators" in Chapter 7.

The ACCEPT statement provides a way of accessing information about a program device when function-name is associated with a mnemonic-name of ATTRIBUTE-DATA in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. See "ACCEPT Statement" in Chapter 7.

TRANSACTION file considerations for OPEN, CLOSE, READ, WRITE, REWRITE, and USE statements are given under the discussions for the respective statements and the discussions of the FORMAT, TERMINAL, INDICATORS, NO DATA, and SUBFILE phrases in Chapter 7.

The ACQUIRE statement can be used to acquire a program device for a TRANSACTION file. See "ACQUIRE Statement" in Chapter 7.

The DROP statement can be used to release a program device acquired by a TRANSACTION file. See "DROP Statement" in Chapter 7.

Compiler Options

Sequence checking can be suppressed at compile time. The apostrophe or the quotation mark can be used as a separator according to the compiler option specified. See "Create COBOL Program Command" and "PROCESS Statement" in Chapter 8.

B-6

Appendix C. Compile-Time Message Description

This appendix contains a general introduction to the compile-time messages. For additional information and a list of the messages, refer to the *Messages Guide: COBOL*. Compiler-generated messages indicate conditions encountered during program compilation. The messages describe an invalid use of COBOL syntax or a violation of system requirements.

System/38 COBOL provides the following message severity levels:

Severity Meaning

- 00 Informational: This level is used to convey information to the user that may be of interest to him. No error has occurred. Informational messages are listed only when the FLAG (00) option is specified.
- 10 Warning: This level indicates that an error was detected but is not serious enough to interfere with the execution of the program.
- 20 Conditional: This level indicates that an error was made, but the compiler is taking a recovery that might yield the desired code.
- 30 Error: This level indicates that a serious error was detected. Compilation is completed, but execution of the program cannot be attempted.
- 40 Unrecoverable: This level indicates an error that forces termination of processing.

Note: 00, 10, and 20 messages are suppressed when the FLAG(30) option of the PROCESS statement is used or the CRTCBLPGM command specifies FLAG(30) and is not overridden by the PROCESS statement. See "PROCESS Statement" in Chapter 8 for further information.

Compiler message numbers are assigned as follows:

| Error Message | Description |
|-------------------------|--|
| CBL0000 through CBL0999 | Messages with severity less than 30 |
| CBL1000 through CBL1999 | Messages with severity greater than 29 |
| CBL8000 through CBL8999 | FIPS messages |

The compiler always attempts to provide full diagnostics of all source text in the program, even when errors have been detected. If the compiler cannot continue on a given statement, the message states that the compiler cannot continue and that it will ignore the rest of the statement. When this occurs, the programmer should examine the entire statement.

The System/38 message facility is used to produce all messages. The COBOL compiler messages reside in the message file, QCBLMSG.

Substitution variables and valid reply values are determined by the program sending the message, *not* by the message description stored in the message file. However, certain elements of a message description can be changed: for example, the text, severity level, default response, or dump list. To effect such changes, you need to define another message description using an Add Message Description (ADDMSGD) command, place the modified description in a user-created message file,¹ and specify that file in the Override Message File (OVRMSGF) command. Using the OVRMSGF command allows the compiler to retrieve messages from the specified file. See the ADDMSGD and OVRMSGF commands in the *CL Reference Manual* for additional information. The *CPF Programmer's Guide* describes the process of overriding message files.

CAUTION

1

Overriding an IBM-supplied message with a user-created message can produce results you do not anticipate. If reply values are not retained, the program might not respond to any replies. Changing default replies on *NOTIFY type messages could affect the ability of the program to run in unattended mode. Changing the severity could cancel a job not previously canceled. Be cautious when overriding IBM-supplied messages with user-created messages.

If an IBM-supplied message must be changed and replaced in *its* message file, call your service representative.

Appendix D. Associated Card File Processing

The 5424 Multi-Function Card Unit (MFCU) can perform more than one card processing function in a single pass through the unit. If a card has already been partially punched, the MFCU can read the card, punch additional information into the card, and print up to 128 characters of information on the card. COBOL supports these combined functions through normal control language. This support is based on the concept of associated files.

COBOL handles each combined function as a separate logical file; each such logical file has its own file structure and processing requirements. Therefore, the user must define each function as if it were a unique file. However, because such combined function files refer to one physical unit, the user must define the logical files as being associated with each other, and relate them to each other during processing. The following sections explain the programming requirements for associated card file processing in System/38 COBOL.

Environment Division

Associated card file processing requires certain information in the SELECT and ASSIGN clauses.

SELECT Clause

A unique system file-name must be defined for each of the functions (reading, punching, and printing) to be combined.

ASSIGN Clause

For associated card files, the ASSIGN clause assignment-name must specify the primary (P) hopper of the 5424 MFCU and the association. The following format is valid:

READER PUNCH PRINT PUNCHPRINT

The association must be the same 1-digit integer for all associated logical files. This tells the compiler that each logical file is part of a particular associated card file processing structure that is assigned to one physical unit. Any two, or all three, of the functions READER, PUNCH, or PRINT can each be specified once. When the function PUNCHPRINT is specified for an associated file, READER can be the only other function specified for that association.

More than one associated card file processing structure can be defined in a program; however, the structures must not be processed concurrently. Each such structure must have a unique association entry.

Data Division

An FD entry and a 01 record description entry must be defined in the File Section of the Data Division for each associated logical file.

Procedure Division

All associated files within one associated card file processing structure must be opened before a READ or WRITE statement is executed for any file in the structure. Similarly, no associated files can be closed until all READ and WRITE statements have been executed. When all such statements have been executed, all of the associated files must be closed.

An OPEN, READ, WRITE, or CLOSE statement for one of the associated files cannot be executed without concurrent processing of the other associated files. That is, all processing of associated files must reflect the association.

For associated files with the functions of read (READER), punch (PUNCH), print (PRINT), and punchprint (PUNCHPRINT), the following processing rules apply:

- 1. An OPEN statement must be executed for each file; with the INPUT phrase specified for the READER file and the OUTPUT phrase specified for the PUNCH, PRINT, and PUNCHPRINT files.
- 2. To make the logical input record available, a READ statement must first be executed for the READER file.
- 3. The next input/output operation executed for an associated file must be a WRITE statement for the associated PUNCH file. However, before the WRITE statement is executed, all data to be punched must be moved to the record specified for the associated PUNCH file.

Note: An alternative method is to move the additional data to be punched to the appropriate fields of the input record, and then to execute a WRITE statement for the PUNCH file using the FROM identifier phrase, where the identifier is the record-name specified for the READER file.

4. The WRITE statement for the PRINT file must be the next input/output statement executed for any of the associated files. Before the WRITE statement for the PRINT file is executed, you must format the data to be printed by moving it to the record specified for the PRINT file.

- 5. Steps 1 through 4 are repeated for all other records in the READER file.
- 6. When the PUNCHPRINT file is specified, a WRITE statement for the PUNCHPRINT file must be the next input/output statement following the READ statement for the READER file. Before the WRITE statement for the PUNCHPRINT file is executed, you must format the data to be punched and printed by moving it to the record specified for the PUNCHPRINT file.

When both PUNCH and PRINT files are associated, the stacker selection, if specified, in the WRITE statement for the PRINT file overrides any stacker selection specified for the PUNCH file.

When the READER file is specified for an associated card file, a READ until the AT END condition is detected must be done. This forces punch and/or print operations to occur for the last record read.

The order of processing specified in the preceding paragraphs also applies to a structure where only two of the three functions are associated, except that the processing of the unspecified function is not required.

D-4

•

Appendix E. Intermediate Result Fields

This appendix discusses the conceptual compiler algorithms for determining the number of integer and decimal places reserved for intermediate results. The following abbreviations are used:

| i | Number of integer places carried for an intermediate result. | | | |
|-------------|--|--|--|--|
| d | Number of decimal places carried for an intermediate result. | | | |
| dmax | In a particular statement the larger of either: | | | |
| | • The number of decimal places needed for the final result field(s) | | | |
| | • The maximum number of decimal places defined for any operand except exponents and divisors. | | | |
| op1 | First operand in a generated arithmetic statement. | | | |
| op2 | Second operand in a generated arithmetic statement. | | | |
| d1,d2 | Number of decimal places defined for op1 or op2, respectively. | | | |
| ir | Intermediate result field obtained from the execution of a generated arithmetic statement or operation. Ir1, ir2, and so on represent successive intermediate results. Successive intermediate results may have the same location. | | | |
| en an arith | metic statement contains only a single pair of operands, no | | | |

When an arithmetic statement contains only a single pair of operands, no intermediate results are generated. Intermediate results are possible in the following cases:

- In an ADD or SUBTRACT statement containing multiple operands immediately following the verb
- In a COMPUTE statement specifying a series of arithmetic operations
- In arithmetic expressions contained in an IF or PERFORM statement
- In the GIVING option with multiple result fields for the ADD, SUBTRACT, MULTIPLY, DIVIDE, or COMPUTE statements.

In such cases, the compiler treats the statement as a succession of operations. For example, the following statement:

COMPUTE Y = A + B * C - D / E + F ** G

is replaced by

| F**G | | vielding ir1 |
|--------------|----------|--------------|
| MULTIPLY B | BY C | vielding ir2 |
| DIVIDE E | INTO D | vielding ir3 |
| ADD A | T0 ir2 | vielding ir4 |
| SUBTRACT ir3 | FROM ir4 | yielding ir5 |
| ADD ir5 | TO ir1 | yielding Y |

Compiler Calculation of Intermediate Results

The number of integer places in an ir is calculated as described in the following paragraphs:

The compiler first determines the maximum value that the ir can contain by performing the statement in which the ir occurs.

- If an operand in this statement is a data-name, the value used for the data-name is equal to the numerical value of the PICTURE for the data-name (that is, PICTURE 9V99 has the value 9.99).
- If an operand is a literal, the literal is treated as though it had a PICTURE, and the numerical value of the PICTURE is used (that is, the literal + 127.3 has an implied PICTURE S999V9).
- If an operand is an intermediate result, the PICTURE determined for the intermediate result in a previous operation is used. The numerical value of that PICTURE is used.
- If the operation is division:
 - If op2 is a data-name, the value used for op2 is the minimum nonzero value of the digit in the PICTURE for the data-name (that is, PICTURE 9V99 has the value 0.01).
 - If op2 is an intermediate result, the intermediate result is treated as though it had a PICTURE, and the minimum nonzero value of the digits in this PICTURE is used.

When the maximum value of the ir is determined by the above procedures, i is set equal to the number of integers in the maximum value.

The number of decimal places contained in an ir is calculated as:

| Operation | Decimal Places |
|-----------|---------------------------------------|
| + or - | d1 or d2, whichever is greater |
| * | d1 + d2 |
| / | d1 - d2 or dmax, whichever is greater |

dmax if op2 is nonintegral or a data-name; d1 * op2 if op2 is an integral literal

Note: The user must define the operands of any arithmetic statement with enough decimal places to give the desired accuracy in the final result.

**

Figure E-1 indicates the action of the compiler when handling intermediate results.

| Value of i + d | Value of d | Value of i + dmax | Action Taken | |
|-----------------------|---------------|----------------------|---|--|
| < 30 = 30 | Any value | Any value | i integer and d decimal places are carried for ir | |
| > 30 < dmax Any value | | Any value | 30 - d integer and d decimal places are carried for ir | |
| | =dmax | | | |
| | >dmax | < 30 | i integer and 30 - i decimal places are carried for ir | |
| | | = 30 | | |
| | | > 30 | 30 - dmax integer and dmax decimal places are carried for ir | |

Figure E-1. Compiler Action on Intermediate Results

E-4

C

Appendix F. Sample File-Processing Programs

The programs in this appendix illustrate the fundamental programming techniques associated with each type of file organization. They are intended to be used for planning purposes only, and to illustrate the input/output statements necessary for certain access methods. Other COBOL features (the use of the ALTER statement and the PERFORM statement, for example) are used only incidentally. The programs are:

- Sequential File Creation
- Sequential File Updating and Extension
- Indexed File Creation
- Indexed File Updating
- Relative File Creation
- Relative File Updating
- Relative File Retrieval.

Sequential File Creation

This program creates a sequential file of employee salary records. The input records are arranged in ascending order of employee number. The output file has the identical order.

STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. 000200 PROGRAM-ID. CREATESEQ. 000300 з 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. 5 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. 000700 DBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. 6 000800 SPECIAL-NAMES. CONSOLE IS TYPEWRITER. 000900 INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. q 10 001000 FILE-CONTROL. 001 100 SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEA 11 12 001 200 FILE STATUS IS INPUT-FILE-STATUS. 13 001 300 SELECT OUTPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILES FILE STATUS IS OUTPUT-FILE-STATUS. 14 001400 001500 DATA DIVISION. 15 001600 FILE SECTION. 16 17 001700 FD INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. 001800 01 INPUT-RECORD. 18 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NAME 001 90 0 PICTURE 9(6). 19 20 002000 PICTURE X(23). 21 0 02 10 0 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-CODE PICTURE 9. INPUT-EMPLOYEE-SALARY 002200 PICTURE 9(6)V99. 22 05 OUTPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. 23 002300 FD 24 002400 01 OU TP UT -RECORD. 25 002500 05 OUTPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER PICTURE 9(6). 05 OUTPUT-EMPLOYEE-NAME PICTURE X(28). 26 002600 OUTPUT-EMPLOYEE-CODE 27 **002700** 05 PICTURE 9. 28 002800 05 OUTPUT-EMPLOYEE-SALARY PICTURE 9(6)V99. 29 002900 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 30 003000 77 INPUT-FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. 003100 77 OU TPUT -FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. 31 32 003200 01 INPUTEND PICTURE X VALUE SPACE. 33 003300 88 THE-END-OF-INPUT VALUE "E". DI SP-RECORD. 003400 01 34 05 OP-NAME 003500 35 PICTURE X(7). 36 003600 05 FILLER PICTURE XX VALUE SPACE. PICTURE X(11). PICTURE XX VALUE SPACE. 37 003700 05 FILE-NAME 05 003800 FILLER 38 39 003900 05 FILLER PICTURE X(14) 40 0 04 00 0 VALUE "FILE STATUS IS". PICTURE XX VALUE SPACE. PICTURE XX. 41 004100 05 FILLER 004200 05 SK 42 004 300 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 43 004400 DECLARATIVES. 004500 I-O-ERROR SECTION. USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT-FILE 004600 004700 OUTPUT-FILE. 004800 I-0-ERROR-PARA. 005000* DUMMY DECLARATIVES TO ENSURE CONTROL IS RETURNED TO THIS * 005100* PROGRAM WHEN AN ERROR OCCURS DURING FILE PROCESSING. 005200* ERROR HANDLING IS DONE AFTER EACH I/O STATEMENT. * 005400 END DECLARATIVES. 005500 MAIN-PROGRAM SECTION.

| | 005600 | OP EN-F IL ES. |
|----|------------|--|
| 44 | 005700 | OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE |
| | 005800 | OUTPUT OUTPUT-FILE. |
| 45 | 005900 | IF INPUT-FILE-STATUS NOT = "00" |
| 46 | 006000 | MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME |
| 47 | 006100 | MOVE "INPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME |
| 48 | 006200 | MOVE INPUT-FILE-STATUS TO SK |
| 49 | 006300 | PERFORM ERROR-OUT-1 THROUGH ERROR-OUT-2. |
| 50 | 006400 | IF OUTPUT-FILE-STATUS NOT = "00" |
| 51 | 006500 | MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME |
| 52 | 006600 | MOVE "QUTPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME |
| 53 | 006700 | MOVE OUTPUT-FILE-STATUS TO SK |
| 54 | 006800 | PERFORM ERROR-OUT-1 THROUGH ERROR-OUT-2. |
| 55 | 0 06 90 0 | PERFORM BUILD-FILE UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. |
| | 007000 | CLOSE-FILES. |
| 56 | 007100 | CLOSE INPUT-FILE |
| | 0 07 20 0 | OU TP UT – F I L E . |
| 57 | 007300 | STOP RUN. |
| | 007400 | BVILD-FILE. |
| 58 | 007500 | READ INPUT-FILE INTO OUTPUT-RECORD |
| 59 | 007600 | AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. |
| 60 | 007700 | IF INPUT-FILE-STATUS NOT = "00" |
| 61 | 007800 | MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME |
| 62 | 007 900 | MOVE "INPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME |
| 63 | 008000 | MOVE INPUT-FILE-STATUS TO SK |
| 64 | 0 09 1 0 0 | PERFORM ERROR-OUT-1 THROUGH ERROR-OUT-2 |
| 65 | 008200 | GO TO CLOSE-FILES. |
| 66 | 008 30 0 | WRITE OUTPUT-RECORD. |
| 67 | 003400 | IF OUTPUT-FILE-STATUS NOT = "00" |
| 68 | 008500 | MOVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME |
| 69 | 008600 | MOVE "OUTPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME |
| 70 | 008700 | MOVE OUTPUT-FILE-STATUS TO SK |
| 71 | 008800 | PERFORM ERROR-DUT-1 THROUGH ERROR-DUT-2 |
| 12 | 008900 | |
| 77 | 009000 | ERKUR-UUI-I. |
| 73 | 009100 | DISPLAT "FILE PROCESSING ERROR" OPEN ITPENRILER. |
| 75 | 009200 | |
| 75 | 009300 | |
| 76 | 0.09400 | |
| 10 | 009500 | |
| | 009700 | |
| | 004700 | |
| | | |

STMT SEONBR MSGID SEV TEXT

\$ 44 005400 CBL0335 00 EMPTY PARAGRAPH OK SECTION PRECEDES "END DECLARATIVES" PARAGRAPH OR SECTION.

MESSAGE SUMMARY

| TOTAL | INFO(0-4) | WARNING(5-19) | ERROR (20-29) | SEVERE(30-39) | TERMINAL (40-99) |
|-------|-----------|---------------|----------------|---------------|------------------|
| 1 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

97 SOURCE RECORDS READ 0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY MEMBERS PROCESSED

0 SEQUENCE ERRORS 0 WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Sequential File Updating and Extension

This program updates and extends the file created by the CREATE-SEQUENTIAL program. The INPUT-FILE and the I-O-FILE are each read. When a match is found between INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER and I-O-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER, the input record replaces the original record. After the I-O-FILE has been completely processed, new employee records are added at the end of the file.

STAT SEGNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S CUPYNAME CHG/DATE

| 1 | 000100 | IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. | |
|----|-----------|--|--------------------|
| 2 | 000200 | PROGRAM-ID. UPDATESEQ. | |
| 3 | 000300 | ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. | |
| 4 | 000400 | CONFIGURATION SECTION. | |
| 5 | 000500 | SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38. | |
| 6 | 000600 | OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-538. | |
| 7 | 000700 | INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION. | |
| 8 | 008000 | FILE-CONTROL. | |
| 9 | 000900 | SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FIL | Eð |
| 10 | 001 00 0 | FILE STATUS IS INPUT-FILE-STATUS | • |
| 11 | 001100 | SELECT MASTER-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-MS | TFILER |
| 12 | 001 20 0 | FILE STATUS IS MASTER-FILE-STATU | S. |
| 13 | 001 300 | | |
| 14 | 001400 | DATA DIVISION. | |
| 15 | 001 500 | FILE SECTION. | |
| 16 | 001 60 0 | FO INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. | |
| 17 | 001 700 | 01 INPUT-RECORD. | |
| 18 | 001 80 0 | 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER PICTU | RE 9(6). |
| 19 | 001 90 0 | 0 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NAME PICTU | RE X(28). |
| 20 | 002000 | 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-CODE PICTU | RE 9. |
| 21 | 002100 | 05 INPUT-EMPLOYEE-SALARY PICTU | RE 9(6)V99. |
| 22 | 0 02 20 0 | FD MASTER-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. | |
| 23 | 002 300 | 01 MASTER-RECORD. | |
| 24 | 002400 | 05 MST-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER PICTU | RE 9(6). |
| 25 | 002500 | 0 05 MST-EMPLOYÉE-NAME PICTU | RE X(28). |
| 26 | 002600 | 05 MST-EMPLOYEE-CODE PICTU | RE 9. |
| 27 | 002700 | 05 MST-EMPLOYEE-SALARY PICTU | RE 9(6)V99. |
| 28 | 002800 | WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. | |
| 29 | 002900 | 77 INPUT-FILE-STATUS PICTU | RE XX. |
| 30 | 003000 | 77 MASTER-FILE-STATUS PICTU | RE XX. |
| 31 | 003100 | OI INPUTEND PICTU | RE X VALUE SPACE. |
| 32 | 003200 | 0 88 THE-END-OF-INPUT VALUE | "E". |
| 33 | 003300 | 01 MASTEREND PICTU | RE X VALUE SPACE. |
| 34 | 003400 | 86 THE-END-OF-MASTER VALUE | "E". |
| 35 | 003500 | 01 ERROR-INFO. | |
| 36 | 003600 | 05 OP-NAME PICTU | RE X(12). |
| 37 | 003700 | 05 FILLER PICTU | RE XX VALUE SPACE. |
| 38 | 003800 | 0 05 FILE-NAME PICTU | RE X(11). |
| 39 | 003900 | 05 FILLER PICTU | RE XX VALUE SPACE. |
| 40 | 004000 | 05 FILLER PICTU | RE X(14) |
| 41 | 004100 | VALUS | "FILE STATUS IS". |
| 42 | 004200 |) 05 FILLER PICTU | RE XX VALUE SPACE. |
| 43 | 004300 |) 05 SK PICTU | RE XX. |
| 44 | 004400 | PROCEDURE DIVISION. | |
| | 004 50 0 | DECLARATIVES. | |
| | 004 60 0 | INPUT-FILE-ERROR SECTION. | |
| | 004700 | USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE | ON INPUT-FILE. |
| | 0 04 80 0 | INPUT-FILE-ERROR-PARA. | |
| 45 | 0 04 90 0 |) MOVĖ INPUT-FILE-STATUS TO SK. | |
| 46 | 005000 | MOVE "INPUT+FILE" TO FILE-NAME. | |
| 47 | 005100 | DISPLAY "FILE PROCESSING ERROR". | |
| 48 | 005200 | DISPLAY ERROR-INFO. | |
| 49 | 005300 | DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED DU | E TO I-O ERROR". |
| 50 | 0 05 40 0 | STOP RUN. | |
| | 005500 |) I-O-FILE-ERROR SECTION. | |

| STMT | SEQNBR | -A 1 B 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE | | |
|------|-----------|--|--|--|
| | | | | |
| | 005600 | USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PRICEDURE ON MASTER-FILE. | | |
| | 005700 | MASIER-FILE-ERROR-PARA. | | |
| 51 | 005800 | MUVE MASIER-FILE-STATUS TU SK. | | |
| 51 | 005900 | NISOLAY WELLE POOLESSING EDEDDY. | | |
| 54 | 005000 | DISCLAY FOOD-INFO. | | |
| 55 | 006200 | DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED DUE TO 1-0 ERROR". | | |
| 56 | 005300 | STOP RUN. | | |
| | 006400 | END DECLARATIVES. | | |
| | 005500 | MAIN-PROGRAM SECTION. | | |
| | 006600 | OPEN-FILES. | | |
| 57 | 006700 | MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. | | |
| 58 | 006800 | OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE | | |
| | 0 05 90 0 | I-O MASTER-FILE. | | |
| | 007000 | PROCESSING-LOGIC • | | |
| 59 | 007100 | PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE. | | |
| 60 | 007200 | PERFORM READ-MASTER-FILE. | | |
| 61 | 007300 | PERFORM PROCESS-FILES UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. | | |
| | 007400 | CLOSE-FILES. | | |
| 62 | 007500 | MOVE "CLOSE" TO OP-NAME. | | |
| 63 | 007600 | CLOSE MASTER-FILE | | |
| | 007700 | INPUT-FILE. | | |
| 64 | 007800 | | | |
| | 007900 | READ-INPOI-FILE. | | |
| 05 | 008000 | MOVE "READ" TO UP-NAME. | | |
| 66 | 008100 | READ INPUT + ILE | | |
| 67 | 008200 | AI END SET THE-END-UF-INPUT TO INVE. | | |
| 69 | 008 500 | | | |
| 60 | 008400 | MUVE "READ" ID UP-NAME. DEAD MASTED_EILE | | |
| 0, | 008600 | | | |
| 70 | 008700 | SET THE-END-DE-MASTER TO TRUE | | |
| 71 | 008800 | MOVE "AT END CLOSE" TO OP-NAME | | |
| 72 | 0 08 90 0 | CLOSE MASTER-FILE | | |
| 73 | 009000 | MOVE "OPEN EXTEND" TO OP-NAME | | |
| 74 | 009100 | OPEN EXTEND MASTER-FILE. | | |
| | 009200 | PROCESS-FILES. | | |
| 75 | 009300 | IF THE-END-OF-MASTER | | |
| 76 | 009400 | WRITE MASTER-RECORD FROM INPUT-RECORD | | |
| 77 | 009500 | PERFORN READ-INPUT-FILE | | |
| | 009600 | ELSE | | |
| 78 | 009700 | 10 IF MST-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER LESS THAN INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER | | |
| 79 | 009800 | PERFORM READ-MASTER-FILE | | |
| | 009900 | ELSE | | |
| 80 | 010000 | O IF MST-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER = INPUT-EMPLOYEE-NUMBER | | |
| 81 | 010100 |) MOVE "REWRITE" TO DP-NAME | | |
| 82 | 010200 | REWRITE MASTER-RECORD FROM INPUT-RECORD | | |
| 83 | 010 300 | PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE | | |
| 84 | 010400 | PERFURM READ-MASIER-FILE | | |
| | 010500 | | | |
| 85 | 010600 | DISPLAT "ERKUK RECURU -> ", INPUT-EMPLUTEE-NUMBER | | |
| 00 | 010700 | PERFURM READ-INPUT-FILE. | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| TOTA | L IN | FD(0-4) WARNING(5-19) FRR/R(20-29) SEVERE(30-39) TERMINAL(40-99) | | |
| | 0 | | | |

107 SOURCE RECORDS READ 0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY MEMBERS PROCESSED 0 SEQUENCE ERRORS 0 WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Indexed File Creation

This program creates an indexed file of summary records for bank depositors. The key within each indexed file record is REC-ID (the depositor's account number); the input records are ordered in ascending sequence upon this key. Records are read from the input file and transferred to the indexed file record area. The indexed file record is then written.

STMT SEONBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. 000200 PROGRAM-ID. CREATEIND 2 з 000300 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. 4 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. 000600 SOURCE -COMPUTER. IBM-S38. 000700 OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-538. 000800 INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION. 8 000900 FILE-CONTROL . 10 001000 SELECT INDEXED-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-INDEXFILE 11 001 100 ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL 12 001 200 13 001 300 RECORD KEY IS INDEX-KEY 14 001400 FILE STATUS IS INDEXED-FILE-STATUS. 15 001 500 SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEG FILE STATUS IS INPUT-FILE-STATUS. 001600 16 001700 DATA DIVISION. 17 18 001800 FILE SECTION. 001900 FD INDEXED-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. 002000 01 INDEX-REGORD. 19 20 05 INDEX-KEY 21 002100 PICTURE X(10). 22 002200 05 INDEX-FLD1 PICTURE X(10). 23 002300 05 INDEX-NAME PICTURE X(2)). 002400 INDE X-BAL PICTURE S9(5)V99. 24 05 25 002500 FD INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. 26 002600 01 INPUT-RECORD. 27 002700 05 INPUT-KEY 05 INPUT-NAME PICTURE X(10). 002800 PICTURE X(20). 28 05 INPUT-BAL PICTURE S9(5)V99. 29 002900 30 003000 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 003100 77 003200 77 31 INDEXED-FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. INPUT-FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. 32 33 003300 77 OP-NAME PICTURE X(7) PICTURE X VALUE SPACES. VALUE "E". 34 003400 01 INPUTEND 88 THE-END-OF-INPUT 35 003500 003600 01 ERRORFLAG PICTURE X VALUE SPACES. 36 VALUE "1". 37 003700 88 ERROR-OCCURRED 003800 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 38 003900 DECLARATIVES. 004000 INPUT-ERROR SECTION. 0 04 10 0 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT. 004200 INPUT-ERROR-PARA. 39 004 30 0 DISPLAY "UNEXPECTED ERROR ON ", OP-NAME, " FOR INPUT-FILE ". DISPLAY "FILE STATUS IS ", INPUT-FILE-STATUS. 40 004400 SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. 004500 41 004600 OUTPUT-ERROR SECTION. 004700 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON OUTPUT. 004800 OUTPUT-FROM-PARA. DISPLAY "UNEXPECTED ERROR ON ", OP-NAME, " FOR INDEXED-FILE" 42 004900 DISPLAY "FILE STATUS IS ", INDEXED-FILE-STATUS. 43 005000 005100 SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. 44 005200 END DECLARATIVES. 005300 MAIN-PROCESSING SECTION. 005400 MAIN-PROCEDURE. 005500 MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. 45 005500

STMT SEQNOR -A 1 8.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFCN 5 COPYNAME CHG/DATE

| 46 | 005600 | OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE |
|----|------------|---|
| | 005700 | QUTPUT INDEXED-FILE. |
| 47 | 005800 | IF EROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| 49 | 005900 | PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE. |
| 50 | 005000 | PERFORM LOAD-INDEXED-FILE THRU READ-INPUT-FILE |
| | 0 05 1 0 0 | UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. |
| 51 | 005200 | MOVE "CLOSE" TO DP-NAME. |
| 52 | 006300 | CLOSE INPUT-FILE |
| | 006400 | INDEXED-FILE. |
| 53 | 006500 | IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| 55 | 006600 | STOP RUN. |
| | 005700 | LOAD-INDEXED-FILE. |
| 56 | 006800 | MOVE INPUT-KEY TO INDEX-KEY. |
| 57 | 005900 | MOVE INPUT-NAME TO INDEX-NAME. |
| 58 | 007000 | MOVE INPUT-BAL TO INDEX-BAL. |
| 59 | 007100 | MOVE SPACES TO INDEX-FLD1. |
| 60 | 007200 | MOVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME. |
| 61 | 007 30 0 | WRITE INDEX-RECORD |
| | 007400 | INVALID KEY |
| 62 | 007500 | DISPLAY "WRITE FAILED FOR KEY ", INDEX-KEY, |
| 63 | 007600 | IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| | 007700 | READ-INPUT-FILE. |
| 65 | 007800 | MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. |
| 66 | 007900 | READ INPUT-FILE |
| 67 | 008000 | AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. |
| 68 | 008100 | IF EROR-DCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| | 008200 | ERROR- TERMINATION. |
| 70 | 008 300 | DISPLAY "I-O ERROR OCCURRED - PROCESS TERMINATING". |
| 71 | 008400 | STOP RUN. |
| | | |
| | | |

| TOTAL | INF0(0-4) | WARNING (5-19) | ERROR (20-29) | SEVERE (30-39) | TERMINAL(40-99) |
|-------|-----------|----------------|----------------|----------------|-----------------|
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

84 SOURCE RECORDS READ O COPY RECORDS READ O COPY NEMBERS PROCESSED O SEQUENCE ERRORS O WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

F-7 Appendix F. Sample File-Processing Programs
Indexed File Updating

This program, using dynamic access, updates the indexed file created in the CREATE-INDEXED program.

The input records contain the key for the record, the depositor name, and the amount of the transaction.

When the input record is read, the program tests whether this is a transaction record (in which case, all fields of the record are filled) or a record requesting sequential retrieval of a specific generic class (in which case, only the IN-GEN-FLD of the input record contains data).

Random access is used for the updating and printing of the transaction records. Sequential access is used for the retrieval and printing of all records within one generic class.

```
STMT SEQNBR -A 1 8.. ... 2 ... ... 3 ... ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DATE
```

```
000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION.
 1
    000200 PROGRAM-ID. UPDATEIND.
    000 300
    000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.
 5
    000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION.
    6
    000700 DBJECT-COMPUTER.
                               IBM-538.
    000800 INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION.
    000900 FILE-CONTROL.
               SELECT MASTER-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-INDEXFILE
    001 000
10
    001100
                    ORGANIZATION IS INDEXED
11
    001 20 0
                    ACCESS IS DYNAMIC
12
                    RECORD KEY IS MASTER-KEY
13
    001 300
                    FILE STATUS IS MASTER-FILF-STATUS.
    001400
14
               SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEH
15
    001 500
16
    001600
                   FILE STATUS IS INPUT-FILE-STATUS.
               SELECT PRINT-FILE ASSIGN TO PRINTER-QSYSPRT
17
    001700
                    FILE STATUS IS PRINT-FILE-STATUS.
    001 800
18
    001 900 DATA DIVISION.
19
20
    002000 FILE SECTION.
21
    002100 FD MASTER-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD.
    002200 01 MASTER-RECORD.
22
               05 MASTER-KEY
23
    002 300
24
25
               10 MASTER-GEN-FLD
10 MASTER-DET-FLD
    002400
                                          PICTURE X(5).
    002500
                                          PICTURE X(5).
26
    0 02 60 0
               05 MASTER-FLD1
                                          PICTURE X(10).
               05 MASTER-NAME
05 MASTER-BAL
27
    002700
                                          PICTURE X(20)
28
    0 02 80 0
                                          PICTURE S9(5)V99.
    002900 FD INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD.
29
30
    003000 01
               INPUT-REC.
31
    003100
                05 INPUT-KEY.
32
33
               10 INPUT-GEN-FLD
10 INPUT-DET-FLD
    003200
                                          PICTURE X(5).
    003300
                                          PICTURE X(5).
34
               05 INPUT-NAME
05 INPUT-AMT
    003400
                                          PICTURE X(20)
35
    003500
                                          PICTURE S9(5)V99.
               PRINT-FILE LABEL RECORDS OMITTED
36
    003600 FD
37
    003700
                LINAGE 12 LINES FOOTING AT 9.
38
    003800 01
                PR INT-RECORD-1.
39
    003900
                05 PRINT-KEY
                                      PICTURE X(10).
    004000
                   FILLER
40
                                      PICTURE X(5).
                05
41
    004100
                05
                   PRINT-NAME
                                      PICTURE X(20).
42
    004200
                05
                   FILLER
                                      PICTURE X(5).
43
    0.04 30.0
                05
                   PRINT-BAL
                                      PICTURE $$$$.$$$.99--
44
    004400
                05
                   FILLER
                                      PICTURE X(5).
    004 50 0
                05
                    PR INT-AMT
                                      PICTURE $$$$.$$$.99-.
45
46
    004 60 0
                05
                    FILLER
                                      PICTURE X(5).
47
    004700
                05
                   PRINT-NEW-BAL
                                      PICTURE
                                              5555.555.99-.
               PRINT-RECORD-2
48
    004800 01
                                      PICTURE X(89).
49
    004 900 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION.
    005000 77
               MASTER-FILE-STATUS
                                      PICTURE XX.
50
51
    005100 77
               INPUT-FILE-STATUS
                                      PICTURE XX.
               PRINT-FILE-STATUS
    005200 77
                                      PICTURE XX.
52
    005300 01
               PAGE-HEAD.
53
54
    005400
                05 FILLER
                                      PICTURE X(38) VALUE SPACES.
55
    005500
                05 FILLER
                                      PICTURE X(13) VALUE "UPDATE REPORT".
```

005600 05 FILLER PICTURE X(38) VALUE SPACES. 56 57 005700 01 COLUMN-HEAD. FILLER PICTURE X(6) VALUE "KEY ID". 58 005800 05 VALUE SPACES. 005900 FILLER PICTURE X(9) 59 05 0 06 00 0 FILLER PICTURE X(4) VALUE "NAME". 60 05 PICTURE X(21) VALUE SPACES. 61 006100 05 FILLER PICTURE X(11) VALUE "CUR BALANCE". 006200 05 FILLER 62 PICTURE X(5) VALUE SPACES. 63 006300 05 FILLER PICTURE X(13) VALUE "UPDATE AMOUNT". PICTURE X(4) VALUE SPACES. PICTURE X(11) VALUE "NEW BALANCE". 006400 05 FILLER 64 65 006500 05 FILLER 006600 05 FILLER 66 67 005700 05 FILLER PICTURE X(4) VALUE SPACES. 68 006800 01 PAGE-FOOT. 69 006900 05 FILLER PICTURE X(91) VALUE SPACES. PICTURE A(6) VALUE "PAGE 007000 ۳. 70 05 FILLER PICTURE 99 VALUE 00. 0 07 100 05 PG-NUMBER 71 72 0 07 20 0 PICTURE X VALUE SPACE. 73 007300 01 INPUTEND 007 400 88 THE-END-OF-INPUT VALUE "E". 74 007500 01 ERRORFLAG PICTURE X VALUE SPACE 75 76 007600 88 ERROR-OCCURRED VALUE "1". 77 007700 01 FRROR-DATA. PICTURE X(21) 007800 78 05 FILLER VALUE "STATEMENT FAILING IS ". 79 007900 80 009000 05 PICTURE X(9). PICTURE X(16) VALUE " FILE STATUS IS ". 81 009100 05 FILLER STATUS-VALUE PICTURE XX. 82 008200 05 83 008300 01 INPUT-MESSAGE. 84 008400 05 FILLER PICTURE X(30) VALUE "UNEXPECTED ERROR ON INPUT-FILE" . 85 003500 008600 01 I-G-MESSAGE. 86 87 008700 05 FILLER PICTURE X(31) VALUE "UNEXPECTED ERROR ON MASTER-FILE" . 0 08 80 0 88 008900 01 OUTPUT-MESSAGE. 89 05 FILLER PICTURE X(30) 009000 90 VALUE "UNEXPECTED ERROR ON PRINT-FILE" . 91 0 09 1 0 0 009200 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 92 009300 DECLARATIVES. 009400 INPUT-ERROR SECTION. 009500 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT. 009600 INPUT-ERROR-PARA. 93 009700 DISPLAY INPUT-MESSAGE. 009800 MOVE INPUT-FILE-STATUS TO STATUS-VALUE. 94 DISPLAY ERROR-DATA. 95 0 09 90 0 96 010000 SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. 010100 I-D-ERROR SECTION. USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON I-O. 010200 010300 I-O-ERROR-PARA. 97 010400 DISPLAY I-D-MESSAGE. 98 010500 MOVE MASTER-FILE-STATUS TO STATUS-VALUE. DISPLAY ERROR-DATA. 99 010600 SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. 010700 100 010800 OUTPUT-ERROR SECTION. USE AFJER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON OUTPUT. 010900 011000 OUTPUT-ERROR-PARA. 101 011100 DISPLAY DUTPUT-MESSAGE . 102 011 200 MOVE PRINT-FILE-STATUS TO STATUS-VALUE. 103 011 30 0 DISPLAY ERROR-DATA. SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. 104 011400 011 500 END DECLARATIVES. 011600 MAIN-PROCESSING SECTION. 011700 MAIN-PROCEDURE. 011800 MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. 105 011800 OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE 106 011 90 0 012000 I-D MASTER-FILE 012100 OUTPUT PRINT-FILE. IF ERROR-OCCURRED GUILE PERFORM PAGE-START. PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE. PERFORM PROCESS-DATA THRU READ-INPUT-FILE UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. 107 012200 109 012300 012400 110 012500 111 012600 112 012700 113 012800 CLOSE INPUT-FILE 012900 MASTER-FILE PRINT-FILE. 013000 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 114 013100 116 013200 STOP RUN. 013300 013400 PROCESS-DATA . 013500 IF INPUT-DET-FLD EQUAL SPACES 117 013600 PERFORM INIT-SEQUENTIAL-PROCESS 118 013700 ELSE 119 013800 PERFORM DYNAMIC-PROCESS. 013900 READ-INPUT-FILE. 014000 MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. 120 READ INPUT-FILE 121 014100 014200 AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. 122 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 123 014 300 014400

STMT SEQNBR -A 1 8. ... 2 ... 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 014500 INIT-SEQUENTIAL-PROCESS. MOVE INPUT-GEN-FLD TO MASTER-GEN-FLD. MOVE "START" TO OP-NAME. 125 014600 014700 126 127 014800 START MASTER-FILE 014900 KEY IS NOT LESS THAN MASTER-GEN-FLD INVALID KEY 015000 128 015100 DISPLAY "MASTER-FILE START FAILED: INVALID KEY ". 015200 MASTER-GEN-FLD 129 015300 MOVE HIGH-VALUE TO MASTER-GEN-FLD. IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 130 015400 PERFORM SEQUENTIAL-PROCESS 132 015500 015600 UNTIL INPUT-GEN-FLD NOT EQUAL MASTER-GEN-FLD. 015700 015800 SEQUENTIAL-PROCESS. MOVE "READ NEXT" TO OP-NAME. 133 015900 134 015000 READ MASTER-FILE NEXT RECORD AT END MOVE HIGH-VALUE TO MASTER-GEN-FLD. IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 135 016100 015200 136 INPUT-GEN-FLD EQUAL MASTER-GEN-FLD 138 016300 139 016400 MOVE MASTER-KEY TO PRINT-KEY MOVE MASTER-NAME TO PRINT-NAME MOVE MASTER-BAL TO PRINT-NEW-BAL 140 016500 141 016600 142 016700 PERFORM PRINT-DETAIL . 015800 015900 DYNAMIC-PROCESS. MOVE INPUT-KEY TO MASTER-KEY. Move "Read" to op-name. 143 017000 144 017100 145 017200 READ MASTER-FILE 017300 INVALID KEY DISPLAY "MASTER-FILE READ FAILED: INVALID KEY ". 146 017400 017500 MASTER-KEY 147 017600 MOVE HIGH-VALUE TO MASTER-GEN-FLD. 148 150 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. IF INPUT-GEN-FLD EQUAL MASTER-GEN-FLD 017700 017800 MOVE MASTER-KEY TO PRINT-KEY 017900 151 MOVE MASTER-NAME TO PRINT-NAME MOVE MASTER-NAME TO PRINT-NAME MOVE MASTER-BAL TO PRINT-BAL MOVE INPUT-AMT TO PRINT-AMT ADD INPUT-AMT TO MASTER-BAL 152 019000 153 013100 154 018200 155 018300 156 019400 MOVE MASTER-BAL TO PRINT-NEW-BAL PERFORM PRINT-DETAIL MOVE "REWRITE" TO OP-NAME 157 018500 158 018600 REWRITE MASTER-RECORD 159 018700 018800 INVALID KEY DISPLAY "MASTER-FILE REWRITE FAILED: INVALID KEY ". 160 019900 019000 MASTER-KEY MOVE HIGH-VALUE TO MASTER-GEN-FLD. 161 019100 162 019200 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 019300 PRINT-DETAIL . 164 019400 MOVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME. 019500 WRITE PRINT-RECORD-1 165 019600 AT END-OF-PAGE 019700 PERFORM PAGE-END THROUGH PAGE-START. 166 167 019800 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 169 019900 MOVE SPACES TO PRINT-RECORD-1. 020000 020100 PAGE-END. MOVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME. 170 020200 171 020300 ADD 1 TO PG-NUMBER. WRITE PRINT-RECORD-2 FROM PAGE-FOOT 172 020400 AFTER ADVANCING 3. 020500 173 020600 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 020700 PAGE-START. WRITE PRINT-RECORD-2 FROM PAGE-HEAD 175 020800 020900 AFTER ADVANCING PAGE. 176 021 000 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 178 021100 MOVE SPACES TO PRINT-RECORD-2. WRITE PRINT-RECORD-2 FROM COLUMN-HEAD 179 021 200 AFTER ADVANCING 1 LINE. 021 30 0 180 021 40 0 IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. 182 021 50 0 MOVE SPACES TO PRINT-RECORD-2. 021600 ERROR-TERMINATION. 183 DISPLAY "PROCESS TERMINATING ABNORMALLY". 021700 021800 STOP RUN. 184 TOTAL INFO(0-4) WARNING (5-19) ERROR (20-29) SEVERE (30-39) TERMINAL (40-99) 0 a n ٥ 0

218 SOURCE RECORDS READ

0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY MEMBERS PROCESSED

O SEQUENCE ERRORS

O WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Relative File Creation

This program creates a relative file of summary sales records using sequential access. Each record contains a five-year summary of unit and dollar sales for one week of the year; there are 51 records within the file, each representing one week.

Each input record represents the summary sales for one week of one year. The records for the first week of the last five years (in ascending order) are the first five input records. The records for the second week of the last five years are the next five input records, and so on. Thus, five input records fill one output record.

The RELATIVE KEY for the RELATIVE-FILE is not specified because it is not required for sequential access unless the START statement is used. (For updating, however, the key is INPUT-WEEK.)

```
3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTFCN S COPYNAME
STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B..
                                                                                                                                 CHG/DATE
      000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION.
000200 PROGRAM-ID. CREATEREL.
   1
   2
       000300
       000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.
000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION.
   5
       000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
000700 OBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
       000800 SPECIAL-NAMES. REQUESTOR IS REQUESTOR.
       000900 FILE-CONTROL.
                     SELECT RELATIVE-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILED
  10
       001000
       001100
                          ORGANIZATION IS RELATIVE
  11
                          ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL
FILE STATUS RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS
  12
       001200
       001300
  13
       001400
                     SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEC
       001500
001600
                          FILE STATUS INPUT-FILE-STATUS.
  15
  16
       001700 DATA DIVISION.
       001800 FILE SECTION.
001900 FD RELATIVE-FILE LABEL RECORDS ARE STANDARD.
002000 01 RELATIVE-RECORD-01.
  18
  19
  20
                     05 RELATIVE-RECORD OCCURS 5 TIMES INDEXED BY REL-INDEX.
10 RELATIVE-YEAR PICTURE 99.
10 RELATIVE-WEEK PICTURE 99.
  21
       002100
  22
  23
       002300
  24
       002400
                          10 RELATIVE-UNIT-SALES
                                                             PICTURE S9/6
       002500 10 RELATIVE-DOLLAR-SALES PICTURE S9(9)V99.
002600 FD INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD.
  25
  26
  27
       002700 01
                    INPUT-RECORD.
  28
       002800
                     05 INPUT-YEAR
05 INPUT-WEEK
                                                             PICTURE 99.
       002900
  29
                                                             PICTURE 99.
       003000
                     05 INPUT-UNIT-SALES
                                                             PICTURE S9(6)
  30
  31
       003100
                     05 INPUT-DOLLAR-SALES
                                                             PICTURE S9(9)V99.
      003200 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION.
003300 77 INPUT-FILE-STATUS
  32
  33
                                                             PICTURE XX.
  34
       003400 77
                     RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS
                                                             PICTURE XX.
  35
       003500 01
                     WORK-RECORD.
                     05 WORK-YEAR
05 WORK-WEEK
      003600
                                                             PICTURE 99 VALUE 00.
  36
                                                             PICTURE 99.
PICTURE S9(6)
  37
       003700
                     05 WORK-UNIT-SALES
05 WORK-DOLLAR-SALES
  38
       003800
  39
       003900
                                                             PICTURE S9(9)V99.
  40
       004000 01
                    ERROR-INFO.
       004100
                     05 OP-NAME
  41
                                                             PICTURE X(5).
                     05 FILLER
                                                            PICTURE X(10)
VALUE " ERROR ON ".
  42
       004200
  43
       004300
       004400
                                                             PICTURE X(13).
  44
                     05 FILE-NAME
                                                            PICTURE X(16)
VALUE " FILE STATUS IS ".
  45
       004500
                     05 FILLER
  46
       004600
       004700
                     05 STATUS-VALUE
                                                             PICTURE XX.
       004800 01
                    ERROR-FLAG
88 ERROR-OCCURRED
                                                             PICTURE X VALUE SPACE.
VALUE "1".
  48
       004900
  49
```

STMT SECNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE

| | 005600 | I-O-ERROR SECTION. |
|----|-----------|---|
| | 005700 | USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT-FILE. |
| | 0 05 80 0 | INPUT-FILE-ERROR • |
| 55 | 005900 | MOVE "INPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 56 | 006000 | MDVE INPUT-FILE-STATUS TO STATUS-VALUE. |
| 57 | 005100 | SET ERROR-OCCURRED TO TRUE. |
| | 0 05 20 0 | RELATIVE-FILE-ERROR. |
| 58 | 0 06 30 0 | MOVE "RELATIVE-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 59 | 006400 | MDVE RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS TO STATUS-VALUE. |
| 60 | 006500 | SET ERROR-DCCURRED TO TRUE. |
| | 005600 | END DECLARATIVES. |
| | 006700 | BEGIN-PROCESSING SECTION. |
| | 006800 | PROCESSING-CONTROL. |
| 61 | 006900 | MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. |
| 62 | 007000 | OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE |
| | 007100 | OUTPUT RELATIVE-FILE. |
| 63 | 007200 | IF ERROR-DCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| 65 | 007300 | SET REL-INDEX TO 1. |
| 66 | 007400 | PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE. |
| 67 | 007500 | PERFORM PROCESS-DATA THRU READ-INPUT-FILE |
| | 007600 | UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. |
| 68 | 007700 | CLOSE RELATIVE-FILE INPUT-FILE. |
| 69 | 007800 | IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| 71 | 007900 | STOP RUN. |
| | 0 08 00 0 | ERROR- TERMINATION. |
| 72 | 008100 | DISPLAY ERROR-INFO UPON REQUESTOR. |
| 73 | 005200 | DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED DUE TO I-O ERROR" |
| | 0 08 30 0 | UPON REQUESTOR. |
| 74 | 008400 | STOP RUN. |
| | 008500 | PROCES S-DATA • |
| 75 | 008600 | MOVE INPUT-RECORD TO RELATIVE-RECORD (REL-INDEX). |
| 76 | 008700 | IF REL-INDEX NOT = 5 |
| 77 | 008800 | SET REL-INDEX UP BY 1 |
| | 0 08 90 0 | ELSE |
| 78 | 009000 | SET REL-INDEX TO 1 |
| 79 | 009100 | PERFORM RELATIVE-FILE-WRITE. |
| | 009200 | READ-INPUT-FILE. |
| 80 | 0 09 30 0 | MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. |
| 81 | 009400 | READ INPUT-FILE |
| 82 | 009500 | AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. |
| 83 | 009600 | IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| | 0 09 70 0 | RELATIVE-FILE-WRITE. |
| 85 | 009800 | MDVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME. |
| 86 | 009900 | WRITE RELATIVE-RECORD-01. |
| 87 | 010000 | IF ERROR-OCCURRED GO TO ERROR-TERMINATION. |
| | | |
| | | |

| TOT AL. | INF0(0-4) | WARNING (5-19) | ERROR(20-29) | SEVERE(30-39) | TERMINAL(40-99) |
|---------|-----------|----------------|--------------|---------------|-----------------|
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | Q |
| | | | | | |

- 100 SOURCE RECORDS READ 0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY NEMBERS PROCESSED 0 SEQUENCE ERRORS 0 WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Relative File Updating

This program uses sequential access to update the file of summary sales records created in the CREATE-RELATIVE program. The updating program adds a record for the new year and deletes the oldest year's records from the RELATIVE-FILE.

The input record represents the summary sales record for one week of the preceding year. The RELATIVE KEY for the RELATIVE-FILE is present in the input record as INPUT-WEEK. The RELATIVE KEY is used to check that the record was correctly written.

STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 ... 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. 000200 PRUGRAM-ID. UPDATEREL 3 000300 000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. 4 000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION. 5 000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-538. 000700 DBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-538. 7 000800 INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION. 8 000900 FILE-CONTROL . SELECT RELATIVE-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILED 10 001000 ORGANIZATION IS RELATIVE 11 001 100 001 20 0 ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL 12 001 300 RELATIVE KEY INPUT-WEEK 13 001400 FILE STATUS RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS. 14 15 001 500 SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEE FILE STATUS INPUT-FILE-STATUS. 16 001600 17 001700 001800 DATA DIVISION. 18 001900 FILE SECTION. 002000 FD RELATIVE-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD. 002100 01 RELATIVE-RECORD PICTUR 19 20 PICTURE X(105). 21 002230 FD INPUT-FILE LAREL RECORDS STANDARD. 22 002300 01 INPUT-R"CORD. 23 05 INPUT-YEAR 05 INPUT-WEEK 002400 PICTURE 99. 24 25 002500 PICTURE 99. 05 INPUT-UNIT-SALES 05 INPUT-DOLLAR-SALES 002600 PICTURE S9(6) 26 27 002700 PICTURE S9(9)V99. 002800 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. 28 29 002900 77 RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. 30 003000 77 INPUT-FILE-STATUS PICTURE XX. 31 003100 01 INPUTEND PICTURE & VALUE SPACE. VALUE "E". 88 THE-END-OF-INPUT 003200 32 003300 01 WORK-RECOPD. 33 05 FILLER 05 CURRENT-WORK-YEARS PICTURE X(21). 003400 34 35 003500 PICTURE X(84). 003600 NEW-WORK-YEAR. 36 05 37 003700 10 WORK-YEAR PICTURE 99. 38 003800 10 WORK-WEEK PICTURE 99. 10 WORK-UNIT-SALES 39 003900 PICTURE S9(6) 40 004000 10 WORK-DOLLAR-SALES PICTURE 59(9) V99. 004100 66 WORK-OUT-RECORD RENAMES 41 42 004200 CURRENT-WORK-YEARS THROUGH NEW-WORK-YEAR. 0C4300 01 ERROR-MESSAGE. 43 05 OP-NAME 44 004400 PICTURE X(7). 45 004 50 0 05 FILLER PICTUPE X(10) VALUE " ERROR ON ". PICTURE X(13). 46 0.04.60.0 47 05 FILE-NAME 004700 05 FILLER 48 004 60 0 PICTURE X(16) 004900 VALUE " FILF STATUS IS ". 49 50 005000 05 STATUS-VALUE PICTURE XX. 005100 51 52 005200 PROCEDURE DIVISION. 005300 DECLARATIVES. 005400 I-O-ERROR SECTION. 005500 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON RELATIVE-FILE.

STAT SEQNBR -A 1 8.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DATE

| | 005600 | INPUT-FILE. |
|----|------------|---|
| | 005700 | ERROR-PROCEDURE. |
| 53 | 005800 | DISPLAY ERRUR-MESSAGE. |
| 54 | 005900 | DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATING". |
| 55 | 005000 | STOP RUN. |
| | 005100 | END DECLARATIVES. |
| | 006200 | MAIN-PROCEDURE SECTION. |
| | 005300 | BEGIN-PROCESSING. |
| 56 | 006400 | MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. |
| 57 | 005500 | MOVE "INPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 58 | 006600 | OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE. |
| 59 | 006700 | MOVE "RELATIVE-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 60 | 006800 | OPEN I-O RELATIVE-FILE. |
| 61 | 006900 | PERFORM READ-FILES. |
| 62 | 007000 | PERFORM UPDATE-RELATIVE-FILE THRU READ-FILES |
| | 007100 | UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. |
| 63 | 007200 | MOVE "CLOSE" TO OP-NAME. |
| 64 | 007300 | MOVE "INPUT-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 65 | 007400 | CLOSE INPUT-FILE. |
| 66 | 007500 | MOVE "RELATIVE-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 67 | 007600 | CLOSE RELATIVE-FILE. |
| 68 | 007700 | STOP RUN. |
| | 007800 | UPDATE-RELATIVE-FILE. |
| 69 | 007900 | MOVE "REWRITE" TO OP-NAME. |
| 70 | 0 08 00 0 | MOVE "RELATIVE-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 71 | 0 08 1 0 0 | REWRITE RELATIVE-RECORD FROM WORK-OUT-RECORD. |
| | 008200 | READ-FILES. |
| 72 | 0 08 30 0 | MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. |
| 73 | 005400 | MOVE "RELATIVE-FILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 74 | 003500 | READ RELATIVE-FILE INTO WORK-RECORD |
| 75 | 008600 | AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. |
| 76 | 008700 | MOVE "INPUTFILE" TO FILE-NAME. |
| 77 | 008800 | READ INPUT-FILE INTO NEW-WORK-YEAR |
| 78 | 009900 | AT END SET THE-END-DF-INPUT TO IRVE. |

| TOTAL | INF0(0-4) | WARNING (5-19) | ERROR (20-29) | SEVERE (30-39) | TERMINAL(40-99) |
|-------|-----------|----------------|----------------|----------------|-----------------|
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

89 SOURCE RECORDS READ 0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY MEMBERS PROCESSED 0 SEQUENCE ERRORS 0 WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Relative File Retrieval

This program, using dynamic access, retrieves the summary file created by the CREATE-RELATIVE program.

The records of the INPUT-FILE contain one required field (INPUT-WEEK), which is the RELATIVE KEY for RELATIVE-FILE, and one optional field (END-WEEK). An input record containing data in INPUT-WEEK and spaces in END-WEEK requests a printout for that one specific RELATIVE-RECORD; the record is retrieved through random access. An input record containing data in both INPUT-WEEK and END-WEEK requests a printout of all the RELATIVE-FILE records within the RELATIVE KEY range of INPUT-WEEK through END-WEEK, inclusive; these records are retrieved through sequential access.

STAT SEGNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 4 ... 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DATE

```
000100 IDENTIFICATION DIVISION.
   000200 PROGRAM-ID. RETRVEREL.
 3
   000300
 4
    000400 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION
    000500 CONFIGURATION SECTION.
 5
    000600 SOURCE-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
 6
    000700 DBJECT-COMPUTER. IBM-S38.
000800 SPECIAL-NAMES. REQUESTOR IS REQUESTOR.
 8
    000 900 INPUT-DUTPUT SECTION.
 9
    001000 FILE-CONTROL .
10
    001100
                SELECT RELATIVE-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILED
11
12
    001 200
                   ORGANIZATION IS RELATIVE
                    ACCESS IS DYNAMIC
    001 300
13
14
    001 40 0
                    RELATIVE KEY INPUT-WEEK
15
    001 50 0
                    FILE STATUS IS RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS.
16
    001600
               SELECT INPUT-FILE ASSIGN TO DISK-FILEF
                    FILE STATUS IS INPUT-FILE-STATUS.
17
    001700
    001 800
                SELECT PRINT-FILE ASSIGN TO PRINTER-QSYSPRT
18
   001900
002000
19
                    FILE STATUS IS PRINT-FILE-STATUS.
20
21
    002100 DATA DIVISION.
22
    002200 FILE SECTION.
23
    002300 FD RELATIVE-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD.
    002400 01
                RELATIVE-RECORD-01.
24
25
    002500
                05 RELATIVE-RECORD OCCURS 5 TIMES INDEXED BY REL-INDEX.
26
    0 02 60 0
                    10 RELATIVE-YEAR
                                                PICTURE 99.
27
    002700
                    10 RELATIVE-WEEK
                                                PICTURE 99.
28
    002800
                    10 RELATIVE-UNIT-SALES
                                               PICTURE S9(6)
                    10 RELATIVE-DOLLAR-SALES PICTURE S9(9)V99.
29
    002900
               INPUT-FILE LABEL RECORDS STANDARD.
INPUT-RECORD.
30
    003000 FD
31
    003100 01
32
                05 INPUT-WEEK
    003200
                                                PICTURE 99.
    003300
                05 END-WEEK
33
                                                PICTURE 99.
34
    003400 FD
                PRINT-FILE LABEL RECORDS OMITTED.
               PRINT-RECORD.
35
    003500 01
    003600
                05 PR IN T- WEEK
                                                PICTURE 99.
36
37
    003700
                05
                   FILLER
                                                PICTURE X(5).
38
    003800
                05
                   PRINT-YEAR
                                                PICTURE 99.
    003900
39
                   FILLER
                05
                                                PICTURE X(5)
40
    004000
                05
                    PRINT-UNIT-SALES
                                                PICTURE ZZZ.ZZ9.
4 L
    004100
                05
                    FILLER
                                                PICTURE X(5).
42
    004200
                05
                   PRINT-DOLLAR-SALES
                                                PICTURE $$$$,$33,$$$.99.
43
    004 300 WORKING-STORAGE SECTION.
    004400 77 RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS
44
                                                PICTURE XX.
45
    004500 77
               INPUT-FILE-STATUS
                                                PICTURE XX.
                                                PICTURE XX.
    004600 77
004700 77
               PRINT-FILE-STATUS
HIGH-WEEK
46
47
                                                PICTURE 99 VALUE 53.
48
    004800 77
               OP -NAME
                                                PICTURE X(9).
49
    004 900 01 INPUTEND
                                                PICTURE X VALUE SPACE.
    0 05 00 0
                88 THE-END-DE-INPUT
                                                VALUE "F".
50
    005100 PROCEDURE DIVISION.
51
    005200 DECLARATIVES.
    005300 RELATIVE-FILE-ERROR SECTION.
    005400
                     USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON RELATIVE-FILE.
    005500 RELATIVE-ERROR-MSG.
```

STMT SEQNBR -A 1 8.. ... 2 3 4 5 6 7 .IDENTFON S COPYNAME CHG/DATE 52 005600 DISPLAY OP-NAME. " ERROR ON RELATIVE-FILE ". 53 0 05 70 0 DISPLAY "FILE STATUS VALUE IS ", RELATIVE-FILE-STATUS. DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED ". 54 0 05 80 0 55 005900 STOP RUN. 006000 INPUT-FILE-ERROR SECTION. 0.0610.0 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON INPUT-FILE. 006200 INPUT-ERROR-MSG. DISPLAY OP-NAME, " FRPOR ON INPUT-FILE " 56 006300 DISPLAY "FILE STATUS VALUE IS ", INPUT-FILE-STATUS. DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED ". 57 006400 58 006500 006600 STOP RUN. 59 006700 PRINT-FILE-ERROR SECTION. 006800 USE AFTER STANDARD ERROR PROCEDURE ON PRINT-FILE. 006 900 PRINT-ERROR-MSG. 60 007000 DISPLAY OP-NAME. " ERROR ON PRINT-FILE ". DISPLAY "FILE STATUS VALUE IS ", PRINT-FILE-STATUS. DISPLAY "PROCESSING TERMINATED ". 61 007100 007200 62 63 007300 STOP RUN. 007400 END DECLARATIVES. 007500 MAIN-PROCEDURE SECTION. 007600 MAIN-PROCESSING. 007700 MOVE "OPEN" TO OP-NAME. 64 OPEN INPUT INPUT-FILE RELATIVE-FILE 007800 65 OUTPUT PRINT-FILE. 007900 66 003000 MOVE SPACES TO PRINT-RECORD. PERFORM READ-INPUT-FILE. PERFORM CONTROL-PROCESS THRU READ-INPUT-FILE 67 008100 0 05 20 0 68 008 30 0 UNTIL THE-END-OF-INPUT. MOVE "CLOSE" TO OP-NAME. 69 009400 CLOSE RELATIVE-FILF 005500 70 003600 INPUT-FILE 008700 PRINT-FILE. STOP RUN. 71 008800 008900 CONTROL-PROCESS. 72 009000 IF (END-WEEK = SPACES OR END-WEEK = 00) 73 009100 PERFORM RANDOM-PROCESS ELSE 009200 PERFORM SEQUENTIAL -PROCESS. 74 009300 009400 READ-INPUT-FILE. 009500 MOVE "READ" TO DP-NAME. 75 READ INPUT-FILE 009600 76 77 0 09 70 0 AT END SET THE-END-OF-INPUT TO TRUE. 009800 RANDOM-PROCESS. 009900 MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. 78 0.09.90.0 READ RELATIVE-FILE 79 010000 80 010100 INVALID KEY MOVE HIGH-WEEK TO RELATIVE-WEEK(1). 81 010200 IF RELATIVE-WEEK(1) NOT EQUAL HIGH-WEEK PERFORM PRINT-SUMMARY VARYING REL-INDEX FROM 1 BY 1 82 010.300 010400 UNTIL REL-INDEX > 5. 010500 SEQUENTIAL-PROCESS. 83 010600 MOVE "READ" TO OP-NAME. READ RELATIVE-FILE 64 010700 INVALID KEY MOVE HIGH-WEEK TO RELATIVE-WEEK(1). PERFORM READ-PEL-SEQ 010800 85 86 010900 011000 UNTIL RELATIVE-WEEK(1) GREATER THAN END-WEEK. STMT SEQNBR -A 1 B.. ... 2 3 ... 4 ... 5 ... 5 ... 6 ... 7 .IDENTECN S COPYNAME CHG/DATS 011100 011200 READ-REL-SEQ. 011 30 0 PERFORM PRINT-SUMMARY VARYING REL-INDEX FROM 1 BY 1 87 011400 UNTIL REL-INDEX > 5. MOVE "READ NEXT" TO OP-NAME. 011 500 88 READ RELATIVE-FILE NEXT RECORD 89 011 60 0 90 011700 AT END MOVE HIGH-WEEK TO RELATIVE-WEEK(1). 011800 PRINT-SUMMARY. 91 011 90 0 MOVE RELATIVE-YEAR (REL-INDEX) TO PRINT-YEAP. 92 012000 MOVE RELATIVE-WEEK (REL-INDEX) TO PRINT-WEEK. MOVE RELATIVE-UNIT-SALES (REL-INDEX) TO PRINT-UNIT-SALES. 93 012100 94 012200 MOVE RELATIVE-DOLLAR-SALES(REL-INDEX) TO PRINT-DOLLAR-SALES. MOVE "WRITE" TO OP-NAME. 95 012300 96 012400 WRITE PRINT-RECORD AFTER ADVANCING 2 LINES. TOTAL INF0(0-4) WAR NING (5-19) ERROR(20-29) SEVERE (30-39) TERMINAL (40-99) 0 0 0 0 0 0 124 SOURCE RECORDS READ 0 COPY RECORDS READ 0 COPY MEMBERS PROCESSED O SEQUENCE ERRORS O WAS THE HIGHEST SEVERITY MESSAGE ISSUED

Appendix G. COBOL Reserved Words

The following COBOL reserved word list identifies all reserved words in:

- IBM System/38 COBOL
- American National Standard COBOL, X3.23-1974
- CODASYL COBOL (from CODASYL COBOL Journal of Development dated December 1978).

Each word in the list is preceded by an identifier that is associated with one of the following meanings:

| Blank | A System/38 COBOL reserved word from the 1974 ANS standard. |
|-------|--|
| 1 | A System/38 COBOL reserved word that is an IBM extension to the |
| | 1974 ANS standard. |
| 2 | A COBOL reserved word from the 1974 ANS standard that is not |
| | used by System/38 COBOL. These words should not be used if |
| | compatibility is important to an installation. If used, a diagnostic |
| | message will be issued. |

3 A CODASYL COBOL reserved word that is not included in the 1974 ANS standard and is not supported by System/38 COBOL as an extension. If used, a diagnostic message will be issued. These words are included for compatibility.

ACCEPT ACCESS 1 ACQUIRE ADD ADVANCING AFTER ALL **3 ALPHABET** ALPHABETIC **3 ALPHANUMERIC** 3 ALPHANUMERIC-EDITED ALSO ALTER ALTERNATE AND 3 ANY ARE AREA AREAS ASCENDING ASSIGN AT **1 ATTRIBUTE** AUTHOR BEFORE **3 BEGINNING** 3 BINARY 3 BIT 3 BITS BLANK BLOCK **3 BOOLEAN** BOTTOM ΒY CALL CANCEL 2 CD 2 CF 2 CH CHARACTER CHARACTERS 2 CLOCK-UNITS CLOSE 2 COBOL 2 CODE CODE-SET COLLATING 2 COLUMN 1 COMMA

1 COMMIT

1 COMMITMENT

3 COMMON 2 COMMUNICATION COMP 1 COMP-3 1 COMP-4 COMPUTATIONAL 1 COMPUTATIONAL-3 1 COMPUTATIONAL-4 COMPUTE CONFIGURATION CONNECT CONTAINS **3 CONTENT 3 CONTINUE** 1 CONTROL 1 CONTROL-AREA 2 CONTROLS **3 CONVERSION 3 CONVERTING** COPY CORR CORRESPONDING COUNT CURRENCY **3 CURRENT** DATA DATE DATE-COMPILED DATE-WRITTEN DAY 3 DAY-OF-WEEK 3 DB 3 DB-ACCESS-CONTROL-KEY **3 DB-DATA-NAME 3 DB-EXCEPTION** 1 DB-FORMAT-NAME 3 DB-RECORD-NAME 3 DB-SET-NAME 3 DB-STATUS 2 DE **DEBUG-CONTENTS** DEBUG-ITEM 3 DEBUG-LENGTH DEBUG-LINE DEBUG-NAME DEBUG-NUMERIC-CONTENTS 3 3 DEBUG-SIZE DEBUG-START 3 3 DEBUG-SUB DEBUG-SUB-1 DEBUG-SUB-2 DEBUG-SUB-3

3 DEBUG-SUB-ITEM 3 DEBUG-SUB-N 3 DEBUG-SUB-NUM DEBUGGING DECIMAL-POINT DECLARATIVES DELETE DELIMITED DELIMITER DEPENDING DESCENDING 2 DESTINATION 2 DETAIL 2 DISABLE **3 DISCONNECT** DISPLAY 3 DISPLAY-n DIVIDE DIVISION DOWN 1 DROP **3 DUPLICATE** DUPLICATES DYNAMIC 2 EGI ELSE 2 EMI 3 EMPTY 2 ENABLE END 3 END-ADD 3 END-CALL 3 END-COMPUTE 3 END-DELETE 3 END-DIVIDE 3 END-EVALUATE 3 END-IF 3 END-MULTIPLY END-OF-PAGE 3 END-PERFORM 3 END-READ 3 END-RECEIVE 3 END-RETURN 3 END-REWRITE END-SEARCH 3 END-START 3 END-STRING 3 3 END-SUBTRACT 3 END-UNSTRING 3 END-WRITE

| 3 | ENDING ENTER ENVIRONMENT EOP |
|--------------------------------------|---|
| 3 3 | EQUAL EQUALS ERASE |
| 2 | ERROR ESI EVALUATE |
| 3 | EVERY EXCEEDS |
| 3 | EXCEPTION EXCLUSIVE |
| 3 | |
| 3 1 | EXTERNAL EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY |
| 3 2 3 3 1 3 2 2 | FALSE FD FILE FILE-CONTROL FILLER FINAL FIND FINISH FIRST FOOTING FOR FORMAT FREE FROM GENERATE |
| 3 3 | GET GIVING GLOBAL |
| 0 | GC GREATER CREATER |
| 2 | GROUP |
| - | HIGH-VALUE HIGH-VALUES |
| | I-O I-O-CONTROL IDENTIFICATION IF |

IN INDEX 3 INDEX-n INDEXED 1 INDIC 2 INDICATE **1 INDICATOR 1 INDICATORS** INITIAL **3 INITIALIZE** 2 INITIATE INPUT INPUT-OUTPUT INSPECT INSTALLATION INTO INVALID IS JUST JUSTIFIED 3 KEEP KEY LABEL LAST 3 LD LEADING LEFT 2 LENGTH LESS 2 LIMIT 2 LIMITS LINAGE LINAGE-COUNTER LINE 2 LINE-COUNTER LINES LINKAGE 3 LOCALLY LOCK LOW-VALUE LOW-VALUES 3 MEMBER MEMORY MERGE 2 MESSAGE MODE 1 MODIFIED

3 MODIFY MODULES MOVE MULTIPLE MULTIPLY NATIVE NEGATIVE NEXT NO 3 NON-NULL NOT 3 NULL 2 NUMBER NUMERIC 3 NUMERIC-EDITED **OBJECT-COMPUTER** OCCURS 0F OFF OMITTED ON OPEN OPTIONAL OR 3 ORDER ORGANIZATION 3 OTHER OUTPUT OVERFLOW 3 OWNER 3 PACKED-DECIMAL 3 PADDING PAGE 2 PAGE-COUNTER PERFORM 2 PF 2 PH PIC PICTURE 2 PLUS POINTER POSITION POSITIVE 2 PRINTING 1 PRIOR PROCEDURE PROCEDURES PROCEED

| 1 | PROCESS PROGRAM |
|--------|----------------------------------|
| 3 3 | PROGRAM-ID PROTECTED PURGE |
| 2 | QUEUE QUOTE QUOTES |
| 2 | RANDOM RD |
| 2 | READ |
| 3 | REALM |
| 3 2 | REALMS RECEIVE |
| 3 | RECONNECT |
| 3 | RECORD-NAME |
| | RECORDS |
| · 、 | REEL |
| 3 | REFERENCE-MODIFIER |
| | REFERENCES RELATIVE |
| | RELEASE |
| | REMOVAL |
| 3 | RENAMES REPLACE |
| 2 | REPLACING |
| 2 | REPORTING |
| 2 | REPORTS |
| 2 | RESERVE |
| 3 | RETAINING |
| 3 | RETURN |
| | REVERSED |
| | REWRITE |
| 2 | RH |
| 1 | RIGHT ROLLBACK |
| 1 | ROLLING |
| | ROUNDED RUN |

SAME SD SEARCH SECTION SECURITY 2 SEGMENT SEGMENT-LIMIT SELECT 2 SEND SENTENCE SEPARATE SEQUENCE SEQUENTIAL SET 3 SETS SIGN SIZE SORT SORT-MERGE 2 SOURCE SOURCE-COMPUTER SPACE SPACES SPECIAL-NAMES STANDARD STANDARD-1 3 STANDARD-2 START 1 STARTING STATUS STOP 3 STORE STRING 2 SUB-QUEUE-1 2 SUB-QUEUE-2 2 SUB-QUEUE-3 3 SUB-SCHEMA 1 SUBFILE SUBTRACT 2 SUM 2 SUPPRESS 2 SYMBOLIC SYNC SYNCHRONIZED 2 TABLE TALLYING TAPE 3 TENANT

TERMINAL 2 TERMINATE 3 TEST 2 TEXT THAN 1 THEN THROUGH THRU TIME TIMES TO TOP TRAILING 1 TRANSACTION 1 TRUE 2 TYPE UNIT UNSTRING UNTIL UP **3 UPDATE** UPON USAGE 3 USAGE-MODE USE USING VALUE VALUES VARYING WHEN WITH 3 WITHIN WORDS WORKING-STORAGE WRITE ZERO ZEROES ZEROS +-* / ** > < =

Appendix H. EBCDIC and ASCII Collating Sequences

The ascending collating sequences for both the EBCDIC (Extended Binary Coded Decimal Interchange Code) and ASCII (American National Standard Code for Information Interchange) character sets are given in this appendix. Decimal positions within the sequence are given, as well as the binary representation, symbol, meaning for each character, and corresponding decimal position within the other sequence. The symbols with an asterisk * in the righthand column do not correspond to the same symbol in the other collating sequence.

Note: When using the literal option of the alphabet-name clause, 1 must be added to the number shown in this appendix to specify the corresponding character. (The numbers in this appendix run from 0 to 255; the numbers in the literal option run from 1 to 256.)

EBCDIC Collating Sequence

| Collating Sequence | Binary Representation | Symbol | Meaning | ASCII Number |
|---|--|---|---|--|
| 0 | 0000000 | | | 0 |
| 64 | 01000000 | SP | Space | 32 |
| 74 75 76 77 | 01001010 01001011 01001100 01001101 | ¢ < < | Cent sign Period, decimal point Less-than sign Left parenthesis | 91 * 46 60 40 |
| 78 79 | 01001110 01001111 | + | Plus sign Vertical bar, logical OR | 43 33 * |
| 80 · | 01010000 | & | Ampersand | 38 |
| 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 | 01011010 01011011 01011100 01011101 01011110 01011111 01100000 01100001 | !\$*);「-/ | Exclamation point Dollar sign Asterisk Right parenthesis Semicolon Logical NOT Minus, hyphen Slash | 93 * 36 42 41 59 94 45 47 |
| 106 107 108 109 110 111 | 01101010 01101011 01101100 01101101 011011 | % -> ? | Broken vertical bar Comma Percent sign Underscore Greater-than sign Question mark | 124 * 44 37 95 62 63 |
| 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 | 01111001 01111010 01111011 01111100 01111101 01111101 0111111 | · · # @ - = = | Accent grave Colon Number sign At sign Apostrophe, prime Equal sign Quotation mark | 96 58 35 64 39 61 34 |
| 129 130 131 132 133 134 135 136 137 | 10000001 10000010 10000011 10000100 10000101 10000110 10000111 10001000 10001001 | a b c d e f g h i | | 97 98 99 100 101 102 103 104 105 |

H-2

| Collating Sequence | Binary Representation | Symbol | Meaning | ASCII Number | |
|--|--|--|---------------|---|--|
| 145 146 147 | 10010001 10010010 10010011 | j k l | | 106 107 108 | |
| 148 149 150 151 152 | 10010100 10010101 10010110 10010111 10010111 | m n o p q | | 109 110 111 112 113 | |
| 153 161 162 | 10011001 10100001 10100010 | r ~ \$ | Tilde | 114 126 115 | |
| 163 164 165 166 167 168 | 10100011 10100100 10100101 10100110 10100111 10101000 | u v w x y | | 116 117 118 119 120 121 | |
| 169 192 193 | 10101001 11000000 11000001 | z A | Left brace | 122 123 65 | |
| 194 195 196 197 198 199 200 201 | 11000010 11000011 11000100 11000101 11000110 11000111 1100100 | B C D F G H I | | 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 | |
| 208 209 210 211 212 213 214 215 216 217 | 11010000 11010001 11010010 11010011 11010100 11010101 11010110 11010111 110110 | אָסא ד א א סה מג. איז א ד א א סה מג | Right brace | 125 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 | |
| 224 | 11100000 | ١ | Reverse slant | 92 | |
| 226 227 228 229 230 231 232 | 11100010 11100011 11100100 11100101 11100110 11100111 11100100 | S T U V W X Y | | 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 | |

C

| Collating Sequence | Binary Representation | Symbol | Meaning | ASCII Number |
|-----------------------|--------------------------|--------|---------|-----------------|
| 233 | 11101001 | Z | | 90 |
| • | | _ | | |
| 240 | 11110000 | 0 | | 48 |
| 241 | 11110001 | 1 | | 49 |
| 242 | 11110010 | 2 | | 50 |
| 243 | 11110011 | 3 | | 51 |
| 244 | 11110100 | 4 | | 52 |
| 245 | 11110101 | 5 | | 53 |
| 246 | 11110110 | 6 | | 54 |
| 247 | 11110111 | 7 | | 55 |
| 248 | 11111000 | 8 | | 56 |
| 249 | 11111001 | 9 | | 57 |
| 1. | | | | |
|]. | | | | |
| 255 | | | | |

ASCII Collating Sequence

(

| Collating Sequence | Binary Representation | Symbol | Meaning | EBCDIC Number |
|-----------------------|--------------------------|--------|-----------------------|------------------|
| 0 | 00000000 | | Null | 0 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| . 32 | 00100000 | SP | Space | 64 |
| 33 | 00100001 | 1 | Exclamation point | 79 * |
| 34 | 00100010 | п | Quotation mark | 127 |
| 35 | 00100011 | # | Number sign | 123 |
| 36 | 00100100 | \$ | Dollar sign | 91 |
| 37 | 00100101 | % | Percent | 108 |
| 38 | 00100110 | & | Ampersand | 80 |
| 39 | 00100111 | • | Apostrophe, prime | 125 |
| 40 | 00101000 | (| Opening parenthesis | 77 |
| 41 | 00101001 |) | Closing parenthesis | 93 |
| 42 | 00101010 | * | Asterisk | 92 |
| 43 | 00101011 | + | Plus | 78 |
| 44 | 00101100 | , | Comma | 107 |
| 45 | 00101101 | - | Hyphen, minus | 96 |
| 46 | 00101110 | | Period, decimal point | 75 |
| 47 | 00101111 | / | Slant | 97 |
| 48 | 00110000 | 0 | | 240 |
| 49 | 00110001 | 1 | | 241 |
| 50 | 00110010 | 2 | | 242 |
| 51 | 00110011 | 3 | | 243 |
| 52 | 00110100 | 4 | | 244 |
| 53 | 00110101 | 5 | | 245 |
| 54 | 00110110 | 6 | | 246 |
| 55 | 00110111 | | | 247 |
| 56 | 00111000 | 8 | | 248 |
| 57 | 00111001 | 9 | | 249 |
| 58 | 00111010 | : | Colon | 122 |
| 59 | 00111011 | ; | Semicolon | 94 |
| 60 | 00111100 | < | Less-than sign | 76 |
| 61 | | = | Equals | 126 |
| 62 | | 2 | Greater-than sign | |
| 63 | | | Question mark | |
| 64 | 0100000 | A A | At sign | 124 |
| | | | | 193 |
| 60 | 01000010 | | | 194 |
| 01 | 01000011 | | | 190 |
| 60 | 01000100 | F | | 190 |
| 70 | 01000101 | F | | 108 |
| 71 | 01000110 | Ġ | | 190 |
| 72 | 01001000 | н | | 200 |
| 73 | 01001001 | I | | 200 |
| 74 | 01001010 | IJ | | 209 |
| 75 | 01001011 | ĸ | | 210 |
| 76 | 01001100 | L | | 211 |
| 77 | 01001101 | М | | 212 |

| Collating | Binary | | | EBCDIC |
|-----------|----------------|--------|-----------------|----------|
| Sequence | Representation | Symbol | Meaning | Number |
| | | | | 1. umber |
| 78 | 01001110 | N | | 213 |
| 79 | 01001111 | 0 | | 214 |
| 80 | 01010000 | P | | 215 |
| 81 | 01010001 | lo | | 216 |
| 82 | 01010010 | Ŕ | | 217 |
| 83 | 01010010 | S | | 226 |
| 84 | 01010100 | ΙT | | 220 |
| 85 | 01010101 | ŮŮ | | 228 |
| 86 | 01010101 | Ň | | 220 |
| 87 | 01010111 | Ŵ | | 230 |
| 88 | 01011000 | x | | 230 |
| 89 | 01011000 | ΪŶ | | 232 |
| 90 | 01011001 | | | 202 |
| 01 | 01011010 | r - | Opening bracket | 74 * |
| 09 | 01011100 | | Boverse slant | 994 |
| 03 | 01011100 | l ì | Closing bracket | 00 * |
| 04 | 01011101 | Ĭ | Circumflox | 90 |
| 54 | 01011110 | | Logical NOT | 50 |
| 05 | 01011111 | | Undergeore | 100 |
| 96 | 01100000 | 1 | Grave accent | 103 |
| 07 | 01100000 | a | | 121 |
| 09 | 01100001 | ĥ | | 125 |
| 90 | 01100010 | | | 191 |
| 100 | 01100011 | 4 | | 130 |
| 100 | 01100100 | | | 192 |
| 101 | 01100101 | f | | 194 |
| 102 | 01100110 | a | | 134 |
| 103 | 01101000 | h | | 136 |
| 104 | 01101000 | i | | 197 |
| 105 | 01101001 | i | | 145 |
| 100 | 01101010 | l k | | 140 |
| 107 | 01101011 | l î | | 140 |
| 100 | 01101100 | m | | 147 |
| 109 | 01101101 | n | | 140 |
| 111 | 01101111 | | | 140 |
| 110 | 01110000 | | | 151 |
| 112 | 01110001 | | | 159 |
| 110 | 01110010 | l r | | 152 |
| 115 | 01110011 | Ś | | 162 |
| 116 | 01110100 | l t | | 163 |
| 117 | 01110101 | l ŭ | | 164 |
| 110 | 01110101 | v | | 165 |
| 119 | 01110111 | Ŵ | | 166 |
| 120 | 01111000 | x | | 167 |
| 191 | 01111001 | | | 168 |
| 121 | 01111010 | 7 | | 169 |
| 122 | 01111011 | 1 | Opening brace | 192 |
| 194 | 01111100 | | Vertical line | 106 * |
| 125 | 01111101 | | Closing brace | 208 |
| 126 | 01111110 | 1~ | Tilde | 161 |
| 140 | | | | |

Appendix I. File Structure Support Summary and Status Key Values

Figure I-1 lists the required and optional entries for various types of file structures supported. Any file with a device type of disk can be assigned to a data base or non-data base auxiliary storage file. The codes used are as follows:

Not applicable

- B Optional for a work station that supports subfiles
- C Optional entry, treated as comments only
- D Optional for file assigned to -DATABASE, not allowed if not assigned to a data base file
- I Optional for a file opened for input or input-output
- 0 Optional
- R Required
- S Required for a work station that supports subfiles
- X Required; syntax-checked, but treated as documentation.

Figure I-2 contains status key values and their meanings.

| | ARD READER | ARD PUNCH | ARD PRINT | ARD PUNCHPRINT | RINTER | APE | ISK SEQ | ISK REL SEQ | ISK REL RANDOM | ISK REL DYNAMIC | ISK IDX SEQ | ISK IDX RANDOM | ISK IDX DYNAMIC | VORK STATION | ISKETTE | ORMATFILE | J |
|--|-------------|-------------|-------------|----------------|-------------|---|---------------------------------|-------------|-----------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------------|----------|
| DEVICE TYPE | с С | с С | с С | ပ | ٩ | H | ۵ | | | | | | ۵ | 5 | | Ű. | |
| ENVIRONMENT DIVISION RERUN RECORDS SAME AREA RECORD AREA SORT AREA SORT AREA SORT MERGE AREA MULTIPLE FILE TAPE COMMITMENT CONTROL SELECT ASSIGN OPTIONAL ORGANIZATION SEQUENTIAL RELATIVE INDEXED TRANSACTION ACCESS SEQUENTIAL RANDOM DYNAMIC RESERVE RELATIVE KEY RECORD KEY DUPLICATES FILE STATUS | С О С О С С | C O C O | C O C O | C O C O | C O C O | C O C O C C . R R I O | C O C O C C . D R R I O O O O O | C . C | C O C O D R R . R R | C O C O D R R . R | C O C O D R R . R R . O O C . R D O | C O C O D R R . R R R | C O C O D R R . R R R C . R D O | C O C O | C O C O | C O C O R R I O O O O O |) |
| DATA DIVISION LABEL RECORDS STANDARD OMITTED VALUE OF OF | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | R O O C | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | X R C | x o o c | X R C | X R C | |
| BLOCK CONTAINS RECORD CONTAINS DATA RECORDS CODE-SET LINAGE | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 | |

Figure I-1 (Part 1 of 3). File Structure Support

| | CARD READER | CARD PUNCH | CARD PRINT | CARD PUNCHPRIN | PRINTER | TAPE | DISK SEQ | DISK REL SEQ | DISK REL RANDOM | DISK REL DYNAMIG | DISK IDX SEQ | DISK IDX RANDOM | disk idx dynamig | WORK STATION | |
|--------------------|-------------|------------|------------|----------------|---------|------|----------|--------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|--|
| | | | | | | | | | | ; | | | | - | |
| PROCEDURE DIVISION | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| OPEN | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | |
| INPUT | R | • | · | • | • | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | • | |
| OUTPUT | • | R | R | R | R | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | • | |
| I-0 | | • | • | • | • | • | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | R | |
| NO REWIND | • | • | • | • | • | I | • | | • | • | | • | • | • | |
| REVERSED | • | • | • | • | • | Ι | • | • | • | · | | • | • | • | |
| EXTEND | | • | • | • | • | 0 | 0 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| CLOSE | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | R | |
| REEL/UNIT | • | • | • | • | • | 0 | • | • | • | | • | • | • | • | |
| REMOVAL | • | | • | • | • | 0 | • | | • | • | • | • | · | • | |
| NO REWIND | • | • | • | • | • | 0 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| NO REWIND | • | • | • | • | • | 0 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| WITH LOCK | 0 | Ō | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| READ | I. | • | • | • | | I | Ι | Ι | I | Ι | Ι | Ι | Ι | Т | |
| NEXT | | • | • | • | | • | • | • | • | I | • | | Ι | | |
| FIRST | | | • | • | • | | • | | | | | | D | | |
| LAST | | | | • | • | | • | | | | | | D | | |
| PRIOR | • | • | • | • | • | | • | | | | | | D | | |
| INTO | I | | | | | Т | Ι | Т | Т | Т | Ι | Т | Ļ | 1 | |
| AT END | 1 | | | | | Ι | I | Ι | | Ι | ł | | Ι | I | |
| INVALID KEY | • | | | | | | | | Ι | I | | Т | Ι | В | |
| FORMAT | • | | | | | | D | | | | D | D | D | Т | |
| NEXT MODIFIED | | | | | | | | • | | | | | | В | |
| SUBFILE | • | | | | | | | | | • | | | | В | |
| INDICATORS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | T | |
| TERMINAL | • | | | | | • | | | • | | | | | 0 | |
| NO DATA | | | | | | | | | | | | | • | 0 | |
| WRITE | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| FROM | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| INVALID KEY | | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | B | |
| ADVANCING | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| AT END-OF-PAGE | | | | | 0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| FORMAT | | • | | | | • | D | | | | D | D | D | R | |
| STARTING | | | | | | | | | - | | - | | | 0 | |
| ROLLING | - | | | | | • | | | • | | | | • | 0 | |
| INDICATORS | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0 | |
| SUBFILE | | | • | | | | | | | | • | | | В | |
| TERMINIAL | | - | | - | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | - | _ | |

Figure I-1 (Part 2 of 3). File Structure Support

| DEVICE TYPE | CARD READER | CARD PUNCH | CARD PRINT | CARD PUNCHPRINT | PRINTER | TAPE | DISK SEQ | DISK REL SEQ | DISK REL RANDOM | DISK REL DYNAMIC | DISK IDX SEQ | DISK IDX RANDOM | DISK IDX DYNAMIC | WORK STATION | DISKETTE | FORMATFILE | 5 |
|-----------------|-------------|------------|------------|-----------------|---------|------|----------|--------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|----------|------------|---|
| START | | | | | | | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | | | | |
| KEY | | | | | | | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | | | | |
| INVALID KEY | | | | | | | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | | | | |
| FORMAT | | | | | | | | | | | D | D | D | | | | |
| REWRITE | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | В | | | |
| FROM | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | В | | | |
| INVALID KEY | | | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | В | | | |
| FORMAT | | | | | | | | | | | | D | D | в | | | |
| INDICATORS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | В | | | |
| SUBFILE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | S | | | |
| TERMINAL | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0 | | | |
| DELETE | | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| INVALID KEY | | | | | | | | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| FORMAT | | | | | | | | | | | | D | D | | | | |
| USE | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| EXCEPTION/ERROR | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| FOR DEBUGGING | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| COMMIT | | | | | | | D | D | D | D | D | D | D | | | | |
| ROLLBACK | | | | | | | D | D | D | D | D | D | D | | | | |
| ACQUIRE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0 | | | |
| DROP | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

3

Figure I-1 (Part 3 of 3). File Structure Support

| Status Key 1 2 | Meaning | When Set (CPF Exceptions Monitored, Condition Detected) |
|----------------------|--|---|
| 0 | Successful Completion | |
| 0 | Successful Completion | No error condition occurred during the I-O operation. |
| 1 | At End of File | |
| 0 | End of file | CPF4740, CPF5070, CPF5001, CPF5025. |
| 2 | No modified subfile record found (IBM extension) | CPF5037. |
| 2 | Invalid Key | |
| 1 | Sequence error | REWRITE to an indexed file with sequential access and key for REWRITE \neq key from previous READ, or WRITE to an indexed file with sequential access and key values for succeeding writes are not in ascending sequence. |
| 2 | Duplicate key when duplicates are not allowed | CPF5008, CPF5009, CPF5010, CPF5026, CPF5034, CPF5084, CPF5085, or WRITE to an indexed file with sequential access and key values for succeeding writes are not in ascending sequence. |
| 3 | No record found | CPF5006, CPF5013, CPF5020. |
| 4 | Boundary violation | CPF5018, CPF5021, CPF5043, CPF5272, CPF5305 if organization is not sequential. |
| 3 | Permanent Error | |
| 0 | Permanent Error | CPF5101, CPF5102, CPF5113, CPF5120, CPF5129, CPF5143, CPF5156. |
| 4 | Boundary violation | CPF5116, CPF5018, CPF5272, CPF5305 if organization is sequential. |

Figure I-2 (Part 1 of 5). Status Key Values and Meanings

(

| Status Key 1 2 | Meaning | When Set (CPF Exceptions Monitored, Condition Detected) |
|----------------------|--------------------------------|---|
| 9 | Other Errors | |
| 0 | Other errors: | |
| | • File not found | CPF4101 if a USE is applicable for the file. |
| | • Member not found | CPF4102 if a USE is applicable for the file. |
| | • Level check error | CPF4131. |
| | • Unexpected I-O exceptions | The following exceptions are monitored generically: |
| | | CPF 4101 through CPF 4399 CPF 4501 through CPF 4699 CPF 4701 through CPF 4899 CPF 5001 through CPF 5099 CPF 5101 through CPF 5399 |
| | | These exceptions are caught and FILE STATUS is set to 90. If a USE procedure is applicable, it is executed. Otherwise, the program terminates and gives the operator the exception and the option to cancel, take a partial dump, or take a full dump. |
| | | |

Figure I-2 (Part 2 of 5). Status Key Values and Meanings

| Status Key 1 2 | Meaning | When Set (CPF Exceptions Monitored, Condition Detected) |
|----------------------|--|---|
| 9 | Other Errors (continued) | |
| 1 | Undefined or unauthorized access type | CPF2207, CPF4104, CPF5057, CPF5109, CPF5134, CPF5279. |
| 2 | Logic error: • File locked • File already open • I-O to closed file • READ after end of file • CLOSE on unopened file | CPF4102, CPF4106, CPF5013, CPF5119, CPF5132, CPF5145, CPF5146, CPF5176, CPF5183. |
| 4 | No current record pointer | REWRITE/DELETE with sequential access, and last operation was not a successful READ. |
| 5 | Invalid or incomplete file information | (1) Duplicate keys specified in COBOL program, but indexed data base file created with unique key; or (2) Duplicate keys not specified in COBOL program, and indexed data base file created allowing duplicate keys. |
| Α | Job has been cancelled in a controlled manner by CL command CNLJOB, TRMSBS, TRMCPF, or PWRDWNSYS | CPF4741. |
| D | Record is locked | CPF5027, CPF5032. |

Figure I-2 (Part 3 of 5). Status Key Values and Meanings

| Status Key 1 2 | Meaning | When Set (CPF Exceptions Monitored, Condition Detected) |
|----------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| 9 | Other Errors (continued) | |
| H | ACQUIRE operation failed | Resource owned by another program, or unavailable. (9H is the result when an ACQUIRE operation causes any of the CPF exceptions monitored for 90, 9J, or 9N to occur). CPF5105, CPF5127, CPF5128, CPF5165, CPF5166, CPF5198, CPF5217, CPF5219, CPF5254, CPF5260, CPF5265, CPF5269, CPF5274, CPF5278, CPF5279, CPF5351, CPF5355, CPF5358, CPF5410, CPF5411, CPF5412, CPF5413, CPF5424, CPF5447, CPF5449, CPF5450, CPF5454, CPF5510, CPF5511, CPF5512, CPF5510, CPF5511, CPF5512, CPF5516, CPF5514, CPF5515, CPF5516, CPF5517, CPF5518, CPF5519, CPF5521, CPF5540, CPF5544, CPF5542, CPF5540, CPF5544, CPF5545, CPF5547, CPF5552. |
| Ι | WRITE operation failed | CPF5044. |

Figure I-2 (Part 4 of 5). Status Key Values and Meanings

| Status Key 1 2 | Meaning | When Set (CPF Exceptions Monitored, Condition Detected) |
|----------------------|--|--|
| 9 | Other Errors (continued) | |
| K | Invalid format-name; format not found | CPF5022, CPF5023, CPF5053, CPF5054, CPF5121, CPF5152, CPF5153, CPF5186, CPF5187, |
| М | Last record written to subfile | CPF5003. |
| Ν | Temporary (potentially recoverable) hardware I-O error | CPF4145, CPF4146, CPF4193, CPF4229, CPF4291, CPF4299, CPF4354, CPF4526, CPF4542, CPF4577, CPF4592, CPF4602, CPF4603, CPF4611, CPF4612, CPF4616, CPF4617, CPF4622, CPF4623, CPF4624, CPF4625, CPF4628, CPF4629, CPF4630, CPF4631, CPF4632, CPF5107, CPF5128, CPF5166, CPF5198, CPF5280, CPF5282, CPF5287, CPF5293, CPF5524, CPF5523, CPF5517, CPF5524, CPF5529, CPF5530, CPF5532, CPF5533. |
| Р | OPEN failed because file cannot be placed under commitment control | CPF4285, CPF4293, CPF4326, CPF4327, CPF4328, CPF4329, CPF4330, CPF4331. |

Figure I-2 (Part 5 of 5). Status Key Values and Meanings

(

Attribute Data Formats

,

The layouts and values of the attribute data are system dependent. The following formats are for the System/38.

Display Device Attribute Data

| 01 | TERI | MINAL ATTRIBUTES. |
|----|------|---------------------------------|
| | 02 | TERMINAL-TYPE PIC X. |
| * | | D - DISPLAY |
| | 02 | TERMINAL-SIZE PIC X. |
| * | | 1 - 1920 CHARACTERS |
| * | | 2 - 960 CHARACTERS |
| | 02 | TERMINAL LOCATION PIC X. |
| * | | L - LOCAL |
| * | | R - REMOTE |
| | 02 | TERMINAL-STATUS. |
| | | 03 FILLER PIC X. |
| * | | RESERVED |
| | | 03 ACQUIRE-STATUS PIC X. |
| * | | Y - ACQUIRED |
| * | | N - NOT ACQUIRED |
| | | 03 INVITE-STATUS PIC X. |
| * | | Y - INVITED |
| * | | N - NOT INVITED |
| | | 03 DATA-AVAILABLE-STATUS PIC X. |
| * | | Y - DATA IS AVAILABLE |
| * | | (ENTER OR COMMAND KEY PRESSED) |
| * | ~ ~ | N - DATA IS NOT AVAILABLE |
| | 02 | FILLER PIC X(9). |
| * | | RESERVED |

Communications Device Attribute Data

| 01 | COMM | MUNICATIONS-ATTRIBUTES. |
|----|------|--|
| | 02 | PROGRAM-DEVICE-STATUS PIC X. |
| * | | A - THE PROGRAM DEVICE IS NOT ACQUIRED |
| * | | (VALID FOR LU1, BSC, AND PEER) |
| * | | C - THE PROGRAM DEVICE IS ACQUIRED |
| * | | (VALID FOR LU1, BSC, AND PEER. |
| * | | FOR PEER, THIS IS THE SOURCE END OF THE SESSION.) |
| * | | R - THE PROGRAM DEVICE FOR THE TARGET END OF THE |
| * | | SESSION IS ACOUIRED (VALID ONLY FOR PEER) |
| | 02 | INVITE-STATUS PICX. |
| * | | N - THIS PROGRAM DEVICE IS NOT INVITED |
| * | | I - THIS PROGRAM DEVICE IS INVITED BUT NO DATA |
| * | | HAS BEEN RECEIVED |
| * | | O - THIS PROGRAM DEVICE IS INVITED AND DATA IS READY |
| | 02 | SYNCHRONIZATION-LEVEL PIC X. |
| * | | C - SYNVL (*CONFIRM) |
| * | | N - SYNVL (*NONE) |
| | 02 | DEVICE-NAME PIC X(10). |
| * | | THE DEVICE NAME ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROGRAM DEVICE |

OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK Data Areas

OPEN-FEEDBACK

The OPEN-FEEDBACK area is part of the open data path (ODP) that contains information about the OPEN operation. This information is set during OPEN processing and is available as long as the file is open.

This area provides information about the file that the program is using. It contains:

- Information about the file that is currently open, such as:
 - File name
 - File type.
- Information that depends on the type of file that is opened, such as:
 - Printer size
 - Screen size
 - Diskette or tape labels.

I-O-FEEDBACK

The system updates the I-O-FEEDBACK area each time a block of records is transferred between CPF and the program. A block of records can contain one or more records.

The I-O-FEEDBACK area is not updated after each read or write for files in which multiple records are blocked and unblocked by COBOL. If the I-O-FEEDBACK area is needed after each read or write in the program, the user can do either of the following:

- Prevent the compiler from generating blocking and unblocking code by not satisfying one of the conditions listed under "Unblocking Input Records and Blocking Output Records" in Chapter 9.
- Specify SEQONLY(*NO) on the Override with Data Base File (OVRDBF) CL command.

Preventing the compiler from generating blocking and unblocking code is more efficient than specifying SEQONLY(*NO).

Even when the compiler generates blocking and unblocking code, certain CPF restrictions can cause blocking and unblocking to not be performed. In these cases, a performance improvement will not be realized. However, the I-O-FEEDBACK area will be updated after each read or write.

The I-O-FEEDBACK area contains information about the I-O operation. This area consists of a common area and a device-dependent area. The device-dependent area varies in length and content depending on the file type. This area follows the I-O-FEEDBACK common area and can be

obtained by specifying the receiving identifier large enough to include the common area and the appropriate device-dependent area.

The I-O-FEEDBACK area contains information about the last I-O operation, such as:

- Device name
- Device type
- AID character
- Error information for some devices.

See the *CPF Programmer's Guide* for a layout and description of the data areas contained in the OPEN-FEEDBACK and I-O-FEEDBACK areas.

(

Appendix J. Summary of Clauses and Statements

This appendix contains the following information:

- A general outline of a COBOL program by division, including the PROCESS statement
- A detailed format summary for each division in a COBOL program
- The symbols allowed in the PICTURE clause
- The assignment-names in the ASSIGN clause.

Conventions Used for Describing Statement Formats

When statement formats are described in this appendix, capitalized words, underlined words, braces, square brackets, and ellipsis have the following meanings:

- Reserved words are printed entirely in capital letters:
 - Required reserved words (keywords) are capitalized and underlined.
 - Optional reserved words are capitalized but not underlined.
- User-defined words are shown in lowercase letters.
- Braces {} enclosing listed items indicate (1) that exactly one of the enclosed stacked items must be specified and/or (2) when followed by an ellipsis, that the enclosed unit or item must be specified at least once.
- Square brackets [] indicate the enclosed item or unit can be used or omitted as required for the program. When two or more items are stacked within brackets, one or none of them can be specified. When followed by an ellipsis, the item or unit can be repeated.
- An ellipsis (...) indicates that the immediately preceding unit can occur one or more times in succession.

IBM extensions to American National Standard COBOL, X3.23-1974 are boxed like this sentence.

COBOL clauses and statements that are syntax-checked, but are treated as documentation by the System/38 COBOL compiler are boxed like this sentence.

COBOL Program Structure

Process Statement

PROCESS option-1 [option-2] . . . [option-n] [.]

Note: The PROCESS statement specifies compile-time options. It is not a COBOL source statement. If you want any options that are not default options of the PROCESS statement, this statement must precede the Identification Division header. PROCESS statement options and defaults are defined later in this appendix.

Identification Division



Environment Division

ENVIRONMENT DIVISION.

CONFIGURATION SECTION.

SOURCE-COMPUTER. source-computer-entry

OBJECT-COMPUTER. object-computer-entry

SPECIAL-NAMES. special-names-entry

INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION.

FILE-CONTROL. {file-control-entry} ...

[I-O-CONTROL, input-output-control-entry]

Data Division

DATA DIVISION. [FILE SECTION. [file-description-entry, {record-description-entry} . . .] [sort-merge-file-description-entry, {record-description-entry} . . .]] [WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. [data-description-entry] . . . [record-description-entry] . . .] [LINKAGE SECTION. [data-description-entry] . . . [record-description-entry] . . .]

Procedure Division – Format 1 – Declaratives Section

 PROCEDURE DIVISION
 USING data-name-1 [, data-name-2]...].

 [DECLARATIVES.

 {section-name SECTION [segment-number].use-sentence

 [paragraph-name. [sentence]...]...)...

 END DECLARATIVES.]

 {section-name SECTION [segment-number].

 [paragraph-name. [sentence]...]...)...

Procedure Division – Format 2

 PROCEDURE DIVISION
 USING data-name-1
 , data-name-2
 . . .].

 {paragraph-name.
 [sentence]
 . . . }

DETAILED FORMATS

Identification Division Format

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION.

PROGRAM-ID. program-name.

 AUTHOR.
 [comment-entry] . . .]

 [INSTALLATION.
 [comment-entry] . . .]

 [DATE-WRITTEN.
 [comment-entry] . . .]

 [DATE-COMPILED.
 [comment-entry] . . .]

 [SECURITY.
 [comment-entry] . . .]

Environment Division Formats

Configuration Section

CONFIGURATION SECTION.

SOURCE-COMPUTER. computer-name WITH DEBUGGING MODE].

OBJECT-COMPUTER. computer-name


Input-Output Section

Note: The keyword FILE-CONTROL appears only once at the beginning of the paragraph before the first file-control entry. The key word I-O-CONTROL appears only once at the beginning of the paragraph before the input-output-control entry.



FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – Sequential File Entries (READER, PUNCH, PUNCHPRINT, PRINT, PRINTER, TAPEFILE, DISKETTE, FORMATFILE, DISK, DATABASE)



FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – Relative (Direct) File Entries (DISK, DATABASE)

SELECT file-name



FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – Indexed File Entries (DISK, DATABASE)



FILE-CONTROL Paragraph - Sort or Merge File Entries



FILE-CONTROL Paragraph – TRANSACTION File Entries (WORKSTATION)



I-O-CONTROL Paragraph



Data Division Formats

File Section Formats

FD Entry – Files (FORMATFILE, DATABASE, DISK, READER, PUNCH, PUNCHPRINT, PRINT)



FD Entry - Files (DISKETTE)



FD Entry – Files (TAPEFILE)





FD Entry – TRANSACTION File



SD Entry



Working-Storage Section



Data Description Entry - Format 1 - Item Description

Data Description Entry - Format 2 - Regroup or Rename Data Items

66 data-name-1 RENAMES data-name-2
$$\left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{data-name-3} \right]$$
.

Data Description Entry - Format 3 - Condition-Name Description

88 condition-name
$$\left\{ \frac{VALUE}{VALUES} \text{ ARE} \right\}$$
 literal-1 $\left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\}$ literal-2
 $\left[\text{literal-3} \left[\left\{ \frac{THROUGH}{THRU} \right\} \text{ literal-4} \right] \right] \dots$

Boolean Data Description Entry - Format 4 - Boolean Data



Linkage Section

Any data description entry clause, except the VALUE clause, can describe items in the Linkage Section. The VALUE clause can be specified only for level-88 items. See "Working-Storage Section" earlier in this appendix for data description entry clause formats.

Procedure Division Formats

Procedure Division Header

PROCEDURE DIVISION USING data-name-1 , data-name-2]...].

Procedure Division Statements

ACCEPT Statement – Format 1

ACCEPT identifier FROM mnemonic-name

ACCEPT Statement - Format 2



ACCEPT Statement - Format 3 - Feedback



ACCEPT Statement - Format 4 - Local Data Area

| A | CEPT identifier-1 FROM mnemonic-name | |
|--------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------|
| Г' ! ! | FOR { identifier-2 }] | ACCURACE OF ACCURACE |

ACCEPT Statement - Format 5 - TRANSACTION Attributes



ACQUIRE Statement – TRANSACTION File



ADD Statement – Format 1



ADD Statement – Format 2 – Giving



ADD Statement - Format 3 - Corresponding



ALTER Statement



CALL Statement

$$\frac{\text{CALL}}{\text{literal-1}} \left[\underline{\text{USING}} \text{ data-name-1} \left[, \text{ data-name-2} \right] \dots \right]$$

$$\left[\text{ON } \underline{\text{OVERFLOW}} \text{ imperative-statement} \right]$$

CANCEL Statement

$$\frac{\text{CANCEL}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \begin{bmatrix} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{literal-1} \end{bmatrix} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{, identifier-2} \\ \text{, literal-2} \end{bmatrix} \right] \cdots \right\}$$

CLOSE Statement – Format 1



CLOSE Statement – Format 2 – TRANSACTION File



COMMIT Statement



COMPUTE Statement

<u>COMPUTE</u> identifier-1 [<u>ROUNDED</u>] [, identifier-2 [<u>ROUNDED</u>]]... = arithmetic-expression [ON <u>SIZE</u> <u>ERROR</u> imperative-statement]

Declarative Procedures



DELETE Statement



DISPLAY Statement - Format 1

$$\underline{\mathsf{DISPLAY}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathsf{identifier-1} \\ \mathsf{literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} \mathsf{, identifier-2} \\ \mathsf{, literal-2} \end{array} \right] \cdot \cdot \cdot \left[\underline{\mathsf{UPON}} \text{ mnemonic-name} \right]$$





DIVIDE Statement - Format 1

DIVIDE Statement – Format 2 – Giving

$$\frac{\text{DIVIDE}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \frac{\text{INTO}}{\text{BY}} \right\} \left\{ \frac{\text{identifier-2}}{\text{literal-2}} \right\} \frac{\text{GIVING}}{\text{GIVING}} \text{ identifier-3} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right]$$

$$\left[, \text{ identifier-4} \left[\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}} \right] \right] \dots \left[\text{ON SIZE ERROR imperative-statement} \right]$$

DIVIDE Statement - Format 3 - Giving, Remainder

$$\frac{\text{DIVIDE}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \frac{\text{INTO}}{\text{BY}} \right\} \left\{ \frac{\text{identifier-2}}{\text{literal-2}} \right\} \frac{\text{GIVING}}{\text{GIVING}} \text{ identifier-3} \frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{ROUNDED}}$$

$$\frac{\text{ROUNDED}}{\text{REMAINDER}} \frac{1}{\text{Identifier-4}} \left[\frac{\text{ON SIZE ERBOR}}{\text{ROUNDER}} \right]$$

DROP Statement



ENTER Statement



EXIT Statement

paragraph-name. EXIT [PROGRAM].

Note: The EXIT statement must be preceded by a paragraph-name, and it must be the only statement in the paragraph.

GO TO Statement - Format 1

GO TO [procedure-name-1]

GO TO Statement - Format 2 - Depending On (Conditional)

GO TO procedure-name-1 [, procedure-name-2] . . . , procedure-name-n

DEPENDING ON identifier

IF Statement

$$\underline{\text{IF condition}} \left\{ \underbrace{\text{THEN}}_{\text{NEXT}} \underbrace{\left\{ \underbrace{\text{statement-1}}_{\text{NEXT} \text{ SENTENCE}} \right\}}_{\text{ELSE} \text{ NEXT} \text{ SENTENCE}} \right\} \left[\underbrace{\left\{ \underbrace{\text{ELSE}}_{\text{ELSE} \text{ NEXT} \text{ SENTENCE}} \right\}}_{\text{ELSE} \text{ NEXT} \text{ SENTENCE}} \right\}$$

INSPECT Statement – Format 1 – Tallying

INSPECT identifier-1 TALLYING

$$\left\{, \text{ identifier-2} \underbrace{FOR}_{CHARACTERS} \left\{, \left\{ \underbrace{\left\{ \underbrace{ALL}_{\underline{LEADING}} \\ \underbrace{CHARACTERS}_{\underline{CHARACTERS}} \right\} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-3} \\ \text{ literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \right\} \left[\left\{ \underbrace{BEFORE}_{\underline{AFTER}} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-4} \\ \text{ literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \right] \right\} \dots \right\} \dots \right\}$$

INSPECT Statement – Format 2 – Replacing

INSPECT identifier-1 REPLACING

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{CHARACTERS } \underline{BY} \\ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-6} \\ \underline{literal-4} \end{array} \right\} \left[\left\{ \underline{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \end{array} \right\} \\ INITIAL \\ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-7} \\ \underline{literal-5} \end{array} \right\} \\ \left\{ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{ALL} \\ \underline{LEADING} \\ \underline{FIRST} \end{array} \right\} \\ \left\{ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{dentifier-5} \\ \underline{literal-3} \end{array} \right\} \\ \underline{BY} \\ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-6} \\ \underline{literal-4} \end{array} \right\} \\ \left[\left\{ \underline{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \end{array} \right\} \\ INITIAL \\ \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{identifier-7} \\ \underline{literal-5} \end{array} \right\} \\ \end{bmatrix} \\ \\ \end{array} \right\} \\ \ldots \\ \\ \end{array} \right\}$$



$$\frac{INSPECT \text{ identifier-1 } \underline{TALLYING}}{\left\{, \text{ identifier-2 } \underline{FOR} \left\{, \left\{ \underbrace{ALL} \\ \underline{LEADING} \\ \underline{CHARACTERS} \right\} \left\{ \text{ identifier-3} \\ \text{ literal-1} \right\} \right\}} \\ \left[\left\{ \underbrace{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-4} \\ \text{ literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \right] \right\} \\ \dots \\ \frac{REPLACING}{\left\{ \underbrace{CHARACTERS } \underline{BY} \\ \text{ literal-4} \end{array} \right\} \left[\left\{ \underbrace{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-7} \\ \text{ literal-5} \end{array} \right\} \right] \\ \left\{, \left\{ \underbrace{ALL} \\ \underline{LEADING} \\ FIRST \\ \left[\left\{ \underbrace{BEFORE} \\ FIRST \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-6} \\ \text{ literal-4} \\ \end{array} \right\} \right] \\ \dots \\ \left[\left\{ \underbrace{BEFORE} \\ \underline{AFTER} \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ INITIAL} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{ identifier-7} \\ \text{ literal-4} \\ \end{array} \right\} \right\} \\ \dots \\ \dots \end{array} \right\}$$

MERGE Statement

MERGE file-name-1 ON
$$\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{ASCENDING} \\ \underline{DESCENDING} \end{array} \right\}$$
 KEY data-name-1 [, data-name-2]...
[ON $\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{ASCENDING} \\ \underline{DESCENDING} \end{array} \right\}$ KEY data-name-3 [, data-name-4]...]...
[COLLATING SEQUENCE IS alphabet-name]
USING file-name-2, file-name-3 [, file-name-4]...
[OUTPUT PROCEDURE IS section-name-1 [$\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \underline{THROUGH} \\ \underline{THRU} \end{array} \right\}$ section-name-2]
GIVING file-name-5]

MOVE Statement - Format 1

$$\underbrace{MOVE}_{\text{literal}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{literal} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{TO}_{\text{identifier-2}} \left[\begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{identifier-3} \end{array} \right] \dots$$

MOVE Statement – Format 2 – Corresponding

$$\frac{\text{MOVE}}{\text{CORR}} \left\{ \frac{\text{CORRESPONDING}}{\text{CORR}} \right\} \text{ identifier-1 } \underline{\text{TO}} \text{ identifier-2}$$

MULTIPLY Statement – Format 1

MULTIPLY Statement – Format 2 – Giving

$$\frac{\text{MULTIPLY}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\text{GIVING}}_{\text{identifier-3}} \underbrace{\text{ROUNDED}}_{\text{literal-2}} \\ \left[, \text{ identifier-4} \underbrace{\text{ROUNDED}}_{\text{IDED}} \right] \\ \dots \\ \left[\text{ON SIZE ERROR imperative-statement} \right]$$

OPEN Statement – Sequential Files



OPEN Statement – TRANSACTION File



OPEN Statement – Indexed and Relative Files

$$\underline{OPEN}\left\{ \left\{ \underbrace{\frac{INPUT}{OUTPUT}}_{I \cdot O} \right\} \text{file-name-1} \left[\text{, file-name-2} \right] \dots \right\} \dots$$

PERFORM Statement – Format 1

(

$$\underline{PERFORM} \text{ procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}} \right\} \text{procedure-name-2} \right]$$

PERFORM Statement – Format 2 – Multiple Times

$$\underline{PERFORM} \text{ procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\underline{THROUGH}}{\underline{THRU}} \right\} \text{ procedure-name-2} \right] \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-1} \\ \text{integer-1} \end{array} \right\} \underline{TIMES}$$

.

PERFORM Statement - Format 3 - Until Condition Satisfied

| PERFORM procedure-name-1 | $\left\{\frac{\text{THROUGH}}{\text{THRU}}\right\}$ | procedure-name-2 | UNTIL condition-1 |
|--------------------------|---|------------------|-------------------|
|--------------------------|---|------------------|-------------------|

PERFORM Statement - Format 4 - Varying Index or Identifier

$$\begin{array}{c} \underline{\mathsf{PERFORM}} \ \mathsf{procedure-name-1} \left[\left\{ \frac{\mathsf{THROUGH}}{\mathsf{THRU}} \right\} \mathsf{procedure-name-2} \right] \\ \underline{\mathsf{VARYING}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-1} \\ \mathrm{index-name-1} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{FROM}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-2} \\ \mathrm{index-name-2} \\ \mathrm{index-name-2} \end{array} \right] \\ \underline{\mathsf{BY}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-3} \\ \mathrm{literal-3} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{UNTIL}} \ \mathsf{condition-1} \\ \left[\underbrace{\mathsf{AFTER}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-4} \\ \mathrm{index-name-4} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{FROM}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-5} \\ \mathrm{index-name-5} \\ \mathrm{literal-5} \end{array} \right\} \\ \underline{\mathsf{BY}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-6} \\ \mathrm{literal-6} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{UNTIL}} \ \mathsf{condition-2} \\ \left[\underbrace{\mathsf{AFTER}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-7} \\ \mathrm{index-name-7} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{FROM}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-8} \\ \mathrm{index-name-8} \\ \mathrm{literal-8} \end{array} \right\} \\ \underline{\mathsf{BY}} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \mathrm{identifier-9} \\ \mathrm{identifier-9} \\ \mathrm{literal-9} \end{array} \right\} \underbrace{\mathsf{UNTIL}} \ \mathsf{condition-3} \end{array} \right] \end{array} \right] \end{array}$$

READ Statement - Format 1 - Sequential Retrieval using SEQUENTIAL Access



[AT <u>END</u> imperative-statement]



READ Statement - Format 3 - Random Retrieval



READ Statement – Format 4 – TRANSACTION File (Nonsubfile)



READ Statement – Format 5 – TRANSACTION File (Subfile)



RELEASE Statement

RELEASE record-name FROM identifier

RETURN Statement

RETURN file-name RECORD [INTO identifier] AT END imperative-statement

REWRITE Statement – Format 1



REWRITE Statement – Format 2 – TRANSACTION File (Subfile)



ROLLBACK Statement





SEARCH Statement - Format 1 - Selective Table Search

SEARCH Statement - Format 2 - Key Table Search



SET Statement – Format 1



SET Statement - Format 2

| SET condition-name-1 | , condition-name-2 |]. | • | то | TRU | JE |
|----------------------|--------------------|----|---|------|-------------------|----|
| | | | - | | No. of Concession | |

SET Statement - Format 3

SET Statement - Format 4

SET index-name-4 [, index-name-5]...
$$\left\{ \frac{\bigcup P \ BY}{DOWN} \ \underline{BY} \right\} \left\{ \text{identifier-4} \\ \text{integer-2} \right\}$$

SORT Statement

$$\frac{\text{SORT file-name-1 ON} \left\{ \frac{\text{ASCENDING}}{\text{DESCENDING}} \right\} \text{KEY data-name-1} \quad [, \text{ data-name-2}] \quad \dots \\ \left[\text{ON} \left\{ \frac{\text{ASCENDING}}{\text{DESCENDING}} \right\} \text{KEY data-name-3} \quad [, \text{ data-name-4}] \quad \dots \right] \dots$$

COLLATING <u>SEQUENCE</u> IS alphabet-name



START Statement



STOP Statement

$$\underline{\text{STOP}} \left\{ \frac{\text{RUN}}{\text{literal}} \right\}$$

STRING Statement

$$\underline{STRING} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} identifier-1 \\ literal-1 \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} , identifier-2 \\ literal-2 \end{array} \right] \cdots \underline{DELIMITED} BY \left\{ \begin{array}{l} identifier-3 \\ literal-3 \\ \underline{SIZE} \end{array} \right\} \\ \left[\begin{array}{c} , \left\{ identifier-4 \\ literal-4 \end{array} \right\} \left[\begin{array}{c} , identifier-5 \\ , literal-5 \end{array} \right] \cdots \underline{DELIMITED} BY \left\{ \begin{array}{c} identifier-6 \\ literal-6 \\ \underline{SIZE} \end{array} \right\} \right] \cdots \\ \underline{INTO} \ identifier-7 \ \left[WITH \ \underline{POINTER} \ identifier-8 \right] \\ \left[ON \ \underline{OVERFLOW} \ imperative-statement \right] \end{array} \right]$$

SUBTRACT Statement – Format 1

SUBTRACT Statement - Format 2 - Giving

$$\frac{\text{SUBTRACT}}{\text{literal-1}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \cdots \underbrace{\text{FROM}}{\text{fidentifier-3}} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{literal-3} \end{array} \right\}$$

$$\underline{\text{GIVING}} \text{ identifier-4} \left[\underbrace{\text{ROUNDED}} \\ \text{ON} \underbrace{\text{SIZE} \text{ ERROR}} \\ \text{imperative-statement} \right]$$

SUBTRACT Statement – Format 3 – Corresponding



UNSTRING Statement

UNSTRING identifier-1





USE Statement - EXCEPTION/ERROR Procedure (TRANSACTION) - Format 2



USE Statement – FOR DEBUGGING



WRITE Statement – Format 1 – Sequential Files



WRITE Statement - Format 2 - Indexed, and Relative Files



WRITE Statement - Format 3 - FORMATFILE Files



WRITE Statement - Format 4 - TRANSACTION File (Nonsubfile)



 $\frac{\text{WRITE SUBFILE record-name [FROM identifier-1]}}{\text{FORMAT IS } \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-2} \\ \text{literal-1} \end{array} \right\} \\ \left[\underline{\text{TERMINAL IS } \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{identifier-3} \\ \text{literal-2} \end{array} \right\} \right] \\ \left[\left\{ \begin{array}{l} \frac{\text{INDICATOR}}{\text{INDICATORS}} \begin{bmatrix} \text{IS} \\ \text{ARE} \end{array} \right\} \text{identifier-8} \\ \text{INDIC} \end{array} \right] \\ \left[\frac{\text{INVALID } \text{KEY imperative-statement} \right] \\ \end{array}$

WRITE Statement – Format 5 – TRANSACTION File (Subfile)

Conditional Expressions

Class Condition

$$\frac{\text{Identifier IS[NOT]}}{\text{ALPHABETIC}}$$

Condition-Name Condition

condition-name

Relation Condition



Sign Condition



Switch-Status Condition

condition-name

Negated Simple Condition

NOT simple-condition

Combined Condition

condition
$$\left\{ \left\{ \frac{AND}{OR} \right\} \text{ condition } \right\} \dots$$

Abbreviated Combined Relation Condition



Qualification of Data Reference Formats

Data Item Reference

$$\begin{cases} data-name-1 \\ condition-name \end{cases} \left[\left\{ \frac{OF}{IN} \right\} data-name-2 \right] \dots \end{cases}$$

Procedure Name Reference

paragraph-name
$$\left[\left\{\frac{OF}{IN}\right\}$$
 section-name $\right]$

COPY Library Reference

text-name
$$\left[\left\{\frac{OF}{IN}\right\}$$
 library-name $\right]$

Note: library-name has the following format: System/38 file name -System/38 library name

Subscripting

Indexing

All Divisions

Copy Statement - Format 1



COPY Statement - Format 2 - DDS Translate


PROCESS Statement

The PROCESS statement allows you to specify compile-time options unique to COBOL. The PROCESS statement must immediately precede the IDENTIFICATION DIVISION header. The format of the PROCESS statement is as follows:

PROCESS option-1 [option-2] . . . [option-n] [.]

The following list identifies PROCESS statement options. The options can appear in any order. Defaults are underlined.

| <u>SOURCE</u> or SRC NOSOURCE or NOSRC | OPTIONS NOOPTIONS |
|---|--|
| XREF NOXREF | <u>OUOTE</u> APOST |
| <u>gen</u> Nogen | LIST NOLIST |
| <u>SEQUENCE</u> NOSEQUENCE | $\frac{\text{GENLVL}(n) [n = 0 \text{ through } 29]}{\frac{\text{GENLVL}(29)}{2}}$ |
| VBSUM NOVBSUM | FIPS(<u>NO</u> ,L,LI,HI,H) |
| LINENUMBER NUMBER <u>NONUMBER</u> | $\frac{FLAG(00)}{FLAG(n)} [n = 0 \text{ through 99}]$ |
| MAP | |

NOMAP

Symbols Allowed in the PICTURE Clause

| Symbol | Meaning |
|--------|---|
| А | Alphabetic character or space |
| В | Space insertion character |
| Р | Decimal scaling position (not counted in size of data item) |
| S | Operational sign (not counted in size of data item unless a SIGN clause with optional SEPARATE CHARACTER phrase is specified) |
| V | Assumed decimal point (not counted in size of data item) |
| Х | Alphanumeric character (any from the EBCDIC set) |
| Z | Zero suppression character |
| 9 | Numeric character |
| 1 | Boolean character |
| 0 | Zero insertion character |
| 1 | Slash insertion character |
| , | Comma insertion character |
| • | Decimal point or period editing control character |
| + | Plus sign insertion editing control character |
| - | Minus sign editing control character |
| CR | Credit editing control character |
| DB | Debit editing control character |
| * | Check protect insertion character |
| CS | Currency sign insertion character (default is \$). |

Assignment-Names in the ASSIGN Clause

device-system/38 file name -attribute

device:

| device: | READER PUNCH PUNCHPRINT PRINT PRINTER TAPEFILE DISKETTE DISK DATABASE WORKSTATION FORMATFILE |
|----------------------|--|
| system/38 file name: | 1-10 character system-name |
| attribute: | – hopper [-association] SI (for separate indicator area) |
| hopper: | P or S (for card devices only) |
| association: | 0-9 (for card devices only) |

J-44

Glossary

abbreviated combined relation condition. The combined condition that results from the explicit omission of a common subject or a common subject and common relational operator in a consecutive sequence of relation conditions.

access mode. The manner in which files are referenced by the computer. Access can be sequential (records are referred to one after another in the order in which they appear on the file), it can be random (the individual records can be referred to in a nonsequential manner), or it can be dynamic (records can be accessed sequentially or randomly, depending on the form of the specific input/output request).

access path. The means by which CPF provides a logical organization to the data in a data base file so that the data can be processed by a program. See also arrival sequence access path and keyed sequence access path.

actual decimal point. The physical representation – using either of the decimal point characters (. or ,) – of the decimal point position in a data item. The actual decimal point appears in printed reports and requires a storage position in a data item. Contrast with assumed decimal point.

alias name. A DDS keyword, which allows a DDS field to be referenced by an alternate name (an alias).

alphabet-name. A user-defined word, in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph of the Environment Division, which names a character set and/or collating sequence.

alphabetic character. A character that is one of the 26 uppercase characters of the alphabet, or a space.

alphanumeric character. Any character in the computer's character set.

alphanumeric edited character. An alphanumeric data item whose PICTURE character string contains at least one B, 0, or /. American National Standard Code for Information Interchange. The standard code used for information interchange between data processing systems, data communications systems, and associated equipment. The code uses a coded character set consisting of 7-bit coded characters (8 bits including parity check). The set consists of control characters and graphic characters. Abbreviated ASCII.

American National Standards Institute. An organization sponsored by the Computer and Business Equipment Manufacturers Association for the purpose of establishing voluntary industry standards. Abbreviated ANSI.

ANSI. See American National Standards Institute.

arithmetic expression. A statement containing any combination of data-names, numeric literals, and figurative constants, joined together by one or more arithmetic operators in such a way that the statement as a whole can be reduced to a single numeric value.

arithmetic operator. A symbol that indicates the arithmetic operation to be performed. The arithmetic operators include: + (addition), - (subtraction), * (multiplication), / (division), and ** (exponentiation).

arrival sequence access path. An access path that is based on the order in which records are stored in a physical file. Contrast with keyed sequence access path.

ascending key. The values by which data is ordered from the lowest value to the highest value of the key in accordance with the rules for comparing data items. Contrast with *descending key*.

ascending key sequence. The arrangement of data in an order from the lowest value of the key field to the highest value of the key field. Contrast with descending key sequence. **ASCII.** See American National Standard Code for Information Interchange.

assignment-name. A word that associates a file-name with an external device.

assumed decimal point. A logical decimal point position that does not occupy a storage position in a data item. It is used by the compiler to align a value properly for calculation. Contrast with *actual decimal point*.

AT END condition. A condition that occurs at the following times: during the execution of a READ statement for a sequentially accessed file; during the execution of a RETURN statement when no next logical record exists for the associated sort or merge file; during the execution of a SEARCH statement when the search operation terminates without satisfying the condition specified in any of the associated WHEN phrases.

auxiliary storage. All addressable storage other than main storage. Auxiliary storage is located in the system's nonremovable disk enclosures.

binary item. A numeric data item that is represented internally in binary notation (that is, as a number in the base 2); internally, each bit of the item is a binary digit with the sign as the leftmost bit.

binary synchronous communications. A form of communications line control that uses transmission control characters to control the transfer of data over a communications line. Abbreviated BSC. Contrast with synchronous data link control.

block. A unit of data that is moved into or out of the computer.

Boolean data type. A category of data items that are limited to a value of 1 or 0.

Boolean literal. A literal composed of a Boolean character enclosed in double quotes and preceded by a B; for example, B"1".

bottom margin. A blank area that follows the page body.

boundary violation. An attempt to write beyond the externally defined boundaries of a sequential file.

breakpoint. A place in a program (specified by a command or a condition) where the system halts execution and gives control to the work station user or to a specified program.

BSC. See binary synchronous communications.

BSC file. A device file created by the user to support BSC. Contrast with *communications file*.

buffer. A portion of main storage into which data is read or from which it is written.

called program. A program whose execution is requested by another program (a calling program) or by a command.

calling program. A program that requests the execution of another program (a called program).

character. Any letter, digit, or other symbol in the data character set that is part of the organization, control, or representation of data.

character literal. A symbol, quantity, or constant in a source program that is itself data, instead of a reference to data. Contrast with *numeric literal*.

character set. All the valid characters for a programming language or for a computer system.

character string. A sequence of characters that form a COBOL word, a literal, a PICTURE character-string, or a comment-entry.

class condition. A logical condition that states that the content of an item is all alphabetic or all numeric.

clause. An ordered set of consecutive COBOL character-strings whose purpose is to specify an attribute of an entry. There are three types of clauses: data, environment, and file.

collating sequence. The order each character holds in relation to other characters according to the bit structure.

column. A character position measured horizontally within a print line. The columns are numbered from 1, by 1, starting at the leftmost character position of the print line and extending to the rightmost position of the print line.

combined condition. A condition that is the result of connecting two or more conditions with the AND or the OR logical operator.

comment. A word or statement in a program, command, or file that serves as documentation instead of as instructions. A comment is ignored by a compiler. **comment line.** A source program line that is not translated by the compiler. The comment line can be used to document the program.

comment-entry. An entry in the Identification Division that is not translated by the compiler.

commitment boundary. In COBOL, a point established by the successful execution of each COMMIT or ROLLBACK statement. If no COMMIT or ROLLBACK has been issued, a commitment boundary is established by the first OPEN of any file under commitment control.

commitment control. An environment, defined in COBOL through the I-O-CONTROL Paragraph, that allows the synchronizing of data base changes through a COMMIT statement, or the canceling of data base changes through the ROLLBACK statement, and that provides different levels of locking for records being changed.

common key. The key fields that are common to all record formats in the file starting with the first key field (the most significant) and ending with the last key field (the least significant).

communications file. A device file created by the user to support LU1 SDLC communications. Contrast with *BSC file*.

communications device. A BSC, LU1, or PEER device used through a BSC, communications, or mixed file. In COBOL, these files are defined as ORGANIZATION IS TRANSACTION.

compilation. Translation of a source program (such as RPG or COBOL specifications) into an executable program.

compile time. The time during which a source program is translated by a compiler into an executable program.

compiler. A program that translates a source program into an executable program.

compiler-directing statement. A COBOL statement that causes the compiler to take a specific action during compilation, rather than causing the program to take a particular action during execution.

complex condition. A condition in which one or more logical operators (AND, OR, or NOT) act upon one or more conditions. Complex conditions include negated simple conditions, combined conditions, and negated combined conditions. **compound condition.** A statement that tests two or more relational expressions. It may be true or false.

computer-name. A system-name that identifies the computer upon which the program is to be compiled or run.

condition. An expression in a program for which a truth value can be determined at execution time. Conditions include the simple conditions (relation condition, class condition, condition-name condition, switch-status condition, sign condition) and the complex conditions (negated simple conditions, combined conditions, negated combined conditions).

condition-name. A name assigned to a specific value, set of values, or range of values within the complete set of values that a conditional variable can have.

condition-name condition. A condition that states that the value of a conditional variable is a member of the set of values assigned to a condition-name associated with the conditional variable.

conditional expression. A simple condition or a complex condition specified in an IF, PERFORM, or SEARCH statement. See also *simple condition* and *complex condition*.

conditional statement. A statement that causes the truth value of a condition to be determined and that controls program execution depending on this truth value.

conditional variable. A data item for which one or more values have a condition-name assigned to them.

CONFIGURATION SECTION. A section of the Environment Division of the COBOL program. It describes the overall specifications of computers.

connective. A word or a punctuation character that associates a data-name, paragraph-name, condition-name, or text-name with its qualifier; links two or more operands in a series; or forms a conditional expression.

CONSOLE. A COBOL function-name associated with the operator's keyboard/display.

constant. Data that has an unchanging, predefined value to be used in processing. A constant does not change during the execution of a program, but the contents of a field or variable can. See also *literal*. **contiguous items.** Consecutive elementary or group items in the Data Division that are contained in a single data hierarchy.

control language. The set of all commands with which a user requests functions. Abbreviated CL.

currency sign. The character \$.

currency symbol. The character defined by the CURRENCY SIGN clause in the SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph. If no CURRENCY SIGN clause is present, the currency sign is used. See *currency sign*.

current record. The record that is available in the record area associated with the file.

current record pointer. A conceptual entity that is used in sequential retrieval of the next record.

data base. The collection of all data base files stored in the system.

data clause. A clause that appears in a data description entry in the Data Division and provides information describing a particular attribute of a data item.

data communications file. A generic term for a communications file or a BSC file. See also communications file and BSC file.

data description entry. A Data Division entry that describes the characteristics of a data item.

data description specifications. A description of the user's data base or device files that is entered into the system using a fixed-form syntax. The description is then used to create files. Abbreviated DDS.

DATA DIVISION. One of the four main parts of a COBOL program. The Data Division describes the files to be used in the program and the records contained within the files. It also describes any internal Working-Storage records that will be needed.

data item. A character or a set of contiguous characters (excluding literals) defined as a unit of data by the COBOL program.

data-name. A user-defined word that names a data item. When used in the general formats, data-name represents a word that can be neither subscripted, indexed, nor qualified unless specifically permitted by the rules of that format. An index-name is not a data-name. See also *identifier*.

DD. See Alias Name.

DDS. See data description specifications.

debugging line. A COBOL statement executed only when the WITH DEBUGGING MODE clause is specified. Debugging lines can be used to help determine the cause of an error.

debugging section. A declaratives section that receives control when an identifier, file-name, or procedure-name is encountered in the Procedure Division.

declarative-sentence. A compiler-directing sentence that specifies when a debugging section or an exception/error procedure is to be executed.

Declaratives. A set of one or more special-purpose sections, written at the beginning of the Procedure Division, and which can be used for input/output error checking or debugging.

delimiter. A character or a sequence of contiguous characters that identifies the end of a string of characters. A delimiter separates a string of characters from the following string of characters. A delimiter is not part of the string of characters that it delimits.

descending key. The values by which data is ordered from the highest value to the lowest value of the key, in accordance with the rules for comparing data items. Contrast with *ascending key*.

descending key sequence. The arrangement of data in order from the highest value of the key field to the lowest value of the key field. Contrast with ascending key sequence.

device file. An object that contains a description of how input data is to be presented to a program from an external device and/or how output data is to be presented to the external device from the program. External devices can be work stations, card devices, printers, diskette magazine drives, magazine tape drives, or a communications link.

digit. Any of the numerals from 0 through 9.

direct file. See relative file.

Distributed Data Management (DDM). A program product that allows an application program or user on a source system to access data files on remote systems connected by a communications network that also uses DDM.

division. One of the four major parts in a COBOL program: Identification, Environment, Data, and Procedure.

division header. The COBOL reserved words and punctuation that indicate the beginning of one of the four divisions of a COBOL program.

dynamic access. An access mode in which records can be read from or written to a file in a nonsequential manner (see *random access*) and read from a file in a sequential manner (see *sequential access*) during the scope of the same OPEN statement.

EBCDIC. Extended binary-coded decimal interchange code. A coded character set consisting of 8-bit coded characters.

editing character. A single character or a fixed 2-character combination used to format output.

elementary item. A data item that is described as not being logically subdivided.

entry. Any descriptive set of consecutive clauses terminated by a period and written in the Identification, Environment, or Procedure Division of a COBOL source program.

ENVIRONMENT DIVISION. One of the four main parts of a COBOL program. The Environment Division describes the computers upon which the source program is compiled and those on which the object program is executed; it also provides a linkage between the logical concept of files and their records, and the physical aspects of the devices on which files are stored.

exception. The occurrence of a machine or user-defined condition that can be monitored for and that is directly associated with the execution of a particular function within a program. Exceptions generally represent an abnormality detected by the machine or by a program.

executable program. The set of machine language instructions that is the output from the compilation of a source program. The actual processing of data is done by the executable program.

execution time. The time during which the instructions of a computer program are executed by a processing unit.

exponent. A number, indicating to which power another number (the base) is to be raised. In COBOL, exponentiation is indicated with the symbol ****** followed by an exponent.

EXTEND mode. An open mode in which records are added to the end of a sequential file.

external decimal item. See zoned decimal item.

externally described data. Data contained in a file for which the fields in the records are described to CPF, by using data description specifications, when the file is created. The field descriptions can be used by the program when the file is processed. Contrast with *program-described data*.

externally described file. In S/38 COBOL, a file for which one or more COPY statements, DDS format, are coded as part of the record description entry (or entries) for the file. These COPY statements provide the program with the description of the file used by CPF to create and process the file. Contrast with *program described file*.

figurative constant. A reserved word that represents a numeric or character value, or a string of repeated values. The word can be used instead of a literal to represent the value.

FILE-CONTROL. The name and header of an Environment Division paragraph in which the data files for a given source program are named and assigned to specific input/output devices.

file description. An entry in the File Section of the Data Division that provides information about the identification and physical structure of a file.

file-name. A name, associated with a file, defined in a file description entry or in a sort-merge file description entry.

file organization. The permanent file structure established at the time that a file is created.

FILE SECTION. A section of the Data Division that contains descriptions of all externally stored data (or files) used in a program. Such information is given in one or more file description entries.

file separator. The pages or cards to be produced at the beginning of each output file to separate the file from the other files being spooled to an output device.

function-name. A name, defined by IBM, that identifies system logical units, system-supplied information, printer and card punch control characters, or program switches.

group item. A named set of contiguous elementary or group items.

hierarchy. A hierarchy is a set of entries that includes all subordinate entries to the next equal or higher level number.

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. One of the four main parts of a COBOL program. The Identification Division identifies the source program and the object program and, in addition, may include such documentation as the author's name, the installation where written, the date written, and so on.

identifier. A data-name that is unique or is made unique by a combination of qualifiers, subscripts, and/or indexes.

imperative statement. A statement that specifies that an action is to be taken unconditionally. An imperative statement can consist of a series of imperative statements.

implementor-name. An IBM-defined name that includes assignment-names, function-names, and user-names.

index. A computer storage position or register, the contents of which identify a particular element in a set of elements.

index data item. A data item in which the contents of an index can be saved.

index-name. A user-defined word that names an index. An index-name is not a data-name.

indexed data-name. A data-name followed by one or more index-names, enclosed in parentheses, which is used to reference an element or a set of elements in a table.

indexed file. A data base file whose access path is built on key values. Each record in the file is identified by a key field.

indexed organization. The file structure in which each record is identified by the value of one or more keys within that record.

indicator. An internal switch used by a program to remember when a certain event occurs and what to do when the event occurs.

input file. A file that is opened in the input mode.

input mode. An open mode in which records can be read from the file.

input-output file. A file that is opened in the I-O mode.

INPUT-OUTPUT SECTION. In the Environment Division, the section that names the files and external media needed by an object program. It also provides information required for the transmission and handling of data during the execution of an object program.

INPUT PROCEDURE. A procedure that provides special processing of records when they are released to the sort function.

integer. A numeric data item or literal that does not include any character positions to the right of the decimal point. Where the term integer appears in formats, integer must be an unsigned numeric literal and must be nonzero unless the rules for that format explicitly state otherwise.

internal decimal item. See packed decimal item.

INVALID KEY condition. An execution-time condition in which the value of a key for an indexed or relative file does not give a correct reference to the file.

invited device. A work station or communications device that was written to using a DDS format that had the INVITE option specified. For multiple device files, the READ statement will read from any invited program device if no particular program device is specified for input using the TERMINAL phrase and no specific FORMAT is requested.

I-O-CONTROL. The name and the header for an Environment Division paragraph in which program requirements for specific input/output techniques are specified. These techniques include rerun checkpoints, the sharing of same areas by several data files, and the use of a storage-resident cylinder index.

I-O mode. An open mode where records can be read from, written to, or deleted from the file.

job separator. The pages or cards placed at the beginning of the output for each job that has spooled file entries on the output queue. Each separator contains information that identifies the job such as its name, the job user's name, the job number, and the time and date the job was executed.

key. A data item that identifies the location of a record, or a set of data items that is used to place data in ascending or descending sequence.

key field. A field in a record whose contents are used to sequence the records of a particular type within a file member.

keyword. A reserved word that is required by the syntax of a COBOL statement or entry.

keyed sequence access path. An access path to a data base file that is ordered on the contents of key

fields contained in the individual records. Contrast with arrival sequence access path.

language-name. A system-name that specifies a particular programming language.

level indicator. Two alphabetic characters, FD or SD, that identify the type of file description entry.

level-number. A numeric character (1 through 9) or a 2-character set (01 through 49, 66, 77, 88) that begins a data description entry, and establishes its level in a data hierarchy. Level-numbers 66, 77, and 88 identify special properties of a data description entry.

library. An object that serves as a directory to other objects. A library is used to group related objects and to find objects by name when they are used. The system-recognized identifier for the object type is $\star LIB$.

library-name. A user-defined word that names a library.

LINKAGE SECTION. A section of the Data Division that describes data made available from another program.

literal. A character string whose value is given by the characters themselves. For example, the numeric literal 7 has the value 7, and the character literal 'CHARACTERS' has the value CHARACTERS. See also character literal, constant, and numeric literal.

local data area. An area automatically created by the system for each job. The local data area is defined outside the COBOL program as 1024 bytes of character data. The local data area initially has the same value as the submitting job's local data area or, if there was no submitting job, has an initial value of blanks.

logical file. A description of how data is to be presented to or received from a program. This type of data base file contains no data, but it provides an ordering and format for one or more physical files. Contrast with *physical file*.

logical operator. A COBOL reserved word that defines the logical connection between conditions or negates a condition: OR (logical connective – either or both), AND (logical connective – both), and NOT (logical negation).

logical record. The most inclusive data item. The level number for a logical record is 01.

main program. The highest level program involved in a run unit.

main storage. All storage in a computer from which instructions can be executed directly.

merge file. The temporary file that contains all the records to be merged by a MERGE statement. The merge file is created and can be used only by the merge function.

mixed file. A CPF device file that supports: one or more work stations, one or more communications devices, or any combination of work stations and communications devices. A mixed file is processed in COBOL by a file with ORGANIZATION IS TRANSACTION.

mnemonic-name. A user-defined word associated with a function-name in the Environment Division.

mode. See access mode.

multiple device file. A device file that was created with the maximum number of program devices greater than one. Display files or mixed files can be multiple device files. Contrast with single device file.

name. A word that defines a COBOL operand. A name is composed of not more than 30 characters.

native character set. The default character set associated with the computer specified in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph.

native collating sequence. The default collating sequence associated with the computer specified in the OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph.

negated combined condition. The NOT logical operator immediately followed by a parenthesized combined condition.

negated simple condition. The NOT logical operator immediately followed by a simple condition.

nest. To incorporate a structure or structures of some kind into a structure of the same kind. For example, to nest one loop (the nested loop) within another loop (the nesting loop); to nest one subroutine (the nested subroutine) within another subroutine (the nesting subroutine).

next executable sentence. The sentence to which control is transferred after execution of the current statement is complete.

next executable statement. The statement to which control is transferred after execution of the current statement is complete.

next record. The record that logically follows the current record of a file.

noncontiguous item. A data item in the Working-Storage Section of the Data Division that bears no relationship with other data items.

nonnumeric item. A data item that is alphanumeric, alphabetic, or Boolean.

nonnumeric literal. A character string bounded by quotation marks, which literally means itself. See also *literal*.

numeric character. Any one of the digits 0 through 9.

numeric edited item. A numeric item whose PICTURE character-string contains valid editing characters.

numeric item. A data item that must be numeric. If signed, the item can also contain a representation of an operational sign.

numeric literal. The actual numeric value to be used in processing, instead of the name of a field containing the data. A numeric literal can contain any of the numeric digits 0 through 9, a sign (plus or minus), and a decimal point. Contrast with *character literal*.

OBJECT-COMPUTER. The name of an Environment Division paragraph in which the computer upon which the program will be run is described.

open mode. The state of a file after execution of an OPEN statement for that file and before the execution of a CLOSE statement for that file. The particular open mode is specified in the OPEN statement as either INPUT, OUTPUT, I-O, or EXTEND.

operand. The object of a verb or an operator; that is, an operand is the data or equipment governed or directed by a verb or operator.

operational sign. An algebraic sign associated with a numeric data item or a numeric literal that indicates whether the item is positive or negative.

optional word. A reserved word included in a specific format only to improve the readability of a COBOL statement or entry.

output file. A file that is opened in either output mode or extend mode.

output mode. An open mode in which records can be written to a file.

OUTPUT PROCEDURE. A procedure that provides special processing of records when they are returned from the sort or merge function.

overflow condition. A condition that occurs when a portion of the result of an operation exceeds the capacity of the intended unit of storage.

overlay. To use the same area of storage for more than one procedure.

packed decimal format. Representation of a decimal value in which each byte within a field represents two numeric digits except the rightmost byte, which contains one digit in bits 0 through 3 and the sign in bits 4 through 7. For all other bytes, bits 0 through 3 represent one digit; bits 4 through 7 represent one digit. For example, the decimal value +123 is represented as 0001 0010 0011 1111. Contrast with zoned decimal format.

packed decimal item. A numeric data item that is represented internally in packed decimal format.

paragraph. In the Procedure Division, a paragraph-name followed by a period and a space and by zero, one, or more sentences. In the Identification and Environment Divisions, a paragraph header followed by zero, one, or more sentences.

paragraph header. A reserved word, followed by a period and a space that indicates the beginning of a paragraph in the Identification and Environment Divisions.

paragraph-name. A user-defined word that identifies and begins a paragraph in the Procedure Division.

parameter. Data passed to or received from another program.

phrase. An ordered set of one or more consecutive COBOL character-strings that forms part of a clause or a Procedure Division statement.

physical file. A description of how data is to be presented to or received from a program and how data is actually stored in the data base. A physical file contains one record format and one or more members. Contrast with *logical file*.

physical record. A unit of data that is moved into or out of the computer. Same as *block*.

procedure. One or more successive paragraphs or sections within the Procedure Division, which direct the computer to perform some action or series of related actions.

PROCEDURE DIVISION. One of the four main component parts of a COBOL program. The Procedure Division contains instructions for solving a problem. The Procedure Division may contain imperative-statements, conditional statements, paragraphs, procedures, and sections.

procedure-name. A paragraph-name or a section-name in the Procedure Division.

process. Any operation or combination of operations on data.

program-described data. Data contained in a file for which the fields in the records are described in the program that processes the file. Contrast with *externally described data*.

program described file. In System/38 COBOL, a file that does *not* have any COPY statement, DDS format, coded as part of the record description entry for the file. The fields in the file's records are described only in the program that processes the file. Contrast with *externally described file*.

program device. A symbolic mechanism that a program uses instead of a real device (identified by the device name) to access the devices in a file. When the program uses a program device, the system redirects the operation to the appropriate real device. With the exception of mixed files, the name of the program device is the same as the name of the real device; for mixed files, the name of the real device may differ from the name of the real device.

program-name. A user-defined word that identifies a COBOL source program.

pseudo-text. A sequence of character-strings and/or separators bounded by, but not including, pseudo-text delimiters. Pseudo-text is used in the COPY REPLACING statement for replacing text strings.

pseudo-text delimiter. Two contiguous equal signs (= =) used to delimit pseudo-text.

punctuation character. A character used to separate COBOL elements or to identify a particular type of COBOL element: a comma, semicolon, period, quotation mark, left or right parenthesis, or space.

qualified data-name. An identifier that is composed of a data-name followed by one or more

sets of either of the connectives OF or IN followed by a data-name qualifier.

qualifier. A name used to uniquely identify another name. Group data-names, section-names, and library-names can be used as qualifiers to form qualified names.

random access. An access mode in which specific records can be read from, written to, or deleted from a file in a nonsequential manner.

read-from-invited-program-devices operation. An input operation that waits for input from any one of the invited program devices for a user-specified time. Contrast with read-from-one-program-device operation.

read-from-one-program-device operation. An input operation that will not complete until the specified device has responded with input. Contrast with *read-from-invited-program-devices operation*.

record. A set of one or more related data items that are grouped for processing. Records can be defined for an input/output device or for internal processing. See also *logical record*.

record area. A storage area in which a record described in a record description entry in the File Section is processed.

record description entry. The total set of data description entries associated with a particular record.

record key. A key whose contents identify a record within an indexed file.

relation character. One of the characters that expresses a relationship between two operands: = (equal to), > (greater than), < (less than).

relation condition. A condition that relates two arithmetic expressions and/or data items.

relational operator. A reserved word, a relation character, a group of consecutive reserved words, or a group of consecutive reserved words and relation characters used to construct a relation condition.

relative file. A file with a relative organization. Same as *direct file.*

relative key. An unsigned integer data item that can be used directly by the system to locate a record in a file. Same as *relative record number*.

relative organization. The file structure in which each record is uniquely identified by a positive integer value that specifies the record's ordinal position in the file.

relative record number. A number that specifies the location of a record in relation to the beginning of a data base file member or subfile. For example, the first record in a data base file member or subfile has a relative record number of 1.

reserved word. A predefined word used in a COBOL source program for syntactical purposes. It must not appear in a program as a user-defined name or system-name.

routine. A set of statements in a program that causes the computer to perform an operation or series of related operations.

run unit. A set of one or more programs that function as a unit at execution time to provide a problem solution. A run unit starts with the first COBOL program in the invocation stack and includes all programs (of any kind) that are below it in the invocation stack.

section. A set of zero, one, or more paragraphs or entries, called a section body, preceded by a section header. Each section consists of the section header and the related section body.

section header. A combination of words, followed by a period and a space, that indicates the beginning of a *section* in the Environment, Data, or Procedure Division.

section-name. A user-defined word that names a section in the Procedure Division.

sector. The addressable unit into which each track on a diskette is divided.

sentence. A sequence of one or more statements; the last statement ends with a period followed by a space.

separator. A punctuation character used to delimit character strings. See also *file separator* and *job separator*.

sequential access. An access mode in which records are read from, written to, or deleted from a file based on the logical order of the records in the file.

sequential processing. The processing of logical records in the order in which records are accessed.

serial search. A search in which the members of a set are consecutively examined, beginning with the first member and ending with the last member.

sign condition. A condition that states that the algebraic value of a data item is less than, equal to, or greater than zero.

simple condition. Any single condition chosen from the set: relation condition, class condition, condition-name condition, switch-status condition, and sign condition.

single device file. A device file created with only one program device defined for it. Printer files, card files, diskette files, tape files, communications files, and BSC files are single device files. Display files and mixed files created with a maximum number of one program device are also single device files. Contrast with *multiple device file*.

sort file. A temporary file that contains all the records to be sorted by a SORT statement. The sort file is created and can be used by the sort function only.

sort-merge file description entry. An entry in the File Section that describes a sort file or a merge file.

SOURCE-COMPUTER. The name of an Environment Division paragraph describing the computer upon which the source program will be compiled.

source program. A set of instructions, written in a programming language such as RPG or COBOL, that represents a particular job as defined by a programmer. A source program is used as input to the compiler to create an executable program.

special character. A character that is neither
numeric nor alphabetic. Special characters in
COBOL include: + - * / = \$, ") (; < >

special-character word. A reserved word that is an arithmetic operator or a relation character.

SPECIAL-NAMES. The names of an Environment Division paragraph and the paragraph itself in which names supplied by IBM are related to mnemonic-names specified by the programmer. In addition, this paragraph can be used to exchange the functions of the comma and the period or to specify a substitution character for the currency sign in the PICTURE string.

special registers. Compiler-generated data items used to store information produced by specific COBOL features (for example, the DEBUG-ITEM special register).

spooled file. A generic term for three types of files: a device file that provides access to an inline data file or that creates a spooled output file, an inline data file, or a spooled output file.

standard data format. The format in which data is described as to how it appears when it is printed, rather than how it is stored by the computer.

statement. A syntactically valid combination of words and symbols, beginning with a verb, that is written in the Procedure Division. A statement combines COBOL reserved words and user-defined operands.

subfile. A group of records of the same record format that can be displayed concurrently at a work station. The system sends the entire group of records to the work station in a single operation and receives the group in another operation.

subject of entry. A data-name or reserved word that appears immediately after a level indicator or level-number in a Data Division entry. It serves to reference the entry.

subprogram. A called program.

subscript. A positive integer whose value refers to a particular element in a table.

subscripted data-name. A data-name that has been made unique through the use of a subscript.

switch-status condition. A condition that states that a switch is currently on or off.

Synchronous Data Link Control. A discipline conforming to subsets of the Advanced Data Communication Control Procedures (ADCCP) of the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and High-level Data Link Control (HDLC) of the International Standards Organization (ISO), for managing synchronous, code-transparent, serial-by-bit information transfer over a link connection. Transmission exchanges may be duplex or half-duplex over switched or nonswitched links. The configuration of the link connection may be point-to-point, multipoint, or loop. Abbreviated SDLC.

system-name. An IBM-defined name that has a predefined meaning to the COBOL compiler. System-names include computer-names, language-names, and implementor-names.

table. A set of logically consecutive data items that are defined in the Data Division by means of the OCCURS clause.

table element. A data item that can be referenced in a table.

test condition. A statement that, taken as a whole, may be either true or false, depending on the circumstances existing at the time the expression is evaluated.

text-name. A user-defined word that identifies library text.

text-word. Any character-string or separator, except the space, in copied COBOL source or in pseudo-text.

TRANSACTION file. An input/output file used to communicate with work stations and/or for intersystems communications.

unary operator. A plus sign (+) or a minus sign (-), which precedes a variable or a left parenthesis in an arithmetic expression and which has the effect of multiplying the expression by +1 or -1, respectively.

UPSI switch. A program switch that performs the functions of a hardware switch. Eight switches are provided: UPSI-0 through UPSI-7.

user-defined word. A word, required by a clause or a statement, that must be supplied by the user in a clause or statement.

user-name. A type of implementor-name that appears in the VALUE OF clause, and that follows the rules for the formation of a user-defined word.

variable. A named modifiable value. The value can be accessed or modified by referring to the name of the variable.

verb. A COBOL reserved word that expresses an action to be taken by a COBOL compiler or an object program.

word. A character-string of not more than 30 characters, which forms a user-defined word, a system-name, or a reserved word.

work station. A device that lets a person transmit information to or receive information from a computer as needed to perform his job.

WORKING-STORAGE SECTION. A

section-name (and the section itself) in the Data Division. The section describes records and noncontiguous data items that are not part of external files but are developed and processed internally. It also defines data items whose values are assigned in the source program. **zoned decimal format.** Representation of a decimal value by 1 byte per digit. Bits 0 through 3 of the rightmost byte represent the sign; bits 0 through 3 of all other bytes represent the zone portion; bits 4 through 7 of all bytes represent the numeric portion. For example, in zoned decimal

format, the decimal value of +123 is represented as 1111 0001 1111 0010 1111 0011. Contrast with packed decimal format.

zoned decimal item. A numeric data item that is represented internally in zoned decimal format.

Index

Α

abbreviated combined relation condition description 5-19 examples 5-19 ACCEPT statement data transfer 5-30 **DATE 5-33** DAY 5-33 description 5-30 for TRANSACTION file attributes 7-44 formats 5-31 mnemonic-name in 3-7 system information transfer 5-33 TIME 5-33 ACCESS IS DYNAMIC relative key required 3-24 WRITE statement 5-74 ACCESS IS RANDOM relative key required 3-24 WRITE statement 5-74 ACCESS IS SEQUENTIAL relative key optional with 3-24 WRITE statement 5-74 ACCESS MODE clause default is SEQUENTIAL 3-23 description 3-23 formats 3-17 access modes access modes 3-15 compiler-directing statement 5-4 file 7-41 FORMAT phrase, for TRANSACTION file 7-37 logical file 9-31 access path arrival sequence 9-15 example for indexed files 9-37 file processing considerations 9-40 for indexed files 1-2, 3-23 keyed sequence 9-15 acknowledgment xv acquire program device See ACQUIRE statement ACQUIRE statement description 7-45 format 7-45 actual decimal point specification 4-50 ADD statement common phrases 5-82 composite of operands 5-80 description 5-84 formats 5-84 ADVANCING phrase of WRITE statement 5-72

AFTER ADVANCING phrase of WRITE statement 5-72 AFTER phrase of INSPECT statement 5-95 algebraic comparison relation condition 5-11 sign test uses 5-14 algebraic sign, definition 4-22 alias name 6-40 example 9-19 alignment rules alphabetic items 4-21 alphanumeric edited items 4-21 alphanumeric items 4-21 decimal point in arithmetic statements 4-21 in an elementary MOVE statement 5-100 JUSTIFIED clause modifies 4-37 numeric edited items 4-21 numeric items 4-21 ALL literal figurative constant description 2-7 ALL phrase of INSPECT statement 5-91 ALL PROCEDURES phrase (DEBUGGING) 6-68 allocate object command 9-5 alphabet-name CODE-SET clause specification 4-16 formation rules 2-5 alphabet-name clause COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase and 3-9 description 3-9 format 3-5 literal phrase 3-10 NATIVE phrase 3-9 **PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause** and 3-9 STANDARD-1 phrase 3-10 alphabetic characters COBOL character set 2-3 description 2-3 in CURRENCY SIGN clause 3-12 ALPHABETIC class test rules 5-9 alphabetic item alignment rules 4-21 PICTURE clause considerations 4-46 alphanumeric edited item alignment rules 4-21 PICTURE clause considerations 4-47 alphanumeric item JUSTIFIED clause and 4-37 PICTURE clause considerations 4-47 RECORD KEY data item 3-25 status key 3-26 ALSO phrase of alphabet-name clause 3-10 **ALTER** statement description 5-116 format 5-116 segmentation considerations 5-117, 6-53 altered GO TO statement 5-117, 5-119

American National Standard COBOL extensions to, printing of 1-5 publications xv AND logical connective description 2-6 in combined condition 5-15 AND NOT as logical connective 2-6 apostrophe specified in PROCESS statement 8-9 used as quotes 2-3 within nonnumeric literal 2-9 Arabic numeral description 2-4 in COBOL character set 2-3 Area A, columns 8 through 11 2-12 Area B, columns 12 through 72 2-12 arithmetic expression COMPUTE statement operand 5-85 description 5-6 in relation condition 5-11 in sign test 5-14 in WHEN phrase of SEARCH ALL 6-18 operators used 5-7 arithmetic operation order rules 5-7 arithmetic operations, combining 5-86 arithmetic operator description 5-7 list of 2-3 arithmetic statement operands overlapping 5-81 size of 5-80 arithmetic statements ADD statement 5-84 common phrases 5-82 COMPUTE statement 5-85 CORRESPONDING phrase 5-82 DIVIDE statement 5-86 GIVING phrase 5-83 multiple results 5-81 MULTIPLY statement 5-88 operands 5-80 ROUNDED phrase 5-83 SUBTRACT statement 5-89 arithmetic symbol pair list 5-8 ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY phrase of OCCURS clause description 6-12 formats 6-10 SORT/MERGE description 6-30 length of KEY data item 6-31 ASCII alphabet-name clause and 3-10 COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase and 6-31 collating sequences H-1 PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause 3-10 ASSIGN clause description 3-19 formats 3-17

indicators 7-6 assigning index values 6-22 assignment-name as function-name 2-5 **ASSIGN** clause association 3-21 attribute 3-19 description 3-19 device 3-19 formats 3-16 hopper 3-21 name 3-21 **RERUN clause** 3-28 associated card files D-1 assumed decimal point alignment in numeric item 4-21 description 4-21 asterisk (*) begins comment line 2-16 precedes comment line 2-10 AT END condition and SEARCH ALL statement 6-18 EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative and 5-21 READ statement considerations 5-54, 7-53, 7-57 AT END phrase of SEARCH statement 6-17 status key 5-28 attribute data for program device formats I-10 obtaining 7-45 ATTRIBUTE-DATA mnemonic-name and ACCEPT statement 7-45 formats I-10 AUTHOR paragraph, Syntax Checker restriction 8-2 availability of records 5-29

B

BEFORE ADVANCING phrase WRITE statement 5-72 **BEFORE/AFTER** phrase of INSPECT statement 5-95 binary item USAGE clause considerations 4-33 binary operators 5-7 bit configuration of hexadecimal digits 4-34 blank line description 2-16 **BLANK WHEN ZERO clause** description 4-37 format 4-37 VALUE clause considerations 4-40 **BLOCK CONTAINS clause** description 4-10 format 4-10 I-O-FEEDBACK special register and 4-11 blocking output record See unblocking input records/blocking output records blocking, automatic 5-27 Boolean data facilities See also indicators comparison rules 5-13 description 7-4, 7-44 format 4-25, 7-6 sending/receiving items 5-100 Boolean literal delimiters (B" and ") placement rules for 2-15 bottom page margin in LINAGE clause 4-13, 4-14 boundary alignment 4-36 braces indicate required items 1-4 brackets indicate optional items 1-5 breakpoints and COBOL functions A-7 considerations 10-8 data-name considerations 10-7 description 10-4 example 10-4 names and COBOL functions J-7 BSC file support 7-1

C

CALL GDDM See graphics support CALL statement description 6-59 dynamic 6-59 examples 6-64 formats 6-59 inter-program communication concepts 6-59 ON OVERFLOW phrase 6-59 segmentation considerations 6-53 static 6-59 USING phrase 6-60 called program segmentation considerations 6-53 calling for HELP 11-5 calling program segmentation considerations 6-53 **CANCEL** statement description 6-62 example 6-63 format 6-62 inter-program communication concepts 9-60 capital letters, reserved words 1-4 card files, associated D-1 categories of data, concepts 4-20 categories of statements 5-4 character codes and CODE-SET clause 4-16 character set, COBOL definition 2-3 character-string and item size 4-22 description 2-3

detailed description 2-4 in INSPECT statement 5-91 representation in PICTURE clause 4-44 characters allowed COBOL program 2-3 nonnumeric literal 2-9 numeric literal 2-9 user-defined word 2-4 CHARACTERS phrase of BLOCK CONTAINS clause 4-10 CHARACTERS phrase of INSPECT statement 5-96 characters used in PICTURE clause 4-42 class condition description 5-9 EBCDIC signs in 5-9 format 5-9 class test rules 5-9 classes of data, concepts 4-20 clause, description 2-2 clauses, summary J-1 **CLOSE** statement access considerations 5-36 description 5-35 device considerations 5-36 FOR REMOVAL phrase 5-35 for TRANSACTION file 7-46 formats 5-35, 7-46 LOCK phrase 5-35 organization considerations 5-36 REEL/UNIT phrase 5-35 volume considerations 5-36 COBOL character set description 2-3 COBOL coding form example 2-12 **COBOL** command statement compiler options specified in 8-6 options 8-8 syntax 8-6 used to compile a COBOL program 8-6 **COBOL** definitions clause 2-2 paragraph 2-2 section 2-2 statement 2-2 **COBOL** program structure general description 2-1 COBOL reserved words G-1 **COBOL** syntax checker restrictions on source 8-2 used by SEU 8-2 COBOL words, detailed description 2-4 COBOL, industry standards xiv **CODE-SET** clause description 4-16 format 4-16 omission of 4-16 specified for diskette files 4-16 specified for tape files 4-16 coding example COPY DDS results 6-45, 9-18

Data Division 4-3 DDS for a record format 9-17 DDS for data base file 9-12 DDS for field reference file 9-13 DDS for keyed access path 9-37 initialize a table to zero 6-8 **INSPECT** statement 5-93 PERFORM statement 5-124, 5-128, 5-132 Procedure Division 5-6 SEARCH statement 6-20 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-9 subscripting 6-5 **COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase** alphabet-name clause and 3-9 of SORT/MERGE statements 6-32 collating sequences EBCDIC and ASCII H-1 user-specified 3-10 column 7 continuation area 2-12 D denotes debugging line 6-72 columns 1 through 6 for sequence numbers 2-11 combined arithmetic operations 5-86 combined condition description 5-16 format 5-16 comma (,) character, description 2-4 in Configuration Section 3-4 in data description entry 4-26, 4-27 in File-Control entry 3-18 in I-O-CONTROL paragraph 3-28 separator, rules for using 2-11 series connective 2-6 comma and decimal point, interchanging 3-12 comment detailed description 2-10 punctuation characters valid in 2-16 comment character-string, definition 2-3 comment-entry as a comment 2-10 detailed description 2-16 in Identification Division 3-1 **COMMIT** statement description 5-39 format 5-39 commitment control considerations 9-44 recovery after failure using 9-55 sample program 9-47 **COMMITMENT CONTROL clause** description 3-29 format 3-27 common data concepts 4-17 common key 9-15 common phrases, arithmetic statements CORRESPONDING phrase 5-82 GIVING phrase 5-83 **ROUNDED phrase** 5-83 SIZE ERROR phrase 5-84

common processing facilities current record pointer 5-29 INTO/FROM phrases 5-28 invalid key condition 5-28 status kev 5-28 communications file support 7-1 communications recovery 9-55 sample program 9-57 comparison rules Boolean operands 5-13 **INSPECT statement** 5-92 START statement 5-66 compilation with a remote System/36 file 3-13 WITH DEBUGGING MODE 6-66 compilation date in source listing 3-3 compiler data areas A-3 debugging examples A-6 debugging options A-5 IRP layout A-9 overview A-1 phases A-3 service information A-1 subroutines A-3 temporary result field 5-82 compiler action on intermediate results E-1 compiler features 1-3 compiler messages C-1 compiler options description 8-8 specified on CRTCBLPGM command 8-6 specified on PROCESS statement 8-13 compiler output listing descriptions 8-16 listing examples 8-17 compiler-directing statement compiling source programs 8-5 complex conditions combined conditions 5-16 in PERFORM statement 5-123 negated simple conditions 5-15 composite of operands ADD statement execution and 5-84 arithmetic statements 5-80 description 5-80 SUBTRACT statement execution rules 5-89 **COMPUTATIONAL** item USAGE clause considerations 4-32 **COMPUTE** statement description 5-85 format 5-86 computer-name as system-name 2-5 form of 3-6 concatenating data items 5-104 concepts data description 4-17 Sort/Merge 6-25 concepts, inter-program communication

common data 6-55 control transfers 6-55 language considerations 6-56 concepts, segmentation control 6-52 fixed segments 6-50 independent segments 6-51 logic 6-51 condition complex 5-15 in IF statement 5-24 permissible element sequences 5-17 simple 5-9 condition-name and SET statement 5-103 condition 5-10 description 4-26 formation rules 2-5 qualification format 2-19 switch-status condition 5-14 VALUE clause considerations 4-38 condition-name condition description 5-10 example 5-10 format 5-10 PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause 3-6 condition-name entry concepts 4-20 description 4-40 general format 4-24 conditional expressions complex conditions 5-15 evaluation rules 5-16 in PERFORM statement 5-122 simple conditions 5-9 conditional GO TO statement 5-119 conditional PERFORM statement 5-122 conditional statement categories of 5-4 description 5-4 IF statement description 5-24 format 5-24 nested IF statement 5-25 conditional variable condition-name condition tests 5-10 condition-name entries 4-40 description 4-26 FILLER allowed as name 4-25 **Configuration Section** description 3-4 format 3-5 connective words, detailed description 2-6 considerations, system dependent DATA DIVISION considerations BLOCK CONTAINS clause 4-10 COPY DDS statement 6-40 index literals 6-7 item size 4-10 LINAGE clause 4-14

OCCURS clause 6-9 **RECORD CONTAINS clause 4-11** SORT/MERGE statement 6-30 subscript literals 6-4 ENVIRONMENT DIVISION considerations ASSIGN clause 3-19 RECORD KEY clause 3-24 **RESERVE** clause 3-21 SAME AREA or SAME RECORD AREA clause 3-28 SAME SORT-MERGE AREA clause 6-27 general considerations indexed file 3-23 library-name 2-19 program-name 3-2 relative file 3-23 source program library 6-39 source statements 8-2 text-name 2-19 user-defined words 2-4 **PROCEDURE DIVISION considerations** arithmetic statements 5-80 CALL statement 6-59 GO TO DEPENDING ON statement 5-118 **INSPECT statement** 5-90 STOP statement 5-133 UNSTRING statement 5-109 contents of DEBUG-ITEM special register 6-70 continuation area column 7 2-12 D denotes debugging line 6-72 continuation line, definition 2-15 control flow PERFORM statement 5-122 SEARCH ALL statement 6-18 SEARCH statement 6-15 control of segmentation 6-52 control return, in PERFORM statement 5-121 control transfer changed by ALTER statement 5-116 inter-program communication concepts 6-55 PERFORM statement 5-121 control transfer rules Declarative procedures 5-20 explicit, GO TO statement 5-118 control transfers, explicit and implicit 2-22 CONTROL-AREA clause 7-42 conversion of data DISPLAY statement and 5-43 COPY DDS, use with indicators 7-7, 7-49 **COPY** statement and externally described data 6-40 and EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY 6-40 and floating point 6-43 and record description entry 4-5 data field structures 6-43 DDS and use of 6-40 DDS results 6-44, 9-18 description 6-39 example 6-49

format 6-39 phrases 6-39 **REPLACING phrase** 6-47 use with TRANSACTION files 7-1 COPY, within PROCESS statement 8-15 **CORRESPONDING** phrase description 5-82, 5-103 FILLER items ignored 4-28 MOVE statement considerations 5-97 count field in INSPECT statement 5-91 COUNT IN phrase of UNSTRING statement 5-111 CPF graphics support See graphics support CR (credit) PICTURE symbol description 4-44 sign control symbol 4-50 creating a program 8-1 CRTCBLPGM command 8-6 currency sign description 2-3 fixed insertion symbol 4-50 floating insertion symbol 4-51 **CURRENCY SIGN clause** description 3-12 format 3-5 in PICTURE character-string 4-43 valid characters 3-12 current record pointer description 5-29 START statement 5-66

D

data alignment in an elementary MOVE statement 5-100 nonnumeric items 4-22 numeric items 4-21 data attribute specification 2-21 data base support file description entry 4-6 logical record 4-1 physical record 4-1 data categories PICTURE clause 4-46 data classes, description 4-20 data communications file 7-1, 7-39 data conversion DISPLAY statement 5-43 in an elementary MOVE statement 5-99 numeric items 4-46 SET statement 6-23 data description arithmetic statement operands 5-82 data description entry general description 4-23 general formats 4-23 data description specifications (DDS) and externally described files 9-8

and FORMATFILE files 9-22 and multiple device files 7-30 and program described files 9-20 example for data base file 9-12 example for field reference file 9-13 example for keyed access path 9-37 example for record format 9-17 use of keywords 9-11 Data Division concepts 4-1 data description 4-17 entries 2-14 example 4-3 file description entry 4-5, 4-6 general description 2-1 inter-program communications concepts 6-56 organization description 4-2 format 4-24 punctuation in 2-17 sort/merge considerations 6-28 table handling considerations OCCURS clause 6-9 USAGE IS INDEX clause 6-13 data hierachies concepts 4-17 used in qualification 2-17 data item description entry concepts 4-17 figurative constant length 2-8 data item description entry ADD statement considerations 5-84 breaking apart 5-109 concatenating 5-104 general description 4-23 general format 4-3 joining together 5-104 MOVE statement considerations 5-98 subject of OCCURS clause 6-10 SUBTRACT statement considerations 5-89 data manipulation statements **INSPECT statement** 5-90 MOVE statement 5-97 STRING statement 5-104 UNSTRING statement 5-109 data organization, description 3-14 data receiving fields (UNSTRING) 5-110 data record size specification 4-13 data records in file on another system 3-13 DATA RECORDS clause description 4-13 format 4-13 data reference, methods of 2-17 data references in Procedure Division 2-22data relationships 4-2 data transfer ACCEPT statement 5-30 **DISPLAY statement** 5-43 STRING statement 5-104

UNSTRING statement 5-109 data truncation ACCEPT statement 5-30 incompatible record lengths 4-11 nonnumeric items 4-22 numeric items 4-21 data-count fields in UNSTRING statement 5-110 data-name description 5-2 formation rules 2-5 qualification format 2-17 **REDEFINES** clause specification 4-28 restriction on duplications 2-20subscript, definition 6-4 data-name clause description 4-25 format 4-27 order of specification 4-25 date of compilation in source listing 3-3 **DATE-COMPILED** paragraph description 3-3 format 3-1 Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 **DATE-WRITTEN** paragraph Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 DATE, ACCEPT statement 5-33 DAY, ACCEPT statement 5-33 DB (debit) PICTURE symbol and numeric edited items 4-48 description 4-44 sign control symbol 4-50 **DB-FORMAT-NAME** other files 5-30 TRANSACTION files 7-35 DB-FORMAT-NAME special register 5-30 DD name 6-40, 9-8 DDM files 3-13 definition GLOSS-4 DDS name 6-40, 9-8 DEBUG module. 1974 Standard 1-2 DEBUG-CONTENTS 6-71 **DEBUG-ITEM** special register description 6-70 format 6-70 subfield contents 6-71 debugging Declaratives, execution of 6-68 debugging features compile-time switch 6-66 execution-time switch 6-67, 10-12 USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures 6-68 DEBUGGING MODE as compile-time switch 6-66 decimal numbers, representation 4-22 decimal point (.) alignment of numeric items 4-21 alignment of numeric-edited items 4 - 21and comma, interchanging 3-12 in elementary MOVE statement 5-100 in numeric literal 2-9 **DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA clause** comma and period PICTURE symbols 4-44 description 3-12

format 3-5 Declarative procedures common exit point 5-117 debugging 6-68 MERGE statement 6-28 SORT statement 6-28 Declaratives EXCEPTION/ERROR 5-21 **EXCEPTION/ERROR for TRANSACTION** file 7-66 FOR DEBUGGING 6-68 general description 5-1 general format 5-20 section requirements when used 5-1 **DECLARATIVES** keyword begins Declaratives 5-1 begins in Area A 2-12, 2-15 decrementing index-name values 6-24 decrementing operands 5-123 default attributes are implicit 2-21 **DELETE** statement (input/output) access considerations 5-40 description 5-40 device considerations 5-40 format 5-40 organization considerations 5-40 with duplicate keys 5-42 **DELIMITED BY ALL phrase (UNSTRING)** description 5-109 **DELIMITED BY phrase** and STRING statement execution 5-105 delimiter for Boolean literal 7-44 for pseudo-text 2-11 in INSPECT statement 5-95 in STRING statement 5-104 in UNSTRING statement 5-109 DEPENDING ON phrase of GO TO statement description 5-118 **DEPENDING ON phrase of OCCURS clause** description 6-11 format 6-10 **DESCENDING KEY phrase of OCCURS** clause 6-12 device dependencies 9-1 device file ASSIGN clause and 3-19 diagnostic levels C-1 diagnostic messages description C-1 listing 8-24 severity levels 8-25 direct and relative index usage 6-20 direct indexing, description 6-7 display device file data description specifications for 7-1 description 7-39 record format 7-2 sample program 7-30 subfiles 7-22

display file support 7-1 DISPLAY phrase of USAGE clause description 4-31 display screen formats COBOL coding form and 8-2 **DISPLAY** statement description 5-43 figurative constant length 2-8 format 5-43 mnemonic-name and 3-8 distributed data management (DDM) 3-13 definition GLOSS-4 **DIVIDE** statement description 5-86 format 5-86 division header 2-14 division operator 5-7 documentation, comments 2-10 documenting end of procedures 5-117 dollar sign (\$) See currency sign dollar sign character, description 2-3 **DROP** statement description 7-47 format 7-47 dump, formatted 10-1 duplicate record keys, DUPLICATES phrase 3-24 duplication of data-name, restriction 2-20 dynamic access DELETE statement 5-40 READ statement 5-54 WRITE statement 5-74 dynamic access mode description 3-15 in WHEN phrase of SEARCH ALL 6-18 indexed files 3-16 relative files 3-16 relative key required 3-24 dynamic values in a table 6-7

E

EBCDIC character set COBOL characters 2-3 default for alphabet-name clause 3-9 NATIVE phrase 3-9 EBCDIC collating sequence alphabet-name clause 3-9 and HIGH-VALUE figurative constant 2-7 and LOW-VALUE figurative constant 2-7 and sort/merge phrase 6-31 list of characters H-2 editing character 2-3 editing in an elementary MOVE statement 5-99 editing sign control symbols 4-50 editing sign, description 4-22 editing through PICTURE clause 4-49 elementary item

alignment rules 4-21 as subscript 6-4 classes and categories 4-20 description 4-17 level-number concepts 4-18 MOVE statement operand 5-98 valid clauses 4-26 elementary moves description 5-98 ellipsis indicates repetition 1-5 ELSE phrase description 5-24 format 5-24 with nested IF statements 5-25 END DECLARATIVES keywords ends Declaratives 5-1 end of execution STOP RUN statement 5-133 end of procedures, documenting 5-117 ENDCBLDBG command 6-67 ending file processing 5-35 ENTCBLDBG command 6-67 ENTER statement as documentation 5-134 entering source programs 8-1 entry, description 2-2 **Environment Division** Configuration Section 3-4 File-Control entry, sort/merge 6-27 File-Control paragraph 3-16 general description 2-1 I-O-Control entry, sort/merge 6-27 I-O-CONTROL paragraph 3-27 Input-Output Section 3-12 punctuation in 2-17 Sort/Merge considerations 6-27 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-7 equal sign (=)description 2-4 rules for using 2-11 separator, rules for using 2-10 EQUAL TO relational operator in WHEN phrase of SEARCH ALL 6-18 error conditions **REWRITE** statement considerations 5-63 error correction, automatic 5-27 evaluation results 5-17 examples See also sample programs access path for indexed file 9-37 breakpoint 10-4 COBOL formatted dump 10-12 COBOL program skeleton coding 2 - 13commitment control 9-44 compiler debugging options A-6 compiler options listing 8-16, 8-17 COPY DDS results 6-45, 9-18 COPY statement 6-49 cross reference listing 8-23 Data Division 4-9 Data Division coding 4-3

Data Division map 8-20 DDS for a display device file 7-1 DDS for a record format 9-17 DDS for a record format with Alias keyword 9-19 DDS for data base file 9-12 DDS for field reference file 9-13 DDS for subfiles 7-25 diagnostic messages listing 8-24 Environment Division coding 3-4 error recovery 9-55 FIPS messages listing 8-22 fixed insertion editing 4-51 floating insertion editing 4-52 FORMATFILE file 9-22 generic START using a program described file 9-33 generic START using an externally described file 9-33 Identification Division coding 3-2 Indicators 7-10 initialize a table to zero 6-8 INSPECT statement 5-93, 5-96 inter-program communication 6-64 mixed files 7-30 multiple display files 7-30 PERFORM statement 5-124, 5-128, 5-132 Procedure Division 5-6 Procedure Division coding 5-3 record description concepts 4-18 record format specifications 9-12, 9-13 **REDEFINES clause** 4-29 **RENAMES clause** 4-56 **ROLLING phrase** 7-61 SEARCH statement 6-20 simple insertion editing 4-49 source listing 8-17 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-7 STRING statement 5-106 subscripting 6-4 trace 10-9 UNSTRING statement 5-114 verb usage by count listing 8-20 work station application programs 7-66 zero suppression and replacement editing 4-53 **EXCEPTION/ERROR** Declarative description 5-21 EXTEND phrase 5-22 file-name phrase 5-21 format 5-21 I-O phrase 5-22 status key 5-28 EXCEPTION/ERROR procedure and USING phrase for sort/merge 6-32 CLOSE statement 5-35 DELETE statement 5-42 MERGE statement 6-28 **REWRITE statement considerations** 5-63 sort/merge OUTPUT PROCEDURE 6-32 exceptional situations SORT statement 6-28

exceptions and status key values I-5 causes 9-52 executing a program compiler output 8-16 methods 8-25 execution flow ALTER statement 5-116 GO TO statement 5-118 PERFORM statement 5-120 SEARCH ALL statement 6-18 SEARCH statement 6-15, 6-18 STOP statement 5-133 execution results INSPECT statement examples 5-93, 5-96 JUSTIFIED clause examples 4-37 STRING statement 5-107 UNSTRING statement examples 5-114 execution rules INSPECT statement 5-92 PERFORM statement 5-122 **ROUNDED** phrase 5-83 SIZE ERROR phrase 5-84 STRING statement 5-105 UNSTRING statement 5-111 USE FOR DEBUGGING procedure 6-68 execution sequence, performed procedures 5 - 122execution status, status key usage 3-27 execution suspension ACCEPT statement 5-30 STOP statement provides 5-133 execution time debugging switch 6-66 exit point rules for performed procedures 5-120 **EXIT PROGRAM statement** CALL statement 6-56 description 6-63 format 6-63 inter-program communications concepts 6-64 EXIT statement description 5-117 format 5-118 explicit attribute, description 2-21 explicit control transfer, GO TO statement 5-118 exponentiation operator 5-7 exponentiation results 5-8 EXTEND phrase of OPEN statement description 5-50 extensions, how printed 1-5 extensions, summary of IBM B-1 external data concepts 4-2 external decimal item See zoned decimal item externally described files adding COBOL functions 9-18 coding record descriptions 9-10 considerations for using 9-8 description 9-8 overriding COBOL functions 9-18 externally described TRANSACTION file 7-1

EXTERNALLY-DESCRIBED-KEY and COPY statement, DDS, DD format 6-40, 6-45 description 3-26, 9-29

 \mathbf{F}

fall through of performed procedures 5-122 FD entry See also File Description (FD) entry description 4-1, 4-6 FILE-CONTROL paragraph 3-18 formats 4-7 implicit redefinition 4-28 LABEL RECORDS clause required 4-12 **OPEN statement** 5-48 field definitions on remote system 3-13 when compiling programs 3-13 field-count field, in UNSTRING statement 5-110 fields, intermediate result E-1 figurative constant detailed description 2-7 functions 2-7 file categories data base files logical 3-13 physical 3-13 device files 3-13 file creation time 5-73 File Description (FD) entry description 4-6 FILE-CONTROL paragraph 3-18 formats 4-7 general description 4-1 general formats 4-7 LABEL RECORDS clause required 4-12 file feedback See OPEN-FEEDBACK mnemonic-name file label specification 4-12 file locking allocate object command 9-5 lock states 9-5 shared files 9-5 file processing access paths 9-40 associated card 9-30, D-1 card 9-29 DATABASE 9-31 DISK 9-31 feedback information 5-33 FORMATFILE 9-21 indexed organization 9-31 initiating 5-47 PRINTER 9-21 relative organization 9-38 sample programs F-1 sequential organization 9-39

summary 3-14 **File Section** general description 4-5 general formats 4-5 VALUE clause considerations 4-38 FILE STATUS clause CLOSE statement 5-35 DELETE statement 5-40 description 3-26 formats 3-18 INVALID KEY condition 5-28 READ statement 5-56 **REWRITE statement** 5-62 START statement 5-67 file status information obtaining 10-12 related exceptions I-5 values I-5 file structure support summary I-1 File-Control entry file processing entries 3-16 sort/merge considerations 6-26 TRANSACTION file processing entry 7-39 FILE-CONTROL paragraph formats 3-16 function of 3-18 file-name CLOSE statement operand 5-35 DELETE statement operand 5-40 formation rules 2-5 in FD entry 4-10 **OPEN** statement specification 5-48 READ statement considerations 5-53 SD entry operand 6-28 SELECT clause operand description 3-19 formats 3-18 SORT statement operand 6-29 sort/merge file operand 6-27 START statement specification 5-67 file, description 4-1 files, TRANSACTION 7-1 FILLER keyword description 4-27 order of specification 4-25 **FIPS** Flagger compiler messages 8-22 description 6-73 standard modules used 1-3 1975 flagging 1-3 FIPS levels 1-4 FIRST phrase of INSPECT REPLACING statement 5-93 FIRST phrase, READ statement 5-54 fixed insertion symbol description 4-50 symbol fixed length record size specification 4-10 fixed length table

description 6-11 fixed page spacing, LINAGE clause 4-13 fixed portion segmented program 6-50 floating insertion editing 4-51floating point fields 6-43 footing area, LINAGE clause 4-14 format notation, description 1-4 FORMAT phrase, for TRANSACTION file 7-48 FORMATFILE files description 9-22 sample program 9-22 formatted dump, COBOL contents 10-12 example 10-13 FROM identifier phrase **REWRITE** statement considerations 5-63 WRITE statement considerations 5-75 FROM phrase ACCEPT statement 5-31 **RELEASE statement** 6-36 function-name ACCEPT statement 5-30 as system-name 2-5 DISPLAY statement operand 5-44 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-7 values 3-8 WRITE statement 5-76 function-name-1 clause description 3-7 format 3-5 function-name-2 clause description 3-8 format 3-5 switch-status condition and 3-8

G

GDDM See graphics support general description of S/38 COBOL 1-1 generic START examples using a program described file 9-33 using an externally described file 9-33 GIVING phrase arithmetic statements 5-83 SORT/MERGE statements 6-32 GO TO statement 5-118 Graphical Data Display Manager See graphics support graphics support 6-61 group moves 5-101

H

hexadecimal digit bit configurations 4-34 hyphen (-) allowed in user-defined word 2-4 character, description 2-4 in continuation area, meaning 2-15 in program-name, conversion of 3-2 produced when copying Alias names 6-40

Ι

I-O files EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative 5-21 I-O option of OPEN statement description 5-48 indexed file considerations 5-48 relative file considerations 5-48 TRANSACTION file considerations 7-48 I-O-CONTROL paragraph description 3-27 formats 3-27 order of clauses optional 3-28 sort/merge considerations 6-27 I-O-FEEDBACK mnemonic-name and ACCEPT statement 5-33 description I-11 extended file status 7-41 IBM extensions xii, 1-5, B-1 Identification Division description 3-1 format 3-1 punctuation in 2-16 identifier ACCEPT statement operand 5-30 breaking apart 5-109 description 5-2 DISPLAY statement operand 5-44 in sign test 5-14 **INSPECT** statement operand 5-90 replacing characters in 5-91 IF statement description 5-24 format 5-24 nested 5-25 imperative-statement categories of 5-4 description 5-4 implicit attribute, description 2-21 implicit control transfers 2-21 IN as qualifier connective 2-6, 2-17 incrementing index-name values 6-24 incrementing operands PERFORM VARYING rules 5-123 indentation, to clarify logic 2-15 independent segment

calling and called programs 6-54 description 6-51 index description 6-6 **INDEX** usage description 6-13 index-name and File Section 6-14 assigning values 6-22 comparison rules 6-13 description 6-6 in PERFORM statement 5-123 passing values of, in CALL 6-57 rules of formation 2-5, 6-13 SET statement operand 6-22 index-name values 6-22 **INDEXED BY phrase OCCURS** clause description 6-9 formats 6-9 SEARCH statement requirements 6-16 indexed data item comparison rules 6-14 description 6-13 indexed file File-Control entry description 3-23 format 3-16 INDEXED I-O module, 1974 Standard 1-2 indexed organization 3-14 indexes assigning values 6-22 conditional variable 4-40 indexing description 6-6 INDEXED BY phrase rules 6-13 **INDICATOR clause** 7-7 indicators and COPY statement 6-41, 7-7 and Separate indicator area (SI) attribute 7-5 associated with command keys 7-2 Boolean data items 7-4, 7-17 INDARA DDS keyword 7-5 sample programs 7-10 TRANSACTION file processing 7-4 INDICATORS phrase 7-9, 7-49 industry standards, COBOL xiv initialization data items with INSPECT statement 5-91 DEBUG-ITEM special register 6-70 example for tables 6-8 indexed file considerations 5-48 LINAGE-COUNTER 4-15 of index 6-7 of table values 6-7 input file current record pointer used 5-29 for sort/merge 6-32 **INPUT** phrase EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative 5-21

of OPEN statement description 5-52 relative file considerations 5-52 **Input-Output Section** detailed description 3-12 format 3-13 input/output errors EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative and 5-21 INPUT/OUTPUT PROCEDURE control 6-35 input/output statements ACCEPT statement 5-31 ACQUIRE statement 7-45 CLOSE statement 5-35 common input/output phrases 5-27 DELETE statement 5-41 DISPLAY statement 5-44 DROP statement 7-47 **OPEN** statement 5-48 READ statement 5-52 **REWRITE** statement 5-63 START statement 5-66 WRITE statement 5-72 insertion editing description 4-49 **INSPECT** statement ALL literal figurative 2-7 BEFORE/AFTER phrase 5-95 coding example 5-93 comparisons illustration 5-92 description 5-90 examples 5-96 figurative constant length in 2-8 formats 5-90 **REPLACING phrase** 5-94 TALLYING phrase 5-94 **INSTALLATION** paragraph as documentation description 3-3 format 3-1 Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 integer item RECORD KEY data item 3-25 **RELATIVE KEY data item 3-24** status key 3-26 inter-program communication common data 6-55 local data area 9-61 concepts CALL statement 6-56 control transfers 6-55 language considerations 6-56 Data Division, Linkage Section 6-56 examples 6-64 EXIT PROGRAM statement 6-63, 9-61 CALL statement 6-64 file considerations 9-60 initialization 9-61 return of control 9-61 STOP RUN statement 6-64, 9-61 USING phrase, CALL statement 6-60

Inter-Program Communication module, 1974 Standard 1-3 interactive communications 7-1 intermediate result fields E-1 intermediate results SIZE ERROR phrase and 5-84 internal data concepts 4-1 internal decimal item See packed decimal item internal representation operational sign 4-22 INTO identifier phrase of READ statement 5-56 INTO phrase of RETURN statement 6-37 INTO/FROM identifier phrase 5-28 **INVALID KEY condition** actions taken 5-28 EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative and 5-22 statements that recognize 5-28 **INVALID KEY phrase** DELETE statement and 5-40 START statement considerations 5-66 status kev 5-28 WRITE statement 5-72 IRP layout A-9

J

joining data items together 5-104 JUSTIFIED clause description 4-36 example of results 4-37 format 4-36 VALUE clause considerations 4-40

K

key fields common keys and 9-15 defined by DDS 9-15 descending keys 9-41 for indexed files 9-32 in the record area 5-41 partial keys 9-33 RECORD KEY clause 9-15, 9-32 record keys and 9-15 KEY phrase of OCCURS clause 6-12 of START statement 5-67 key, status 5-28 keyword, detailed description 2-6 keywords, printed as underlined capitals 1-4

L

label processing **OPEN statement** 5-51 READ statement 5-59 WRITE statement 5-79 LABEL RECORDS clause description 4-12 format 4-12 required entry 4-12 label specification 4-12 language concepts, inter-program communication 6-54 language extension notation used 1-4 TRANSACTION file 7-1 language structure, description 1-1 language-name as system-name 2-5 in ENTER statement 5-134 LAST phrase, READ statement 5-54 left parenthesis character description 2-3 separator, rules for using 2-11 length of figurative constant 2-8 less than (<) character description 2-3 when required in formats 1-5 level check function externally described files 9-5 level concepts 4-17 level indicator as qualifier 2-19 begins in Area A 2-13 description 4-2 level-66 entry 4-54 level-number concepts description 4-18 illustration 4-20 description 4-2 format 4-27 formation rules 2-5 **REDEFINES** specifications and 4-28 unequal allowed 4-18 01 and 77 begin in Area A 2-15 02-49, 66, 88 begin in Area A or B 2-14 level-01 item implicit redefinition 4-28 level-01 records 4-18 level-02 through -49 item 4-18 level-66 entry description 4-54 general description 4-26 general format 4-24 level-77 entry general description 4-25 general format 4-24

level-77 item Linkage Section considerations 6-58 level-88 entry description 4-40 general format 4-24 level-88 item VALUE clause considerations 4-38, 4-40 library source program 6-39 test 10-1 LIBRARY module 1-2 library-name 2-5, 6-39 and System/38 library name 6-39 LINAGE clause description 4-13 format 4-14 LINAGE-COUNTER special register and 4-15 logical page depth illustrated 4-15 printer file commands 4-14 when assigned to PRINTER 9-21 with WRITE END-OF-PAGE 5-76 WRITE ADVANCING PAGE statement 5-76 LINAGE-COUNTER special register description 4-15 qualification rules 2-20 WRITE statement rules for 5-76 line advancing WRITE statement rules 5-76 line continuation 2-15 line-number, LINAGE-COUNTER value 4-15 LINENUMBER 8-9, 8-14 LINES AT BOTTOM phrase of LINAGE clause 4-14 LINES AT TOP phrase of LINAGE clause 4-14 Linkage Section general description 4-6 Inter-program Communication feature concepts 6-56 description 6-56 level-77 and level-01 names unique 4-20 VALUE clause considerations 4-38 literal alphabet-name 2-5 as character-string 2-3 detailed description 2-8 in relation condition 5-13 **INSPECT statement operand** 5-90 phrase of alphabet-name clause 3-10 local data area and ACCEPT statement 5-30 and DISPLAY statement 5-43 description 9-65 LOCAL-DATA mnemonic-name 3-8 LOCK phrase CLOSE statement 5-36 locking, file and record 9-5 logic of segmentation 6-51 logical connective 5-15 meaning and use 5-15 logical connectives 2-6

detailed description 2-6 logical file 3-13 logical page positioning LINAGE-COUNTER and 4-15 logical page size LINAGE clause specifies 4-13 logical record BLOCK CONTAINS CHARACTER, clause and 4-11 description 4-1 level concepts 4-17 size specification 4-10 loops in a program 9-54 LOW-VALUE/LOW-VALUES figurative constant description 2-7 lower-case, user-defined words printed in 1-4

Μ

manual updates xii manual organization, description xi manual purpose xi margins of pages in LINAGE clause 4-14 maximum length COBOL word 2-4 data description entry 4-23 nonnumeric literal 2-9 numeric literal 2-9 of table 6-11 PICTURE character-string 4-42 Sort/Merge keys 6-31 table element 6-11 VALUE clause initialization 4-39 maximum number characters in numeric item 4-46 delimiters in UNSTRING statement 5-109 digits in numeric item 4-46 GO TO statement procedure-names 5-119 lines on printed page 4-13 Sort/Merge keys 6-30 maximum value of an index 6-7 subscript 6-4 merge concepts 6-27 description 6-27 **MERGE** statement description 6-29 format 6-29 phrases 6-30 segmentation considerations 6-54 sort/merge OUTPUT PROCEDURE 6-34 merged records 6-29 message reply modes 10-13 messages, compiler modifying C-2

numbers C-1 severity codes C-1 methods of data reference 2-17 MFCU, 5424 D-1 minimum size numeric item 4-47 minimum value index 6-7 subscript 6-4 minus sign (-) floating insertion symbol 4-51 in numeric literal 2-9 sign control symbol 4-50 minus symbol (-) character, description 2-4 minus symbol, when required in formats 1-5 mixed files description 7-40 sample program 7-30 subfiles 7-22 support 7-1 mnemonic-name as qualifier 3-9 formation rules 2-5 I-O-FEEDBACK 5-33 **OPEN-FEEDBACK 5-33 MOVE** statement CORRESPONDING phrase 5-97 description 5-97 elementary moves 5-98 formats 5-97 group moves 5-101 summary reference table 5-102 MOVE statement, implicit INTO/FROM identifier phrase 5-28 multifunction card unit, 5424 D-1 multiple device file description 7-28 sample program 7-30 **MULTIPLE FILE TAPE clause** description 3-29 format 3-27 multiple member processing 9-7 multiple redefinitions allowed 4-29 multiple results, arithmetic description 5-81 execution rules 5-81 multiplication operator 5-7 **MULTIPLY** statement description 5-88 formats 5-88



NATIVE phrase COLLATING SEQUENCE phrase 6-31 of alphabet-name clause 3-9 negated simple condition description 5-15

format 5-15 negative numeric data SIGN clause and 4-35 nested IF statement description 5-25 examples 5-26 next executable statement description 2-22 NEXT phrase of READ statement 5-54 NEXT SENTENCE in IF statement 5-24 NO DATA phrase description 7-54 format 7-51 NO REWIND phrase of CLOSE statement 5-36 NO REWIND phrase of OPEN statement 5-48 nonnumeric item ALL literal figurative constant 2-7 HIGH-VALUE figurative constant 2-7 LOW-VALUE figurative constant 2-7 QUOTE figurative constant 2-7 SPACE, SPACES figurative constant 2-7 ZEROS figurative constant 2-7 nonnumeric literal alphabet-name clause 3-10 detailed description 2-9 punctuation characters 2-16 NOT logical connective meaning and use 5-15 placement in combined condition 5-16 NUCLEUS module, 1974 Standard 1-2 numerals, in COBOL character set 2-3 numeric category, numeric literal 2-9 numeric characters allowed in user-defined word 2-4 description 2-4 list 2-4 NUMERIC class test rules 5-9 numeric edited item alignment rules 4-21 numeric edited item, PICTURE clause 4-48 numeric first character in program-name 3-2 numeric item PICTURE clause considerations 4-47 ZERO, ZEROES, ZEROS figurative constant 2-7 numeric literal DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA clause 3-12



object of OCCURS DEPENDING ON clause description 6-11 object program See program (executable) object time See execution time OBJECT-COMPUTER paragraph description 3-6

format 3-5 **PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause** relation conditions 3-6 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph and 3-6 Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 occurrence number index-name 6-14 subscript identifiers 6-4 **OCCURS** clause ASCENDING/DESCENDING KEY phrase 6-12 DEPENDING ON phrase 6-11 description 6-9 fixed-length tables 6-11 formats 6-9 INDEXED BY phrase 6-13 variable-length tables 6-11 omission of optional words allowed 2-6 OMITTED phrase of LABEL RECORDS 4-12 ON OVERFLOW phrase and STRING statement execution 5-105 and UNSTRING execution 5-112 CALL statement 6-59 one operand, varying 5-124 **OPEN INPUT statement** indexed file considerations 5-49 relative file considerations 5-49 **OPEN OUTPUT statement** LINAGE clause 4-14 **OPEN** statement access considerations 5-48 CLOSE statement 5-35 description 5-47 device considerations 5-48 for TRANSACTION file 7-47 formats 5-48 initializes LINAGE-COUNTER 4-15 organization considerations 5-48 sets current record pointer 5-29 **OPEN-FEEDBACK** mnemonic-name and ACCEPT statement 5-33 description I-11 operand length relational comparisons 5-11 operands overlapping 5-81 operation order for arithmetic expressions 5-7 operational sign description 4-22 in an elementary MOVE statement 5-100 in class test 5-9 in numeric item 4-47 S PICTURE symbol specifies 4-42 SIGN clause 4-35 operator response ACCEPT statement 5-30 STOP statement 5-133 **OPTIONAL** phrase of SELECT clause description 3-19 format 3-17 optional word

detailed description 2-6 OR as logical connective 2-6printed as capitals 1-4 options, PROCESS statement 8-13 OR condition, multiple UNSTRING 5-109 OR NOT as logical connective 2-6 order of clauses I-O-CONTROL paragraph 3-27 order of paragraphs, Identification Division 3-3 order of symbols in PICTURE clause 4-45 ordering records using sort/merge 6-25 **ORGANIZATION** clause default is SEQUENTIAL 3-22 formats 3-17 Organization of Manual, description xi output device, DISPLAY statement 5-43 output file SAME clause and 3-28 **OUTPUT** phrase and data base files 5-49 EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative 5-21 **OPEN statement** 5-48 output procedure for sort/merge description 6-34 overflow condition and UNSTRING execution 5-112 in a STRING statement 5-105 overlapping delimiters in UNSTRING 5-109 override file command 9-3

P

packed decimal item storage occupied 4-33 USAGE clause considerations 4-32 padding of numeric-edited items 4-21 padding with spaces and DISPLAY statement 5-44 in a move 5-98 incompatible record lengths 4-11 nonnumeric items 4-22 page advancing rules, WRITE statement 5-75 page body, definition 4-14 page ejecting 2-16 page end, LINAGE clause specifies 5-76 page margins in LINAGE clause 4-14 page overflow WRITE END-OF-PAGE considerations 5-77 PAGE phrase of WRITE ADVANCING statement 5-76 page positioning LINAGE-COUNTER 4-15 page size, LINAGE clause specifies 4-13 paragraph description 5-2 paragraph header, specification 2-14 paragraph-names

and PERFORM statement 5-121 description 5-2 formation rules 2-5 GO TO statement 5-119 qualification format 2-18 restriction on duplication 2-19 parentheses separators, rules for using 2-11 PERFORM statement 5-119 coding example 5-124, 5-128, 5-132 common exit point 5-121 conditional PERFORM 5-122 description 5-119 equivalent to sort/merge 6-35 for table search 6-20 formats 5-119 initializes index 6-7 range of 5-120 segmentation considerations 6-53 TIMES phrase 5-122 VARYING phrase 5-123 performance considerations 9-53 performed procedures common exit point valid 5-117, 5-121 execution rules 5-120 period (.) character, definition 2-3 in Configuration Section 3-4 in data description entry 4-26, 4-27 in File-Control entry 3-18 in I-O-CONTROL paragraph 3-28 separator, rules for using 2-11 permanent segment, definition 6-50 permanent segments ALTER statement 5-117 permissible comparisons relation-condition 5-11 PGR See graphics routines phrase, description 2-2 physical file 3-13 physical page size logical page size 4-13 physical record size BLOCK CONTAINS clause 4-10 specifications 4-10 physical record, definition 4-1 **PICTURE** character-string DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA clause 3-12 description 2-4 item size 4-22 punctuation characters 2-10 **PICTURE** clause character-string representation 4-44 data categories 4-46 description 4-41 editing 4-49 editing sign function 4-22 fixed insertion editing 4-50 floating insertion editing 4-51 format 4-41

simple insertion editing 4-49 special insertion editing 4-50 symbol order 4-45 symbols used 4-42 VALUE clause considerations 4-39 zero suppression and replacement 4-52 plural figurative constant 2-8 plus sign character definition 2-3 in numeric literal 2-9 SIGN clause 4-35 when required in formats 1-5 **POINTER** phrase and STRING statement execution 5-105 and UNSTRING execution 5-112 positive data, and sign control symbols 4-51 positive numeric data SIGN clause 4-35 unsigned 4-22 prerequisite publication xiii **Presentation Graphics Routines** See graphics routines PRIOR phrase, READ statement 5-54 problem determination 11-1 procedure Declarative EXCEPTION/ERROR 5-21 for debugging 6-68 general description 5-20 general format 5-20 description 5-1 procedure branching statement ALTER statement 5-116 GO TO statement 5-118 in IF statement 5-24 PERFORM statement 5-119 STOP statement 5-133 Procedure Division 5-1 arithmetic expressions 5-6 arithmetic statements 5-80 conditional expressions 5-8 conditional statements 5-23 data manipulation statements 5-90 data references 2-22 Declaratives 5-20 example 5-3 general description 2-1 input/output statements 5-27 LINAGE-COUNTER 4-15 organization 5-2 procedure branching statements 5-116, 5-118 punctuation 2-17 procedure-name ALTER statement operand 5-117 description 5-1 GO TO statement operand 5-118 PERFORM statement operand 5-122 **PROCESS** statement compiler options specified in 8-13 description 8-13

format 8-13 in batch compile environment 8-16 options 8-13 using COPY within 8-15 processing a program 8-1 processing associated card files D-2 processing of files, initiating 5-47 program (executable) and table values 6-8 description 3-1 execution suspension (STOP) 5-133 **PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause** alphabet-name clause 3-9 condition-name condition 3-6 description 3-6 format 3-5 relation condition 3-6 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-6 program described files considerations for using 9-8 description 9-8 externally defined by DDS with Create File commands 9-20 program device ACQUIRE operation 7-46 ACQUIRE operation failure 7-46 attributes of 7-46 invited 7-51 name specification (see TERMINAL phrase) used by last I-O operation (see **CONTROL-AREA** clause) obtaining information about 7-51 release operation 7-47 status of 7-46 program execution debugging switch 6-66 program segments description 6-50 fived permanent 6-50 independent 6-51 program structure, general 2-1 program switch ALTER statement 5-117 program syntax, debugging line 6-72 program termination 8-26 **PROGRAM-ID** paragraph description 3-2 format 3-3 program-name description 3-2 formation rules 2-5 pseudo-text replacement rules 6-47 pseudo-text delimiter (==) separator, rules for using 2-11 placement rules for 2-11 publication, prerequisite xiii publications, list of related xiii punctuation character

defined as separator 2-3 enclose nonnumeric literal 2-9 list of 2-3 with nonnumeric literal 2-9 punctuation rules 2-16 Purpose of Manual xi

Q

qualification CORRESPONDING phrase rules 5-82 detailed description 2-17 of UPSI condition-names 3-9 rules 2-19 qualifier connectives 2-6 qualifier, definition 2-17 quotation mark and QUOTE figurative constant 2-7 description 2-4 placement rules for 2-15 rules for using 2-11 specified in PROCESS statement 8-14 QUOTE, QUOTES figurative constant 2-7 quotient, in division 5-86

R

random access DELETE statement 5-40 description 3-15 indexed files 3-23 **READ statement** 5-52 relative files 3-23 WRITE statement 5-74 read from invited program devices 7-51 controlled job termination 7-52 invited program device errors 7-51 name of program device read See CONTROL-AREA clause no data available See NO DATA phrase no program devices invited See AT END phrase operation 7-51 record format name read See CONTROL-AREA clause time out on wait for data 7-52 **READ** statement access considerations 5-54 description 5-52 device considerations 5-54 for TRANSACTION file 7-50 formats 5-52 INTO identifier phrase 5-28 organization considerations 5-54

sets current record pointer 5-29 receiving field alignment rules and 4-21 in group MOVE statement 5-101 in STRING statement 5-105 in UNSTRING statement 5-111 MOVE statement 5-98 record See logical record **RECORD CONTAINS clause** description 4-11 format 4-11 record description entry as RENAMES clause gualifier 4-54 COPY statement, DDS format 4-5 description 4-1, 4-23 sort/merge output file 6-34 record format fields 7-2 record format specifications example 9-12, 9-13 use of DDS keywords 9-11 RECORD KEY for a format 3-25 function of in indexed file 3-16 **REWRITE statement** 5-63 START statement 5-68 **RECORD KEY clause** description 3-24 format 3-18 record level concepts 4-17 record locking updating data base records 9-5 record sequencing using sort/merge 6-25 record size ACCEPT statement 5-30 DISPLAY statement 5-44 established at file creation time 5-73 incompatible lengths 4-11 **RECORD CONTAINS clause specifies** 4-11 **REWRITE** statement considerations 5-61 sort/merge output file considerations 6-34 record storage, WRITE statement 5-73 record-description level-number concepts description 4-18 illustration 4-20 record-name formation rules 2-5 **RELEASE statement operand** 6-36 **REWRITE statement** 5-61 WRITE statement considerations 5-73 **RECORDS** phrase of **RERUN** clause format 3-27 **REDEFINES** clause description 4-28 format 4-28 redefining item description 4-29 moving to a redefined item 5-98 reference number 8-17, 8-24 reference to data 2-18

register 6-70 relation character list of 2-3 relation condition description 5-11 format 5-11 nonnumeric operand comparisons 5-13 numeric operand comparisons 5-13 PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause 3-6 relational operator meanings 5-11 table handling rules 6-14 relational operator in abbreviated combined relation condition 5-19 meaning 5-11 relative and direct index usage 6-20 relative file organization, description 3-15 relative files File-Control entry description 3-16 format 3-18 RELATIVE I-O module, 1974 Standard 1-2 relative indexing, description 6-7 **RELATIVE KEY** FILE-CONTROL paragraph considerations 3-18 START statement 5-68 SUBFILE phrase considerations 7-49 WRITE statement considerations 5-75 release program device See DROP statement **RELEASE** statement description 6-36 format 6-36 **REMAINDER** phrase of DIVIDE statement execution rules 5-87 format 5-87 **RENAMES** clause data-name-2 phrase 4-54 data-name-2 THRU data-name-3 phrase 4-54 description 4-54 format 4-54 general format 4-24 level-66 item 4-20 specification examples 4-56 repetitive execution of PERFORM statement 5-122 replacement editing description 4-52 replacement of file records 5-61 replacement rules for library-text 6-39 **REPLACING** phrase of COPY statement 6-47 of INSPECT statement 5-94 reporting COBOL problems 11-5 required items indicated by braces 1-4 required words, detailed description 2-6 **RERUN** clause description 3-28 formats 3-27 **RESERVE clause** 3-17

reserved word detailed description 2-5 list G-1 printed as capital letters 1-4 retrieving/saving source entries 6-39 **RETURN** statement for sort/merge description 6-36 format 6-37 sets current record pointer 5-29 **REVERSED** phrase of OPEN statement 5-48 **REWRITE** statement access considerations 5-62 description 5-61 device considerations 5-62 for TRANSACTION file 7-58 format 5-61 FROM identifier phrase and 5-28 organization considerations 5-62 right parenthesis ()) description 2-3 rules for using 2-11 right-padding of items 4-21 **ROLLBACK** statement description 5-65 format 5-65 sets current record pointer 5-29 **ROUNDED** phrase ADD statement 5-84 COMPUTE statement 5-84 description 5-83 DIVIDE statement 5-84 execution rules 5-83 MULTIPLY statement 5-84 routine-name formation rules 2-5 in ENTER statement 5-134 SUBTRACT statement 5-84 rules for qualification 2-19 rules, punctuation 2-16 run unit CALL statement transfer control 6-56

\mathbf{S}

SAME clause and SAME SORT/SORT-MERGE AREA clause 6-27 description 3-28 format 3-27 RELEASE statement and 6-36 sample programs See also examples commitment control 9-47 error recovery procedure 9-55 FORMATFILE file creation 9-22 indexed file creation F-6 indexed file updating F-8 mixed file creation 7-30

multiple display file creation 7-30 relative file creation F-11 relative file retrieval F-15 relative file updating F-13 sequential file creation F-2 sequential file updating and extension F-4 TRANSACTION file processing 7-50TRANSACTION program 7-67 work station support 7-66 SD entry and MERGE statement file-name 6-29 and RELEASE statement record-name 6-36 and RETURN statement file-name 6-37 and SORT statement file-name 6-28 description 6-28 FILE-CONTROL paragraph 3-18 format 6-28 SEARCH statement coding example 6-20 description 6-15 execution considerations 6-18 formats 6-15 section header description 5-1 in Declarative procedures 5-20 specification of 2-14 section-name ALTER statement and 5-116 as qualifier 2-19 description 5-1 formation rules 2-5 GO TO statement 5-118 PERFORM statement 5-122 restriction on duplication 2-19 section, description 5-1 SECURITY paragraph format 3-1 syntax checker restriction 8-4 SEGMENT-LIMIT clause 3-6 segment-number description 6-50 formation rules 2-5 logic of specification 6-51 segment-number, in Declaratives 5-20 segmentation feature concepts program segments 6-50 Procedure Division 6-53 special considerations 6-53 segmentation information ALTER statement 6-53 calling and called programs 6-54 GO TO statement 6-53 PERFORM statement 6-54 SORT and MERGE statements 6-54 SEGMENTATION module, 1974 Standard 1-2 SELECT clause formats 3-17 order of specification 3-19 sort/merge considerations 6-26

sending field in group MOVE statement 5-101 in STRING statement 5-105 in UNSTRING statement 5-109 MOVE statement 5-98 sentence categories 5-3 description 5-2 SEPARATE CHARACTER phrase of SIGN clause description and format 4-35 separator description 2-3 detailed description 2-10 sequence number, detailed description 2-11 sequence of clauses, required 1-5 sequence of execution, performed procedures 5-122 sequencing records using sort/merge 6-25 sequential access DELETE statement 5-40 READ statement and 5-52 relative key option for 3-24 WRITE statement 5-74 sequential access mode description 3-15 indexed files 3-23 relative files 3-23 sequential files 3-16 sequential file description 3-16 EXCEPTION/ERROR Declarative phrases 5-21 FILE-CONTROL Paragraph 3-16 format 3-16 **OPEN** statement considerations 5-48 organization 3-14 READ statement and 5-55 **REWRITE statement** 5-62 SEQUENTIAL I-O module, 1974 Standard 1-2 series connectives, detailed description 2-6 service information, compiler A-1 SET statement and conditional variables 5-103 and external switches 5-103 and multidimensional table search 6-20 description 5-103, 6-22 formats 5-103, 6-22 initializes index 6-7 TO phrase 6-22 UP/DOWN BY phrase 6-24 valid field combinations 6-23 SEU See source entry utility (SEU) sharing storage file records 3-27 SI attribute 3-21, 7-5 sign character, in numeric literal 2-9 SIGN clause description 4-35 format 4-35 operational sign representation 4-22 S PICTURE symbol 4-42 sign condition

description 5-14 format 5-14 sign control, fixed insertion editing 4-50 sign in numeric literal, position of 2-9 SIGN IS SEPARATE CHARACTER clause description and format 4-35 signed numeric item SIGN clause specification 4-35 simple condition negation of 5-15 simple insertion editing 4-49 singular figurative constant equivalent to plural 2-8 SIZE ERROR phrase COMPUTE statement 5-84 description 5-84 DIVIDE statement 5-84 MULTIPLY statement 5-84 SUBTRACT statement 5-84 size of DEBUG-CONTENTS 6-71 size of operands in nonnumeric comparisons 5-13 SIZE, STRING statement delimiter 5-104 small letters, user-defined words printed in 1-4 SORT statement description 6-29 format 6-29 phrases 6-31 segmentation considerations 6-53 sort/merge OUTPUT procedure 6-35 SORT-MERGE module, 1974 Standard 1-2 Sort/Merge concepts 6-25 considerations 6-37 Data Division - SD entry 6-28 Environment Division 6-27 File Description (SD) entry description 6-28 FILE-CONTROL paragraph required for 3-18 format 6-28 File-Control entry 6-26 I-O-Control entry 6-27 or System/38 logical file support 6-25 **Procedure Division** MERGE statement 6-29 **RELEASE statement** 6-36 **RETURN** statement 6-36 SORT statement 6-29 SORT/MERGE statement phrases 6-31 source entry utility (SEU) browsing a compiler listing 8-4 entering a source program 8-2 source language debugging compile-time switch 6-66 DEBUG-ITEM special register 6-70 debugging lines 6-72 execution-time switch 6-67 USE FOR DEBUGGING procedures 6-68 source program batch entry 8-1
compiling 8-5 COPY statement considerations 6-39 description 3-1 interactive entry 8-1 using SEU to enter 8-1 WITH DEBUGGING MODE switch and compilation 6-66 source program library feature 6-39 SOURCE-COMPUTER paragraph **DEBUGGING MODE as compile-time** switch 6-66 format 3-4 Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 treated as documentation 3-6 space fill example using INSPECT 5-97 in an elementary MOVE statement 5-100 space punctuation character, description 2-3 space separator rules for using 2-10 SPACE/SPACES figurative constant description 2-7 spaces **BLANK WHEN ZERO clause causes** insertion 4-37 spacing of pages and LINAGE clause 4-13 special collating sequences, specifying 3-6 special features debugging 6-66 inter-program communication 6-54 segmentation 6-50 sort/merge 6-25 table handling 6-1 special insertion editing 4-50 special level-number concepts 4-20 special registers DATE 5-33 DAY 5-33 DB-FORMAT-NAME 5-30, 7-48 DEBUG-ITEM 6-70 need not be defined 2-6 **TIME 5-33** use of 2-6 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph ACCEPT statement 5-30 description alphabet-name clause 3-11 CURRENCY SIGN clause 3-12 DECIMAL-POINT IS COMMA clause 3-12 function-name-1 clause 3-7 function-name-2 clause 3-8 example 3-9 format 3-5 PROGRAM COLLATING SEQUENCE clause 3-6 Syntax Checker restriction 8-4 specification order data description clauses 4-25 data-name or FILLER clause 4-25

level-number 4-25 **REDEFINES** 4-25 subscripts 6-5 spooling files inline data files 9-4 output files 9-4 square brackets ([]) indicate optional items 1-5 standard alignment rules alphabetic items 4-21 alphanumeric items 4-21 JUSTIFIED clause modifies 4-37 numeric edited items 4-21 numeric items 4-21 standard COBOL format description 2-11 standard data format description 4-22 numeric literal size 2-9 STANDARD phrase of LABEL RECORDS clause 4-12 STANDARD-1 phrase of alphabet-name clause 3-10 SEQUENCE phrase 6-31 standards, COBOL xiv START statement access considerations 5-67 description 5-66 device considerations 5-67 format 5-67 INVALID KEY phrases 5-68 organization considerations 5-67 relative key 3-24 sets current record pointer 5-29 starting line number duplicate record keys, DUPLICATES phrase 3-24 formula 7-61 WRITE statement, for TRANSACTION file 7-60 statement categories 5-4 description 5-2 summary J-1 static values of a table 6-7 status key values I-5 STATUS KEY, file processing description of use 5-28 **OPEN** statement 5-52 WRITE statement 5-73 STOP RUN statement description and format 5-133 inter-program communication 9-61 STOP statement ALL literal figurative constant restrictions 2-7 description 5-133 format 5-133 storage allocation, calling and called programs 6-57 storage format, USAGE clause specifies 4 - 31storage layout of table, example 6-2

storage of records

REDEFINES clause and 4-28 storage of records illustrated 4-20 STRING statement ALL literal figurative constant restriction 2-7 description 5-104 examples 5-106 format 5-104 structure of COBOL program, general description 2-1 subfield contents of DEBUG-ITEM special register 6-71 subfile access 7-23, 7-50 special register DB-FORMAT-NAME 7-24 specified in DDS 7-22 use of 7-24 valid operations 7-23 SUBFILE phrase 7-49 subject of abbreviated combined relation-condition 5-19 of OCCURS clause, definition 6-9 of relation condition description 5-11 subscripting and PROCESS statement 6-5 description 6-4 example 6-5 invalid for File-Control entry data-names 3-18 restriction for qualifiers 2-20 substitution field of INSPECT REPLACING 5-94 SUBTRACT statement common phrases 5-82 CORRESPONDING phrase 5-89 description 5-89 formats 5-89 subtraction operator 5-7 summary of clauses and statements J-1 summary of updates xii suppression of sequence checking 2-11 switch-status condition description 5-14 format 5-14 symbol order in PICTURE clause 4-45 symbols used in PICTURE clause 4-42 SYNCHRONIZED clause description 4-36 format 4-36 syntax of program debugging lines 6-72 detailed description 2-3 system console ACCEPT statement 5-30 **DISPLAY statement** 5-44 system information transfer, ACCEPT **DATE 5-33** DAY 5-33 **TIME 5-33** system input device, ACCEPT statement 5-32 system-dependent considerations DATA DIVISION considerations

BLOCK CONTAINS clause 4-10 COPY DDS statement 6-40 index literals 6-7 item size 4-10 LINAGE clause 4-14 OCCURS clause 6-9 **RECORD CONTAINS clause 4-11** SORT/MERGE statement 6-30 subscript literals 6-4 **ENVIRONMENT DIVISION considerations** ASSIGN clause 3-19 RECORD KEY clause 3-24 **RESERVE** clause 3-21 SAME AREA or SAME RECORD AREA clause 3-28 SAME SORT-MERGE AREA clause 6-27 general considerations indexed file 3-23 library-name 2-19 program-name 3-2 relative file 3-23 source program library 6-39 source statements 8-2 text-name 2-19 user-defined words 2-4 **PROCEDURE DIVISION considerations** arithmetic statements 5-80 CALL statement 6-59 GO TO DEPENDING ON statement 5-118 **INSPECT statement** 5-90 STOP statement 5-133 UNSTRING statement 5-109 system-error routine 5-22 system-independent binary items 4-33 system-name description 2-5 SYSTEM-SHUTDOWN as function-name 3-9 System/36 accessing data files on remote 3-13 field definitions on remote 3-13 System/38 accessing data files on remote 3-13 field definitions on remote 3-13 SYSTEM/38 file name in ASSIGN clause 3-21 in COPY statement 6-39 SYSTEM/38 library name and Library-name 6-39 in COPY statement 6-39

Т

table definition 6-2 length 6-10 table element definition 6-1 length 6-10

table handling Data Division 6-9 OCCURS clause 6-9 Procedure Division 6-14 reinitializing index-names 6-22 relation conditions 6-14 SEARCH statement 6-15 SET statement 6-22 table definition 6-2 table initialization 6-7 table references 6-4 UP/DOWN BY phrase 6-24 USAGE IS INDEX clause 6-13 table handling concepts table definition 6-20 table initialization 6-7 table references indexing 6-6 subscripting 6-4 TABLE HANDLING module, 1974 Standard 1-2 table layout, example 6-2 table of valid and invalid moves 5-102 table references and SEARCH ALL results 6-20 indexing 6-6 subscripting 6-4 table values, defining 6-7 table, definition 6-2 TALLYING phrase **INSPECT statement** 5-94 UNSTRING statement 5-110 **TERMINAL** phrase description 7-49 with READ (nonsubfile), description 7-58 with READ statement, formats 7-50 with READ SUBFILE, description 7-56 with **REWRITE** statement, description 7-58 with REWRITE statement, format 7-58 with WRITE (nonsubfile), description 7-60 with WRITE statement (nonsubfile), format 7-60 with WRITE SUBFILE, description 7-63 with WRITE SUBFILE, format 7-63 termination of execution EXIT PROGRAM statement 6-63 STOP RUN statement 5-133 termination, program 8-26 test library 10-1 testing function, CPF 10-1 text-name COPY statement operand 6-39 formation rules 2-5 qualification format 2-18 THEN phrase format 5-24 used as separator 5-24 TIME, ACCEPT statement 5-30 TIMES phrase of PERFORM statement 5-122 TO phrase, SET statement 6-22 top page margin in LINAGE clause 4-14

traces considerations 10-11 description 10-8 example 10-9 TRAILING phrase of SIGN clause description 4-35 **TRANSACTION** files Boolean data facilities 7-44 data description specifications for 7-1 Data Division Considerations 7-43 Environment Division considerations 7-39 externally described 7-1 language extensions for 7-1 Procedure Division considerations 7-44 processing externally described 7-4 program described 7-39 sample programs 7-66 TRANSACTION organization 7-40 transfer of control ALTER statement change 5-117 and sort/merge OUTPUT PROCEDURE 6-35 explicit and implicit 2-22 sort INPUT PROCEDURE 6-33 transfer of data in a STRING statement 5-105 into DEBUG-ITEM special register 6-71 truncation in numeric items 4-21 JUSTIFIED clause 4-37 truncation of data ACCEPT statement 5-30 in an elementary MOVE statement 5-100 in floating insertion editing 4-52 incompatible record lengths 4-11 **ROUNDED phrase** 5-83 VALUE clause restrictions 4-39 truth value, description 5-15 twos complement form 4-34

U

unary operator list 5-7 use 5-7 unblocked files, BLOCK CONTAINS clause 4-10 unblocking input records/blocking output records conditions 9-6 file status values 3-27 **OPEN statement** 5-52 updating the I-O-FEEDBACK area I-11 unblocking, automatic 5-27 unconditional GO TO statement 5-119 underlined capital letters, keywords as 1-4 underscores, translated to hyphens 6-40 unsigned numeric literal considered positive 2-9 unsigned operand considered positive or zero 4-22

UNSTRING statement data receiving fields 5-110 description 5-109 examples 5-114 execution rules 5-111 figurative constant length 2-8 format 5-109 sending field 5-109 UNTIL phrase of PERFORM statement 5-122 UP/DOWN phrase, SET statement 6-22 updates to manual xii UPON phrase of DISPLAY statement 5-44 **UPSI** switches and SET statement 5-103 and switch-status condition 5-14 SPECIAL-NAMES paragraph 3-9 UPSI-0 through UPSI-7 as function-names 3-8 **USAGE** clause and numeric items 4-32 computational options 4-32 description 4-31 DISPLAY phrase 4-31 format 4-31 operational sign representation 4-22 **REDEFINES** clause and data values 4-30 zoned decimal items 4-32 **USAGE IS INDEX clause** description 6-13 format 6-13 USE statement EXCEPTION/ERROR 5-21 **EXCEPTION/ERROR** for TRANSACTION file 7-66 FOR DEBUGGING 6-68 user-defined word detailed description 2-4 formation rules 2-4, 2-5 printed in lower case 1-4 user-name as function-name 2-5 in VALUE OF clause 4-13 **USING** phrase SORT/MERGE statement description 6-32 USING phrase, inter-program communication format 6-60



valid and invalid elementary move table 5-102 valid characters in CURRENCY SIGN clause 3-12 valid execution sequence, PERFORM statement 5-122 validity checking, automatic 5-27 VALUE clause description 4-38 example of condition-name entries 4-41 format 4-38 VALUE OF clause 4-12 value, of numeric literal 2-9 variable length table description 6-11 format 6-10 varying operands in PERFORM statement 5-123 VARYING phrase PERFORM statement 5-123 SEARCH statement 6-15 verbs as keyword 2-6 lists 5-5

W

WHEN phrase of SEARCH ALL statement 6-18 WITH FOOTING phrase of LINAGE clause description 4-14 WITH NO REWIND phrase of CLOSE 5-36 word description 2-3 detailed description 2-4 reserved, detailed description 2-5 words, reserved G-1 work station support See also TRANSACTION files general description 7-1 Working-Storage Section general description 4-5 general format 4-3 level-77 and level-01 names unique 4-20 VALUE clause considerations 4-38 WRITE ADVANCING statement description 5-75 LINAGE clause and 4-15 WRITE statement access considerations 5-74 ADVANCING phrase 5-74 description 5-72 device considerations 5-74 END-OF-PAGE phrase 5-74 for TRANSACTION file 7-60 format 5-72 FROM identifier phrase 5-28 INVALID KEY phrase 5-74 mnemonic-names and 3-7 modifies LINAGE-COUNTER 4-15 organization considerations 5-74 **ROLLING** phrase 7-61 STARTING phrase 7-61

Z

zero (0)

as unique value 4-22
insertion symbol 4-43

zero filling

INSPECT statement 5-97

zero suppression and replacement editing 4-52

ZERO, ZEROES, ZEROS figurative constant description 2-7

used as Boolean literal 7-44

zoned decimal item

description 4-32
RECORD KEY data item 3-25

Numerics

00-99 segment-numbers, formation rules 2-5 01 level-number description 4-18 illustration 4-20 01-49 level-numbers, formation rules 2-5 02-49 level-number concepts description 4-18 illustration 4-20 1974 Standard COBOL description xiv 1975 FIPS COBOL and 1-3 1975 FIPS COBOL flagging full 1-3 high-intermediate 1-3 low 1-3 low-intermediate 1-3 5424 MFCU D-1 66 level-number concepts 4-20 formation rules 2-5 general description 4-26 general format 4-24 77 level-number concepts 4-20 formation rules 2-5 88 level-number concepts 4-20 formation rules 2-5 general description 4-20 general format 4-24

IBM System/38 COBOL **Reference Manual** and Programmer's Guide

You may use this form to communicate your comments about this publication, its organization, or subject matter, with the understanding that IBM may use or distribute whatever information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you. Your comments will be sent to the author's department for whatever review and action, if any, are deemed appropriate.

Note: Copies of IBM publications are not stocked at the location to which this form is addressed. Please direct any requests for copies of publications, or for assistance in using your IBM system, to your IBM representative or to the IBM branch office serving your locality.

Please use this form only to identify publication errors or to request changes in publications.

Possible topics for comment are:

| Clarity | Accuracy | Completeness | Organization | Retrieval | Legibility |
|-----------|---|--|--|---|--|
| | If your comment and do not incluc in the next revisio | does not need a reply le your name and addre on of the manual. | (for example, pointing ess below. If your cor | g out a typing erro nment is applicabl | r) check this box e, we will include it |
| | lf you would like | a reply, check this boy | <. Be sure to print you | ur name and addre | ess below. |
| Daga pure | har (c): | | | | |

Page number (s): Comment(s):

Please print

| Name | | |
|--------------|-------|----------|
| Company or | | |
| Organization | | |
| Address | | |
| City | State | Zip Code |

City

| 5021-//18-/ | SC21 | -77 | 18-7 |
|-------------|------|-----|------|
|-------------|------|-----|------|

| Fold and tape | Please do not staple | Fold and tape |
|---------------|--|--|
| | | NO POSTAGE NECESSARY IF MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES |
| | BUSINESS REPLY MAIL FIRST CLASS PERMIT NO. 40 ARMONK, N. Y. POSTAGE WILL BE PAID BY | |
| | International Business Machines Corporation Development Laboratory Information Development, Department 532 Rochester, Minnesota 55901 | |
| Fold and tape | | — — — — — — — – – – – – – – – – – – – – |
| | fachines Corporation | |



International Business Machines Corporation



SC21-7718-7